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IMPEACHMENT INQUIRY

Investigatory Powers of Committee on the Judiciary With

Respect to Its Impeachment Inquiry

THURSDAY, JANUARY 31, 1974

House of Eepresentatives,
Committee on the Judiciary,

Washington.) D.G.

The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m., in room 2141,

Eayburn House OiRce Building, Hon. Peter W. Eodino, Jr. (chair-

man) presiding.

Present: RepresentatiATS Rodino (presiding), Donohue. Brooks,

Kastenmeier, Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, Waldie, FloAvers,

Mann, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Rangel. Jordan,

Thornton, Holtzman, Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, ^McClory,

Smith, Sandman, Railsback, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, ]Mayne, Hogan,
Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froehlich, :M"oorhead, Maraziti, and Latta.

Impeachment in(|uiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Albert E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority ; Samuel Garrison

III, deputy minority counsel ; Joseph A. Woodds, Jr., senior associate

special counsel.

Committee staff present : Jerome IM. Zeifman, general counsel : Gar-

ner J. Cline, associate general counsel ; and Franklin G. Polk, associate

counsel.

The Chairman. The committee will come to order.

I recognize the gentleman from IMassachusetts, Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Mr. Chairman, I oiler the following resolution and

recommend that it be reported favorably to the full House.
The Chairman. The counsel will read the resolution.

[Mr. Doar read the resolution as follows :]

93cl Congress, 2d Session, Resolution providing appropriate power to tlie Com-
mittee on the Judiciary to conduct an investigation of wlietlier sufficient grounds

exist to impeacli Richard M. Nixon, President of the United States and for

other purposes.
Resolved, That the Committee on the Judiciary, acting as a whole or by any

subcommittee thereof, is authorized and directed to investigate fully and com-
pletely whether sufficient grounds exist for the House of Representatives to ex-

ercise its constitutional power to impeach Richard M. Nixon, President of the

United States of America. The committee shall report to the House of Rep-
resentatives such resolutions, articles of impeachment or other recommenda-
tions as it deems proper.

Sec. 2. (a) For the purpose of making such investigation, the committee is

authorized to require

—

(1) by subpoena or otherwise

—

(A) the attendance and testimony of any person (including at a taking of a
deposition by counsel for the committee) ; and

(1)



(B ) the production of such things ; and
(2) by interrogatory, the furnishing of such information as it deems neces-

sary to such investigation.

Sec. 2. (b) Such authority of the committee may be exercised

—

(1) by the chairman and the ranking minority member acting jointly, or, if

either declines to act, by the other acting alone, except that in the event either

so declines, either shall have the right to refer to the committee for decision the
question whether such authority shall be so exercised and the committee shall

be convened promptly to render that decision ; or
(2) by the committee acting as a whole or by subcommittee.
Subpoenas and interrogatories so authorized may be issued over the signature

of the chairman, or ranking minority member, or any member designated by
either of them, and may be served by any person designated by the chairman, or
ranking minority member, or any member designated by either of them (or, with
respect to any deposition, answer to interrogatory, or affidavit, any person
authorized by law to administer oaths) may administer oaths to any witness.
For the purposes of this section, "things" includes, without limitation, books, rec-

ords, correspondence, logs, journals, memorandums, papers, documents, writings,
drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, reproductions, recordings, tapes, tran-
scripts, printouts, data compilations from which information can be obtained
(translated if necessary, through detection devices into reasonably usable form),
tangible objects, and other things of any kind.

Sec. 3. For the purpose of making such investigation, the committee, and any
subcommittee thereof, are authorized to sit and act, without regard to clause 31
of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives, during the present
Congi-ess at such times and places within or without the United States, whether
the House is meeting, has recessed, or has adjourned, and to hold such hearings,
as it deems necessary.

Sec. 4. Any fund made available to the Committee on the Judiciary under
House Resolution 702 of the Ninety-third Congress, adopted November 15, 1973,
or made available for the purpose thereafter, may be expended for the purpose
of carrying out the investigation authorized and directed by this resolution.

Mr. WiGGiisrs. Mr. Chairman, a parliamentary inquiry.

The Chairman. The gentleman will state it.

Mr. Wiggins. The resolution now having been read, is it the intention
of the Chair to entertain amendments to the resolution at any point ?

The Chairman. The Chair intends that the matter be discussed and
then we will recognize Members for purpose of offering amendments.
I recognize the gentleman from Massachusetts.

]Mr. DoNOHUE. My. Chairman, very briefly, I think that this is an
ap])ropriate resolution which will make it clear the tools that will be
available to the committee in the critical investigatory phases of this
constitutional process.

It is a resolution that has been carefully prepared and studied by
counsel, both Mr. Doar and INIr. Jenner, and their staffs believe it will
enable the committee to proceed professionally with the exercise of its

responsibility.

For my part, I am pleased that we have an instrument which will
allow a genuine bipartisan exercise of these authorities. Subpenas are
to be authorized jointly by the chairman and by the ranking member,
or by either, acting alone with the unqualified right of either to refer
the rnatter to the full committee in case of a nonagreement.

It is only in this spirit of consultation and cooperation that we can
continue to pursue these grave matters on behalf of the House and
the American people. I would hope that this resolution will be favor-
ably reported by the committee this morning.
The Chairman. The gentleman from Illinois, ISIr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, in gen-
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eral debate, I want to express my general support of this proposed
resolution. I think it is important, for one thing, that we have our
authority confirmed by the House of Representatives with respect

to the impeachment inquiry, and I certainly want to commend counsel

for having presented what I regard as a substantially bipartisan
approach to the entire subject of the subpena power of this com-
mittee.

I also want to support the broad range aspect of this subpena
authority, because I think that our action here is of an autonomous
or plenary nature. And as I envision the exercise of this authority,

it will be reposed essentially in the Congress, without any impedi-
ment insofar as the judiciary or the executive branches are concerned.

I will, as I have indicated to you, Mr. Chairman, as the Members
are aware, because I have had the amendment distributed for the
benefit of the other Members, I will oiler an amendment that our
committee report its conclusions, its findings and conclusions on or

before April 30, 1974. I think it is important that we do have a set

date for conclusion of the work of this committee.
Now, Mr. Chairman, you have indicated your intention to conclude

this work and to report to the House of Representatives either ar-

ticles of impeachment or such other recommendations as we might
have, and I think that it is important not only that we have your
assurance in that respect and the expectation of this committee, that
we do conclude our work then, but that we embody that intent in the
resolution itself. And without setting forth the many reasons in sup-
port of that amendment at this time, I expect that you will recognize
]ne at the time that we get to the amendatory stage of the discussion

here and to present my amendment at that time.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The Chair will certainly recognize the gentleman

at the appropriate time.

The Chair would like to state that this resolution has been thought
out deliberately with a great deal of concern for the nature of the

work that this committee has undertaken. The drafting, which was
done by the staff, under the direction of Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner,
was the work actually of the committee staff as a whole. I think that
what we have attempted to put forth here is a resolution providing
subpena authority worthy of the nature of the inquiry that we are

to conduct as a result of a constitutional mandate which this com-
mittee has, which was assigned to it by the House of Representatives
through the various resolutions that were assigned.

For the purposes of merely explaining briefly, the resolution au-
thorizes and directs the Committee on the Judiciary, acting as a whole
or by subcommittee established or designated for this purpose, to

investigate fully and completely whether sufficient grounds exist for
the House to exercise its constitutional power to impeach Richard
M. Nixon, President of the United States of America.

It directs the conmiittee to report to the House any resolutions,

articles of impeachment or other recommendations it may deem proper.
I think it important to point out that the committee's power stems

from the power provided to the House in article I, section 2, clause
3 of the Constitution, stating that the sole power o* impeachment



rests in the House of Representatives. The power of the House in an
impeaclnnent investigation stemming from that grant therefore, in
my judgment, does not depend upon any statutory provisions or re-

quire judicial enforcement. The sole power of impeachment carries

with it tlie power to conduct a full and complete investigation of
w^hether sufficient grounds exist or do not exist, and by this resolution
these investigative powers are conferred to their full extent upon the
Committee on the Judiciary. It is intended that the committee and
its subcommittees be empowered in every way to exercise the full

original and unqualified investigative power conferred upon the
House by the Constitution.

The committees investigative authority is intended to be fully co-

extensive with tlie power of the House in an impeachment investiga-
tion with respect to the persons who may be required to respond, the
methods by which response may be required, and the types of infor-
mation and materials required to be furnished and produced. It in-

cludes the right to the extent the committee deems necessary for pur-
XDoses of its investigation, to obtain full and complete access to any
persons, information or things in the custody or under the control
of any agency, officer, or employee of the Government of the United
States, including the President of the United States.

It is the intention of the committee that its investigation w^ill be con-
ducted in ail respects on a fair and impartial and bipartisan basis, and
that is wh}^ in the spirit of bipartisanship the Chair saw fit to state un-
equivocally that when the drafting was to commence that the power
to issue the subpena or exercising the right to issue the suljpena would
reside in the chairman and the ranking minority member jointl}',

together with other provisions in the event there should be dis-

agreement, recognizing fully, as the Chair does, that the power which
resides first and foremost and basically in the House of Representa-
tives, because it has this constitutional power, that it vests this

authority through this resolution in this committee.
I hope that in this spirit, while amendments may be offered, we

have to be aware of the fact that this committee has up until this point
of time proceeded deliberately, conscientiously, fairly and respon-
sively in the hope that w^ien we finally have assessed all the facts,

and that when all the legal research has been completed, and that
only then are we going to be able to as a committee make a responsible

judgment and decision to report to the House of Representatives.
Are there any members wishing to

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.
]Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I want to say that I certainly support

the effort of this committee to have a fully empowered subpena right

assigned to it and approved by the Congress of the United States,

House of Representatives, as I am sure they will.

I would say that I appreciate the effort of the staff and Mr. Doar
and others involved in making some adjustments in this draftwise

and languagewise, which I think has improved it from, say, old

Greek to old English. It is still a little convoluted, and I am really

a strong advocate of simple requests for power and I do not feel that

we should be spending our time in this kind of resolution basically

trying to lecture Leon Jaworski or tlireaten the President—I think



we just should say that we had full subpena authority and, by God,
let's exercise it. It is my feeling that power generally in this world,

and particularly in Congress, is best defined by its exercise. I say that

the fewer words we have, probably the better we would be off in this

subpena resolution, but I would support the authority and certainly

will support a resolution to endorse a subpena, to pass one, and I hope
that we will then be expeditious in using that subpena instead of

going into every court in the country trying to get information.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Wiggins. ]\Ir. Chairman ?

The Chairmax. For purposes of discussion ?

Mr. Wiggins. Yes.
The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My purpose in taking the

time is only to alert my colleague that at the appropriate time I will

offer two amendments to the pending resolution. In doing so, I do
not wish to be understood as opposing the granting of subpena powers
to this committee. It is absolutely essential in connection with its

investigation, and I support that fully.

However, in the exercise of this power, it is important for the com-
mittee and for the Congress and for the country to believe that that

power is granted adequately but fairly. In that respect, it is my view
that the pending resolution is deficient in two respects, and I shall not

amplify further at this time because I will explain more fully the

nature of my amendments when recognized for the purpose of making
them. But at this time I wish the members only to know that I have
filed two amendments with the desk and when recognized will make
those amendments.
The Chairman. Does any other member wish to be recognized for

purposes of discussion ?

Mr. Butler?
jNIr. Butler. I Avould like to ask a question of counsel, if it is

appropriate.
The Chairman. It is appropriate.

Mr. Counsel, Mr. Butler is going to address a question.

Mr. Butler. I have some questions about the draftsmanship of the

document which is before us at the moment. My purpose is not to nit-

pick but to enlighten me a little bit as to how you have proceeded.

Mr. Doar, addressing ourselves first to the reason for the preamble,

if we want to call it, or section 1 of this resolution; since we have a

section 2, I presume the first part we call section 1. This, as I view it,

is a considerable enlargement of what I understood was the basis for

your investigation to date. Am I correct in my recollection, that you
have told us informally or formally on several occasions that you
felt limited in your iuAestigation to the chai-ges that have been con-

tained in the resolutions which were before this connnittee? Am I

fair in that recollection ?

Mr. Doar. In the pi-eliminary inquiry. Congressman, we were in-

A'estigating the charges that Avere in the resolutions before the com-
mittee, yes, that is right.

Mr. Butler. And so the effect of this is to enlarge if we pass this

resolution, is to enlarge the investigative power Mdiich you think that

you liave had up to the present, is that a fair statement ^
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Mr. DoAR. Well, I think that within the resolutions that were be-

fore the committee, there was authority to conduct a full and com-
plete investigation into the question of whether or not there was
sufficient grounds for this committee to recommend or not to recom-
mend articles of impeachment to the House. I don't think that this

resolution expands the power or the authority that this committee
already has. I think what it does is confirms it and formalizes it, and
this is the way in the past the House of Representatives has author-

ized and directed the Judiciary Committee to conduct such an in-

vestigation.

ISIr. Butler. Then further, for my enlightenment, you really do
not consider that section 1 is essential to the subpena authority but it

is for your purposes of clarifying and removing any doubt ?

Mr. DoAR. I think it is essential in the sense that I think it is im-

portant that this committee, in order to conduct a fair, full and ex-

peditious investigation, fair to the President, fair to the Presidency

and fair to the House of Representatives, that it have this authority

explicitly stated by the House of Representatives.

Mr. Butler. All right.

Mr. Wiggins. Will the gentleman yield for a question along this

Mr. Butler. Yes, sir.

Mr. Wiggins. Counsel, on page 1 of the draft resolution, section 1,

the final few words are "or other recommendations as it," meaning
the committee, "deems proper." In drafting those words, did you en-

vision that the committee might make recommendations quite apart

from whether the President ought to be impeached or not?

Mr. DoAR. Well, we drafted those in a way where the committee had
broad leeway as to what it might recommend, based upon the facts

as they were developed in the course of the inquiry.

Mr. Wiggins. But the essential recommendation, would it not, coun-

sel—and you correct me, please, if I misunderstand—the essential

recommendation here is whether the President of the United States

should be impeached or not.

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Wiggins. And if the committee makes one or the other of those

recommendations, you would not anticipate that it would go beyond
that, would you, by reason of the langiiage suggested in your draft

resolution ?

Mr. DoAR. I cannot say what recommendations the committee might
make, because I think that would depend upon how the inquiry de-

veloped and what facts and circumstances were brought forward and
considered by the committee in the course of the inquiry.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, I think I understand your answer.

The Chairman. Mr. Butler ?

Mr. Butler. Turning again to the language of the resolution, and
I am concerned about the second line, refers to the Committer on the

Judiciary, acting as a whole or by any subcommittee thereof, is it

your—is this usual language, to authorize any subcommittee to pro-

ceed, does this mean that anv subcommittee of this Judiciary Com-
mittee can proceed without further authorization to inquire, follow

a line of inquiry ? Why is that language in there ?

Mr. Doar. Well, it means that—it gives to the Judiciary Commit-
tee the power and the authority to proceed by subcommittee if it so



chooses, but it does not mean that a subcommittee acting alone, with-

out authority, specific authority from the committee could go forward.

Mr. Butler. Well, would a subcommittee not have that authority

without this language inserted here if the committee chose to desig-

nate it ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, the people in the legislative counsel's office indicated

that there was a possible question of whether or not a subcommittee—
the committee could authorize a subcommittee could go forward if it

chose without this language, and just to be sure that this was covered

if the committee chose to proceed in any way by subcommittee, that

it would be clear that it had that authority.

Mr. McClory. Could the gentleman yield ? If the gentleman would
yield

Mr. Butler. I have concluded on that point, but I have other ques-

tions.

Mr. McClory. I would just like to point out that an earlier draft

used the words "established for this purpose," which was much clearer

than the substituting the word "thereof" in place of the words "es-

tablished for this purpose." So in trying to eifect brevity, I tliink they

have—tliere has been some uncertainty that has been injected.

The Chairman. If the gentleman will yield, I would like to state

that, in accordance with the rules of the House, if this committee were

to authorize a subcommittee which would be in accordance with the

proceedings of the House, there would be no question. I think that

this is merely an attempt at least to assure that if we did decide as

a committee, and the Chair could not act alone because there is no
committee for that purpose, then this would be perfectly appropriate.

And I think that this is an attempt merely to avoid any possibility

sliould there be a subcommittee that might have been appointed for

that purpose.
Mr. Butler. Thank you, INIr. Chairman. Understand, my consid-

eration is prompted by the fact that we have kind of got an abortive

subcommittee operating now that I don't know exactly what its status

is and I wanted to be clear in my own mind, and it is not clear yet

but we are making progress, and I appreciate it.

Mr. ]\IcClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Butler still has the floor.

Mr. Butler. If I may, continuing my question of counsel with refer-

ence to the words "and directed," is it appropriate in a resolution of

this nature to include a direction? I have looked at the rules with
reference to those, the vai-ious committees of the House, and I do
not find that they are done ever to have anything other than an au-

thorization. And is this direction in here for any particular reason,

or is this something you gave some thought to and, if you did, I would
appreciate the benefit of it.

Air. Doar. In the past, with respect to resolutions by the House,
this authorized and directed language is used, and we think that it

would be appropriate for it to be included here, it should be included
here.

Mr. Butler. That means, sir, then, that the work of this committee
under this resolution will not be concluded until we have made a
recommendation and a report to the House of some form, is that

correct ?



Mr. DoAR. Well, the
Mr. BuTLEK. Is that the intention of the draftsmen ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.
Mr. Butler. Thank you, sir. Another question, if I may—excuse me.
Mr. Bailsback. Mr. Chairman, I join with my colleagues in general

support of your resolution requesting subpena power. As I understand
it^—I would like to address also a question to Mr. Doar—as I under-
stand it, the powers of authorization at issuance being given to our
chairman and to the ranking miiiority member are ver}', very similar

to what was done with the chairman and vice chairman of the Senate
Watergate committee, is that correct ?

Mr. Doar. Well, I think that there are some slight difl'erences with
respect to that, in that-—but the intention here was to give to the
chairman and the ranking minorit}^ member the authority to author-

ize the issuance of subpenas if they would agree.

Mr. Bailsback. Well, as I understand from reading the Senate
Watergate committee's rules, eitlier the chairman or the vice chairman
was in a position to issue subpenas on his own but if there was a dis-

agreement then there could be an appeal to the full comriiittce to pos-

sibly override the issuance of a subpena. Is that correct ?

]Sh\ Doar. That is correct.

Mr. Bailsback. Do you know whether there were instances over
there where that actually happened, where either the chairman

—

I think it would be helpful to us to see exactly what powers we are

delegating to our chairman and ranking minority member and, based
upon the experience over there, whether there were occasions when the

full committee decided to not permit an issuance of the subpena.
Mr. Doar. Yes; I believe that—and I am not completely familiar

with that, Congressman, but I believe there were cases where the full

committee did not approve a subpena. And I know that there were
many cases where the matter was brought to the full committee for

consideration.

Mr. Dexxis. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. Bailsback. I would be glad to yield.

]Mr. Dexxis. It was my impression that the draft of this resolution

is the same as the Watergate draft. The Watergate draft saj'S, if I

remember it correctly, that the authority can be exercised by the chair-

man, by the vice chairman or by both, or by a majority of the com-
mittee if either or both requests. Noav, that is not what we do here,

because here we go to the conmiittee only if the other two disagree.

It is a very distinct difference, in my opinion, and I think that the

amendment to be offered by my friend from California will address
itself generally to this area for which reason I don't intend to go into

the matter further at this point. But I do think his amendment is a
very importaiit one and it is one which I very vigorously personally
support, and I would discuss it at that time if recognized.
The Chairman. Thank you. Mr. Waldie?
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Doar, can we be assured that the powers under this

document, if voted, will enable the committee, if they so desire, to

compel the attendance of the President to testify in person before the

committee?
jNIr. Doar. The powers are that broad, yes.



Mr. Waldie. Aiid in the event the chairman and the ranking mi-
nority member are not desirous of such a subpena for just purposes of
my own information, the committee tlien lias the power by a majority
vote to compel the ax^pearance of the President mider oath before the
committee ?

Mr. DoAE. Yes; it does. Subsection (2) provides for that.

Mr. Waldie. And in your view there is no assertion of any super
power that the President might assert would weaken tiie Presidency,
that would enable him to not respond to tiie subpena 'i

Mr. DoAR. AVell, my view is that the committee has the power to

issue the subpena to the President, and it is my view that tlie power
of the House in an impeachment iiitj[uiry comes from the Constitu-
tion and it provides for the broadest kind of a constitutional inquiry.

Mr. Waldie. And does that therefore mean in your \iew the l-'resi-

dent would not be able to assert a defense that would prevent the
subpena requiring his appearance 'i

Mr. DoAR. My vieAv is that the President would not be able to assert

that kind of a defense.

Mr. Waldie. May I ask minority counsel if he concurs in that
opinion {

Mr. JENNER. Mr. Congressman, yes; I share fully that opinion.

Mr. Waldie. Thank you.
The Chairman. If there are no further—Mr. Butler, I understand

you have a couple more questions, and then we will recognize mem-
bers for purposes of oliering amendments.
Mr. Butler. I am interested in section 2 and specifically, Mr. Doar,

if you would discuss with us the precedents that there nui\' be for
depositions and interrogatories by a committee of the House. Is this

jjracticed often ? Are there other rules which have authorized it ^ And
iiow has it proceeded in the past ?

Mr. Hoar. There are no precedents for the taking of dex^ositions

by counsel for the committee. However, the taking of such deposi-

tions are not XDrohibited by the rules of the House. And it seemed to

Mr. Jenner and myself that in the interest of conducting an exx^edi-

tious investigation in x^rex^aration for hearings, if the committee were
to decide that hearings should be held, that the use of dex^ositions

and interrogatories would greatly facilitate the prex)aratioii of the
matters that were relevant to the committee's inquiry.

Mr. Jenner. Congressman Butler, this also comes a good deal from
my exx^erience as senior counsel of the Warren Commission, in con-
ducting that wide-ranging investigation for a x^eriod of a year. There
are certain times when in order to facilitate your investigation that,

instead of having the committee assemble, something of that charac-
ter, to take a deposition of a relatively minor factual witness and that
sort of thing, and also that j^ou exercise your x^ow^er to use interroga-

tories so that you might avoid the necessity of the formality of even
holding or taking a deposition.

What sub (2) is designated to do is to facilitate the ability of the
House Judiciary Committee to assemble the facts.

Mr. Butler. Please understand, I am totally sympathetic with what
you are trying to do, but my question is this : Is there precedent for

subpena authority of a House committee to compel a witness to appear
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at the taking of a deposition at which the committee nor had no mem-
ber thereof is present ?

Mr. DoAR. I don't believe there is precedent for that, but it is not

prohibited by the rules.

Mr, Butler. Yes, sir, I understand. Now, one more question. Of
course, you are familiar with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
and the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.
Mr. DoAR. Right.
Mr. Butler. Well, I'm not, so I am glad to know that. But I would

understand, from my recollection, that they spell out in great detail

the rules where you proceed for the taking of depositions, the time-

table, the warnings of the circumstances of how you proceed, how you
call the witness to court to account for his failure to answer. Is it your
intention to spell out the rules for the taking of these depositions in

any detail by this committee, or are you going to rely on this general

authority and just play it by ear ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, it would be our intention, I believe, Mr. Jenner's

and mine, to establish procedures for the taking of depositions that

would insure fairness to the witnesses. And if there was a situation

that was at all troublesome or at all questionable, it would be our
intention to bring that matter to the committee so that the committee
could decide how to deal with that particular witness.

Mr. Butler. One more question. Is it your intention to adopt

—

excuse me.
Mr. Jenner. Could I supplement also, six

Mr. Butler. Yes, sir. I would appreciate it.

Mr. Jenner. It is Mr. Doar's and my view also—I should say that

I am very familiar with the civil and criminal rules. I was a mem-
ber of the Supreme Court Advisory Committee that drafted the Fed-
eral Civil Rules of Procedure. A major objective here was not to

circumscribe the powers of the House Judiciary Committee ; second,

not to put in this resolution various limitations as to time when deposi-

tions are to be taken and other things, to which you have referred, sir,

to involve us then in motions, objections and bringing the committee
before the courts. We were very desirous here that the House Commit-
tee on the Judiciary and the House of Representatives here is ex-

ercising its constitutional power and it will exercise responsibility and
within the due process clause of the Constitution.

Mr. Butler. One more question along this line. Having adopted these

rules of—having concluded among yourselves as to the appropriate

rules by which you would proceed on depositions and interrogatories,

is it then your intention to come back to the committee for the en-

dorsement of these rules and our formal adoption of them or not ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes; it would l^e our intention that the committee lie fully

advised in advance as to our recommendations so that the committee
would have the opportunity to make the final judgment on those rules.

Mr. Butler. Is not your feeling that it is necessary for the commit-
tee to approve them before you proceed to take depositions or not ?

Mr. DoAR. No ; I believe that it would be important for the committee
to approve them so that there would be no question and that if there
was any—no question about the fact that the counsel and the staff were
proceeding in accordance with the direction of the committee.
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Mr. Butler. One more question along this line.

The Chairman. Mr. Butler, I hope that one more question doesn't

lead to three more questions. There are other members who would like

to also direct questions.

Mr. Butler. Yes, ]\Ir. Chairman, I appreciate that.

The Chairman. OK.
Mr. Butler. I hope they will indulge me in the same way I indulged

them for 10 days on Gerald Ford.
The Chairman. You go right ahead.

Mr. Butler. Just 2 more minutes.

Is it your feeling that the preservation of the secrecy or the con-

fidentiality of depositions is a matter which will be within your dis-

cretion when you take these depositions, or must we, by our rules of

this committee, adopt appropriate provisions as to whether the public

will be admitted to the taking of these depositions or not ?

Mr. DoAR. I would say that unquestionably it would be up to the

committee to determine that, not for counsel to determine that.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, I yield to the gentleman from Maine, if

I may.
The Chair^ian. I'm sorry, the gentleman has lost the floor. I recog-

nize Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. JNIr. Chairman, I just have two technical questions

for Mr. Doar.
First, I refer your attention to section 2, paragraph (2), where you

say "by interrogatory, the furnishing of such information," does tliis

document limit the committee to obtaining information only by means
of interrogatories ?

Mr. DoAR. No ; it does not.

Ms. Holtzman. OK. I just wanted to be satisfied

Mr. DoAR. You can obtain information through the subpena by
compelling the attendance and testimony of a witness by compelling

the witness to produce books, records, and other things ; and, finally,

with respect to interrogatories, there is a formal method, a means ]3ro-

vided, an additional means of expeditiously gathering the information.

Ms, Holtzman. And with respect to paragraph (1) of section 2, is

the taking of depositions to be limited to counsel or does the language
of tliis resolution permit the committee or subcommittee of this com-
mittee to take depositions.

Mr. DoAR. Well, the language of the resolution provided that deposi-

tions would be taken by counsel. That does not mean, I don't believe,

that a member of the committee couldn't be present if he or she wished
at the deposition and ask questions. However, in my judgment, I would
recommend to the committee that this not be the practice that the com-
mittee would follow. The purpose of the depositions is to collect pre-

liminary information for the purpose of preparing the mass of ma-
terial that we have to collect and collate and assemble for intelligent

presentation to the committee. If there was a witness that had testi-

mony that we believed or the committee believed it wanted to hear

itseli, it would be my recommendation that that witness testify^ before

the committee and not to offer that testimony through a deposition.

It was only—the deposition would only have validity in this case

when and if the committee received it. If the committee wished not to

receive it and to ask that witness to be present at a hearing for further
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questions by members of the conmiittee, of course, it would have the

authority, the right to do that.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Thank you.

Mr. HuNGATE. Would the gentlewoman yield for one question?

Ms. HoLTZMAN. I would be happy to yield.

Mr. HuNGATE. I would like to ask Mr. Jemier : Do you think that the

rule would be broad enough to cover requests for admissions as that

practice is used under the i ederal Eules of Civil Procedure ?

Mr. Jenner. ^Ir. Hungate, I think not as drafted. We did consider

that but, as you know many of you ladies and gentlemen are prac-

ticing lawyers know, that is one of the more difficult discovery devices

from a practical standpoint, we have discovered, we lawyei-s, under

the Federal rules. We wanted to avoid that as another thing that might
enable defense counsel or a witness to bring the House Judiciary Com-
mittee to the courts.

The Chairman. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, I would like to have you clarify, if you would, a state-

ment made to JMr. Butler with reference to your reconunendation for

general guidelines on the depositions, interrogatories. I assume you are

not going to deal with definite time periods like the Federal Rules of

Procedure, civil or criminal, such as 30 days or even 20 days. I think

that would bog us down into other interminable delays. And am I cor-

rect that you would simply be making broad general recommendations

witliin the bounds and purview of due process or fairness I

Mr. Doar. Yes, that is correct.

Mr. Cohen. And, finally, you are aware that there is one, just one

scholar, that I am aware of, that has suggested that there is a right

of judicial review, and this sort of pertains to the standards that you

will recommend. In other words, if we were to be criticized for exer-

cising arbitrary abuse of power, what is your view and Mr. Jenner,

your opinion with respect to Professor Burger's argument that the

courts have a right of judicial review? I would like your professional

judgment on that.

Mr. Doar. Well, my professional judgment is that in an impeach-

ment inquiry that there is very little power of judicial review. Now,
with respect to a question about a witness and fairness with respect to

how the committee were to treat a witness who was compelled to testify

at some time in the proceeding, that witness would of course have a

right to have any action taken by the committee against him be

reviewed.

Mr. Cohen. I am not sure of your original statement. You mean
that there are very few situations in which there is a right of review.

I am not sure I understand that. Do you feel that a court has the right

to review the proceedings of this body on the subject of iniDeaclmient ?

Mr. Doar. Well, if a witness were to refuse to comply with a sub-

pena or to produce documents, and this committee were then to take

action against that person, it may be that thereafter the witness would

have a right of review.

Mr. Cohen. Would that apply also with respect to Mr. Waldie's

question of you, if the President of the United States were subpenaed

to appear before this committee and failed to do so, would there be a

right of review on that question ?
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]\Ir. DoAR. I tliink the question would be liow the House of Repre-
sentatives chose to treat that refusal. If the question came up in a
question of whether or not the House was taking that into account
in considering whether or not articles of impeachment might issue,

I don't think there would be judicial review. If, on the other hand,
there was a question of taking some action following contempt by the

House, I think there would be judicial review.

Mr. Cohen. Mr. Jenner, could I have your opinion ?

Mr. Jenner. I share Mr. Doar's views. I would like to say that the
committee also has hatl ad\ice of Mi. Ilntcliinson and olhei- minority
members, that the House of Representatives in making this investi-

gation is exercising a very high political function mider the Consti-
tution that is supreme. There are areas, as indicated by Mr. Doar,
to which the power of the House is circumscribed only to the extent
fixed by amendments of the Constitution of the United States guar-
anteeing civil rights to individuals against whom, say, an interrogatory
is issued, a deposition taken, or subpena issued. There are an infinite

number of ways in which the matter might get to a court for the re-

view or consideration of a particular procedural point. But I take
it in part 3'our tjuestion went to tlie general issue of whether the action
of the House of Representatives in this area may be subject to judicial

rule in the major sense. It is m}- judgment, and I share with My.
Doar, that the House of Representatives is not subject to judicial re-

view in that sense.

Mr. CoiiEN. My concern was, suppose that you gave 5 days, you
subpenaed a number of dociuiients or tapes or other things—and I

am not sure what that word "things"' means, even though you sj)ell

it out—I assmiie it includes sinister forces as well—but assuming that
you have a 5-day period, for example, whether that would be sub-
ject to review by the court as being arbitrary, unreasonable, that is

what I w^as concerned with.

Mr. Jenner. I would say "Yes," if a witness in that connection as-

serted that 5 days was a violation of due process as guaranteed by the
amendments of the Constitution, the court could exercise a judgment
as to whether that was so. I would expect the court to be very liberal as
far as this committee is concerned.

Mr. Cohen. That is all I have, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairjian. Thank you.

Mr. EiLBERG. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Eilberg.

Mr. Etlbero. I Avould like to ask Mr. Doar—in the course of dis-

cussing some of the problems that will follow the adoption of this reso-

lution, either in its original form or as amended—whether he antici-

plates any particular date when we may be in a position to make a
report to the full House. Assuming that he cannot do so, would you
outline some of the reasons ? Some of them have been alluded to in the
questions so far, but I think it would be helpful for the committee to
know your personal view as to where we are and how much time it

may take.

]Mr. Doar. Well, as the members of the committee know. I have been
asked that question before by some members of the committee. And it

is my professional judgment that I could not responsibly say to this

41-018—75—pt. 1 2
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committee that this inquiry coukl be completed on any particular date

in the future within, say, a several month period, I pledge to the com-
mittee that the staff that we have organized, ]Mr. Jenner and myself
will work as diligently and expeditiously as possible, I also pledge to

the committee that by the first of March that we will be able to report

to the committee as to the status of the investigation and to give to the
committee some idea of just what remains to be done and how much
time we think that would take to do it. But it is not possible for me
now, having been here only for just slightly over a month and having
assembled a staff, for me to give you a professional judgment of that

time, because I have just not assembled the material and organized
the direction of the investigation nor made any judgment with re-

spect to how much is left to be done at this point.

The second thing I think I should say is that the speed with which
we are going to be able to conduct the investigation will, of course,

depend in this case, as in every case, with the amount of cooperation
that we get with respect to getting the facts before us. All the counsel
is interested in and the committee is to get the whole truth and to get

to the bottom of all of the allegations that we think need to be pursued
to decide—to enable the committee to decide whether or not it should
recommend further proceedings in the House of Representatives.

Now, if we are able to get the documents that we think are material
to that investigation in an expeditious way, that will, of course, mean
that we can complete this sooner. We do have a lot to do and we are

getting Inisy doing it, a-nd we are beginning now to begin to identify

the other materials that we would like to examine in the course of this

inquiry.

The Chateman. Mr. Jenner, may I ask you whether or not you share

the view of Mr, Doar that at this time the March 1 date is a rea-

sonable date on which you might give this committee a status report

as to then how far we have gone and how much more it is going to

take?
Mr. Jexner. Yes, I do share that, Mr. Chairman, and I think that by

that time, having in mind my previous experiences in conducting ma-
jor investigations of this character both in my State and for the Gov-
ernment of the United States, that by that time Mr, Doar and I and,
I may assure you, a splendid ])rofessional staff that is almost now
completely assembled, will be able to give you all the parameters and
what we see down the road as problems, what point we have reached
at the moment, to give you an ability to exercise your sound judg-
ment as you always do as to where we are going anct how soon we can
complete this.

The CiiAiRMAisr. Mr. Jenner, if I were to ask you now to give me an
assessment which you intend to give on March 1, could you give it to

me now ?

Mr. Jenner. I could not, sir.

The Chairman, I recognize Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have an amendment and

I would ask that someone on the staff read the amendment.
The Chairman. Counsel will read the amendment.
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[Mr. Doar read the amendment as follows :]

Amendment

:

On page 1, in lieu of the present second sentence of the first section insert

the following

:

The committee shall submit its final report to the House of Representatives on

or before April 30, 1974, and such report shall ,set forth the committee's con-

clusions with respect to the investigation authorized and directed by this

resolution, together with such resolutions, articles of impeachment or other

recommendations as it deems proper.

Mr. McClort. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClort. I offer this amendment as a modest disagreement with

the draft resohition as presented to the committee. I think there is no

element involved in this impeachment inquiry which is more signifi-

cant or which weighs more on the minds of members of this committee

or the House or the American people than the question as to w^hen we
are going to get this impeachment inquiry over with. And it seems to

me that going to the floor of the House with an open ended resolu-

tion, with open ended authority with respect to subpena power, with

no indication as to the date in the body of the resolution with respect

to when we are going to present our recommendations and conclusions,

is going to just pose a serious obstacle to getting favorable action from

the House on this subject.

I realize that in almost every investigative measure which is referred

to committees, there is a time when the committee is sujiposed to report

the results of its investigation. Now I realize that with respect to the

subject of impeachment and the resolutions that I have learned about

with respect to the impeachment resolutions and inquiries, there is

only one that has come to my attention, but it is in the case of Andrew
Johnson where an impeachment resolution was presented on the floor

of the House and with respect to which a provision was made that the

committee should report at the first week of the next session with re-

spect to its testimony and other matters concerned in the impeachment
case.

In the case of the Watergate Committee, the Senate Watergate
Committee, to which so much reference is made and also which is very

closely related to this inquiry, they have established a deadline of

February 28. Now, this is an inquiry. This is a preliminary matter.

This is not a trial. This is to determine whether or not there is basis

for articles of impeachment or not.

And it seems to me that there is no reason why we can't establish a

date. I think it would encourage us to come forward with the results

of our work by that time. I think there is no criticism perhaps which is

stronger or more uppermost in the minds of the American people and
sometimes in our own minds than the slow-moving operations^ of the

Congress of the United States and its committees. And to let this kind

of criticism continue, when we have an opportunity to express a cutoff

date, to express an expeditious time for concluding our work would
seem to me to be entirely wrong.
Now, I realize, Mr. Chairman, that you have indicated that April 30

is the target date for the presentation to the House of Representa-

tives of our recommendations. Now, really, all I am suggesting is that

since that is your intent, since that is, I believe, the intent of the
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nieiiibers of the committee, let's embody it in our resolution and then
present it in that form to the House of Kepresentatives.
So I do urge favorable action by all the members on this subject.

It will certainly overcome criticism of foot dragging or any partisan-
ship, whether it is on the liepublican or the Democratic side which
might be leveled, because of a failure to include a cutoff date.

Mr. CoHEX. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mv. Seiberlixg. Would the gentleman yield ^

JNIr. McClory. I yield first to the gentleman from Maine.
Mr. Cohen. I thank the gentleman for yielding.

Would it be your position that if, assuming there were a termination
date or expiration date of April 80, it developed that certain impedi-
ments did occur, the investigation would be—would this committee
have your support for extending that April 30 deadline if this would
happen ?

Mv. McClory. Exactly. That is a familiar practice, and I see no
I'eason why that couldn't be easily handled by a simple motion on the
House floor.

Mr. CoHEX. And you would join in tliat support for extension if

that were the case ?

Mr. McClory. I certainly would, if we had not responsibly and
completely concluded our investigation.

Mr. CoHEx. Thank you.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. McClory. Yes, I yield to the gentleman from Ohio.
Mr. Seiberlixg. Does the gentleman know any way that the House

can put a similar deadline on tlie President for complying to any
i-equests for information or testimony in this matter?
Mr. McClory. Well, I frankly myself support the committee secur-

ing every bit of information that we may require. And I don't think
that the fact that we put a cutoff date is going to encourage or dis-

courage. I know the President himself indicated in his state of the

Union message that he wanted this to be the whole subject of Water-
gate, including the work of our committee, to be disposed of expedi-

tiously, and I think that that is the most popular statement perhaps
he made because I think that is uppermost in the minds of the Ameri-
can people, to get this subject resolved one way or the other.

;Mr. Seiberlixg. Well, he certainly did, but he also indicated some
qualifications to his statement that he would cooperate with this com-
mittee, and we have no control over liis actions except as far as timing
is concerned, and I don't see how this committee can put itself in a

straitjacket.

Mr. ^IcClory. Let me just say this: I share Mr. Hutchinson's view
in that I think there are no impediments, no limitations on our secur-

ing of evidence, such as have been experienced by the Senate Water-
gate Committee.
The CiiAiRMAX. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. I just want to say that I think this is an infrigement

on the reputation of our committee and the chairman. Our chairman
has stated very clearly that he hopes to conclude this in April. I hope
we can conclude it in April. I would be happy if we could do it to-

morrow. I don't think the Republicans are interested in delaying
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this on this committee. I don't think the Democrats are. I think it is

quite obvious that everybody wants to get this done as soon as possible.

But to fix a date, to set a date is erroneous and unrealistic, and I would
say that this is not a pregnancy. This is just the rabbit test. [Laughter]
And I believe that candidly to try and fix an arbitrary date for the

delivery is at this point an irresponsible and unrealistic position.

The Chairman. I would like to respond to the gentleman who
ofiered the amendment, and I am sure that the gentleman, having as-

sured us that he wants to do a thorough and responsible job, is aware
of the fact that, while the public is impatient, while we are impatient,

I think that what is basic to this total inquiry and this whole process

is responsibility and fairness. And I believe that we owe it to the

American public to assure them that, notwithstanding the fact that we
may be assailed one way or another by those who say that 3'ou have
got to get it done today or tomorrow, that what is more important is

that we do it right, and that there is no other way to do this than to

do it right. And when Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner both say to us that

they are miable to assess what the status will be or how much more
we will do or need to do until March 1, I don't see how, in all sin-

cerity and all honesty and all fairness and all good conscience, we can
make a judgment at this time as to when we can conclude this in-

vestigation on our part.

I may say further that I think all of the committee members know
that I have stated all along and very categorically that I want this

investigation or this inquiry done fairly and responsibly. I am
stating now that I believe that it would be absolutely unwise
and absolutely irresponsible and a failure on our part to dis-

charge what I consider to be probably the most serious responsibility

imposed on the Congress of the United States, the consideration of

an impeachment inquiry which is a responsibility gi\'en to us under
the Constitution. We didn't seek it. It came to us because of many facts

that have occurred and allegations that have been made, and I think
that we had better remember that we owe that responsibility at this

time to do a competent, fair, and honest job without trying to set dates

because you are saying that people have said they are impatient. I know
they are impatient. But they are impatient for us to do what is right,

and this is what I intend to do when I oppose the amendment
strenuously.

Mr. ]McClory. Would you yield to me just for a few comments? I

would just like to say that we are setting a date. The staif is setting

a date for the historical and legal report to this committee, of Feb-
ruary '20. They are setting a date with regard to an interim report. Xow,
there are going to be 2 months between that time and the time that is

set forth in tlie amendment tliat I have oft'ei-ed. and it would seem to

me that since this is an inquiry, this is a preliminary hearing, this

is an investigation to determine whether or not there should be a trial.

And let me say further that we set dates with regard to budget
messages, with respect to adjournments with respect to all kinds of
things, and we have to do that because if it weren't for the compulsion
of a cutoff date, why, we couldn't end our work. And to go to the
House Vv-ith this open ended, with no date whatever, it would seem to

me to be extremely v'lsky and cause a lot of opposition that we should
not generate. The House wants to know when we are goino; to finish
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our work and report to tliem, and we should set forth a specific date,

and I have adopted the date you indicated, Mr. Chairman, when we
can do that.

The Chairman. I wonkl like to qualify that, Mr. McClory, and
state that at all times, whenever I express any opinion as to a date,

I stated emphatically that I wasn't going to be locked in by that, how-
ever, that most important and basic to this inquiry is responsibility,

thoroughness, and fairness.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. I recognize Mr. Railsback.
Mr, Railsback. Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that as we embark on

this, we have really got some obstacles that could be placed in front of
us. One, we are going to have to try to—in my opinion, if we are to

expedite, we are going to have to try to get Leon Jaworski's work
product, the benefit of his work product and get a report from him,
what he has.

The other thing is the White House can either be cooperative or it

can be uncooperative. The other thing is, there can be questions about
whether we are proceeding fairly or not. I am inclined to think that
we will proceed in a very fair and nonpartisan manner.
Let me just say that I think the American people want us to get

this thing over with. I agree with what you said about the fact that
they want us to do a good job and they want us to be fair. I think tliat

you would find, if we do adopt an April 30 deadline, that there would
be members on this side, and I would be one of them, that if there are
any obstacles that we believe really impede our investigation and the
thorouglmess of that investigation, I, for one, would certainly be
willing to support an extension, and I think there are other members
as well.

The Chairman. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. Mr. Chairman, I support the amendment presented

here this afternoon. If you recall, on October 23, the impeachment
resolutions were referred to this committee for consideration. Now.
by April 30, that will be a total of 6 months. And from now until

April 30, we have 3 additional months.
As has been said here just a few moments ago, the people of this

Nation want a decision. Yes, they are impatient, Mr. Chairman. They
want a decision. They want action. They want a determination one
way or the other. And certainly, when you consider that you liave a

period of 3 additional months, you have a staff of 35 capable lawyers,

it seems to me that working with this staff and, if necessary, continuing
in session this committee for 4 or 5 days a week, we can get the job
done.

The Chairman. I would merely like to respond to ISIr. Maraziti,

because he mentioned the date of October 23. 1 would like to remind the

gentleman, because I am sure that all of use are aware of it, and I
am sure that our memories are not that short: On October 23, we
not only were assigned these impeachment resolutions but we had also

under consideration the question of trying to fill the vacancy in the

office of the Vice President and that we were engaged with that matter
for a period of time until December 6. And from December 6 until a

later date, we then began to set up preliminary staffs. So I think that



19

the gentleman lias to be aware of the fact that this committee has

worked and worked expeditiously and intends to do so, and I believe

that that should reply to the gentleman.
Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman ?

The CHAiRMAisr. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman? Mr. Chairman, reference has been

made to time and to the Andrew Johnson impeachment. That was re-

ferred to the Judiciary Committee of the House on January 7, 1867,

and the recommendation came back on November 25 of that year, a

period of some 11 montlis or more. I simply cite that to show that

these things do take some time, they have in the past, and I would hope
that this one would not be that long. But if we are going to look at

history, that is what it is. And the final action in the Jolmson matter

took some 18 months.
Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman vield just for a comment on

that?
JNIr. HuxGATE. I would be glad to yield.

Mr. McClory. It was part way through the proceeding, because it

was dragging out, that on July 17, 1867, on the motion of Mr. John
Cabode, of Pennsylvania, who got up, on a motion of high privilege,

on the floor of the House and asked that another matter be included in

the impeachment proceedings and then said that the committee should
report the evidence to the House in the first week of the next session,

together with the testimony already taken in the impeacliment case.

So, you see, the House got impatient after a while and fixed a set

date.

Mr. Hungate. I certainly

Mr. McClory. It seems to me they will be impatient here if we don't

have—if we have an open-ended resolution.

Mr. Hungate. I agree with the gentleman that, after 6 months, they
became impatient, and after 11 months the House took action, it was
then defeated at that time. It was brought back in the next Congress,
in 1868, at that time they referred it to the Reconstruction Committee.
It was introduced on the 21st, referred on the 21st of February, it was
voted on the 22d of February, and the House voted on impeachment
on the 21:th of February. Now, I call that speed. [Laughter.]

I call that too much speed, and I think
The Chairman. Would the gentleman yield?
Mr. Hungate. Yes, sir.

The Chairman. Would the gentleman yield? I would like to also

point out that it was on December 21, after serious screening of many,
many who were under consideration for the position of Special Coun-
sel, that we appointed Special Counsel, the House went into recess

until January 22, and I think that that says something.
I recognize Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I believe that the adoption of this amendment would be absolutely

unwise. I say that, being one of the members of this committee, I Iniow
there are several, who have gone completely on record as supporting
an expeditious hearing, an expeditious consideration of this matter,
and I have confirmed that to my constituents and I have said it pub-
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licly, that we ought to complete our work as soon as possible. If it is

before April 30, that w^ould be even better. But to x^ut ourselves in a

strait] acket at this time, with what counsel has reported this morning,
would be a terrible mistake, in my judgment, Mr. Chairman, and so I

am hrmly opposed to the amendment of the gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. Fish. Mr. Chairman ?

3Ir. Daxielsox. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous question.

Mr. Fish. ^Ir. Chairman^
The Chairman. Yv'hat purpose, i\Ir. Fish ?

Mr. Fish. I would like to speak in support of 2\Lr. McClorys amend-
ment, ]Mr. Chairman. I find Mr. McClory's argmiients very persuasive,

and I would just like to add two things that seem to me to be impor-
tant here. One is that, surely, we have an enormous responsibility. It is

responsibilitA' to go into tiiis whole matter with such great care, realiz-

ing that we are establishing precedence and that the standards that we
arrive at are not to apply ]ust to the incumbent President but will be
standards that all future Presidents will be measured against, and this

obviously takes time, and I have such great confidence in our staff

tliat I know that this will be done properly and judiciously.

However, w^e also have enormous ojjportunity at a time of very low
ebb and public respect of this Govermnent. A\ e have an opportunity
in this connnittee, 1 think, to make an important contribution toward
turiung this around and showing that we can follow the processes of

govermnent, we can follow the dictates of the Constitution, we can act

responsibly and come to a decision, and that is what the American
people are looking for us to do. Thank you.

]Mr. ^Iayne. ]\Ir. Chairman 'i

The Chairman. JNIr. Mayne.
Mr. jMayne. 3Ir. Chaiiman, I sui)port Mr. McClory's amendment. I

believe it will, if passed, be a very healthy reminder to us and to the

committee statf that we do have an obligation to proceed in this matter
with all reasonable speed. I am satisfied from the polls and from
having talked with many hundreds of my own constituents on this,

that the American people do want us to proceed with more dispatch
than we have heretofore done. These resolutions were assigned to us,

after all, on October 25, and this is the very first time in my recollec-

tion that the full committee has been called together to act on this

very important subject. I think the American people expect more of

us than that. I feel that the elate of April oU is well within the chair-

man's repeated predictions as to when our work can be completed.
I recognize that there has been some qualifications attached to some
of those predictions. But it seems to be a reasonable limit and one
whicli would ha\e a salutary encouraging effect on expedition.

Mr. Danielsox. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous question on the
amendment.
The Chairmax'. I am going to recognize Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I intend to support the amendment. I am persuaded by the argu-

ments that we need to set some kind of a deadline, and I am not per-

suaded by some of the arguments made by the chairman, with all duo
respect to him.
The chairman points out that we had the Ford matter before us,
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which we did. I don't sec in any way how the committee members'
deliberations and hearino-s on the Ford matter had any effect in de-

haying the work of the staff. The chairman says that we took a month's
lecess. Presumably, the staff' was working very hard during that

lecess toward the whole impeachment inquiry.

The fact that tliis is the very first meeting that this committee has

ever had on impeachment indicates that it has not been the commit-
tee itself which has been in any way delaying matters, and I don't

mean in a disparaging way. The ball is in the hands of the staff. We
are just sitting here waiting for the staff' to report. The staff' says it

cannot get us a brief on what is an impeachable off'ense until Febru-
ary 20. They can't give us a factual report until March 1. The chair-

man's feeling is that there isn't anything we can do until that time.

So I don't think it really is fair to say that the reason we have spent

3 months already without any tangible results to show for us is be-

cause of the Ford matter and the recess. Presumably, the work has
been going on even during those two matters. So I intend to support

the amendment.
Tlie Chairmax. I recognize Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Daxielsox. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous question on the

amendment.
The Chairjiax. Tlie previous question is moved on the amendment.

All those in favor of the amendment, please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairmax. All those opposed.
[Chorus of "noes.'']

The Chairmax. The noes appear to have it.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairmax. ^Ir. McClory.
^Ir. McClory. I request a roUcall vote on my amendment.
The Chairmax. The clerk will call tlie roll. All those voting in favor

of the amendment, please say aye ; those opposed, no.

Tlie Clerk. ]Mr. Donohue.
Mr. DoxoHUE. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
]Mr. I^stexmeier. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
The Chairmax. By proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. HuxGATE. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoxYERs. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
]Mr. Eilberg. No. •

The Clerk. ]Mr, Waldie.
]Mr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Flowers.
]Mr. Flowers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
yir. IVIaxx. No.
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The Clerk, Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielsoii.

Mr. Danielson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eangel.
Mr. Eangel. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr Hutchinson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
]Mr. McClory. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kailsback.
Mr. Eailsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wi<2:gins.

Mr. "Wiggins. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.
Mr. Butler. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
INIr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.
INIr. LoTT. Aye.
The Clerk. Mv. Froehlich.
INIr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. ]\Iaraziti. Aye.
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The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. No.
The clerk will report the-

The Clerk. Fourteen voted aye, in favor of the resolution ; 23 voted

no.

The Chairman. The amendment is not agreed to.

Mr. Wiggins?
Mr. Wiggins. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would ask the counsel

to read my amendment to the resolution. Apparently copies have not

been distributed.

The Chairman. Has the clerk distributed copies of that amend-
ment ?

The Clerk. Are any copies available, Mr. Wiggins ?

Mr. Wiggins. They have been at the desk.

[Mr. Doar read the amendment as follows :]

The amendment by Mr. Wiggins to section 2(b) :

1. Delete all after the word "alone" to and include the word "decision."

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. INIr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. I first apologize to the members for some ambiguity.

The resolution does not have number lines. The word "decision" is the

second "decision" at the end of that paragraph, and not the word
"decision" in tlie middle of the paragraph.
Mr. Chairman, to understand the ameiidment, one must first under-

stand the nature of the authority given in the resolution pending be-

fore us. Let me state that authority as proposed. It is—if copies have
not been distributed, I will defer until they are. It is the section deal-

ing with
Tlie Chairman. Has the clerk distributed copies to each of the

Members ?

The Clerk. Yes, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
In order to understand the amendment fully in its effect, one must

first understand the nature of the authority, subpena authority pro-

posed in the draft resolution. It is proposed to be exercised b;^ the

chairman and the ranking member acting jointh^ Then if either

declines to act, which surely must mean there must first be consulta-

tion between them, then either may act alone, except that the disagree-

ment as between the ranking member and the chairman can be
brought by either to the attention of the full committee for its resolu-

tion and then finally the committee itself has an independent right to

authorize the issuance of subpenas.
Now, I propose by my amendment to raise this rather simple yet

fundamental questioai and to request an up-or-down vote on it, should
the minority, as a matter of simple fairness, have the right to subpena
witnesses—should the minority as a right of simple fairness—as a
matter of simple fairness, have the right to subpena w^itnesses. If you
believe that it should, then you should support my amendment because
it does not have that right under the proposal before us.

As it is presently constituted, if the minority should wish to sub-
pena a witness and if the chairman should disagree with that decision
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it can bring the matter to the full committee and it is resolved by a

majority vote here. That subjects the desire of the minority to the

will of the majority in this committee.
Xow, I submit to each of you that that is not fair nor is it right.

It seems to me—and I am sure that all fairminded people should
agree—that the minority should possess no less right than does the

majority in this situation. I fully expect and support the chairman
having the right to i-equest a subpena. But I would hope that he would
agree that the ranking minority member should have the same right.

As it is now proposed, the minority must go liat in hand to the majority
seeking its approval and I anticipate that in such cases the majorit}'

would tend to support its chairman and would vote down the request of

the I'anking minority member.
I don't regard that as fair and so you see, ladies and gentlemen,

the issue proposed by my amendment is a simple one, do j^ou or do
you not agree tliat the minority should have the right to subpena
witnesses, and if you do, I certainly urge your support of my
amendment.
Mr. Dexnis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Wiggins. I yield to the gentleman from Indiana.
Mr. Dennis. I would like to say that I very strongly support the

amendment which is offered by my colleague from California. I thiidv

it is important that we all understand, because this amendment ought
to be supported on both sides of the aisle, really and truly it should be.

We ought to understand the difference between the two versions.,

Now, the motion presented here to us says that authority for sul)-

penas can be exercised by the chairman and the ranking minority mem-
ber acting jointly, or if either declines to act the other acting alone.

Now, that is where we want to stop. And what is unfair about that ?

You can't act together, either can act alone, neither can act without
the other's knowledge because you have to have a declination to act

jointly before you act alone so you will know what the other fellow is

doing, but you can still go ahead under Mr. Wiggins' amendment.
Now, the language which he seeks to strike out says by the other

acting alone, except that in the event either so declines, either shall

have the right to refer to the committee for decision of the question,

which means that any time they don't act jointly you go to this com-
mittee and, therefore, the majority decides whether the man can act

alone or not.

Now, we leave in toto so the committee can always act as a committee

when it Avants to, which is proper : the other thing we object to is that

if they don't act together, one of them declines, that then before tlie

other one can do anytiling he has got to go get a majority vote because

obviously that is loaded against our side.

Now, you want to be fair and there is enough said here a])Out being-

fair, and I hope we are going to be fair. I would like to see it, and I

hope to see it. But this is partiallv a political matter and t:ho3e things

will crop in and all I am saving is, and all Mr. Wiggins is saying is,

treat Mr. Rodino and ]Mr. ITutcliinson alike, give them both the sub-

pena power, let each of them have to know what the other is doing, but

if they don't agree let them go ahead, both of them or either of them. It

is so simple, so fair, I don't see how anybody can really oppose it.
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JNIr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman?
The CiiAiKMAX. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Gentlemen, IMs. Jordan and Ms. Iloltzman, this pro-

IDOsal, as written, is eminently fair, it is not political, it extends further
than I wish. What people should understand and what we ought to
point out is that the authority to issue subpenas rest in the full com-
mittee, it does not rest in any individual, it does not rest in the chair-
man of the committee, it does not rest in the minority, senior minority
member, Mr. Hutchinson, the authority rests in the committee. The
exercise of that authority is delegated by the committee traditionally
by the rules and by practice through the chairman. In this instance,
because the Republicans want it, the chairman has acceded to their
request to give the minority senior member, Mr. Hutchinson, the same
right that he has to exercise the committee's authority and to sign sub-
penas, individuall}'

Mr. Railsback. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Brooks. Let me complete this—individually or jointly with the
chairman. They could also have four or five Republicans and four or
five Democrats sign, too. you can have a long list of signatures if you
want everybody in the act.

Now, this is what the problem is : The committee has the authority,
and we are treating ]Mr. Huchinson under this—not with my full

approval, I don't think it is really the way to do it. I think you ought
to leave it to the chairman—but we are treating ]Mr, Hutchinson and
jNIr. Rodino, the chairman, exactly in the same fashion. They can
sign a subpena. But if the full committee does not approve of that
subpena, we can negate it and it is just so much paper. The authority
rests in the committee, and that is where it ought to remain. And 1
would say that if Peter Rodino, our chairman, signs a subpena that
we do not agree with as a committee, we can meet and negate that
subpena. It would not be the will of this committee if a majority
of them opposed the issuance of a given subpena. The same exact
limitation exists against Mr. Hutchinson, the senior Republican.
Now, this is the way we operate in Congress. This is the way you

operate in a committee, if you are going to operate under any" basic
rule that gives a majority of the committee the authority that the
Congress gives to them and which they have. Now, that is just as
simple as I can make it. I think that the amendment is not desirable.
I think that we are treating Mr. Hutchinson exactly as we treat Mr.
Rodino, and that is they can issue subpenas, they can tell each other
or not tell each other. But if the committee does not approve of them,
they are invalid, and that is the way it ought to be.

The Chairman. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Brooks. Yes.
The Chairman, I merely want to correct the gentleman's impres-

sion that the chairman did not acceed to any request. The Chair offered
the minority, the ranking member of the minority, the same right
that the chairman has.

Mr. Brooks. Well, it is a very gracious offer on your part.
The Chairman. Well, I thought that, in the spirit of bipartisan-

ship and to avoid any possible wrangle as to how this might be done,
I thought that this was a fair way to do it, and I think that we are
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well on the way, and I would like to point out that I don't see that

the action on the part of the chairman or the ranking minority mem-
ber, which might be an action declining to exercise this authority,

and then referring it to the committee in any way shows that there

is any greater weight given to the chairman over the ranking minority
member.
Now, if you are going to presume that each time that a declination

does occur and it is offered for review, that there is going to be a
majority and a minority vote, that members are going to vote on
that basis, why, then, you are injecting this all over again. I am
hopeful that this isn't going to be the case, and so far as I am con-

cerned I hope that we are going to consider subpenas on the basis as

to whether or not they are going to serve the purpose of this inquiry
and hopefully that Mr. Hutchinson and I join at all times—but as

Mr. Brooks has so well pointed out, the power actually is initially

in the committee, and the committee is providing this authority to

exercise the right to issue it in the chairman and the rankino; minority
member.

Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentleman yield on that point?
The CriArRMAN. I yield.

Mr. Wiggins. I appreciate the chairman yieldinaf. And I feel

obliged to point out that he is absolutely incorrect. The power does
not vest in this committee, the power vests where granted by this reso-

lution. The power is not in the committee at this time and it will be
granted by the House when it adopts the resolution in the form it finds

agreeable. And if the House should feel, in a spirit of fairness and
equity, that the minority should have the right to exercise subpena
authority independently of the majority, then that is where the power
lies. There is no inherent power in this committee except as is pre-

scribed in the resolution pending, and it is my purpose to amend that

resolution.

Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chaieman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. I would like to ask the author a question or two on

the resolution because my initial intention was to support it, and I

want to ask you a question, if I may, on your amendment.
If we strike out the words that you' have suggested but leave in

subsection (2), bv the committee acting as a whole, do we not leave

the same power that you have stricken? The committee acting as a

whole could deny the" minority member, the ranking minority mem-
ber of the opportunity to issue a subpena, could they not?

Mr. Wiggins. In response to the gentleman, it is my opinion that

subsection (2) is an independent ^rant of authority to the committee

to act separately to authorize the issuance of a subpena and does not

supersede the independent grant of authority given to the chairman

and to the rankine; member.
Mr. Waldie. So, it would be your opinion that if the rankmg

minority member or the chairman were to be seeking—were to seek

a subpena that the full committee desired them not to issue, there

would be nothing we as a full committee could do about that?

Mr. Wiggins. As drafted, that is my opinion.

Mr. Waldie. May I ask counsel if he concurs in the responses of

Mr. Wiggins ?
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Mr. DoAR. Yes, I do concur.

Mr. Waldie. May I ask the cliairman then if that is "why it was
intentionally drafted there is then no power in the committee to curb
what we might consider excessive actions on the part of either the

chairman or the minority ranking member, is that correct ?

The Chairman. Not according to this amendment.
Mr. Waldie. Well, I am talking as drafted.

Mr. Wiggins. Even under the original language.

The Chairman. The original language gives the committee, acting

as a whole or by subcommittee, the authority, the same authority.

Mr. Waldie. Well, as drafted, does the committee have the right

to reverse either the chairman or the ranking member if they believe

their subpena power is improperly sought ?

Mr. DoAR. No.
Mr. Waldie. They do not, Mr. Doar ?

]Mr. Doar. They do not, not under the resolution as drafted.

Mr. Waldie. Then neither under the resolution as drafted nor under
the resolution as proposed to be amended by Mr. Wiggins, does the

committee in fact have any opportunity to curb either the chairman
or the ranking minority member?
Mr. Doar. Not unless the ranking minority—the chairman and the

ranking minority member do not agree, then it could be brought to

the committee.
Mr. Waldie. All right. I have no further questions.

Mr. Brooks. Pardon me. For clarification, Mr. Doar, as drafted, is

it your opinion—and you know what I think about this draft—is it

your opinion that, as drafted, as submitted this morning, that the
chairman and the ranking minority member can issue a subpena
which 90 percent of this committee is opposed to and would vote

against, that they could issue such a subpena and it would be valid if

the committee met and moved that such a subpena be invalidated
and negated ? Is that your opinion under this draft ?

Mr. Doar. My opinion would be. Congressman Brooks, that the
chairman and the ranking minority member could issue that subpena
and that it would be valid. If an issue came up to the committee on
the subpena, the committee, I would assume, would have the power
to overrule that. But I think the subpena initially would be valid.

Mr, Brooks. Initially would be valid, but it could be negated by the
full committee's actions, is that your opinion ?

Mr. Doar. I think if it came up to a question of whether or not the

subpena would be enforced, the full committee could conclude not to

enforce it.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Isn't it your opinion, Mr. Doar, that under section

2 that the committee is authorized to require subpenas, interrogatories,

et cetera, as it deems necessary so in the event the committee decided
that certain information was not necessary, that it could in fact over-

rule a decision by either the minority member or the chairman and
that that qualifies the power under section (b) ?

Mr. Doar. I don't believe, Ms. Ploltzman, under the resolution as
drafted that the committee would have that power.
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Well, suppose the committee doesn't deem certain

information necessary.
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]Mr. DoAE. AA'ell, if tlie committee were to

Mr. Sarbaxes. Would the geiitlelady yield '.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. I would be liax^py to yield to-

Mr. Sarbaxes. I would like to direct a question to counsel. As 1

understiind all of section 2, 2(a) places the authority for subpenas
in the conunittee.

^ir. DoAK. That is correct.

Mr. SAiiBAXES. Section 2(b) sets out how that authority may be

exercised. That is a procedural matter.

Mr. DoAR. That is right.

Mr. ISarbaxes. But the procedure for exercising the authority does

not shift the basic authority given under 2(a) to the committee, to the

chairman, and the ranking member if upon reflection the committee
feels that authority has been abused, the authority would still be in

the conunittee and they would then have the i)ow"er to negate the

process contained in 2(b), would they not^
]Mr. DoAE. Well, I believe that under the resolution that the au-

thority IS delegated to the chairman and the ranking minority member,
that tliat authority is delegated. That was the way the

Mr. fcjARBAXES. W^ell, 1 appreciate that they could proceed to act on
the basis of the process given to them in 2(b), but it would seem to

me that the committee, if it chose, could meet and invoking the power
in 2(a) which is placed in the conmiittee, invalid those subpenas if in

the wisdom of the members of the committee that is what ought to be

done.

Mr. DoAR. Well, the resolution as drafted provides that that au-

thority shall be—may be exercised by the chairman and ranking
minority member, so that the exercise of the authority is delegated

to the chairman and the ranking minority member mider the

resolution.

Mr. t5ARBAXES. Well, I find it very clilHcult to accept the hypothetical,

and 1 liaA e conhdence in both the chairman and the ranking member,
but if they were to

Mr. Brooks. I would like to continue—have you completed %

Mr. Sarbaxes. I just want to ask tliis question—if they were to take

an action wliich was indicated a majority clear, overwhelming senti-

ment of tlie committee was that it ought not to be clone, it would seem
to me, mider the power in 2(a), the committee could invalidate that,

could it not, with the resolution as drafted^
Mr. DoAE. I think the way the committee would invalidate that

^vould be at a time when the question would come up with respect to

the enforcement of the subpena, but 1 don't tliink—1 think under the

resolution as drafted that the initial authority w^as delegated to the

chairman and the ranking minority member.
jNIr. Brooks. Mr. Doar, let me just continue and point out that no

action by the chairman of any committee, this committee or any com-
mittee you ever heard of in Congress, in the House of liepresentatives,

no chairman and no member can do anything that will stand against a

majority vote of the committee that authorized it. This is a tradition

and a rule of the House and any day that you or anybody thinks that

a chairman or a ranking minority member can act contra and opposed
to a majority of the members of a committee, this is just not true. That
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is not the rule, that is not the practice, that is not the pattern, it is

not desirable, that a minority. Democratic or Republican, of a com-
mittee would have an authority by any stretch of the imagination

to have a controlling eH'oit of the committee. There is no way you
can give them that authority. xVnd I think the issuance of the subpena
might be valid until it was repudiated, but it can be negated by a

vote of a majority of this committee, and I think that any equivocation

on that is just utter foolishness.

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, I want to say that I like your
draft. I think Ave could have 37 drafts, we have got 37 lawyers,

and they could all be different. And there is some old saying about
don't buy a dog and then bark yourself. I think that we must trust

somebody sometimes, and I am perfectly willing to trust you gentle-

men.
I like Mr. Wiggins'—I trust Mr. Wiggins' construction, the fact

that the chairman and the ranking minority member jointly or sepa-

rately I understand could issue said subpena if the House gives them
such authority under this resolution. I believe in that, and I think the

House has power, just as it has power to create an entirely new com-
mittee or different ones to handle the whole problem and give them that

authority. I think if you don't, any defense attorney that can read can

read this, and if he is crazy if he doesn't appeal every subpena he gets,

and you have to have a committee meeting to go through all this stuff'.

It seems to me very cumbersome unless we accept the draft you have
and the manner in which it is presented.

I would like to ask Mr. Wiggins, the author of the amendment, a

question. Mr. Wiggins, wouldn't there be a preliminary veto in either

the minority or the majority, Mr. Hutchinson or Mr. Rodino?
Mr. WiGOiNS. Well, under the draft resolution and under my amend-

ment, if it is implicit that the ranking minority member and the chair-

man would make an etlort to act jointly, and hopefully all subpenas

would be as a result of their joint decision, and so there is the require-

ment, of course, because it is important that there be communication
between the two.

jNIr. HuNGATE. I didn't state my question well. I mean under the rule

as drawn, (b) (1), don't you thmk that either Mr. Hutchinson or Mr.
Rodino could decline to sign, and that would be a preliminary veto, ii

the other one wanted to do anything about it he would then have to

come to the committee?
Mr. Wiggins. Well, that is true. That is true. And I would anticipate

that in the event of a veto it would be brought to the committee.

Mr. Hungate. Well, now, in (b) (1), line 4, "either shall have the

right," but now they wouldn't have to exercise that right, would
they? Suppose they are going to subpena my Uncle Charlie, and
I want it done but I don't want him to know it, I just say, well, go
on, but don't include me, and he could do it by himself.

Mr. Wiggins. In the routine case, Mr. Hungate, I would not expect

anything to arise that would require that it be brought to the atten-

tion of the full committee. But in sensitive matters—and I don't know
how to define that except to say perhaps legally sensitive and perhaps
even politically sensitive matters—I would frankly expect either mem-
ber to decline and the buck would be passed to the full committee,
and here we sit as the minority looking at the full committee.

41-OlS—75—pt. 1 3



30

Mr. HuNGATE. Well, I don't understand it that way. Let's see if

I am wrong. It says he may decline, then it can be exercised the

other acting alone, except that the guy who declines shall have the
light to go to the committee. Suppose I don't want to go to the com-
mittee, I want him to do it Avithout me being in it? I could lot him
do it, couldn't I ?

Mr. WiGOixs. I agree with that construction.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman 'i

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. I am inclinded to support the draft as presented

to the committee for this reason. As I indicated earlier, I am anxious
to have this hearing concluded expeditiously, and it strikes me that

if we give plenary authority to either the chairman and ranking-

minority member acting alone that we could have an interminable
hearing of unlimited subpenas and unlimited evidence and we could
have abuse because there would then be no opporturiity for the com-
mittee to review and to pass on that subject, and I think that we can
get through this hearing much more expeditiously with the draft
as recommended. Now, 1 notice the gentleman from California, who
is proposing this, voted against the cutoff date and that makes me
further suspicious and so I do want to emphasize that I think we
will get through with the hearing earlier with the draft as we have
it here.

The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered by the
gentleman from California. All those in favor of the amendment,
please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. The noes appear to have it.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, on that, the yeas and nays, please.

The Chairman. The clerk will call the roll.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
]Mr. Brooks. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
The Chairman. I have a prox}^ : No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
iNIr. Hungate. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
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Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

INIr. Seiberling. Xo.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
j\Ir. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Range],
Mr. Rangel. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. No.
The Clerk. :Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. INIr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. No.
The Clerk. ]\Ir. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. McCloiy.
Mr. McClory. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.
Mr. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. jNIr. Cohen.
jVIr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. Lott. Aye.
The Clerk. iVIr. Froehlich.
jSIr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. No.
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While tlie clerk is tallying up the results, I would like to annouKce
that I know tliat the House will meet only very formally for about
10 or 15 minutes and I believe that we ought to go on and dispose of
this matter, if there is no objection, instead of taking any break.

The Clerk. JMr. Chairman, 16 members voted in favor of the amend-
ment; 21 members voted in opposition to the amendment.
The CiiAiRiiAX. The amendment is not agreed to.

Mr, Wiggins ?

Mr. Wiggins. Thank you, ]Mr. Chairman. I have only one more
amendment. It is a relatively brief amendment. It has been distributed,

I am told. Has it ?

The Ci.Ep.K. Yes ; it has.

Mr. Wiggins. I will ask counsel to I'ead the amendment.
[Mr. Doar read the amendment as follows :]

Amendment by Mr. Wiggins to section 2(a) :

Following the word "necessary" add the words "and relevant"'.

Mr. Wiggins. JSIr. Chairman, am I recognized?
The Chairman. Yes.
Mr. Wiggins. This amendment, ladies and gentlemen, deals with the

nature of the material which is to be subpenaed. At the present time,
the committee is authorized to require by subpena evidence as it deems
necessary to such investigation. The only limiting authority of this

committee is the words "as it deems necessary." I proposed by this

amendment to add the two words following the word "necessary,"
"and relevant."

Now, I realize that there are mixed emotions about this, but first let

me dispel one possible argument. By interjecting a requirement of
relevance I do not submit that question to any judicial review at all.

The word "it" refers to the committee, and this is a requirement that
the committee itself address the question of relevance. I think that is

wholly pix)per. What is the meaning of the word "necessary" if not
modified by the words "and relevant" ?

It might mean that which is legally necessary, and I take that to

mean bearing upon an issue before the committee. It might mean to

be politically necessary, but not bearing upon an issue before this com-
mittee. The word necessaiy is without qualification in any way under
the draft resolution.

It is my purpose and intent to confine the evidence which shall be
brought to the attention of this committee to that which tends to dis-

prove or to prove an issue before the committee. The only way to so

limit the evidence is to interject the concej^t of relevancy, which is not
in the draft resolution. The word relevance has a special meaning to

lawyers. This is not a vague concept at all, unlike the word necessary
presently in the resolution.

Accordingly, I would hope there would be support for this position.

Understandably, there may be disagreement as to what is relevant and
what is not, but that judgment is vested in the committee. I do
not submit that question to any judicial review in an impeachment
context. But I would like the committee to address the question, the

committee to determine whether or not a suggested line of inquiry is

relevant to an issue before the committee, and the only way to raise

that issue is to require relevancy in the draft resolution and, of course,



33

my amendment is addressed to that. I urge its support. It is not in-

tended to be mischievous in any way. It is intended to be constructive
and to confine our search to that which is important and before us and
not to extraneous matters. I urge the adoption of the amendment.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsbaok. Mr. Cliairman, I originally had reservations about

the amendment and for the reasons that we had a briefing frankly by
our minority counsel and counsel was concerned that hx using the
word—and you correct me if I am wrong—counsel w^as concerned that
by using the word relevance we might be inviting refusals to honor
a subpena, court tests—however, after listening to Mr. Wiggins' pres-
entation and the fact that relevant is used with the word necessary and
also with the word it—in other Avords, referring to the committee—as

the committee may deem necessary and relevant, I think that his ex-

planation is probably meritorious and I like the idea of imposing that
kind of a responsibility on ourselves, that before we just go on fishing

ex]:)editions or anything like that, there be—that we consider that the
infonnation be both necessary and relevant. I think it is a reasonable
amendment, I think it is one that deserves our support.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

The CriAiRMAisr. Mr. Brooks.
]Mr. Brooks. Let me say that with all due respect to my distin-

guished and able friend. ]\Ir. Wiggins, who is a fine lawver and a

fine IMember of this body, for whom I have the highest respect, I
don't believe that we want to add the word relevancy. I think it is

more restrictive, it would limit what this committee could acquire to

reach a decision in the way of data, information. We on this com-
mittee are interested in getting the data that is necessary. After you
get the data, you determine whether it is relevant and whether it

should be passed on, put in articles of impeachment, discarded, and
if it is relevant and it absolves the President from any blame what-
soever, then it would be relevant and we would utilize it. You have
to get the information before you can determine that it is relevant.

A court gets information and then they rule on whether it is relevant
or not. Why should we have less authority than a court? We are try-

ing to fulfill our constitutional authority and responsibility, and I
think to add relevancy would limit severely the staff and the Members
in reaching an honest and objective conclusion on this matter.
And I would like to ask the staff lawyers, IMr. Doar and JNIr. Jenner

both, if they feel that relevancy is more restrictive and if they feel

that that would limit the scope of their investigation severely.

Mr. Doar?
Mr. Doar. Congressman Brooks, I do agree that the term relevant

is more restrictive than the term necessar}-. I do agree that that could
restrict the scope of our inquiry, and I further state that it could
lead to wrangles and delays with respect to the production of data
that, as you pointed out, you must have before you can decide whether
or not tlie data is relevant. And therefore I would recommend to the
committee that it stay with the words just necessary.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Jenner ?

Mr. Jenner. Congressman Brooks, I share the statement made by
IMr. Doar and, as Congressman Railsback has indicated, in a meeting
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with the minority Congressmen this Aveek. I expressed that view to
all of them.
There is this factor, Congressman Wiggins, and you as a litigator

realize, what we do is we are compressing discovery procedures because
of the need for expedition here. And as you will recall the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure were amended, I think the date is 1962,
when we amended those rules, we provide in the discovery rules that
as you seek discovery, that which you are seeking in the first instance
need not be admissible evidence or relevant if it will lead to the
discovery of relevant evidence. And my majoi- theory in my term
as a litigator and ex])eriencos under the Civil IJules of Ciiminal Rules,
that those—the word i-elevaiit originally atl'oixlcd so much conti-oversy
in defense by defense counsel in seeking to impede discovery that the
Federal—the Advisory Connnittee on tlie Ci\il Rules, as you will

recall, did amend the iiiles so as to tone down as much as possible the
resort to the word relevant made by counsel. I think tlie draft as sub-
mitted will expedite your investigation, the investigation of the whole
committee and including necessary is a limitation of primary author-
ity. I realize that this in great part, C^ongressnuin Wiggins, does in-

volve an issue of the comj^etence of the committee and the professional
stall' that is here. We will want to exercise that judgment and we will

not be seeking things that are not in our judgment relevant to the
discovery needed to bring i-elevant evidence before you.

Mr. Sandmax. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. I proi)ose to vote against this amendment for the

same reason that I voted for the previous one, and it is that I believe

that we should have the widest possible latitude in our subpena power,
and I think it would hell) us to expedite this matter, and this is why I
voted for the previous, and the one previous to that also. I don't want
to put juiything that restricts the power to subpena or anything that
may lead to further issues that we should argue, and for this reason I

don't believe that this should be included as an amendment to the draft.

Mr. Cohen. Would the gentleman yield '.

The Chairman. Mr, Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Just a question of Mr. Jenner. Mr. Jenner, in your

opinion then, if we added the Avord relevant and in keeping with
the S))irit of the Federal Rules of Procedure or matters that may lead
to I'elevant information, that in essence would equal necessary,
wouldn't it, as Ave have here? They Avould be one and the same? If
you added the "relevant information"' or "may lead to relevant in-

formation,"' that in essence is tantamount to "necessary information,"
so Ave are really involved in an unnecessary act, if you adopt the^

Mr. Jenner. I Avould largely share that vieAv. I am not unmindful
of Congressman Wiggins" explanation and

]Mr. Cohen. But in terms of the Federal Rules of Procedure, you
indicated the spirit of those rules to alloAv the Avidest possible lati-

tude at aetting at information
Mr. Jenner. That is correct.

Mr. Cohen [continuing]. And you may subpena, take depositions,

interrogatories on information even though it is not relevant but may
lead to relevant information ?
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Mr. Jenner. That is correct.

Mr. Cohen. If you use that guideline, that in essence equals "nec-

essary"' within the meaning of your draft ?

Mr. Jenner. That is what we intend.

The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Thank you very much. I want to know if JVIr. Doar

shares the opinion just expressed by Mr. Jenner that the concept of

''necessary evidence" is to be modified by the spirit of the Federal
l\ules of Civil Pi-ocedui-e. that "relevancy" is interjected in the sense

that the information sought must lead to "relevant information" ?

Mr. Doar, I didn't understand Mr. Jenner to say that. I don't think

you can predict in advance when you seek information that it may
lead to relevant information, relevant evidence. I think that the idea

is to give the broadest scope possible to the investigation so that once

the material is examined, then the decision can be made as to whether
or not it is relevant to the inquiry.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, now, in view of the fact that you do not share

the opinion which I understood JSIr. Jenner to have expressed, I am
not at all comforted by the words coming from the comisel table. We
both understand, everybody in this room understands that the Fed-
eral Rules of Civil Procedure are designed to give maximum discov-

ery opportunity to parties in litigation, but that power is not unlim-

ited. You cannot subpena information as a party simply because you
deem it necessary, and that is uncontrolled discretion. The other side

has some right to object and is referred in a sense by a judge. Here
we have no such referee, and I don't concede that the referees have
any role to play. Accordingly, it is

Mr. Brooks. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. ^^'l(;(;!^s I contiiuung |. In a moment. Accordingly, it is our
own sense of restraint that conies into play. Xow, I want to guide that

restraint by a self-imposed limitation, and the intent of my amend-
ment is to limit our restraint in the same way that the Federal Civil

Rules limit the search for evidence, and that is it must be relevant,

and I certainly would accept the amendment "or lead to relevant evi-

dence." But I do not accept and think it is bad policy and bad law
to say that the parties may roam at will simply because the majority
of them feel that it is necessary, that term being undefined.
Xow I will be happy to yield.

Mr. Brooks. On that point, I think that we would all concede that
this committee is not bound by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
This committee helps to write those.

[Laughter.]
Mr. Brooks. The final authority lies in this conmiittee, and I think

that we can decide whether we want to use the word "necessary" or
"relevancy," and I think that the counsel is right in pointing out that
it would be restrictive to use the word "relevant," it would limit the
investigation. I think that everybody wants to get all, I assumed that
everybody wants to get all of the facts that are necessary to complete
this hearing and then to apply them to the relevancy test which is

within the committee. If they are not relevant, they would have no
hearing, we would give them back. Xobody is hunting for a fishing

expedition. This committee has not indicated, as I see it, that we want
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to have widespread liearin^s and call a lot of Avitnesses. We are not
planning a side sliow. But I think we ought to give our staff and this

committee the full authority to find out all that is necessary for this,

and then Ave as a committee will decide Avhat is relevant. That is our
responsibilit}^ It is not the responsibility of the courts.

Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield to me for a

l\Ir. Wiggins. I shall yield, of course, but before I do so let me say
that the bottom line on the Federal Rules indeed is simply fairness,

and that is the purpose of the Federal Rules, and it is my purpose in

offering the amendment, is to interject in a spirit of fairness that this

committee will not and Avill be restrained from an unprincipled witch
hunt. I don't believe that it so intends at the present time, but I would
like to see that it restrains itself and confines itself to the issues and
to allegations raised by the resolutions and evidence which bears upon
those allegations and not extraneous matters Avhich may have a certain

amount of political sex appeal.

Mr. McClory. Will the gentleman ^ueld to me ?

Mr. WiGGixs. Of course, I yield.

Mr. McClory. I Avould like to

ISIr. Wiggins. Are you still suspicious ?

Mr. IMcClory. No ; I think the gentleman is proposing a very valid

amendment and I am intending to support it. And I just Avant to ask
this question, because I think there is a rational basis for this, and
that is that Ave are going to receiA'e from our counsel on the 20th of
February, a historical report with regard to the meaning of im-
peachable offenses, Avhat are the legal issues involved in this pro-
ceeding, and then on the basis of that Ave Avould certainly Avant to sub-
pena only releA'ant eAaclence Avhich is relevant to the issues as contained
in that report, and that seems to me to be a A'ery A'alid reason for us to

include these words in this resolution, in tlie amendment prox:>osed

by the gentleman.
Mr. Dennis. Will the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. Mr. Demiis.
Mr. Dennis. I simply want to observe that the end result of the

argument of my good friend from Texas seems to me to be that Ave

want a vote here that we should go out and try to grab evidence Avhich

Ave do not deem to be either relevant or likely to lead to anytliing that

is relevant. It seems to me that is a rather indefensible position.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Wiggins, may I reply to ]Mr. Dennis briefly ?

Mr. Wiggins. If you mention my position.

Mr. Brooks. I would say that we are in the position of a grand jury
and Jirand juries do not have to ni^plv tlie rule of relPA'auv'e to the

acquisition of information and to the indictment of anybody brought
before it. You can indict in a grand jury—I think there is no question
about it, that Ave should not haA^e the Avord "relevance" in there and I

Avouhl ask the question on the

The Chair]\ian. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Thank 5^011, Mr. Chairman. I Avonder if Mr. Wiggins

Avould accept, as I understand that he indicated he would, this sub-

stitute language, "as it deems necessarj- and likely to lead to evidence
that is relevant."

Mr. Wiggins. I see no objection to that language.
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Mr. Drinax. I think that that makes more clear what counsel and
vrhat we have been talking about, that the dual requirement is there,

that it is necessary and likely to lead to evidence that is relevant.

Mr. Wiggins. Yes ; I would accept that amendment.
INIr. Danielsox. Would the gentleman yield ?

INIr. Wiggins. Of course.

j\Ir. Danielson. I oppose the amendment or the alternate suggested
by my colleague, ]\Ir. Drinan. Every time you add another adjective,

you add another restriction. It is another qualification. Mr. Drinan
and I both Imow, it is one thing to have long black hair, it is another
thing to have long black curly hair. Every time you add another
amendment, you add another restriction, and I feel that this commit-
tee should not be limited by anything except that which is necessary

to reach its ultimate objective.

If I have the time, I yield to the lady from New York.
Ms. Holtzman. I would like to echo what my colleague has said.

If we look at the language of just about every one of the prior im-

l^eachment resolutions regarding subpena power, the language is pretty

bare and simple, and it says the committee shall have power to send
for persons and papers, and it is an unqualified power. I don't know
that we can accept the standard of relevance as argued in cases of

law in the courts, the Federal courts. We have a different standard
of relevance t-o be guided by here, and I know that counsel intends to

operate fairly and the committee intends to operate fairly, and I

would oppose this amendment as being really restrictive and creating

problems and really not within the precedents of impeachment resolu-

tions and impeachment subpenas in the past.

jNlr. Wiggins. ]Mr. Chairman, I move the question on the amendment.
The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered by the

gentleman from California. All those in favor of the amendment,
please say aye.

I

Chorus of '"ayes."']

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

I
Chorus of ''noes."]

The Chairman. The noes appear to have it.

INIr. Wiggins. ]Mr. Chairman, a rollcall vote, please.

The Chairman. The clerk will call the roll.

Mr. CoNYERS. A parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman. Has there

been an amendment to that motion ?

The Chairman. We are voting on the original amendment.
IVIr. CoNYERS. It wasn't offered by jNIr.

The Chairman. That wasn't offered by Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Wiggins. I accepted it by unanimous consent, Mr. Chairman,

that is I

The Chairman. I don't know that the gentleman offered the amende
ment.

]Mr. Drinan. Yes, I did. ]Mr. Wiggins—I didn't hear him accept it.

JNIr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, I ask that counsel read the amend-
ment as amended.

^[r. Cc)NYKR>^. Mr. Chaii-man. I did not hear any request that it be

—

that there be unanimous consent to accept the amendment.
The Chairman. The Chair neither heard the offer of the amendment

except that tlie gentleman asked that if an amendment were offered.
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and the Chair did not hear the gentleman from California accept sucli

on the unanimous consent request, and tlie Chair therefore states tliat

tlie only amendment before the committee is the amendment offered by
tlie oentleman from California.

]Nir. Wiggins. "Would tlie gentleman yield? Just to expedite time,

because I can offer the amendment
The CiiAiRMAX. The question has been called for on the amendment

and the Chair has ordered that the roll be called, and the clerk will

call the roll on the original amendment.
The Clerk. ]\Ir. Donohue.
Mr. Doxoiict;. No.
The Clerk. jNIr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Xo.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. No.
The Clerk. JNIr. Edwards.
The Chairman. No, by proxy.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Hungate.
^Ir. Hungate. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. No.
The Clerk. ^Ir. Eilberg.
]Mr. Eilberg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
^h\ Waldie. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
]Mr. FLo^^^:RS. No.
The C^LERK. Mr. ^lann.
Mr. Mann. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

]Mr. Seiberling. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
]Mr. Danielson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
]\Ir. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eangel.
Mr. Rangel. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
]Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
]Ms. Holtzman. No.
The CiJSRK. :Mr. Oavcus.

]Mr. Owens. No.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Aye.
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Mr. Smith. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandmax. Xo.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
^Ir. WicMiiNS. B}' proxy, aye.

The Clerk. Mr. AA'iggms.
Mr. AVitKiiNS. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
]Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. JNLvYNE. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Butler.

yiv. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Xo.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

]Mr. Ia)tt. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorheacl.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. JVLviLvziTi. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kodino.
The C^HAiRMAx. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Chairman, 15 members voted aye, 22 members

voted no.

The Chairman. The amendment is not agreed to.

Mr. CoNYERs. Mr. Chairman, a point of information.
The Chairman. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. I ask for a point of information with regard to the

fact as to whether or not there is a stenographic record being made
of this meeting.

Tlie Chairman. There is no stenographic
Mr. Conyers. I did not see a stenographer present and I would

urge, Mr. Chairman, that the historical impoilance of legislative

history is being made in at least some of the discussion that goes on
today, warrants that a record be preserved of the discussion of this

debate even in meeting.

The Chairman. The rules of the House do not provide for a steno-

graphic recording of meetings where legislation is concerned, except

where there are public hearings or hearings, executive session or other-

wise. However, there are minutes that are kept and these minutes are

being kept in accordance with the rules of the House.
]Mr. Conyers. Well, further, Mr. Chairman, I do not recall the rules

of the House precluding stenographic records of committee or sub-

committee meetings. As a matter of fact, in my own experience, it is

a very common practice.
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The CiiAiKMAx, Tliis is not the practice, it has not been done, and I
feel that the minutes will amply record what we are doing-. And in

view of the fact that it is not a practice of the House, the Chair did
not feel that he could take this kind of action at this time, and I feel

that the minutes will provide a sullicient record.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman?
The Chaipjvian. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. I have an amendment at the desk.

[Mr. Doar read the amendment as follows :]

Amendment by Congressman Butler

:

Line 2, after the words "by any subcommittee thereof insert "appointed by the
chairman for the purpose and in accordance with the rules of the committee."

The Chairman. Mr. Butler?
Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, there is a typographical error there. It

should read "appointed by the Chairman for the purposes hereof and
in accordance with the rules of the committee." My purpose, Mr.
Chairman, is to make certain that any subcommittee which is given
the jurisdiction to proceed wnth the impeachment has the dignity of
any other subcommittee, and that all subcommittees do not have that
jurisdiction.

I don't feel real strongly about this. I would anticipate that it

would be quickly accepted and then we could proceed on to something
else. I ask unanimous consent that it be accepted.
The Chairman. I would like •

Mr. Daxielson. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. I didn't mean to interrupt the chairman, but I

would like to hear from counsel on this before
The Chairman. I was going to address a question to the counsel

regarding the effect of this amendment.
Mr. Doar. I don't believe that the—with my limited experience

with respect to congressional procedures, and I want to say that ini-

tially, Congressman Brooks—I don't believe that this amendment
would create any problem, but I really say to you that I would defer,

I just don't have enough experience to express a judgment. Perhaps
one of the
The Chairman. Mr. Jenner ?

Mr. Jenner. I am in the same leaky boat that ^Mr. Doar is in

and
Mr. Brooks. T don't think this amendment does anything. [Laugh-

ter.] It is tlie same thing Butler just said—with all due respect, it just

elaborates, it has got to be appointed by the chairman, it has got to be
bona fide Members of Congress, they must have been sworn, in, .be

legitimate Members—we could just go on and on with those kind of
provisos. I don't think it does any harm. I think it just adds a little

verbiage to it and I don't see any—if they want to make it a little

longer, it is already longer—well, I Avon't—it is pretty long. [Laugh-
ter.] I don't see any objection.

Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman, the first draft that we received of this

resolution b}'' counsel and purportedly they had worked on it, said
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"by any subcommittee established or desi^jnated for this purpose."
Now, it does appear that the lanoiiage of tlie first draft which counsel
apparently approved, both ISIr. Doar and ]Mr. Jenner, does no more
than ]Mr. Butler's amendment does this time. And if they approved it

once, I am Avondering why the same hmguage causes such a quandary
amono; them this time.

]Mr. DoAR. It is not a quandary, it is just whether or not the Mem-
bers of Congress like tb.at kind of language in the resolution and
wheth.er that language is the kind of language that is customarily
found in resolutions of the House, Ms. Jordan.

]Ms. Jordan. Oh, you do approve then of—you did approve of the
language established or designated for this purpose ?

Mr. Doar. Yes; but Congressman Brooks pointed out to me that
that was totally unnecessary and

[Laughter.]
]Ms. JoRDAx. "We cannot allow Congressman Brooks to define for this

committee what is necessary.

[Laughter, applause.]
Mv. RoDixo. That is from a fellow Texan.

'

]\Ir. Rangel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Eangel. a question to counsel. It is my understanding that this

type of language would not encourage any other advisory group or
ad hoc groups or anything of that nature that
Mr. Doar. Not in my opinion, it would not.

]\Ir. Rangel. It would be committees that would be formed accord-
ing to the rules of the House of Representatives.
Mr. Doar. It is my judgment

;
yes.

INIr. Rangel. Thank you.
Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Hungate.
]Mr. Hungate. Did Mr. Butler ask unanimous consent that the

amendment be accepted ?

INIr. Butler. Yes: I asked unanimous consent that it be accepted.
The Chairman. Is there objection ?

[No response.]

The Chairman. No objection being heard, the amendment is agreed
to.

^Ir. LoTT. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Lott.
JNIr. IjOtt. I have an amendment at the desk.
[jSIr. Doar read the amendment as follows :]

This is an amendment by Cong:ressman Lott

:

Amendment to the Judiciary Committee Subpoena Power Resolution

:

At the end of section 2, on line 18, add the following:
"The authority conferred to the committee by this section shall expire on

April 30. 1974."

Ml'. Lott. First of all. Mr. Chairman, I would like to make one cor-
rection here. This was drafted before we got our final draft of the reso-
olution, so this would be at the bottom of page—no, it would be at the
end of section 2, which would be the first paragraph on page 3, and
just A'ery simply stated "The authority conferred to tl''? CQiizivAttcc by
this section shall expire on April 30, 1974."
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Mr. Seiberlixg. ]Mr. Chairman. I make the point of order tliat this

in snbstanco is the amen(hiient we have already passed upon and
voted down, and I believe it is out of order for that reason.

^Nlr. LoTT. May I speak to that, Mr. Chairman? I think that it is

totally difl'erentin that it applies just to this section, which applies

only to the snbpena powers and does not have any relation to the re-

port which the other amendment tried to set a date on the report

itself.

]Mr. Seiberlixg. It has the effect of nullifying all the rest of the

resolution and. therefore, has the same effect itself.

The CiiAiioiAX\ Well, the gentleman is stating an objection and
Mr. Seiberlixg. I object on the grounds that we have already voted

on it in substance.

The CiiAiRMAX. Tlie Chair will rule on the point of oi'der, and the

Chair feels that the amendment, while it may have the same effect,

nonetheless, one talks about the expiration, the other talks about re-

porting at that time and, therefore, the Chair feels that the amendment
is not the same and the Chair overrules the point of order.

]Mr. LoTT. Realizing how difficult it is for lawyers to be brief, I shall

try to do so. ^Ir. Chairman, in view of the time. I think that this is

entirely different. It does apply just an expiration date to the snbpena

powers contained in this resolution. I think it Avould be a very re-

sponsible thing to do. In fact, I think it would be almost irresponsible

not to say that we will have some expiration date on the snbpena
powers, r had reservations myself about trying to put a termination

date on the report, or when we would have to conclude any investiga-

tion. But as far as the snbpena powers, this would once again just

give us a date that we are working toward. The ^lembers of the House
of Kepresentatives I think would be very much interested in that, and
I know that the people of America would like to see some date that

we are shooting for. We have all talked about April.

If, when April 30 comes, because of whatever might have happened,

the investigation has been delayed or there should be any sort of court

proceedings, it would be necessary to ask for an extension of this date,

it would b^ very simple for this conunittee to go to the House, the full

House with some brief explanation of why we must proceed further to

show that we are not dragging our feet but in fact there are some A'ery

substantive reasons for not having concluded, and I would like to ask,

Mr. Chairman, that the members of this committee give serious con-

sideration to this amendment which a^^plies only to the snbpena

powers under this resolution.

Mv. Dexxis. Mr. Chainnan ?

The Chairmax. Mr. Dennis.

]\Ir. Dexxis. I very much respect my friend, Mr. Lott, from Mis-

sissipjn in what he is trying to do. I am going to vote against his

amendment. I voted for that of the gentleman from Illinois, INIr.

McClory. I did so rather reluctantly, because while I shared many of

the sentiments he mentioned, I also recognized the practical diffi-

culties in actually accomplishing what the gentleman was trying to do.

Now, that amendment failed and it seems to me that if we are going

to have an investigation, we had better have the power to subpena as

long as we have the investigation. And since we haven't terminated the
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imestigation, I query whether we ought to terminate the subpena
power either.

Mr. Fish, Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman-. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Could I address a question to counsel. Counsel, I wonder
if you could tell me, is this a correct statement of the law, that if we
adopt this amendment, after the cutoff date of April 30, no further
subpenas could be issued by the committee, but those subpenas that
are outstanding would still be valid? Is that a correct statement?

^Ir. DoAR. I think there would be doubt about that. It would be just

something that I think you could argue about.

Mr. Fish. So there would be no guarantee that subpenas issued a
few days before that would be valid ?

Mr. DoAR. Not if they were required to appear after the date.

Mr. Fish. Thank you.
The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered by Mr.

Lott. All those in favor of the amendment, please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The CiiAiRMAx. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "'noes."]

The Chairman. The noes appear to have it. The noes have it.

Mr. LoTT. Mr. Chairman, I Avould like to ask for a rollcall vote on
that.

The Chairman. The clerk will call the roll.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. No,
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
]\Ir. Kastenmeier. No.
The. Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
The Chairman. No, by proxy.

The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
INIr. Hungate. No.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Conyers.
j\Ir. Conyers. No.
The Clerk:. Mr. Eilberg.

Mv. Eilberg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
INIr. Flowers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. ISIann.

Mr. jNIann. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk, Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. No.
The Cleric. Mr. Eane:el.
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]\Ii'. Raxgel. Xo.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.

The CiiAiKMAX. No, by proxy.

The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
]Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
]Ms. Holtzman. No.
The Clerk. My. Owens.
]Mr. Owens. No.
The Clerk. IMr. ISIezvinsky.

Mr. ISIezvinsky. No.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.

Mr. Hutchinson. No.

The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
ISIr. McClory. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.

Mv. Smith. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
]Mr. Sandman. No.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Railsback.

[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
]Mr. Wiggins. No.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Dennis.

;Mr. Dennis. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. HoGAN. No, by proxy.

The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

]\Ir. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
]\Ir. Cohen. No.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Lott.

jSIr. Lott. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.

Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
jSIr. Moorhead. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.

The Chairman. No.
The Clerk. INIr. Chairman, 7 voted aye, 29 voted no.

The Chairman. And the amendment is not agreed to.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. ]\Ir. Kastenmeier.

Mr. Kastenmeier. INIr. Chairman, the hour is late and I will be very

brief, but I do have one question to pose of counsel that perhaps

should have been posed before in connection with the endorsement of
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the subpenas. And while we dealt with it tangentially, I am not sure

that we really crossed the question of whether you considered the course

of action taken by the Congress in terms of the Senate Watergate

committee's desire to have a statutory base for their sul)pena, exercise

of their subpena power, rather than to, in their terms, force a con-

frontation with the Executive which they thought would be inappro-

priate or unseemly, wherein that is to say to compel attendance by a

marshal of the Congress or to pursue contempt powers under title 2,

United States Code 192, those being the only two alternatives presently

available to the Congress.

As you recall, they did request a statutory base so that the sub-

penas could be enforced in the courts. Now, on that question, have you

fully considered whether or not we do or do not need a statutory base

for any subpenas issued by this committee ?

Mr. DoAR. We have not fully considered that, Congressman Kasten-

meier, but my tentative view is that since the jursidictional provisions

of the Federal courts are set by statute, that there may well not be

—

there is no express authorization for the Judiciary Committee con-

ducting an impeachment inquiry to go into Federal court to seek

enforcement of a sub]Dena. Now, there may be a distinction between

this committee's inquiry and the investigation by the Senate select

committee. But I think you have to assume that there probably is some
doubt, if not considerable doubt, that this committee would have
that authority.

Then the next question would be whether or not this committee would
be wise or the Congress would be wise to seek legislation giving to it

the authority or conferring on the Federal court jurisdiction to permit

the Judiciary Committee to go to it for the enforcement of its subpenas.

I think that is a very serious question and one that this committee
might want to consider most carefully.

My judginent would be that such a statute might be some—might
take some time in getting passed and becoming a law, and it might
tend to delay and drag out the investigation. My second tentative

judgment is that, as I understand the constitutional provision with
respect to impeachment, that it is a very pure process. The Constitution

^'ests in the House of Kepresentatives the sole power of impeachment
and under our constitutional system it seems to me that it might well

not be advisable to seek to pass a law calling on another coequal branch
of the Government to support the Congress in this action. The Con-
gress here, the House here is functioning as a coequal branch of the

Federal Government and its power and its authority comes directly

from the Constitution.

But as I say, I would not want to suggest to this committee that

they make a final judgment on that on the basis of what I have said this

morning, and I would suggest that if the Congressman wishes, the

committee wishes that the staff brief that question most carefully.

Mr. Kastenmeier. I would encourage you to do so because it would
be a legitimate question to be raised on the floor of the House when
this matter is taken up, because, after all, the Congress has just

gone through a similar proceeding in behalf of the Senate select com-
mittee to grant it a statutory base for enforcement of its subpenas,
so we should be well prepared to devote ourselves to that answer.

41-OlS—75—pt. 1 4
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JVIr. Waldie. Would tlie oentlemaii yield i

Mr. Kastenmeier. Yes; I yield to the gentleman from California.
Mr. Waldie. I am very liappy that the gentleman from Wisconsin

raised tliis issue. It is a most important one and the committee has
not given the kind of careful review of it that it deserves, and I cei'-

tainh^ second the suggestion, and hope the chaiinian will as well, that
the start' brief this question carefully.

I don't i-egard it to be confined to this great confrontation issue

between the White House, for example, and this Congress. Indeed,
disobedience to our subpenas may well be on the part of some individ-

ual not associated with the White House and the kind of flexible

authority which we may have to deal with that disobedience in inade-

quate under title 2, 1 believe.

Well, I am only trying to underscore the importance of the prob-
lem and I am sure you are aware of its importance, and this com-
mittee ought to appreciate its importance and be prepared to deal

with it appropriately, whether the person in contempt is John Dean,
for example, only for example, or President Nixon at the other pole.

The Chairman. Mr. McClory ?

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, I intend to Aote for this resolution

here in the committee today and to support it on the floor of the House.
I do exercise my right to hie additional views. It is my undei-standing

that the report will be filed today and I will have those in the hands
of the start' today for purpose of presenting to the floor.

I further ask,' Mr. Chairman, that when this matter comes to the

floor of the House, I realize it is a matter of high privilege, but I

would ask and implore you. ]\Ir. Chairman, to recognize me for the

purpose of making an amendment for a cutotf date, as I have indi-

cated. I know that is within your discretion, but I am asking that you

do recognize me for that purpose at that time.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mv. Hungate.
Mr. HrxCxATE. I am seeking to approach a cutoff date for today.

I would like to commend the chairman and ^Ir. Hutchinson, and all

of my colleagues, particularly those who offered amendments for

the thoroughness with which this matter has been examined and

considered,' and I would like to move the previous question at this

time.

The Chairman. The question is on the resolution as amended.

Those in favor of

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. I would like to offer an amendment. I have an amend-

ment at the desk.

The Chairman. We have already moved the previous question and

the gentleman's request comes too late.
,

:Mr. Ow^ENs. I respectfully submit to the Chair, the Chair was

aware of the amendment.
, ^i • i ^ i

Tlie Chairman. The gentleman conferred with tlie (hair and had

not yet made up his mind as to whether or not—and I thought that

there was consultation between the Chair and the gentleman as to

whether or not he would or would not, and I could not read the gen-
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tloman's mind. I know that the gentleman did approach me for that

purpose and the Chair states that the motion is the previous (pies-

tioii at this time. If the gentleman will Avithdraw his motion
Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Cliairnum. I will withdraw the motion.

Mr. 0'wt:xs. I have an amendment at counsel's desk and I ask that

it be distributed.

Mr. Chairman, like many other members of the committee, I have
been concerned that the public is most anxious for a decision on this

matter. It was a tough decision for me not to vote for the McClory
amendment earlier, except that my judgment was that it was not

possible for ns to set a termination date at this time for when
this investigation would be concluded. So I have prepared an amend-
ment which states—which attempts to enunciate the goals set by the

chairman and by many other members of the committee, that we
ought to foiish by April 30, if it is responsibly possible

My amendment would state that if by April 30, we are not ready
to issue a final report, that we issue an interim report as to the then
current status of the investigation. I think that the American people

are concerned and anxious to know what we are doing. The committee
I think strongly feels the same desire, the desire to speed up the in-

vestigation, to expedite it.

Tliis amendment would put us on record as saying, in effect, as pre-

paring for a second rabbit test, as the poet laureate of the committee
stated earlier. We would be saying to the country on April 30, where
we are at, just as we have instructed counsel to state to ns on March 1,

where the committee is at.

I think it is a responsible amendment and I urge its adoption.

The Chairmax. I would ask the gentleman whether or not it

wouldn't seiwe his purpose as well, knowing how sincere he is about
this and recognizing that the committee is determined to go forward,
whether or not, in light of the fact that he may file additional views
or views Avitli the report that this committee will adopt, that it will

not serve the same purpose. I think that the gentleman recogiiizes

that the Chair and every member of this committee lias moved ex-

peditiously and all this amendment is going to seek to do is to impose
additional burden on the committee staff' to prepare a report when
it could be going forward at that time if it hadn't completed its

work. And I think it is really unwise to impose, if you are looking-

for expedition, additional work on the part of the staff. I would
liope that the gentleman would withdraw his amendment and instead

file views. I think that would serve that same purpose.

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, as the Chair knows, I have the greatest

respect for the chairman of this committee and I know that he is

genuinely determined that this investigation shall be completed at

that time if at all possible, and it is not in any spirit of lack of confi-

dence in him or in the committee, it is rather an attempt on the part

of the committee to say to the American people we will either finish,

if it is possible, we enunciate the date that most of us have said pub-
licly we ought to reach, if it is possible we will complete the investiga-

tion by April 30, if it is not possible for us to complete the investi-

gation by that time, we will at least give you a report on where we
are at. It is important, so important I think in these hearings that

they be done as openly as possible.
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The Chaieman. Well, will not the gentleman's purpose also be

satished if the Chair at that time, if Ave haven't completed a report,

if we haven't completed the investigation, would make a report x)ub-

licly to the full House as to the status of the investigation, rather than

take the time of the stall' to prepare a report which really is gonig to

—

if at that tnne we haven't completed it, is going to take away im-

portant time which I think would well be utilized in trying to expedite

the investigation.

Mr. Owiixs. If the committee decided that the re^jort should con-

tain one sentence, "investigation is not completed," that is a re^Dort,

and 1 am not talking about another volume on impeachment materials

or saying what we ought to state at all. i just think it would be ap-

X^ropriate and helpful for the committee to go on record and for tiie

American public to knov^- that by April 30, we are trying to tuiish

the investigation, if we cannot, at least we will make a report on where
we are at tiiat time.

Mr. feEiBEKLiNG. Will the gentleman yield i

Mr. Owens. Yes ; I yield.

i\lr. Seibekling. W ell, the Chairman has indicated that if by some
circumstances we should not be able to complete our work by the oUth,

that he would personally be pre^^ared to make a report to the House
of liepresentatives whicli 1 gather is all the gentleman is really get-

ting at, and I think it would be inappropriate to complicate this

resolution, as important as it is, by adding in something tliat is really

extraneous as far as the resolution is concerned, in view of tlie assur-

ances of the Chairman. And I would suggest that the gentleman, in

light of those assurances, would withdraw liis amendment rather than

complicate our proceeding.

Mr. CoNYERS. JNIr. Chairman, may I be recognized ?

The Chairman. Mr. Conyers.

Mr. CoNYERS. 1 too urge our veiy disting-uished friend to reconsider

the thrust of this motion. First of all, we nave in effect gone over this

matter once. But if he truly desires a status rex^ort, it is my recollection,

Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Doar and stalf ha\e already on several occa-

sions this morning again promised that on jNIarch 1 they would make
such a status report which would speak even sooner than the gentleman
wants to be told about where we are. So for those reasons I would urge

the withdrawal of this motion or its defeat.

I yield to the gentleman from California.

JSir. Wiggins. 1 want to join in Mr. Conyer's observations. I came
into the committee room today prepared to vote for the April oO cutoff,

for many of the same reasons that the gentleman suggested. But 1 was
persuaded by counsel, particularly minority counsel, who said that this

would hamper the investigation of staff, and he felt it would be unwise.

It does siem to me that on March 1, \yh&ii we have our next status

report, that if 1 for one am not persuaded that the investigation is mov-
ing expeditiously, then I for one would certainly support and probably

introduce a cutoff' date resolution. But at this time while staff' is stilJ

relatively new in terms of the job confronting them I think we owe an

obligation to them and their expertise and their desires tliat they not

be subjected to such a limitation this early on. So I would urge

JMr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman ?
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]Mr. Owens. I yield to the Senator from Missouri.

The Chairman. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate, Mr. Chairman, I thank the gentleman for yielding

and I, too, would state that I would urge expeditious handling of this

jnatter, and I understand the staff plans so to do and would see no bene-

fit to the public or the committee in wedding ourselves to April 30. If

we must have a date of April 15, this is one that contains more meaning
for most Americans, and I would urge the gentleman that we work with

him for expeditious handling but that he might withdraw this

amendment.
Mr. Fish. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. I would like to speak in support of ^Ir. Owens' amend-
ment. It is no way weds us to the date of April 30. I think it is a very
good compromise. It is one thing for us to sit here and talk to our
counsel, but it is quite another thing for us to in a public document
put in this date so that the public at large will laiow that we have a

target and that they will at least get something out of us by April
30, and I therefore urge and ^•ote for Mr. Owens' amendment.

jNIr. Hogan. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous
Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, would the gentleman witliliold briefly?

The Chairman. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Hogan. I thought mine was a preferential motion, Mr. Chair-

man.
Mr. Owens. Would the gentleman withhold briefly ?

Mr. Hogan. I will withdraw briefly.

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, I am unable to see any way in which this

amendment circumscribes the authority or imposes a severe or even
a signiflcant obligation upon the coimnittee, upon the committee staff.

The public is entitled to know what we are doing. Everything we can
do to open up the hearings and this process I think ought to be done.

The country will take that date, which the chairman has given pub-
licly, the country will take that date and look for at least some
answei-s. It will help keep our feet to the fire. I submit to the members
of the committee that it does not do anything harmful to our investi-

gation in any way. It is not in my opinion irresponsible. It is simply
a date at which we will say Avhere we are at and which we are shooting
to terminate the thing and, if we can't get there, to give a status

report. The country is tired, but the country does not want us to be
irresponsible, and I submit that this is a middle ground.
The Chairman. The question
Mr. Hogan. Mr. Chairman, I certainly concur with the gentleman

from Utah. We have 50 lawyers working on this matter. I think his

request is a perfectly reasonable one and I move the previous question

on his amendment.
The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered by the

gentleman from Utah. All those in favor, please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. The noes appear to have it.

Mr. O'Wens. a rollcall, INIr. Chairman.
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The Chairmax. The clerk will call the roll.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohiie.
Mr. DoxoHUE. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
]Mr. Brooks. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenineier.

Mr. IVASTEXMEIER. Xo.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
The Chairmax. Prox}' , no.

The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
]Mr. Huxgate. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoxYERS. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Maxx. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbaxes. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling-.

Mr. Seiberlixg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Daxtelsox. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drixax. No.
The Clerk. My. Rangel.
Mr. Eangel. No,
The Clerk, Ms. Jordan.
The Chairmax. Proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thorxtox. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzmax. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. OwEXS, Aye,
The CYerk, Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mez\t:xsky. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. HuTCHixsox. No.
The Ci.erk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Saxdmax. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.

[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
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Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.
Mr. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

]Mr. Lott. Aye.
The Clerk. ]NIr. Froehlich. f

]Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. ]Moorhead.
Mr. MooRHEAi). Aye.
The Clerk. ]Mr. ]\Iaraziti.

]Mr. ]Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Kodino.
The Chairman. Xo.
The Clerk. Mr. Chairman, 12 members voted aye, 24 members voted

opposed.
The ChxVirman. The amendment is not agreed to.

^Ir. Hungate. ]\Ir. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. ]\fr. Chairman, I move the pi-evious question.
The Chairman. The question is on the resohition as amended. All

those in favor of the resohition as amended, please signify by saying
aye.

[A chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[No response.]

The Chairman. The ayes have it and the resolution is adopted.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairi\l4n. ^Ir. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. I voted for the resolution and support it but, like ^Nlr.

]McClory, I may want to file some views. I reserve that right and I
would like to know when they need to be in.

The Chairman. The gentleman has 3 legislative days within which
to—3 calendar days.

]Mr. Dennis. I thank the Chair.
The Chairman. We would like to have it as quickly as possible. If

we could have it by the end of tomorrow, we would appreciate it, by
midnight tomorrow.

^Ir. Dennis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Midnight tomorrow.
Tlianlc you. The committee is adjourned.
[Whereupon, the committee was adjourned.]





IMPEACH3IENT INQUIRY

Executive Session, Briefing by Staff

TUESDAY, FEBKUARY 5, 1974

House of Representatix-es,

Committee on the Judiciary,
• Washington^ D.C.

The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 :15 a.m., in room 2141,

Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr. (chair-

man) presiding.

Present : Representatives Rodino (presiding) , Brooks, Kastenmeier,

Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, AValclie, Flowers, ]Mann, Sar-

banes, Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Jordan, Thornton, Holtzman,
Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, McClory, Sandman, Railsback, Wig-
gins, Dennis, Mayne, Hogan, Butler, Cohen, Lott, Moorhead, and
]Maraziti.

Impeachment inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Samuel Garrison III, deputy minority counsel; Joseph A. Woods, Jr.,

senior associate spex^ial counsel.

Committee staff present: Jerome jNI. Zeifman, general counsel; Gar-
ner J. Cline, associate general counsel ; and Franklin G. Polk, associate

counsel.

The Chairman. If the members will please take their seats, I would
like to make, first of all, a very preliminary statement.

I know that last week Mr. Walclie raised an inquiry as to whether the

committee could meet in executive session for the purpose of hearing
progress reports, and I would like to advise Mr. Waldie that I dis-

cussed this matter with the Parliamentarian and the rules of the com-
mittee and the rules of the House do require a majority vote before

closing either a hearing or a meeting for the transaction of business.

However, the Office of the Parliamentarian informs me that the

definition of each meeting for the transaction of business, including

the markup of legislation, as outlined in clause 26(f) of rule 11, does

not encompass and is not intended to ericompass a situation where the

chairman calls upon committee counsel to give him. members of the

committee a briefing and invites any interested memliers to be present

and, of course, during such a session, no motions for the transaction of

any business may be entertained at any one of these sessions and no
official committee action of any kind can be taken.

However, the mere convening of such a gathering in executi^-e

session is not precluded by the rules and does not recpiire a committee
vote, and I hope I have satisfied the gentlemen.
Mr. Waldie. Well, Mr. Chairman, I understand that that appar-

ently is what the rules provide, and I have no objection to that inter-

(53)
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pretation. I just do not really see any objection to asking the commit-
tee for permission for closing- the meeting. I am certain that it would
have been gi'anted in that instance and in any future instance if the
Chair asks that. I guess all I am saying is that the committee could
participate in that decision and would probably be supporting the
Chair in almost every instance. What I am trying to say and inarticu-
lately, is this is an historical proceeding. It is very sensitive and T
think the attributes of willing to be open and candid with what is

going on in the committee would help the reputation of the committee
in terms of the final results which have to be results as to which confi-

dence attaches from the press and the public.

The CiiAiRMAx. Well, I appreciate that and, of course, the gentle-

man knows that then I would have to schedule a meeting for the pur-
pose of asking the committee to permit me to go into these briefing
sessions. And I think that what I did was in the interest of trying to

expedite rather than, as you An see, we sometimes do not have a
quorum, and I think those members who want to be here and want to

be briefed, would appreciate all of the time that they can get.

Before having the special counsel brief the committee. I think that
the members would also like to receive a progress report as to the
Chair's intent with reference to the committee as a whole, and where
we are.

First, and briefly, I thought this was a good opportunity to bring
you up-to-date on this matter. There are some current and very im-
portant matters that have reached the markup stage or are on the
agenda for hearings. The Immigration Subcommittee has reported
favorably the Public Safety Officers Benefit Act, and have held hear-

ings just this past week, on the important energy-related issues of off-

shore oil reserves.

The Subcommittee on Claims is moving toward hearings on legisla-

tion to amend the Tort Claims Provision of title XXVIII and also

has before it proposals to provide for working capital for the Depart-
ment of Justice.

The Subcommittee on Civil Liberties is. as you know, wrestling with
the question of newsmen privileges, and I understand from the sub-
committee chairman that there is a very excellent chance of our con-
sidering it before long by the full connnittee. The same subcommittee
has been moving forward with continuing work in the area of parole
reform, lias held hearings already in connection with six-j)erson juries,

three-judge courts, and voting rights for ex-offenders.

In another area, as we all know, and the President made mention
of this in his state of the Union message, he is going to be sending up a
package on pi'ivacy and individual rights this month, which will tie

in with the great amount of work that the Civil and Constitutional
Rights Sulx'ommittee has been doing in that regard; and in the area
of arrest records. That subcommittee is also going to be considering
legislation designed to enable the criminal justice system to deal more
effectively with the problem of narcotics addiction; and also, what is

a prioi-ity matter by that subcommittee will be the extension of the

Voting Rights Act which, as you know, expires in 1975. I myself will

be introducing a major ])iece of extending legislation in this area.

The Subcommittee on Crime will be continuing its important work
on the Community Anticrime Assistance Act, a project that initiated
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Avith the hearing in the first session, and further hearings after that and
maybe holding hearings on the eight bills before it relating to speedy
trials. The Criminal Justice Subcommittee, as you know, is on the

floor this week with the rules of evidence and will be moving ahead with
consideration of the massive proposal to revise title XVIII of the
United States Code.
My own Subcommittee on Monopolies and Commercial Law will be

holding oversight hearings this session with regard to the operation
of the xVntitrust Division, and will be considering a new legislative

l)roposal I introduced in the House just yesterday to permit the States

to bring antitrust suits on behalf of their own citizen consumers. I am
Jio])eful tliat w^e can move in this area very shortly.

I thought I would take the time we had here just to infonn the com-
mittee as to the action of some of the other committees that they are not
members of.

And, now, Mr. Doar.
Mr. DoAR. Mr. Chairman, members of the Judiciary Committee, I

would like to report to you today on these matters: (1) The organiza-

tion of the staff, and (2) the status report of the inquiry.

You have before you a document ^ that sunnnarizes the status of our
in\estigation, and also deals specifically with the personnel that have
been retained to do this work. I would like to turn to the personnel

section firet.

At the first page of the personnel section, we have set out a total

bieakdown of the inquiry staff. At the present time, there are a total

of S)0 persons employed by the inrpiry staff', 89 of whom are attorneys,

four are investigators. Of the 89 attorneys, -27 have been designated
by the majority, 12 by the minority. Eight of the staff were here
when I was retained as special counsel. Six of the staff' are detailed

from the permanent staff' of the Committee on the Judiciary. There is

one lawyer and three investigators who have been borrowed from
GAO, and the General Accounting Office is being reimbursed for

their salaries.

For your information, the legal staff' comes from 1-1 States and
from the District of Columbia.
Following the breakdown of the total staff is a list of the lawyers,

the 39 lawyers that are on the staff', at the present time, and then a

standard resume with respect to each meml)cr of that staff, their

residence, their family status, their education, their former employ-
ment, and where they were admitted to the bar. I will be glad to answer
any questions that any member of the committee has about any member
of the staff'. Let me say that the resumes are organized through Mr.
Davis, which is the first seven or eight resumes, maybe nine I'esumes,

not in alphabetical order because they indicate members of the staff,

that have supervisory or senior supervisory responsibility.

Starting with Mr. Altschuler, the rest of the staff' is set forth

alphabetically, inasmuch as these are line attorneys assigned on par-

ticular task areas or constitutional and legal research.
Mv. McClory. Mr. Chairman, may I ask a few questions?
Mr. Doar, I would appi'eciate information regarding the ])rior politi-

cal affiliation or the prior political activities of the staff members,
particularly the supervisory staff. It is not that I have any objection

1 Sco "Apppndis I.^—Work of the Impeachment Inquiry Staff as of February 5, 1974,
in book III, "Impeachment Inquiry".
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to a single one of these members. They all appear to be very liighly

qualilied, and I know you have that feeling, too. But 1 do not like to
ue surprised by sometning that the press reports about some special
or particular political activity of some stalf member, which then
the press will interj)ret as being prejudicial one way or the other to
interests that might be involved in our inquiry. Do you have that in-

formation available i

Mr. JJoAR. I have some of the information available. 1 do not know
for certain all of the political affiliations, nor am I positive that 1
know of all of the political activities of any members of the staff. But
I will say that each staff' member was questioned wdiether or not
they had taken a position on impeachment; and if they had, other
than there should be an inquiiy , then they were not considered further
for the job.

The second thing : We made every attempt we could to see that the
members were selected who could come to the staff' with an open
mind, could be fair and objective with respect to this matter, and
would be able to let the chips fall where they may.
The Chaikman. As a matter of fact, Mr. Doar, I would like to inter-

ject here for the benefft of Mr. McClory, that at one time during the
recess, Mr. Doar called me wdth relation to an individual who he con-
sidered to be very highly qualified, an individual who I know had the
X-)rofessional background, and there was some question as to whether
or not this individual had either signed tlie petition or had sent a
letter, or had sent a telegram advocating a position with relation to

impeachment.
When Mr. Doar learned that this was the case, he was advised that

he was not to hire him, and no other individual was to be hired who
had taken such a position.

Mr. jNIcClory. Well, I think that is very fine, and I support that
position. I recall—^well, I do not want to make any special analogy,
but I think there was quite a bit of interest in the staff' of the special

prosecutor in the Watergate case and, especially, and especially some
of the prior, rather extensive and partisan political activities which
might indicate a prejudicial position, and that is wh}^ if there are any
persons of that nature, 1 would just like to know about them. I do not
know that I w^ould necessarily express any opposition to any of them.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. McClory, w^ould you yield to me a momenta
]Mr. McClory. Surely.

Mr, Brooks. In that same vein, I recommended to the counsel a law-

3"er who had been recommended to me, who was a pretty good tax ac-

countant and was very familiar with the Watergate hearings. By God,
Doar wanted to laiow something about him, and I told him he had
worked and been a consultant clown at the Democratic National Com-
mittee for a while, but that I did not think that would hurt his objec-

tivity, and Doar did not even consider him and we did not hire him, and
this is the last we heard of that man; is that not right, counsel?

Mr. Doar. I did think it inappropriate to hire someone who had
worked for the Democratic Committee.

Mr. Brooks. That was the end of him. lie did hire a fine man from
my district, whom I have met.

Mr. McClory. Could I ask this furtlier question, just for furtlier

clarification on my part ?
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Mr. Brooks. You understand I met him after lie was hired, gentle-

men, which does not make it so "cotton-pickin" funny.
Mr. DoAR. I hope I can live that down somewhat.
INIr. McClory. I find people being appointed to prominent offices in

the administration from my congressional district without any knowl-
edge, too, so I guess we all have that experience.
Now, you mentioned the attorneys in the sujoervisory role, and I

think in the supervisory role, as I understand it, what do Vv-e have, two
counsel ?

Mr. DoAR. Did I give you those? We have three senior supervisors,
really four, if you include Mr. Garrison in that. Mr. Joseph Woods is

from Oaldand, Calif. He is a registered Democrat. He has not partici-

pated in any active political campaigns. At one time, he was prelim-
inarily considered as a possible appointee for a Federal judgeship in

northern California, during the Johnson administration. That is

the extent of his political activity. Pie is the vice president of the
Alameda Bar Association, so his activities have been largely with the
law.

Mr. McClory. Now, do we have supervisory counsel with regard
to each of the task forces that were named ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.
jNIr. McClory. And is the supervisory counsel established as far as

possible on some kind of a bipartisan basis, or do we ignore that, or
would you explain what that situation is ?

]Mr. DoAR. We did not ignore that. We are trying to find a super-
visory position for a member of the minority besides Mr. Jenner and
Mr. Garrison, but I have not felt, and I think JNIr. Jenner and Mr.
Garrison concur with me, that we have found the right person to take
that kind of a supervisoi-y position. At the present time, there are

three first-line supervisors. Mr. Robert Sack, who is a lawyer from
New York City and a former partner of the firm of Patterson, Belt-
nap & Webb, and I think he is a registered Democrat, but not acti\e

in politics. The other, second supervisor, is Richard Gill from JMont-

gomery, Ala., who is a registered Republican ; he was not hired by the
minority. And the third is Mr. Evans Davis from New York City who
is a registered Democrat. None of these people, to my knowledge, have
been active politically.

Mr. McClory. Could I ask just one more question, and that is this

:

Are all of the members of the task forces given equal access to all of the
material that the task force is investigating? In other words, or is the
material only available to it, or is some of the material only available

to the supervisory personnel ?

Mr. Doar. No, Congressman. I have a rule in the office that there is

only one filing system and that all of the material relative to that par-
ticular matter is in the file, and that any attorney on the stafl has access

to all of that material. It may be that when we get sensitive material,
tliat Mr. Jenner and I will have to make some further restrictions on a
nced-to-know basis. But we have not done that yet. And to date, all

material is available to all members of the staff.

Mr. McClory. I guess my apprehension is this : I would not want
a minority member to be taken by surprise with regard to a sub-
stantial amount of investigative activity, and can you give me an
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assurance that- you are not going to be investigating a particular area

or a particular activity or something in a way which would leave me
Avitliout knowledge or information ?

Mr. DoAR, Yes, I can give you that assurance unqualifiedly. I can
give you the assurance that there are now members selected by the

minority that are on every one of the task forces, that the task forces

meet together; and when they have their stall' meetings with the senior

stalf meeting, Mr. Garrison and Mr. Jenner are there, and then every-

one loiows what is going on in the office.

Mr. McClory. Thank you very nmch.
Mr. DoAR. If there are no other questions about the staff, I would

like to turn
The Chairman. Yes, Avhy don't you proceed.

Mr. Doar [continuing]. I would like to turn to the report on the

investigation. It has been broken down into two sections. One is the

legal question, and that is under the general supervision of ]Mr. Joseph
Woods who is here with me this morning, and their major project at

this time is the research into the constitutional issue of defining foi

the members what is an impeachable otfense under the Constitution.

We have scheduled the submission to the committee for their consid-

eration of a brief on this matter on February 20. The status of the

brief at the present time is that we have it in outline form, and sec-

tions of the brief are being assigned to various members of the legal

staff for first draft of the research material that has already been

collected.

Some members selected by the minority are working on that brief.

On the factual investigation, this work is under the general super-

vision of two senior attorneys, Mr. Cates, who many, if not all of you,

have met from Madison, ^Vis. ; and Bernard Xussbaum from New
York City. I would like to say a word about Mr. Nussbamn. He is a

graduate of the Harvard Law School where he had a very distinguished

record. He then came to New York City and practiced law in the

southern district of New York, in the U.S. attorney's office both as a
prosecutor and then in the appellate section where he rose to be the

deputy chief of the appellate section before he moved into private

practice with a leading trial firm in New York. He was at the time that

he joined the staff a partner in that law firm trying cases in the city

of New York on a regular basis. The principal practice was in the

Federal court. Mr. Nussbamn's principal responsibility is at the pres-

ent time, aside from coordinating and supervising the work, is to begin

to make a list and a selection of documents and memorandum, tapes

and so forth that would be necessary for our inquiry in preparation for

submitting a list to this committee for ultimate submission to the

White House and/or to Mr. Jaworski. It is somewhat difficult for

us to make that selection because we have not seen the material, but
based upon the information that the Senate Select Connnittee had,
based upon some testimony that Mr. Cox gave to the Senate Judiciary
Committee, based upon information that we have from other sources,

we are doing our best to make a list of all of that material.

In the agency practice field, we have a list of documents that we are

considering requesting, and Mr. Nussbaum has prepared a form, and
this form indicates the document, the reason whv we want it, and then
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he has evaluated on a letter basis. A, B, C. T). or A, B, C, the relative

importance of the document at this time. And just to o-ive you an idea,

there are ]>robably 25 or 30 of these documents that we have, just in the

first few days, that we have begun to prepare from the basis of the in-

formation that we think the committee must have in order to complete

its investigation. Xow, these documents would either be in the posses-

sion of the White House or one of the departments of the executive

branch of the Government.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The CiiAiKMAX. Mr. Railsback?
]\Ir. Railsback. ]Mr. Chairman, after Mr. Doar gets through, and I do

not Avant to interrupt him. I would like to ask him when he and ]Mr.

Jenner plan to make their move as far as consulting with Jaworski in

trying to see what can be worked out as far as Jaworski's work product.

But, I would not interrupt right now, but I would like to ask him tliat

question after he is through on that point.

The Chairmax. AVell, we would like to state lirst of all, that it would
not be before we have the subpena authoiity from the House tomorrow,
and that I can assure you. Then we will discuss that after that.

Mr. Doar. Xow, this investigation or inquiry is divided into six

groups, six areas, and I have listed those on page 1 and 2 of the report.

And then I have broken down on the following pages o and 4. more
specific details with respect to the investigation. I apologize to the

members for repeating two or three times in this report the point that

the fact that we mention a particular event, or a particular allegation

does not mean that we think there was any wrongdoing involved or that

there Avas any prejudgment having been made by the members of

the start'. But, I did repeat that two or three times in this report because,

as it will become a public document, I wanted to make it clear that

there was a distinction obvious to all of you between allegation or

charges, and evidence and proof.

In the various areas, we have the domestic surveillance activities,

and, that it is broken down into the 1969 wiretaps, the Huston plan,

the activities of Mr. Caulfield and Mr. Ulasewicz, the activities of the

plumbers and the activities surrounding the Ellsberg trial.

With I'espect to campaign intelligence activities, we are looking at

matters involving so-called Wliite House "Dirty Tricks,"' intelligence

activities of the Committee to Re-Elect the President, the Diem cables,

the plan to burglarize and fire bomb the Brookings Institution and
Operation Sandwedge.

]Ms. HoLTZMAx. Would you be kind enough to give me an explana-
tion of what "Operation Sandwedge" is, briefly ^ I am not sure I am
familiar with it.

]Mr. DoAR. I just am not familiar enough with that this morning,
Ms. Holtzman, to tell you that but I will get that information for you.

Mv. Railsback. What did she say ?

]\rs. HoLTZMAX. I wanted to hear what Operation Sandwedge was,

and Mr. Doar said he would get us the infonnation.

Mr. Doar. I mean, I am not enough familiar in detail with that

particular matter to give it to you this morning, but I will get the

information for you.

Then in the Watergate and aftermath, matters which your commit-
tee is all familiar with, there is the Liddy plan, the break-in, the
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destruction of files, documents and other evidence, payments to tlie

Watergate defendants, the relationship between the CIA and the
"Watergate investigation, offers of executive clemency, the role of John
Dean in the investigation, the firing of Mr. Cox and the Presidential
tapes. And I then have listed, I have listed the same matters in the
President's personal finance area. The tax deductions on the Presi-
dential papers, deductions and expenditures relating to the private
use of San Clemente and Key Biscayne, the sale of the New York
apartment, the deductions on the Whittier home, the sale of certain
Florida lots and the possibility of additional income being imputed by
virtue of personal use of Government facilities, and then improvements
to San Clemente and Key Biscayne properties of a nonprotective
nature at Government expense.

Finallv, there is the investigation with respect to agency practices,

and there is the milk contributions, the so-called enemies list in

the IRS, matters involving the Antitrust Division in the Department
of Justice with respect to ITT, the Vesco matter and there are, in

addition to that, maybe 10 or 11 other things that that task force is

considering on a very preliminary basis.

I have outlined how this material is being collected and how it is

being analyzed, and what steps we are taking to keep ourselves familiar
with the progress of the investigation in each of these areas on a

periodic basis.

Finally, I summarize again how the office is managed and who are
the key people with respect to delivering the staff support necessary
to make this law office operate.

This concludes my report, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. I, as you know. I visited with you and expressed

my concern about the Jaworski situation, and I just want to say in
front of this group that I suppose that at some point you and Mr.'
Jenner, if you are going to approach Mr. Jaworski, are you going
to want to advise us that that is vour intention, and just how to plan
to proceed to see if we can get him to cooperate by either requesting
the judge to permit him to cooperate or whatever tack you take, and
I just want to say, personallv, that I think that this is really, should
be one of the first orders of business, and I can understand why you
would perhaps want to wait until after we ffet the subpena power,
hnt I would hope that we could move expeditiously because I think
that when we consider that he has had really teams of lawyers that
have been researching, literally teams of lawyers that have just got
White House information, but they have srot other information as well.

T think it would help us, and it would help the taxpayers to get a hold
of that information, and I think that ought to be one of our first

priorities.

T\'''r. Brooks. Would the gentleman yield ?

l^fr. R An.sBACK. Yes.
Mr. Brooks. I was feelino: exactly the same wav. I think that

Jnworski has a biff fat lot of information that would save us a lot

of trouble and bother and scrounging around and fishing, and we
would just gave a lot of money and time.
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Mr. E-AiLSBACK. Either to exculpate or to indict ?

Mr. Brooks. Either way.
JSir. Railsback. One way or the other.

Mr. Brooks. I think that Jaworski has been publicly playing a little

bit coy about this, you know. He took one shoe off but he has seemed,

reluctant to produce the data, and I think that maybe that judge
w^ould be the person that would be able to give us an entree to those

documents, and I am sure the chairman has thought about that.

Mr. Railsback. If I can just say one other thing
Mr. Brooks. That is in lieu of going directly to the Wliite House

or elsewhere. But, if we go just to the White House for documents,
we will lose what you pointed out is possibly available, which would
be other materials other than White House that they have developed.

Mr. Eailsback. The other thing is that there is a precedent. I am
not sure exactly how analogous it is, but in the Spiro Agnew situa-

tion, Spiro Agnew came to the Congress and met with congressional
leaders urging that they consider his case. Elliot Richardson, it is my
i-ecollection, at one point was willing to ask the court to postpone the

criminal trial of Spiro Agnew so that he could present information
to the House Judiciary Committee for its possible consideration. In
other words, I think that was—now, that was Elliot Richardson's
initiative but yet, I think I am right on that. I think Elliot Richard-
son, at one point, was willing to ask the court on his motion to post-
pone so we could present information to the House, who had the pre-
liminary responsibility.

The Chairman. No, the gentleman is mistaken in that regard. If
you will recall, at that time Mr. Finley had introduced a resolution
of inquiry which would have mandated that we act within 7 days or,

otherwise, he would have had control of the time on the resolution
on the floor. i

1 was in touch with Mr. Richardson, talked with him by telephone,
and he stated to me at that time that he was in the process of dis-

cussing the matter with the court, and that he did not feel that it

would be helpful to the committee to come up there and to disclose
any information at the time, wdiich he was then considering, and
which would be material to the court's inquiry.
He did say, however, that if we did then take action on that resolu-

tion of inquiry ourselves and request that he come down, that he
would do so.

Mr. Railsback. That he would petition the court
The Cel\irman. No, no, that he would come down and disclose only

such information as he felt he could disclose to us, but that he would
not take the matter up with the court. His impression was, as you
know, at the time when he presented his argument before the court,
that whilehe was certain that the President, at least, in the opinion
of the United States, at least, in the opinion of the Justice Depart-
ment, his position was that the President of the United States was not
subject to indictability, whereas he did not feel that that question had
l^een resolved, insofar as the Vice President was concerned. And, there-
fore, he felt free to come here if we so ordered him rmder the resolu-
tion of inquiry. But, otherwise, he thought in his discretion that it

would not be an appropriate thing to do.

41-018—73—pt. 1-
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Mr. RArLSBACK. Yes. I thank the chairman. I will take your word
for it and then maybe we ought to consider a resolution of inquiry.

The Chaieman". Well
Mr. Hutchinson. I would not advise that.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. If I may direct a question to Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar, I understand that you have emphasized the point that

the areas of inquiry here are not intended to be an exhaustive list and
that there are other areas perhaps that are being pursued. As I review
the list of those areas being pursued at the present time, it is clear that
some of them quite possibly could lead to a criminal indictment, where
it is not perhaps for the President but at least it involved criminality
or the charge of criminalitJ^ Others do not tend to lend themselves to

criminal charges, but really might be fairly characterized as a poten-
tial abuse of authority with respect to the President. That is a fair

observation, is it not ?

Mr. Doar. Yes ; it is.

Mr. Wiggins. Given that fact then, is any historical research being
done by the committee with respect to practices in those noncriminal
areas by other administrations ?

Mr. Doar. Mr. Garrison and I discussed that this morning and two
tilings are taking place. First, is that the task force leaders are in-

structed in preparing the material that they are to be careful to see

whether or not as best they can, whether the practices that they have
under investigation or under consideration were practices that were
different than the practices that existed in past administrations, or
whether they are just similar in kind, but different in degree, or differ-

ent in kind. And, second, Mr. Garrison thought it would be a good
idea if we had one person assigned to do some background research
on practices in former administrations with respect to some of these

matters, and I agreed with him that it would be a good idea to do that.,

and we will do that.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, I am pleased then and your assurances is being
made to the committee that research of a historical nature will pro-
ceed ; is that correct ?

Mr. Doar. I make that assurance.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, while I have got the floor, I would like

to clear up a question in my mind and that is the proper relationship

of the members of the committee to members of your staff. I notice that

you have a congressional liaison person and the report indicates that

members of the committee should channel their questions perhaps, or

comments, to that person. I am not clear whether you feel that a mem-
ber is precluded from discussing matters with you personally outside

of this hearing room, or Mr. Jenner, or, for that matter, any other
member of the staff.

Mr. Doar. Well, I am certainly clear that no member of the com-
mittee is precluded from discussing any matter that they wish with
either me or Mr. Jenner. I have instructed the staff that if they get

inquiries from your office or any other office that they should refer

those matters to me, and I would do my best to answer them promptly.
Mr. Wiggins. The kind of contact that at least I envisioned is not

an inquiry with respect to information, but, well, just by way of illus-
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tration only : You have a gentleman assigned the major responsibility

of legal research. I have no plan to visit with that person, but I may
be obliged at some time in the future at least to want to talk to him
about my conception of what the law is or may be, only as a resource

to that person and not for the purpose of eliciting what the hell is

going on in his shop. Would I be, in your view, under the rules, pre-

cluded from doing so ?

Mr. DoAR. No; you would not. But I would like to just, if it is pos-

sible, to have the request channeled through my office and we would
arrange to have the person immediately talk to you about that, if you
so desired.

The Chairman. May I interject? The only reason for Miss Fletcher
is to assure that Miss Fletcher communicates with Mr. Doar about the
inquiries from the members of the Committee, and arranging those

appointments as such. And the whole point of it is that Mr. Doar would
make himself or his staff members that are available for that purpose,
available for the members of the committee. Otherwise, Miss Fletcher
and Mr. Coppock will be available to the Members of Congress gen-
erally for their inquiries. But, as such, and Mr. Doar has stated, and
this was an understanding, that the members of the committee had
access to liim, and we would like it to be orderly and arrange it through
Miss Fletcher so that we make sure that it is expedited and make sure
that it does not go unattended,
Mr. WiCxGiNs. Well, I understand the total answer to be that we

really are not precluded from talldng to members of the staff and the
staff, in turn, are not obliged to answer all of our questions either ? But,
for purposes of notice coordination, you would like to be advised ?

The CiiairjMan. That is correct.

Mr. Doar. Just to expedite it and to get the right person who knows
the subject about which you are interested over to you in the first in-
stance. If it turns out that that person does not satisfy you, or you do
not think that is the right way to handle it, I would like to know about
it and make it right.

Mr. Wiggins. Certainly. I understand and I appreciate the answer.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. In that same area of inquiry, if we are, Mr. Doar, as a

member, if we are interested in a particular item, and are desirous of
examining evidence in the possession of the special counsel or in your
possession, are there limitations on our access to evidence, and, if so,

what are the limitations ?

Mr. Doar. There are no limitations on your access to evidence at this

time. I would think, Mr. Congressman, that the committee might want
to make some rules about that, not in a final manner, not that you
should not have access to all of the material in the course of your con-
sideration. I think in the course of the preparation that it may well
be a good practice for the committee members to not have access to

material until it is presented in an orderly fashion.

Mr. Waldie. But those determinations are yet to be made ?

Mr. Doar. That is right.

Mr. Waldie. And I presume will be made by the committee ?

Mr. Doar. That is right.
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Mr. Wal,die. Is that correct, Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentleman yield on that point ?

Mr. Waldie. Yes.
Mr. Wiggins. I appreciate the gentleman yielding. The matter that

Congressman Waldie has raised is an important one and I am reluctant
to let the matter float until rules are devised that regulate that matter.
And those rules may not be in preparation. My request really of you, if

the chairman concurs, is that you give some priority attention to that.

Mr. DoAR. I agree.

Mr. Wiggins. So at least we all are operating under the same re-

straints, whatever they may be, and they be restraints that the com-
mittee itself agrees to. So, I would hope you bring something back
to us rather soon, at least in the area of evidence that you are
accumulating.
The Chairman. As you know, this is an area that is being given

attention, especially in the light of the continued statements on the
part of Mr. Jaworski that he is not in a position, at this time, and
states that he is bound by the rules of secrecy and confidentiality to
turn over any matters that he feels are confidential to the committee,
until and unless he is assured of their absolute confidentiality. And
even at this point, he has not stated he will turn over any material
because he feels that he is bound, and this is why this matter is, of
course, so tremendously important. And I am sure that this will be at-

tended to and is a top priority matter.

Mr. Waldie. May I continue on precisely that question ?

If the House votes us the subpena authority we have sought, the

imposition of conditions, no matter what they might be by Mr. Ja-

worski, including confidentiality or secrecy, would be of no avail,

would they ? -—

INIr. DoAR. Well, no. Mr. Jaworski would not have any right to place

any imposition in response to a subpena. He has suggested, in his

television broadcast last Sunday, that if that occurs that he would
apply to the court for directions. If I read or heard, or if I read his

testimony correctly, or his interview correctly, that is what he said.

Mr. Waldie. Now, would the court be able to impose conditions on
the ability of this committee to obtain information pursuant to that
subpena power?
Mr. Doar. Well, I think there is a serious question whether the court

would have any jurisdiction at all in the initial instance, Mr. Waldie.
And I would not want to express a legal judgment as to whether or
not the court could do that in the first instance. I do think, however.
Congressman Waldie that it might be worthy of consideration of
whether or not this committee, in its own judgment and wisdom,
might be prepared to place some self-imposed restrictions on that
before the issue gets up before any kind of a court.

Mr. Waldie. Well, in no way do I think we ought to slow down or
avoid that issue. But I want to make it clear in my own mind that
conditions of this sort, or any other sort, cannot be imposed upon
our power to obtain evidence and that is what I am trying to get
through my mind with every question I have asked with reference to
that subpena. No matter how reasonable the conditions may appear,
can any authority impose conditions upon our right under that
subpena to obtain the evidence we are seeking?
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Mr. DoAR. Well, that is correct. But
Mr. Waldie. Xow, what is correct ? It was a question.

Mr. DoAR. The statement

Mr. Waldie. Can any authority impose any conditions on the ability

of this committee to subpena evidence it seeks with the power of sub-

pena that you have recommended ?

Mr. DoAR. I do not believe they can. But, the question is, how do you
enforce the subpena ?

Mr. Waldie. Well, I know, and we have not received any answer

to that. You are working, I gather, on that question. That was a

question which was asked at the last meeting.

Mr. Cohen. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. DoAR. There is a problem of how you enforce the subpena that

somebody does not wish to comply with.

Mr. Waldie. Well, I will yield in a moment. But, it is my under-

standing from the last meeting that we left that question with counsel.

Mr. DoAR. That is right.

Mr. Waldie. To provide us an answer as to what do we do when
they do not, or the President does not comply, or Jaworski does not

comply ? What do we do, and I presume that answer has not yet been

researched ?

Mr. DoAR. No.
Mr. Waldie. I will not yield back, I have no more time.

INIr. Cohen. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. I just want to observe that Mr. Waldie is broaching

certainly a very interesting and a very important question. The answer
may be as he suggested, but I do not thinlc that has ever really been
determined, and if Mr. Jaworski or the White House, eitlier one,

takes a different point of view on an undetermined legal question, it

has certainly got to be resolved some way, and I just wonder how you
resolve it except possibly by going to a court and getting a resolution

on whether anybody is really out of line legally, or any other way
until such a resolution is obtained. I do not suggest that I know
the answer necessarily, but it seems to me those are important questions.

Mr. Kailsback. Will you yield ?

Mr. Dennis. Yes, I will yield.

Mr. Railsback. In respect to the same line, I am concerned that we
may be running into the same problem that the Senate Watergate
Committee ran into, which necessitated them having to ask us, and
I think this was raised by Mr. Kastenmeier at the last meeting, the
Senate Watergate Committee had to get enforcement power from
the district court, as far as their subpena power in order to avoid some
rather awkward situation like imprisoning somebody in a common
jail or going the other route by turning it over to an Attorney Gen-
eral who has to go actually through the criminal process of holding
somebody in contempt, I think still we ought to have somebody pre-
paring legislation, and to tell you the truth, I do not see how we are
ever going, if somebody refuses to honor one of our subpenas, I do
not see how we are ever going to avoid a court test. And I think we are
going to have to make a decision, whether we want to be armed with
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legislation giving us the same power that we were willing to give

to the Senate Watergate Committee in order to have, in my opinion

anyway, a much better remedy ; that is, by using the district court at

least to enforce our subpenas. I am not sure we would want to go so

far as to let them admit that we want them to determme questions

of legal validity or anything along those lines, but I think it would
help to have them to be able to enforce our subpena power.
Mr. Sakbanes. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. I think this conversation makes fairly clear that in

addition to a legal brief on the nature of an impeachable offense, which
in itself is obviously an unclear area and remains to be left to the judg-

ment of the members of this committee in establishing the standards

and I assume the brief that is coming to us will recognize that impor-
tant feature, that there is also need for a legal brief which examines
the use of the powers that we have in an impeachment proceeding, does

not go to the nature of the standard of the impeachable offense, but

deals with the subpena power with the general powers that flow to

this committee in carrying forth an impeachment inquiry. It would
seem to me before we start moving to solutions of one sort or another,

whether it is legislation comparable to what was given to the Senate

Watergate Committee or any other sort of solution, that we need a

brief which sketches out what the legal judgments are, and then beyond
that, of course, we would have to consider the practical judg-ment. We
may have a legal power and choose not to exercise it for other good
reasons. But, it would seem to me that we need that kind of legal brief,

as well as the one that is being done on an impeachable offense, because

there have been a number of questions today, and in our previous

meeting which dealt with this area of the legal powers of this com-
mittee.

Mr. Doar. We are beginning—we are working on that now.
The Chairman. Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman, apropos of Mr. Eailsback's com-
ment on how we might have to enforce a subpena, I would like respect-

fully to suggest that this committee, as a branch of the Congress, has

the power of impeachment. I think we should consider very seriously

before we act to invoke the powers of the court to enforce our subpenas,

if we were to ask a court to enforce a subpena, then we would almost

necessarily be opening up that subpena to review by the court as to

sufficiency and a number of other things. It is my recollection from
way back that the Congress has the power to enforce its own process

by contempt, by sending out the Sergeant-at-Arms if need be. We may
have to arrange to operate on some kind of a contractual basis to have

a place of coiifinement with a jail or the like. But, I do not think we
should just precipitously move into asking the judicial department to

assist the legislative department in the discharging of its constitu-

tional duties.

Mr. IMcClort. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Danielson. I will yield to Mr. Sandman, who has had his hand
up for a long time, and then I will come right back to you, Mr.

McClory.
Mr. Sandman. One of the things, as I understand it, that Mr.

Jaworski has imposed as his major objection to all of these things is
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that he does not believe that he has the right to turn over something

of a confidential nature because it is now before a Federal grand jury.

Is that not really his contention ?

Mr. DoAR. That is one of his contentions.

Mr. Sandman. That is his major one, though, is it not?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I am not sure that it is his major one, because

much of the material we have asked Mr. Jaworski for, in my judg-

ment, does not fall within the grand jury rule. There are documents,

there are witness' statements,

Mr. Sandman. Once we resolve our own procedure as to whether

or not we are functioning in the nature of a grand jury or whether

or not these things are private or should be public, we will have

answered almost all of those things ; will we not ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, once we resolve, or the committee resolves how
it would handle documents that are received from Mr. Jaworski, then

that would be one area out of the way. Mr. Jaworski really has four

points : One is that this committee has not established procedures for

insuring confidentiality of documents, until they are needed in the

process that this committee has.

Mr. Danlelson. I will not be able to yield further. My time is

about up.

Mr. McClort. I just want to concur with what the gentleman
said. I do not believe we should subject ourselves to the Judiciary in

order to enforce our subpenas. But, I think we should establish our
own mechanism, if the time comes that we have to have some
enforcement.
Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Danielson. I am entirely in accord on that. I hope we will

not have to reach that extreme position, but I think that prudence
requires that we be prepared in advance so that we will have a

method of executing our process if we need to.

INIr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Danielson. I will yield to Mr. Dennis, yes.

Mr. Dennis. I was just wondering if we go ahead and follow the

gentleman's thesis and stay out of the courts, and arrest Mr. Jawor-
ski, or whoever refuses our subpenas, whether the gentleman is also

going to suspend the right of habeas corpus at that point ?

Mr. Danielson. I appreciate the gentleman's comments. It adds a

little levity to a serious situation. However, the point of the matter
is, I think it would be imprudent on our part to not look beyond
today, and to make some preparation for the contingencies that may
develop farther along in tliis inquiry.

Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Brooks [presiding]. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, I simply want to make this one

observation. I think that this committee should avoid confrontations,

either with the President or with the court, and I am still of the

frame of mind that I cannot believe that the White House wants to

face a confrontation with this committee, because it has been my
observation that the White House has been losing these confrontations
right and left, and I think that if we now—of course, I mean if we
subpena somebody and they simply are contemptuous of us, that is

one thing. But, I am talking about subpenas to the White House or
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snbpenas to Mr. Jaworski. I would think that once armed with tlie

snbpena power that snbpena power ought to be used as a matter of

last resort, and not be first resort, because I still hope that we can ijet

what we need, that we can cret what we need through negotiations

because these are reasonable men.
Mr. Beooks. Mr. Plutchinson, the chairman who is temporarily

absent, has made cr^^stal clear to this committee that it is his ho])e

that we would write letters, would discuss with the individuals, the

court or the '\'\niite House or Mr. Jaworski or other pertinent groups
first, before we ever issued a subpena. He has made that clear. That
is the basis of our presentation of subpena power, is that we would ask
people first. And I think that the chairman, and I think, and this

reflects generally the committee feeling, as I understand it, and the

chairman, that we would do this first.

]\rr. Danielson. I would like to state that T fully agi^ee. We are

going to try to conduct this, I am sure, in a professional manner, and
then go on from there if we need to.

Mr. Brooks. That was the iniderstanding, was it not, counsel ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. it was ; no question about it.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. ISIezvinsky ?

INIr. Mez\t[xsky. If I may switch to a topic that is in the report. On
page 4 you mention the Joint Committee on Taxation and their in-

vestigation. What are you doing on that, as far as access to their

information? Do you have any idea when they are going to report

as to those matters? I think it has a bearing certainly on our investi-

gation. Are you in close contact, will we have access to all of the

materials, the tax returns that committee has at its disposal, IMr. Doar ?

Mr. Doar. The chairman has had a meeting with Chairman INIills

about the, material and my understanding is that when the report is

finished that we will have access to that material. In addition, IMr,

Sack has made contact with the chief counsel over there to see what
the status of their investigation is; to see what materials can be made
available to us now, and to try to get as much of that information on
an ongoing basis as possible.

Mr. ]\rEZ\T^iSrsKY. Mr. Doar, could you tell us from your information
now what is the status of their investigation? Do thev have a time

table for their reports? Have they given any indication when they

hope to finish their work ?

Mr. Doar. Mj understanding was about 2 weeks ago that the report

was going to be completed in 30 to 60 da^^s. I do not have any further
information on that.

Mr. Mezinsky. And then you are saying that we have access to

that information now ?

]\[r. Doar. No. we do not have access to it now, but we are making
an attempt now to see if we can get some access to that material on an
ongoing basis.

jVIr. Mezvinsky. Thank you.
]\fr. Brooks. Mr. Butler.'

]Mr. Butler. ISIr. Doar, just with reference to the area which you
have described as constitutional and legal research, how large is that

group and do they overlap the factual investigation groups? You
state that as legal questions arise they are referred to the section for
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research and analysis. Is there available to iis the questions which are

being researched by this group and a progress report on that? Will
that be forthcoming?

]Mr. DoAR. Well, ^T6 haye five attorneys and a law student working
in that section right now, and then we have some of the people that

are working on factual questions assisting on particular problems. I

do not have before me a list of all of the matters that are being actually

researched at this time, besides the ones that I have mentioned which
would be the constitutional question of what is an impeachable offense,

and the other is this whole question about the enforcement and the

use of the committee's subpena power. But, we will have a list of

those questions and that material would be available to members of

the committee if they desired it.

]\Ir. Butler. All right.

One more question: With reference to the question of judicial re-

view, is that a possibility of a judicial review of an interim action in

an impeachment proceeding and could the sufficiency of the impeach-
ment article be tested in the court before trial, and are these items

being researched?
Mr. DoAR. Well, that item, the matter of the procedure of impeach-

ment and the question of judicial review, interim judicial review on
tlie articles are being researched; yes. I do not know of any authority

that would provide for that. I will say that. Congressman.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Butler.

INIr. Butler. I would be surprised myself but I would be interested.

Mr. Brooks. IVIr. Butler, of interest to you is the English procedure
on that out of the Jefferson Manual Process : "If the party does not
appear, a proximation will be issued giving him a day to appear. On
their return, they are strictly examined. If any error is found in

them, a new proclamation is issued, giving a short day. If he appears
not. his goods may be arrested and they may proceed."

INIr. Butler. Thank you.
Mr. Brooks. I do not want San Clemente, however.
Mr. Butler. I yield back the time to the gentleman from Maine.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Owens.
]Mr. Oavexs. ISIr. Chairman, I was just going to suggest to Mr.

Doar, or to the members of the committee, that it might be helpful
at our next briefing session next week to invite the entire staff, let us
be introduced to them briefly, and have a look at them and I suppose
it might be helpful to them to see the members of the committee
as well. I would suggest that at least to the chairman. It may be help-

ful to us.

Mr. Brooks. I will pass that message on to the chairman.
]Mr. OwEXS. Then I was going to ask: I assume if we wanted to

come over and look over the plant and try to get a feel for what you
are doing that that is an acceptable procedure ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes; it certainly is. I would hope that all of you would
come over and let me take you around and introduce you to all of

the lawyers over there AVhile they are working and have a chance to

meet each and every one of them. I think that is a better way to meet
the staff than have them all come off work and come over here, frankly.

Mr. Owens. Well, my comment, though, I was thinking in terms
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of staff morale, and that they would be interested in looking at the
curious bunch that they are theoretically working for, too.

Mr. DoAR. Well, from that standpoint.

Mr. Owens. I just thought it would be helpful if we did that for

both. And I suppose any examination of evidence, that we do it in

your office, and I assume that the rules are that no evidence leaves

the office, either for staff or for members ?

Mr. DoAE. That is the rule at the present time, yes.

Mr. Owens. Could you just give us briefly a breakdown on how
the mail is going and what kind of mail it is ? Now, you point out in

here that you received 366,000 pieces to date and, as I recall, it is

about 80 percent proimpeachment and 20 percent anti-impeachment.
Is that approximately right ?

Mr. DoAE. Yes, I think it might be a little higher than 80 percent.

They come in between 500 and 1,000 pieces a day, and it is perhaps
a little higher than 80 percent.

Mr. Owens. Still arriving at 500 to 1,000 pieces a day ?

Mr. Hutchinson. Would you yield ?

Mr. Owens. Yes.
Mr. Hutchinson. I want to observe that the very large volume of

mail in my office on the issue, runs just about the reverse. There is just

about 80 percent in favor of the President and so

Mr. Owens. Well, mine is about a 50-50 breakdown and I do not
think that you can imply anything from any of those, but, I was in-

terested.

Mr. Kailsback. Wayne, would you yield?

Mr. Owens. Yes.
Mr. Railsback. Does that count these little letter newspaper things,

now, that people are cutting out on both sides. Are you counting those ?

Mr. DoAR. I do not know.
Mr. Railsback. I am literally getting swamped by this media com-

paign, on behalf of the President. And I am getting a lot of those cut-

outs and I am wondering if you are figuring those in?

The Chairman. No.
According to Ms. Howard, who has charge of the compilation, she

advises me that the letters and telegrams have been identified singly.

Those petitions and others are not counted as such but are single

items, and we have received some 350,000 pieces.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, in this area, I guess because I am from
southern California and a Republican. I am constantly being interro-

gated about the famous, if you will pardon the expression, bull re-

sponse received by certain Republican groups who sent a resolution to

some members of the Judiciary Committee and the Judiciary Commit-
tee itself, and I have given them all of the assurances that I can that,

you know, it has been looked into and that it is not apt to happen
again. And I have done that because of my faith in the staff that we
have done so, but would you assure me now so that I am speaking from
personal Icnowledge that some steps are taken to preclude that kind of

an unseemly thing from happening ?

Mr. Danielson. Would the gentleman yield?

The Chairman. Before I yield, let me say that Mr. Danielson called

that to my attention and I immediately took it up with the staff. I
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would like to point out that frankly, if one examines that letter and
the envelope, one would find that the envelope has a cancellation on it

with a stamx3. The Judiciary Committee does not use stamped enve-

lopes. They use franked and anyone that might have been toying with
something like that I am sure would not have been on the staff. And it

certainly could not have occurred there, as we find together with the

fact that the envelope, as I recall, was dated; the cancellation date

was the 14th of January and the letter was dated, I think, the 10th

or the 9th of January or December. I forget. It may have been one
or the other. Do you recall that, Sam?

]\Ir. Garrison. I think it was December.
The Chairman. December. And all that one has to consider is that,

first of all, a letter being sent from California where this letter was
purported to have been sent from dated the 10th or the 9th, it would
have had to come all the way here, and then gotten first to the Judiciary

Committee where it was addressed and from the Judiciary Committee,
where it is in with another moimtain of mail, it has to get—it does

not get answered by the Judiciary Committee staff, it gets answered
by the staff that is conducting the impeachment inquiry and this is

supposed to have been sent back. And the envelope, as I said, had the

cancellation date of 4 days later. So, it seems to me, at least from my
examination of it, although I instructed the staff to check the post-

mark and the station where it was mailed from in order to see just

whether or not it actually was sent out of any place near here, or

where it might have been sent from, but the two points that ought
to be borne in mind are, No. 1, that the envelopes that we send out

are franked envelopes and do not carry stamps. And I do not know
that anybody in there carries a stamp of that sort, a rubber stamp of

that sort. And I would hardly expect it but, nonetheless, I thought
I would point this out.

Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairsian. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman, I would have confidence that that

is not being done by our staff, and I assume we will doublecheck that. I
also think, though, that assuming we satisfy ourselves on that score

that we ought not to stop there. I mean, if Segretti, if a Segretti-type
person is at work engaged in such activity, I think it would be worth
some effort at investigating and trying to locate who it is. It is

obviously
JNIr. Owens. Obviously some devilish force.

Mr. Sarbanes. What?
Mr. Owens. It is obviously some de^'ilish force operating.
Mr. Sarbanes. Some sinister force but I think it is the kind of

thing that we ought not simply shrug off, if, with a reasonable amount
of investigation we might be able to locate who is doing this.

]\Ir. Danielson. I do not know who has the time.
The Chairsian. Mr. Danielson ?

Mr. Danielson. I would like to assure my colleague, Mr. Wiggins,
that I have been getting the same thing. I did not know that he was
being subjected to it also. I thought I was the only one being favored.
But, I have taken it up with the committee and I have responded to
Senator Bob Stevens, who seems to have taken this up in southern
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California, and I have assured them that steps are being taken by
the staff to be positive that notliing is coming out of here of that nature.

I am of the opinion that it is a Segretti-type or dirty-tricks-type

operation.

The CHAmMAN. Well, I would suggest again as you recall, John,
that I instructed that we find out what postal station, since there

was a number of the postal stations, where that letter was purported
to have been mailed from.
Mr. DoAR. We did look into that, Mr. Chairman. That stamp was

from the main post office and the No. 48 does not give you any lead

as to which sub-post office or branch post office that it would have
come from. So, there is no way of tracing that further. At least, that

was the information we got.

The Chairman. Would the main post office be able to tell you where,
what drop it was, what box it was in ?

Mr. DoAR. No.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Hutchinson. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Before we get away from this subject of the mail

being received and so on, do I understand, Mr. Chairman, that you say
that only letters and telegrams as sucli are being counted, and that the

coupon returns are not ? Now, I do not think that any member of tliis

committee is going to be influenced by the volume of mail on this issue,

because this issue is not going to be decided by the volume of mail. But
if you are going to put out figures about how the mail is running, why
it seems to me that you ought to count coupons which come in along
with the rest of the mail. They carry stamps on them and they are
just a different method of communication. I hope that you will count
thorn, ]Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Well, I undoubtedly did not make myself clear. I

was referring to the fact that when petitions are sent that carry names
on the petitions, they are not counted—it is a single petition, not a
number of names. But, coupons which are letters, along with telegrams
that are coming in, they are being counted; they are counted, as well.

Mr. Cohen. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, I would like to come back to your report you are going to

file and the legal brief on February 20. Could you tell us whether or not
it is going to be in the form of a recommendation after your staff has
done all of the legal and historical reseai'ch in terms of whether you and
Mr. Jenner are then going to recommend a working definition as such
for this committee to use as its standard in applying the facts as de-
veloped? Is that what your report will do on February 20?
Mr. DoAR. Well
Mr. Cohen. Now, we all have the Burger's Book and the impeach-

ment materials that have been put together by the Judiciary Com-
mittee. I am wondering what exactly do you intend to do with that
particular brief ?

Mr. DoAR. We are going to try to attempt to define for the commit-
tee, as best we can, in a nonfactual context, our legal opinion of what
constitutes impeachable offenses. Now, I think, Mr. Congressman, that
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that is somewhat difficult to do in a nonfactiial context, and that we
will perhaps be only able to give you a guideline or a frame for which
you can examine the facts as they are presented to you in a context.

jNIr. CoiiEX. Well, the only reason that I am raising the question is,

as you know, there are two prevailing schools of thought as to whether
it must be an indictable offense or whetlier it can be something less

than an indictable offense, undermining the Constitution. I am won-
dering whether you are going to make a recommendation with respect

to either of those two ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. I think we will make a recommendation with respect

to that. I really thinlc that it is not my understanding that there are

two—there are two views, but I would not say they are })oth prevailing

views. It seems to me from my research to date that the general view
is that an impeachable offense does not necessarily have to be a crimi-

nal offense.

Tlie Chairman. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. Thank you, Mr. Cliairman.
I would like to find out pursuant to our discussion about this staff

that was hired, how many are black and women on the staff at this

point.

Mr. DoAR. I did not understand.
Mr. Conyers. How many members of the staff are black and how

many are women ?

Mr. DoAR. Of the 90 members of the staff, there are 10 black staff

members ; 4 of them are attorneys.

Mr. Conyers. Well, the figure tliat we are using in here is 30.

Mr. DoAR. Of the 39 lawyers, 4 of them are black.

Mr. Conyers. What about women ?

Mr. DoAR. Of the 39 members of the legal staff, 2 of them are women.
Mr. Conyers. iVnd then on another point I would like to commend

the chairman for determining that we ought to keep a record of these
sessions. I think that is a very important decision made by the Chair.
The Chairman. I might say that we have done so. and in order that

the record just be preserved for historical purposes. I think the com-
mittee members will recognize that we are trying to keep the costs

down, and we are going to have just a number of copies, and we can
make them available or reproduce them afterward, but, otherwise,
there will be just, I think—we are ordering at the present time four
copies for the committee's record.

Mr. Dennis ?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, in view of various things that have
been said here this morning, I would, I think, like to make three brief
comments in three different areas.

The first addresses itself to the last interchange between Mr. Cohen
and Mr. Doar. I have not arrived at any castiron conclusions aboTit

what is an impeachable offense, but I would differ somewhat with Mr.
Doar on his suggestion that there are not two distinct theories about
whether it needs to be an indictable offense or not. I think there are
two distinct theories and it is also my personal belief, at the present
time, at least, that whether or not such an offense needs also to be a
crime or not, that in about 999 cases out of 1,000, including the facts

of this one, insofar as I presently know them, anything which arises

to that seriousness and that dignity will, in fact, also be a crime.
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Since we are going to have a brief rather than just a legal memo,
I just throw that out so that it will not be considered that everybody
is necessarily 1,000 percent in agreement about everything.

Second, on the matter of mail, since it has been brought up, in
my particular area, after the so-called Saturday night massacre, it

ran about 4 to 1 against the President. It is now about 72 percent
in his favor to 28 percent against. I hasten to add that I think both
that the statistics of the committee should be largely irrelevant for
our purposes here. I assume we are not going to decide this great con-
stitutional issue on the question of the stacks of mail.

Third, I have been rather surprised at the inquiries here which
suggested that there might be rules which prevented committee mem-
bers either from talking to staff or seeing facts. I merely state that as
far as I pereonally am concerned, that is an inherent right of an^f

committee member which could be foreclosed, if at all, only by a vote
of this committee, not by any staff decision. And I would add to that,

however, that if we are to exercise that right, then it becomes exceed-
ingly important that in the particular matter we act as we would as
lawyers with respect to confidentiality and not as we might act as polit-

ical animals.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman ?

The CHAiRMAisr. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. If I could just pose one last question on the mail. Wliat

do we do with the mail when we get it? Do we respond to it in any
way?
Mr. DoAR. Yes ; we are responding to the mail.

Mr. Owens. To all of the mail ?

The Chairman. All of the mail is being responded to and I might
say that that was a matter that, if you will recall, I initially stated
that although there is considerable mail, 350,000 pieces to date, I
thought that with such a momentous question as this is, in the minds of
all of the people who write, that we should provide them with at least

an aclaiowledgement or a reply, stating that we are considering what
they have called to our attention. As a result, since you recognize
that 350,000 pieces of mail would take a long time, and we figured out
how much it would cost if we were to do it manually or if we were to

employ clerks, so we have contracted with a firm, and under great
security, because I think it is going to be important to remember, that
any of those people who have written in, whether they are pro or
against, I think could be the subject of some kind of concern on the
part of each of us as to, well, whatever might occur and I think we are
taking absolute precautions to insure that that list, once provided to

this mailing firm is in our hands. And we are in the process, however,
of sending out replies.

Mr. Maraziti. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. Maraziti. Is a response also mailed to those people who send
in those little slips ?

The Chairman. All of the mail is replied to. If they have given
us an address and a name, each one is aclniowledged.
Mr. IMaraziti. I might ask permission to make an observation. I

have no objection, Mr. Chainnan, to the statistics being publicized by
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the Judiciary Committee. Certainly, no one here is going to be influ-

enced by the number pro or con. We are going to consider the evi-

dence. And I concur with the observations of the ranldng member, that
I think the slips should be counted, too, and I will tell you why. I
think the wrong impression is being created, and one of my constitu-

ents disagreed with me the other day and she happened to be my wife.

And I said, "Eileen, look at my mail, it is running 10 to 1 in favor
of the President." She said, "well, there must be something wrong, Joe,

because the statistics of the Judiciary Committee show tliis overwhelm-
ing figure the other way." And I am wondering perhaps if there
might be a difference. I don't say there would be if the slips were
coimted, too. I am counting the slips and maybe that is why I get
this tremendous response.

The Chairman. All of the mail is being counted and, as I stated,

whether it is a letter or a telegram or a coupon. The only thing that is

not being individually counted is the petition which carries maybe
10,000 names or 5,000 names. "We are not counting those as 5.000 or any-
thing of that sort. And I might also add that the mail that is addressed
to me, or as chairman of the Judiciary Committee comes in, and we
have not tried to assess this, and so I have not made, except for pur-
poses where anyone inquires, I have told them, but all I stated was that
we got 350,000 pieces of mail. And if they asked me the next question, I
would say that I could tell you they were running 12 to 1 or 15 to 1
for impeachment. They were running, when we first got the mail, they
were rmining about 30 to 1 in favor of impeachment. They have gone
down to 12 to 1, and each time something occurs we find that it may be
somewhere in the vicinity of about 8 to 1, 4 to 1 and it balances out right
now at about 12 to 1. But, this is the broad cross-section. I cannot tell

you, if you were to say to me, do they come in the main from California,
from the East or something like that, I think that that is being broken
down, but we have not as yet categorized it to that extent.

I yield to the gentleman.
Mr. Brooks. I sent out a letter to 160,000 constituents in the district

that went 60 percent for President Nixon, and in the letter I pointed
out that if the evidence indicated to me it was justifiable that we indict
him that I would vote for Articles of Impeacliment without hesitation
and try and remove the President. And if I did not think that the
evidence was of that nature, I would vote to keep him in and forget it.

And, so, I left it up basically to my own judgment as to the facts and
I would reserve my judgment imtil then.
Now, my replies from that letter have been one letter giving me hell

and about 200 letters saying you ought to go on with the investigation,
or just saying that is a fine position. I think that that indicates that the
people in my district want an honest evaluation of the matter on a basis
of the facts and as you can vote your conscience and be perfectly clear
about it. I do not think there will be any problem in my district. I can
vote to impeach or not to, depending on the evidence and I think this
is really the thought of the American people. They want an honest
evaluation, and I do not think there is any need to be adding up the
written replies and subtracting them.
The Chairman. I might also add in further clarification that when

some of the letters that I have gotten of those 350,000 talk about im-
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peachment, any number of tliose people are pretty clear that tliey are
lookino; for ns "to give them an answer to the questions. They pretty well
understand what impeachment means. I might say that there are a lot

of others who just are pretty adamant and say "impeach and find him
guilty, et cetera," which, of course, very frankly while we read them, I

am sure that all of us are aware of the fact that this is not what is

going to, at least it is not going to guide me, in my position because I
do not tliink that they really understand what the process is all aliout

in tliat case. But, there are many thoughtful letters from many people
across the country who are saying that we ought to inquire and we
ought to do it expeditiously.

;Mr. ^Moorhead.
Mr. MooRHEAD. Mr, Chairman, my mail has also been running about

4 to 1 in favor of the President. We have gotten a little over 4.000 in

favor of them and a little over 1,000 against him. But, what I have
noted is a lot of those who are against the President are sending dupli-
cate lettere one right after another. We send a form letter back in reply
and I got a letter from this one gal last week that said, "Dear Mr.
]\foorhead, don't send me another one of your form letters : I have five

already." "Wliich means she has been counted five times.

The Chairman. Father Drinan.
]\Ir. Drinan. Mr. Chairman, all of us are fettered with form letters

about this matter and the House Judiciary Committeee is on the face
of the envelope. I read one that I have just opened

:

"Please support the Office of the President and let the President get

on with his job." This is from California. This is pursuant to very mis-
leaiding ads spending lumdreds of thousands of dollars by some lobby
out there that says it is nonpartisan and nonprofit. That is what it says
on the face of the ad and they have the names of local Congi'essmen in

Waltham and Fitchburg, Mass., and I think there is a question of pro-

priety on the pressure they are putting on us and I take this if they are

from out of State and just throw them away. And I an not going to

acknowledge tliem. But. T would be very happy to send them on
around to the House Judiciary Committee if you want to impound
them along with the others. However, on the question of counting these

thinfrs, these things are woii^h nothing they do not even come to the

question : "Please support the Office of the President." All of us do
that. "Help the President get on with his job." All of us are for that.

Before we get caught up in numbers of people and weighing names,
it just says. House Judiciary Committee on the face of the envelope.

Does that mean I throw it awaA^ or do something about it?

The CiiAiRiMAN. I think that is a judgment you will have to make,
Father Drinan. And insofar as impoundment is concerned, as long as

you do not consider impeaching me. why we will be glad to have them
if you think you would like to send them over.

^h\ Seiberltng. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinan. Yes.
Mr. Setberetno. T have gotten several letters from people who are

for impeachment, denouncing me for supporting the ad. That is how
misleading it is. the way they show the names of the Congressmen
and it looks like they are sponsoring the ad. And I have even con-

sidered putting out a release clarifying the matter. That is how much
those are worth.
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Tlie Chairmax. Mr. Sarbanes.

Mr. Sarbanes. INIr. Chairman, I want to revert back to this letter

that Mr. Wiggins and jNIr. Danielson raised that came in from Cali-

fornia, because the more I sit here and think about it the more I think
it is a serious and potentially a very serious situation. As I under-

stand it, a Women's Club in California addressed a letter to the House
Judiciary Committee.
The CHAiRMAisr. That is correct.

Mr. Sarbanes. Supporting the President or something of that sort ?

The Chairman. Yes.
Mr. Wiggins. The facts, if you will yield ?

]Mr. Chairman. I will be happy to yield.

jVIr. Wiggins. Essential to any inquiry is who had access to the letter

and it is my understanding that the resolution was sent to the Judiciary
Committee, but that copies of the resolution were sent quite broadly
and, of couree, it is possible that the BS response was to one of the

copies rather than to the original.

JNIr. Sarbanes. I see. Well, I think it is necessary to pursue the matter
enough to get some kind of a resolution and explanation of it. I mean,
I just do not think that we ought to dismiss it lightly because we ought
to have some assurances that nothing within our own operation is a
myth and then beyond that, if it is necessary, some assurance that
there is not some effort being made to discredit the work of the
conmiittee.

The Chairman. Well, as I stated before, counsel has been instructed
to inquire into this and we have not gotten a report as yet. I consider
it serious enough to try to find out. whether it is an effort to discredit

the committee or whether it is something that may have just occurred.
I am hopeful that it did not occur within the committee and I am
hopeful that there certainly is enough security to assure that no one
is carrying around a stamp with, excuse me. "Bolshik" on it, and he
stamps the envelope and I think that this is important for us to look
into. And I am hopeful that we get a replj-.

Mr. FLO^^^:RS. ]Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Flowers.
INIr. Flo"v\t:rs. Let's remember that this is one instance out of many,

many hundreds of thousands that happened in early December and
we are in February now and there has been nothing since then. I don't
think we need to go on a witch hunt amongst the counsel of the com-
mittee or anvthing else. You know, I beg to differ with some of my
colleagues. I do dismiss it lightly. It happened a long time ago and
it has not happened again, and any number of explanations as to how
this could have happened could be given. I got something in the
mail yesterday from the same California organization and I am going
to write them back and tell them that I just do not believe our com-
mittee had anything to do with this. It either got misdirected in the
mail or this came back from some spurious source.
The Chairman. Well, without unduly imposing on the work of

the staff, Ave are inquiring to determine whether or not there was any
effort to just discredit the committee.

INIr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. I just want to agree with what the gentleman said.

41-018—75—pt. 1 fi
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I do not think our staff did that. I, for one, I agree with what you have
said. I treat it very lightly and I would hate to see us encumber the

time of our staff with something like that. Turn it over to the Post
Office Committee. Let us turn it over to the Post Office Committee
if we are going to investigate it.

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. I think before we let the matter drop, the inquiries

ought to also ascertain whether the contents, in fact, were accurately

described.

Mr. Seiberling. On that note, I move we adjourn.
The CiiAiRMAisr. A motion has been made to adjourn. Although

we do not entertain motions, nonetheless we will adjourn.

[Whereupon, at 11 :55 a.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 :45 a.m., in room 2141,

Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr. (chair-

man) presiding.

Present : Representatives Rodino (presiding) , Brooks, Kastenmeier,

Edwards, Hungate, Eilberg, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Drinan, Rangel,

Jordan, Thornton, Owens, Mezvinsky, McClory, Smith, Sandman,
Railsback, Dennis, Fish, Mayne, Hogan, Butler, Lott, Moorhead, and
Latta.
Impeachment inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Albert E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority ; Samuel Garrison

III, deputy minority counsel; Joseph A. Woods, Jr., senior associate

special counsel.

Committee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general counsel ; Gar-

ner J. Cline, associate general counsel ; and Franklin G. Polk, associate

counsel.

The Chairman. Good morning.
I guess we will proceed. Before we do, I would like to formally an-

nomice, since the ranking minority member is not here, that we have
with us a new member and new addition to the committee, not new to

the Congress, but we have Mr. Delbert Latta. [Applause.]
The Chairman, Mr. Doar, will you proceed ?

Mr. Doar. Good morning, members of the committee.
This morning I have a number of matters to report on, and with

your permission after each item I have finished reporting on, I would
ask Mr. Jenner to add such comments as he has, and then move on to

the next item.

The first matter that we wish to report to you is that on Monday at

11 o'clock, Mr. Jenner and I met with Mr. St. Clair at our offices in the

Congressional Annex. And the purpose of the meeting was to discuss,

generally, ways that we could begin to discuss the materials and the

documents that were necessary to this committee to obtain, if it were
to complete a full and thorough inquiry into the question of possible

impeachment of the President.

The Chairman. Pardon me, John, before you go on from there, I

would like to make clear, you possibly may have read it in the press, but
Mr. St. Clair had written me a letter at the instruction of the President
requesting, or informing me, that he was making himself available at
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the instruction of the President with counsel of the committee. And I

talked with Mr. Hutchinson about the receipt of tliis letter, and we
both agre<^d that we would acknowledge the letter, first, by telephone,

and then advise IMr. St. Clair that we would arrange a meeting. And a

meeting was then arranged and no one was advised. The press was not
advised as to when this was to take place, and it was to be a preliminary
meeting:. And this is the meeting that INIr. Doar is talking about.

Mr. Doar. We explained to Mr. St. Clair how we viewed our respon-

sibility as counsel to this committee; that we were not prosecutors,

that tiiis was not a lawsuit in any sense of the word and that we came
to this point in the inquiry without any preconceived notion one way or

the other with respect to what the facts would show. But, that we
thouglit we had a i-esponsibility to examine all documents, papers,

materials, that we thought were necessary to a thorough, complete,

search for the truth. And we hoped that it would be possible for Mr.
St. Clair to work with us in getting and examining this material as

expeditiously as possible.

We pointed out to him that this was a matter that everyone wanted
to handle with dispatch, and that it did not seem to us ap])ropriate or

proper that this can be regarded as a kind of an ordinary kind of

litigation between two attorneys for parties to a lawsuit. Mr. St. Clair

agreed that this was a different kind of a proceeding and said that he
was anxious to discuss ways in which access to material, examination
of material could be obtained as expeditiously as possible.

We then started to discuss specific materials. First, we discussed

material that was in the possession of the executive depart^nent, such
as the Department of Justice, the IRS, and we said the fii'st thing we
were interested in knowing is how this material was filed, so that we
would be able to make a careful examination of specific matters and
be sure that we had not, on behalf of the committee, overlooked any
material. Mr. St. Clair asked me for an example of this and I said,

well, one example would be the ITT file that the Antitrust Division
has, and we discussed how that would be filed within the Department
of Justice. He said he would find out how those files were organized,

and later that day he called back and said there was a man in the De-
partment of Justice that one of our staff members could go to see to

get an idea of just exactly how the files were organized so that we
could approximately make a request to examine them, and be sure

that we were not overlooking anything.

We then discussed the files and documents and materials that were
in the "White Plouse. We said that there were certain documents that

we know we wanted to examine and, specifically, those were the docu-
ments that Judge Sirica had ordered the President to turn over to the

Special Prosecutor and also the documents that he turned over volun-
tarily to the Special Prosecutor. INIr. St. Clair indicated that there was
approximately 700 documents that had been turned over by the "\"\niite

House to the Special Prosecutor.
At that point, Mr. St. Clair indicated that it would be important for

him that—of course, he had no authority whatsoever to agree to any-
thing and that this was a very preliminary meeting and we understood
that. We also made it clear that we were not speaking with any au-
thority; we were exploring procedures, means of acquiring or pro-
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cedures for acquiring these materials, and we understood each other

completely there. But, he did say that he felt certain that he would
want to know, and what the President would want to know how the

committee intended to handle documents, materials, and that if a deci-

sion were made that such documents and materials were to be turned

over to the committee, and by that he w^as interested in the security

and the control of the documents, and the confidentiality of the docu-

ments pending- the time that the committee made the decision as to

how the documents would be made available to the public, or if they

would be made available. And we indicated to Mr, St. Clair that we
were prepared to meet with the committee promptly to discuss with
them our judgment that such procedures or policies should be adopted
by the committee so that the White House, as well as Mr. Jaworski
would know exactly how this committee intended to control material

that it received pending a final determination of what use it would
make of it.

He pointed out that there were serious charges pending against peo-

ple that had been emploj^ed by the White House, and that he did not
want to, nor did anyone at the White House want to be accused of, I

think he used the word "dumping" those cases, which I took to mean
causing it or making it more difficult for the prosecution of those cases

by the public release of documents that might be used in the prosecu-

tion of those cases by turning them over to anyone when they would be
tliereafter immediately released to the public. And we then discussed

the question of where we stood with respect to our brief, which we were
preparing for the committee on what is an impeachable offense. And
I\Ir, St. Clair asked us if we would entertain any materials furnished
by him and we said, yes, the staff, the inquiry staff, would receive

any suggestions or any memorandum from him or from anyone else

and that this material should, of course, be submitted to us and not to

the committee.
He then finally asked about what procedures the committee intended

to follow with resi)ect to evidentiary hearings, and we said that the
committee had not decided that as yet, but that I indicated that it was
my view that the proceedings were not adversary in nature, that the
committee, the proceedings before the committee, were analogous to

a grand jury proceeding, that it was not an adversary proceeding and
tliat it was not like a trial. And he indicated that he thought there was
some historical support for there being some aspects of it being more
like a trial, rather than a grand jury proceeding. I said, well, that is a
matter that the committee would have to decide, and it had not reached
that point yet.

That was about the concliTsion of the meeting except I think that
INIr. .Tenner, as I recall, did ask him if he would authorize the Special
Prosecutor, Mr. Jaworski, to release to the committee the documents
which he or the "Wliite House had released to Mr. Jaworski. And he
had promised to consider that, too, and again returned to the ques-
tion of how the committee would control and manage the documents
pending the completion of the investigation and consideration by the
committee of what they would do, what it would do with the
documents.
That concludes it, and INIr. Jenner has called my attention to the

fact that later he called back. First he said he would be submitting
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to us this week a brief on what is an impeachable offense, and then
he later called back and said he did not think he would have the
material to us by this week, and that he would submit, might take
advantage of submitting, a reply brief. And I said, well, that's fine,

but again I pointed out to him that this was not an adversary pro-
ceeding, that he did not—that whatever materials that he was sub-
mitting would be submitted to the staff for its consideration, not to
the committee, as if on the one hand we were counsel and he was
the other counsel appearing before the committee. He said he under-
stood that fully and he did not want to—he did not want me to
think that he had made any decision that he wanted to appear before
the committee in any way, shape, or form. But he said it just might
well be that the matters that he wanted to call to our attention with
respect to what is an impeachable offense might not be ready until

after the 20th of February.
Now, it is clear that the material that he would submit to us

would be those authorities or things that he thinks are authorities

that would construe the definition of an impeachable offense to be
limited to criminal offenses.

Mr. Jenner.
Mr. Jenner. Thank you, John.
Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen of the committee, in that

particular connection, that is, whether impeacable offenses under the
Constitution are confined to indictable offenses. I remarked to

Mr. St. Clair that apart from the decision of this committee one
way or the other on that issue, that I was confident that this com-
mittee would not permit itself to be painted into a corner of having
to find a statute or common law authority with respect to what is

a crime. And he acknowledged that, well, he could not say much
about my statement, but I took the liberty of saying that it was
my judgment that you would not permit yourself to be painted into

a corner, a technical corner in that respect. Both John and I
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Jenner, did you have your paintbrush in your

hands when you suggested that to him ?

Mr. Jenner. No, It was in my head.
Mr. Doar and I assured Mr. St. Clair that we would maintain pro-

fessional confidentiality, and we regarded this meeting as a meeting be-

tween two professionals or set for professionals. He brought two gen-
tlemen along with him. And we have maintained that to the point, may
I say, that several reporters asked me this morning, said they have
been trying to find out when the meeting was held and had not been
able to find out. We have said nothing and permitted nothing to be
said about that meeting.
We also indicated, both Mr. Doar and I, in one way or another that

it was our judgment that this committee was of the opinion that this

awesome duty that is granted to you, or as some say imposed upon you
under the Constitution is overall and pervading, and that this com-
mittee was of the opinion, and the House of Representatives was of the

opinion that it is in the nature of a supremacy over the other two
coordinate branches of the Government in conducting this inquiry. He
did not comment on that, but we thought it was well that we conveyed
to him the overall view of what we think is the overall view of this

committee as to its supremacy in conducting an impeachment inquiry.
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Now, you will notice that Judge Gesell in his ruling with respect
to the Watergate Committee did voice that possible exception when
he said it his opinion, in his opinion, it could well be that impeachment
proceedings, in his statement with regard to documents, when he re-

fused to permit the Senate Watergate Committee to have them, might
not be applicable to this committee.

]\Ir. Doar has reported to you that Mr. St. Clair, throughout the
whole meeting, and I would like to emphasize that just to touch more,
did take the position that he thought he had authority, that he could
come and cross-examine witnesses and it would be in the nature of a
trial. And both Mr. Doar and I voiced our professional opinion that
this was not ordinary, this was not litigation of the character that he
had in mind. It was an inquiiy
Mr. K.AILSBACK. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Jenner [continuing]. By this overall committee. I think that
summarizes it.

INIr. Railsback. Could I ask a question ? I just want to say to both
our counsels that I think that, personally, I have had a chance to do
some research on this, and I think Frank Polk did a memorandum
on this, and I think that St. Clair may very well be right about the
right of either the respondent to be present himself, under the 20th
century precedents, and also, in any event, to have the right to have
counsel present, and the counsel should have a right to cross-examine,
particularly if there are any open hearings, and you find when you
research tliis, at least Frank Polk did, and this seems to be the whole
history of the progression of impeachments toward giving respondents
the right to have counsel present in the form of an advereary pro-
ceedmg. And I think it would be done by a matter of legislative grace.
I do not think they have any right, but I think it has been done as a
matter of legislative grace.

Mr. HoGAN". Mr. Chairman ?

The CuAJEMAN. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. On that point, I agree with Mr. Railsback and I would

remind the staff that it would seem to me that this is a decision for
the committee to make rather than for the staff to make. And in this
same context, do I understand you to say that the committee will not
be given the material which the President's lawyers send up ?

Mr. Doar. No, you did not understand me to say that. But, you
did understand me to say that if Mr. St. Clair sends material up, that
he sends it to the inquiring staff, not to the committee.
Mr. HoGAN. But then the inquiry staff will make it available to the

cormnittee ?

]\Ir. Doar. If the committee desires it.

Mr. Hogan. Well. I would certainly think the committee would de-
sire it, rather than just get one perspective.

^Ir. Doar. Well, there is just no question about that. It would be
made available then. But, the point is that we just wanted to make
clear with Mr. St. Clair that it is our opinion that we were not saying
that he had a right to submit materials directly to the committee.
Mr. HoGAN. I see. Well, I would strongly urge, Mr. Chairman, that

the committee be given access to any material that is made available.
The Chairman. Well, I think when Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner get

through with the presentation concerning procedures with relation
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to the documents and especially the need for confidentiality, that we
will get to that point in the discussion and, at that point, I suppose
certain policies will have to be undertaken. But, this is merely a means
of transmitting and certainly we are going to rely on the staff and the

counsel who are there to search the materials out and select the ma-
terials and make these presentations to us. And whenever any member,
certainly after it has been called to the committee's attention, I am sure
that if any member is interested in looking at any particular document
and the committee adopts those rules, that is fine.

Mr. HoGAN. If I might continue, Mr. Chairman, in this same con-

nection, I am wondering in what form the report on impeachable of-

fense will come to us ? Will it come as a finished document ?

The Chairman. Why don't w^e go on with this now, with this report,

and we will get to that. We are going to discuss the question as to the
meeting which is going to take place on the brief and the presentation
on impeachable offenses.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I have a question on this ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. On what they were saying, I would like to express my

general concurrence with what Mr. Railsback said and what Mr. Hogan
said. But, my question is on another point.

Are you gentlemen going to, or have you done, any legal research or
briefing on this very important question as to whether or not we, in

fact, do have an overriding and supreme power here ? I can appreciate

there is probably very little authority on it. But, it seems to me that if

you folks do not work out an agreement, which I hope that you will,

that we are coming right down in that case to a serious constitutional

impasse, and if there is anything that can bolster either of you along
on what is certainly an undecided question, in my opinion, we should
have it on both sides of it.

Mr. DoAR. We are undertaking that type of research, and when it is

finished we will provide that to the committee.
Mr. Dennis. I appreciate that.

Mr. DoAR. And the same is true with respect to Congressman Rails-

back's question about what are the precedents with respect to proce-

dures, committee procedures. But, we are not ready at this time to give
the committee the benefit of our view on that. That is all.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
]Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, I took occasion yesterday afternoon

to spend Sl'o hours over in the Congressional Hotel getting a firsthand

concept of what this investigatory operation consisted of, and I found
it very illuminating and very impressive. And it was entirely, as far as

I was concerned, insofar as the quality of the work being done there,

the good, efficient organization, and the bipartisan nature of the under-
taking in every aspect of the entire inquiry bei]ig imdertaken by the
staff at the present time. It was entirely satisfactory and I do feel

—

I think that some of the things that we are talking about are a little

bit farther down the road. But, at the present time I am very concerned
about our completing the investigatory work and getting all of the

materials before, at least before the staff, and I think that we do liave

to move rather rapidly toward resolving a couple of questions.
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(1) This question of do we have supremacy with regard to the other

two branches of the Government

;

(2) Do we have to subordinate our authority to the jurisdiction of

the court, or just rely on the good will of the executive branch? I

firmly feel that we are supreme and that our jurisdiction is plenary.

The other thing I would like to mention is I think it would be a

terrible mistake for us to make demands and then have the confiden-

tial material made public, which could be highly prejudicial to the

executive, to the judiciary and to the litigants. And I would hope
that we could arrive soon at some kind of procedures which would
vest in our special counsel, and special counsel for the minority, and
possibly in the chairman and the ranking member, a degree of author-

ity which would permit the irrelevant, the confidential, the materials

that might be revealed but would not be relevant to our inquiry,

to be sifted out so that what would come befoi-e the committee would
be those essential things which we are after, but which can only be

prejudicial in the sense that it would have a serious impact on our
impeachment inquiry.

The Chairman. Well, I am happy to hear the gentleman express

himself in that way because this is what, frankly, counsel and staff

is endeavoring to work up. And I think they are prepared to discuss

at least preliminarily some of the suggested rules and procedures that

might be adopted which, of necessity, relate to confidentiality and
the responsibility of this committee.
Now, remember that we are not the ones who are looking to impose

this on ourselves to restrict the opportunity of members to get all of
the available material before them to make a responsible judgment.
I, for one, believe that every member has that right. However, there

is this pressing demand which is something that could easily lead to a

confrontation and just delay our work and, that is, that the continued
suggestion that the committee show that it can at least in matters
relating to ongoing cases and where the rights of individuals are

affected, that the committee is going to exercise its responsibility inso-

far as confidentiality is concerned. I think that the committee can,

and I think that is necessary that these rules of procedure and some
of these policies' as to confidentiality and responsibility be worked up,
and that is what Mr. Doar, I think, is ready to talk about now.
Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Yes, Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Mr. Doar, when he was commenting on his meeting

with Mr. St. Clair, said that they told Mr. St. Clair that they were
going to get all documents that were necessary. Now, I notice that

he did not use the word "relevant" and we went through this once
before. And what I am concerned with is who decides what is neces-

sary and what criteria they use to make that decision ?

Mr. Doar. Well, the committee and on behalf of the committee, the

counsel for the committee would decide what was necessary. And the
criteria that we use would be a matter of judgment as to the subject

areas that we were looking into, and then examine all materials with
the idea that we were looking for relevant evidence, but that we
would have to make the judgment as to whether or not it was neces-

sary, the document was necessary to the inquiry.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
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Mr. DoAR, In looking at the question of the committee's responsi-
bility with respect to the security and control of documents, what we
did was to examine the rules of the House and to examine the rules
of other committees of the House with respect to classified material
and other sensitive materials that those committees receiA^ed from the
executive branch of the Govermnent or from other sources. And based
upon that examination, plus some preliminary consultation with the
research staff, the congressional research staff, we thought that these
ideas, or those policies, were worthy of suggestion to the committee
for its consideration this morning.

First, with respect to documents that were received during the course
of the inquiry, that those documents would not be available for exami-
nation by anyone other than members of the staff and by the chairman
and the ranking minority member, until such time, if it was necessary
to hold an evidentiary hearing, until that evidentiary hearing begins.
At that time, each member of the committee would be provided with
a detailed index of every document which the staff had obtained in
the course of its inquiry. This index would be organized in a way
whereby a committee member could quickly and expeditiously identify
particular documents that he or she might be interested in examining.
Of course, the staff in the fii-st instance, in the course of the evi-

dentiary hearing, would be presenting to the committee, under such
procedures and rules that the committee decides, that is, whether the
hearing would be open or closed, a great number of these documents
which it considered, which the staff considered to be relevant to the
inquiry. And the committee members would have these documents be-
fore them, as well as a list of every document or if there were tapes,

transcripts, memorandum, anything and everything that the staff' had
received, and at some time during the hearing procedure, that the
hearing would recess for sufficient time to enable any committee mem-
ber, if he or she desired, to examine any and every document that the
staff had acquired. That the committee would have a rule or a policy
that material would not be made public except by majority vote of the
committee. If a member felt that there was a particular dociunent that
was relevant to the inquiry that the staff had not presented or recom-
mended for consideration, he or she could recommend that the staff or

that the committee consider that additional document.
We would hope that we would be careful enough and thorough

enough and objective enough so that in our presentation of the material
at the evidentiary hearings that the committee would feel in the main
that we had done a satisfactory and professional job of pruning and
separating the relevant material from the material that was not rele-

vant. But, as I say, at that time, the committee members, each of them
would have the opportunity to examine this material and all of the

material at a place desig-nated by the committee under rules that the
committee would establish with respect to copying or not copying, but
not for the purpose of removal and not for the purpose of making
public.

Mr. Brooks. Would you yield ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, sir.

Mr. Brooks. Do I understand, basically, what you are trying to do
is not to keep from the committee, you and Mr. Jenner, any of the
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documents, any of tlie tapes, any of the transcripts, anything that

you would acquire ?

Mr. DoAE. That is correct.

Mr. Brooks. But that you wanted an opportunity for the staff

and for the senior Republican and the chairman of this committee,
working with the staff, to try and get your package together and be
ready to submit for an evidentiary hearing before this committee and,

at that time, an index of all of the material that you have would be
available, and the material would be available to members on request

plus a copy of the actual documents, transcripts, as such, that you felt

were relevant and a part, and should be a part of the evidentiary
hearmg ?

Mr. DoAR. That is our suggestion.

Mr. McClory. Would you yield to me for a question ?

Mr. Brooks. That sounds all right to me. I have heard of it before.

Mr. McClory. The thing that Idnd of concerns me is this right of
any committee member to look at any material which has come into

the possession of the staff and which would appear in this index. Do
I understand that the index would include those materials which
were considered by the staff as being irrelevant, which you had
received ?

Mr. DoAR. It would include every bit of material.

INIr. JNIcClory. Well, the thing that concerns me then is this : There
could be higlily irrelevant material which a committee member could
examine and then exposed it to the public, and then it could be highly
prejudicial to a person, maybe not involved in the proceeding or
with the proceeding itself. I mean, my concept of the Senate Water-
gate hearings is that wholly extraneous material has been received on
TV and exposed to public rejoicing, I guess, but also to individual
humiliation.

Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

jNIr. McClory. And I would prefer, myself, that the staff would be
sort of in the position of the prosecutor appearing before the grand
jury where you do not give the grand jury evervi;hing, but you give
the grand jury the relevant material that you think should be pre-
sented there to proceed with the prosecution or exonerating materials
which they should have before them.
Mr. DoAR. Well, Congressman
Mr. IMcClory. Could he answer that question ?

Mr. Dennis. Well, I would like you to yield at some time. I am
not in any hurry.
Mr. McClory. I just want an answer.
Mr. Doar. Congressman McClory, that would be one way to do it,

but we do not assume that if a committee member examines any mate-
rial that we had collected, even though we had decided that it was
not necessary, or it was not necessary or it was not relevant to present-
ing it to the committee that that assumes, then, it would become re-

leased to the public right away.
Tlie committee would operate under rules that the House, we have

been advised, and other committees of the House—this committee has
handled material in that way in the past, that it was not to be a matter
for the public, and I just do not believe that this committee would
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operate irresponsibly. If there was a document that you, for example,
or anyone else felt should be brought to the attention of the committee,
and it was brought to the attention of the committee, then the way that

those documents would be made available to the i)ublic would be
through committee action.

Mr. MoClory. Do you think if you adopt that procedure that it

will not impair your ability to get cooperation from the Wliite House
and from committees of the Congress and other agencies?

Mr. DoAR. Well, we are discussing with the legislative research
staff precedence for this with the way the House Armed Services

Committee handles classified documents, and we are told that this

is the way it has been done. And I cannot answer whether or not this

would impair our ability to get documents from the Wliite House.
But, I do think that it really is not appropriate for us to decide what
members of this committee should choose to look at it if they decide

to look at it, in the last analysis, and before making a decision on
this very important matter. I just think that there is a difference

between our role here and the role of the Special Prosecutor.

Mr. McCloky. Well, I agree with that providing it does not impair
in any way our ability to get materials and get them promptly.

I yield back.

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Well, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just would like to

observe that certainly Mr. McClory has put his finger on an import-
ant point which you may recall I made here the other day, that this

committee has got to act like lawyers rather than like politicians

where this material is concerned. But, on the other hand, I agree

with Mr. Doar rather than the other thought, subject to our acting

that way, because the idea that we cannot see this material as members
of the committee until it has been winnowed out is getting pretty far,

in my judgment, and if you do not have an index even where you
can look at it and see whether there is anything else, that leaves it

entirely, completely to the staff to determine the whole scope of the

investigation, and I, for one, would be very slow to agree to that

kind of a proposition.

The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Well, I would hope there is not an implication in

the remarks of the gentleman from Illinois that he feels, that

unless the White House is satisfied as to the internal procedures in

this committee, that they are going to take it upon themselves to

withhold information.
Mr. McClory. If the gentleman would yield ?

No. I am suggesting that the decision should be the staff decision,

but I would be willing to abide by the decision of the staff as to

whether or not it involves national security, or diplomatic privacy

or something of that nature, and not leave it up to 38 members of the

committee to decide, with the realization that maybe have other moti-

vations and just to get at the salient facts in this inquiry, are going to

impel the investigation by an individual member. But, I am not

fully decided on that.

Mr. Seiberling. Well, I just think that if the committee adopts the

rule that the members will not release infonnation gained from the

staff without approval of the majority of the committee, that we are

all mature, responsible men and lawyers, and we will abide by it.
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The Chaiiuman. You know, I might remind the members, anJ I am
sure they know the rules of the House. But any material that is dis-

cussed, or presented in executive session, as you know, is not to be
disclosed unless the majority of the committee so orders.

Mr. Doar.
Mr. DoAR. Well, that summarized the recommendation.
Mr. Jenner, do you have anything to add to that ?

Mr. Jenner. 1 would only say that Mr. Doar and I and our col-

leagues have regarded the members of this committee as not only
men and women of congressional integrity but also professional in-

tegrity and responsibility, and we have proceeded on that basis and
we will continue to do so.

There is this serious background, may I suggest to you, ladies and
gentlemen, that in considering these, our efforts to construct a con-
fidentiality principle for you for your consideration, for your amend-
ment or adoption, as the case may be, that some of this material ob-
viously will be in the area of relations with foreign goverimients. It

will be very, very top secret, and it is the desire of every lady and gen-
tleman of this committee to protect with respect to that. The Wliite
House certainly will be sensitive in that connection, and will wish some
reassurance, I am sure. I am sure the Wliite House has confidence both
in the professional integrity and the congressional integrity of the
ladies and gentlemen of this committee, but we have to give the
White House something more than Mr. Doar's and my professional
assurance.

Then you have the problem to face with Mr. Jaworski in this con-
nection. He is very sensitive about interference with fair trail after
he returns these indictments, as he has said he plans to do the latter

part of this month. So, in dealing with Mr. St. Clair, representing the
Wliite House, and in dealing with Mr. Jaworski representing the De-
partment of Justice and the Special Prosecutor, Mr. Doar and I
have the practical problem that we would like to get the material with-
out being faced with a confrontation that several of you ladies and
gentleman have properly raised.

The decision as to how we can accommodate these conflicting in-

terests is for your wise judgment, and we are presenting to you the
pros and cons so we can reach an accommodation here that will assure
them, will enable you fairly to obtain materials that we think are
necessary and that you think are necessary for this investigation, and
still protect the country against indiscriminate and unwise disclosure
before the material is actually presented to you.
Mr. Eailsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Eailsback.
Mr. Eailsback. Mr. Chairman, I am wondering if they are present-

ing this to us—I take it they are presenting this to us for a future
action, when we are in committee? I mean, I do not think we can
resolve it today.
The Chairman. No. These are matters that we thought we would

discuss now and then formally present to the committee for adoption.
I think they are similar to some of the policies, as you laiow, that
are adopted as a matter of fact and followed during the Ford con-
firmation proceedings. And I think that to the credit of the committee,
I think there were no leaks, and the members saw only the evidence.
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and the only restriction really was the restriction that was placed
on us by the FBI, when we were restricted to a panel. Prior to that,
just the chairman and the ranking minority member. But
Mr. Railsback. I just want to say, Mr. Chairman, that I, for one,

like their prosposal. I think the idea of keeping it very, very secret
until it is ready to be presented is good. But then I also like the idea
of giving us an index. I think every member of the committee at
some late point anyway, has to have access to all of the evidence.
And the other thing is, I would like to suggest that you also consider
what happens when the evidence is presented and what evidence
should eventually be made public, because even though Leon Jawor-
ski may not like it, if certain evidence becomes public, in my opinion
at some stage of our proceedings, the evidence on which we either
exonerate or impeach is going to have to be made public. Otherwise,
the public is not going to buy what we are doing.
Mr. DoAR. Well, under that, Congressman Railsback, that would

be a decision of the committee by majority vote.

Mr. Eailsback. Yes.

_
The Chairman, As Mr. Doar has suggested, and I think it would be

similar to the actual present rule of the House, that the matters that
had been presented, which are evidentiary during an executive ses-

sion, are matters that the committee then feels they ought to disclose,

and I feel that that is a committee action.

Mr. Railsback. Yes. That should be a priority over anything.
Mr. Mayne. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. I certainly appreciate the high confidence which both

of our counsel have expressed in the integrity of each and every
member of the committee, and I certainly will strive on my part to
deserve that confidence. Well, I thought that Mr. Doar was making or
placing a somewhat unwarranted reliance on what he said the record
of other committees has been in handling highly sensitive material.

It is my impression that there have been some rather outrageous leaks
from other committees of the House and Senate, and I feel that we,
the members of the committee, of course, appreciate that staff cannot
impose any restrictions on us, but I feel that we as a committee should
make very sure that there are not such leaks. We should, like Ceasar's
wife, be sure that we have restricted ourselves and not leave it to

staff. But. I think that we should have rules that would prevent any
indiscriminate revealing of sensitive and irrelevant information.
Thank you.
Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman ?

Ms. Jordan, IMr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. I want to make sure I understand this proposal. As

a matter of first instance, you and Mr. Hutchinson will see all mate-
rial ; is that correct ?

The Chairman. All of the material will be made available to us.

Ms, Jordan, You will see it as a matter of first instance, you and
staff?

The Chairman, That is correct.

Ms, Jordan. The two of you—and when we say "staff" are we talk-

ing about Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner
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The Chairman. That's ri^ht.

Ms. Jordan [continuing]. Or are we taking about the task forces?

Are we talking about the two of them ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Ms. Jordan. And the two of you ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Ms. Jordan. Seeing all of the material as a matter of first instance ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Ms. Jordan. And we are relying on Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner to

see that there are not leaks from the staff of that information ?

The Chairman. Absolutely.

Ms. Jordan. All right.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Latta. INIr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. I will yield.

Mr. Dennis. No ; I yield to the gentleman.
The Chairiman. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. ]\fr. Chairman, in listening to this discussion, I cannot
help but raise the question that maybe I should not even raise and take

the time to raise now, but I was appalled by the statement made by
Mr. Jpvworski on nationwide television concerning one of his witnesses,

and I was wondering whether or not this committee has put any limi-

tations on the activities of the staff in making such statements or sim-

ilar statements nationwide, which might hamper the activities of the

committee itself? I do not think I have to allude to the crazy, ridicu-

lous statement that was made by Mr. Jaworski.
The Chairman. I think Mr. Latta is referring to the statement re-

garding the credibility of one of the witnesses.

Mr. Latta. That is correct.

The Chairman. Our staff has not made any such statements. And,
as a matter of fact, I was prepared to, if the question had been asked

of me on "Issues and Answers" when I appeared, that we are not to

in any way comment on the credibility of the evidence or the reputa-

tion of any witness that may appear before this committee.
Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, was it my understanding that the staff,

the counsel, was not going to have any press conferences except in your
presence and that is the policy that we have adopted ?

The Chairman. That is the policy that we have adopted.

]Mr. Jenner. We have voluntarily adopted that also, sir. We have
voluntarily adopted that in any event.

Mr. Butler. A moment too late, perhaps, but we have got it now.
Thank vou.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. I just want to understand the detail. At the time there

is any public hearing, and you gentleman at that time have decided
what documents you are going to introduce and so forth, at that time
we get the index of all documents you have received up until then ; is

that correct? And I assume then that if we have a later hearing, and
you have got some more documents, you would update the index ; is

that correct ?
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Mr. Jenner. That is correct.

Mr. DoAR. Right.
Mr. Dennis. At each time those that you propose to present, we also

get copies of the document itself ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Dennis. Is that correct ?

Mr. Jenner. Yes.
Mr. Dennis. All right, now, on a more general question, is it pos-

sible—of course, we all have certain thoughts, I suppose—but is it pos-
sible at this time to give the committee any more specific idea in a
general way, if that is not a conflict of statement, as to what you are
going to try to get from the White House in the way of documents ?

What subject matter, what does it touch?
Mr. Doar. Well, in a general way we asked the White House for the

material that he had turned over to Mr. Jaworski. And the second
thing we asked Mr. St. Clair if he could give us is the indices of how
certain files were maintained. For example, we asked him if he could
give us the indices to the "Plumbers" file and to certain files of some
of the key officials of the "\Yhite House, such as Mr. Haldeman, Mr.
Ehrlichman, and Mr. Colson. AVith respect to the Department of Jus-
tice, we spoke about the ITT file. That was the nature of the general
type of request we made.
Mr. Dennis. What has been turned over to Jaworski ?

Mr. Doar. Well, there are a number, seven tapes, which have been
turned over plus the memorandum and transcripts of the tapes, and
then there have been 700 other documents turned over to Mr. Cox and
Mr. Jaworski, some of which are logs of telephone records of various
individuals in the "Wliite House. And then Mr. Jaworski has had a
lawyer over in the White House going through some of the relevant
or necessary, pertinent files, and if there is a document that they find

necesssary to their investigation, then it is photographed and turned
over. Specifically, what those documents are we do not laiow.

Mr. Dennis. Thank you.
Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastenmeter. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier, If I may return to the immediate future and I

address the question both to the Chair and Mr. Doar, the previous
time schedule, I understood, we were to have a hearing on or about
February 20 for the purpose of, or dealing with the question of what
is an impeachable offense, and that March 1 there would be a general

report from counsel. My question is : Is there such a hearing to take
place on February 20, and is our staff, Mr. Woods and others, bearing
the burden of the presentation on the question of what is an impeach-
able offense ?

The Chairman. Yes. It is the intention to go forward with that for

February 20. And it is going to be a presentation by the committee
counsel. The one question that I did want to discuss for the moment
was whether or not February 20, which is Wednesday and this brief ^

is being prepared, which I am sure will be ready by then for distribu-

tion on that day is that correct, Mr. Doar?
Mr. Doar. That is correct.

1 Spp "Apppnrllx II.—Constitutional Gronnrls for Presidential Impeachment. Report By
The Staff of The Impeachment Inquiry," In book III, "Impeachment Inquiry".
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The Chairman. Whether or not it might not be better for the mem-
bers to have the brief in their hands on the 20tli and be able to go over

it and digest it a bit for the next day, and have the presentation the

next day so that the members might be in a position to inquire, I

think, more intelligently and have the benefit of the brief because

otherwise it is going to be a presentation without having had the op-

portunity to first examine and study the brief. It is a pretty intensive

piece of work and a pretty good study to have before you, I think,

before you actually do get the presentation. And I thought that it

might be better that way.
Mr. ICastexmeier. Unless. ]Mr. Chairman, the brief might be avail-

able late on the 19th.

]\[r. Doar. I do not think it will be.

The Chairman. Well, it is not. This is the problem we are con-

fronted with, and very frankly we have just, if I may say so again,

and I would urge every committee member to visit where the com-
mittee stafi and the committee counsel is working and see the operation

and how late thev operate. They are doing Avhat I consider to be a

tremendous job under real stress and strain in order to try and meet
tlie deadline. And I am not talking about 5, 6, or 7 o'clock. I am talking

about 10, 11 o'clock, every night, Saturdays and Sundays included.

Mr. McClory. If the chairman will yield, I would say that I left

there last night at 7 o'clock and, as far as I could see, almost the entire

staff was still on hand, on the job w4ien I left.

The Chairman. Well, Mr. Doar left me after 9 and went back Avith

Mr. Zeifman and the others, and we had not even had dinner yet. And
I think that they really deserve all of the confidence that they have
really shown they deserve because they are really doing a tremendous
job. And I think we have got to recognize this.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
]SIr. Dennis. As far as I am concerned, I think your suggestion is

an imminently sensible one. I would value such an opportunity to

look at the brief myself.
The Chairman. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. I want to get back to what Mr. Doar and ]\Ir. Jonner

said about the intentions or the apparent intentions of Mr. St. Clair.

And I am not certain they indicated what exactly would be his inten-

tion, that he first volunteered to offer some information about the
nature of an impeachable offense, and then did I understand correctly

that he apparently is holding that a criminal offense is required, and
could we anticipate that we would, after your brief has been made
public that he would come with a counterbrief, indicating that a
criminal offense would, in fact, be required.
Mr. Doar. Well, you are correct except tlie use of the word ''counter-

brief". I mean he would come with something to the staff that would
develop his analysis of the historical materials and his reasons why he
thinks that an impeachable offense should be confined to criminal
offenses. So, j^ou could anticipate, whether we get that from him before
Monday or not, it is just up to him.
Mr. Drinan. Well, I personally think it would be very unfoi-tunate

if the White House took that particular approach and really con-

41-OlS—75—pt. 1 7
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taminated tlie atmospliere and made tliat a "roat issue in the American
mind. I would feel that the majority of this committee, the A'ast

majority, on the basis of the evidence that I have seen would say that a

crime, a felony, is not required for an impeachable offense. And I
would want to have tlie brief and have tlie committee make that clear

1)0fore any arg:umejit from the highest level come out indicatino; tliat

wo are all wrong.
M)-. TToGAK. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Edwards.
]\Tr. Edavards. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar pointed out to the committee that the Special Pi'osecutor

has a man over at the White House examining documents a)id in some
cases he is getting co})ios. Why would not this committee do the same
thing ?

Mr. Doar. We suggested that and Mr. St. Clair did not reject it.

yfv. Edwards. He did not obiect?

Mr. Doar. He did not reject it.

^Iv. Edwards. I see. Thank you.

Mr. Doar. As a matter of fact, he said if certain members of the

committee—he said certain m.embers of the committee staff might
have to secure security clearances aiid we discussed the procedure
whereby that could be considered.

^fr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Tliornton.

Mr. Thornton. Pursuing that for a moment, while I am inclined to

assume that all security protections will be taken within the staff. I
would think it very important with regard to any materials that do
affect national security and so forth, that a clearance be required
before staff members themselves have access to that material.

Mr. Doar. And we would intend to do that. We will adopt those

procedures.
Mr. Hogan. ]\rr. Chairman?
]\Ir. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Ml'. Dennis. ]Mr. Chairman, in brief reference to the remarks of my

friend from Massachusetts, I think historically we might point out
that Mr. St. Clair's presumed position was that of Luther Martin,
when he represented Justice Chase. It was that of William F. Evers
when he represented President Andrew Johnson and that of Simon
Rifkin, when he represented Justice William O. Douglas a couple of

years ago before this committee. So, the matter is not without some
rather respectable authority on the other side. And while I would not

prejudge the law. it would certainly shock me that we could not have
both sides of the matter presented to this committee.

Mr. Seiberling. IMr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.

^Ir. Seiberling. We have had a verv wortlnvhile discussion here, but
I wondered whether "Sir. Doar had finished briefing us on all of the

matters that he had planned to brief us on and, if not, I would suggest
that tlie hour is getting late and we ought to get on with it.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. I do have two other matters I would like to brief the

committee on.
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The first is, I would like to report that the Senate select eomniittee

met on the 7tli of February and unanimously voted to provide this

committee everj-thing that they have in their files.

That probably is not news to the committee, but they also agreed to

provide duplicate copies of their computer tapes, and tliey have put

most of the material on tapes there, and it is a far easier thing for

us to process that material if we have a duplicate copy of the tape

than if we have just printouts of certain parts of the tapes. So. arrange-

ments are now being made to get those tapes. They will be kept in a

secure safe in our offices and arrangements will be made through the

computer people at the Library of Congress to run sections of those

tapes or particular printouts of those tapes whenever we tliink they

are necessary to our inquiry.

Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield for a second?

Mr. DoAK. Yes.
Mr. McClory. Did the tapes include material that the staff' has:

unearthed in addition to the material that has been presented to the
full committee at the hearings ?

]Mr. DoAR. Oh, yes, much, much material. I understand that
INIr. Jaworski also has these tapes and that they have followed a proce-
dure of, in some instances, adding to the tapes.

The other matter that I would like to report to you is that on the

8th of February, members of the inquiry staff met with members of the
Joint Committee on Internal Revenue Taxation witli respect to the
investigation that that committee is conducting with respect to the
President's income tax returns.

And our staff members were given a general breakdown of what
that staff was doing, where they were conducting field investigations.

We were told that they were conducting field investigations in San
Clemente and also in Xew York, and that they had obtained a file

copy of certain papers of the President's accountant and that we had
inquired whether material could be made available to us during the
process of their investigation. And a staff member indicated,
Mv. Woodworth indicated, that he did not think he could make much
information available to us until they released the report to the com-
mittee, which he expected would be toward the end of February. But,
he said he would be glad to talk with our attorneys about specific

matters and that was the extent of it.

Mr. Brooks. Pardon me. would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Chairman, I would hope and I suggested it earlier, that we
could have somebody out of o9 lawyers, that kind of sits with them as

close as possible so that we have as much rapport with that committee
as Ave can.

]\Ir. DoAR, Congressman ?

Mr. Brooks. Somebody that could assign

The CiiAiRMAx. We have assigned someone to that.

Mr. Brooks. Who?
Mr. DoAR. Two people. ]Mr. McKeithen and !Mr. Eeum.
]Nrr. Brooks. They meet with tliat staff on a steady, continuous

basis?

Mr. DoAR. That is right.

Mr. Brooks. Well, this is what I wanted to he sure we have because
I do not want them just to turn that over to you, to our staff at the
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last minute. I want a couple of boys wlio have been in there checking
it out.

The Chairman. Tliat has been going on.

Mr. Brooks. Right.
The Chairmax. Are you finished Mr. Doar ?

Mr. Doar. The last matter I would like to report to the committee
is that we are beginning to conduct interviews, and two lawyers will

be going to Los Angeles to confer with the district attorney of Los
Angeles County. And, as a matter of fact, tliey are on their way now,
and I just wanted the committee to know that as requests come up
for conducting of interviews with Mr. Jenner and myself, we consider
whether or not it is appropriate for that to be done, and if we think
it is, we authorize it.

The Chairman, Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN". A quick question in that regard.
Can we on the minority side, assume that every time an interview is

conducted, there will be a minority attorney present?
Mr. Doar. No, you cannot. You can assume that the general rule

will be that we would make every attempt, but I think it is unwise
and I believe Mr. Jenner—he can speak for himself—thinks it unwise
if we make it an automatic rule. We would hope that in the course of
this investigation that all members of this committee would have
enough confidence in the members of the staff that they would not feel

that that should be an automatic requirement.
I would like to explain to the Congressman why I think that is

necessary. Sometimes it is a good idea to have a supervisor go with a
younger member of the staiT to conduct an interview. It is not usually
a good idea to have three people at an interview. And if a supervisor
goes, then he will either go with one lawyer or it may be two, one of
them from the minority and one from the majority, and every time
that we think there could be any problem with that we will make
every attempt to take that into consideration carefully. But, we just

do not want, I personally do not think it is wise to make an automatic
rule about that.

Mr. HoGAN. Well, I most strenuously disagree with you, I could not
disagree with you more and I would think the minority ought to dis-

cuss whether or not that is a right we would insist on.

The Chairman, Well, I think that the committee is well aware of
this, I think the committee is trying to work through a unified staff

and unless the committee deems otherwise, we will leave it to the

counsel to make that kind of decision. If the committee were to decide
otherwise, then we would take Mr, Hogan's suggestion,

Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman, may I continue ?

The Chairman. Are you going to continue on the same vein ?

Mr. Hogan. I want to ask about the form of the report. I have been
trying to seek recognition for the last hour.

The Chairman. You have been given recognition four or five times.

Mr. HoGAN. Are we operating on the 5-minute rule, Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. No, we are not operating on the 5-minute nde. This
is merely a briefing session.

Mr. HoGAN, May I be recognized to ask a question ?

The Chairman. Go ahead and ask the question.
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Mr. HoGAN. I am concerned about the form of the brief. Now, as

Mr. Dennis observed, tlie precedents are subject to different interpre-

tations. Now, 1 am concerned, are we going to get one interpretation,

or are we going to get botli interpretations, and will this brief be pub-
lished and made available to the public'^ And if so, will there be an
opportunity for separate and dissenting views ? We keep saying it is

not an advereary proceeding, but in effect, it is an adversary proceed-

ing, and both points of view, both perspectives, should be brought to

the attention of the committee. And 1 am concerned that we might

—

everyone seems to be going along in a friendly, palsy-walsy way. I

would like to see more of an adversary element so that we could be as-

sured of getting both perspectives on every issue.

]Mr. DoAR. AVell, we are going to do our best to file as objective and
as responsible a legal brief as we can. And to summarize, and to set

forth the historical precedents that tend to point one way or the other,

where there is a matter, or if there is a dispute about it.

I would assume that once the brief were filed with the conmiittee

that it would become a public document. I would assume that—I do
not really know what the rules of the committee would be with respect

to minority views, but 1 guess that would be up to the connnittee.

Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield ?

]Mr. HoGAX. Will the staff' not make any conclusions on the basis of

this material ?

Mr. DoAR. No, we will make a conclusion. We will give you our

legal judgment.
Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. HoGAN. That is the part that I do not like. Yes, I yield.

Mr. McClory. The brief will not give an opinion with regard to

specific charges that are i^ending in this inquiry i

Mr. DoAR. No, absolutely not.

Mr. McClory. Furthermore, the brief of counsel is going to be a

guide for this committee and I, as a member and I would imagine other

members are going to be governed by the brief or their own research

or whatever legal information they want to select as a basis for acting,

proceeding further in this hearing. Is that right?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
]\Ir. Dennis. I would like to express the hope myself that the brief

will be a good disquisition on the law setting forth the matters on
both sides and perhaps more of a memorandum for our information

than the highly partisan kind of a brief which I would file, if I were
trying to prove one side or the other. I do not want to get in a position

here where I have to argue with my own counsel or something like

that.

The Chairman. Well, I think what the committee has sought to do
in retaining counsel, highly professional objective counsel, is to seek

counsel's recommenclations or opinions after they have researched the

matters that seem to be confounding people for a couple of hundred
years. Now, if the committee is not disposed to receive this, the com-
mittee may do or each individual may do as he sees fit, and make his

own judgment. But it would appear to me tliat what is attempted to
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be done liere is to present the efforts of tremendous research and
analysis of the precedents, the cases, and whatever lesal historians

have pnt fortli which will help the committee in its deliberations in-

sofar as the question of impeachable offenses are concerned.
Mv. Sarbaxes. ]Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Now, if that is not somethins: that the committee

member finds to his appetite, he may discard it and the committee will

ultimately have to make a judgment. •'<

Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman ?

The Ciiair:max. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbaxes. Before this meetino; ends, I want to commend counsel

for a theme that I think has been reflected throutrh the report this

morninfr. by both Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner, for their concern, as I
perceive it to pi'eserve and protect the importance of the members of

the committee rendering their own judo-ment with respect to the issues

that are involved in this matter. I think that is very important, and
I think the report you have ^-iven in terms of vour discussion, with
Mr. St. Clair and your view as to the role of the committee in this

investi«[ration. your view as to the nature of what the nroceed-

inff is, and also the procedure you have put forth on the availability

of materials; all is premised on protectinc: and makino- certain

that the members of the committee have the ultimate judgment in this

matter, which I think is exactly where we are in it. In the end. the 38

of us must render a judirment. and I think you have clearly recojinized

that. I disa^rree strono-ly with anv su2:o:estion that staff should have
availal)le to it materials which in the last analysis would not be avail-

able to members of the committee.
I am prepared to follow a procedure that limits us in a time fi-ame

and not a procedure which, in the end, would require me to make a

judfi-ment on the basis of less information than, for example, had been

available to staff. And I think the proposal von have recosrnizes that.

It shields that for up to a point and bevond that makes it available.

But it also suffiTP^^s protective restrictions at that point. And T wanted
to make that comment because I think it is important. T think the po-

sition of the members of the committee has to be protected by counsel.

The CiTAiR^rAX. Mr. Butlei-.

INfr. Btjtt.ef. On the nuestion of procedure. Counsel, your people

are ^oino; to interview someone in Los Ansreles, I believe you men-
tioned. A report will be made of that interview, either an affidavit

or a report bv counsel. Does that then become a document which will

be in this index which will be available to us, or in what way will

we be made aware of the fact of that interview and in what way will we
be o-iven access to it?

Mr. Doar. Well, it would be a part of this index. Bnt in addition

to that, in the course of the status reports to the extent that the mate-
rial would be. we felt, pertinent and should be brought to the com-
mittee's attention, we woidd brinjr it rioht alone; at that time.

Mr. Bftler. All riq-ht. One more question :

Earlier in an earlier briefing when you dealt with the questions of

subpena. depositions, and interroiratories. T had the impression, if

I remember correctly, that vou were o-oinc: to prepare a set of rules

wberebv the depositions woidd be taken and submit+^od to the com-
mittee for our appraisal. What is the status of that ?
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Mr. DoAK. They are not ready yet. These procedures are not reacTy.

We are working on those.

Mr. Butler. Thank you.

Mr. Mezvixsky. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chaikmax. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvixsky. I just wanted to be clear now where we stand

today with Mr. St. Clair. He has met with you; you have had your
initial meeting. He has given an indication of the question of conhden-
tiality and so forth. Where do we go from here i

jNlr. DoAR. Well, we would hope that we would do two things:

First, on the basis of this discussion this morning, ^Ir. Jenner and I

would prepare and submit to the chairman, with our recommendation
that it be circulated to the committee for its examination, these pro-

cedures that we have discussed with the hope that these could be

adopted by the committee next week.
Second is that we would prepare a list of materials that we wanted

to get from Mr. St. Clair and pursue ways in which we could start to

examine the material.

jNlr. Mezvixsky. Will you, in regard to the brief, I gather you have
made it clear to him that you would hope that his arguments would be
presented prior to the submission of the brief to the committee rather

tlian after the submission of it "i

Mr. DoAR. No. He said that he wondered if he could bring some
material to our attention, and we said, of course. And he said he
thought he could get them to us by the end of his week, and we said,

fine. And then when I talked to him about another matter later in

the week, he said that it might be that I was too optimistic about when
that brief would be linished, and I might want to take advantage of
submitting what he called a reply brief. And I then said, well, you
understand that this is not an adversary proceeding and that you
should submit it to the staff. And I pointed out that, of course, any
member of the committee that wanted it, it would be made available

to them.
]Mr. jSIezvix^sky. OK.
Mr. Brooks. ]Mr. Mezvinsky, will you yield ?

Mr. ]Mezvix'Sky. Yes, I will be glad to yield to the gentleman from
Texas,

Mr. Brooks. In relation to that same point, was it your impression

that Mr. St. Clair and Leon Jaworski thought that your proposal,

as we discussed today, suggestions as to security and treatment of those

papers, did that meet with their agreement 'i

Mr. DoAR. Congressman Brooks, we did not discuss this with either

of them.
Mr. Brooks. All right.

]\Ir. DoAR. We did not discuss it with either of them.
Mr. Jenner. We told them we are going to work something out

and present it to you, ladies and gentlemen, and when you had, in

turn, advised us so we could speak responsibly for you, then we would
present the confidentiality proposal.

The Chairman^ Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberlix'g. There was a report on the television last night, that

the White House and Mr. St. Clair, or someone over there had ad-
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vised the committee staff that the White House could not legall}^ give

any material to the committee that was in the hands of Mr. Jaworski
for purposes of the grand jury. And I wonder if you could commeiit
on the truth or lack of it of that statement?
Mr. Jexxer. Well, for mj-self , and I am sure Mr. Doar, we can tell

each one of you ladies and gentlemen that that was never said in any
respect, either directly, inferentially, at all, during the course of the
meeting of Mr. Doar and me. It just was not, was not even in the
atmosphere. And where that came from or who was casting that out
in order to get a reaction from Mr. Doar and me, or from one or more
of you ladies and gentlemen, I do not know. But the fact is that did
not occur.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Well, if an^'one at the White House has made a

statement, then it was not communicated to the staff ?

]Mr. Jexxer. It was not.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Thank you.

Mr. Doar. But I also say that in talking to Mr. St. Clair this morn-
ing, although he did not refer to this, he said to me that he has made
no statements.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Thank you.

The Chairmax. I would hope that we recognize this; that we do
not get in a bind, however, with both the prosecutor and Mr. St. Clair
regarding the question of confidentiality; that we impose this upon
ourselves. We do not have to spell it out so that they in turn may say,

no, we are not in accord with your rules. There is no reason why we
should wait for them to agree to Avhat our rules of confidentiality are. I

think that this committee having adopted certain rules, certain pro-
cedures, imposes this restriction on itself.

There is a motion to adjourn.
All those in favor say aye ?

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. The committee is now adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 12:07 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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The CHAiRMAisr. This meeting will come to order.

I want to amiounce that ]Mr. Waldie, the gentleman from California,

has specifically asked me to announce that he tried to return to Wash-
ington, but due to the snowstorm in Chicago, is unable to attend this

morning's meeting.
Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, is this a meeting of the Judiciary

Committee as differentiated from a hearing?
The Chairman. This is a meeting.
Mr. Hutchinson. Would the chairman please inform the committee

what the rules of the House provide with regard to television coverage
of a meeting of the committee ?

The Chair3ian. The Chair is prepared to advise the gentleman from
Michigan that there is a distinction between a hearing and a meeting,
and the rules as they relate to permission to allow television broad-
casting and other media other than the written press in attendance at

a meeting. And according to rule 11 on page 398, clause 33A, it is the

purpose of this clause to provide a meeting in conformit}' with accept-

able standards of dignity, propriety, and decorum, that committee

(101)
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hearings that are open to tlie pnblic may be covered by television

broadcast, radio broadcast, ancl still photography, or by any such
methods of coverage. That relates, of course, to a hearing. In 33(e) :

Whenever any hearing conductecl by any committee of the House is open to tlie

public, that committee may permit by a majority vote of the committee, that
hearing to be covered in whole or in part by television broadcast, radi(j broad-
cast, and still photography, or by any of such methods of coverage, but only such
written rules as the committee may adopt in accordance with the purposes,
provisions, and requirements of this clause.

And 33(d) states that:

The coverage of committee hearings by television broadcast, radio )n-oadcast,
or still ithotography is a ju'ivilege made available by the House and may be
permitted and conducted only in strict conformity with the purposes, provisions
and requirements of this clause.

That is, of course as the rule.s apply to hearings.
But in section 376, clause 26(f), where Ave discussed the question of

meetings

:

Each meeting for the transaction of business, including the markup of legisla-
tion of each standing committee or subcommittee thereof shall be open to the
public except when the committeee or subcommittee in open session, and with a
quorum present, determines by a rollcall vote that all or part of the remainder
of the meeting shall be closed to the public

;
provided, however, that no person

other tlian Members of the committee and such congressional staff, such depart-
mental representatives as they may authorize, shall be present at any business
or markup session which has been closed to the public.

This paragraph docs not apply to open commrLtee hearings. If,

therefore, in my judgment and in accordance with the Parliamen-
tarian's rulings in these areas, distinguishes hearings from meetings
and provides, therefore, that whereas hearings may be open to the
public, and television and other media, broadcasting media, recorders,
et cetera, may be permitted; nonetheless, they are prohibited at the
meetings.

Mr. HuTciTixsox. Well. Mr. Chairman, in A'iew of the interpretation
of the Chair, with which I agree, and in view of the fact that wo Avant

to protect the procedures of this committee against objections made on
the floor of the House, in that this committee may not be complying
with the rules of the House, I must respectfidh^ object. INTr. Chairman,
to the presence of televisioii coverage at this meeting of the committee.
The CiTAiRiMAX. Well, objection being heard, then I Avould request

that television and other broadcasting media, tape recorders, any
polygraphic material be remoA^ecl from the room, and only the written
media remain.
Mr. Seibekling. Mr. Chairman, parliamentary inquiry.

The Chairmax. The gentleman will state it.

Mr. Seieerlix'g. Do I understand the chairman to l)e ruling that
there is no Avay this committee can authorize the presence of television

cameras at this meeting?
The CiiAiR:\rAX". The committee is under a strict prohibition if it is

to conform with the rules of the House and the committee cannot over-

lide the rules of the House. And if Ave were to do so any of the actions

that Avould be taken at this committee meeting would be invalidated.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Well, I must say I am learning something.
Mr. Daxielsox". Mr. Chairman, I respectfully moA-e that we resolve

ourselves into a coiiA^ention of the Avhole committee for the purpose of
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discussing the rules for the impeachment inquiry staff, and the pro-

cedures for handling the impeachment inquiry material.

Mr. Drinan. I move to second.

]\Ir. Danielson. That this be a convention rather than a meeting at

this time?
Mr. Hutchinson. Well, JMr. Chairman, I would raise parliamentary

inquiry. I think that is wholly unprecedented. I do not tliink

Mr. Danielson. There are very few precedents, Mr. Chairman
Ms. Holtzman. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman. It is my

recollection that at the meeting of this committee, at which we voted
for the confirmation of Mr. Ford for Vice President that television

cameras were present and that no objection was made. And I would
think that in view of that

The Chairman. I regret that the Chair has already ruled. The Chair
is ruling in compliance with the rules of the Plouse, which the Chair
is in no position to interpret, other than in the manner in which the
House ndes provide.

]\Ir. Brooks. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman.
"Woidd not that ruling be set aside and not pertinent if this commit-

lee moved that it be a briefing session, a hearing on the status of
the inquiry to be submitted by Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner, and even
Mr. Garrison?
The Chairman. In i-eply to the gentleman's inquiry that could be

the case, but we would be unable to transact the business that is neces-

sary to be transacted for the committee at tliis poiiit.

Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. We could not transact any business at a hearing.
"We can only transact business which is the business of this Committee
on the Judiciary at a meeting and this was a formal meeting which
was called for the purpose of transacting business.

Mr. Brooks. Can we not recess this meeting which has been sched-
uled until 11 :45, and in the meantime have a briefing session and
talk about it publicly, and then have the session which has been duly
notified, notification having been duly given to all the members, et
cetera, in advance of this meeting, have this meeting recessed until
1 1 :45, and take a vote on anything we need to vote on at 11 :45, between
11 :45 and 12 noon, when I understand that Mr. Hutchinson plans to
depart.

Mr. Hutchinson. Where did you get any idea that I planned to
dejiart at noon ?

M]\ Brooks. The chairman told me thiat you liad a plane leavina', and
that that is Avhy v^'e were meeting early at 10 o'clock instead of 10:.30.

But, I do not know.
The Chairman. Well, the Chair would like to state that the gentle-

man from Michigan does have a commitment and has requested, and I
do want to accommodate him. but I am sure that the gentleman from
Michigan is free to make up his own mind as to whether he is going
to stay or not.

Mr. Hutchinson. Well, I can stay a little bit after 12 noon, under-
stand. I liaA^e a plane that leaves at 2 :30.

The Chatrjman. I believe the Chair has already ruled. However, in
whatever transpires from here on in, though, it is the instruction of
the Chair to the television media and to the broadcast media and the.
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others in the written press that for the conduct of the rest of the meet-
ing, regretfully I must inform them that we would be in violation of
the rules of the House, and with objection having been heard
Mr. Danielsox. Mr. Chairman, parliamentary inquiry?
"Was the motion I stated a minute ago recognized by the Chair ?

The Chairman. I recognized the motion that was made for conven-
tion. That would not be a meeting.
Mr. Daxielson. Well, then—
The Chairman. And there is no such—that would—that would not

contemplate any kind of a meeting where we would be able to transact
the kind of business that we would have to transact. There is no such
provision in the rules of the House.

jMr. Danielson. On my parliamentary inquiry, would not my motion
constitute, in effect, a motion to recess this meeting in order that we
can discuss the items which have been laid before us on the table ? The
House in its normal procedures resolves themselves frequently into

a Committee of the Whole of the House in order to relax parliamentary
inquiries.

The Chair]man. The objection, however, had already been heard
and already been ruled on, and I believe that that comes a little too
late.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Thornton. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Thornton.
]\lr. Thornton. Did I not understand the Chair to rule that under

the rules of the House this was a meeting, and that further television

and media coverage by live television was in violation of the rules of
the House ?

The Chairman. That is correct and I have so instructed the media,
and I requested them
Mr. Thornton. I would suggest that the media is continuing to ob-

serve the proceedings.
The Chairman. Well, I would respectfully request that the media

cease from televising the proceedings and in view of the ruling of
the House, and that objection has been heard.

JMr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman? Mr. Chairman, I withdraw my
motion that we resolve ourselves into a convention and I do hereby
move tliat we recess the meeting until 11 :45 a.m. today.
Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr, Hungate.
Ml-. Hungate. Parliamentary inquiry. Do I luiderstand the rules

of the House provide that this would be a public meeting, that the

written press would be present ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. Hungate. Thank you.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. I suppose all of us would enjoy having our sessions

televised. I have been a strong proponent of not televising committee
meetings, but sessions of the House of Representatives, which is under
consideration. It seems to me what we are dealing with here now is a

rule of the House and notwithstandinir what our individual desires
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might be, it seems to me that uppermost in our minds should be the

expeditious resokition of this entire subject. It seems to me that any-

other action than that which you have suggested, Mr. Chairman,
is going to be a delaying action and I am going to be opposed to it.

I do not want us to recess. I want us to act promptly on the business

before us this morning and proceed with the impeachment inquiry in

tlie orderly way, in accordance with the orders and the rules of the

House. [Applause.]
Mr. Daxielsox. iSIr. Chairman, I withdraw my motion, thank you.

The Chairmax. There will be no demonstration from the audience.

The gentleman has withdrawn his motion to recess.

Mr. Doar, will you—how about those lights ?

Mr. HuTCinxsoN. Turn off those glaring lights, please ?

The Chairman. Yes, The equipment is being removed. "Will you
give them an opportunity to remove the equipment.

[Short pause, during which time all TV cameras, still cameras, and
recording devices were removed from the hearing room.]
The Chairman. Mr. Doar, will you proceed now with your status

report ?

Mr. Doar. Good morning, members of the committee. Before making
my status report, I would like to introduce to the Judiciary Committee
the lawyer seated at my far right, Ms. Hillary Eodham, who is a

member of the impeachment inquiry staff.

Our inquiry is going forward with respect to the analysis of facts

in the public record, and the records of other committees of this Con-
gress, in an expeditious way. "We hope very much that we will be
able to, on March 1, as I agreed, to present to the committee a de-

tailed status report on the factual investigation, where we are, what
remains to be done, and how we propose to go about doing it.

The areas of investigation that we are concentrating on continue
to be the same areas that we indicated to you on Febi'uary 5. More
work is being done. Individual lawj^ers are beginning to prepare and
send forward for review resumes of the facts and chronologies of the
particular events or activities that are the subject matter of this

inquiry. We have received all of the materials, or substantially all

of the materials that were in the possession of the Senate Water-
gate Committee. Included in those materials are three computer tapes
that the Senate select committee used in the preparation of their
hearings. We will work out an arrangement whereby we can obtain
computer printouts from those tapes of particular matters that are
of interest to us, and that procedure will begin the first of next week.
We are preparing lists of witnesses that we wish to interview and

assigning law^^ers to begin to get ready to make contacts with those
witnesses. Some of the interviews have already begun, a few, and we
would expect that by the middle of next week that this interviewing of
witnesses would be going forward in a fairly major scale.

Last night at 5, Mr. Jaworski furnished to the judiciaiy, furnished
to me for the Judiciary Committee, a detailed list of all documents,
tapes, memorandum, logs, and so forth, which he had requested and
received from the "V^Hiite House since the Special Prosecutor's investi-

gation began. This list that we are using now to prepare our letter

which we will send out to Mr. St. Clair requesting certain documents,
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tapes, and other materials from the White House, We intend to send
this letter out promptly.

"We have not recci\'ed from INIr. Jaworski the list of materials which
he requested from the White House but which he did not receive.

Mr. St. Clair indicated in a letter to Mr. Jaworski that he had not
yet arrived at a position as to whether or not Mr. Jaworski should
release information about matters which he had requested and not
received, as well as about materials which the White House had fur-

nished to ISIr. Jaworski vdiich had not been requested. We intend to

go to Mr. St. Clair and ask him, say to him that we would like this

list, and we have told INIr. Jaworski the same that we would like

this list as well, and they are considering that matter.
I do not know that there are any particular details that I should call

to the committee's attention. We are arranging for daily transcri]3ts of
the trial of the Federal District Court for the Southern District of
New York, in which Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Stans are defendants.
We are arranging, as I say, for particular interviews and we have a
number of letters prepared to send to some of the departments of the
executive branch for specific materials. We do have lawyers assigned
for continuous contact with the Joint Committee on Internal Revenue
Taxation, with respect to their staff studies and we have, as I reported
last week, have held discussions with an attorney in the Department of
Justice with respect to their files.

That concludes my status report. I wonder, Mr. Chairman, INIr.

Jenner would like to add to that ?

Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen of the committee,
I have participated with Mr. Doar on all of these matters and will not
burden the committee further, other than to say that, if you will permit
me to say, the so-called minority staff and it is only so-called because
it is not a majority staff, in that it has been integrated and lawyers,
those lawyers are participating in the teams, and in the investigations.

And Mr. Doar, as we go along, and I talk all of these matters over
together, including the communications from Mr. Jaworski, as well
as the conununications with INIr. St. Clair, so that we think that the
staff, we know that the staff, and I want to assure you this whole staff

is participating in all of this investigation.

Mr. R viLSBACK. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman", l^fr. Railsback.
Mr. Ratlsback. Could I ask counsel if Mr. Jaworski, when you

visited with him indicated any Avillingness to produce things other
than the White House list and, in other words I think once before
you indicated that he had kind of suggested tha<" maybe you ought to

go to the White House. I am wondering about the other materials
Jaworski has acquired, and I wonder if you have been able to work
out anything with him, or vrhat is the status of that ?

Mr. Doar. We have not been able to work out anything with him.
His position with respect to those materials are that some of them are
grand jury materials, and, second, that he would like to know, be
advisecl, as to what rules of procedure this committee will adopt with
respect to the security, control, and use of that material. I told him
that I expected this committee would act on that matter this morning
and he was verv interested in that and asked to be advised as to what
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the results were, and we will notify liim promptly and then renew our
request for non-White House materials.

Mr. Railsback. I see. In other words, you are going to see what
happens with the rules that we have pending before us to act upon,
and then you do intend to immediately renew your request?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.
Mr. Railsback. And see w^hat his response is and then you will be

prepared with recommejidations in the event that he does not honor
our request as to what we should do?
Mr. DoAR. Well
Mr. Rangel. Mr. Speaker, or ^Ir. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Counsel, is it my understanding that as it relates to the

"White Plouse, itself, that no formal requests have been made at this

time for any information ?

Mr. DoAR. No formal request has yet been made.
Mr. Rangel. Thank you.
The Chairman. The Chair would also like to announce when these

requests are made, while there will be no specifics as to what those

requests are going to be about, that the committee will be advised that
those requests will be made of the White House.
Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Mr. Doar. I just want somthing clarified. I was not

sure that I understood some remark you made. Have you said that
Mr. Jaw^orski has taken the ])osition that with respect to the list of
documents not furnished by the White House that he has requested,

that he cannot turn this list over to the committee unless he receives

[)ermission from the White House. Is that the position he is taking?
^Ir. Doar, That is not the position that he took. He did say that he

would like to see that worked out with Mr. St. Clair and since Mr. St.

Clair indicated in a letter to Mr. Jaworski that he was still consider-

ing, that he was going to await further advice from us about that
before he made a decision.

Ms. Holtzman. But he has not stated that?
Mr. Doar. No, he has not stated. He has stated quite the contrary

that he is independent and makes his own judgments in these matters.

Ms. Holtzman. That is reassuring.

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Doar, with respect to this list of documents that

we might or might not request, which are the documents that

iSIr, Jaworski has requested and not received, would it be workable or

feasible at all of you to consider meeting informally with Mr. Jaworski
to try to determine with him, and with yourselves, as to which might
be the most relevant as far as our inquiry is concerned, with the
expectation that perhaps the relevant material would be listed in this

list and perhaps at some time made public, and with the further
thought that we would then be in the position where we would be able

to proceed to receive those materials that are relevant to our inquiry,

and not those v>diich might be extraneous to our inquiry, and yet rele-

"S'ant to some other proceeding that Mr. Jaworski might have. Is that
a feasible way for you as our counsel—for you to help resolve this

problem, if it becomes a prol)lem?
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Mr. DoAR. Well, I think it is, Congressman McClory, in part, a

feasible way, provided that with respect to these lists of materials that
Mr. Jawoi"ski is willing to let us examine the material so that we can
see what are clearly not necessary for this investigation. And I do not
think there is any problem about that once tlie matter or the principle
is established with respect to these lists.

Mr. McClory. I feel very confident myself that we are going to have
full cooperation from Mr. Jaworski and from Mr. St. Clair at the

AVhite House insofar as our investigation is concerned. I hope that

that is the case.

Mr. DoAR. Well, I hope so, too.

Mr. McClory. And I would like to use whatever means possible to

see that kind of cooperation fulfilled without the alternative of the
confrontation which could be possibly unproductive and, at the same
time, delaying and have other aspects that I do not like to anticipate.

The Chairman. I would like to

Mr. DoAR. Could I make three comments ? I think we are proceeding
on the base of three principles: (1) We expect and intend to work as

hard as we can to achieve cooperation with Mr. Jaworski and the

White House, consistent with our responsibility to this committee to

get all of the material necessary for the inquiry.

(2) We will do everything we can to do this in a way where there is

no confrontation.

(3) "We will meet with these gentlemen regularly but in view
of the fact that we are under a mandate for this the committee to act

expeditiously, we will make our requests promptly, we will expect
prompt response, and we will make the requests in writing so that in

1 month from now, or 2 weeks from now or 3 weeks from now, there is

no question in anybody's mind as to what were the steps that we took,

and Mr. Jaworski took and Mr. St. Clair took with respect to

cooperation between the three of us.

Now, I want to make it very clear that Mr. Jaworski and Mr. St.

Clair agree with this procedure, that the request should be in vrriting.

That does not mean we would not meet. That does not mean we would
not sit down and talk things out. It does not mean that if there is

something about a letter that one or the other of us does not under-
stand, that the lawyers would not talk. But, it does mean that the basis

of our discussions is going to be on the basis of a written exchange.
The Chairman. I would like to state for the benefit of the gentleman

from Illinois that we have discussed this kind of a procedure at great

length. I think that the staff has been instructed, too, quite clearly

that it must do everything that its responsibility requires this com-
mittee to perform and that, as such, we want to do everything possible,

knowing that this is the intent of the committee, to avoid a confronta-
tion, but at the same time, we are aware of the fact that we have a man-
date, that we have been requested time and again to act expeditioush\
And the public is looking for expeditious action. The Congress has
asked that we act expeditiously, and we hope that any delay will not be
forthcoming from our side, if we do, indeed, have sides in this. And
I believe that—I think that this is going to be the policy of the staff,

because it is the policy of this committee. But, the committee, I am
sure, wants the responsibility of this committee discharged, and must
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of necessity urge that in every area there must be cooperation from
Mr. Jaworski and from the White House.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, may I just make one further comment

and, tliat is, this : I do not want any of our demands or any necessary
or relevant information withheld as a result of any informal confer-

ences or any decisions made by others. I want the decisions to be made
by you, by our counsel, and I do not want to be misunderstood on that.

On the other hand, 1 do not want us to roam off in any areas that
might not be relevant or necessary, if by informal meetings, it can be
determined that such extraneous material may not be essential to our
inquiry.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Ot\tens. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairmax. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Mr. Doar, at the point at which it becomes clear, if it

does develop, that Mr. Jaworski will not honor our requests, is there

clear indication whether or not he will resist our subpenas?
Mr. Doar. Well, I do not have any answer for that, because it is

not clear. He has not taken a position on that.

Mr. Owens. Has Judge Sirica taken any position on that because
Mr. Jaworski has looked to him for giiidance ?

Mr. Doar. We Imve not talked to

, Mr. O^^^Ns. There is no indication how the}^ would treat a subpena
from this committee ?

]\Ir. Doar. Xo, there is not, and I do not think it would be well to

speculate about that Congressman Owens.
Mr. Owens. And there is nothing from the White House as to how

they would treat a subpena ?

Mr. Doar. No, there is not. There is no indication about that at all.

We are going to make this request and we hope and expect that there

will be cooperation. We will try to make the request in a way that the

materials are quite clearly necessary for the inquiry and, of course,

we cannot ask for everything. We do not intend in the first request

to cover the whole field that we might ask for. It would be unreason-

able and inappropriate to expect us to have to ask for everything at

one time. We will ask for, make a reasonable request, that we would
hope that Mr. St. Clair would find that not too burdensome to get it

back to us very quickly, and then we could continue on in this process

of beginning to get the material, and sift it and analyze it as expedi-

tiously as possible.

Mr. Owens. And you have not contacted Mr. St. Clair or Mr. Jawor-
ski on any time frame of what you would call reasonable at this point ?

I mean, there is no deadline attached ?

Mr. Doar No, but I do not think it is going to be a great problem.

If you look at the list of materials, for example, that Mr. Jaworski
obtained from the White House, it is my opinion, as a lawyer, that it

would not take very long to assemble that list of material if we asked

for that, and deliver it to this committee. I mean, it is not a matter of

weeks. It is a matter of just a day or two.

Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Doar. It is not looking for material through a whole bunch of

files.

41-OlS—75—pt. 1 S
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]Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

Tlie Chairmax. Mr. Brooks.
^Ir. Brooks. Mr. Chairman. I Avanted to ask counsel if we are now

drafting a letter, as I understand it, to go to the White House to be
addressed to the President or delivered to Mr. St. Clair or delivered

to the President ?

jNIr. DoAR. Well, we have addressed a letter for

Mv. Brooks. For the chairman ?

jMr. DoAR. No. a letter to the lawyers, from me to Mr. St. Clair. We
have also been drafting a letter from the chairman to the President.

Mr. Brooks. Right. Both of them will include the list of material,

data, et cetera, that you require ?

The CiiAiR^iAX. Well, if the gentleman from Texas will just desist

for a moment?
Mr. Brooks. Sure.
Tlie CiTAiRMAX. I believe that the letter to Mr. St. Clair will outline

the specific requests, and that will come from counsel. We are still de-

lii^erating as to what the form of tlie letter to the President will

take, but we are considering that and discussing that with the ranking
minority member to determine what form it might be.

Mr. Brooks. Now, Mr. Doar, you have the list now that you need
of tlie materials, you have it in mind, that which you want to request

of either the President through ]Mr. St. Clair or of the President di-

rectly, if that should be the decision of our chairman?
]\[r. DoAR. Congressman Brooks, we do not have the entire list but

we have the beginning of a list of material that we want.
Mr. Brooks. When do you anticipate having the facts necessary to

submiit such a letter, should the chairman desire it?

Mr. DoAR. We have it ready right now.
Mr, Brooks. Now, do you have such a letter prepared for Judge

Sirica or for Leon Jaworski ?

Mr. DoAR. No, we do not.

Mr. Brooks. Are you in the process of preparing a letter to the

judge or to Jaworski ?

Mr. DoAR. We are not in the process. We are considering whether
that would be a wise course, but we are not actually in the process of

preparing the letter.

Mr. Brooks. Counsel, the reason I asked is that I understand that

Mr. Jaworski lias some material other than that acquired from the

White Plouse, and to get that material we either have to go to the

source or get it from him.
Mr. DoAR. Yes.
Mr. Brooks. Now, are we making plans to get that material from

the source ?

Mr. DoAR. No.
Mr. Brooks. Or from Jaworski ?

Mr. DoAR. As I explained to Congressman McClorv with respect to

that material, that is the non-White House material. Mr Jaworski and
I talked yesterday generally about material and specifically about the

rules of this committee, with respect to how that material would be

handled. And I told him about this meeting this m.orning. and that the

matter was ffoino- to be considered and told him that as soon as this
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iiieetinc; was over, if the committee acted, I would be back to liim about
that material.

Mr. Brooks. This afternoon ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.
Mr. Brooks. Hopefully. Xow. another question on Mr. St. Clair and

the Attorney General on material that we want from other agencies

within the Government. Are we going to make that request to the

President, his lawyer, St. Clair, or will we make those requests to the

Attorney General to provide it to us from other Government agencies?

Mr. DoAR. "Well, no final decision has been made on that, but it is

my professional judgment that the appropriate way to do it would be
to advise Mr. St. Clair of the request and, at the same time, send a

formal letter from tlie chairman or from myself, depending upon the

judgment of the chairman, to the head of the executive department to

which the request would go.

]Mr. Brooks. The head of wliatever executive department it happens
to be?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. I believe tliat is the traditional way the House com-
mittees make requests, and I think it would be approjiriate that we
follow that tradition. I do think that inasmuch as Mr. St. Clair seems
to be generally in charge of the documents and materials that will be
made available, that it would be appropriate, and just good sense, to

let him know when we are making these requests.

]Mr. Brooks. Xow, that is fine.

Xow, counsel, one other question. I keep getting inquiries from my
district, from everyljody I talk to in my district, and you cannot pick
up the phone witliout people wanting to know are you really going to

be able to finish by April 30. And I wonder what your evaluation is

of our time schedule now ? Xow, if they produce this material for you
next week, in accordance with the letters, as Mr. McClory seems to be
hopeful that they will do—I do not have any judgment on that—but
if they do, if they do produce it next week, do you think then we would
probably be on a time frame to get the report March 1 as you indicated

and then to have additional evidentiary reports during !March, and
that would absolutely enable us to complete action on this by April 30?

]Mr. DoAR. Well, Congressman Brooks. I just cannot give you a

judgment at this time on this because I do not know what the material
is. I do not know what the material is and I do not know how long it

would take to examine, to listen to the tapes that are necessary to this

inquiry. But, I hope that—we are mindful of the necessity for speed.

We are trying to organize our work so that we can move as fast as

possible, but I just do not think it would be—that I can give you a

professional judgment at this time as to an April 30 date.

Mr. Drixax. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairmax. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drixax. Mr. Doar, would you give your judgment on this: Is

there any reason at all why the White House might be able to justifi-

ably withhold information that you request ?

Mr. DoAR. Well. I do not believe there is with respect to material
that is necessary to this inquiry.

]\rr. Drixax. If Mr. St. Clair challenges the necessity, what happens
then?
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]Mr. DoAR. Well, the steps as outlined and directed by this committee
would be that before a subpena would be issued the President of the
United States would have been notified by letter from the chairman
with respect either specifically or generally to the nature of the mate-
rials requested. If Mr. St. Clair would either say no or say nothino;. so

that there was no response, then it would l3e my responsibility, I feel.

to come back to the committee and ask the committee to approve a
subpena for the material.

Mr, Drinax. Why not have subpena in the beo-inning ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, because the committee has felt and I think wisely,

that it is appropriate in view of the fact that we are dealing with the
President of the United States, that it is appropriate to request that
material by letter before issuing a subpena, and give the President and
his lawyer an opportunity to make the material available to this

committee voluntarily,

Mr. Drixan, How long should that period be, assuming this is

readily accessible.

]\Ir. DoAR. Well, I do not like to make a judgment
Mr. Drinax. The whole Nation is waiting, and we have been waiting

for a long time and I would just say that the track record is bad, they
have withheld and I suggest that we ought to put a time because after-

ward, then we are beginning to say, well, give him some more days
and I am going to urge later on that we do put a time, on the assump-
tion that there is no reason, as you say, why he can withhold. He can
challenge the necessity but aside from that he must give the material,
and the burden is upon the '^^Hiite House to suggest that they cannot
produce it within 72 hours.
Mr. Doar. Well, Father Drinan, I agree with you 100 percent that

there is no reason for any delays. I just think that there is no point in

Avriting that in a letter, saying these many hours or these many days.
Mr. Drinax. It is done pretty regularly in lawsuits.

The Chairman. Well, if I might answer. I think. Father Drinan,
that that is a matter we will judge as we go along, I think that the com-
mittee will have to act responsibily and recognize that we are not
dealing with just a situation that is the ordinary, routine situation,

I think that we will act responsibly and make the necessary requests,

and carry out our responsibility under the mandate given to us W the
House of Eepresentatives. and not wait inordinately in order to do the
people's business. So, I think that putting a time limit of 24 hours or

48 hours, I think is something that we would have to really seriously

consider.

Mr. Sarbanes.
ISIr. Sarbaxes. ]\Ir. Doar, I wanted to follow up on the question

that Mr. Brooks asked. It is m.y understanding that now you will

have the chance to focus on the factual report, which is to come to us,

I take it, at the end of next week if it can stay on schedule ; that part
of that report will be hopefully some ability to sketch out not only
where we are, but where we have to go and have a better idea at that
point perhaps of what the time schedule may be with respect to this

matter. Is that not the case ?

The CHAiEMAisr. May I, before I recognize the gentleman, Mr. Fish,
may I state that this is a meeting and we would like to, before we
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proceed too far, understand that a lot of the questions that are being

asked are going to be really predicated on whether or not we imme-
diately this morning adopt these rules of procedure for the handling

of impeachment inquiry material, and I think that we had better

recognize this so that these rules, which we have imposed on ourselves,

which are in conformity with the House Eules, will be adopted. And
I am sure that they will give us a better basis to move forward.

^Ir. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Well, thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I will try to be very brief.

jMr. Doar, certainly I approve of the procedure you just outlined

of written notificatioii to the President and to Mr. St. Clair, and the

coming to the committee for approval of the subpena if your notifica-

tion is either objected to or there is no response.

Now, it seems to me there is one remaining step and perhaps you
are not prepared to comment at this time, but let us assume the sub-

pena is authorized by this committee, it is issued and the subpena

is then either rejected or ignored. What would be the step after that?

Mr. Doar. Well, I do not—I am not prepared to advise the committee

on that this morning. Congressman Fish. There are a number of alter-

natives that the committee might wish to take. I think they would
want to consider that very carefully and I think I just would leave

the answer at that.

Mr. Fish. Do you think that further legislation by the Congress

is needed to clarify this area ?

Mr. Doar. I would think that the committee would want to think

awfully carefully before recommending any further legislation. In
my judgment, it would not be needed. It might be the committee might
decide, as a matter of policy, what further legislation would be needed

and it would be presumptuous of me to say anything about that.

Mr. Cohen. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Fish. I yield to the gentleman from ISIaine.

Mr. Doar, just to follow up on that question, do you intend to have
your stalf make recommendations to this committee in terms of what
the alternatives are to enforce a subpena ?

Mr. Doar. We are studying that now.
Mr. Cohen. And is my understanding correct that you anticipate in

the next week or 10 days even to make some recommendations to us?

Mr. Doar. Well, I do not know that it would be within a week or 10

days. We are under awfully great pressure with respect to the time-

table and the things that this committee wants us to do. And I just

would like to say one thing, and, that is, that some of the questions that

are asked are very, very serious and involve very serious matters. And
as your lawyer, the best way we can serve you is to set aside some time

to think. And I do not want to, under the pressure of time, not reserve

for myself, and ]Mr. Jenner on our staff, time to think before we make
recommendations about alternatives on matters as serious as you have
asked me about this morning. So, I hesitate to say it will be within

a week or 10 days. We know what our responsibilities are. We are

working as hard as we can. But, as we go along the thing I fear and
worry about, frankly, is that we do not move so quickly and so fast

that we have not thought through completely and fully for our client,
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the Judiciary Committee, just exactly wliat the course or the result

of following one course or the other might be.

The CiiAiK^iAN. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, I am trying to get the principles of the procedures. You

outliiied three, I think. One was to avoid confrontation wherever
possible; another was to request documents or materials that would
be written requests, so there would be no question as to what had been
asked for. And I missed the other point.

Mr. DoAR. To move expeditiously.

Mr. Hungate. Thank you.

Mr, Doar. So that there would be no suggestion that delay, or that

there was a time delay on the part of this committee or the staff.

]Mr. Hungate. Thank you.
The Chairman. Mr. Jenner.
Mr. Jenner. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just wish to supplement

Mr. Doar's comments that he and I and the staff do have these serious

concerns for this committee, and tliat we will report what we think
professionally, responsibly. The matter on which Congressman Cohen
asked, and the other very serious questions of legislative status under
our Constitution, it is true, Congressman Cohen, that a research team
is preparing material on the serious questions that you asked, and we
will have the alternatives, possible alternatives for all of you to con-

sider when and if that item of confrontation is presented to _vou for

your decision.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Along these lines, gentlemen, if we should reach tliat

situation, what has been referred to here and which you would indeed
consider a very serious one, I assume you will give consideration,

among other things, and before deciding on how to proceed with
regard to the White House as to whether or not much of the same
material might be obtained from the Special Prosecutor, who has
already gotten it, some of it ?

Mr. DoAR. "We certainlj^ would give serious consideration to that.

We are mindful of that, Congressman Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Thank you, sir.

The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. I wanted to ask you whether or not in this letter

that you are sending to Mr. St. Clair, you intend to ask whether he
will safeguard the materials you request, pending his determination
to turn them over to you? And I think it is a serious problem, and we
have seen questions of tampering with documents, and I would think
that we would want to make sure that no such question arises in any
form in this inquiry.

Mr. DoAR. Well, we will take that into consideration. And I think
that is a valid point, and that Mr. St. Clair would accept that as an
appropriate suggestion. And I am sure that he will be prepared to, or

I believe, I am sure he will give us his assurance that he will do so.

Ms. Holtzman. Well, can we get something more specific besides

assurances in the sense that the documents are being kept in a safe

place, and the person who has custody of them and so forth during the

pendenc}' of our request ?
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Mr. DoAR. We will do our best to hundle that in a way where we
have those assurances.

:Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, there is a delicate inference here or

implication, and may I suggest that the staff, Mr. Doar and I and our

compatriots, we do not want to be undertaking the negative pregnant

of suggesting an invidious conduct and intent on the part of the Presi-

dent or any of those who are working with him. But, ^Ms. Holtzman,

we do have that problem in mind, and if you will afford us the pro-

fessional delicacy to see how we can handle it, we do intend to.

Ms. Holtzman. Let me just respond by saying I had not meant any

implication, and I wanted, by procedure, to avoid any such implica-

tion from being made or raised at any point.

]\Ir. Mezm:xsky. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairmax. j\Ir. jSIezvinsky.

Mr. INIezvixsky. I, too, so you are on notice, I think the enforcement

procedures of the subpena are vital for our committee and for our

deliberations, so I would hope that we do get that guideline because

I think that is very significant. I might ask, I presume, and I want to

see whether it is proper, that Mr. St. Clair and the White House is mi

notice that they will be receiving a letter soon. Have you met with

Mr. St. Clair since your first discussion ?

^Ir. DoAR. Xo, we have not, but he understands the letter will be

coming.
Mr. MEZ^^xsKY. Does he understand that Avith the request we are

hoping for an expeditious response ?

Mr. DoAR. He understands the need for expedition. There is no

question about that.

Mr. Mez\ixsky. OK.
The Chairmax. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Saxdmax. Mr. Chairman, may I suggest that if we are ever

going to reach any kind of final date, when we are going to conclude

our work, that we cease all of these hypothetical questions and let

us iret on with the purpose for Avhich we came toda3^

Mr. Eaxgel. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairmax. ]SIr. Rangel.
Mr. Eaxgel. Can we discuss—will we have the opportunity to dis-

cuss these procedures today, this morning ?

The Chair3iax. Well, we are going to, if all discussion is completed

now, and I think Mr. Doar has completed his report, I hoped that we
could get to those so we can adopt them.

;Mr. Raxgel. Well, is counsel going to go through this?

The Chairmax. Counsel will read them and if there are any ques-

tions counsel will explain them.
]\Ir. Raxgel. Well, we have the copies. I do not know why we have

to read them. I have some questions as it relates to procedures of

members of the Judiciary Committee.
The Chairmax. AVell^ if the gentleman will defer, I believe that for

the benefit of each of the members counsel should read the rule. It will

only take a few minutes.
Mr. Seiberlixg. Mr. Chairman, parliamentary inquiry.

As he reads them, will we bring up questions we have with respect

to each one of these paragraphs or should.we wait until it is all read ?
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Tlie Chairman. I would suggest that the counsel read them all and,
hopefully, since this has been a matter that has been discussed before
the committee in its entirety at a briefing session, and since this was
a matter that was a subject of discussion before the Democratic Caucus
and the Republican Caucus, I would hope that we are not unduly de-

layed, because, the final draft of those that have been worked out after

there had been some question. And I Avould hope that we recognize the

urgency of adopting these Eules of Procedure so that we can get on
with the requests that are necessary for the evidentiary matter that

is going to be important for our deliberations and decision, and that
we recognize this material as such.

Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. Procedures for handling impeachment inquiry ma-

terial :
^

(1) The chairman, the ranking minority member, the special coun-
sel, and the counsel to the minority shall at all times have access to

and be responsible for all papers and things received from any source

by subpena or otherwise. Other members of the committee shall have
access in accordance with the procedures hereafter set forth.

(2) At the commencement of any presentation at which testimony

will l)e heard or papers and things considered, each committee member
will be furnished with a list of all papers and things that have been
obtained by the committee by subpena or otherwise. No member shall

make the list or any part thereof public unless authorized by a ma-
jority vote of the committee, a quorum being present.

(3) The special counsel and the counsel to the minority, after dis-

cussion w^ith the chairman and the ranking minority member, shall

initially recommend to the committee the testimony, papers, and
things to be presented to the committee. The determination as to

whether such testimony, papers, and things shall be presented in open
or executive session shall be made pursuant to the rules of the House.

(4) Before the committee is called upon to make any disposition

with respect to the testimony or papers and things presented to it, the

committee members shall have a reasonable opportunity to examine
all testimony, papers, and things that have been obtained by the inquiry

statf. No member shall make any of that testimony or those papers or

things public unless authorized by a majority vote of the committee,

a quorum being present.

(5) All examination of papers and things other than in a presen-

tation shall be made in a secure area designated for that purpose.

Copyin ir, duplicating, or removal is prohibited.

(6) Any committee member may bring additional testimony, papers,

or things to the committee's attention.

(7) Only testimony, papers, or thino-s that are included in the record

will be reported to the House; all other testimony, papers, or things

will be considered as executive session material.

The Chairman. Mr. Donohue.
]Mr. DoNOHHE. In other words, ^Mr. Doar, all of these procedures are

especially designed for the impeachment inquiry-, they are derived

from the Rules of the House of Representatives ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Mr. DoNOHiTE. And are the special procedures adopted to implement

these rules by various House commi* tees ?

1 Spp "Appendix III.—Procedures for Handling Impeacliment Inquiry Material," In

book III, "Impeachment Inquiry".
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Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. DoNOHUE. Is that correct ? And certain policies followed b}' the
Judiciary Committee during the hearings on the Vice-Presidential
nomination of Gerald Ford ?

]Mr. DoAE. That is correct.

Mr. DoNOHt E. Of conrse, the established rules of the House or the
committee will be followed, such as the rules of the House and of the
Committee on the Judiciar}^, pertaining to closed hearings and meet-
ings ; is that correct ?

Mr. DoAE. That is correct.

Mr. DoxoHUE. Thank you very much.
Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairmax. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Mr. Doar, as I understand paragraph 2, before any

presentation is made that the committee will have before it all of tJie

evidence that has been collected by staff ?

Mr. DoAE. The list of all of the evidence.

Mr. Rangel. The list of the evidence.

And then No. 3, counsel and special counsel will then get together

with the chairman and ranking minority member to recommend to

the committee that out of this list, or from the list, what evidence will

be made available to members of the committee?
Mr. DoAE. "Well, we would have done that before that time and we

would be prepared to go forward with the presentation to the com-
mittee with respect to testimony, papers, and things, and that would
be all presented to the committee in accordance with the way the com-
mittee determined to have it presented. That would be all. We would
be ready to proceed when the list was made available or immediately
thereafter.

Mr. Rangel. First of all, since we know there will be a presentation

and testimony, then part 2 really means that prior to this we will get

a full list of all of the information that staff' has compiled?
Mr. DoAE. Right. That is correct.

Mr. Rangel. OK. Then as to what information from the list we
actually have access to, will tliat be determined by the chairman and
the ranking member and staff ?

Mr. DoAE. No. The committee members have full access to all ma-
terial. That is covered by section 4.

Mr. Rangel. Well, does the section 3 mean in the part that indicates

that a recommendation is going to be made to the committee ?

Mr. DoAE. Well, Congressman Rangel, we are going to have just a

great number of documents and things in our possession. We already

have. Our job. our assignment, is to organize that and present the

relevant material. We hope that we do a good enough job for you,

and a full enough job and a fair enough job, that every member of the

committee would agree that we have selected the relevant material.

In the event, however, that a member of the committee felt that we
had not presented a document or testimony or material, he would know
that we had that material, and the index would be organized so we
could quicklv get into it, and it would be available for his examination,
and then to brintr it back to the committee to present it under the rules

of the House and the committee.
Mr. Rangel. Thank you. You have cleared it up to my satisfaction.
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The Chairman. Mr. Seil)orling.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask a couple of
clarifyjiig questions.

First of all with respect to the interaction, paragraphs 2 and 4,

paragi-aph 2 says that ''at the commencement of any presentation at

which testimony will be heard or papers and things considered, each
committee member will be furnished with a list of all papers and
things that have been obtained by the committee."

In jiaragraph 4 it says : "Before the committee is called upon to make
any disposition with respect to the testimony or papers and things
presented to it, the committee members shall have a reasonable oppor-
tunity to examine all testimony."
Now, I wonder if reading those two together that it is understood

that if the staff is able to make available, prior to the comencement of
any presentation, a list of the papers and things and so forth, that
that will be done so that we may intelligently evaluate what is being
presented in the light of the knowledge of wdiat other material is there,

because if we have to go after the fact and look at the material, and
then raise questions about wdiether additional material should be taken
up, I think we are going to delay matters. And I would wonder if we
can get a clarification on that point.

Mr. DoAR. Well, with respect to the list, sir, the list to the extent
that we could make partial lists available prior to the commencement
of the proceedings, and that seemed like an efficient and effective way
to proceed, we would do that. But, with respect to the examination,
that would have to aw^ait and I believe appropriately, await the presen-
tation to the committee. As I say, if w'e present this in as fair and as

oljjective and thorough way as possible, it would be my hope that the
material would all be presented, that any member of the committee
Avould be interested in, and the documents and things that would be
presented would all come to the committee at the presentation.

]Mr. Seiberling. Well, now, the list that is referred to in paragraph
2 is not the same as the index to your files that we discussed at the
last meeting; is that correct? We will have an index prior to the com-
mencement of these presentations so we know what you have?

yiv. DoAR. Yes, I would be happy to go over that list, index of files,

right now wnth the committee or go over it at our office, and that is

available right now.
^Mi". Seiberlixg. All right, now, one other question which I would

just like to clarifv.

Item 6 says that : "Any committee member may bring additional
testimony, papers or things to the committee's attention."
And, of course, we would have that right under the House rules any-

way. But, I Avould like to make sure there is no implication here that
if a member feels that after reading, after going over all of the evi-

dence that relates to a particular point that additional evidence should
be sought, that that member retains the right to bring to the attention

of the committee that point, and to request that the committee consider
instructing the staff to seek additional evidence on that point? I would
like to ask the chairman if that is understood ?

The Ctiairmax. That is clearly understood.
Mr. Seiberlixg. Thank vou, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. Is[astenmp:ier. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairmax. Mr. Wiggins.
]Mr. Wiggins. jSIr. Cliairman, thank you for recognizing me. I ad-

dress my comment to the committee as a wliole and to counsel, of course,

and in the nature of a suggestion on additional rule. And I would
suggest that immediately upon the receipt by the committee of any tes-

timony, papers or things, copies thereof be made and be furnished to

the source of the evidence and the counsel for the President. I make
that suggestion for three reasons : One deals with the problem of secur-

ity and tampering. Obviously, there is less likelihood of tampering
being proved if several i)eople have copies of the same thing. Second,
it is consistent with the Civil Rules and it has a high element of fair-

ness in it, that any evidence before this committee be made available

to counsel for the other side. And, third, for the reason of expedi-
tion of our hearings, when we get to that ]:)oint. I am not sure that we
have settled upon the question of whether the counsel for the President
may be present, but should we start bringing evidence upon a counsel

it seems likely to me that he is going to ask for a delay, for the oppor-
tunity of inspecting that evidence and our whole proceedings will be
interrupted by reason thereof.

Accordingly. I do suggest some language such as T have just read
as an additional rule for the i)rocedures of handling this impeachment
inquiry.

The Chairman. Mi-. Doai".

Mr. DoAR. Congressman Wiggins, I respectfully suggest that tliat

would not be appropriate. There is no other side in this inquiry at this

stage. And I do not think that the procedural rules that you suggest
would be appropriate to get into this morning.

I do say, however, that when I did talk to Mr. St. Clair about docu-
ments in the Justice Department, he said whatev'er documents you
would take ou.t of a file would you make available to us a copy of that

document, and I said, of course.

]Mr. Wiggins. Well, as long as that is done, then I have no problem.
But, if wo should ultimately decide. INIr. Chairman, that counsel for
the President is entitled to be present during the taking of testimony,
and we have not reached that but at least it has been discussed
informally, that it seems likely to me that our taking of testimony is

going to be interrupted considerably as counsel for the other side

makes inspections of copies and thinks about the physical evidence
which may be presented at that time.

The Chairman. I would also like to add to the gentleman's clarifica-

tion that these rules, as you know, which we are considering, are in

strict compliance with the rules of the House, do not go beyond the
rules of the House, and I really, I think, designed initially to insure that
the self-imposed rules give some degree of assurance without seeking
the approval of Mr. St. Clair or anyone else who wonders about our
ability to act responsibly. And I think this is really at the base of all

of this. And I would think that anything else other than that, than is

l)eing suggested, is not related to that particular point.

Mr. Wiggins. Well. I am satisfied with the assurances of our counsel,

that it is contemplated that the normal procedure would be to make
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copies available to counsel for the President. Is that what I understood
you to say, Mr. Doar ?

Mr. DoAR, Well, you do with respect to materials in the Department
of Justice. Now, if we got a document from some other source, I would
not anticipate that at first we w^ould Xerox that and send it over to
Mr. St. Clair, no, not with every document. But, if we requested docu-
ments and he facilitated us in getting them, of course he would have
copies of all of the documents that were requested in the "\Miite House
and he facilitated us getting them from the Departments, certainly we
would make copies of them.
Mr. Wiggins. Well, I will be happy to yield to the gentleman from

Illinois. But, I will say before I do yielcf, I do thinkthat the policy
which perhaps is that now being established but at least the indication
is that copies of materials coming into the possession of the committee
from sources apart from the White House, and which may be used for
evidentiary purposes before our hearing will not be made available to

counsel for the President, will in the long run be a source of trouble
for this committee and we ought to at some point confront it.

I yield to the gentleman from Illinois.

The Chairman. Mr. Kailsback.
Mr. Eailsback. Yes, thank you.

I want to thank Mr. Wiggins and also the Chairman.
In respect to Congressman Wiggins' suggestion, I have this problem

Avith it. It seems to me aside from documents that are i^rocluced by the
White House, there would be other material that those of us on the
House Judiciary Committee, for instance, would be subject to certain
procedures that even we would not be permitted to see that material
until it is determined that it be presented to us. And the other thing is,

I would be wary of turning over material to somebody other than the
House Judiciary Committee if we are, in fact, determined to insure
the confidentiality, and be able to give Leon Jaworski assurance that
the criminal cases that he is allegedly pursuing, that we would not be
undermining his prosecution of those criminal cases.

On the other hand, I want to say, and say emphatically, that the
trend has been and I want to emphasize this, the trend has been in

recent impeachment cases, that the respondent either has had a right
to be present himself, or his counsel has had a right to be present and
possibly in those cases where we may be taking depositions, say, to

peri:>etuate testimony rather than discovery, it might be wise in that

case to prevent respondent's counsel or Mr. St. Clair being present.

I want to point out to our members here, particularly those on the
minority side, that the proposed rules that we are considering are a

little bit different than the draft we had before us. And Congressman
Sandman has pointed out very substantial deviation, whereas in the
draft that we had before us we were to go into executive session

initially to determine whether we wanted open hearings or hearings in

executive session.

Now, you have used language in these proposed procedures that
would require us to follow the general rules of the House. And it seems
to me that there is a substantial difference. And I wonder if it was,
if it was meant to be or not ?

Mr. DoAR. We went over those rules with Mr. Zeifman and Mr. Polk,
and we were advised that this language is exactly the same as the
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language that was there before, that the formal rule and this rule is

exactly the same. You are going to have to go into executive session

with respect to determining whether or not you Avant to consider
matters in executive session.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Doar, under rule 4 of the draft that we had be-

fore us, it read this way : ''The special counsel and the counsel to the
minority Avill initially recommend the testimony, papers and things
to be presented to the committee, and during the hearing the commit-
tee shall decide in executive session by a majority vote." I think these

are the significant words: ''The committee shall decide in executive
session by a majority vote with a quormn present, whether such testi-

mony, papers and things shall be presented in open or executive ses-

sion." Now, what you are suggesting is to follow the rules of the House
which would require everything—in other words, there would be open
session and there would have to be a specihc vote to close.

Mr. Sarbanes. Would the gentleman yield 'i

Mr. Railsback. Yes.
Mr. k5Ai;BANEs. 1 am very frank to say to you and there was an ex-

ample of it at the beginning of this meeting this morning, that I do
not see how the committee of its own authority can proceed to establish

any procedures that are conti-ary to the rules of the House. I mean,
we must operate within the framework of those rules of the House.
Now, I would have been perfectly happy to have had the television

stay here this morning, but I think the objection that was raised is

consistent with applicable rules and the Chair's ruling followed those

rules. I do not see how we can have any procedures established by the

committee that are contrary to or exceed any authority given to us by
the rules of the House.
Mr. Railsback. Yes. Let me say to the gentleman that I was pre-

pared to have television stay. I think several of us would have been
prepared to have them stay. I do not see much purpose, really, in ex-

cluding them.
What I am directing the question to is, there is apparently a differ-

ence and I just want to know if that is true if, in other words, it seems
to me that I wanted to point it out to all of the members, first of all,

that whereas in the draft we had before us, we were to have met in

executive session, and then decide whether they are to be open. Now,
we are following the rules of the House. That is the intent or what ?

Mr. Doar. Yes, it is the intent that you follow the rules of the House.
But, it was my understanding that you would have to decide to go
into executive session to then decide whether or not you would go
forward in open hearings, or in executive session. But, that would be

a step in an open hearing under the rules of the House, and ISlr, Zeif-

man and Mr. Polk and I went over this, and they said that you are

saying exactly the same thing, but it is liable to confuse someone and
you ought to strike that out and put in pui'suant to the rules of the

House.
Mr. Railsback. Well, just so we all understand that. I think some

of us had a different idea about it, because of the language that was
in the draft.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Would the gentleman yield?

The Chairman. Well, frankly, we woulcl have been subject to criti-

cism in anything we might have done, had we not been comporting
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and in conformance with the rules of the House. It mi^ht have in-

validated anything we might do, so I think this language is much l^et-

ter, and this is at the advice of botli the general counsel of the com-

mittee and the minority counsel of the Committee on Judiciary who

conferred with the Parliamentarian on the question.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Railsback. I yield, if you are seeking recognition.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Thank you, Mr. Railsback.

I was confused a little bit by Mr. Doar's answer. I thought that tlie

rules of the House provided that a decision to hold a hearing m exec-

utive session or for taking of testimony in executive session must be

made in open session, and I think your statement was contrary to that.

I would like to have that clarified.

The Chairman. No, I do not believe I understood it that way. i be-

lieve that all Mr. Doar said was that the language was changed m such

a way so that we would understand it was pursuant to the rules of the

House.
]Vfa. HoLTziMAN. OK. Thank you.

Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. Mr. Sandman. .

Mr Sandman. Mr. Doar, may I ask you a i^ractical question and.

that is, if we follow the rules of the House as I understand what you

have said, someone here would have to make a motion that we go into

executive session to consider whether or not the presentation ot cer-

tain bits of evidence should be in executive session. Would he have to

make that announcement here?
t tt -i

Mr. Doar. I believe that is the way the rules of the House provide.

The Chairman. That is correct.
• t -i i i

Mr Sandman. Now that immediately exposes that individual whom-

ever he may be, as trving to do something in executive session, which

the media never treats very kindly. Now, why do we have to go to that

kind of a burden ? • i •

,

Mr. Doar. Because the rules of the House provide it.
.

^ ^ . . .

Mr S\NDMAN. Let me explore this one thing. I tlunk tne big tlaw

that we have in all of this, in trying to get information, for example,

that Jaworski has, which is of a criminal nature, that is being pre-

sented to a Federal grand jury in a criminal case, involving other

people besides the President, he has a reluctance to turn some ot this

over because he does not want this kind of information made public

which would otherwise liurt innocent people. I am not talking about

\"ow if we'o-ive him assurances of our pledge of confidentiality, how

do we then ke"^ep it without going through all of the procedure here

and trying to make the media believe we are trying to hide something,

which'we are not? I think you are more prone to get this information

more quickly, if we would operate under the rules that were submitted

to us in the first place. Mr. Railsback and I and several of ^^s here

were ready to move the adoption of the whole thing. We think it is that

fair. But,I mean, why Avas this one changed, which I think is the most

important of all?
^ ,

.
t ,^

Mr Doar. Well, the rule was changed because it was my unrloi-

standing that in order to go into executive session that the committee
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would haA'e to A'ote to do that in open session, and that does not mean
in open session any of the subject matter that would be discussed

would be laid out. You would say that you had a matter that you
thought, you would say, that should be considered initially in execu-

tive session, and the committee would then vote to do that, I do not

tiiink Mr. Jaworski would be troubled by that since it is consistent,

since it is required by the rules of the House, and there would be no
disclosure as to the subject matter of what the discussion would be.

Mr. Setbeklix(}. "Would the o-entleman yield ?

Mr. Brooks. Would the g-entleman yield ?

Mr. Saxdmax. If I have the time I will be happy to yield.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Cliairman, I was just jjoino- to comment that the

reason those rules were so designed, undoubtedly was to put the pres-

sui-e on members and require that you make the motion to go into

executive session in open meeting. Prior to that rule, the adoption of

that rule some yeais ago. you did not have to do that. You could do it

^vith a lot less publicity, and a lot less pressure. But, the reason they
put that rule in is because they want members to understand that if

we are going to go into executive session, if the chairman is going to

move it, if an individual member is going to m^ove it, that you have
got to have a pretty good I'eason. And I do not mind moving that this

committee go into executive session, if we have a good reason for

doing it.

Mr. Saxdmax. May I present a real good i'eason ?

I have been led to believe that we are functioning somewhat as a

grand jury. Now, if this procedure is followed, as I understand it.

then everything we do is going to be open to the public. Is this true

or not ?

Mr. DoAR. No.
]Mr. Brooks. No ; it is not.

The CiiAiRMAX'. May I for the purpose of some clarification, just

call to the attention of the committee that under the rules of the House,
rule 11. 26(f). and this is the rule of the House, each meeting for the
transaction of business, including the markup of legislation of each
standing committee or subcommittee shall be open to the public. There-
fore, if we are to conduct any business whatsoever, no matter what
that business may be, that the meeting must of necessity be open to tlie

pul)lic. Now, if we want to close that meeting for any reason, because
it is considered that material may be defamatory or degrading, or may-
be something of that nature, that should not be open to the public.
Then we turn to another rule which states that if the committee deter-
mines that certain evidence that may be given may defame or degrade
that that meeting may l)e one M'hich may require a closed session, an
executive session. But, this Avould have to be by a majority A'ote of the
committee.

]Mr. Seiberlixo. Would the gentleman vield ?

Mr. McClorY. :Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairmax. ]\Ir. INIcClory.

Mr. j^IcClort. Could we proceed Avitli the reading of the rules for
impeachment inquiry and possibly return to this. I am afi-aid we ai-e

not going to get to the rules.

Mr, Dexx'is. We have read the rules.

The Chairmax. Mr. Edwards.
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JNIr. Edwards. Mr. Doar, in the Ford hearing after many weeks of
work, we were suddenly confronted with the fact that a substantial

part of the evidence was going to be kept from the members of this

committee. The Department of Justice and the FBI said, yes, we have
conducted an investigation but we are only going to let a few mem-
bers, or two members, in eilect, review the information. Now, is there

any chance whatsoever of that happening in this proceeding? Can
you imagine under any circumstances evidence being withheld from
all the members of the Judiciary Committee ?

J\lr. Doar. I cannot. I cannot imagine that. These rules do not in-

tend that. If, of course, the FBI or somebody would say to me that we
will give you this material if you and only you, or if only you and
ISIr. Jenner, or only you and ]VIr. Jenner and the ranking members,
the chairman and the ranking minority members, would look at it,

I would say I have no authority to accept the material, and I would
report back to the committee promptly.
Mr. Edwards. Well, thank you, Mr. Doar. That is exactly what

the chairman did in the Ford hearing when the Department of Justice

refused to allow us to review this material, and a compromise was
worked out. But, I thank you for your response.

INIr. Jenner. INIr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
IMr. Dennis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
A brief comment, first, on the point raised by Mr. Wiggins. I am

willing to go along with the idea that it may be premature at this time
to thrash all of the details of that out. But, I would like to take the

occasion to go on record of believing personally that when and if we
come to the point where we are having hearings involving the Presi-

dent that we should extend him the right to be present in person or by
counsel and to participate although we do not need to decide that

today. And if we do that, then I think at that time it would be very
fair, in accordance with usual civil procedures, to give his counsel an
opportunity to have copies of the matters which we may have before
us at that time.

Now, second, just a brief clarification here of the rules on a couple
of points. On the draft we had before us it said specifically that if we
wanted to examine some of these additional papers on the list, that the

stall' had not presented except on the list, that there would be a recess

so that could be done. Here it merely says reasonable opportunity, with
which I do not quarrel, but I assume there is no intention by the change
in language to whittle down the opportunity ; that there still would be
opportunity to go over the next day or whatever might be necessary to

make a reasonable examination.
INIr. Doar. Yes, that is true. We just felt it was better language.

There is no intention to whittle down the opportunity and, in fact, that
is the whole intention, is that the committee have a full and ample
opportunity to examine the material.

^Ir. Dennis. And then No. 6 would give us the right, after such
examination, to bring that matter or any other matter, which we might
have discovered, before the committee and seek to have it placed in the
record, and give it consideration also ; correct ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.
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Mr, Dennis. And ai^ng- with the same change, I noted tliat in the

draft we specifically provided that there might be minority reports.

Now, I do not think that is necessary because I think we can always

file minority reports. But, I assume there was no intent by leaving that

out to suggest that that could not be done ?

]Mr. DoAR. No, sir, there was not.

Mr. Dennis. I thank you.

Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman?
]Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. I hope we forthwith adopt these procedures. But,

I do have one question of the counsel and that is in terms of

Mr. Jaworski. While these for our purposes appear to be reasonable

rules, tlieoretically, of course, they do not guarantee Mr. Jaworski that

the evidence will not be public by majority vote. We can make evidence

public notwithstanding the fact that that undercuts the Special

Prosecutor's case.

So. do I understand that notwithstanding that fact, that

Mr. JaAvorski would nonetheless be agreeable, or might be agreeable,

insofar as he no longer has control of the evidence, and it could, under
our rules, become public by majority vote, he might still be agreeable

to this arrangement?
Mr. DoAR. Well, he has made no commitment about that, but he does

understand that there is no way that, I believe he understands, that

tliere is no way that the material might not be made public, if a

majority of this committee decided it would be made public. But, we
liave not discussed that. This is just—Ave intend to discuss this with

him. He has made no commitment. But, there would be no way that

this committee, as I understand it, could agree further than this.

The CiiAiRiMAN. I hope that the

Mr. Kastenmeier. I appreciate that.

The Chairman. I hope that the gentleman recognizes that implicit

in his question is possibly the suggestion that we would have to await

the approval of any people whom Ave are asking or making requests of

for material, and this is not the case at all. I think Ave are, we are

imposing rules within the i-ules of the House, which I think provide
for an exercise of responsibility and we are not certainly, and I am not

certainly, going to aAvait Avhether or not the stamp of approA'al is

going to be placed on these rules. I think these are reasonable rules,

and I expect that this is A\diat they are expecting of us.

Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentleman from Wisconsin yield on that ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Yes.
]Mr. Wiggins. Counsel, Avould you tell me what the word "public"

means as used in the context of these rules ? It is used in seA^eral places.

Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

It means a different thing, obviously, and in a different context. I
think you liaA'e to take each instance.

Mr. Wiggins. I would like to have it explained in each context, then.

Mr. DoAR. Well, in the second section, the word ''public," means that
it sliould not be disclosed to

Mr. Wiggins. To any othei- person ?

Mr. DoAR. To any other person. Noav, where is the next one?

41-018—73—pt. 1-
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Mr. Wiggins. Paragraph 4.

Mr. DoAR. It means the same thing.

Mr. Wiggins. That too is my understanding, Mr. Chairman. Is that
your understanding, Mr. Chainnan ?

The Chairman. I'm sorry ?

Mr. Wiggins. Is it your understanding that these rules preclude
members of the committee or the staff from making information avail-

able to any other person, that that is what is intended when it says that
they shall not be made public ?

The Chairman. That depends on whether the information first of
all was received in executive session or other information, first of all,

which certainly should not be made public, and any other information
I think that comes within the rules of confidentiality should not be
made public.

Mr. Wiggins. To any other persons ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

]Ms. HoLTZMAN. Would the gentleman yield on that point ?

The Chairman. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. I have a question with respect to item 2 and item 4.

Referring to the list of all papers and things in item 2, and all testi-

mony, papers, and things in item 4, I want to be sure I understand
this. It is my understanding that the list of papers and things would
be the aggregate total of all papers, things in the possession of the
staff and the committee, and not limited to those which are supportive
of a general topic of inquiry which may be about to be presented ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Danielson. Thank you very much.
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

Ms. Holtzman. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Well, it seems to me that we cannot let the state-

ment by Mr. Wiggins stay in the record, that making its public means
making it available to any other person. In the first place, there are

38 members of this committee, and I would asume that any document
which a member is entitled to see, he is entitled to discuss with an-

other member of this committee and with the staff of this committee

;

that is, the impeachment investigation staff. So, obviously you cannot
mean any other person.

Mr. Wiggins. I agree with that understanding. It is also my under-
standing that making the substance of a material available outside of

the parameters which you just mentioned would also be prohibited by
this rule, and not to be limited to the precise document itself. Is that

your undel-standing ?

Mr, Seiberling. Well, that would be my understanding, and I would
like to get this in the record too. By any other person, we are includ-

ing members of the staff of the individual members of this committee-.

Is that understood ?

Mr. Wiggins. Precisely.

Mr. Seiberling. Thank you.

The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. I have some questions again with respect to the

word public in both places. In the first instance, in rule 2 you use the
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word public with respect to the list. Does that mean a member is pre-

cluded during a presentation that is in open sssion from saying, for

example, why has not document such-and-such been presented to us ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I would think, I would think that if there was that

kind of a question, you might want to first move to go into executive

session to ask that question.

Ms. HoLTZMAX. And is that the same with respect to the use of the;

worvd "public" in rule 4 ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. "Where it says, for example, that if we wish to ques-

tion a witness with respect to information that we have obtained from
documents you have given to us, that we must go into executive session

to a-^k such a question, because otherwise it would be making it

public ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes ; that does mean that.

Ms. HoLTZMAX. Well, I am concerned that this is going to be ex-

tremly restrictive, especially with respect

Mr.^ jNIcClory. If you will yield on that, I personally am opposed to

that part of the rule which permits other members of the committee
other than the majority and the minority staff members and the chair-

man and the ranking minority member from examining in the staff

committee rooms these other documents. But, I have withdrawn my
objection to that part with the clear understanding and feeling that

if individual committee members do want to examine these classified

or secret materials, that they would do it on the basis of confidentiality,

with no leaks emanating from the members or staff of this committee
whatever. And I think we have an opportunity to do a responsible job

and to establish a reputation for our committee in that respect. And
it seems to m^e that if we would question in open hearing or in any other

way reveal the contents or identity, or subject matter of materials that

we are permitted to examine confidentially, it would seem to me it

would be a terrible breach of the rules that we are considering today.

Ms. HoLTZMAX. The problem, as I see it, ]Mr. Doar said some of this

material we are receiving from you that is covered by these rules may
not be confidential in any sense, yet we will be precluded, members
of the committee would be precluded from asking any questions with
respect to such materials, and I am puzzled.

Mr. Doar. Not precluded, because you would have the opportunity
to present the material to the committee and say that you wish to

question the witness or you wish to go into that particular subject.

Ms. HoLTZMAX. But our right to question then would be determined
on a majority vote of the committee, even with respect to materials that
are not inherently confidential. Is that the intention here, really?

Mr. Doar. Well, it would seem to me that in order to cover all of
the material, you have to subject the committee members to a majority-

rule, so it would be certain that there was presented to the committee,
if a committee member wanted to examine them, a question about
them, that they would go through the executive session procedure. I
do not see that that would be a burden at all, inasmuch as if a matter
was public, I suppose that we would work out the list and show that

was a public document, and there would be no problem about it. I

mean, if the document is already public, you do not have to go to that
list to get the document. You do not have to go over to our office to get
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it. It is already public. It is not the purpose of this list to cover docu-
ments tliat are already in the public record.

Mr. McClory. If the gentlelady would yield ?

Ms. HoLTZiiAX. I'm sorry.

^Ir. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, we arc prol)ably about to wind this

u.}). and I just wanted to make one observation, that these rules will be
ordinary procedure. There is no other real alternative for the chairman
or the ranking minority member to operate under, and the members
are fully protected because the House rules are going to be supersed-
ing anything we say and do here, and all accessibility to records and
documents will be bound by the House rules, and that is just the way
it is.

]\ri-. HoGAX. ]Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Brooks. I move the question.

The Chairmax. Mr. Hogan.
]Mr. HoGAX. ]Mi'. Chairman, if we agreed with ]Mr. Seiberling's

comments being true, then everyone has the right to discuss this with
their own staff as well ?

Tlie CiiAiRMAX. That was not the understanding.
]Mr. PIoGAx. Just the committee staff and the special impeachment

staff, not with our own individual staffs ?

Mr. Seiberlixg. It is my understanding that under these procedures,
we could not even have our staff file the list that we receive from the
committee staff. We would have to do our own filing, and it has to be
imder lock and key, aud nobody else can see it but members of the com-
mittee staff and the members of the committee.
Mr. DoAR. Correct.

]Mr. Seiberlixg. And if I aui wrong in that, I would like to have it

clarified.

The CiiAiRivrAx. Xo: that is correct.

]\rr. HrxGATE. Mr. Chairman?
The Ctiairmax. Mr. Hungate.
Ml". HuxGATE. I think this discussion has been yery helpful, Mr.

Chairman, but I think there are several of these bridges we can
cross when we get to them. And I would like to move that we approve
these at this time, and unless there is some substantive change,
Mr. ^NIayxe. Mr. Chairmau ?

Mr. Dexxis. Mr. Chairman ?

]Mr. Mayxe. Before the question is put. it seems to me that the record
is still yery uncertain as a result of the exchange in which the gentle-

man from Ohio, !Mr. Seiberling, has just participated. Are we or are
we ]iot authorized to release these materials to our own personal staffs ?

The CriAiRMAx. You are not.

]\I]'. ]Mayxe. "Well, that is very satisfactory to me, and I hope that
that is cleared up to the satisfaction of all members.
The CiTAiR:\rAX. The question is on the motion by the gentleman

froui ^lissouri. All those in favor of the adoption of the rules of pro-
cedure for the handling of the impeachment inquiry material, please
say aye.

rChorus of "ayes."']

The CiiAiRMAX. Opposed, no.

[Xo response.]
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The CiiAiRMAX. The ayes have it, and the rules are adopted.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, a parliamentary inquiry.

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, is it appropriate to move this committee
now consider whether it wants to move to introduce a resolution into

the House to change the rules of the House ?

The Chairmax. This is not a matter before this committee.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. OwExs. To avoid the spectacle of excluding the electronic media,

but not
The Cii^MRMAX. This is a matter that each individual member will

have to consider for himself, and if he wants to, he may,
]Mr. Seiberlixg. Mr. Chairman?
The CiiAiRMAX. There are also, as the members know, attached thore-

Mith the procedures for the impeachment inquiry staff, which are

procedures that restrict the inc(uiry staff, and I understand that the

motion also included the adoption of those rules, without objection.

[The rules for the impeachment inquiry staff follow :]

Rules fok the Impeachment Inquiry Staff

1. The staff of the impeachment inquiry shall not discnss with anyone outside
the staff either the substance or procedure of their work or that of the committee.

2. Statt" offices on the second floor of the Congressional Annex shall operate
luider strict security precautions. One guard shall be on duty at all times by the
elevator to control entry. All persons entering the floor shall identify themselves.
xVn additional guard shall be posted at night for surveillance of the secure area
where sensitive documents are kept.

3. Sensitive documents and other things shall be segregated in a secure storage
area. They may be examine<l only at supervised reading facilities within the
secure area. Copying or duplicating of such documents and other things is

prohibited.

4. Access to classified information supplied to the committee shall be limited
l)y the special counsel and the counsel to the minority to those staff members
with appropriate security clearances and a need to know.

r». Testimony taken or papers and things received by the staff shall not l)e

disclo.-ed or made public by the staff unless authorized by a majority of the
committee.

6. Executive session transcripts and records shall be available to designated
committee staff for inspection in person but may not be released or disclosed to

any other person without the consent of a majority of the committee.

]Mr. Seiberlix'g. Well, Mr. Chairman, reserving the right to object

I would like to point out that there is an inconsistency between the
rules for the staff and the rules for procedure that we have adopted in

that in ]:)aragraph 1 and paragraph 6 of the rules for the staff, it says
the staff shall not discuss with anyone outside of the staff', or disclose

to any other person, Avithout the con.sent of the connnittee, and so

I assume
The CiiAiRMAX'. Well, the staff is not going to initiate any of this.

Mr. Seiberlixg. But I assume that the staff is authorized to discuss
with any member of this committee mattei's that we are working on,
as long as it is in accordance with the procedures that we have adopted ?

Mr. Doar. Well
The CiiAiRiNiAX'. I believe that that is a correct ruling.

Mr. DoAR. That is a correct statement, Coniri'essman. The procedure
for discussion with the staff is that I would hope that they could be
referred through my office, and that arrangements be made so that
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we would have a system, and we will be responsive and prompt with
respect to that. And if there was a particular staff member that you
would like to see about a particular matter, of course we would do that.

Mr. Seiberling. Well, then, I think that these rules for the staff

ought to be revised to make clear

The Chairman. I would hope that the gentleman would not seek

at this point to suggest that v/e revise the rules. I think that what the
special counsel has called to our attention is that recognizing that

special counsel and other minority counsel arc acting for the staff,

that all of the inquiries be directed to them, and I am sure that they
will be accommodated.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Seiberling. Well, is it tlio chairman's understanding, and I am
not ready to yield yet, is it the chairman's understanding that these

rules for the staff do not prohibit the staff from discussing with mem-
bers of this committee, or disclosing to members of this committee in-

formation as long as it is in accordance with the procedures that we
have adopted ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

IMr. Seiberling. I thank the chairman, and I withdraw my
reservation.

Mr. Dennis. IMr. Chairman, reserving the right to object, I would
like to concur with what the gentloinan from Ohio says there. I be-

lieve, and I will just say that so far as I am concerned, I understand
that, although I would be happy to follow this procedure which has
been talked about here, but if I feel like talking to Mr. Doar, or Mr.
Jenner, or Mr. Garrison, or any of our other counse], I reserve, and
so far as I understand it, the right to do so, and I assume they will

obey their own rules. But, I am not necessarily going to go to Mr.
Doar and say, can I talk to IMr. Jenner, or vice versa.

The Chairman. Well, I am going to leave that to the discretion of
the gentleman.
There has been a motion to adjourn the committee.
All in favor, sa}^ aye.

[Chorus of "ayes.'"]

The Chairman. The committee stands adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 12 :05 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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The Chairi^ian. I would like to open this briefing session by stating

that I recognize that there are some members who have voiced objec-

tion to our holding these briefing sessions and closing them to the

public. And being aware of this, I intend to hold the meeting, ancl I

will announce the meeting if we can held it either on Thursday or i^ ri-

day because I think tomorrow we will be preoccupied, as counsel will

explain to the members of the committee. In the light of the objections

that have been raised, I think this is a question that will of necessity

be put to the committee. I do not want, at this time, to take the time ot

the members because I think the briefing is important. I do not want

to take the time to explain the reasons why we have continued these

briefino- sessions as briefing sessions and closed them to the public, l^ut

it was my judgment, based on consultation with Mr. Hutchinson and

counsel, and I thought that this was in the best interest of trying to

-conduct these proceedings in what I considered to be, up until now,_a

manner that shows that the committee is acting responsibly. And m
the light of some of the events that have been occurring and that wiil

occur, I thought that this briefing session was even more important to

be closed.

Mr. Conyers. Mr. Chairman ?

(131)
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The Chairmax. I would rather, if we are goino- to talk on this, I

would rather defer discussion until we have a meeting on this. I merely

want to note tliis so that if I do schedule a meeting for Thursday
sometime we will have a meeting and Ave will announce the subject of

the meeting,
Mr, CoNYi^RS. Well, Mr. Chairman, can I be put on record as being

one of the members who specifically objected to this rule of using

briefings to exclude the media ?

Mr, McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. The objection will be noted.

Mr. McClory.
Mr, MgClory. Mr. Chairman, I just want to ask this question. I

think this would be important. The meeting or whatever kind of

session we have on Thursday, is that to be oj^en or closed? I would
prefer that that be closed so that we would have an opportunity to

make that kind of a decision independent of the media.

Mr. Brooks. What kind of decision ?

Mr. McClory. The decision as to whether or not briefing sessions

shall be open to the public or whether they shall continue as we have
had them in the past.

The Chairmax. Well, those hearings would be open, the meeting
would have to be open in order to conduct the business of the commit-
tee, and then the committee could decide whether it would want to

close it.

Let us proceed. First of all, a couple of announcements. Yesterday
Mr. Doar advised me, and this was late in the day, of a letter received

by him addressed to him from the White House over the signature of

Mr. St. Clair, and it is a letter which we are hearing about and the

press asked us late last night, and I did not announce the receipt of the

letter. I do not think that tliere is too much substance to it, but I think

it is worthy of note. It is dated March 4.

Dear Mr. Doak :

I am sorry I was not available to receive your calls on Friday. I do have your
letter of Mareli 1. I will try to expedite a response to your request, but I do not

believe it can be accomplished before Wednesday of this T\-eek. If you have prolt-

lems regarding security clearances for your staff, I will be glad to assist you in

any way that I can.
Sincerely yours,

.Tames D. St. Clair.
Special Counsel to the President.

Also I would like to announce that on yesterday, and counsel will

give you further details, a call was received by Mr. Doar and
Mr. Jenner from the office of Judge Sirica inviting them to a proceed-

ing or hearing which will take place tomorrow morning, and counsel

will speak and address themselves to this. Based on what the com-
mittee may do between today and tomorrow, I think that tomorrow's

court appearance, if the committee so decides, will probably give us an

indication as to what we do beyond that. And I would hope that if we
have a meeting on Thursday, first of all a public meeting to consider

the question as to whether or not we hold any further briefing sessions,

because Avhile it seemed to me that these will become a part of what we
have to do, that we may have another meeting on Friday, and I will

announce that as soon as we find out what is going to take place

between todav and tomorrow.
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Beyond that. Mr. Doar and ]Mr. .Tenner both have status reports ^

whicii they will present to yon, and without delaying you any more,

jMr. Doar, you go ahead.

Mr. Doar. Good morning, members of the committee.

The first matters that I would like to report on deal with the sub-

ject that Chairman Rodino has already mentioned. On February 21,

we received from j\Ir. Jaworeki a list of the recordings, documents,

and other materials which he had received from the White House. On
Febniary 25, that is 1 week ago IVlonday, we requested late in the

day from Mr. St. Clair certain recordings of Presidential conversa-

tions. As a matter of fact, all of the recordings of Presidential conver-

sations that the special prosecutor had received, certain transcripts

of Presidential conversations, as well as a number of other documents
fui'nished to the special prosecutor, but not all of the documents which
were received. We also asked Mr. St. Clair, requested a few additional

documents that Ave had reviewed with Chairman Eodino and Congress-

man Hutchinson and whicli Mr. Jenner and I thought were necessary

to our investigation. We made it clear to Mr. St. Clair that this was
not a complete list, this was an initial request. In addition, we asked

him for a list of the materials that Mr. Jaworski had submitted, had
icquested and had not received. And finally we renewed discussion

with Mr. St. Clair about how White House files were indexed, and
we asked him if he could outline for us just how the White House files,

the Presidential papers, and the Presidential niemorandums were
filed, so that if we were to make a request for documents in any of

those files we would not go on a broad sweeping search, but could iden-

tifv particular files to which we could direct our inquiry.

The CiiAiRMAisr. Mr. Doar, will you please emphasize that that was
not a request for an index of files but merely just a suggestion that you
be advised as to how the files are kept.

Ml-. Doar. That is right. We did not request that there be a com-
plete index of the files, but we did ask Mv. St. Clair generally, in fact,

to give us an outline, if the White House files were indexed, and how
thev were indexed; if there was a logical method of indexing it was
anticipated that we would then ask Mr. St. Clair if he would give us

the index of certain of the files so we could see if there were particular

files within th.e category that we might ask for. We did not hear from
Mr. St. Clair, and so sent to Mr. St. Clair another letter on March 1.

askin.of him. saying to him that we renewed our request for a list of

materials that Mr. Jaworski had not received, because we feel that

it would be very difficult to frame requests without having that infor-

mation, if it is available. Mr. St. Clair had promised or atrreed to re-

fonsider his decision not to submit to us that list at the time he wi-ote

^Jr, Jaworski and told him he had no objef^tion to Mr. Jaworski fur-

nishing us with the list of materials which Mr. Jaworski had received.

As the chairman has related, T also told Mr. St. Clair that the com-
mittee was meeting on Tuesday, and tliat tlicy would exnect from us
a full briefinq- on what requests and what response we had gotten from
the '\"\liite House. .\s the chairman has indicated, at about 1 r-'lO ves-

terdav afternoon. T received the letter that the cliairman read from
Mr. St. Clair advising me that he had my more recent letter, and that
he would not be able to give us an answer to any of our requests until

1 Spf "Anpendix IV.—Work of the Impeachment Inqniry Staff as of March 1. 1974," in
book III, "Impeachment Inquirj-."
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Wednesday of this week at the earliest. I believe that is what the letter

said.

Late in the afternoon I received a call from the clerk of Jiidg&
Sirica or the law clerk of Judge Sirica saying that Judge Sirica liad

set a hearing or a proceeding in open court on Wednesday at 10

o'clock and that Judge Sirica had directed liis law clerk to call me and
to call Mr. Jenner and to invite us to be present at that hearing or
proceeding, and to present whatever views we might have with respect

to the appropriate disposition of the material, the sealed material

which the grand jury handed to Judge Sirica on Friday when they
returned their indictments. I told the law cleark that I would have
no authority, had no authority to respond to their invitation, that I

would report the telephone conversation immediately to the Chairman,
and that I would report to the committee in the morning, and that

until the committee had considered the matter that that was as far as

I could go.

I then called Chairman Rodino, and Mr. Jenner and I arranged to

meet with Mr. Hutchinson and Chairman Rodino last night, and we
reported fully on this conversation to them. I know nothing more about

the proceeding. All I know is I was advised that Mr. St. Clair initiated

this by going to the courthouse, and this is secondhand, hearsay in-

formation, but that he initiated this by going to the courthouse yes-

terday afternoon at about 2 o'clock to Judge Sirica's chambers, and
then shortly thereafter Mr. Ben-Veniste of the Special Prosecutor's

Office appeared at Judge Sirica's ofiice with several other of his associ-

ate counsel. Mr. Jaworski was out of town, and I did know that because

I attempted to speak to him earlier in the morning on another subject.

And that perhaps some short time later Mr. Wilson and another at-

torney who represents Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlichman appeared

at Judge Sirica's chambers, and there was a closed conference among
those lawyers for about an hour and a half. At the end of that hour

and a half there was this brief announcement that you have undoubt-

edly read about in the paper that the Judge would hold or hear from
interested counsel on Wednesday at 10 o'clock, and that invitation had
been sent to all of the attorneys involved, which would be Mr. Jawor-

ski, Mr. St. Clair, the attorneys for the defendants, and to Mr. Jenner

and myself. And that is the extent of the information I have to report

to the committee with respect to Mr. St. Clair's response to our re-

quest and, second of all, the conversation that I had with Judge
Sirica's law clerk.

The Chairman. At this point, although we are not in a formal

meeting, but in light of the invitation that was addressed to the

counsel, and in light of the circumstances that occurred the last time

when Mr. Doar proceeded to go before a judge on a matter of a stipula-

tion, I think it would be well for the members to express themselves.

And I would hope that in the light of the invitation, and the need

to know, that we authorize Mr. Doar to go just so long as we do not.

submit him to the jurisdiction of the court.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. I would like to point out that I am one of those people

who wrote such a letter to Judge Waddy. I was vei^ much disturbed
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about counsel going to that court, subjecting this committee to any
part of their jurisdiction. I feel the same way, even more strongly in

this instance.

As I understand the chairman's view, and I have not discussed this

with you previously, your proposal is that Doar go, but not subject

this committee in any way to their jurisdiction. And I would point out
that whatever is done in that courtroom should not in any way
jeopardize the full congressional authority to secure those sealed docu-
ments that were turned over to Judge Sirica and other documents,
tapes, material that they have. And counsel, I would hope, and I would
make publicly clear, if necessary, my feelings that the Congress should
not jeopardize in any way its complete authority to ask for, if nec-

essary to subpena from Judge Sirica that material, the sealed

document and other materials.

Mr. ]McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Brooks. And I think it is unthinkable that this Congress would
throw away its jurisdiction by going down there and having our
lawyers or any lawyers represent the Congress in a proceeding as to

what ought to be done with that material when I think the Constitu-

tion already makes clear that that material should rightfully be turned
over to this committee for consideration.

Mr. ]\IcClory. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Kastexmeier. ISIr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. I want to concur with the views that are expressed,

and it seems to me that the Judiciary really has no authority with
respect to the jurisdiction which this committee and this House of
Representatives is exercising now in this impeacliment inquiry. And
it is my feeling that the sole function of the court in this instance is to

comply with what I understand to bo the request of the grand jury
itself, that the envelope or whatever it was that was delivered to the
court, was delivered to the court for delivery to this committee. And
Judge Sirica should be no more than a conduit to carrj- out tlie wishes
of the grand juiy.

Mr. Kastexmeier. Mr. Chairman?
Tlie CiiAipjiiAx. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastexmeier. May I just ask counsel, both Mr. Doar and

Mr. Jenner, what analysis they have made of the options available to

us and, indeed, to the court with reference to these materials, and with
due respect to the comments made by both my colleagues, with respect

to what we might do, nonetheless, and do we have the option ultimatoly
in some fashion to derive these materials from Judge Sirica notwith-
standing his own feelings about the matter?
Mr. Doar. Well, it is my judgment that we do have the right and the

authority to obtain these materials from Judge Sirica.

However, I fully agree with what Congressman Brooks has said
about not submitting to the jurisdiction of the court. However, it

seems to me that it would be appropriate for counsel to go to the court-
room tomorrow morning, to make it exactly clear that we are not
entering an appearance, we are not submitting to the jurisdiction of
the court, but to recite the authority of the House under the resolution
to make this inquiry, to express our professional opinion that those
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documents are necessary for the inquiry, and to advise the court that

the committee is pre]:>ared to receive them.
]\rr. Brooks. Pardon me, inchiding the sealed document that was

tui-ned over by the grand jury ?

Afi". DoAR. Yes. Certainly.
]\rr. Brooks. We Avill be prepared to receive them now for the

committee?
Mr. T)oAR. That is correct.

^Fr. McClory. Mr. Chairman?
Tlie CiiAiR:\rAX. ]Mr. Jenner, do you concur with that ?

Mr. Jexxer. I share that view fully and especially, as I have
already expressed, as I have said, Mr. CJiairman, and ladies and gen-
tleme]i, heretofore it has long- been my view that the House of Repre-
sentatives and this committee as its arm in conducting an imjieachment
investigation has a very superior, overriding constitutional not only
duty and responsibility, but it has by implication, strong implication
all of the powers afforded under the Constitution to conduct a fully,

firm, responsible investigation and to obtain these materials.

However, as this House has always been res]5ectful to the judicial

branch, as well as the executive branch, having been invited by Judge
Sirica, whose communication was to ^Iv. T)oar and to me, and recog-
nizing that he was not asking the coinmittee to appear, but he was
askint;: us as counsel to appear, that in due respect to the judicial branch
and to Judge i^irica, he having; asked ns to appear, and express our
views with respect to the function of this committee in conducting the
investigation, that we be permitted to do so, making clear, as has
always been both M)'. Doai''s nnd my position, and I understand that
io be the position of all of the distino-nished members of this com-
mittee, that the House is a coordinate but indei~)endent branch, and to

make api^ropriate remarks of reservation without offending Judge
Sirica, without exacerbating the efforts of this committee to receive

these materials, and that we will confiine ourselves to remarks of that-

character and express to the Judge our opinions on Dresentments and
the powers and discretion the court has to do this voluntarilv.

]\rr. INfcCLORY. Mr. Chairman ?

Ms. HoT/TZMAX. ]Mr. Chairman?
!Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman. I omitted one thing that I intended to

sav. Mav I just complete one thing?

Tlie CiiAiRMAx. "Well, Mr. Kastenmeier was addressing questions.

!Mr. Kastexmeier. I only wanted to follow up by saving then, from
what Tou stated there is no other practical option available to ns other

tliP" that which von have recommended?
^Nfr. Jexxer. T think we would olfend the judge if we did not ap-

pear. And may T suggest that I personally would wish that yon would
consider that the House of Representatives, this committee, its coun-

sel having been invited, that it would look—I do not know Avhat the

intorpretation would be if we did not appear, at least in response.

]\rr. Kastexmeter. Thank von very much.
^Tr. Hoar. Could T add to that. Congressman ?

^fr. 7v ASTEx:^rETER. Yes.
"Sir. DoAR. T think it is also. fro7n the standpoint of the i^ublic, thnt

it is, it woidd be necessarv under thepe circumstances and the wav the
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invitation was given that a statement be made with respect to the

authority and power of a co-equal branch in terms of the way Con-
gressman Brooks and Congressman McClory have stated it. And if

we said nothing, did not go at all, that the position of the House would
likely be misunderstood by the American public.

Mr. McClory. Mi: Chairman. ?

Mr. HuxGATE. ^Ir. Chairman ?

The Chairman. ]Mr. ^McClory.
Mr. ]\IcClory. Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to conclude with one

other thought that I inadvertently left out, and that is that it seems
to me extremely important that in the receipt of this euA'elope that we
adhere to the rule of confidentiality already adopted by this committee
until such time as such materials be appropriately made public and
that that rule of confidentiality should apply very rigidly.

Mr. Jexxer. Could I say something, 5lr. Chairman, on that re-

mark and for the whole committee. As you will recall, you distin-

guished ladies and gentleman did adopt a confidential rule last week,
and pursuant to your having adopted it we sent requests, as will be
rejjorted to you in the status report in a few moments, to various
agencies for the receipt of what will be we antici])ate sensitive docu-
ments. So that if this material is received through Judge Sirica to-

morrow, it is Mr. Doar's intention and mine, if you grant us authority
to appear, to say that the House committee has responsibility drafted
and adopted these confidentiality rules, and if the materials are de-

liA'ered to Mr. Hoar and me they will be held strictly in accord-mco
with those confidentiality rules.

Mr. Hoar. I would add that I Avould not think there would be any
question about that, that the material is under the rules, as all mate-
rial that is received by subpena or otherwise, and this material would
qualify just like any other material.

Tlie Ciiairmax. Mr. Hungate.
]Mr. Huxgate. Mr. Chairman, this is just a horseback instinct, and

I would be guided, of course, by the views of counsel. This is a very
serious matter, and I am sure they have given it considerable thought.
Initially I would say amen to what Mr. Brooks has said and hallelujah
to what Mr. McClory has said, and on the issue of jurisdiction I would
ask counsel are there not jurisdictions in which it is possible to appear,
make a special appearance to contest the jurisdiction, and in some
jurisdictions the mere special appearance to contest the jurisdiction

gives jurisdiction ?

Mr. Hoar. Well. I think there are places where you can make special

appearances, and it may be though I am not familiar Avith whetlier or
not that by doing that that confers jurisdiction. But it would seem
to me that we Avould not even get that far with respect to designating
oursehes as making an appearance. There is nothing untraditional
about the Plouse of Representatives writing to the Judicial^ and
requesting material.

Mr. Huxgate. If counsel will pardon me, that is exactly the sort of
suggestion I was going to have, that a letter perhaps from the com-
mittee or the chairman indicating appropriate concern and regard
I think might be Avell in order and courteous. I am concerned that they
do not get the idea that the jurisdiction is down thei-e and not here.
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I am concerned, and I am not an unmitigated fan of Judge Sirica.

Early on in this investigation Joe Kauh, of whom I am not an unmiti-

.gated fan either, had some comments about some of the ways that

these proceedings were conducted by Judge Sirica that may not have
been totally fair to some of the defendants. When he retires and is

asked to select a trial judge for this matter and selects himself, that

is almost an unbecoming lack of modesty as far as I am concerned. So,

I am very much concerned that no one get the impression that the

jurisdiction is not here. And I suppose if necessary we could have

Judge Sirica come here, and understand that the responsibility is in

this committee, agaiii having expressed my instincts I feci better now,

but I would, of course, wish to do what counsel recommends, Ijut I

wanted them to know my feelings on it.

Thank you.

Mr. DoAR. Well, I would agree with Congressman Ilungate that

we should make that as clear as possible, and spell it out in a prepared

statement that we were not appearing, that we were responding to an
invitation by Judge Sirica to come to the courtroom, and we were

there because of that reason.

]Mr. HuNGATE. Is counsel then suggesting that be done by letter or in

person or both or what ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I think because of the circumstances that it is prob-

ably necessary that it be done in person because

JNIr. HuNGATE. Could that be preceded by a letter that is made
public?
The CiiATRiMAN. I would advise against a letter since the committee

should not become involved at all at this point.

]SIr. Jenner. I would share that view, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I would like to concur with what has

been said about saving the jurisdictional question, and making sure

we do not waive anything there. Under the practice with which I have

been familiar, I think this would be a special appearance, but whether

you call it a special appearance or any kind of appearance here I do

not Imow, and I am completely willing to leave that to counsel. I do

think that we would not be merely discourteous, but very foolish not

to go down. I do not think we should give the court the idea that we
have to ask him for those papers. On the other hand, if he was to give

them to us. I think we should take them with out-stretched hands be-

cause obviously, this is material to our inquiry, and if the judge is in

the frame of mind, without being formally asked to recognize our
jurisdiction, I think Ave should cooperate with him.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. INIr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. Thank you. I would like to stress this portion of the

discussion, that since these documents, sealed in an envelope, ap-

parently intended for this committee by the grand jury are clearly

relevant to our inquiry, then I do not see the purpose of this visit

without making this request. And I urge the counsel, and I urge this

committee to make a direct request and to have that matter resolved,

hopefully leaving with the sealed envelope upon your meeting to-

morrow.
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Mr. DoAR. Well, Cono^ressman-
Mr. CoNTEEs. Yes ; I will yield to you.

Mr. DoAR [continuing]. Congressman, it would be my view, and I
think Mr. Jenner's view" that we would state that this committee is

authorized by the House to conduct this inquiry, and that we are
authorized to secure all information necessary to make a full and com-
jDlete inquiry, and that from the basis of the information that we have
that those materials are necessary for the inquiry, and we would
request that they be delivered to us.

Mr. CoNTERS. Surely.
Mr. DoAR. In a courteous way, and as counsel for the committee,

just like when we request dociunents from other sources.

Mr. CoNTERS. At another point at this briefing or during this brief-

ing, or meeting, or whatever it is, Mr. Chairman, I would like to raise

the question of any problems that might be posed with the issuance of
a subpena running directly to the President for the materials that
have been previously requested in two letters from Mr. St. Clair.

The Chairman. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Jenner referred to the

discretion which is available to Judge Sirica in this matter, and I
wish that here Mr. Doar would explore what they think his discretion

is in the circumstances. Judge Sirica has, after all, been extremely
vigorous in his conduct of this matter, related matters up until now.
These grand jury proceedings and the report are, without question,

secret, and in his custody. And I would like to know what your view
is as to just how much discretion he does have.

Mr. DoAR. "Well, we have not had an opportunity to completely
study this question. But it is my opinion, tentative opinion that Judge
Sirica does not have discretion not to turn these materials over to us.

First there is a presentment, and a presentment apparently which
was intended to come to this committee. And the evidence in the suit-

cases relate to the presentment. And I do not believe that rules of the
court bar the judge from doing this. It seems to me that the one pos-

sible consideration that might come to the judge's mind, and only be-

cause in ordinary circumstances this is the way this sort of thing comes
up, is that there is a possibility that the rights of the defendants at

that trial will be prejudiced unless the material was kept secret. And
therefore the judge would liaA^e some discretion not to turn it over
to the committee.

It is my opinion that sort of reasoning in this instance is misplaced
because of the fact that there is a higher duty, a counterbalancing, a

higher counterbalancing force, if you will, in the importance of this

constitutional inquiry, and that under those circumstances the court
should turn the materials over to the committee. And that if at a

later time, depending upon the circumstances that cannot be foreseen,

some materials become public, as probably inevitably they will, then
the courts can deal with those particular questions when they are

raised by particular defendants. And it is conceivable down the road
sometime that a defendant might be able to argue that his right to a
fair trial was prejudiced because of the turning over of these docu-
ments. But if that were to be the case, still, because of the extreme
constitutional authority under which this committee is operating, and
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the importance that there be public disclosure of these materials with-
in the rules of responsibility of this committee, I would say that the
material would have to be turned over.

Mr. Mayne. Do you think he has any discretion to make any evalu-
ation of the evidence to turn over what he considers hard evidence,
but not do anything that was based on mere conjecture or rumor?
Mr. I)oAR. No : I would not. In the fii-st place, I do not think it would

be appropriate for counsel to get into that kind of a discussion with
the judge in this kind of a proceeding tomorrow, because it gets into
the merits of the thing. I think that that issue, if it came up at all,

Avould come up after this committee decided to request by subpena the
material from Judge Sirica. But I do not believe he would have a
right to sift the material and decide well, the committee should get
this and not get that.

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie ?

Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman, I have two questions. I understood
you to talk about evidence in suitcases. I thought we were talking about
a white envelope.

Mr. DoAR. Well, there were two suitcases handed up to the judge
in addition to the envelope. And as I understand the report, one of
the attorneys for the Special Prosecutor said that the material in the
suitcases related to the document in the envelope, and the keys to the

suitcases were in the envelope, so that there are the three things that
go together. They are part and parcel of the same package.
Mr. Waldie. Tlien the final question. Partly your response to tlie

last question answered it on the authority of Judge Sirica, but in tliat

conference that took place yesterday afternoon, the results of which
an invitation was extended apparently to interested attorneys, you
or Mr. Jenner were not invited to that conference, I presume, and
have you been briefed on what occurred at that conference? Do you
have anv idea what took place ?

Mr. Doar. No. We have not been briefed. We have not asked. No
one has told us.

Mr. Waldie. Do you have any idea what tomorrow will be about ?

Mr. Doar. No. I think Judge Sirica is going, if I understand what
the clerk said, he is going to ask for views from the counsel as to what
thev believe should be done with the envelope and the suitcases.

Mr. Waldie. Under the belief that he is not certain as to what dis-

cretion or authority he possesses?

Mr. Doar. I have no indication that that is why he is doing that.

Mr. Waldie. And just a final question. You and Mr. Jenner ai-e

certain as to what discretion and authority he possesses in that regard,

are you not ?

Mr. Doar. I believe we are. I have not completely researched it,

but I believe that under these circumstances
Mr. Waldie. You should have the keys and the suitcases ?

Mr. Doar. It should come to this committee.
Mr. Jexxer. Mr. Doar and I spent several hours reviewing this

last night, and also wnth Chairman Rodino and Mr. Hutchinson. And
Mr. Doar is expressing our joint views on the matter.
Now, when I said discretion, Congressman Mayne, what I had in

mind was first that Judge Sirica, in performing his judicial duty, must
give consideration to the facts, to the rules adopted by this committee
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last week, that the committee is acting: responsibly, and it has in

mind, as well as Judge Sirica, the ])ossible prejudice of persons who
are indicted. But he also will consider the overridino; authority and
obligation and responsibility of this committee in conducting an im-

2)eachment.
The CiiAiRMAX. ^ir. Sandman.
Mr. Saxdmax. Mr. Doar. I am somewhat confused as to what we

are doing in this action. As I understand what they are doing here,

the grand jury has made up a presentment which inyolyes the Pres-

ident. Is this true?

Mr. ])oAR. We do not know.
Mr. Jexxer. We do not know.
Mr. Saxdmax. Well, the New York Times and the Washington

Post haye already printed great big articles about this, so somebody
knows.
Now, if they haye any eyidence, and I am sure we should haye it,

is this what we are talking about? Ai-e we talking about getting evi-

dence that this committee should work with, or are we acquiescing

to the form of what I consider a presentment without jurisdiction at

all ? The grand jury has no right to indict the President. Do they haye
any right to make a presentment against him ?

Mr. Doar. They haye a right to make a presentment
;
yes.

Mr. Saxdmax. They haye ?

Mr. Doar. They do.'

Ml-. Jexxer. This is an old common law going way, way back for

hundreds of years.

Mr. Saxdmax. Well, what I am afraid of doing here. T cannot see

this committee subrogating its authority and being guided by present-

ment from these people when all they haye heard is a case against the

individual. I mean, we are not doing that, are we ?

Mr. Jexxer. No, we are not. We would receiye the proof and ex-

amine it under the rules of confidentiality that you adopted last week,
and ultimately we and you would reach our own judgments as to the

thrust of and the inferences to be drawn from the documents.
The Chairmax. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Thank you. It is my understanding that the coun-
sel for the various parties have been given an order to show cause or

some sort of formal order by the judge to appear, but that you merely
have an invitation or request ; is that correct ?

Mr. Doar. I do not know if the other parties have been given any
kind of a formal order to show cause. But we have just been, we are
iuA'ited, and that is all.

Mr. Seiberltxg. But you are in a different position from the other
counsel that will be there ? You are not

Mr. Doar. We are in a different position.

Mr. Seiberlixg. You are not invited to argue an issue ?

Mr. Jexxer. The court has no jurisdiction over us or this committee,
but he does have a jurisdiction over the defendants and their counsel.

Mr. Seiberlixg. But they have been directed to appear and argue
what shoidd be done with these documents. But you have merely been
requested to attend and present whatever points you wish, is that the
basic situation ?

Mr. Doar. Invited to attend.

41-018—75—pt. 1 10
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Mr. Seiberling. Now, is this going to be a hearing on camera or in

public session ?

Mr. DoAR. My understanding is it is going to be open court.

Ml'. Seiberling. I see. Well, that certainly makes it a little bit more
formal.
Now, as I understand it, you are in essence going to confine your-

selves to making clear to the judge what our rules of confidentiality

are so that there will be no question about improper disclosure of grand
jury evidence; and, second, that you believe that this committee has
the authority in any event to obtain this material, or whatever the

judge may decide to do, is that in essence it ?

]\Ir. .Tenner. That is correct.

Mr. DoAR. Well, I think I would add only that we would say that

the committee was investigating and this material appeared to be
necessary for the investigation and request it. So that the court would
know that this committee wanted the material.

Mr. Seiberling. So in addition to stating the position of the com-
mittee you plan to say that the committee—are you going to make a
request on the record that they be turned over then ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I did not anticipate making a request on behalf of

the committee, but I was going to, as counsel, I was going to suggest

that the request be made.
Mr. Seiberling. But in terms of what you tell Judge Sirica you are

not going to make a request tomorrow on behalf of the committee that

they be turned over ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, the request would be in the same form as we make
with respect to material from anybody.
Mr. Seiberling. In other words, an informal request ?

Mr. DoAR. An informal request. It is not a demand, it is not an
assertion of authority or power, and it is not

Mr. Seiberling. It is the same as the request you made to other
agencies of the Government ?

Mr. Jenner. And we want to be very careful not to submit to the
jurisdiction of the court.

Mr. Seiberling. That is the thing I think is a little ticklish here. If
you make a request are you, in effect, are you going to make it clear

that this is done without, in effect, making yourself a party to that
proceeding ?

Mr. Jenner. I think if we made a demand we would be in difficulty

with respect to submission, but if we make, as counsel, a request, that

we do preserve the position of this committee and the House of Repre-
sentatives.

Mr. Seiberling. I yield.

The Chairman. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, it is not entirely clear to me. On the one hand you suggest

that the judge has very little, if any, discretion in this matter from our
point of view. But from the point of view of protecting the defendants'
rights, he might have some discretion to impound, for example, that

presentment until such time as the trials were had ?

Mr. DoAR. What I meant was that if it were not for this committee,

and were the judge to consider this, a presentment and grand jury ma-
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terial under normal circumstances, under ordinary circumstances, there

are some instances where the judge seals it for a time.

Mr. Cohen. Eight. In effect impounds the report mitil such time as

he releases it.

Mr.DoAR. Yes.

Mr. CoHEN". Since he does have some discretion in this matter, is it

your professional judgment that if there is an appeal, this order could
be appealed by either the defendants or counsel for the President ? Is

tliat an appealable order on his part if he ordered it turned over to this

committee, for example ? And the reason I ask the question is if it is

appealable, and we do get bogged down in some appeal situation, ob-

viously you are going to have to come back for a recommendation to

the committee about subpenaing tlie material, which raises the other
query raised last week of have you got some guidelines for us as

to how we go about enforcing our subpenas?
Mr. DoAR. Well, the appeal would not be by this committee, but the

question about whether or not one of the defendants' attorneys, or
whether Mr. St. Clair would have any right to appeal, or right to seek
extraordinary relief in the court of appeals, I suppose that they would
have an opj^ortunity to apply for that. And I am just not certain of
that. But in ordinary circumstances

Mr. Cohen. But in that event, you would presumably recommend
that we subpena the material i

Mr. DoAR. Well, I would not want to—I would want to think about
what the circumstances were before making a recommendation.

]\Ir. Cohen. I still would like to have the recommendations as to how
we enforce our subpenas sometime soon.

The Chairman. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Mr. Doar, I am becoming somewhat uneasy about the

committee gettmg involved in all of this for this reason, that obviously
Mr. St. Clair is going to say that this testimony was developed in an
adversary procedure, in the Judical Branch of Government, and I
would assume that he would say we were not entitled to it because we
have no right to intermingle with what a grand jury has done. Conse-
quently, if we do, in fact, take it, and I assume that you are going to

make, you are going to request that we receive it, I am looking down
at the months and years ahead where we might be open to severe criti-

cism, especially if some of these indictments, or most of them fail, and
they do not result in convictions, that people could say, and I think
properly, that we were overinfluenced by the attitude and by the recom-
mendations of the grand jury. And I am wondering if you and co-

counsel have thought of the possibility of actually relinquishing any
claim to these and saying that we will develop our own testimony, in

our own way, with the vast subpena power that we have?
Mr. Doar. Well, I have considered that. But it seems to me that

in view of the fact of the great public interest in this material, and
the importance of an expeditious development of it, of all avenues
of proof in this case. Father Drinan, that I do not believe that this

committee would be subject to criticism for receiving this material

from the grand jury under the rules that it has provided for itself in

conducting this inquiry.
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^Ir. Dktxax. Well, on the assumjition that the judge rules in favor
of the inipeachnient inquir}- here tomorrow, I feel pretty certain tjiat

Mr. St. Clair will appeal, and we will be involved in court litigation.

And then the question will be, well, shall we go ahead with our own
in(]uii"ies, and where are we? And I really think that it is a very difH-

cult thing, but my own intuition is that our posture would l>e better

if we would say, if the judge directs it to us without our request even.

then I suppose that we could accept it under certain circumstances, but
it seems to me we should be very careful of not opening ourselves to

the suggestion that we have been influenced by what that grand jury
concluded from a situation in which this was an adversary procedure,

they were up to indict other individuals and they came to these

conclusions.

Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinax. Yes.
Mr. Seiberlixg. Is it practical to make a distinction between the

evidence in the two suitcases and the presentment itself, and that we
would confine our request to the evidence?

Mr. DoAR. No. I think that the evidence is part of tlie presentment
and relates to the presentment. I could speculate on that, but I think
the whole package would go together.

The CiiAiRMAX^. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. HuTciiixsox. Mr. Chairman, I would like to raise this question.

Suppose that the issue before the judge tomorrow does not turn at all

upon whether a matter should be turned over to this committee, but

suppose rather that the issue should turn upon whether the present-

ment is at all valid. Perhaps it might be the contention of other c^imsel

that the grand juiy had no power to make a presentment, and maybe
that is going to be the issue before that judge tomorrow, as to whether
this thing is anytliing but a nullity. If he decides it is a nullity, why it

is of no value at all. But do you not supjjose they might argue that

rather than argue about where it should go?
Mr. Jexx^er. Well, ^Mr. Hutchinson, if I may respond, sir, that is a

possibility, but that would not be—I would not anticipate that we as

counsel for this committee will undertake to voice any views as to tliat

respect.

Mr. HuTcmxsox. I would not think we would, no.

Mr. Jexx'^er. But we might voice views, if you please, with respect

to the documents.
Mr. Brooks. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. HuTciiiNsox. You mean the material in the suitcases ?

Mr. Jexxer. That is right, sir.

Mr. Brooks. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. HuTCiiixsoN. Yes, I yield.

Mr. Brooks. Would it not be possible, on the other end of the spec-

trum, Mr. Jenner, for Mr. Jaworski to be arguing before the court

with Judge Sirica that he ought to turn the presentment over to him.
and that he himself, with the Special Prosecutor's authority, could
possibly indict the President on the basis of that, and have that mate-
rial turned over to him to take before that grand jury, or the recon-

vened grand jury, the continuation of it, and argue that as the other
end of that same spectrum ?
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Mr. Jenxer. Congressman Brooks, sir, if you do not mind my re-

sponding this way, I can imagine I suppose many difficulties and many
ai'guments in this connection. It is my view, ho^Yever, and I think Mr.
Doar's, that it is going to come down to Judge Sirica determining the

general law with respect to the presentments and the riglit of a judge
to Avhom a presentment is made to make public disclosure, and that

that will be the issue that is uppermost, and the sole issue uppermost in

Judge Sirica's mind. And a returning of the presentment to the Spe-
cial Prosecutor, Avho assisted the grand jury in preparing that present-

ment, would be sort of footless.

Ms. HoLTZMAX. JNIr. Cliairman?
Tlie Chairmax. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. DoxoiiFE. I would like to get the opinion of counsel. Is it your

opinion that this committee has a right to this envelope, and to the

contents of this suitcase by way of a subpena ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, I believe it does.

Mr. Jexx-^er. And I sliai'e that.

Mr. DoxoiiLE. And if that is so, what do you expect to accomplisli

by appearing down there tomorrow ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, it seems to me that if the policy of this commit-
tee has been that if materials can be obtained without subpena, that

they should be obtained that way, and if by going down there and
making it known that the committee is interested in these materials

that are turned over to us, then you obtain the materials without the

subpena. That is all.

Mr. Jex'xer. And without a confrontation.

Mr. Doxoiiue. Is it your intent to represent to the court that you
are down there by way of an acceptance of the iuAdtation of Judge
Sirica ?

Mr. DoAR. That is right.

Mr. DoxoiiuE. And that you are not down there to make any state-

ments in behalf of this committee or that would be binding upon
this committee ?

]Mr. DoAR. That is exactly right. That is exactly riglit.

The Chairmax^. Ms. Holtzman.
Mr. Dox'oiitiE. And you are going to state it has been your personal

opinion that this, that this should be done, and it is not the opinion
or you are not reflecting the thinking of the members of the Judiciary
Committee ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

The Chairmax'. Ms. Holtzman.
]Ms. HoLTZMAX'. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I guess my question has to do with some confusion I have along the

lines of Mr. Donohue's question with respect to the purpose of appear-
ing there tomorrow to make our request for or to indicate our interest

in the documents. I understand the point about being respectful to the

court, but my question to you is if the committee intends in any event
to request the documents, then why are we doing it in this form which
has been determined by various other parties, with which we have
no jurisdictional involvement at this point? Why have we not picked
our forum and our time to make the request? I mean, w^ould it not

be proper, for example, to advise the judge today that the committee
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intends to request these materials, and to make our formal request,,

not in the context of that judicial proceeding, but in terms of our own
time and place ?

Mr. Dennis. Would the gentlewoman yield ?

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Well, I would like, if I could, to get him to answer
that.

Mr. Dennis. Well, sure.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. I have waited a long time.

Mr. DoAR. Well, that is an alternative way of doing it. My only
thought was that in view of the fact that the judge has set this hear-

ing for tomorrow, and has invited counsel to come, that it would be
appropriate for counsel to go down there and make our very limited

presence known, and without in any way foreclosing this committee
from acting in any way it wanted with respect to formally requesting

the documents.
Ms. HoLTZMAx. But that was not really what I was driving at. I have

no objection to our being respectful and appearing tomorrow if we
simply say we are here to listen and to hear and represent the commit-
tee in a special manner. But I do not understand why we are making
our request for documents in that judicial proceeding as opposed to

making that request as we do in normal circumstances, by means of a
letter or otherwise. And I think that we are in essence—while we may
not be technically submitting to the jurisdiction of the court—we are

in essence allowing the court itself to determine when we make our
requests and how we make them.
Mr. CoNYERS. Would the gentlewoman yield briefly ?

]Ms. HoLTZMAN. Well, Mr. Dennis asked.

Mr. Dennis. I thank the gentlewoman for yielding. I just want to-

comment that when and if we get into subpena, in my opinion, we are

going to get into litigation ; and if the court is disposed to hand these

over without any request from us, or any consent to jurisdiction or
anything else, and we want to move this thing along, I think we v\'oidd

be kind of foolish to invite litigation.

Mr. Conyers. Would the gentlewoman yield ?

Ms. HoLTZMAN. I yield.

Mr. Conyers. This colloqu}^ has now confirmed my view that tliis

committee ought to vote a simple authorization or request for the docu-
ments instead of waiting to find out what is going to happen at this

invitation, and that at the appropriate time, Mr. Chairman, I am going^

to submit such a simple motion.
Mr. Wiggins. jNIr. Chairman ?

Tlie Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for yielding.

As I understand this meeting, it may not be the proper forum for

motions. But if it is I might have one. But let me then make a sugges-
tion, that rather than a motion, so that we have some precise instruc-

tions to counsel as to how they shoidd deal with this matter, I am
going to read something I just scratched out which I think serves the
purpose of the committee and protects it adequately. And I beg your
indulgence just for a second.

Without submitting to the jurisdiction of the court for any purpose, special

counsel is authorized and directed to attend the meeting on March 6, 1974, in the
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chambers of Judge Sirica in the city of Washington for the sole purpose of receiv-

ing, without conditions, from Judge Sirica, any material in his possession, cus-

tody, or control relevant to the impeachment inquiry of the President.

I want to underline the operative words, "receiving only," and "not

agreeing to conditions." You are there to accept that which is ten-

dered, but subject to no conditions. That would preclude the judge

from giving the material to you upon your assurance in any way of

what we would do with that material. But it cannot be argued, I think^

successfully that we should not expedite the proceedings to the extent

of walking downtown and receiving evidence which may bear upon our

inquiry, and that we ought to instruct counsel accordingly.

Mv. Brooks. Would the gentleman yield for a one-word amendment ?

Instead of "relevant," you should use the word "necessary" because

otherwise the judge might find that he has to determine the relevance

of each bit of information submitted to the committee.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, the whole thing is predicated on an assumption.

The assumption is this whole matter bears upon the President. I have
no notion what he may have down there, and I take it that we only

wish to take that information which deals with our inquiry, and not

some extraneous data, if it is clearly revealed to be extraneous. And
that is my only purjKDse.

The Chairmax. Gentlemen, I would like to state, and I would hope

that we would defer any effort to make motion because this is not a

meeting. But I thought we would get a consensus, and I think that one
thing we have got to be aware of is that none of us know what is in

those briefcases and what is in that envelope. We have read in the-

newspapers, we have heard lots of conjecturing, and we can assume a

great deal. Nor can any of us anticipate, except to tiy to conjecture

again and speculate as to what arguments are going to be made.

We have two very able counsel who are going to have to anticipate

what is going to take place. And I would think that based on the fact

we have two professionals who have been thinking this out, and with

no reflection on anyone else here, but knowing that they are going to

be the ones if, indeed, they go to the court in compliance, not in com-
pliance, but accepting an invitation extended by the court only to

expedite this proceeding, it would seem to me that attempting to tie

the hands of counsel at this time with any kind of language, or any
kind of an effort to just make it impossible for them to do what is best

in the interest of this committee, would be a most unwise act. And I

would think if we waited until now, and we have the power of sub-

pena, and I agree with the gentleman from Indiana, as soon as we-

start issuing subpenas we are going to find ourselves in court and in

litigation, and so if we can receive tliis material without being bound,

without submitting to the jurisdiction, and no one questions the au-

thority of this cormnittee to search and inquire into the subpenaed docu-

ments, it would appear to me that the best way to serve this commit-
tee is to rely on the counsel who have heard what we have had to say

at this time, knowing that they are not to be bound, knowing that the

committee is not to be bound, knowing that we are not to submit to

their jurisdiction, and merely accepting this invitation which under all

circumstances we could not possibly ignore if we wanted to, and indeed^

do a serious job for this committee.



148

yiv. Coxyp:rs. ]\Ir. Chairman, I share the chairman's view, and I

think that upon reflection motions would not be appropriate at this

time. I would urge though the consideration of a stronger position

after he retui'ns, if he does not return with the documents, that would
simply put this committee on record as officially requesting those

materials if they do, indeed, relate to the work of this committee.
The Chairman. AVell, I certainly support that and endorse that view

wliolelieartedly.

Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Wai.die. May I ask counsel just one question? AVe are con-

cerned about subjecting or submitting ourselves to jurisdiction of

Sirica. How does St. Clair avoid that problem ?

Mr. DoAR. How does he avoid submitting to the jurisdiction ?

]Mr. Waldie. Yes, his client ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, he may lie sul)mitting to the jurisdiction. He may
be making some kind of a special appearance to avoid that. I cannot
answer that question.

Mr. Waldie. Well, it would seem to me that would be a quick one
to find the aiisw^er to. Pie certainly is not going to submit the Presi-

dent to Sirica or to a grand jury, and if he can do it and be in cham-
bers, and flit from hearing to hearing, I do not see why we cannot
with less risk.

Mr. D(\\R. Well, in the Sir'/ca v. Cooc case, or Nixon v. Sirira, the

President made a special limited appearance just exactly for limited

purposes, and the court permitted tliat.

Mr. Waldie. Well, then, I would think avc are giving undue con-

cern about submitting ourselves to jurisdiction if Mr. St. Clair can
avoid it, and then we certainly should be able to avoid it.

]Mr. Jenner. And the court of appeals recognized that special, lim-

ited api:)earance in that case.

The CiiAiRMA-N. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HooAN. Mr. Chairman, I would like to turn to a different subject.

On page 20, the last sentence says, ''Within the next 2 weeks, senior

mem])ers of the staff will determine which matters should be pursued
further.'' It seems to me that the decision as to whicli matters should
be pursued further is the resj^onsibility of the committee rather than
the staff. And in that context, I note tliat a new item that I cannot
recall ever having appeared in any of the outlines has appeared in

what is befoi-e us today. And that relates to the dismantling of the

Office of Economic Opportunity.
And then T note too that back in the resume, employees who have

l>een hired since February .5. there is one Theodore Rol:!ei'f Tptzlaff,

John Brademas, former legislative assistant, whom T assume is work-
\w(r jctY our minoritv counsel because he is on leave from his law firm,

who has also served as associate director of OEO and was fired from
that position. Xow. my question is, is there anv connection, recognizing

that impeachment inquiries make strano'e bedfellows, is there any
connection between the fired associate director of OEO and the ap-
ponranne in our material today that tliis is now a potential impeach-
able^ offfuse?
Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, mav I respond to that because Mr.

Tetzlaff is an associate of mine in the practice of law in Chicago.
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The CnAiRMAX. Mr. Jeiinei-.

iVIr. Jenner. Ill the interview witli Mr. ITutchinson and you back I

think Jaimaiy 7 or 4, somewhere along those lines, I re(iuested the op-

portunity to have an associate of mine from my own law office here to

help me in mv contacts back and forth, tiding to keep what little I am
able to do back in Chicago rolling. And also a gentleman from my staff

in Chicago who is famitiar, if I may use the expression, with the Hill

and the operations on the Hill. And I selected :Mr. Tetzlaff. His com-

ing aboard had nothing to do with his previous history in Washington,

D.C., and he was retained or brought aboard our staff' in Chicago be-

cause he is an exceptionally able young lawyer.

Mr. HoGAX. But my question was did his involvement in the staff'

have anything to do with the appearance of this new potential im-

peachable offense ?

Mr. Jexner. Oh, no, nothing at all. He had played no part in it and,

as a matter of fact, is not even knowledgeable or knew that it was ap-

pearing on this list.

Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman ?

The Ciiairmax. ^Ir. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Mr. Doar. how do you know it was Judge Sirica's

clerk who called you (

Mr. Doar. He identified himself as such. That is all.

Mr. Edwards. Well, that happened to Senator Ervin, and it is very

embarrassing because it turned out to be somebody else, a hoax. Do you
have machinery to protect yourself from a hoax ?

Mr. Doar. We had not thought of tliat. We should liaA^e that.

The CiiAiRMAX. ]Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Jenxer. It was subse(]uently confirmed, sir. May I?

The CiiAiRMAX'. Go ahead, ]Mr. Jenner. I'm sorry.

Mr. Jexxer. By other sources that ^Ir. Christofferson—it was Mr.
Christoff'erson who called Mr. Doar and he called me.

Mr. Edwa.rds. Thank you.

INIr. TiioRXTOx. Thank you. ]Mr. Chairman. ]Mr, Wiggins i-aised in

his point the matter v\"hich I was concerned about which was the pos-

sibility that the Judge might in some charge contemporaneous vrith

lianding or attempting to hand over the documents express reserva-

tions about their use or confidentiality. And I am sure counsel will be

prepared to take whatever steps any such remarks might require.

Mr. Doar. Yes, sir.

Mr. CoxYERS. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairmax'. ]Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoxYERS. ^Slight I ask how many days has the lettei" request to

]\Ir. St. Clair for what I understood to be a reasonably few amount of

materials been outstanding ?

Mr. Doar. Today is the 8th day.
Mr. CoxYERS. Tins is the 8th day ?

Mr. Doar. Today is the 8th day.
]Mr. CoxYERS. Is it in order. ^Ir. Chairman, to consider wliether or

not this committee should or slioidd not issue a subpena in pursuant to

the recovery of these documents ? This is, I believe, our very first initial

request of anything. We have waited 8 days, vdiich apparently has
been more than long enough, and without being im[!atient I would like

to undertake a discussion of this subject.
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The Chairmax. I think the gentleman is perfectly right in pursuing
that. However, we have the letter stating that he does not believe it

-can be accomplished before Wednesday of this week wliich is tomor-
row. I think, however, that should be a first order of business, and it

was for this reason that I announced that we would contemplate a
meeting even Friday of this week, based on what developments there
are, and consider the question of subpena.
Mr. CoNYERS. I thank the chairman for that expression. I think it

is entirely presumptuous on the part of Mr. St. Clair to wait this

Jong to have given a request and force this committee to send two
letters under such really rather simple circumstances.
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
A couple of points w^ere raised by the gentleman from New Jersey,

Mr. Sandman, and the gentleman from Massachusetts, Mr. Drinan.
And I do not think that we ought to pass over them lightly. And I do
not believe that we ought to be concerned with w^hat is in that sealed
envelope. We ought to be concerned with what is in those suitcases.

And I do not believe that it will do justice to the objectivity of this

investigation if we just take that envelope, because the papers are
going to write it up that w^e have gotten what 23 individuals on that
grand jury thought we should have, rather than the evidence. And I
do not think we ought to get out on that foot. So I think that w^e ought
to seriously consider, Mr. Chairman, the points that liave been raised

by these gentleman before they go down there.

Mr. jVL^raziti. Mr. Chairman ^

The Chairmax. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. JMaraziti. In line with the observation made by Mr. Latta, we
have two things here. We have a presentment of a grand jury. What
is in it none of us know. And we have apparently some alleged infor-

mation. Some of it may be evidential, some of it may not be. Grand
jury proceedings are ex parte. Even an indictment is not procured on
Jiard evidence, because we all know that there is not the right of cross-

examination. Now, we have a presentment which is a conclusion, and
it may be a proper conclusion. It is a conclusion of another body. Tliis

body, this committee is not interested in conclusions. We will form
our own conclusions on evidence, and certainly I think it is proper
for this committee, through counsel, to procure all of the evidence we
can get, and procure those suitcases. So, should not the thrust, and my
question is this, should not the thrust of the appearance tomorrow be
w'e want what is alleged to be, and I say alleged to be evidential ? We
want what is in those suitcases. Should that not be the thrust, because
we do not have to have the presentment, and by getting the present-

ment, if it becomes public, as you have mentioned, Mr. Doar, the rights

of defendants may be prejudiced, and those who perhaps should be con-

victed will never be convicted.

Mr. Doar. Well, I agree with that. Essential material is the materials

in the suitcases, the evidence.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
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Ms. IIoLTZMAX. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to follow

nip with that question I had asked you before, Mr. Doar. Do you
intend, therefore, tomorrow to make a request for the materials, or

are you simply going to stand and wait to receive them ?

Mr. DoAR. "\Vell, I would say that we would be prepared to receive

them, and if the judge would say are you requesting them, I would
say, as counsel for the committee, yes, we are requesting them.

Ms. HOLTZMAN. OK.
Mr. DoAR. Respectfully.

]Ms. HoLTZMAX. Mr. Chairman, would it be in order to go to another

matter in this presentation that was made to us ?

The Chairman. If there is no further discussion on that.

Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to make a couple of

observTitions. One is that Jefferson's Manual specifically provides in it

in the annotations to it that receiving charges from a grand jury is one
Avay that an impeachment can be set in motion in the House of Repre-
sentatives. It is specifically listed as one course that can provide to the

House materials pertinent to carrying forth with an impeachment
investigation, which I think is an eifort to respond to the motion that

somehow we should shut out or not receive from the grand jury

material that may, in fact, be available to us from them. And as I

understand it, your position tomorrow with respect to jurisdiction is

simply to assert that tlie powers of this committee are, proceeding

under tlie resolution that the House has adopted. And that it seems
clear to you, as it does to me, what conclusion should follow from that

once tlie status of what our authority is is made clear. I do not know
that it is required that we go beyond that. If the natural conclusion

•does not follow from that, then I guess this committee will subse-

quently have to consider other means for obtaining the material.

Mr. Jenner. That is right.

Mr. DoAR, I agree.

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. The report that you have submitted deals with

an important issue for the chairman and every member of this com-
mittee over the past couple of months, and that is when we will com-
plete our work. And you state, and I think some of us had assumed
that on or about March 1 we would be able to predict whether we
could adhere to the April 30, suggested date, but you state in your
report, and I quote, ''It is not yet possible to predict a date when this

inquiry will be completed.'' In connection with that, and while I think

many people have been patient with us, patience will, after a while I

suppose flag, and we will be again confronted with the time element.

What factors need to be ascertained before we can determine on or

iibout what date we may complete this inquiry ? Is it the accumulation
of all relevant evidence that is outstanding, or what factors, or when
may we be able to determine ?

Mr. Doar. It is the accumulation of the necessary and relevant

evidence and the analysis of that evidence. And with tlie requests out-

standing to the White House, with this situation with respect to the

grand jury's report, and the documents, and we not knowing what that

information is, and we not having yet had any replies, or only a few
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replies from the executive departments, I just tliouglit that it was
proper for me to say to the committee forthrightly and dii-ectly that

nithougli I thou<>,ht by the fii'st of March I could say when the investi-

i^ation could be completed. I just cannot do it.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Well, let us say if we have the material that

Judije Sirica has in his control, and if the requests that we made of the

"White House are, in fact, fulfilled in terms of evidence, and that which
Mr. Jaworski might still have, will we then be able to make a deter-

mination when we can complete this inquiry in advance of such
com))letion?

]Mr. DoAR. Yes. I think we can do that. I think we can do that.

The CiiAiRMAx. Xow, the status report is not subject to the con-

fidentiality rule. It is somethino; that is in the hands of each of you.

and it is intended to be distributed to the press as well.

Mav I say before recognizino; ]Mr. Mezvinsky that I think there are

two thiufjs before we go further, before Mr. Doar proceeds further.

One, the question as to what developments may ensue tomorrow will

necessitate undoubtedly, if we receive material, and the material is

examined, necessitate a meeting immediately following that, possibly

on Thursday, no later than Friday, at least. I would like to know from
tlie committee, in the light of the fact that we have the 24-hour rule

regarding meetings, that I think we would be in a pretty difficult posi-

tion unless we were to waive the 24-hour rule and have such a meeting,

conduct such a meeting, and knowing that we are confronted with a

problem of whether or not we continue this kind of a discussion follow-

ing it, whether it is

]Mr. IIuxGATE. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairmax. Yes.

IMr. HuNGATE. INIight I suggest that if there is some un<"ertaintv as

to the need to meet either Thursday or Friday or Thursday and Fri-

day, that the Cliair might at this time give notice of meeting on both

days with the understanding that if the business were concluded on
Thursday, Friday's meeting would be canceled ?

The CiiAiRMAX. Well, the question is beyond that. If Ave are going
to have a meeting, then you know a meeting is an open meeting, an.d it

is a public meeting, and the question is whether or not at that time you
would want to consider, based on the information we get, whether you
would want to go into closed session. So, nonetheless I just want to ad-

vise 3'ou that that would be a public meeting, if it is the consensus of

these members not to have this kind of a briefing session. Now, I have
noted objection before, and I wonder whether or not the members
might not want to at least let this be known, let the views be known..

Do you want to have a session of this sort or do you want to liavo a

meeting ?

jMr. CoNYERS. Well, Mr. Chairman, may I be heard I

The CiiAiR]\rAx. Yes.
Mr. CoNYERS. I have gone oii record more tluin. once about this. Now,

maybe something happened in this meeting that youi- constituents

should not have known about. There was not one thing that occurred
in tliis meeting that to me justifies denominating this briefing session,

and I am very much in disaa-reement vrith this attem]"/t whei'e tliero is

no clear metliod. material, ]Mr. Chairman, wliich is defaming" or has
some reason to raise these meetinus to an executive level. So I am not
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arguino; for complete open mcetin<^s. I am just sayiiiii" that there

sh.ould be some justification that has not been presented at this brief-

mtr. Xow, I do not knoAv what is in the sealed envelope or in the brief-

case. But unless there is some clear, overriding; reason, I think the

^Vmerican people are <!;oino- to beoin to draw some very unfair con-

clusions about the metliod in which this committee operates.

The CiiAiRMAx. ]\Ir. ^Mezvinskv.
!Mr. Mezvixsky. Thank you, ^Ir. Chairman. I v.aut to raise a ques-

tion that I hope can be answered so we can clear the air. There have
been several press accounts concerning- Mr. Gai-rison's distributino- a
separate brief. Could I have an answer to that cpiestion, and could
vre find out whether or not

Tlie CiiAiRMAx. Excuse me ; I did not hear.

]Mr. Mezvixsky. The question is that thei'e have been several press
accounts, one appearino- yesterday concernino- a separate memorandum
tliat was submitted, and it was alleoed to have been sul^mitted by ]Mi-.

Garrison to certain members of this committee, as well as an accom-
jnmiment of a New York Times article. And I would just like to get

from counsel whether or not that was distribnted and, if so, so do they
caie to comment?

-Mr. HuTCiirxsox. Mr. Chairuian, will the gentleman yield?

]Mr. ]Mezvixsky. Yes.
]\lr. HuTciiixsox'. !Mr. Chairman, there was a su]i]ilemental mem-

orandum which was ])repared at the lequest of several minority mem-
bers, and it was distributed to the minority members, and it is available

for distribution to any member of the committee who desires to have
it. This memorandum was prepared because several membere of the
minority, upon being apprised of tlie thrust of the staff memorandum
on impeachable powers, knew that there was other law justifying other
A'iewpoints, and we wanted to know what that law Avas. Xow, the
minority instructed Mr. Jenner and ]Mr. Garrison in a meeting that

tlie minority held—these gentlemen were instructed to j)i'eparc that

memorandum, and such a memorandum was prepared and distribnted.

The minority asserts the right to such services. It believes the ma-
jority should have that right, too, if it wants it. But in all of our
committee Avork, the regular committee staff has always been avail-

abli* to the minority to provide the minority viewpoints, and AA^e ex-

])ect that same kind of service in this impeachment inquiry. And I
do not think that this is going to happen very often, but I liad indi-

cated to the Chairman last night that I could foresee another instance,

]iot very far in the future, Avhere the minoritv might again ask for
some additional viewpoints.
Mr. Eax'gel. Would the oentleman yield, please ?

]\Ir. HuTcnixsox". "Well, the floor' is held by Mr. INIezvinsky.

Mr. Mezvix'sky. Yes, Mr. Eangel, I Avill be glad to yield to you.
Air. Eaxgel. I just Avant a clarification, because 1 do not know

Avhether it was consistent. You said that the additional views re-

quested by the minority could be shared with the other members of
the committee ?

Mr. HuTciiixsox. Certainly. Upon request.
Mr. Eax-^gel. Would there be additional information besides pre-

pared legal postures that have been requested by minority?
Mr. HuTCiiixsox'. That is all that was requested, was legal postures.
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Mr. Rangel. Were newspaper articles circulated with the legal

brief?
Mr. Mezvinsky. Right. Were there ?

Mr. Hutchinson. I do not know anything about any newspaper
articles circulated with the brief. I did not see any.

Mr. Rangel. Well, then, perhaps you can direct your question to

counsel.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Well, I do not know. Can counsel answer that,.

Avhether or not, in fact, at least alleged articles said that not only was
there a memo but there was an article submitted with that. Could
they ansv/er that question so that we can at least clear the air con-

cerning any press accounts that have been made regarding that mi-
nority memo?
Mr. McClory. Will tlie gentleman yield on that ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Well, yes. I wanted to get

Mr. McClory. If you will yield to me on that, I would say that in

my own behalf I get all of the newspaper articles that the staff gets,.

and I suppose they give them to anybody tliat requests them relevant

to the inquiry, the articles that they collect for their files which are

also available to members of the committee.

Mr. Dennis, Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Yes.
Mr. Dennis. I would like to add that in this article there seems to

be a suggestion there was something secretive about this brief. As
jSIr. Hutchinson says, that obviously and absolutely was not so. There
are two sides to the very important question which has been discussed

here a lot about whether you need a criminal offense or not, and if so

to what extent. And a number of the members of the minority wanted
the law on both sides of it. Now, I think everybody should have that

brief if they want it, and I do not see any reason way it should not
be made public, just like the other brief was. I would be in favor of
that, personally. But certainly it was discussed with Mr. Jenner, and
Mr. Garrison and all of those concerned on the minority side.

So as far as any newspaper articles are concerned, they seem to have
no importance to me. Frankly, I have had so many briefs to read that
I have not gotten around to reading them yet, but they were in the
press in any case.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Well, Mr. Garrison ?

Mr. Mayne. Would the gentleman yield to me ?

Mr, Mezvinsky, I would like to raise the question first, if I may, so
we can get it answered, Mr. Garrison, it is alleged that the memo was
given with an article from the New York Times, and your name was
mentioned, I would like to at least get the record straight as to whether
it was submitted and, if so, would you care to comment ?

Mr, Mayne, Will my colleague from Iowa yield at this point ?

Mr, Mezvinsky, Yes,
Mr, Mayne, I would just like to suggest to my colleague that if this

committee gets involved in a discussion of newspaper columns involv-
ing any aspect of this, we are going to be interminably bogged down in

conducting this hearing according to the timetable and format that the
columnists select. And I have not been here much longer than my col-

league from Iowa, but I have been here long enough to find that there
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arc people in and out of the press who dearly love to stir np trouble in

this committee, and to keep us constantly bogged down in that kind of

back-fighting. And I would hope that we would tend to business rather

than be distracted by speculations of newspaper columnists.

Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield again ?

Mr. Flowers. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Flowers. I am trying to get an answer from

counsel.

Mr. Flowers. I just want to join with you. When I came in here I

did not even know what you w^ere talking about, but my curiosity has

arisen now and I have got to know.
Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Brooks. Order.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Can we get the counsel to answer the question, Mr.

Chairman ? I have asked the question now^ for three times, and I would

like, respecting my colleague, I would like to get the answer tron\

]Mr. Garrison or counsel.

Mr. Garrison. Congressman, I will be happy to answer the question.

At the time that the memorandum that has been referred to was dis-

tributed to the minority members, attached to the memo were three

additional documents. One was a re]:>rint of an article in the New York
Times Magazine concerning Mr. Jenner which had been circulated

among the staff of the impeachment inquiry on the previous day, as a.

part of the central clipping service which is pro\'ided, and which I

understand members of the committee are entitled to subscribe to.

I know at least one member, Mr. AlcClory, was put on the mailing list

at his request.

Mr. HuNGATE. I am, too.

Mr. Garrison. And the article in question was the first and only

article relating to a member of the minority staff which had appeared
in a periodical not widely read in this area such as the Post, or the

Times, or the Journal.
There also was a copy of a memorandum which Mr. Doar and

Mr. Jenner had permitted me to distribute to the impeachment inquiry

staff', internally, responding to the Jack Anderson column of a week
ago.

And third there was a memorandum requesting any of the minority

members who had available parking spaces to provide the impeach-
ment inquiry staff members to so advise me. All of those were put in the

same envelope.

Mr, Hungate. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. May I state something? We have to get on with
this. I would just like to make a comment regarding this question,

and then hopefully we can pass on.

I discussed this with ISIr. Hutchinson last night, because it has been
my view all along that the staff, which is an integrated staff, regardless

"of the fact that it has been selected by both majority and minority,

is working toward a common objective, and that is to supply this

committee with its legal expertise and with information that it collects^

evidentiary material, and that it becomes the property of this com-
mittee. I did not anticipate, and I talked to Mr. Hutchinson who, of

course, does not entirely agree with my position, that any request that
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is made of tlie committee staff is made for tlie purpose of furnishing

tlie conmiitteo as such, and not the minority members or the majority

members with views that are advocate views. I stated initially, and I

am iroino- to adhere to this, I have the power to hire and to fire. I stated

that not one of the staff was to ever advocate a position one way or

the other.

There was never any instructions to the staff to do anything other

than to com])i]e a memorandum or a brief with background material.

Unfortunately, some of us have drawn tlie inference that there have

been conclusions as to what is an impeachable offense, and this is

valid. But, nonetheless, it was a committee staff operation, and there

Avas at no time a request that it be for a certain restricted view, or that

it be for a broad view. And I think that frankly, in my judirment,

this does somehow or other stigmatize the operation of the staff'. I be-

lieve that any member is entitled to request at any time when there is a

question of judgement that is finally going to l)e made whether or not

he is going to be assisted in writing with maybe several views. But I

think to suggest that the staff i^-oceed with the writing of a strict posi-

tion is something that I think frankly does not do credit to the

committee.
Mr, HooAX, Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr, Dexnis. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. HuTCTiixsox. Mr. Chaii-man?
The CiiAiRMAx. I yield to the gentleman.
Mr, HuTciiixsox. ]Mr. Chairman, I simply want to reiterate at this

time, as I told you last night, that I anticipate that from time to time

the minority members of this committee will request of the staff, and
miderstandably it will be from the minority members of the staff', some
additional material. And we assert that that is our right to ha\e. We
liave always enjoyed that right on this committee, and in its regular

]>erformance, and we insist that we have the same thing with regard
to this project. I made that clear to you last night, INIr. Chairman,
and you and I do not see eye to eye on it. But I simply want the mem-
bers to know that the members of the minority may from time to time

make such requests. We will make them respectfully, and we expect

them to be carried out.

]Mr. HoGAX^. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. HuTCinxsox, Yes, I yield.

Mr. HoGAx. With all due respect to the chainnan's comments, it

was my feeling, after having done significant reading on the whole
matter of impeachment, that the staff memorandmn on im])eachable

offenses was not only slanted, it was very sketchy and did, in fact,

draw conclusions. For example, at one place it says "The point is

sometimes made that a distinction should be made between impeach-
ment of a President and impeachment of a judge. Such is not the

case." This is ignoring totally and completely that the Constitution

itself distinguishes between these two things, because it has the Chief
Justice of the United States presiding in the case of a President, but

not in the case of a judge. And if we are going to be relying on a

biased selection of what precedents are in impeachment, then we are

not going to have the element of fairness which this very serious con-

stitutional responsibility we have warrants.
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Mr. Dennis. ]Mi'. Chairman?
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. ]McClory.

;Mr. McClory. Thank 3^011. t want to agree that we do not, we cer-

tainly do not want to convert our staff or I hope our committee will

not choose up sides and that we will have an advocacy or an adversary
proceeding, and that we can continue with the integrated staff, and
that we can continue to work in a bipartisan manner.
But let me state this quite frankly, that I think it is important that

the minority, as jNIr. Hutchinson has indicated, that we receive infor-

mation, reports, or memorandums, whatever may l^e essential to us in

oixler to maintain a party position, or an independent or an indi-

A'idual position.

Mr. HiTNGATE. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. McClory. With respect to any aspect of the impeachment in-

quiry, and I have in mind an inquiry that I want to direct right now
with respect to the authority to make a presentment which involves
the President of the United States, and jMr. Jenner has commented
a])Out tliat. But I think T would like to know what the legal authority
is for that for my own information. And I would think that would
be an appropriate request to direct to the staff.

The CiiAiR^iAN. I have no quarrel with that.

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman?
The CiiAiRrjAN. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. The point is made that in other work of the commit-

tee there ai'e minority reports. I would say though that in those cases

I believe tlioy are not distributed only to one side, they would be dis-

tributed to botli sides. I think that would be. I would hope those occa-

sions would not arise very often, but if the}' did I would hope that

they woidd be committeewide.
Mr. HuTCiiiNSON. ]\Iay I just, if the gentleman will just jdeld for

a comment there ?

Mr. Hungate. Yes.
Mr. Hutchinson. There never Avas any intention, no intention at

all to make any material available only to the minority. Any member
of the majority is entitled to anything that is prepared at our request.

I want to make that clear.

Mv. Hungate. I thank the gentleman.
INIr. Chairman, I think I have the floor. !Mr. Chairman, I want the

floor.

The Chairman. You have the floor.

jSIr. Hungate. For my next number, I want to thank the gentleman
from Michigan for clarifying this situation, and I would hope that the
staff, when they make either—I want to see reports, that are unified.

That is the best thing that has been done here. But if we should have
cither majority or minority separate research, I would hope at the
same time it would be made available to all of the committee. That
means if I request that they look up something, when they gave that
i-eport to the majority people it would at the same time go to the mi-
nority and vice versa. And I think Mr. Hutchinson, if I understood him
correctly, he says that that is the intent that it be made available.

41-018—75—pt. 1-
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Now, I have a couple of points. The newspapers, I get the news-
paper clippings and I find them very useful, and it is worse than the

Congressional Kecord. They are a big volume, but I would recommend
anybody that wants to follow this further to get them.

I yield for a unanimous-consent request.

Mr. CoNYERS. I would just like to make a unanimous-consent request
that all members of this committee be put on the mailing list for the

newspaper reports, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Without objection. Is that feasible ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.
The Chairman. Without objection.

Mr. HuNGATE. Let me complete here. I have made that stafi' tour, and
I think: others have over at the hotel. I recommend that to you very
strongly, that you go over there and see these people and see what they
are doing. And I was a little shocked, and the way, of course, the

papers write things up is not necessarily how they happen. But I just

went over there, and I could not tell the Democrats from the Ke-
publicans, and I did not see a great deal of hassling going on over

there. They work like a law office, it looked to me like, and I would urge
that you go over there and see what they are doing.

Now, on the issue of impeaclmient, I do hoj^e we will operate in as

unified a way as possible. Tliis is created to protect the Congress and
the people as vis-a-vis the Presidency, and political parties were not
foreseen at that time. And I hope we will act in a unified way what-
ever we do.

The CnAinaiAN. May I announce that there will be a meeting on
Thursday at 10 o'clock and at Friday at 10 o'clock. In the event that
there is no need, the members will be notified.

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Rah^sback. Mr. Chairman, I just want to say that I think when-
ever the staff prepares a report which draws conclusions, I think that

in that case, and that is really what happened as far as our legal memo,
I think others members ought to have a right to request additional

views, and those views should be made available to everybody. But, I

think, I disagree with some of the real conclusions that were con-

tained in the staff legal memo.
The Chairjman. I have no quarrel except to state that the chairman

was completely unaware that there was such a request that was made.
The chairman was completely unaware that the staff was working on
anything that had to do with the position that was being advocated
other than the position that I know the committee had instructed the

staff to come up with, and that would have been a memorandum for the

committee.
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Hutchinson. The staff was aware of that, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman? May I have 30 seconds before we ad-

journ? As the chairman knows, I have submitted a resolution, intro-

duced a resolution to amend the House rules to permit the electronic

coverage of the meetings as well as hearings. I just wapted to ask if the

chairman had reconsidered his ruling on that, or if tomorrow we are



159

going to go tlirough that process again and if we are, I just wanted
to put the members on notice of that.

The Chairman. I would like to advise the member that the Chair is

going to be compelled to adhere to the rules of the House.
Mr. Seiberling. Was Mr. Doar aware of the request for the minority

memorandum ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes ; I was.
The Chairman. And the committee is now adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 12:27 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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The committee met, piusiiant to notice, at 10 :20 a.m., in room 2141,

Eaybiun House Office Buildino-, Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Ji". (chair-
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Present: Representatives Rodino (presiding), Donohue. Brooks,

Kastenmeier, Edwards, Hungate, Convers, Eilberg, Waldie, Flowers,

jNIann, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Danielson. Drinan, Rangel. Jordan,

Thornton, Holtzman, Owens, JNIezvinsky, Hutchinson, jNIcClory,

Smith, Sandman, Railsback, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, Mayne, Hogan,
Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froehlich, Moorhead, Maraziti, and Latta.

Impeaclnnent inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Albert E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority ; Samuel Garrison

III, deputy minority counsel ; Joseph A. Woods, Jr., senior associate

special counsel.

Committee staff' present: Jerouie ^NI. Zeifman. general counsel: Gar-
]ier J. Cline, associate general counsel ; and Franklin G. Polk, associate

counsel.

The Chairmax. The committee will come to order.

In accordance with the agenda which was distributed yesterday

and the announcement that certain matters pertaining to the im-

peachment inquiry will be discussed today, I think the first order

of lousiness in accordance v.-itli that agenda would be a report from
INIr. Doar and ]Mr. Jenner, concerning the events of yesterday and
their appearance at the court before Judge Sirica, in accordance with
the instr'uctions that we handed to counsel.

Mr. Doar. Good morning, members of the committee

:

In accordance with the committee's instructions, ]Mr. Jenner and
I went to the courthouse. Federal district courthouse yesterday to

be present at a proceeding before Judire Sirica involving the six in-

dictments that have been handed down by the grand jury last Fiiday.
The issue before the court was what should be done with certain

material that had been handed to Judge Sirica by the grand jury at

the time that the indictments were I'eturned. Because of objections

by defense counsel, no one was permitted to examine any of these

documents except Mr. St. Clair who was permitted to read a two-page
report that the grand jury had delivered to tlie court.

(161)



162

It is our best information from what we heard in court that this

material consisted of a 2-page report, a 5U-page rej)ort and a suit-

case containing materials that were formerly in the possession of the
grand jury and are now in the possession of Judge Sirica. It was also

our clear conclusion, in fact obvious conclusion, that the grand jury
intended this material to be sent to the House Judiciary Committee.

I remind the members that Judge Sirica called and asked us to be
present at this hearing. I think that we would have been clear on that

had the two-jpage document which had been handed to the court then
been made available, but because of objection by counsel for tlie de-

fendants, Judge Sirica had i^laced that material under seal. At the

meeting, at the hearing, after formally advising the court that we had
come there at his invitation, that we were not authorized to make an
appearance or submit to the jurisdiction of the court, but we were
authorized to tell the court of this proceeding in the House of Repre-
sentatives, this impeaclmient proceeding, to give him the background
of that proceeding and to formally, as counsel for the committee, re-

quest that this information be turned over to this committee for its

inquiry.

In our presentation to Judge Sirica, we made the very simple point

that this impeachment proceeding was of the highest constitutional

importance. Second, that this material was material which the grand
jury believed was important to tliis committee, the grand jury being a

duly constituted body, having studied this matter for over 20
months, that it was important and necessary for this committee in meet-

ing its responsibilities, its constitutional responsibilities that this best

available material be made available to this committee for its study in

this inquiry. And it is my opinion, an opinion which Mr. Jenner shares,

that it would really be unthinkable if this committee in an impeach-
ment inquiry w^as called upon to proceed to its deliberations in this

matter, without having that material to take into account, along with
any other material that we have in this matter.

And I think to make that explicitly clear, and to leave no doubt in

anyone's mind, I would respectfully reconmnend, and I believe that

I can state that Mr. Jenner shares in this, that the committee today
promptly, formally, authorize Chairman Rodino to write a letter

to Judge Sirica in accordance with the standard practice of this com-
mittee, when they request documents or information from the Judi-

ciary, requesting this information be forthwith delivered, this impor-
tant information that the grand jury felt should, or we believe the

grand jury felt should be delivered to this committee for its considera-

tion in its impeachment inquiry.

The Chairman. Mr. Jeimer, do you share in that ?

Mr. Jenner. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I do share that and urge, with Mr. Doar, the favorable consideration

of the committee of that proposal.

"VVlien we finished our arguments yesterday. Judge Sirica said he

would take the matter under advisement. Both Mr. Doar and I empha-
sized the need for prompt action, and that the whole country was
looking to this committee in the performance of its grand constitu-

tional duty and was acting responsibly, and he had suggested, well,

he asked Mr. Doar a question during the course of the argument.
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Has your committee considered the possibility of adjourning the impeachment
inquiry you are conducting until September 9, when the trial of the case before

him was set for trial? And as soon as a jury was picked, then this committee
reconvened.

We responded somewhat in horror at that suggestion, and it seems

to me that had this committee, as a representative and independent
coordinate branch, should through its chairman, formally, pursuant to

your own procedure, request Judge Sirica to release the documents to

this committee forthwith and not wait, I would suggest, for his pre-

paring a long and complicated and learned opinion on the subject.

]\Ir. Wiggins. jSIr. Chairman, may I ask the gentleman a question?

The Chairman. Before I recognize the gentleman from California,

might I inquire of counsel whether or not they have considered

whether such a letter would in any vray submit us to the jurisdiction

of the court ?

Mr. DoAR. In my opinion, it would not.

Mr. Jenner. I share that, ]Mr, Chairman.
The Chairman. The gentleman from California.

jMr. Wiggins. Thank you.

Counsel, do you have i-eason to believe that the Judge has in his

custody evidence other than that which was produced originally by
the White House?

jNIr. Doar. I could speculate that there may be additional things in

the briefcase, but that w^ould only be a speculation.

Mr. Wiggins. Have you asked Mr. Jaworski that question directly ?

Mr. Doar. No, we have not. But, I will say that at the hearing yester-

day, IMr. St. Clair, on behalf of the President, took no position one
way or the other with respect to whether or not this material should
be turned over to this committee.
Mr. Wiggins. I just would observe, Mr. Chairman, that we ought not

to get all exercised about an idle act if, i]i fact, the only information
in Judge Sirica's custody is that which the White House is going to

turn over to us anyway. It may be that this is, in fact, an idle act,

and if it is possible for counsel to determine Avith precision whether
there is supplemental information there, it perhaps would guide this

committee accordingly.
Mr. Doar. Congressman Wiggins, I have been reminded by my

associates that in Mr. Lacovara's argument—Mr. Lacovara is one of
Mr. Jaworski's counsel—and he made an argument on behalf of the
Government, and in the Government's argument it urged Judge Sirica
to turn this material over to the grand jury, he stated that there was
additional material in the suitcase.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, that answers the question then.
The Chairman. Mr, Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I want to say that I believe that it really

is unthinkable that this committee would attempt to evaluate the
President's involvement or impeachment without all of the available
data. And I think that the judge, without any further delay, ought to
be turning this material over to the proper constitutional authority for
the solution and resolution of this impeachment process. And I would
say that I would hope to move that the committee instruct the chairman
and authorize the chairman to forthwith direct a letter to Judge
Sirica to request the 2-page document, the 50-page document, the
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briefcase of documents, and any other material or documents wliicli the
Watergate grand jury proposed be sent and directed to the Judiciary
Committee.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. :Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. My. Chairman, I want to concur with the expression

of my colleague, Mr. Brooks. However, I would like to know this, first

of all. Did not the judge—tlie judge has not stated that he was not
turning this over? I gather from my sort of infoi-mal report tliat the
judge indicated by taking it under advisement that he intended to

submit, he intended to comply with your request and your argument.
Did the judge not indicate a time when lie was going to report? I

mean, he took it under advisement but Avhen is he going to advise?
Mr. DoAR. The judge did not, the judge made no indication as to how

he would rule on the matter from the bench. He just said, "I will take
the matter under advisement."
Mr. McClory. And no time for retuj'ning, or no time for rendering

his decision on that ?

Mr. DoAR. No. But, the point of our recommendation is that this

committee is the i)roper authorized representative of the House of Eep-
resentatives in this matter, and should be the body that makes the

formal request to Judge Sirica.

a\Ir. McClory. I agree with that.

Mr. DoAR. And this is the first opportunity tliat the committee would
have to take a vote on that.

]Mr. ]\[cClory. I see.

]Mr. DoAR. After Judge Sirica called to our attention tlie fact that

we were iuAnted to come to the courthouse. You could not have taken
a vote on Tuesday, and I think it is iniportant that you respond at the

first available opj^ortunity for the, committee.
Mr. McClory. I want to reiterate that I consider the judge's position

no more than that of a conduit by which the o-rand jury communicates
and delivers to this committee the material that they said they wanted
delivered to this committee.

]\rr. CoNYERR. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairm.\x. Mr. Conyers.
]N[r. CoxYERS. Did ]Mr. Brooks make a motion, in fact ?

Mv. Brooks. Yes, I made a motion.
Mr. CoNYERS. All right then, T second the motion.

The Chairman. The motion has been made and seconded. Will the

gentleman read the resolution, the motion again, please?

Mr. Brooks. Well, I v\-ould ask the clerk to, but I could probably
go from my own notes just about as well

:

To resolve that the Committee on the .Judiciary nnfhorize and empower the

chairman to forthAvith direct a letter to .Tndge Sirica to request tlie 2-pnse
document, the 50-pase document, the locked briefcase with documents, and any
other documents and m.aterials which the Watergate grand jury proposed he
sent to the House Judiciary Committee.

The Chairman. All those

Mr. Waldte. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman, on that motion-
The Chairman. The gentleuian is recognized.

Mr. Waldie. T support the motion but I wanted to ask ISIr. Doar a

question.
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You mentioned that the 2-page document had been sealed by the

court at the request of one of the defendant's attorneys, and you were

denied access to it. It was my recollection from the accounts last night

that Mr. St. Clair said that the judge had shown hnii the 2-page docu-

ment and that he made certain assertions as to its content. Can you

explain how St. Clair had access to that 2-page document and you

did not ? ,,^ , -, . , T 1

Mr DoAR. I cannot explain that, Mr. Waldie, because I have no

information about that, except the fact that I assume that Mr- St.

Clair went there on behalf of his client, the President of the United

States, and asserted an interest in seeing the document because he

believed that the document had some application to him.

Mr. Jennek. llr. Waldie, may I supplement that, if you please t

Mr. Waldie. Yes.
.

Mr Jenner. Judge Sirica did state m the courtroom yesterday

afternoon, that he had permitted Mr. St. Clair to examine the 2-page

or the li<>-page, apparently, letter of transmittal, or memorandum o±

transmitt'al. And then he called counsel to the bar and consulted with

them. :^Ir. Doar and I stood aside at the bar when we realized that

Judge Sirica was talking with defense counsel for the purpose of se-

curino- apparentlv their consent to the release generally of tliat docu-

ment "to counsel. And then when all counsel returned at 2:15 m the

afternoon, each attorney representing a defendant m the case rose

and stated to the court whether he wished and would examine the

nA-pufie document. All counsel for all defendants stated that they

did not wish to do so, save one counsel who stated that he did wish.

And Judo-e Sirica said you may examine it. But, you may examine it

only mulei- the conditions stated yesterday in the meeting in chambers

which Mr. Doar and I attended* at the invitation of the judge; that

any examination you make of the li/2-P'^ge document, the contents

must be not made public by you. You may disclose them to yoiir

client under the condition that your client not disclose, and this is

the same limitation placed on Mr. St. Clair. That is all we know, sir.

ISIr. Waldie. Let me just ask two more questions.

]Mr. HoGAN. Parliamentary inquiry.

Is this addressed to the motion ?

Mr. AValdie. Were the statements Mr. St. Clair made
Mr. HogAN. Is this on the motion ?

The Chairmax. The Chair does not want to foreclose the members

who have questions that are pertinent, although there is a motion,

and the Chair intends to put the question.

Mr. Waldie. I am speaking to the motion, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. HoGAN. But debate is not in order.

Mr. Waldie. Mr. Jenner, were the comments Mr. St. Clair made

about the contents of the two-page document, in your understanding,

contrary to the instructions of the judge not to comment on its

contents ?

Mr. Jenner. I heard nothing in the courtroom that would lead me
to the conclusion that Mr. St. Clair had violated in any degree the

closure acreement of the previous day.

Mr. Waldee. Will you explain to me, if the President is a party

to the grand jury proceeding, is the President a defendant in that
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case, is Mr. St. Clair representing a party to the grand jury
proceeding ?

Mr. Jenner. He is not, sir.

Mr. Waldie. Under what auspices did he seek and receive permission
to examine those documents that were sealed by the judge?
Mr. Jenjster. Congressman Waldie, I am afraid I cannot answer

that question because I do not know.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Waldie. Well, wait. I am not yielding yet.

Mr, Chairman, the reason I am asking these questions is because
I think it is pointing out that the President is being treated uniquely
and extraordinarily by the court. I would hope that this committee
does not treat the President similarly and the President ought to be
treated as any other witness in that court, any other third party in
the court, as our counsel was in the court, and he ought not to receive
that sort of preferential treatment, and I hope this committee does
not respond to requests of Mr. St. Clair with the alacrity that pres-
ently apparently Judge Sirica did.

The Chairman. I would hope—I would advise the gentleman tliat

this committee has no authority to instruct the court as to what
direction it may take or how it may exercise its discretion. And I am
sure every member of this committee, however, recognizes his re-

sponsibility as such, that the committee recognizes its responsibility
and I think that we will proceed accordingly. And this is the reason
why the counsel has been instructed not to submit themselves to the
jurisdiction of the court and act in accordance with the authority that
was delegated to us by the resolution, which the House overwhelmingly
adopted by a vote of 410.

Mr. Waldie. I understand tliat, Mr. Chainnan, and I only make
that comment because it relates, I think, to the response that Mr. St.

Clair has made to the committee's request for information.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, I feel confident that this committee

will treat all of the witnesses, including the President, if he is a

witness, with complete fairness. I wanted to reiterate my admonition
whatever material is received in response to the letter should be re-

ceived under the rule of confidentiality that the committee adopted at

some earlier time.

Mr. Brooks. I move the adoption.
Mr. DoAR. We assured Judge Sirica.

Mr. McClory. I wanted to ask just one question, if I may.
During the course of the proceeding, the judge apparently asked

the question as to whether or not there was a feeling that the rights
of the defendants who have been indicted would be impaired or
prejudiced as a result of the delivery of this material to our committee.
Now, if I understood it, if we receive it in confidence, there is no
possibility of that. But. I would like to have your opinion as to whether
or not we would be running the risk of prejudicing their rights so that
all of those indictments would be thrown out ?

INIr. DoAR. Well, although the material would be received in con-
fidence, if tlie material which the grand jury felt was so important
to be delivered to this committee, after our examination at the time of
a presentment or a presentation to this committee becomes public.



167

there is the possibility that one of the defendants could claim that the

adverse effect of something in that material prejudiced his case. Now,
he has got a hard burden for a number of reasons, which Mr. Jenner

can spell out, but before you can get to the burden, the hard burden

of the balancing, it is our opinion that in a case such as this, there

really is not any comparison at all, that the judge has to accept the

fact that this body and the House, in meeting its constitutional re-

sponsibility, may Avell be called upon to make this material public,

and that the constitutional interest in public disclosure far outweighs

any right of the Government to prosecute an individual case and there

is iiot really any balancing of the constitutional obligation against the

interest in a successful particular prosecution. And we made tliat point

to Judge Sirica.

However, as Mr. Jenner very well advised the court, and the

number of other lawyers, the likelihood of that is quite remote, in-

cluding the fact that we can assume that some of the same material

in the briefcase is going to come from the White House directly.

jSIr. CoxYERS. Mr. Chairman, I respectfully move the previous

motion.
The Chairman. If the gentleman will hold, I stated that I would

recognize Mr. Latta before the previous question was raised.

Mr. Latta. Yes, Mr. Chairman.
Before the question is put on this pending motion, I think the

record ought to be made clear as to what Mr. St. Clair's position was
on turning over the suitcases and these two documents, the 2-page
document and the 5(J-page document. I think I read or heard on tele-

vision, or one of the news media, that he had no objection to this. Is

that correct ?

Mr. DoAR. I think that he said he took no position.

Mr. Latta. Well, that is no objection as far as I am concerned and
I think the record ought to show it.

Mr. Wiggins. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. The gentleman ^vill state it.

Mr. Wiggins. My parliamentary inquiry goes to the question of

whether or not the chairman agrees with the statement made by Mr.
McClory, that any papers, documents, or things, received in response

to this request will be treated as confidential evidence pursuant to our
rules.

The Chairman. That is correct and, as a matter of fact, counsel were
instructed to make that statement to the court in their presentation,

and in conjunction with the request for the material.

Mr. DoAR. And we did make that statement.

Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman, I want to be sure that I understood
the last statement.

The Chairman. Are you stating a parliamentary inquiry?

Mr. Danielson. Parliamentary inquiiy. It is my understanding
from the chairman's last statement that we receive these documents
and things under our own rules of confidentiality, and not any other

rules that might be appended thereto by the court?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. Danielson. Very well.

Mr. Mayne. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Mayne.
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Mr. Mayxe. I think in addition to what the gentleman from Il-

linois, Mr. McClor}', has said, Judge Sirica not only emphasized that

the riglits of tlie defendants in those cases might be prejudiced but
the riglits of the Government or the prosecution might be prejudiced,

and I think Ave should be equalh' vigilant not to abuse the use of this

information if it is obtained to destroy tlie Government's cases.

Now, under the rules of confidentiality, if I may make a parliamen-
tary inquiry, ^Mr. Chairman, before counsel would take any step with
reference to the use of this evidence, which might prejudice these

cases pending in court, would it be the obligation of counsel to refer

that to tlie committee liefore taking any such action prejudicial to the
court actions?

The Ciiair:max. Counsel will state the position on that.

Mr. DoAK. "Well, at this time the material would only he reviewed by
the chairman and the ranking minority meiriber and at the time that

an evidentiary presentation started, there would be furnished to each
member a list of all of the documents and materials gathered and a list

of those documents and materials which counsel expected to present

to the committee. At that 'time, we certainly would advise the com-
mittee as to the consequences of a consideration of these documents and
if there was a question of prejudice to one of those cases, it would be
my opinion that the committee should haA^e an opportunity in advance
to consider Avhether or not that material should be considered in closed

hearing.

Mr. ]\[atx'e. Well, INIr. Chairman, I certainly subscribe to the view
that the committee can properly seek releA'ant evidence Avhere it can
find it. But, I do think also Ave should exercise restraint and reason in

not using evidence that Avill destroy the court action, if it can be
aA'oided and that Ave should not just gratuitously obstruct the chances
of the successful prosecution or successful defense, consistent with our
OAA-n poAvers under the Constitution. "We ought to try to cooperate with
the court actions insofar as possible.

]Mr. CoiTEX'. Mr. Chairman ?

The CHAiR:\rAx\ The Chair wants to assure the gentleman that the
rules of procedure that we have ado]~)ted Avill be strictly complied AA-ith

and that every effort will be made to insure that no cases are prejudiced
and no rights in any Avay are violated. And that is going to be the con-
tinuing policy of the Chairman. And the ranking member, I am sure,

has continued Avith this attitude and we see no reason Avhy there should
not l)e a continuation of this policy.

Mr. Cohen.
Mr. CoHEX. ]\Ii-. Chairman, thank you.
I have a question of !Mr. Doar. Perhaps ~Mr. Jenner can help out on

this. It has been suggested from time to time there may be mA'sterious.

if not mystical, forces at Avork on this entire "Watergate affair, and
the nuestion of security Avas raised again yesterday, and also in today's
paper, that there are leaks big enough or wide enouirh to driA'e a truck
through. I Avant to commend you and the staff. No. 1, for the tight
security that has been maintained, and ask Avhether or not you Avould
consider haA'ing any materials you do receive imposing oi- imprinting
on those materials a special stamp, hopefully nonreproducible type, of
indication that this material has lieen receiA^ed Iw the committee so that
if leaks do occur it can be ascertained at some later time as to whether
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or not they occurred tliroiioh the House Judiciary Committee or

through other sources other than the conunittee. I think that would

be very lielpful in terms of who is prejudicing whose rights in the

future.

^Nfr. Brooks. Question, ]Mr. Chairman?
Tlie CiiAiRMAX. Tlie question is on the motion of the gentleman from

Texas.
All those in favor of the motion, please say aye ?

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Xo i-esponse.]

The Chairman. The ayes have it and the motion is agreed to. and

counsel is instructed accordingly to proceed with the preparation of

that letter in conjunction with me and the ranking minority inember.

Ms. PIoLTZMAN. ]Mr. Chairman, just foi- the purposes of history,

could the record reflect that there is no dissenting vote on the motion?

The Chairman. The record will show that there Vv-as no dissenting

vote, and that the Chair heard no dis;^enting vote and that is the indica-

tion that it was a unanimous vote of the committee.

Before we proceed with further report from tlie counsel, the Chair

would like to, first of all, call attention to the fact that the Chair had,

on February 26. as has already been I'eported. and as the committee

knows, addressed a lettei- to the President of the United States. I did at

no time disclose the contents. But, I think it is appropriate now since I

have received a letter from the President of the United States ad-

dressed to me, and I Avonld like to read that letter and make it avail-

able to the members of the committee as well.

On February 26. by hand, a letter was addressed to the Piesident,

the White House, Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. President

:

In accordance with your instructions Mr. St. Clair has consulted with .Tolin

Doar and members of his staff with reference to the current investisatinn being
conducted by the House .Judiciary Committee under H. Res. sOo. Mr. St. Clair

was concerned al»out the rules of procedure which the committee would adopt
with respect to the control and use of the material submitted to the committee.
Last Friday, the .Judiciary Committee adopted specific rules covering- the com-
mittee's responsibility during the course of the inquiry. These rules were sent to

Mr. St. Clair.

I have been advised by ]\Ir. Donr that the inquiry staff li;is liegun to make
specific requests of Mr. St. Clair for documents, materials, and things necessary
to the inquiry which are in the possession of the President or under his control.

]\Ir. Hutchinson and I very much hope that the materials necessary to be exam-
ined will be available to the inquiry staff without difliiculty or delay. I believe the
President and the House realize equally the importance of having the inquiry go
forward to a disposition founded on all of the evidence.

Therefore, I appreciate your remarks at the conclusion of your State of the
Union message on January 30, when you said that you recognized the special
responsibility of the House .Judiciary Committee and indicated that you would
cooperate with the Judiciary Committee in its investigation.

Finally, I feel confident that the House of Representatives will faithfully dL"^-

charge its constitutional responsil)ility.

Respectfully the chairman.

On jSIarch 5 there was delivered to me bj^ hand from tlie White
House a letter addressed to me as

:

Dear Mr. Chairman

:

Thank you for your letter of February 26, 1974.
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My special counsel, Mr. St. Clair, has received requests from Mr. Doar jniil is

resi)oiiding in my behall*.

I want to take the opportunity to reiterate that I intend to cooperate with
the Committee on the Judiciary in its investigation in a manner consistent with
my constitutional responsibilities as President.

Tlie interests of our country and the American people require that this matter
proceed as expeditiously as possible and I am sure that you and Mr. Hutchinson
will see that these proceedings are not unduly delayed.

Sincerely, Richard Nixon.

I have requested that copies of these letters, if the members would
like, Avoidd be reproduced and turned over to the members of the
committee.
Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman, might I indulge in some brief discus-

sion in view of this letter of expressed cooperation and the reported
television statements of the President of the United States last eve-

ning, in wliich he suggested very clearly that he was cooperating not
only totally with tlie conmiittee, but in excess of the committee's

wislies. I think that some attention should be drawn to the inaccuracy
so far as those assertions. And I believe if this is the appropriate time,

I would like to hear from coimsel with reference to this matter.

The Chairman. Well, if the gentleman would defer, I think it

would be appropriate at this time, since there are two other com-
munications which I think the committee is aware of some of their

contents, some that have been, I believe, called to the attention of the

public by the press, even before we received the communications, I
would like to have comisel report on those, and then I think it would
be appropriate to make pertinent remarks.
Mr. DoAR. Mr. Chairman
Mr. McClory. May I ask a question, Mr. Chairman ?

We have been furnished with a reply from Mr. St. Clair to Mr.
Doar, but we do not have the letter of Mr. Doar.
The Chairman. That is correct. That is accurate and Mr. Doar and

Mr. Jenner will both comment on that.

Mr. Doar. The committee has Mr. St. Clair's reply to my letter of

Februaiy 25 and my letter of February 29. The committee has not

circulated the letters that I wrote on behalf of the committee after con-

sultation with Mr. Jenner in consultation with the chairman and the

ranking minority member. The reason for that is that there were
specific requests for particular documents contained in that letter that,

in our judgment as your attorneys, would not be appropriate to discuss

at an open meeting the details of it. And so with your permission,

Mr. Chairman, I would read the letters but just when I came to the

specihc request, just generally refer to those until the committee had
an opportunity to consider our recommendation with respect to the

specihc matters referred to therein.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. So far as I am concerned, I do not see how it is pos-

sible to act in an intelligent way on the matter before us without
knowing what our letters said, or what we requested. Now, this reply

in front of us claims that we requested a truckload of irrelevant mat-
ter, and I suppose we are going to have to make a decision here as

to whether or not that is true or not ; whether we want to issue sub-

penas and what not. And I do not see any way we can do it without
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finding out what, in fact, our letters said instead of leaving blanks. I

just do not think it is sensible for this committee not to know what
is requested. And if it should not be made public, which I am perfectly

agreeable to that idea, if that is what counsel thinks, and they should

know, why I then, I think, we should go into executive session and see

the letters.

The Chairman. Would the gentleman defer until the counsel has

at least indicated what the letters did relate to, and if it does not

satisfy the gentleman, then the gentleman may consider whether or

not he wanted to take any further action.

Mr. Dennis. Well, I do not mind deferring for a minute, but I

camiot imagine being satisfied by the procedure suggested. I think

we ought to go into executive session, and have the necessary infor-

mation.
Mr. McClory. Will the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. The gentleman has the floor.

Mr. McClory. I thank the gentleman for yielding.

Do I understand that the part of your request which relates to the

index of materials in the White House, to which a response is made
in the last paragraph on the first page of Mr. St. Clair's letter to you,

will be covered in the material that you are going to read to us?

Mr. DoAR. Oh, yes, it will. There is nothing about that that we would
request to go into executive session. It is only that there are other

matters
Mr. McClory. So it is only the specific items, tapes or whatever,

to which there has not been a favorable response that would be omitted

for the time being ?

Mr. DoAR. That is all.

Mr. McClory. For which we might have to go into executive ses-

sion? Well, I do not see any need for executive se^ion at this time,

Mr. Chairman.
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman, I would like to concur with Mr. Den-

nis, because if we have before us a response to a letter requesting cer-

tain information, and this letter indicates that without limitation

they are going to limit what they are going to give to us, then it seems
to me that the sole question before this committee is whether or not

our request was intelligent and an honest search for information so

we can reach a decision on it. Now, if we are going to have what we are

asking beeped out, while I can understand the need for confidentiality,

then we cannot possibly reach a decision as to whether or not the

White House has complied. So that it seems to me the important
thing is what did we request because the Wliite House letter clearly

indicates that they will give us what they want and will not limit that,

but they will not give us all that we want.
And another problem that I have here is that without having that

letter it is clear to me that we did not ask the President of the United
States to determine what is an impeachable offense. And this letter

seems to restrict the information that they are willing to turn over to

us based on what they think is an impeachable offense. So, Mr. Chair-
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man. if it vrUl help to read this letter. T Avonld jnst like the rhnir to

know that I am in concnrrence with Mr. Dennis, that it seems to me
we have to find ont in executive session.

The Chairman. The Chair would like to clarify that counsel. I

think, intends to i-ead the letter without <>oino; into specifics. And I

think that if the members would only defer for that time, thev would

make a proper iudofment as to whether oi- not tliis satisfies their ques-

tion. And I think that if only we would defer for those moments. I

think we would probably be satisfied.

]\Ir. Sf:TBERLTXG. ^Iv. Cliairmau. I move that counsel read the let-

ters in accordance Avith the instructions of the chairman.

Ms. Hoi.TzzMAX. May I be heard on that motion ?

The Chairmax. I would hope that we do not need a motion to pro-

ceed on that, and in a matter that I think is ol)vious. And I woidd,

if the ^entlelady is addressing- herself to this

Ms. Holtzman". Yes. I just wanted to make a specific comment. The
lilies of procedure before us indicate in rule Xo. 4 that before the com-
mittee is called u])on to make any disposition with respect to testimony

or papers or things presented to the committee. meml"»ers shall have a

reasonable oi:)portunity to examine those testimony, papers, and things.

And I would suggest that it would not be inappropriate if we had
copies of the letters that Mr. Doar is referring to. which he could

summarize then and we could understand his summary. And we would
not necessarily have to make public the details. But, I would think

that we ought to have at least a copy of tlie letter so that we can fol-

low it.

]Mr. Ratlsback. Mr. Chairman ?

Tlie CiiAiRMAX'. Mr. Railsback.

]\rr. Kailsback. Could T iust clarify what our procedures are gen-

erally going to be. as far as this kind of a request.

In other words, I thought that I understood the subpena power re-

quest and I could understand that the chairman and the ranking minor-
ity member would have an opportunitv to authorize the issuance of a

subpena. But, I will tell you in voting for that kind of subpena i^ower,

I did not—I realize that if evidence was obtained by subpena that it

would go through a screening i:)rocess, wliich I ])ersonally appro\-ed of.

But. for the life of me, I have trouble whv those of us on the committee
were not apprised earlier of what we had requested in a letter. In
other words. I do not know why that kind of material should not be

made public. At least, it has been embarrassing. ]Mr. Chairman, for me,
and I am sure many other members that have had to discuss a letter that

this committee sent to the "^^Hiite House requesting certain documents,
and not ever knowing what we requested. And I i-eally do not under-
stand. I can see why we would not receive the evidence.

The Chairman. Well, I would like to advise the gentleman that we
have been sending hundreds of letters, and if the committee intends, if

each member of the committee intends to examine all of those letters,

we are never going to get the work of this committee done if we cannot
repose confidence in the abilitv of our counsel to refine the questions

that are being directed. And I think that the counsel have, in every

case before such a letter has been sent, consulted with me and the rank-

ing member and, especially, in letters that are l)eing sent to the "\V]iit(>

House.
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Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I think I still have the time. I re-

spectfnlly disagree with that kind of a procedure. I iinderst^uid why
we shoukl not be able to screen the evidence. In other words, you and
Mr. Hutchinson ought to screen the evidence. I certainly think that if

any member of this committee wanted to know, wanted to know who
we are sending letters to requesting information, and what are in those

letters, I would think we would have a right to get that.

Mr. HoGAX. Mr. Chairman ?

The CiiAiRMAX. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAX. Mr. Chairnian. I would like to address myself to a matter

related to this discussion here which concerns me very much. The status

report which the stall presented to us the day before yesterday had a

statement that in the next few weeks senior members of the stall will

decide which areas of investigation will be pursued. It seems to me that

that is not a staff function. That is a function of the conmiittee. I think

that what the committee must do is decide the areas of investigation

which we think should be pursued and then everything will fall better

into place. For example, the material which we are now declining to

make pul>lic, perhaps the documents being i-equested ivlate ro matters

which the committee will decide are not worth pursuing. So it seems to

me this is a cart before the horse kind of a situation.

What I would hope that the committee would do would be to go

tl)rougl> the summary given to us the other day, debate it in committee,

and decide which areas we want to reject outright, and which we want
to center in on. I am particularly concerned about the one potential

imi)eachable offense, which includes the dismantling of (^EO.

The CnAiR:MAX. If the gentleman Avill for the moment desist, the

chairman is going to absolutely insist that we address ourselves to the

matter that is under discussion. The matter that is under discussion at

this time is a report concerning letters that were sent by Mr. St. Clair

and letters that were sent by counsel with specific reference to certain

documents. And the question is wheth.er or not the counsel will proceed

now with a report on those letters. And I think that any other matter

concerning procedures at this time th.at this committee is going to un-

dertake, or any matter concerning what sul)stance is going to be con-

sidered, are matters that are not now under consideration at this time,

and the Chair is going to so rule.

Mr. HoGAx. Mr. Chairman, do I still have the time? I think this is at

the very essence of this discussion. If the committee is going to reject

certain areas of investigation, that are totally immaterial, it is very

material what they have i-equested, because if half of the material

that they are requesting relates to matters that the committee is not

even going to investigate, we are wasting a lot of time on our part, as

well as the executive branch.
Mr, Seibertjxg. "Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. HoGAX, I yield to the gentleman from Ohio,
Mr. Seiberlixg, I suppose on that theory we would also debate

every telephone call that Mr. Doar and staff makes before it is made?
Mr. HoGAX. Not at all. But I do think the general perimeters of

the investigation which have been outlined represent a challenge to

the committee to select which we are going to pursue and which we
are not. This is not a staff function. Tliis is a committee function.

Ms. JoRDAx^. Mr. Chairman ?

41-018—75—pt. 1 12
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The Chairman. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Am I correct in assuming that any member of this

committee may go over to the place of the staff investigation and
look at any item of material that the staff has which is the subject
matter of this investigation?

The Chairman. The members may go to the staff under the rules

that have been adopted by the committee, and limited by those rules

may certainly inquire into every matter.
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Would the gentlelady yield on that point?
Ms. Jordan. Yes, I yield.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Thank you for yielding.

I specifically made the request of Mr. Doar when this letter was
first sent out to see a copy of it and I was advised that I could not.

And I think at this point
Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman ?

Ms. Holtzman. I think that letter should be made available to

the committee.
Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman, I would suggest we move ahead with

the procedure outlined by the chairman, let counsel Mr. Doar
summarize the letter, leaving out the specifics about the material re-

quested, and that each member of this committee recognize his priv-

ilege to go and see this communication and the specific information
which is sought.

The Chairman. Without objection, we will proceed.

Mr. Doar. This is my letter of February 25 to Mr. James St. Clair.

This will confirm my conversation with you last Friday in which I told you
we would begin to make specific requests for documents and things from the
White House today.
House Resolution 803 authorized and directed the Committee on the Judi-

ciary to investigate whether sufficient grounds exist for the House to exer-
cise its contsitutional power to impeach Richard M. Nixon, President of the
United States. That resolution also provided that for the purpose of making
such investigation, the committee is authorized to require, by subpena or other-
wise, all such information that it deems necessary to such investigation.

Last Friday, February 22, the Judiciary Committee adopted rules and proce-
dures for the security and responsible handling of sensitive material, which
the inquiry staff might receive by subpena or otherwise. I sent you on Friday
a copy of these rules and procedures, as well as the procedures adopted by the
committee for the impeachment inquiry staff.

When Mr. Jenner and I first spoke to you on February 11, we explained we
had a responsibility to make a careful, thorough, objective discovery of, and
inquiry into, all of the facts surrounding the allegations involving the Presi-

dent. We anticipated that there would be a niunber of documents and things
in the possession of the White House and executive departments that we would
want to receive, examine, and copy. Mr. Jenner and I have recommended
procedures to the committee for expeditious inspection of all materials neces-

sary to the inquiry.
With respect to the material which we believe to be in the posssession of the

White House, I will write directly to you requesting the opportunity to ex-

amine specific items. These letters will come forward on a continuing basis.

Chairman Rodino is sending a letter to President Nixon advising him of
the procedures we are following and expect to follow in soliciting his coopera-
tion.

The committee's factual inquiry is at an early stage. We cannot now make
a decision as to all of the things the committee will require from the President or
from others as necessary for its investigation. However, last Thursday, Mr.
Jaworski, the Special Prosecutor, furnished me with a list of materials which the
President had furnished to him. I would like to request some of the items on that
list. The items are listed in exhibit A hereto. Mr. Jenner and I would hope that
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you would be able to furnish us this material quickly so that we can begin our
examination.
With respect to the recordings of Presidential conversations and transcripts

of, and notes relating to, these conversations, we request in each instance all

tapes, dictabelts or other electronic recordings, transcripts, memoranda, notes

or other writings or things relating to the particular conversations referred to.

When Mr. Jenner and I spoke to you, you mentioned that you had discovered

a means of reducing interference from the tapes electronically so they could be
more clearly understood. Our request is intended to include along with the orig-

inal tapes or copies of the original tapes, the tapes with the interference reduced.

We must establish a way whereby Mr. Jenner and I can be satisfied that the

tapes we receive, which I assume, will be a re-recording of an original tape,

or parts thereof, so identified, covers the entire conversation or conversations

in which we are interested. My understanding is that this can be done both by
listening to a tape and by comparing the tapes with certain notes or other memo-
randa, particularly those of Mr. Haldeman.
Our request in each instance included the material appropriate to authenti-

cate the tape itself.

When I wrote you last Friday, I indicated that we were interested in receiving

a list of material that Mr. Jaworski requested of you, but which you did not
turn over to him. You said you would reconsider that request. It would be ex-

tremel.v helpful to Mr. Jenner and me if we had that list as soon as possible.

Meanwhile, we are ready and do request the material relating to certain other
Presidential conversations that are necessary to the inquiry. This list is by no
means intended to be all-inclusive. And as we have indicated, we expect that
further requests will be necessary. The requests which follow in each instance
includes all tapes, dictabelts or other electronic recordings, transcripts, memo-
randum, notes or other writings or things relating to the particular conversa-
tion referred to.

And then, if the members, please, there is specified a list of six sep-

arate items, some dealing with a particular conversation, some dealing
with conversations, all conversations between particular people on par-
ticular days.

Mr. McClory. Could I just ask, are those six items, items which were
not requested or at least not received by Mr. Jaworski ?

jNlr. DoAR. These are items that were not received by Mr. Jaworski.
In all of the requests, the requests related to conversations between
the President of the United States and another person.

Mv. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

The ChairjMan. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. A question.

As you read the letter, I could not tell what information other than
the specific identification of the Presidential conversations you had
omitted. Is that all that was omitted from the letter ?

Mr. Doar. I have not finished the letter but that is all that has been
omitted so far.

Mr. Waldie. I am sorry. I thought you had concluded.

Mr. DoAR. Then I went on to say that

:

We are at this time limiting our request for documents to the Special Prose-
cutor's list because we have not yet implemented the security clearance procedure
that you suggested be taken care of before examining the so-called Plumbers file.

And by way of explanation, in our discussion with Mr. St. Clair, he
pointed out that Mr. Jaworski had had a meeting over at the White
House examining the file known as the Plumbers file and that you had
to have a security clearance to do that. And we have not yet secured
those security clearances, so some of the material that was on Mr.
Jaworski's list referred to the Plumbers file and we did not request
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that material. That was the material we did not request from Mr.
Jaworski, but in Mr. St. Clair's letter back to me, he said we can have
all of that material that he gave to Mr. Jaworski. So that is rcallj' a

moot point anyway, and I suppose it will be forthcoming.
Now then, I went on

:

Furthermore, we believe the next logical step is to have you outline for us how
the White House files are indexed, how the Presidential papers are indexed and
how Presidential conversations and nienioianduni are indexed. We nre p;ir-

ticularly interested in knowing how the files of Mr. Hakleman. Mr. Ehrlichnian,
Mr. Colson, and INIr. Dean are indexed. If we could work out a way whereby
members of the inquiry staff may examine these files for the purpose of selecting
materials which, in our oi)inion, are necessary for the investigation, I believe that
the inquiry would be expedited.

Mr. .Tenner and I appreciate your courtesy and look forwai'd to receiving this

material promptly. It is our view that you and we share the responsibility to

assure not only that the committee's inquiry will be objective and fair but that
it will be accomplished with dispatched and founded on all of the evidence. We
must be sure that there are no needless delays and no necessary evidence is

permitted to remain undiscovered or unexamined.
It is for this reason, that I again express our view that it is inappropriate to

treat this inquiry as litigation. We ought not be forced to speculate about the
nature, identity and content of evidence within the domain of the White House,
knowledge of which is necessary for the committee properly to meet its task.

Sincerely.

Now. on the 20th I wrote Mr. St. Clair, or the 2Sth, excuse me.
]Mr. Waldie. Before we go to the next letter, may I renew that re-

quest ? Is the only matter that you omitted reading a description of the

Presidential conversations that you were seeking ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I will be frank with you. I summarized the statu-

tory language and left out a few words, but everything else is read
word for word.
Mr. Waldie. And the only thing in that letter you are requesting

you not be required to disclose today is •

Mr. DoAR. I am not requesting that. I am suggesting and recom-
mending that if the committee is interested in knowing what those

items are that it consider going into closed session.

Mr. Waldie. That is what I am trying to say. I am not trying to put
words in your mouth. But, you are suggesting that it not be read
today in open session without a consideration ?

Mr. DoAR. Without consideration, that is all.

The Chatr^iax. You may proceed. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar [reading] :

Dear Mr. St. Clair. Enclosed are copies of letters I have sent the following
people.

The Honorable William Saxbe, The Honorable Roger C. B. Morton. The Honor-
al)le Earl Butz, The Honorable .Tames E. Smith, Dr. .Tohn Dunlop, Director,
Cost of Living Council.

I have told the Heads of the Executive Department that I have advised you
of my request. If there is any difiiculty about these requests, please call me.
As the Federal Communications Commission and the Environmental Protec-

tion Agency are independent agencies, I did not advise them th.nt ) tvas send-
ing a copy of the letters to you.

Then there is a third letter which I wrote on March 1.

Dear Mr. St. Clair. As I told you over the phone Wednesday, the next brief-

ing of the House .Tudiciary Committee will be held at 10 a.m. Tuesday. March
.5. They will expect a report on progress since my letter to you requesting
documents.



177

Have Tou had a chance to reconsider your position with respect to tlie list

of material Mr. Jaworski asked the White House for but did not receive?

Mr. Jenner and I feel we have a responsibility to renew our request for that

list.

I called to tell you I was sending this letter and to ask you some questions

about the security clearance. But you have been tied up. Rather than wait

longer, I will send this letter and try to reach you tomorrow or Monday.

Xow, to tliat I received a reply on the 4tli from Mr. St. Clair.

Dear Mr. Dear. I am sorry I was not available to receive your calls on Friday.

I do have your letter of March 1. I will try to expedite a response to your re-

quest, but I do not believe it can be accomplished before Wednesday of this week.

If you have problems regarding security clearances for your staff I will be

glad to assist you in any way.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

The CiiAiRMAX. Mr. Brooks.

]Mr. Bkooks. Could I direct a question to counsel ?

In your letter of the 25th to Mr. St. Clair, and I have not seen it,

as I recall, did I understand you to say that the White House had
informed you that they had found a means of reducing interferences

in tapes ^

IVIr. DoAR. Yes. I did.

Mr. Brooks. And that your request Tvas going to be for the edited,

the new edition. Yfere you also going to request and ask for the original

tapes as well, so that you could compare them ?

]SIr. DoAR. Yes, we did. It is very clear. AYe asked for the copy of

the original.

]\Ir. Brooks. Right.
Mr. DoAR. The originals of some of these tapes are in Judge Sirica's

]"»ossession. and if they had done anything with this copy of the tape

that would clean up the background of noise so that it was more audi-

ble, we asked for that copy as well.

INIr. Brooks. As well ?

Mr. DoAR. As well.

Mr. Brooks. Thank you.
Mr. Y^ALDiE. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. HtjTCiiixsox. ISIr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. HuTCiiiNSOX. May I inquire of counsel what the status of secu-

rity clearances is ? Have they been completed yet ?

Mr. DoAR. They have not been completed. The CliV has advised

us that there is no difficulty with security clearances, but I have
not vet heard from the Defense Department or the Department of

State.

Mr. PIuTciiixsox. Thank you.
INIr. AYaldie. Mr. Chairman, mav I ask counsel a specific question?
The Chairman. Mr. Y^aldie ?

jNIr. Y^vLDiE. ISIr. Doar, is it your opinion that the response of ]Mr.

St. Clair has denied this committee the Presidential conversations
that you sought that were not provided Jaworski?
Mr. DoAR. Y'^ell. he has—if you read Mr. St. Clair's letter carefully,

and I am sure you have, he does not specifically deny that, but he does
not give us that material. And he seems to say to me : jNIr. Doar. your
case against tlie President is simply, purely, and only the Y'atergate
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coverup. And he seems to say, second, Mr. Doar, the evidence that you
need in your case is just the material that I gave to Mr. Jaworski. And
then he seems to say, third, that after you examine that evidence and
after you have considered just the Watergate coverup, I am confident

that you will find that the President was not involved.

Now, as your lawyer, I say to you that that gives me some appre-
hension about the ability to obtain the necessary information tJiat I

understand Mr. Jenner and I have a responsibility to obtain to conduct
this inquiry.

JNlr. Waldie. Well, Mr. Doar, my concern is that it does seem to me
that it is an explicit refusal to provide you with the evidence that you
have not disclosed today, and if that evidence is essential to the com-
pletion of this committee's responsibility, and I assume you believe it

to be, or you would not have sought it, then I would think we would be
ill-advised to respond in kind to Mr. St. Clair's letter, which is a law-
yer's way of playing games to delay the case. And it would occur to

me that the committee ought to consider the issuance of a subpena to

compel the production of those documents.
Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Sandman. Mr. Chainnan ?

Mr. CoNYERS. Will the gentleman yield to me ?

The Chairman. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Mr. Doar, do you know what Mr. Jaworski requested,

what was on his list ? Do you know what was on it ?

Mr. Doar. I do. I do not have it in my mind, but there was—I know
some of the documents that he requested because they were disclosed

publicly in a letter that he wrote to Senator Eastland.
Mr. Sandman. All right, now. In your request, did you request these

specific documents, or did you just request the list that had been re-

quested by Jaworski, which Jaworski did not receive?

Mr. Doar. We requested the list of materials that Mr. Jaworski had
not received, and then we requested six separate requests for Presi-

dential conversations with particular individuals or on particular days.

Mr. Sandman. The point that I am making is you were requesting
things that you felt related to a specific incident, or were you just re-

questing those things which had previously been refused to another
prosecutor ?

jMr. Doar. No. We did not make the request on the basis of the refusal

to other prosecutors. We made our own judgment that these particu-

lar things were necessary for this inquiiy.

Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. ISIr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Mr. Doar, in your reading the letters, you fre-

quently used the phrase "it is my understanding" that this, that, or the

other thing was the quality of the tape or the lecording that you were
requesting. You repeated, it is my loiderstanding. Upon what did you
base your undei-standing ?

Mr. Doar. Well, in the course of our inquiry, I have learned and
studied some about how to handle the tapes that I feel sure will come
to the committee for its examination.
Mr. Danielson. But were any of these based upon representations

by Mr. St. Clair, or
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Mr. DoAE. Mr. St. Clair said that he had, the Wliite House had a

means of cleaning up the tapes so that background noise was omitted,

and you could—the tape was more audible.

Mr. Danielson. But was your understanding then in that respect

based upon the representation furnished to you by Mr. St. Clair?

Mr. DoAR. Well, it was based in part on that but I also knew that

independently.
Mr. Danielson. "W^iere you are getting a tape which has been sub-

ject to this cleaning up or noise-suppressing procedure, do you also

request and are getting the original tape which has not been cleaned up ?

Mr. DoAR, We are getting it. We are not getting the original tape but
we would get a copy of the original tape that had not been cleaned up
and we would have an opportunity to verify that it was a copy.

Mr. Danielson. A full, complete copy ?

Mr. DoAR. Full, complete copy. That is our request. We have not
yet received any tapes.

The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Railsback. I will be glad to yield. Were you going to move-
Mr. Dennis. No, I am not going to make a motion at the moment.
Mr. Railsback. If I could proceed then, Mr. Chairman. There is

still a chance that we may be given the briefcases with the other docu-
ments that have been turned over to the court, and in light of that and,
also, of course, we are going to be given the 700 and some odd docu-
ments and materials that the White House has now agreed to turn
over. I wonder what counsel's feelings are about the value of analyzing
and examining those materials that are going to be turned over to us
prior to adopting what I think was Mr. Waldie's suggestion of going
ahead with the subpena for those documents that have not been pro-
duced? I wonder if there is merit to that and I would like to hear
your feelings about how we could proceed ?

Mr. DoAR. Let me say preliminarily to that, first of all, that I be-
lieve that this committee should, is entitled to, and should secure all

information necessary to its inquiry. There should not be
Mr. Railsback. I agree with that.

Mr. DoAR. And there should not be any gap, and I want the com-
mittee to understand that that is my miequivocal positive position.

No. 2, 1 think
Mr. Jenner. That is also my position.
Mr. DoAR [continuing]. No. 2, I think that the full power of the

House of Representatives should be behind and support appropriate
requests for material in the event that the request is denied.
Now, having said that, I will answer your specific question. I think,

in my judgment, that it would be well to examine the material that
Mr. Clair is sending up. It is going to be 17 or 19 tapes and 700 docu-
ments. To process that material, to examine, if Judge Sirica gives us
the material in the suitcase or briefcase, and the 50-page docmnent to
examine that, and also to go back to Mr. St. Clair and say, now, maybe
there was a misunderstanding about what I said in my letter, maybe
you overlooked the six requests and you don't say in your letter, if
you wish to talk to me about it, I would be glad to talk to you, and I
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think that it is just sound procedure if we have the opportunity to

examine that material, if the material comes up here expeditiously, so

we can cet at it and get through with it in an expeditious time.

jNIr. Katlsback. INIr. Doar, in connection with that, how long would
you euA'ision. and this might make a difference as to how the committee
reacts as far as getting out a subpena now. how long would you esti-

mate it would take to examine those materials? Well, your estimate, I
guess, has to l^e based on the examining of the TOO-some odd documents
that the White House will present to us. In other words, v* hat kind of
a time span are we talking about?

]Mr. r)0AR. Oh, I would say it would be a time span of 1 or 2 weeks.
]\Ir. Jenner. An examination of the tapes alone is very difficult. You

have to become accustomed first, and have an ear that is attuned to

picking out. We have now learned that we have to have very sophisti-

cated equipment. It takes hours to listen to tapes, the first run-through,
and you may have to go through the second time and the third time.

Mr. Railsback. Are there transcripts of tliose tapes already in

existence ?

ISIr. Jexner. Yes ; there are 1)ut de&pite the transcripts, you expect
us, and at least we feel as your counsel in our professional responsi-

bility that we have to be able to say to you that the transcripts does
reflect accurately what is on the tapes. So we have to listen to the
tapes at least once. There are a lot of tapes here and they are lengthy,
and it takes a lot of time. Now, Doar and I both say to you that pro-
fessionally we cannot tell you. It could be 1 to 2 weeks.

Afr. Railsback. But in any event
Mr. I )rtxan. Mr. Cliai rman ?

]\[r. Railsback. It is not going to he an interminable delay? It

sounds to me, in other words, like it is a fairly brief period of time, and
so we are not really postponing for a great period of time the issuance

of a subpena if we, acting on vour advice, believe that a subpena for

additional information would be necessary.

Mv. DoAR. Yes.

The Cetatrmax. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Setbereixg. Mr. Doar, in Mr. St. Clair's response to you dated
March 6. he apparently distinguishes between the specific requests you
have made and what he says appears to be a request in effect for access

to other papers, conversations, and memoranda, without apparent
limitations. exce])t as you detormine they are necessary. And I wonder
is that, in your opinion, the reason he has not yet produced the specific

thinjTs that a'ou. requested ?

]\rr. Doar. Well, I do not

Mr. Seibereix-o. And, second, T want to ask you do you agi-ee that

your request to him appears to l)e, or at least that there is a basis for

t]iinkin<r it miq-ht be a request for unlimited access?

Mr. Doar. Xo : I do not agree with that. But, I do not

Mr. Dexnt^. Air. Chairman ?

]Mr. Doar [continuinrrl. But I do not know what Afr. St. Clair in-

dicated excent for the fact that he in those narfio-raphs where he said

we believe that the case, th.e matter before the House Judiciary Com-
mittee, is the Watergate coverun and wo believe that Afr. Jaworski.

all of the material we (yfwe Mr. JaAvorski Avas sufficient to answer and
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resolve all problems in the Watergate coveriip. Mr. Jaworski said that

he now knew the whole story. And so that I do not believe that there

was any misnnderstandino- abont the specific reqnests.

Mr. Seiberling. Is there any basis for going back to Mr. St. Clair

and clarifying the nature of your request and the scope of it?

]Mr. DoAR. Only the basis that the President has assured the chair-

man and the American pul)lic that he will cooperate with this commit-
tee, that it ought to be clear that there is no possible misunderstandiiig

between Mr. St. Clair and myself, Mr. St. Clair, ]Mr. Jenner, and my-
self about these requests, and that we are absolutely unequivocal and
positive and can assure the committee that there just is not a misunder-

standing.

]Mr. Seiberlixg. Well, of coui'se, he said he would cooperate in doing

things that we have not asked him to do, like interrogatories but. you
are saying it is not clear the extent to which he is willing to cooperate

on things we have asked him to give us.

Mr. DoAR. I say that Mi-. St. Clair indicated he would be glad to

discuss this matter furthei- with us. and so that it is not yet a certainty

that it is clear.

]Mr. Seiberlixg. I thank you.

Mr. WiGGixs. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairmax. I am going from one side to the other.

Mr. Wiggins.
]Mr. WiGGixs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I request that at this point in the record the St. Clair letter of

]March f). 1974. l)e inserted.

The CiiAiRMAx. Without objection, it will be so ordered.

[Copy of letter to :Mr. Doar from ]Mr. St. Clair follows :]

The White House.
Wfisliiiifffon, Mnrch 0, 197.'/.

Mr. .John M. Doar.
^})echtl. Connf<cl to the House Jiuliciarij Cnmmittcc,
Rai/hvrn Buihlinfj, Washinffton, B.C.

Dear Mr. Doar : Yor.r letter of Febniavy 25. 1974. and your letter of Febim-
ary 28, 1974 enclosing copies of requests for prodnction of documents and other

materials directed to five of the Executive Departments, have been reviewed by
the President and he has directed me to reply thereto.

At his direction I am instructed to advise you that the specific materials that

you have requested that were furnished to the Special Prosecutor will be made
available to you, together with any otlier materials that have been furnished the

Special Prosecutor, without limitation. In addition the President is instructing

tlie Executive Department heads involved to furnish the materials requested
to me for delivery to you. Providing copies of some of the materials, particularly

tapes of recorded conversations since they must be produced under Secret Service

supervision, may take a few days but we will proceed as expeditiously as

possible.

The President believes that the materials furnished voluntarily by him to the

grand jury, which includes tapes of nineteen recorded Presidential conversa-

tions and more than 700 documents are more than sufficient to alTord tlie

.Tudiciary Committee with tlie entire Watergate story. The Special Prosecutor
himself has confirmed in the pulilic press that the grand jury now knows the

whole Watergate story.

In addition to specific requests, however, you appear to have requested, in

effect, access for your staff to other Presidential papers, conversations and
memoranda without apparent limitation except as tlie staff determines they

are necessary for the investigation. Since there is really no effective index of all

the Presidential documents and matei-ials, this request, as it appears to me.
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meaus that you contemplate access by staff members to hundreds of thousands
of documents and thousands of hours of recorded conversations covering the
widest variety of subjects. To produce and review this material would obvi-
ously take many months.
The granting of a request for virtually unlimited access to Presidential docu-

ments, conversatioms and other materials would, in the President's judgment,
completely destroy the Presidency as an equal coordinate branch of our govern-
ment and is beyond his constitutional ability to grant. Accordingly the President
respectfully declines to grant such widespread access to these materials, assum-
ing it is this that you have requested.
The potential scope of this request is highlighted even more by the fact

that the Committee has yet to determine what is an impeachable offense. As I
stated at our first meeting, it w^ould seem clear that this question, about which
there is a substantial body of differing opinion, should first be resolved before
such an inquiry as you contemplate should be undertaken. Obviously, if the
definition you and your staff have argued for is adopted, the permissible scope
of inquiry, while not unlimited, would be broader than would be the case if the
position we have taken that only criminal conduct on the part of a President
affords grounds for impeachment were adopted.

Furthermore, before such an inquiry is undertaken, it would seem clear that
fundamental fairness would require that the "allegations involving the Presi-
dent" under investigation be identified so that the President could have at least
some notice as to what allegations concerning him are the subject of this investi-
gation. Surely a President is entitled to no less consideratiooi than any other
citizen.

As the President has stated, he is willing to cooperate with the Committee
within the limits of his constitutional responsibility. Toward this end he has
authorized me to inform you that he stands ready to respond to relevant written
interrogatories if that is deemed necessary to a full luiderstanding of the matters
under investigation. Should the Committee decide as a result of such answers that
a conference with the President would be desirable I will be glad to discuss
with you appropriate procedures therefor.

In the President's opinion, the Watergate matter and widespread allegations
of obstruction of justice in connection therewith are at the heart of this mat-
ter. By making available to the Committee without limitation all of the mate-
rials furnished to the grand jury, a list of which was furnished to you with my
approval, he feels that he will have provided the Committee with the necessary
materials to resolve any questions concerning him. He is confident that when
these are reviewed, the Committee will be satisfied that no grounds for impeach-
ment exist.

I will be glad to discuss these matters further with you if you so desire.

Sincerely yours,
James D. St. Clair,

Special Counsel to the President.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, it is important tliat the letter speak
for itself, and that members' interpretations of that letter be tested

as against the words used.

It strikes me that our counsel's letter of February 25, dealt. with
three areas: It dealt with the Jaworski material, generally speaking;
it dealt with six specific other items and it dealt with the indexing

problem.
The letter of March 6, in response to that, considered two further

of those requests and it absolutel}^ was silent with respect to the third

;

namely, the six documents. There is no mention of it at all. I think

that in light of that it is especially important that our counsel accept

the invitation of Mr. St. Clair to discuss that matter precisely and
specifically so that we know exactly what the attitude of the White
House is "with respect to those six items, and that the "^^Hiite House
know exactly what our attitude is with respect to those six items. And
that a report of such a conversation be macle to this committee, so that

we can act knowledgeablv under the premises. Any action today in



183

advcance of that, Mr. Cliairman, would be very premature, hasty and
ill-advised, and I certainly would recommend against it.

Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield ?

]\Ir. Fish. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. McClory. For a question ?

I am wondering if it is not important for us also to know, and if

it is possible in a public session to note to what subjects these six
items relate ? If they relate to an impoundment of funds, I may not
be interested. If they relate to the Watergate coverup I am very in-
terested. Is it possible at this public session to inform the committee
as to what subject matter is involved in the six tapes ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, it is.

The Chx^ikman. Counsel.
Mr. DoAR. The six tapes relate to the Watergate coverup.
The Chairisian. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman, I desire to give to Mr. Doar and to

Mr. Jenner all of the support they need so that they can conclude,
all of us can conclude, this inquiry as expeditiously as possible. And I,

therefore, move that the committee formally issue a subpena for those
specific items requested by counsel on February 25, which have not
been delivered.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. I would like to second that motion and speak to it

briefly, because it appears to me that this committee and counsel are

concerned about misunderstandings which have developed as a result

of the exchange of letters. It seems to me that if counsel wants to

provide a service to this committee and Mr. St. Clair might want to

])rovide a service to the President, that our counsel should be able to

draft a subpena that would be so specific in nature, that it could stand

up in order to determine whether or not the "Wliite House intended

to cooperate and to draw it with such accuracy that we could prop-

erly determine whether or not the President is acting in contempt of

this committee. So, in support of the second, I would suggest that a

proper time, a returnable date be placed by the committee based on
counsel's experience as to when it can be. But, I heard Mr. St. Clair

say yesterday that even in the limited area that he desires to cooperate

that he could not give counsel or this committee any timetable in which
he would gather the information, retape it and reproduce that which
he is willing to give. It seems to me that the

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Rangel. The subpena would be concurrent with our reviewing

what we have and where we are going with the timetable.

I vield.

The Chairman. The Chair, recogniizing tliat the gentleman has

put a motion before the Chair, I would hope that the gentleman.

Father Drinan, would consider deferring that motion in the light of

wliat the committee counsel, I think, has been suggesting and, that is,

that materials have been requested which are pertinent to this in-

quiry; materials are going to be furnished which are pertinent to
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this inqiiiiy. Materials have been ignored Avhich are pertinent to

this inqnir}'.

But, on tlie other hand, the TOO dornments and the 10 tapes that

are referred to in the letter by Mr, St. Chiir, which are presently

matters that the Special Prosecutor lias and which are very, very
important to the work of this committee, to understand better tlie

relevance of the other documents that are being- requested. It v.'oukl

give us, it would seem to me, some real idea as to what pertinence

and what help that information could be and not restrict us to. I

think, an issue whicli I am sure the committee does not want to be

restricted to. It wouhl seem to me if we would only recognize that

Mr. St. Clair in his letter, while I agree with counsel that requests

have been made, and they have not been fully complied with, they in

some instances, I believe, give ample justification to say that there

is a distortion of the view that was presented by our counsel for certain

materials which were requested and in the case of, I believe, reference

being made and not to a request for an index, but an understanding of

an index so that there would not be any fishing expedition and I would
believe that in the light of the fact that Mr. St. Clair does conclude

by saying that there was another discussion—incidentally, and I nm
siire that counsel would refer to that as well, even after receipt of the

letter—that it would l)e wise for this committee, while I am one of the

first to admit that there has been a reasonable length of time, none-

theless, I think that acting as responsibly as we have, I would believe

that it would do this committee well to consider, first, the receipt of

those documents that they have stated they would give us without

limitation, and not at this time take action on the subpena. I would
hope that the gentleman would seriously consider that. I think on

reflection we would not be doing ourselves the kind of service that we
should l)e doing.
Mv. Drixax. ]Mr. Chairman, may I speak to the motion?
The CiiAiR]\fAX. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drtxax. I would like to ask counsel whether they v:ant the

subpena power today or if they want it deferred, when are v\e going

to take the subpena pov»er, if necessary, for documents not delivered ?

]Mr .Tenner and Mr. Doar ?

Mr. DoAR. We do not want the committee to issue a subpena todav.

Ur. Drixax. Why ?

]Mr. Doar. Because we think that it is important for us to have the

opi)ortunity to examine the material that has been agreed to be

sent to us, because we think that if we get the material that is in the

grand jury's possession that that will aid in our understanding of it

and in the' preparation of the case, and that we will then be bettor able

to frame a sub]ienn that will be clear, concise, and within the unques-

tioned scope of this inquiry, and conducted bv the membei-s of this

committee And, as a matter of fact, the entire, and on your behalf

and through you the House ^Members and the American public will

know just exactly Avhat Ave are asking. And for the third reason tliat

Mr. St. Clair has said to me he would be glad to talk to me about this

and we intend to raise this matter with him today.

Xow. if you say how long. I have indicated to you that we ounht

to be able to examine this material within a week or 2 weeks. Fathei-
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Drinan. I do not suggest any kind of a delay at all. I am not argu-
ing for a delay; I am not arguing that we should not get every "bit
of material that this committee feels necessary and that no one' out-
side this committee should set the limits on this inquiry.
Mr. Drixax. Well, that is precisely Avhat is happening, thouo-h be-

cause you have a letter saying that no later than Wednesday you
would have that information, and today is Thursday.
Mr. DoAR. That is right. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drixax. So that we are being
Mr. DoAR. That is all right. But you do not—I am just saying to

you that as your counsel I think that you are not indicating any
sign of weakness by folloAving the procedure that we recommend. We
are not saying that we are not going to subpena. We are not going
to say we are not going to vigorously go after every bit of material
that you feel is necessary. But we feel that we want to do this after
we have liad a chance to look at the material, if it comes expeditiously,
and if we can look at it in a reasonably short time and examine it.
Mr. Dexxis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The CHAIR3IAX-. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I want to support your A'iews as I

understand them, and I also want to support counsel's recommenda-
tion. As far as my friend from Massachusetts is concerned, if he, act-
ing upon the advice of counsel, at a later time, indicates that we should
subpena additional material which we think may be necessary, or
our counsel thinks may be necessary, I feel certain "^that you are goino-
to get support. You are going to get support from our side as well
as from your side. I for ojie do not think that in any way we have
compromised our position as far as beino- able to get material at a
later time if we need them. But, I think it makes a'ood sense when we
are going to have TOO-some-odd documents turned over to us, possibly
we are going to have another entire briefcase allegedly bulo-ino- with
inaterials turned over to us, to feel compelled to issue a subpena at
this time before we could have the benefit of screening all of those other
materials. So, I certainly support your views, Mr.^Chairman
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.
Mr. Seiberlixg. Mr. Chairman, I would wish to support the state-

ment that you have made and that Mr. Railsback has made. As far
as I am concerned, if we get to the point where there is a clear-cut
refusal on the part of tlie President and his counsel to dve us docu-
ments we consider necessary, and there is no misunderstanding, I will
support the issue of a subpena, and I will do everything I can to sup-
port Its enforcement, if necessary. But, I do not think that we are
at that point as yet. Mr. St. Clair has indicated possible misunder-
standings as to the scope of the request that has been made, and has
said you will be glad to discuss the matter. And it seems to me we
should follow the advice of counsel.
Mr. Raxgel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Raxgel. I would like to concur with the Chair but I have a

problem with the committee's counsel. Obviously, if after requestino-
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certain information it becomes clear to 5'ou now that 3'oiir request
was not that specific to such an extent that it now has generated a mis-
understanding which, of course, Father Drinan and I cannot under-
stand since your request is not before this committee, in order for
me to have a better understanding of what we are requesting, can I
get some type of assurance from counsel that any request tliat will be
made in the future of the White House will be draAvn up in language
that can stand up in a subpena ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, you will. And I think that there is nothing unspe-
cific about these six requests. There is nothing unspecific at all about
them. But I think that it may well be that after we examine this ma-
terial, if it comes expeditiously that it might not just be these partic-
ular six items. It might be some other items tJiat we would want
to include in the subpena that we could actually justify. And, in

addition, we would have additional support for those six items. Al-
though I want to say to you that we believe that we can support
fully and justify the request for the six items we need. We believe
it, that this subpena would stand up.
Mr. Rangel. But, you do not have any question that tliose six items

have been rejected by the response to your letter?

Mr. DoAR. Well, as—if you ask—I thinlv that there might be a

—

there is no question that they were rejected but there might have been
a misunderstanding about them.
Mr. Rangel. And the language that you will be using will be lan-

guage that if this committee sees fit can stand up in a subpena to

the President of the United States ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, sir. No question.

The Chairman. I would like to make clear to Mr. Rangel that the

reason why I made the reference to the fact that that specific request

was not addressed at all in the letter by Mr. St. Clair to Mr. Doar did
not in any way, in the Chairman's mind, suggest that it was not a

rejection. However, in order to proceed as we have been and because
Mr. St. Clair did ultimately call and suggest that they would talk

further, I feel that it is necessary to put it to them once again and
say these are six other items. But, again, as the counsel states, I do not

believe that it is going to he limited to those items and, therefore, I

think it would be best if we framed our request after v>'e have had an
opportunity to examine this other material.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Counsel, Mr. Wiggins earlier outlined the six separate items as

totally not responded to in Mr. St. Clair's letter of the 6th. Is it not

also true that your initial request for the list of materials requested

by the Special iProsecutor, but not supplied, and your request for some
of the items that were not furnished to the Special Prosecutor also

are matters that are omitted ?

Mr. Doar. That is right.

Mr. Fish. In Mr. St. Clair's response?

Mr. Doar. That is right. And I talked to Mr. St. Clair last night

at about 6 :30 and I said what about that list ? And he said that Mr.

Jaworski—well, he said, you can get that from Mr. Jaworski. And
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I said Avell, Mr. Jaworski seems to want to get your approval of that
and he said, well, I will consider that and we will talk tomorrow
about that. That was
Mr. Fisii. Do I understand your position that while you are study-

ing these 700 documents, and we talk in terms of 2 weeks, that it may
be 2 weeks before we get them, that you will be vigorously pursuino-
all of tlie requests of your initial letter of February 25, that have not
been responded to and hopefully have a status report on that for us
next week.
Mr. DoAR. Oh, yes, we will.

Mr. Dennis. \A ill the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Fish. Yes.
Z\h\ Edwards. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Dennis. Well, Mr. Chairman, the gentleman had the floor and

he yielded to me.
The Chairman. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman, I am prepared to approve of vour suggestion and

that of counsel. However, I think that it ought to be made very clear
that I think that the White House is attempting to define on its own
the limits of our investigation and our inquiry and that that is totally
unacceptable. I think that it is very clear that the White House intends
not to give us certain documents that we feel are necessary. And I
again think that that is totally unacceptable. However, for the time
being I think that the suggestions made by counsel are reasonable
and at this time I am prepared to go along with it for a limited time.
The Chairman. Does the gentleman from Indiana want to be

recognized ?

Mr. Dennis. Well, I thank the Chairman for recognizing me. I just
want to say very briefly that I concur with the chairman about this
matter now before us and with those others who have spoken. And
I only wanted to add a couple of things which possibly have not been
said.

One is that we have got this very able and distinguished counsel
here and vigorous counsel, and I think it is usually a pretty fair idea
to take their advice unless we have some very good reason not to.
And the second thing is that when and if we get into the subpena

business, and I would like to make it clear I will go for a subpena,
too, if we have to do it, but when and if we get there we have got a
real constitutional impact, and we do not really know where we are
going, just what we can do about it if a subpena is ignored, and that
is a very deep question. We have got trouble. We may need litigation
and undoubtedly counsel are thinking about those things among other
things. And if we can get essentially what we want without getting
into that position, it certainly makes sense to do it.

Now, I am the fellow who raised the question here of closing the
meeting, and I am willing to defer on that as long as we go ahead and
try to get this thing done in a sensible fashion. But, I will guarantee
you if I have to vote on a subpena that I am going to try to insist on
seeing what I am trying to subpena before I do it. So, let us go along.
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Mr. HoGAX. Will tlie o-entlomaii yield ?

Mr. Danielsox. Mi", ("liaiiinaii ?

Mv. Dennis. Yes ; I will yield to the oentleman.

Mr. IIoGAN. I think the'gentleman makes an excellent point and it

occurs to some of us when counsel says he is confident that the sub-

pena Avill stand up, then that gives rise to another question, stand up
where ? We have asked a number of times what our procedure is going

to be if the sulipena is rejected, and the committee has not resolved

and the counsel has not advised us as to what procedures we are going

to take at that time. So. how will the subpena stand up ? Will we go

to court or will we go to the House floor or what will we do ?

]Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mv. HoGAN. I would like to have him answer the question if I

might.
Mr. DoAR. The first thing is. Mr. Jenner and I would not submit

to the committee for approval of a subpena without laying out for

the committee the exact language of the subpena and the justification

for it. And I really recommend that that be included and j^rovided to

the committee members a reasonable time before the meeting so that

thev could have an opportunity to study it.

Now, if the committee in its wisdom then decided to approve the

sul)]5ena, and if the counnittee decided to approve it and it was denied

or there was no compliance, then one way the subpena would be en-

forced would be for this committee to recommend to the House of

Eepresentatives that the person that refused to comply with the sub-

pena be found in contempt. Now. legally, T am confident that any

subpena we prepare, and that you, your committee approves, would

be found to be legally proper under the resolution that was authorized

by the House of Representatives.
' There are questions aljout the authority to go into court to enforce

a subpena that we have not fully studied or had the opportunity to

brief for the committee. There are also questions aliout the wisdom of

going into court with respect to enforcement of a subpena that we
have not had the opportunity to brief for the committee, and there is a

question with respect to possible legislation with respect to subpenas

that we have not had the opportunity to brief for the committee. And
then there is also the possibility that the person upon whom this

sub]iena was served would himself or herself go to court and move
to quash the subpena, and we Avould have to advise the committee

as to our judgment as to what position the court would take on that

initial judisdictional question, that would be raised as to whether the

court had any power to deal with the subpena at that stage.

Mr. Flow^ers. Mr. Chairman?
INfr. HoGAN. I thank vou and I thank the gentleman for yielding.

The Chairiman. INIr. Danielson.

INIr. Danielsox. Mr. Chairman, I suppose vour position that Me
should at this time defer the issuance of a subpena. I emphasize at

this time, because under proper circumstances, I would certainly favor

it. I point that in the last paragraph of President Richard Nixon's

letter of March 5 says

:

The interest of our country and the American people require that this matter

proceed as expeditiously as possible and I am sure that you and Mr. Hutchinson

will see that these proceedings are not unduly delayed.
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I respectfully submit that if tlie White House continues to refuse

to produce or to obstruct our obtaining of evidence, the public will

soon recognize that the delay is not occasioned by this committee but

by the respondent in these proceedings, himself.

Lastly, I would like to point out that I am not fearful that a subpena

would not be recognized. There are a substantial number of people

on this committee who feel that the failure to recognize a valid sub-

pena might be impeachable conduct in itself.

And, lastly, the President will certainly learn of these proceedings

before another hour has gone by, and we have already had a imani-

mous vote on a very critical issue.

Mr. FL0^VERS. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Danielson. I yield back.

The Chairjman. I am alternating from one side to the other.

IVIr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, I will not trespass on the time of the

committee very long. I just want to affirm myself that the recommenda-
tions of counsel are sound, in my judgment and are consistent with
the posture of firmness and fairness and diligence that we are supposed

to have under these circumstances. But, I would like to inquire at

the moment as to two things

:

Specifically, your telephone conversations with Mr. St. Clair, one of

which you reported to us a moment ago, I assume that 3'ou are mak-
ing memoranda of these conversations and that they will be available

to the committee membership if we want to examine them? Is that

a fair statement?
Mr. DoAR. Well, I have not made a memorandum of eveiy conver-

sation that I have had, but I will do that from this point on and they

would be available to the committee for examination, certainly. But
I will say to the committee that I believe that I suggested to Mr. St.

Clair at our first meeting that our communications be formalized and
reduced to writing. If we continue to talk, we have meetings, we may
talk for 2 or 3 hours but that after that meeting that the understand-
ing or the lack of understanding, or what was discussed, be confirmed
in writing so that there would be no question a month from now as

to what was said, or what was promised or what was refused.

Mr. Butler. I thank you.
Now, Mr. Chairman, a parliamentary inquiry ?

Am I correct in my understanding that the gentleman from
Massachusetts has now withdrawn his motion for a subpena ?

Mr. Driistan. I have not withdrawn my motion.
Mr. Flowers. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Butler. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Conters. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman". Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conters. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to add this to the discussion on this motion. Last night

the President of the United States was asked, would it not serve the

purpose of a speedy conclusion of an impeachment hearing for you to

give the committee whatever materials, tapes and documents they
consider pertinent to their investigation. His report of the response

was:

41-018—75—pt. 1 13
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It would not lead to a speedy conclusion, it would delay it. in my opinion,
because all that is really involved in this instance is to cart everything that is

in the White House down to a committee and to have them crawl through it on
a fishing expedition, it will take them not a matter of months, so that they can
complete their investigation, and we trust their decision by the tirst of May
which I understand is Mr. Rodino's object, but it would take them months and
perhaps even as long as a year.

'Now, in view of that arrogance, as I define it and choose to term
it, I think that the conchision that the chairman suggest that we follow
to delay the issuance of a subpena is going the last mile with the Presi-
dent and with his representatives who have made it clear at the very
first modest research for information in as specific a manner as can
be made, that we are going to be in for a serious confrontation. Now,
it is very, very difficult for me if this motion is put to a vote, not to
support the issuance of a subpena now. And I will state, Mr. Chair-
man, that the issuance of a subpena does nothing more than formally
and legally put our request on a footing by which we can act.

Now, if it is not the wishes of the majority of this committee, if the
counsel for this committee feel in their judgment that in the face of
this again-termed arrogance that we will now delay further, while
the President of the United States continues to imply to the rest of
this Nation that he is in full compliance with this committee, then I
think that we are showing a generosity that has never been demon-
strated by the While House in these matters. Their record has been
one of consistent refusal to cooperate with all of the committees and
legal branches of Government that have sought to get information.
The Chairman. I recognize Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. I appreciate the sentiments of counsel and the chair-

man. I am not entirely persuaded of their point of view. I am afraid,

frankly, that a profound mistake may well be being made at this

particular moment in the history of impeachment. But, for a variety
of reasons, and in deference to counsel and the Chair, and simply
because the votes are not here I withdraw the motion.
The Chair would like

Mr. Rangel. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman. Having sec-

onded that motion, is it necessary that I withdraw ?

The Chairman. No, it is not necessary, Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. The second of it? I would just like to ask counsel

whether he has any problems in determining contempt of Congress
as an impeachable offense ?

Mr. DoAR. No, I have no problem with that. None whatsoever.
Mr, Jenner. And I share that view.

The Chairman. The Chairman will recognize the fact that there

is -a quorum call and the Chair had intended that we might have
scheduled a meeting, but under the rule of the committee that we
have to schedule meetings with 24-hour notice, the Chair will state

that the next regular meeting will be on Tuesday next. There will be
no regular meeting tomorrow. And the committee now stands
adjourned.

[A\^iereupon, at 12 :08 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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Committee on the Judiciary,

Washington^ D.C.

The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:50 a.m., in room 21-11,

Bayburn House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr. (chair-

man) presiding.

Present: Representatives Rodino (presiding). Brooks, Edwards,
Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, Waldie, Mann, Sarbanes, Seiberling,

Drinan, Rangel, Jordan, Holtzman. Owens, Hutchinson, McClory,
Smith, Sandman, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, Hogan, Cohen, Lott, Froeh-
lich, Moorhead, and Latta.

Also present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general counsel ; Garner J. Cline,

associate general counsel; Franklin G. Polk, associate counsel.

The Chairman. The cameras and others will please leave the room.
The Chair, before getting into the agenda for today's meeting, which

as we all know from the notice was scheduled purposely for the con-

sideration of the pocket veto legislation, would like to make several

announcements.
One, the meeting was called specifically for the purpose of con-

sidering this legislation. As you know, this committee is, notwith-
standing our preoccupation with the question of the impeachment in-

quiry, is concei-ned also with various other matters that are issued by
the various subcommittees, and these are pertinent pieces of legisla-

tion and, therefore, the Chair, in consultation with the ranking minor-
ity member, and the subcommittee chairmen from whom he had sought
information as to what legislation was ready for consideration by the
full committee, I made a decision that the pocket veto legislation,

which is pertinent and relevant, and certainly timely, is a matter that
I think should be considered. It has been pending for some time.

And the Chair is hopeful that the other subcommittees which are
presently considering legislation, and I know do have some legislation

to report, are aware of the fact that we will be devoting some of these
scheduled meetings and the regular Tuesday meetings to sessions for
the consideration of legislation that is to be reported to the full com-
mittee.

The Chair would also like to state that upon reading this morning
in today's press that the White House had made some reference to a
request for a number of tapes, and suggesting that this committee and

(191)
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its counsel through letter that was sent, as all of us know, by Mr. Doar,
with the approval of Mr. Jenner, with the approval of Mr. Hutchin-
son and myself, specifying certain requests for tapes and documents,
that we did not make public the letter that Mr. Doar had sent because
there were some items that we considered that at that time it would be
bettor not stated publicly. However, my understanding is from a read-
ing of the press this morning that the White House issued some state-

ment concerning in one paper it is reported 43 tapes, and in another as

42 tapes that were being requested. And again with the suggestion that

possibly this was covering a broad area, and possibly trying to re-

flect on the ability of this committee to confine its requests to specific

areas of inquiry which I think are pertinent, and necessary, and
relevant to this committee's proceedings.

I would like to state that the request specifically addressed itself to

certain dates and events, as was stated, and the dates that were actu-

ally, dates that were actually pertinent to our inquiry were dates of

February 20, and these were conversations relating to Mr. Haldeman
and the President ; the date of February 27 relating to conversations

between Haldeman, Ehrlichman, and the President. The date of

ISfarch 17 and conversations relating to Mr. Dean and the President.

Then tho date of March 20, conversations relating to Mr. Dean and
the President. The date of March 27 and conversations relating to

Mr. Ehrlichman and the President. The date of March 30 and con-

versations relating to Mr. Ehrlichman and the President.

It was considered that all of these, which may be 41 conversations in

all, but which occurred on these dates, would shed light on some of

the discussions that took place. And all of them, we have reason to

believe, all relate to the Watergate incident.

There were other conversations where the subject of these requests,

and there were dates relating to April 14 through 18. And these were
conversations between the President and Haldeman, Ehrlichman,
Kleindienst, and Peterson, relating also to Watergate.
Now, counsel, and this is counsel that was appointed, special coun-

sel and the minority counsel all thought that these requests were
specific enough to address tliemselves to these particular dates be-

cause they bear on very important matters that are really matters

that leave a lot of questions still unanswered. And it is not the inten-

tion of this committee to go on any fishing expedition, as has been
suggested. And I regret that the press in reporting this, while I know
that they are reporting what has come out of the White House, un-
fortunately would suggest, and this is not that the press suggested
this way, but I think tliat the suggestion is that, in the kind of a state-

ment that was issued, that the committee was again going over a
broader area, and I restate that this certainly is not our intention. I
would hope that this is a matter that the "\Vliite House is aware of»

and I am sure Mr. St. Clair is aware of this.

I would like to also state that some tapes have arrived. Thev ar-

rived Friday night. And some documents arrived Friday ni.Qfht. Pres-
ently the staff is setting up its system of listening to some of the tapes

and going through the documents.
There was also last Friday morning a meeting between counsel, Mr.

St, Clair and Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner, and a request again was made
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by Mr. Doar regarding the items that now are under discussion. And
Mr. St. Clair stated that the President was away, and he would take

up the matter with the President today.
Together with that, I would like to

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, would the gentleman yield for a
question ?

The Chairman. Please let me finish my announcement.
Mr. McClory. Sure.
The Chair5Iax. I would also like to state that the Chair, in ac-

cordance with the direction of this committee, sent a letter last Friday
by hand to Judge Sirica containing the instructions that this com-
mittee had given to the chairman requesting the documents that were
the subject of a vote that was taken here. Judge Sirica that same after-

noon did respond with a letter by hand in which he merely stated

that the matter was under consideration and that the Judge would, as

he stated, in the near future make known his decision. This morning I
spoke with Congressman Mills regarding some matters that he is in-

quiring into. He has assured me of total cooperation and assures me
that there will be close liaison between that committee and our com-
mittee. That is taking place, but we are insuring that there is an even
closer relationship so that our committee may be able at least to as-

certain just what time limitation that comanittee is setting on itself

since we are under a time factor.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, would the chairman yield for just a

moment ?

The CHAiRMAisr. I yield.

Mr. Brooks. I would like to say that I think that this release of this

letter is an affront, really, to the comity that you would hope to exist

between the Wliite House and the Congress of the United States. I
think that the White House hucksterism in this event does not detract

in any way from the decency and the forbearance whicli this com-
mittee has tried to exercise and does exercise. I think it leaves the basic

question answered. The "Wliite House is not going to cooperate fully

with this committee or with the Congress in this investigation, and it

is just a matter of time before we are required to send a subpena down
and let them fulfill it or not.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, would the gentleman yield to me for

a question ?

The Chairman. Yes.
Mr. McClory. Would the chairman advise if you think it is appro-

priate to advise us whether any of the six additional items that were
requested beyond those which were previously delivered to Mr. Ja-
worski have been received, or do we have assurances that rjij of them
or all of them will be received ?

The Chairman. I stated that was the subject of conversations be-

tween Mr. St. Clair, Mr. Doar, and Mr. Jenner at last Friday's meet-
ing, and Mr. St, Clair then stated that he would take this matter up
with the President today.
Mr. PIuTCHiNSON. Will the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. Insofar as I laiow, none of those have been received,

other tapes have been received, other documents, but those are all docu-
ments and tapes that relate to those that have already been sent to Mr.
Jawoi-ski. >
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'Sh\ HuTciiixsox. Mr. Chairman, would the gentleman yield?
Tlie Chairman. Yes, sir.

Mr. Hutchinson. Just for an observation there. I was informed
t]iat the committee has received three of the tapes covering three of
tlie six events. I was informed of that yesterday afternoon late.

The Chairman. Well
]\Ir. Hutchinson, Mr. Jenner told me.
The Chairman. I cannot be specific about the items. I know that

those items that were items that !Mr. St. Clair discussed with ]Mr. Doar
as to the so-called six items or six events, that those were to be taken
up ns a matter of question with the President today.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Yes, INIr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. I would like to ask that we include in the record the

copy of the New York Times at page 43 whicli finally tells us what
was in the letter that we sent to the President. It is my first knowledge
of what it was we asked for. I understand it was on ABC, thanks to

jNIr. Sam Donaldson last night, and members have been pointing out
at the last meeting, they have been trying desperately to see it. I re-

member Ms. Holtzman making that point. So, now we finally know
what we were asking them. It seems perfectly reasonable from news-
paper acc^ounts. and I yield to my colleague from California if I can.

]Mi". Waldte. oSIr. Chairman. I simply appreciate ]\Ir. (^onver's vield-

ing. I have two questions. Has anything arrived from the White House
since Friday?
The Chairman, I cannot state at this time whether or not there has

been anjrthing since Friday. I do know that they began to send ma-
terial, and it could be that there may have been material which was
being sent.

]Mr. Waldie. Second. IMr. Chairman, I hope now that you in fact

will order the Doar to St. Clair letter released to the press and copies to

the committee, that apparently is part of the public domaiii now, and
it was—would seem to me
The Chairman. I see no reason why it should not be. It has already

been.

!Mr. Waudie [continuing]. That it would be nice for us to have a

copy.
Mr. Rangel, Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Rangel.
^h\ Rangel. In view of the fact that the President through his coun-

sel has nierced thp, rules of confidentiality that we have placed on our-

selves, I would like to suggest or move that sometime today we have
the opportunity to have an executive briefing, if you will, to review the
self-imposed rules, aiid that at the same time, that the committee mem-
bei-s be advised by our counsel as to what, if aiivthing, has occurred
since our last meeting, because while I know that the record is vagnie as

to the time that we have given to the President of the ITnited States
to T'espond to our letter, it seems to me that many of our member^; had
ho])ed that nt the meeting today we would be able to find out the degree
of cooperation that is coming from the "\^niite House. And it seems to

me that one of the items that we have to consider, in fairness to the
President since we have been charged with a fishing expedition, is to

provide a subpena that specificalh' states what we are requesting. And
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then, of course, if the request is vague on its face, it can be struck down.
So, I do not know the parliamentiary procedure, but it seems to me

since we are all together, if we could agree that this type of briefing

and review of our self-imposed rules is appropriate, then I so move.
Tlie CiiAiRMAX. Well, the inotion is not in order. The Chair was

merely making an announcement prior to the taking up of the business

that this meeting has been called for. And the Chair will consider call-

ing a meeting. However, I would state that presently I am in no posi-

tion to state that we could call a meeting since counsel are preoccupied

at the present time with the consideration of soine of the materials that

are coming in. And I would hope that, I would hope that we under-

stand thatthat is the case right now. And if further members will de-

fer, and I am not going to recog-nize Ms. Holtzman, then we can get on
with the business. But I do have one further announcement to make.

I think that we can take up the business when we are convened for

the purpose of discussing the impeachment inquiry. Presently, as I

stated, the meeting is not scheduled for that reason.

A letter was also addressed by jVIr. St. Clair to Judge Sirica request-

ing that if, in fact, the courts should make a determination to turn over

the materials to the Committee on the Judiciaiy for its impeachment
inquiry, that ]Mr. St. Clair felt that he should be given, on behalf of the

President, as he states, in fairness, the right to review it, and that the

court should pass on this, and a copy of this letter was addressed to

]Mr. Doar. This came to my attention only very late last niglit. We are

]>resently, in the light of the fact that this committee was clear in its

instruction in the letter, which I will not take the time of the committee
to read, but the committee was clear in the instructions that it gave
to me, and I addressed a letter in accordance with those instructions to

Judge Sirica, and I think that it would be appropriate, and we are now
considering sending a letter to Judge Sirica merely clarifying the posi-

tion of the committee, and not engaging in any discussion that might
even suggest that we feel that this is a proper matter for the court to

make a determination on.

>rr. Saxdmax. lS{r. Chairman, may I ask just one question?

The CiTAirvMAx. ^Sfs. Holtzman.
Ms. HoLTZMAX. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for yielding.

T liave a questioii first as to when we may expect to have a briefing ses-

sion with regard to the impeachment inquiry, and the reason I ask
this is that I think the country believes very strongly tliat we ought to

have com]:)liance by the President with requests for information from
tjie Judiciarv Committee. And I think we all want to be fair to the

Pi'esident with regard to the extent to which he has been cooperating,

I think we are left in enormous doubt in this meeting as to the extent

to which even the niaterials you requested concerning the materials

given to ^h\ Jaworski have been turned over, and that there has been
some confusion about whether or not there has been any compliance
with our six other requests.

And T think in fairness to the President and in fairness to ourselves,

we really need to have a briefing session as soon as possible w^ith regard
to this.

The Cttairmax'. Well, the Chair Avill announce a briefing session as

soon as he has been able to confer with counsel and determine whether
or not
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Mr. Sandman. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman [continuing]. A briefing session is in order within

the next day or the next couple of days, or whether we have anything
to report which would be of interest so that the committee might ap-
propriately discuss it.

Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Mr. Chairman, I do not Iniow whether I would be out

of order with this question, but my patience is beginning to be a little

bit strained. All I hear about is we get a briefing here, once a week at

best, and all I hear is a contest about how far the President will not go
on various things. Wliat I am beginning to wonder, and I know the pub-
lic are wondering, when are we going to start running this investiga-

tion, we, the committee ? 'Wlien are we going to start doing something,
and how long do we have to keep coming here to try to find out and get

information from the counsel, who are working for us? We are not
working for them. When are we going to get on with this ?

The Chairman. I appreciate the gentleman making the statement,
and I am sure the gentleman is deeply concerned. And I know, I am
sure, that the gentleman too is aware of the fact that he is not going
to be able to make that kind of a judgment unless he has all of the
available information and gets the documents, and the professional
staff has been diligently at work on this in order to supply us with the
kind of information that I think is going to be pertinent. And I think
that the gentleman, upon reflection, will recognize that there is no other
way that it can be done.
Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. McClory. May I make one comment ?

The Chairman. The Chair is going to go on with the meeting for

Avhich we had been scheduled this morning, and I am not going to

entertain any further questions.

Mr. McClort. J would want to make
The Chairman. No ; we are going to go on with the meeting.
I recognize the gentleman from Ohio. The meeting has been called

just to discuss H.R. 7386, to provide a rule in the case of pocket veto
for the implementation of section 7 of article I of the Constitution.
Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
This is a very simple bill, and I just would like to make a statement

explaining the purpose and the effect of it.

The Subcommittee on Monopolies and Commercial Law approved
H.R. 7386 without amendment by unanimous vote on October 4 of last

year. The bill has been popularly referred to as the Pocket Veto Bill,

because it would make clear the circumstances in which the use of a
pocket veto is appropriate.
H.E. 7386 would eliminate uncertainty about the use of a pocket

veto during a session of Congress by defining the adjournment which
prevents the return of a bill to Con<rress as one which is a sine die by
the^ Congress or by either House. If either House has concluded its

legislative session by adjourninn; sine die. there is no further oppor-
tunity for Congr(iss to reconsider a bill that session in light of the
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President's disapproval, but if botli Houses of the Congress are in re-

cess during a session, tlien there will be an opportunity for recon-

sideration.

Article I, section 7, of the Constitution provides that if the Presi-

dent disapproves of a bill passed by Congress and presented to him,

and wants to veto it, he must return it to Congress unless, and I am
quoting

:

Unless the Congress by their adjournment prevents its return.

For 100 years, the failure of a bill to become law when Congress,

by its adjournment, prevents the return of a bill from the President,

has been called a pocket veto. However, the scope of the pocket veto

at the present time is unclear because of uncertainty over which ad-

journments of Congress are adjournments which prevent the return

of a bill to the Congress from the President.

The problem raised by this uncertainty is illustrated by President

Nixon's claim that the Family Practice of Medicine Act was pocket

vetoed because he was unable to return it during the 4-day Christmas
recess of Congress in 1970. A recent District Court decision on the

alleged pocket veto in the Family Practice of Medicine Act does hold
that a 4-day recess of both Houses of Congress does not prevent the

return of a bill that the President disapproves to the Congress.

Kennedy v. Sampson^ which, however, has been appealed, more than
3 years after the Family Practices of Medicine Act was j)assed by
Congress, there is still no final judicial decision, so whether that bill

was pocket vetoed or became law without the President's signature.

The use of pocket vetoes where Congress is ready and able to recon-

sider legislation the President disapproves erodes the legislation power
of Congress. The records of the Federal Constitutional Convention
in 1787 demonstrate that the framers intended to give the President
a qualified veto power only. They intended that the Congress have final

word on whether or not a bill becomes law. The framers voted on an
absolute veto power twice and soundly rejected it both times. But, the
pocket veto is an absolute veto. Congress has no opportunity to over-
ride a pocket veto and, hence, the need for H.R. 7386 to insure that the
pocket veto does not become an impediment to reconsideration by Con-
gress of bills vetoed by the President.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will be glad to answer questions, or

if I cannot, counsel can.

The Chairman-. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
This bill, as reported by the subcommittee, will limit the area of

pocket veto to only those cases where either one House or the other
has adjourned sine die. I am under no illusions that the passage of
this bill will settle the issue, because I am certain that the next time
that any President pocket vetoes a bill the matter will be litigated, and
there will be thrown into the cauldron at that time th^s joarticular
bill, if it shouldbecome a law. And the court will, in addition to other
matters, determine whether the Congress can define whether a pocket
veto, I mean when a pocket veto can be exercised.

I am prepared to support this bill simply because I think the Con-
gress has a legitimate function in offering its judgment as to the
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proper time in wliicli a pocket veto is effective. But, as I say, Mr.
Chairman, I am under no illusions that because Congress passes this

bill, that it will be so. I think that in the end, the Supreme Court will

have to hammer the thing out by decision.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman?
Tlie Chairman. JNIr. Conj-ers.

Mr. CoNYERS. I would like to go on record as indicating my un-
qualified support for the motion embodied in this proposed legislation.

It is really long overdue. It is surprising how long it has taken us to

react to a fundamental omission that has been dealt with by Presi-
dents down through the ages. I think we should make clear that we
are not reflecting upon the present administration as this legislation

moves through this committee. All Presidents have exercised the
pocket veto in the past, and it is clearly derogatory to the consti-

tutional function of the Federal Legislature. And 1 am very, very
pleased to enthusiastically support it, and wonder if there is any
indication of support coming from the other body ?

The Chairman. There is a bill pending. I cannot state just what
the other body may do, but it would seem to me that with the wealth
of material tliat has come to our attention, and the fact that there are
some of the members of the other body who have had this matter come
to their attention because of some issues that developed which were the
subject of pocket vetoes, that I am sure it is going to engage their
attention.

Ms. Holtzman.

^
Ms. Holtzman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just have two ques-

tions. Perhaps the gentleman from Ohio can answer them.
In the first place, does the declaration that uncertainty exists at

this point, will that in any way jeopardize the decision in the court
in the case you referred to previously ?

Mr. Seiberling. I do not think so, because while the court has ruled
one way, the case has been appealed. And, therefore, until the appeal
is finally decided by the Supreme Court, uncertainty will exist.

And furthermore, there are two leading cases on this subject which
sort of straddle the matter. There is the Wright case which holds that
a recess does not authorize a pocket veto, but that was only a 3-day
recess.

And the Department of Justice tries to make a distinction between
a 3-day recess and a 4-day recess, for reasons which I will not go into.

And then there is the pocket veto case, in which there is some dictum
the other way, but there is no flat holding by the Supreme Court on
this subject, which is completely clear, and therefore, we thought in
drafting this that it was fulfilling the power of Congress or pursuant
to the power of Congress to enact laws to carry out the Constitution.
And that is what is behind the bill.

Ms. Holtzman. And could you define sine die adjournment for me ?

What is meant by that ?

Mr. Setberling. Adjournment sine die is adjournment without any
date fixed for return during that particular session.

Ms. HoLTziNiAN. So that what you would have in mind then would
be the end of the year adjournments, in essence ?
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Mr. Seiberling. Correct.

Ms. HoLTZMAisr. Thaiik you.
The Chairman. INIr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman, I would like to inquire why we are

going the bill route and why we are not going to constitutional amend-
ment route? If we are going the constitutional amendment route, we
would clear up all doubt, and we would not have to take it to the Su-
preme Court. And I would question whether or not by merely stating

you are implementing this provision of the Constitution, it is quit«

correct. In my humble judgment, you are limiting this section of the
Constitution.

Mr. Seiberltng. Well, if I might answer the gentleman, from my
own point of view, at least, the Constitution does not spell it out in

so many words. As the language which I read simply says that the

President need not retiirn it to Congress, or must return it to Congress
unless the Congress by their adjournment prevent its return. Now, if

the Congress adjourns sine die they have prevented its return. But, it

seems equally clear that the Congress, if it is merely in a recess, and
is returning again during that session, that we have not prevented its

return, and all we are trying to do is say this is the way Congress
interprets this section. And I would think the courts would give that
interpretation great weight.

If it turns out that ultimately is not the case, then obviously we can
go the route the gentleman suggests. But, I see no reason for going
through the complication of a constitutional amendment if there i^

a much simpler way to cure the problem and the uncertainty.

The Chairman. I might also reply to the gentleman that as all of
us are aware under tlie necessary and proper clause, the Congress acts

and has acted to clear up any question. And I think that at this time,
not only is this perfectly appropriate, but it certainly can resolve the
question without necessitating the long procedure of a constitutional
amendment, which is not required in this particular case.

Mr. Latta. If the Chairman might yield further ?

The Chairman. I yield.

Mr. Latta. I quite agree we pass legislation to implement the Con-
stitution, but not to limit the Constitution, and my point is you are
attempting to limit here, and not to implement.
Mr. Seiberltng. Well, might I also point out that if the Congi-ess

enacts this bill, and the President signs it or does not veto it, then tliat

would be a fairly strong and persuasive argument for that particular
President and future Presidents as to the procedure tliat was intended
to be followed, and that does not mean a President cannot challenge
it if he wanted to. But, I would think that he would not if it had
become law to that extent.

INIr. Chairman. I move the adoption of II.R. ToSr^.

The Chairman. The question is on the motion of the gentleman from
Ohio. All those in favor, please signify by saying aye.

rChorus of "ayes."]

TJie Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Xo response.]

The Chairman. The ayes have it. and the motion is agreed to.
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Mr. Seiberling. May the record show, Mr. Chairman, that there

were no voices in opposition to the resolution ?

The Chairman. The record will so indicate. And there being no
further business before the committee, the committee stands adjourned

until further notice from the Chair.

[^Yliereupon, at 11 :25 a.m., the committee was adjourned subject

to the call of the Chair.]
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Washington^ D.O.

The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 :40 a.m., in room 2141,

Raybuni House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Eodino, Jr. (chair-

man) presiding.

Present: Representatives Rodino (presiding), Donohue, Brooks,
Kastenmeier, Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, AValdie, Flowers,

INlann, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Eangel, Jordan,
Thornton, Holtzman, Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, McClory,
Smith, Sandman, Railsback, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, Mayne, Hogan,
Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froehlich, JMoorhead, JMaraziti, and Latta.

Impeachment inquiry staff present : John Dear, special counsel ; Al-
bert E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority; Samuel Garrison
III, deputy minority counsel ; and Hillary D. Rodham, counsel.

Committee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, genei-al counsel ; Gar-
ner J. Cline, associate general comisel ; and Franklin G. Polk, associate

counsel.

The CHAiRMAisr. The committee will come to order. And before
making an opening statement, I would like to point out that there

has been a change in the seating arrangement, as a result of a request
which was properly made by the ranking minority member to be
seated at the left of the Chair. And while this does not indicate any
change in attitudes politically, nonetheless, it does suggest a change
that has taken place over a period of years when the committee was
originally seated in accordance with this present arrangement. I note
that we do not suggest again that because they are on our left that this

has any kind of meaning, and I know that Mr. Hutchinson might want
to respond to that.

,

Mr. Hutchinson. I thought, Mr. Chairman, you would like to listen

to my response, and that is simply this : That as the Speaker sits on
the rostrum in the House he looks to his own left to discover Republi-
can Members. But, the more practical reason for it is, Mr. Chairman,
that whenever Republican Members are called from this bench, they
are called to the Minority Office over here to the left. So, it Seems
much more sensible that minority members sit on this side of the
committee, just as a matter of convenience to themselves, and the same

(201)
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thing is true of majority members who, when they are called would
have to be called off to the right.

The Chairman. I Avould like to advise the committee that this morn-
ing, we received a telephone call from ISIr. Lacovara of the Special

Prosecutor's Office stating that Mr. Wilson will be making an appear-
ance this morning requesting a stay in order to file an appeal from
•Judge Sirica's ruling. !Mr. Woods of our staff has been instructed by
ine to wait at the courthouse and will be calling in, in order to receive

instructions of the conmiittee. And I would hope that the committee
Would be of one mind, merely to restate the position that it did state

originally with Judge Sirica, and later on during the course of our
morning's briefing we will discuss the question of dispatching a letter

to the appellate jurisdiction merely restating the position we have
taken before, that whatever we do we do without submitting ourselves

to the jurisdiction of the court. But, nonetheless, in order to expedite

the action on the part of the appellate division, hopefully that we get

the material that Judge Sirica has directed be sent to us.

I would hope that if there is no objection on the part of tlie com-
mittee members that I can be instructed to advise that when this call

does come in, which Avill be coming in momentarily, that we may ad-
vise Mr. Woods accordingly.

JSIr. Hutchinson, not having talked with you before, not about this

particular matter, but knowing this is the position of the committee,

I would just like some indication.

Mr. HuTCHiNSox. I know of no disagreement, Mr. Chairman, to the

proposal that the chairman of the committee state to the chief judge
of the court of appeals the same position that was stated by the

committee to the chief judge of the district court with regard to

the position of the committee relative to the documents and papers
that were submitted to the district court by the grand jury.

The Chairman. More specifically, Mr. Hutchinson, Mr. Woods is

now at the court, will be calling in, in order to receive instiaictions

of the committee, and merely to restate the position if the question is

directed. Before I do, since Mr. Doar received the call, may I call on
Mr. Doar?
Mr. DoAR. Mr. Chairman, the application this morning will be

made to Judge Sirica, not to the court of appeals, for an additional

stay pending the appeal. Mr. Wilson, on behalf of Mr. Haldeman
and Mr. Ehrlichman is making this application to Judge Sirica. The
Special Prosecutor's Office will oppose the additional stay and the

effect of that, if the judge does not grant it, is that the order of the

court, would go into effect forthwith.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

Tlie Chairmax, ]Mr. Brooks.
]\Ir. Brooks. I want to concur in the statement of Mr. Hutchinson

and })oint out that this committee unanimously approved a motion
instructing you to write to the court laying out our position. And I
would fully concur in that and hope that the chairman will, in the
next day or two, get such a letter to the district court or the court
of appeals.

The Chatr:max. I cannot, since this is not a business meeting, enter-

tain a motion, but I suppose if we were to put a unanimous consent
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request, without objection, I am sure that the committee will consider

that. Is there any objection ?

Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, how long an additional stay is

being requested of the District court ?

Mr. DoAR. We were not advised of that.

The Chairman. Of course the Chair would like to point out that any
stay, while of course stays have to be considered by the judge, but any
stay does militate against our trying to expedite these proceedings and
the getting of this material which Judge Sirica, in la very compelling
opinion the other day, stated that this material should be coming to us,

and all that I feel is necessary, at this time, is merely that Mr. Woods,
who is there, be able to at least receive whatever instructions, that we
are merely restating our position and not beyond that.

Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chair3ian. Mr. Jenner.
Mr. Jenner. Mr. Doar and I, in presenting the matter on behalf of

the committee to Judge Sirica emphasized that time was of the essence

in the work of this committee, and would the sense that you have sug-

gested to the committee include INIr. Woods again stating, as Mr. Doar
and I had stated to Judge Sirica and to which he made reference in

his oj)inion, that time is of the essence as far as this committee is con-

cerned ?

The Chairman. Is there objection on the part of the committee to so

advise ]\Ir. Woods when he calls in, so that it will merely be a restating

of the position" and the judge will certainly consider the request and
make his ruling accordingly, and we will have no opportunity to con-

test that, since we have no part in the proceedings ?

Hearing no objection, then, j\Ir. Woods will be so advised.

Before going on with the briefing, I would like to make a statement.

I would like to say that this committee welcomes the constitutional

recognition by the Federal District Court for the District of Columbia
of the "compelling need" for an "unswervingly fair inquiry based on
all of the pertinent information." That was expressed last Monday in

the decision of Chief Judge Sirica. This is one more confirmation that,

although the sole power of impeachment is vested in the House of
Representatives, the critical and overriding constitutional importance
of an impeachment inquiry contemplates not confrontation but the
cooperation of the other branches of the Government.

In his decision, Judge Sirica noted that this committee had taken
"elaborate precaution" set forth in its Procedures for Handling Im-
peachment Material, "to insure against unnecessary and inappropriate
disclosures."

I would like to reaffirm, at this point, the committee's determination
to abide by these procedures. The committee members decided on these
procedures and will continue to work within them.
The inquiry staff has observed and will continue to observe and to

implement this and all other decisions reached by the committee.
To insure against even the appearance of inappropriate disclosures

of any sort whatever, I have instructed the Special Counsel, John
Doar, and the Minority Counsel, Mr. Jenner, and the inquiry staff to

decline interviews with any members of the press for the duration of
our inquiry. In view of our responsibilities this is proper and neces-
sary.
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Judge Sirica lias respectfully requested the committee to avoid any

"unnecessary interference" witli the ability of the court to conduct

fair trials of persons under indictment.

In adopting our rules of confidentiality we took this into considera-

tion. We will continue to avoid any interference with constitutional

processes, rights, and institutions as we go forward.

For some time the Nation's constitutional processes and institutions

have been under considerable tension and strain. This tension has been

brought about by events which have occurred in the executive branch

of Government. For some time the Department of Justice's most press-

ing public business has been the investigation and prosecution of mat-

ters for which the executive branch is acbninistratively accountable.

There is a contradiction when tlie executive branch is both investi-

gator and the subject of the investigation. And there is a contradiction

when efforts to determine whether the office of the President is being

faithfully executed are met with the claim that the faithful execution

of the office precludes disclosure of the relevant facts. It is these events

and these contradictions that forced the House by a vote of 410 to 4 to

set in motion this impeachment inquiry. The House of Eepresentatives

acted out of a clear sense of constitutional necessity, a shared percep-

tion that the impeachment inquiry was the way and the only way which
the Constitution provides to deal with the grave stresses that threaten

our institutions.

It is in this spirit that we proceed. •

Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoxYEES. I thank the chairman. Three matters occur to me.
It seems to me that notwithstanding all of the efforts of this com-

mittee, particularly those of yourself and the ranking minority leader,

that we are already in some state of confrontation with the President,

since he has been out of compliance with the letter sent February 25.

The second thing that seems to me that it is fair to say that so far

before the full committee not one thread of evidence has come before

us for evaluation.

And my final conclusion is that, so far, we are, altliough we seem
to be getting cooperation from everywhere but the "\^niite House, we
are still confronted with so much work of sorting out the evidence that

we cannot predict accurately either on our part or on the part of the
attorneys that constitute the staff when we will be able to predict the
conclusion of this matter and report back to the Congress.
Are those statements fairly correct ?

The Chairman. The statement, I think, will best be answered by
counsel and it is for this purpose that this briefing was ordered this

morning. I think that in suggesting that the staff is not in a position
to make a determination now, I think the gentleman is accurate. I
believe, however, that we are in a better position now than we were 3
weeks ago. And concerning the question of the sifting of the evidence,
I believe that after hearing from Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner this

morning, we will know that we have gone quite a long way and are in

the middle of the process of not only accumulating this evidence, but
we have sifted it and are in the process of analyzing it in order to pre-
sent it to the committee at some time in the near future. And as soon as
that is ready, that will be done.
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Now, rather than engage in any further discussion, I think it would
be well for the committee members to listen to the briefing up to this

point, and I think that then there may be questions wliich might be

directed to the counsel.

Mr. Doar.
Mr. DoAK. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, the first matter

that I would like to report to the committee on this morning is the

progress of the investigation. We have received almost 100 percent of

the material which the Senate select committee has collected and
analyzed in connection with its investigation. I would estimate that

we have received over 100,000 pages of printed material. This material

covers, in addition to the testimony that was taken before the com-
mittee in open session, other material Avhicli is being sorted, sifted,

analyzed, and evaluated.

We have received all but one item of the material which the "\^niite

House delivered to ISIr. Jaworski. That one item of material relates

to certain documents in the ITT matter. And I have been told by
Mr. St. Clair that the problem with those documents is that they were
disassembled, and in connection with a matter, so that they are

having some problem of reassesmbling the material in exactly the

same order that it was givei>to Mr. Jaworski.
And the second thing is, they have had to get from the Justice De-

partment some of these documents, a few of them, and I would expect

that we would get those by the end of the day. If we do receive that

material, then all of the material which the White House delivered to

Mr. Jaworski will have been delivered to us for analysis.

This material includes tape recordings and transcripts, logs, and
other documents.
With respect to tape recordings, we have, of course, had to set up a

room where these recordings could be listened to, and we have had to

consult with experts to assist us in listening to these recordings. Not
all of the recordings are of satisfactory quality and Mr. Jenner and I

have had a discussion with Mr. St. Clair in an endeavor to seek and
to obtain, and we will obtain for the committee, the best transcript or
the best recordings possible, so that when the proceedings are presented
to the committee, the committee will be in the best position to hear and
evaluate for itself all of the relevant evidence in this case. So, that we
have to prepare for the committee what you might call just an elec-

tronic problem to get the equipment, to get the recording equipment,
the amplifying equipment, the earphones and so forth organized in a

way so that this committee when the matter is presented to it, will

find that the mechanical means of evaluating the evidence is 100 per-

cent satisfactory to it.

Now, in addition, we have made eight or nine requests to the De-
partments of the Government for material involving specific mat-
ters that are within the scope of the committee's inquiry. We are

having no difficulty with respect to the Departments in either going
over there and inspecting the documents, or having them photostat the

documents and deliver them to us for our examination. In many of
these matters, or some of these matters, I am sure the committee
realizes that we will find, I think we will find, that there is nothing
improper with the way that the agency handled the particidar matter,

41-OlS—75—pt. 1 14
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and when we find that we will so report our findings to the committee
for the committee's conclusions as to that matter. We will not deter-

mine the course or the direction of the investigation, but we will do
our best to collect facts fairly and accurately for the committee, so

that the committee can determine the direction of the investigation.

In addition to that, we have begun to interview witnesses and to

secure from them an up-to-date review of the testimony or to secure

additional information that we have reason to believe the witness or

the person may have that would be relevant and necessary to this

inquiry. Now, all of that work is going on in the matters that have been
under inquiry by this committee. Each day we make more progress in

collecting and organizing documents, in identifying and defining

relevant facts that can be established, so that they can be presented to

the committee in an organized fashion.

However, the work assignment is not a small one. The matters that

have to be read and analyzed are considerable. The amount of testi-

mony that has been taken by other committees of the Congress and
by other investigative agencies is substantial. And I can assure the

committee that we are working as hard as we can and we have got,

I think, are beginning to get the matter each day more and more
organized for the committee.
We have had several conferences with Mr. Jaworski and his staff

with respect to the matters that were delivered to us by Mr. St. Clair,

and with respect to other matters that are within the scope of the

investigation.

That briefly summarizes, Mr. Chairman, where the work is of the

inquiry staff.

The CHAiRMAisr. Mr. Doar, I Imow that in passing you may have
neglected to mention specifically, but I wish that you would enlighten

the committee as to exactly what the result of that meeting with Mr.
St. Clair was regarding other specific requests that were made con-

cerning those items about which there has been considerable discussion,

the six items that have continuously come up as items which have been
referred to as thousands of hours of conversation, which certainly

they are not. And I wish that you would address yourself to that for

the committee.
Mr. DoAR. Well, Mr. Jenner and I met with Mr. St. Clair on Monday

at 11 o'clock in our offices, and we reviewed again with him the material

that we were seeking in the six items that were listed in my letter to

him on February 25. And we went over each item and indicated why
we felt the conversation was necessary to the committee's inquiry.

Mr. St. Clair asked some questions about some of the matters. On
3 days in April 1973, we asked for all convereations between the

President and four of his associates, and those conversations plus the

conversations the President had with Mr. Kleindienst and Mr. Peter-

sen on those days were the conversations that, taken with other items,

added up to some 41 recorded conversations. Now, 41 recorded con-

versations, I cannot tell the committee exactly how many hours that

is of conversation, but it is certainly substantially less than 20 hours
of conversation, probably half of that.

We also discussed with Mr. St. Clair the fact that we had received

from jNIr. Jaworski a list of certain other conversations that he had
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requested from ]Mr. St. Clair, and Mr. St. Clair had not seen fit to

give to him. We pointed out to Mr. St. Clair that if you compared the

list of matters Mr. Jaworski had wanted fi*om the White House, and
a great number of those items were items that we had listed, conversa-

tions that we had listed in our specific request. And Mr. St. Clair's

position was that the committee, he would hope that the committee
would look at the material that had already been furnished, look at

the material that Judge Sirica had furnished to the committee, and
then try to be as precise and as narrow as was reasonable in making
requests for additional recorded conversations. The basis for this re-

quest was that it was an arduous job for the President to listen to these

recordings. It was an arduous job for the people at the White House
to locate that part of a particular tape where the conversation did take

place.

We pointed out to Mr. St. Clair that we understood the problem but
we made it clear that we felt that the committee would be unswerving
ill its determination to secure this material.

Another question came up with respect to, well, suppose one of the

conversations had no relation to the matter under investigation, and
the matter we were inquiring about with respect to these six inquiries,

or matters with respect to the so-called Watergate coverup in Feb-
ruary, March, and April of 1973, and we indicated that in the first

instance certainly Mr. St. Clair, an experienced lawyer with many
years of practice, must have had hundreds of occasions where he was
called upon to give to opposing counsel material that was not heli^ful

to his client. If he certified that this was the material in the first

instance, that that would be a start at getting the material which the

committee needed, and we might not have a problem at all with respect

to the conversations that we were interested in.

We also pointed out that we had evidence from other witnesses of
the Senate select committee where they had testified, Mr. Ehrlichman
and Mr. Dean, that they had, in fact, had conversations about the

Watergate and that these were conversations that we were interested

in ; that we did not have any desire to get any convereations involving
state secrets or conversations involving matters entirely imnecessary
to this committee's inquiry. And Mr. St. Clair made it clear that it

was not he that would make the decision as to whether or not the
President of the United States would make these recordings available

to the committee, but that he would report back to the President, and
we would continue to be in touch with each other with an attempt to

try to secure this material in a way that was satisfactory to the com-
mittee, and in a way that would resolve these particular requests. And,
as I say, finally we made it clear that there were other recordings that
might also be necessary for this inquiry, and that we would make every
attempt to go over these requests carefully. We had to, imder the
procedures that the chairman and ranking minority member had set

out, we had to set forth to the chairman and the ranldng minority
member, the reason, the justification for requesting this specific item
or a specific recorded conversation and both the chairman and the
ranking minority member were very conscious of the fact that they
did not want us asking for things that were unnecessary for the
inquiry.
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T think that summarizes it, Mr. Chairman.
The Chatrman". Mr. Jenner.
Mr. Jenxer. Mr. Chairman, thank yon.
Ladies and o^entlemen of the committee, it would be of interest for

you also to know that Mr. Buzhardt attended the meeting on Monday
morning with Mr. St. Clair. And it appears that Mr. Buzhardt is

chiefly in charge of the matter of making duplicates of tapes and in-

dexing the tapes and managing the tapes.

I do wish to reassure all members of the committee that during the
course of that meeting, we were very, very specific with Mr. St. Clair
as to the purpose, need, and relevancy of each of the six items listed

in the letter to Mr. St. Clair and he did not, in the course of that meet-
ing, nor did Mr. Buzhardt indicate a dissent from that. As Mr. Doar
has indicated to you, what he did say was that he must present the
matter to the client, the President of the United States, and that
decision would be made by the President. But, that the President,
of course, would be required to have some time to listen to those tapes.

In connection with the work of the committee, as I indicated in a pre-
vious session of this committee, listening to these tapes is a very,
very difficult task and it takes hours and hours of time. And it even
takes hours and hours of time to read the transcripts of those tapes.

And I also wish to report to the committee, if it please, that our
experts who are very, very able electronic people are processino: some
of the tapes that we already have to eliminate the background noises
to help pick up uttered conversations more clearly. And we are ex-

periencing considerable success in that regard.
But, insofar as the six paragraphs in the letter to Mr. St. Clair are

concerned, I assured the committee we were very specific with Mr.
St. Clair as to the relevancy and the need.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Before we go any further, Mr. Doar, we have
received some letters from Mr. St. Clair making requests concerning
the questions as to what rules the committee might adopt concerning
prediscovery hearings or procedures regarding hearings if hearings
are, indeed, contemplated. I have now requested that there be cir-

culated this letter or, in fact, two letters or three letters, I am ad^nsed,
to the committee members. And I would like Mr. Doar and ]Mr. Jen-
ner to comment in this briefing because I think that this is a matter of
very, very deep concern which effects the very essence of the proceed-
ings that we are about.

Mr. Dennis. Will the chairman yield for a moment ?

The Chairman. I yield.

IMr. Dennis. I a^ree completely with the Chairman's statement
that the matter he just brought up is highly imDortant. I wondered
if I might be permitted to make a comment before we go into that
on the equally important matter of the conversations these gentle-
men have been having with jNIr. St. Clair on which they have just
reported, before we pass on to another subject ?

The Chairman. Well, it was the thought of the Chair that we would
leave the discussion imtil after counsel has made a comment regarding
this and then open it to discussion.
Mr. Dennis. I, of course, will defer to the Chairman. The only

point that I am making is that the two subjects are both important and
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tliey are entirely different and, therefore, for that reason I thought
it might be more logical to take up the first matter of the discussions

with JSIr. St. Clair before we got into another important, but entirely

unrelated field.

The Chairman. Well, the Chair considers that both matters are

equally important, and I believe we would want to make any com-
ment, I think we would consider them in totality so I would hope
that the gentleman would, at least for the moment, desist or defer.

Mr. Denxis. Well, I will defer to the Chair;nan, of course.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
JNIr. Doar. In the House resolution which was passed to authorize

and direct this committee to conduct this inquiry, a provision was
made for the use of a deposition, which is a compelled, sworn state-

me]it taken by the committee staff of a witness who is not willing to

give the committee an interview- or a sworn statement voluntarily. This
was regarded by the staff' at the time that the resolution was prepared
as an investigative device that would be helpful in expediting the mat-
ters that would eventually be presented to the committee and w^e

provided—the resolution provided that these sworn statements could
be taken outside of the presence of the committee or any committee
member in order to relieve the members of the burden of attendance
at a particular hearing, and so that we could better organize the
proof that we thought should be presented to the committee for your
consideration.

At the time that we discussed this matter, we made it clear that if

tliese sworn statements were taken that, of course, at the time of the

presentation the committee would determine whether or not they
would be received and considered by it as a sworn statement or
whether or not the committee would require that the witness come
before them to testify orally. There are lots of matters about which
there certainly would not be any dispute, and in order to facilitate

these proceedings it was thought that this was a very useful device
for the committee to use in this unusual and special type of an inquiry.

You will recall that at the time that this was suggested Congress-
man Butler questioned me about whether or not there was any prec-

edence for the taking of depositions outside of the presence of a

member or a quorum of the committee, and I said there was not prec-

edence for it. He asked me if we would provide and adopt rules of

procedure for taking the depositions or taking these sworn state-

ments that would be fair to the witness, and I assured him that we
would do so and that once those rules were worked out and refined,

we would bring them back to the committee so the committee would
be aware of them and make whatever objections or modification that

they thought was required.

Last week I received from INIr. St. Clair a letter asking me to pass on
to the committee and that is the substance of the three letters that hare
been received, asking me to pass on to the committee his request net
only to be present at the inteiwiews which will be taken under oath and
where we are able to compel the attendance of a witness, but also that
lie have the right to cross-examine and, second, that he also asked me
to bring to the committee's attention his request that he be granted
formally full rights as to participation in any hearings or presenta-
tions that may later come before the committee, with the right to
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cross-examine witnesses, with the right to call witnesses of his own,
and with the right to have the subpena power to compel witnesses to

offer testimony.
Mr. Eangel. Mr. Chairman?
The CiiAiKMAN. I am going to recognize ISIr, Dennis at this time.

Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. I thank yon, Mr. Chairman.
First, I want to return to the matt-er of counsel's discussions with

Mr. St. Clair on the 6 topics of the 42 tapes, as you may want to desig-

nate them.
Mr. DoAK. It is 42 recorded conversations.

Mr. Dennis. All right, the G topics, 42 recorded conversations.

I would just like to observe that it is my prima facie feeling, with the

limited information I have, that these 42 or 6. however you want to

refer to them, are relevant material matters whicli the committee is

entitled to and which you gentlemen are entitled to pursue, and which
it seems to me we should have.

Now, there was another part of counsel's letter, 'and that is the para-

graph in which you went on to say, furthermore, and this was Mr.
Doar's letter to Mr. St. Clair of February 25

:

Furthermore, we believe the next logical step is to have you outline for us how
the White House files are indexed, how Presidential papers are indexed and ho^A'

Presidential conversations and memoranda are indexed. We are particularly
interested in knowing how the files of INIr. Haldeman, Mr. Ehrlichman, Mr. Colson
and Mr. Dean are indexed. If we could work out a way whereby members of the
inquiry staff may examine these files for the purpose of selecting materials, which
in our opinion are necessary for the investigation, I believe the inquiry would
be expedited.

Now, you gentlemen did not actually ask for anything there.

Mr. Jenner. No.
Mr. Dennis. I recognize that fact. "Wliat you asked for is specific and

as I have already stated, in my opinion, prima facie relevant and
proper. But, this paragTaph, in my judgment, and I say this not in any
critical sense—I say it critically but not in a personal way, because we
all make mistakes, but tliis paragraph contemplates a future procedure
which, to my mind, is far less obviously justifiable than the requests

that have been made, far more controversial and, moreover, it is

furnishing the basis for what the Wliite PTouse is now saying about
alleged fishing expeditions, sending up the U-Haul truck and so forth.

Now, it seems to me that it was a mistake to put that paragrapli in

the letter, but that has been done. We have got to take up that question
and see whether we want to pursue it later on. and tliere may be various
points of view in the committee. But, what I would like to sugga^it at

the present time is that you gentlemen definitely try to separate those
two things and, at least, defer the matter of tlie indexes and the send-
ing someone down to go through the White House files and so on, and
concentrate on the place where the committee's position is strong, and
not so debatable because the public discussion in the press has not boon
concentrated on our requests at all. It has conrontratod completely on
this paragi-aph, whicli by being there has given the chance to concen-
trate on that and obfuscate the issue. And wliatever you gentlemen
think you ou.<rht to be able to do is in the future, and I may disagree
with you. I think we ought to be able to.affree now that that is some-
thing to shove back tliere and defer, and ffet an answer on the six issues
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or six categories, or whatever you call them, before you take this matterup or argue about it or insist on it.

w.-^'''aP%'';
Congressman Dennis, we have had no further discussionwith Ml. bt Clair about these other matters except for the six items

since he advised me m his letter that the White House files, there wereno indexes to any of the White House files. Now, once you said thatthere was no indexes for the White House files, then thei4 was no waythat we could specifically identify in a preliminary way and in a waywliich would not necessitate looking at materials that were not neces-sa^ tor this inquiry, there was no way we could do this

fuvlZ\]
''^'''^ 77 niuch that Mr. St. Clair misundei^tood the na-ture of the request. It all started when in the first meeting we had I

th^tt rj'f"^ n^ 'ti
^^'" ^T'' ^^'' ^^^^ "^dexedt because if

as noliblp . fr"""
'^
'T!"^^

"' ^^"^
t^'^'^^^y

*^ ^^^^™^^ ^''^ be as specificas possible with respect to requests. He said "I do not know how that isdone, I will find out for you." When he reported back later that there

Tde^to MfPh'Fi^*
these files, no index to Mr. Haldeman's files, no

to Mr Coi;,? fil
"''''''

1

^^''' ^'^ "''^"^' *« ^''' ^^^""'^ fileS' ''o index

tr^ilrl' ^^,^f^^?
fil^S' ^e then ]ust put that matter aside and concen-trated on the SIX specific items, the 41 recorded conversations.

Mr. Dexnis. Well
The Chairman. I might advise Mr. Dennis that I saw that letterbefore it went out. Mr. Hutchinson reviewed the letter. Based on the

initial conversation that Mr. Doar had with Mr. St. Clair concernin"

thfs wiAf Mv"^^"
"''^1 T^^^^*'^^\^^^"^

tl^^t Mr. St. Clair had discussedthis with Mr. Doar before the letter was prepared. And, as a matterof fact, had suggested that he would try to be helpful in that regard,and that was the only reason that that paragraph was included. And
sTrwrl'^^'f.?' '^' ^'''V °^. ^'^'"'^ t« ^^^^^«^ ^^^^ t« be specificas to what, if the indexes showed any files that might be pertinent,that we Avould address ourselves to that. And followinsr the question

tr'rtl^^l^Ser^
^^^ '''^ ^'^'' ^' ''^'' ^'- C^-^-'- ^^^-^ -t pursue

Mr. Dennis. Well
Mr. CoNTERS. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman ?

h.^J' ^IfT'r^
^^'"'^'

^ "^'t^
^*^" b^^'^ ^lie time and I will be quite

biiet with it. I am glad to know all of that and I do not have any
paTticular desire to argue about what ought to have been done

1 wilf say in passing, because it touches on another matter thatI ain concerned with, that I think that perhaps if the full committeehad had a look at that letter somebody might have come ui) with theIdea that this was not such a good idea, but that is over the dam
liut, what I am very glad to know is that apparently evervbodv

concerned agrees with me that the thing to do now is to concentrateon the SIX specific requests, and that is what we are going to do AndI certainly am m accord with that,

res^ecti^o that^?'^''^'^^^^"'^'^

Dennis, could I make one more point with

Mr. Dennis. Yes.
Mr. Doar I think that the committee should know that in our dis-

cussions with Mr. St. Clair, Mr. St. Clair advised us that the Presidenthad permitted a member of Mr. Jaworski s staff to go to the White
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House and go through a particular file and specifically, to examine
the "Plumbers" file and that this idea of examining specific files was
not something that was heresay as far as we could tell, because it was
a procedure that when a particular file was identified and had been
recognized as being relevant, that the White House had consented
to having it done. And we were saying that if there are other specific

files that are necessary, that are reflected in an index, then we would
like to know that so we can consider it and report it to the committee.

Mr. Dennis. Well, Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. I am sorry.

Mr. Brooks. ISIr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I want to say for the committee I think

our basic problem now is quite obviously who is going to run this

inquiry, jMr. St. Clair, or the Congress of the United States under
the Constitution, and this Judiciary Committee by the instructions

of the House of Kepresentatives. I think Mr. St. Clair is obviously a

great lawyer and has made a lot of money practicing law, and he is

concerned, and a little bit, I think he may know, but he does seem
to understand that this is an inquiry. We are not having two trials.

We are not having anv trial. John Doar, Mr. Jenner, you are not pre-

paring a trial of the President of the United States in the House of
Kepresentatives. This is only an impeachment, articles of, considera-

tion of. And Mr. St. Clair seems to think that this is a trial and that

we are going to try the President in this committee, and that they are

going to try him over in the Senate. And this is not what the Con-
stitution provides, and I think that his request is—I do not object

to him writing it but I think we ought to be blowing from a hollow
horn if we let him come in and sit, and examine who our witnesses

are, and determine who we are going to call, and sit there with him
and his representatives puting the evil eye on them. And we have an
agreement and a committee policy that we would have confidentiality.

Now, how are we going to live up to our agreement, and our state-

ment as to confidentiality with Judge Sirica, with the court, with the

witnesses, with the public, with anybody, if we are going to have
them sitting there every time we call somebody or before we call

them? There is no way to prepare for this inquiry if the man who
is the subject of the inquiry sits there and says, yeah, I want to talk

to him. It is just foolishness.

Xow, I think that any collaboration with Mr. St. Clair would be an
error for this committee. T think it is foolishness for us to really

seriously consider it. I think that it is quite clear that Mr. St. Clair,

who is mentioned in all of these papers in New York and all of these

legal journals, he is not mentioned in the U.S. Constitution, but the

Congress of the United States is and we have that responsibility, not

him.
Xow, T particularlv object to the defamation of our Republican

counsel. I think somebody ought to defend those Republicans. They
are both good lawvers. They are sitting there. I have high regard for

Mr. Jenner. the Republicans' Republican counsel, and I have high

regard for Mr. Doar, the Democrats' Republican counsel, I think they

are both fine lawyers, and I think that it is absolutely essential that
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we disregard the effort by some to cut up our lawyers. There is nothing
wrong with our staff that we cannot cure. We hired them. We can fire

them, and we are happy with them. I do not need—I do not make any
recommendation to the President about who he ought to employ as a
lawyer, and he has got plenty of them. And I wish they would keep

their recommendations about our lawyers to themselves. We do not

need them. We will hire who we want to represent this committee,

and I think that the committee has done an excellent job, a respon-

sible job. We are not trying to have two trials. We are not putting

the President in double jeopardy. If he does that, he does that himself,

not us. And I think that really this committee has a responsibility to

run the investigation, to run the inquiry. I think we can. I think we
are. And I think we will without or by their leave, or by the grace of

any lawyer employed by the President or any other body. This is our

responsibility, and we might as well quit worrying about whether Mr.
St. Clair wants to sit by our warm side while we work at this.

Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield to me ?

The Chairman. No. I am recognizing Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask either you or our
counsel if and when we are going to take up some of these questions

that were alluded to by my friend from Texas, and I am referring

particularly to the comments about whether Mr. St. Clair should be

able to participate, at what stages of the proceedings he could be
permitted to participate. And I think, and want to make it clear, that

I think some of us perhaps disagree with what I am not sure, though,
was the thrust of Congressman Brooks' remarks. In other words, I

think there are some of us on this side that feel very strongly that we
should at least have a scholarly presentation which would allude to

the rights which have been accorded respondents in recent impeach-
ment cases, which I understand to be that in the recent impeachment
cases the respondent has had a right to have counsel present. I am not

talking about depositions.

Mr.BROOKS. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. Railsback. What I would like to ask first is. are we going to

take this up formally and, if so, when are we going to take it up ?

Mr. Brooks. Would you yield to me ?

Mr. Railsback. I will be glad to yield to you.

Mr. Brooks. Surely the committee will take up every facet of pro-

cedure as we get to it. But, the basic issue now is whether we are going
to nm the inquiry or whether Mr. St. Clair is.

Now, I want you to understand that it is my feeling, and I am
sure the committee would agree with this, that we welcome any in-

formation, any data, any witnesses that he wants us to interview, that

Mr. St. Clair would recommend. The committee is not being less than
objective about this. But. what we do not want is his interference with
the planning and the investigation.

Mr. Railsback. But let me say that I agree with you, and I espe-

cially appreciate your last remarks. And I also want to agree that I

share the gentleman's feeling about the way this has been handled by
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both the majority and minority counsels. I think that they are doing
a fine job. I do not mean that. But, I mean there is a genuine issue

which is going to come up as to ^Yhether the resj^ondent shoukl have
a right to have counsel present.

Mr. Daxielsox, Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. May I respond to the gentleman since he has asked

whether the Chair is going to schedule a meeting for that purpose?
1 think that since this issue goes to the very heart of this proceeding
and since this is a question which I believe is going to be ultimately

decided by the committee, it would seem to me that an exchange and
certainly a discussion of this issue is in order. And the Chair intends

to schedule a meeting for that purpose.
The Chair also is considering whether or not it becomes necessary

to have not only our counsel, counsel of the committee staff, but
whether or not others might not be invited to discuss this matter before

the committee because I believe it is of a sufficient nature that I think
the points of view that have been expressed by committee counsel are

fine and welcome, and possibly there may be other constitutional ex-

perts that I think might and should be heard in order to at least give

us the benefit of their thinking since, in my judgment at least, while

I mav be clear on it and feel that I have reached an opinion or a

decision, nonetheless. I think the committee is entitled.

Mr. Daxielsox. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
jVIr. Waldie. Mr. Doar, I am still somewhat confused al>out where

we stand with respect to the 42 recorded conversations. 'WHien I hear
the President speak on that issue he seems to tell the country that he
will not deliver to our committee anything more than has been delivered

to the Special Prosecutor, that we have all we need, and we, and we
should proceed with our responsibility. I gather the President's at-

torney, INIr. St. Clair, is telling you a different story, and I am really

asking the question: Whom are we to believe, the President or his

attorney ? If Mr. St. Clair speaks a different tongue than the Presi-

dent is speaking, I would like to understand why you think that is so,

if he does not speak for his client and the President is speaking for

himself, are we not wasting time negotiating with Mr. St. Clair for

something the President has told the country he will not deliver to

this committee ?

Mr. Doar. Well, I think. Congressman Waldie, that in answer to

the question, that it seems to me that it would be responsible of this

committee to be certain that there is no misunderstanding with respect

to the specific items that the committee desires with respect to these

reported conversations.

JNIr. Waldie. Well, could T

Mr. Doar. And we have tried to do that.

^Nfr. Waldie. jNIay I just interrupt you there ?

jNTr. Doar. Yes.
Mr. Waldie. I am reallv puzzled al>out the argument and it seems

to me it makes a smokescreen of ]\Ir. St. Clair. He suggests that he is

not quite certain what we want, and yet within 24 hours after the

request he said we wanted 42 recorded conversations. He must have
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Jistenod to it or somebody surely must have listened to all of tliose

tapes to identif}' the number of conversations that allegedly we were
seeking, that we did not even know. I gather they know a great deal

about precisely what we want. Is there really a question in your mind
tliat ]Mr. St. Clair does not understand what we want in terms of those

conversations ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I think that after our meeting Monday. ]Mr. St.

Clair understood perfectly what we wanted. We have not had a reply

from Mr. St. Clair since that date. *

Mr. Waldie. Well, did we not have a reply from the President who
Fpoke and said to the Xation that he would not turn over anything
more to the committee? Is not that a reply from the client? Do we
need a reply from his attorney when the client is spealdng publicly as

to what he will deliver I

Mr. DoAR. Well, we have not had a reply from ]Mr. St. Clair about

that. And of course, my recommendation is that this committee should
leave no doubt in the mind of any member of the American people

rliat, first of all, there is no misunderstanding about what the com-
mittee wants and why it wants it, and that we have really done the

nmst, that your counsel has clone and has been as careful and as precise

as we possibly could be in identifying that material.

rVfr. Waldie. I certainly do not intend any criticism of counsel.

Mr. DoAR. Could I say one more thing ?

]\rr. Waldie. Yes.
]Mr. DoAR. In addition to that and I recognize the Congressman's

position, but in addition to that it has seemed to Mr. Jenner and me that

tliere is some—that it makes sense for us to examine and analyze the

material that is coming to us before we finally put into specific form a
firm recommendation for a subpena to deliver particular tapes and
documents. Xow, we have gotten all of the records and transcripts

and logs that were turned over to ]Mr. Jaworski. We are processing

tliose as fast as we can. And these do help to support our basis for

requesting the additional information. And so that from my stand-

])ohit. Congressman Waldie, the important thing is to be as certain

and as careful as we can with respect to this recommendation. I do not
think that I can look liehind Mr. St. Clair eyes, and when he tells me
til at he does not understand what we ask for, when he says to me, now
it is more clear to me than it was before this meeting, and now I will

go back and explain this to the President of the United States, I take
him at what he savs. I take him at face value.

]Mr. Waldie. Well, just this comment. I have a sneaking feeling that

^^r. St. Clair may be attempting to stall the committee. I have a feeling

that is not corroborated by any conduct on anybody's part if the

evidence that we seek were not incriminating the President would
I'ent the U-Haul truck and diive it up here and deliver it to the com-
mittee. I suspect it is being held back from us because it is incriminat-
ing, and the process by which it is beinir held back is the aversion of
claims of ambiguitv and misunderstandinjr. But, I wish the client of
^fr. St, Clair would evince similar uncertainties when he speaks to the
Xntion about his dealings with this committee.
The Chairmax. ]\Ir. Wiggins. I recognize ]Mr. Wiggins.
^Ir. Wiggins. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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A few moments ago a document was circulated entitled "Procedures
for Taking Depositions Before the Committee on the Judiciary." It is

my understanding that this is in the nature of a proposal only and
that no action is contemplated at this meeting on that proposal; is

that correct ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. Wiggins. It is to be noted that the proposal does not provide

for the presence of the counsel for the President during the taking

of any such de'positions, and since that will be a question which ought
to be, and I am sure will be, fully debated by this committee, I request,

Mr. Chairman, that the committee staff be instructed to prepare what
amounts to a possible amendment and to circulate that, the amendment
to provide for the right of the President's coimsel to be present during
the taking of the depositions and other evidentiary hearings before

the committee. Now, I am making this request, Mr. Chairman. I fidly

understand that that may not represent the counsel's position but

that we should have that alternative before us in precise words at the

time the debate is undertaken rather than attempt to amend it at the

time of that debate. And so, that is the nature of my request, Mr. Chair-
man, and I hope you will see fit to honor it.

The Chairman. If there is no objection. I am sure that in the

interest of advising the members and informing the members of all

sides of this issue, I think that it is entirely appropriate for the com-
mittee members to have been so informed.

Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to make a fairly general statement, Mr. Chairman, and

I will be as brief as I can.

I agree with my friend from Texas, and I think perhaps that most
members of this committee are in agreement this morning. I have
listened intently to what the President has had to say recently in his

televised appearances, and naturally we have all followed very care-

fully and very closely the activities and relationships of our own coun-
sel, Mr. Doar, and Mr. Jenner, with INIr. St. Clair.

Let me say in the terms that they use down on Pennsylvania Avenue
that I think it is high time that this President stop playing games
with our Constitution, the Congress, the Presidency and the American
people. On the one hand, one hears on teleAnsion about full coopera-
tion and the desire for an expeditious inquiry, but we see developing,
I think, and I am afraid the intricate maneuvers of a strategy to not
only limit our committee but to confuse the issue. Both the Constitu-
tion and historical precedents are clear, I think. The House of Rep-
resentatives has the solemn responsibility and the power of impeach-
ment and in the exercise of this power and responsibilit3^ the House
should not be limited in any way whatsoever in its access to the needed
material and testimony. There is no requirement nor should there be
for the House itself, or acting through this committee, Mr. Chairman,
to define what constitutes an impeachable offense or set the scope in
advance of this or any particular inquir}^
The impeachment power has come to us in its pure form, so to speak,

from the Constitution. It is unfettered by explanatory acts of Congress
or bureaucratic interpretations and in my judgment this is the way



217

it ought to remain. Together with the liistory of several individual

applications on the power of impeachment, we have been served well

for about 200 years and I believe that the same tools can serve us well

in 1974.

To the President and to the people we should say loud and clear once

again, and as we are this morning, that this is not an adversary proceed-

ing. This committee and this Congress are not out to get this President,

ordowngrade the Presidency. We are intent on fulfilling perhaps our
highest obligation as a coequal branch of our Federal Government
with no predetermination of what the outcome of our inquiry might be.

Now, one last note ; I feel that some comment is in order by somebody
on the revelation by the junior Senator from^ New York yesterday, in

what someone described as his announcement for reelection. He has
]iow called on the President to resign as an act of statesmanship of the

highest order, and wliile still protesting his innocence of wrongdoing.
I, personally, most emphatically disagree with Senator Buckley. The
President should not resign for to do so, in my judgment, would be in-

terpreted by the vast majority of our fellow citizens as an admission
of wrongdoing, tantamount to a guilty plea in court or perhaps even
worse. It would also bear the mark of quitting under fire and I whole-
lieartedly agree with Mr. Nixon that the President should not be so

limited in the exercise of their awesome duties and responsibilities in
leading our Nation. So, Mr. President, do not resign. Do not resign.

You might be impeached, you might even be convicted, but do not
resign. And if you must do battle with the Congress, let your sword
be cooperation and let your field be the whole truth.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. I thank the chairman for yielding, and I would

like to make this observation, and again I want to restate a position

that I made some time back. And at the outset, I share a lot that has
been said on the other side of the aisle. If I were the President's lawyer
I would say, come on, boys, back up the truck, anything you want you
take a look at it. That would be my advice to him and I wish he would
do that.

I am told—now, may])© this is wrong—but the reason that there is a
slowness in giving a lot of this information, or some of these tapes,

is that it takes countless hours to get to the one that you want. Now,
is that part correct ?

INIr. DoAR. I do not laiow whether that is correct or not. "We have
been told that by Mr. Buzhardt. But
Mr. Sandman. Do we have any information that it is incorrect ?

Mr. DoAR. We do not have any information it is incorrect, except
that the tapes are carefully indexed. We have the testimony down
before Judge Sirica as to how the tapes are indexed, and how the Secret
Service has control over those, and that if you want to go in and get
one, you go to an index and you pick out the box and then you have got
the log that says when the tape started and when the tape ended. And
if you know that you want a particular conversation in the middle of
the tape, you have to run the tape half-way through.
Mr. Sandman. It takes a long time, though, by anybody's estimation

to really get to the one that you want, even if you know what you want ?
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Mr. DoAR. I do not know that it does take such a long time.

Mr. Saxdmax. Well, at any rate let me jnake this observation. Now,,
we liaA'C been going through this thing and I read in every newspaper
in the United States how guilty this man is. You already say you have'

100,000 pages of testimony, plus everj^thing that the Special Prosecu-
tor had. Now. if we have all of this, why does not this committee com-
mence today in starting to get to the nuts and bolts on the one issue we
all admit, if the proof exists, is impeachable ? Why do we not start

today on the infringement of his power which has to do with the cov-

erup of the Watergate case? Why do we not go along with this now?
You must have something we can start with now. As I see this things
we are going to argue about every single paper that is not produced'
and if we keep doing this we can very well be here until the end of IVIr.

Nixon's term, and I do not think the people want to see that, Mr. Chair-
man. I do not think it is proper for me now, but I hope some day I get
the opportunity to moAe that we start meeting consecutive days, we-
start on the one issue that everybody agrees is impeachable, if the
proof exists, and I have not seen any of it yet. And this is what I think
the people want. If we continue meeting on a weekly basis, only to hear
what counsel did last week, we are never going to iret to the bottom of
this thmg.
The Chairman. Well, may I say that this is what we are attempting

to do, to arrive at that point where this material will be presented to-

the committee in such a form that it is readily understandable and
it will not be on just one point, but on many jwints that may have
some relevancy to the question as to whether or not there does indeed
exist any impeachable offense or whether there does exist any im-
peachable offenses.

Mr. Sandman. Can we discuss a time schedule on where we are'

headed ? I think this is important. When are we going to start meeting
here, when is this committee going to start having hearings? Can I
ask that question ? Would that be proper?
Mr. DoAR. Well, with respect to the matter of the Watergate cover-

up, the specific information that we have asked for all relates to that,.

They relate to conversations, to recorded conversations within the
month before or the month after INIarch 21, 1973, We have not yet
received the material from Judge Sirica to examine. It would seem
to me. Congressman Sandman, that we would not want to proceed
with hearings until Ave have had an opportunity to examine and or-
ganize that material. I think that once the material-
Mr. Sandman. Yes, but do you not think we lun^e enough to start?

If we are going to argue about every paper that is not delivered our
way, we can never get started.

Mr. DoAR. We are not arguing
Mr. Sandman. Do we not have a substantial amount to start with ?

Mr. DoAR [continuing!. We are not arguing about eA'ery paper that
has not come our way. What we are talking about with respect to ]Mr.

St. Clair is six specific items that we requested. And in the meantime,
that is not all we are doing. We are assembling and collecting and
organizing the proof and involving the entire matter before this
committee. And we are doing it as rapidly as we can.



219

!Mr. Saxdmax. Will yoii give us some kind of a time schedule, in

your judgment, as to when we are going to start those consecutive

days of hearings here ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, it is also difficult for me to say that, but I think we
could do it really within a reasonable time. It depends upon just exactly

how the committee proposes to proceed. Does the committee want to

take parts of this and then adjourn, or does the committee want to

take it all at one time? I would recommend to the committee respect-

fully that the committee let us get the case organized and then present

it to the committee at one time.

I am not sajang that some time within the reasonably near future
we will not be able to tell you that, but it would be irresponsible for

me to say that we can do it on this day rather than that day, but I

recognize your concern. We have been concentrating on preparing the

case. We are making good progress in organizing to present it to you
in a fair and objective way.
The Chairmax. Mr. Jenner? ]Mr. Jenner, would you comment on

that as well, since this is a matter that I think is important for us to

hear?
Mr. Jexxer. Thank you. ]\Ir. Chairman.
Ladies and gentlemen of the committee, I indicated to you my

background in the practice of law as a litigator of many years. And
I would be very uncertain and somewhat upset, and feeling that I
had not represented the committee well, or my clients, if I began to

present proof on a partial basis without laiowing down the road what
the additional relevant evidence is in order to fairly present the matter
to this committ<?e, I also feel that apart from the Watergate, the staif

has been instructed to investigate other matters which we are pursuing.

Some of those matters we reported to you in the March 1 report. Mr,
Doar and I are going over for the purpose of making a report to you
down the road, in the very near future, that perhaps we think the

staff has discharged its responsibility to you and that our recommenda-
tions to you for your decision is that certain matters be dropped inso-

far as requiring the staff to pursue its investigation in those areas.

But, to Congressman Sandman and to all of you, it is very important
before your counsel present anything to you, that your counsel have a

notion of the magiiitude of the presentation, and have that presenta-

tion organized. In the trial of lawsuits whether administrative pro-

ceedings or in a courtroom, competent litigation counsel have them-
selves organized as to sequence so that as you present the sequence it

begins to unfold the story to you. And there is one thing that is relevant

to another, and you must present it all in a context, and that is what
Mr. Doar and I are attempting to do.

The 6-paragraph items, or the 42 conversations is part of all of

that. We have not heard them. We do know, and we have represented

to you this morning, and I repeat it again, they are relevant to Water-
gate and the covenip. And where they sit in the package to be pres-

ented to you in an organized fashion, we do not know at the moment.
We hope to find out in the very near future. And INIr. St. Clair did

say to us expressly Monday morning in our meeting that he Avill report

back to us.

The Chairmax. Thank you. Mr. Rangel.

Mr. Raxgel. Thank you.
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IVIr. Doar, I appreciate the efforts that you have made to get the

materials requested by this committee, to get on with our investigation,

especially your understanding patience with the confusion which ob-

viously exists in the White House. I share, however, the concerns of

Mr. Wiggins as to the rules of procedure for taking depositions before

this committee, but wonder under what authority are you, ]\Ir. Jenner
and yourself, negotiating the rules of this House and this committee
with one, who at times, claims to be counsel for the President and
at other times counsel to the Presidency. And I refer to his letter where
he indicates that he is disappointed either in you or this committee for

his not having input in what I consider the constitutional responsibil-

ity of the House of Representatives and this conunittee. So, under
what authority are you discussing the rules of this committee with
Mr. St. Clair?'

Mr. DoAR. We did not discuss the rules of this committee with Mr.
St. Clair. Mr. St. Clair asked me if I would bring a request from him
to the committee to participate, be granted the right to participate

fully, the right to cross-examine, to call witnesses, to have the power of
subpena on belialf of the President in all proceedings before the com-
mittee. We did not negotiate that. We did not discuss the rules with
him. We did not say anything except that we would bring it to the
attention of the committee at the next meeting, at the next briefing.

Mr. Rangel. Well, as our counsel, it appears from the letters of
March 8, and 13, that Mr. St. Clair is requesting to become a member
of the Judiciary, with all of the rights and privileges accorded. And I

wonder, as our counsel, whether you can determine at this point
whether he has any legal standing at all to make these inquiries as to

rules, which we have not yet decided ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I do not believe he has any legal standing at all, no,

and we did not grant him or consider that he had any legal standing.

He made the request, we agreed to bring the request to the attention

of the committee.
Mr. Rangel. Well, I would just like to conclude, and my final request

is, is there any statutory or constitutional provision for a citizen to be
employed as counsel to the Presidency ?

Mr. Doar. Well, that I do not know. I do not know.
Mr. Rangel. Well, I am just saying that if, in fact, these letters refer

to liim as being comisel to the Presidency, someone that he cannot
confer with, and some object which is not under investigation, it could
A'ery well be that he has no standing in connection with any conversa-
tions with this committee.
Mr. DoAR. Well, Congressman Rangel, I saw the letter that the Pres-

ident wrote to Chairman Rodino, in which he said he had instructed,

or maybe it was Mr. St. Clair wrote to Chairman Rodino saying that
the President had instructed him. President Nixon had instructed him,
to be in communication with me and Mr. Jenner to discuss, on his be-
half, matters that were before the committee.
Mr. Rangle. Mr. Chairman, I do not want to get involved in pre-

paring letters for our counsel, but it seems to me that whatever re-

sponse INIr. St. Clair gets as it relates to the rules of this committee and
the House, that we advise him that when we have reached that deci-

sion that not onl}' he but the American people will be so advised.
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The Chairman. Well, the Chair will advise the gentleman from

New York that we will take no action until the committee has taken

that action, or that matter under consideration.

Mr. Fish.

]\Ir. Fish. Thank j'ou, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to go back to the first issue that was before us this

morning, presented by Mr. Dennis, which concerned the letter of Feb-

ruary 25. In the paragraph Mr. Dennis mentioned after the very

ai)}H-opriate request as to how files are indexed, there is the additional

sentence which says : "If we could work out a way whereby members of

tlie inquii-y staff may examine these files" in what otherwise was a very

tight, concise, proper request, this single sentence has been picked up
and been the subject of an offensive against this committee, and has put

us in a vulnerable position. It even appeared in the press before we
knew about it, and I would like to suggest that the rules of confiden-

tiality that apply to incoming materials, documents, records, tapes,

etc., should not be stretched to cover outgoing material from our in-

quiry staff. And I do not think that we would have given ammunition
then to Mr. St. Clair, had members of the committee seen the letter

or draft of the letter before it went out. I thinlc that it would help us,

particularly in view of the restraints that counsel is under about meet-

ing with the press, et cetera, to know ourselves, to be responsible for

everything that goes out of our committee. And I, therefore, Mr.
Cliairman, would like to request that you consider this change in pro-

cedure and that there is a definite distinction between the availability

to committee members of material before it goes forward from our
staff as distinct from the very proper confidentiality rules that apply.

And I yield to the gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. Railsbagk. Mr. Chairman, I ha^'e before me the procedures for

handling impeachment inquiry material, and I support it, frankly,

setting up these confidential procedures. But, I feel that it is very em-
barrassing for a lot of us that are concerned about the scope of the in-

quiry, we are concerned about what requests are being made, that in

the case already alluded to by my friend from New York, we did not
even have any idea. I did not have an idea, I think, until a week after-

wards what we had actually requested of the White House. I think it

is very clear from the procedures that we have set up, that they were
designed to screen evidence, which I can understand and I ap]")rove.

But, as far as limiting our knowledge, members of the House Judiciary
Committee, with this kind of a responsibility from knowing what we
are seeking, I cannot understand that. I agree with the gentleman from
New York. It seems to me that we are misconstruing or misinterpreting
our rules here.

The Chairman. Well, I would like to state that if the gentleman is

suggesting that each time that a communication or a letter is going to

be addressed to an agency, or an individual, which is within the
purview of the investigative areas that have been outlined, that I think
we would be here from now until doomsday merely sending out cor-

respondence and getting first the approval of each and every individ-
ual member. And I never believed that this was the intent of the com-
mittee, that every letter that is sent by the committee chairman with
the approval of the ranking member, would have to be circulated to all

41-018—75—pt. 1 ir>
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of the individual members and to every member before a letter would
be sent out.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Eailsback. Mr. Chairman, can I just ask you
The Chairman. Yes.

Mr. Railsback. I think you are right, that we inaybe shoukl per-

haps not automatically be entitled to get every single request. But,

when a member, and I understand tliat Congresswoman Holtzman
did ask to see the letter, and I think others of us thought this was
particularly significant, then it seems to me in such a limited case as

that we ought to be able to get it. I do not know any reason why not.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, may I just comment that I think

what the gentleman has in mind is that we do not want to get our

information from the New York Times. We want to get it directly as

members of this committee.
The Chairman. Now, we have been making statements and I will

recognize Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Mr. Chairman, thank you.

I would like to address a question to Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner.

When the House Committee on the Judiciary was designated to go

into this matter of impeachment, were we not essentially designated

assortof a grand jury? .

Mr. Doar. That is the closest analogy.

Mr. Donohue. Going on your background and your experience,

what are the duties of a grand jury? Are they not in the nature of an

inquiry ?

Mr. Doar. Yes, they are.

Mr. Donohue. Now, is the subject, the person under investigation

by the grand jury entitled to have counsel appear before the grand
jury and cross-examine any of the witnesses that might be called

before the grand jury ?

Mr. Doar. No, he is not.

Mr. Donohue. In other words, that is entirely in the hands of the

grand jury or the person that is their legal advisor, is it not?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Mr. Donohue. And is not that the way we are proceeding and
should proceed ?

Mr. Doar. That is my opinion; that is the way you are proceeding

and the way you should proceed.

Mr. Maraziti. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Butler, did you seek recognition ?

Mr. Butler. No, thank you, Mr. Chainnan.
The Chairman. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. Maraziti. Mr. Chairman, thank you.

Mr. Doar, in reference to the point raised by Mr. Sandman as to

whether or not we had enough information to proceed now, on the

issue of February 27, the New York Times, it quoted Mr. Jaworski as

saying that he believed he had the full story at Watergate. And has

Mr. Jaworski indicated to you, have you had any conversations with
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him as to whether or not in his opinion, he had sufficient information
to have the full story on Watergate ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. We have had conversations with him. He says that

is not an accurate quotation. He does intend to request additional

information from the White House, and that with the information
that he has, he had to make a decision whether or not to delay the

returning of these indictments and litigate with the White House the
question of these additional tape recordings or recorded conversations

that he thought were necessary to his case. And he has made it quite

clear to us, and to both of us, that he intends to seek additional

information.
Mr. Maraziti. But he thought that he had enough information to

proceed before the grand jury on the Watergate story ?

Mr. DoAR. That is right.

The Chairman. In light of the fact that there is a quorum call, the

chairman is going to call, in view of the fact that more of the members
would like to be heard, the Chair is going to hold another briefing

session tomorrow morning at 10 : 30.

[Whereupon, at 12 :12 p.m., the briefing was adjourned to reconvene.
Thursday, March 21, 1974, at 10 : 30 a.m.]
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Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr. (chair-
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Kastenmeier, Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, Waldie, Flovs^ers,

Mann, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Rangel, Jordan,

Thornton, Holtzman, Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, McClory,
Smith, Sandman, Railsback, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, Mayne, Butler,

Cohen, Lott, Moorhead, Maraziti and Latta.

Impeachment inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Albert E. Jenner. Jr., special counsel to the minority ; Samuel GaiTison

III, deputy minority counsel ; Joseph A. Woods, Jr., senior associate

special counsel ; and Hillary D. Rodham, coimsel.

Committee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general counsel ; Gar-
ner J. Cline, associate general counsel ; and Franklin G. Polk, associate

counsel.

The Chairman. The committee will come to order.

First, I would like to announce that this morning I dispatched, after

approval of a letter by Mr. Hutchinson and myself, the letter that

the committee under unanimous consent request yesterday, authorized
me to dispatch to the appellate court, merely restating the position of
the committee insofar as the material that is presently in the hands of

the district court. Judge Sirica. As we understand, Mr. Wilson is

appearing this morning in order to take up arguments appealing from
the decision that was handed down by Judge Sirica, and it is my
understanding that there is going to be argument in opposition to

in-stay by the Special Prosecutor's Office.

Do we have any further word on that, Mr. Doar ?

Mr. Doar. Mr. Chairman, we do not, except that the argument was
scheduled before the full court this morning at 10:30 on the merits,

the merits of the petition and on the application for stay. The Special

Prosecutor was directed to have his brief filed in opposition by 9 o'clock

this morning on the merits.

The Chairman. I would like to state that the committee members
have the letter before them. I would hope that the committee members,
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recognizing that this is presently now being delivered by hand to

Chief Judge Bazelon, that out of courtesy this not be made available

otherwise.

Mr. CoNTERS. IMr. Chairman ?

The Chairman, The letter is being distributed at this moment.
Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I might be recognized
to just make an announcement of some action for the next committee
jiieeting ?

I think some of the members here, including this one, are having
great difficulty with the flood lights in this room, when we are having
hearings and they are being televised. The lights are painful to the

eyes, they distract us and make it difficult to concentrate on what the

staff are telling us. And I think they are incompatible with the kind

of judicial atmosphere that I think the committee is striving to achieve

in this very grave matter and, therefore, for those reasons they inter-

fere with the committee's work. And I intend to move at the next meet-

ing of this committee to prohibit flood lights and flash bulbs in this

room, while the committee is in session, because of those reasons, and
I just want to notify the other members and the media that use flood

lights so that they can make whatever adjustments are necessary, if

such resolution should be adopted by the committee.

Thank you.

Mr. CoNYERs. Mr. Chairman?
Tlie Chairman. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mv. Mezvinsky. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Just a moment, please.

The Chair would like to state that in light of what transpired yes-

terday, the more senior members were recognized and the more junior

members were not recognized, and the Chair is merely looking upon
this briefing session as a continuation of yesterday's session, and I was
going to recognize the members who were not recognized yesterday in

the order of their seniority.

]\Ir. Conters. Well, Mr. Chairman, if that is the case, I had not made
a ])resentation yesterday.

The Chairman. The Chair recognized the gentleman yesterday
when he commented on some of the matters that were before us, even
before the counsel began his presentation. The Chair is going to ad-

here to giving fair treatment to all of the members and I, therefore,

recognize Mr. Mezvinsky.
]Mr. Mezvinsky. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I want to follow on from yesterday's discussion, and I want to raise

several points with you, with the members of the committee, and cer-

tainly with the counsel regarding Mr. St. Clair's comments to this

committee and regarding the access to the information. And it seems
to me before I ask just two questions, I would like to state my position

that it seems to me that Mr. St. Clair is suffering from what I think

is a sad misunderstanding of what our inquiry is. I guess, as counsel

to the President, he cannot bring himself to realize that he cannot set

the ground rules for our inquiry. Now, he is suggesting that he and any
of his associates play an active role in our inquiry, and I would submit
that that should be rejected out of hand.
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Our inquiry is not the area for an adversary proceeding, as was
pointed out by some yesterday, and I thought it was clear that what we
are doing is searching for the evidence and there is no opposition rule

in the script. And I would hope that we can somehow convince Mr. St.

Clair that the only proper way for him to present his case is to cooper-

ate and provide the committee with all of the evidence.

I would also submit that based on that evidence, the full House and
this committee will decide whether or not Mr. St. Clair's highly praised

adversary talents are actually needed. If the President is impeached,

Mr. St. Clair will get his chance to demonstrate his own renowned
trial techniques, but^if that comes that will be further down the pipe,

and there is no useful purpose in permitting INIr. St. Clair to give us the

preview during the inquiry stage, which is what this is.

And I thinlv what disturbs me most about the role that I see coming
from the White House is that it seems, too, that ]Mr. St. Clair has be-

come a full-fledged member 'of the President's orchestrated PR
machine and has joined the work gang assigned to attempt to drive

a wedge between the committee and our staff and between Democrats
and Republicans, because this is what I sense is developing.

And now I want to hit a very delicate nerve that bothers me most
regarding recent revelations. Now, we see that Mr. St. Clair is com-
ing to the Hill to meet with ]Members and for all we know he is dis-

cussing matters that many members of our committee are not privy to.

And I also notice that Mr. St. Clair seems to restrict his so-called

briefing sessions only to Republicans. And for a man who sees him-
self representing the Presidency, it seems that he is ignoring more
than half of his audience. And I wonder whether Mr. St. Clair is

practicing law or playing politics, and is he the President's counsel

or is he the President's lobbyist.

So, I think as a member of this committee I really resent the thought
of what is happening because we are trying to be objective, we are try-

ing to run a fair investigation and now I think that we see a political

storm trooper coming here to represent him.
]Mr. Railsback. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Mezvenskt. With that in mind, before I yield, I would like to

raise two questions and then I will be glad to yield. I would like to find

out from the counsel whether or not Mr. St. Clair has any guidelines

that he is operating under, insofar as Mr. St. Clair and Nixon are

concerned about our procedures and we are being guided by confiden-

tiality, and in light of the fact that last week we found a release of

a confidential letter, and we do not know whether or not the exhibit A
was even given to any members of the opposition side or of the Republi-

can side, and I think it is important that we know just what his plans

are. So, do we know what kind of guidelines ]Mr. St. Clair will operate

under concerning procedures for any confidentiality, not only with
members of this committee, but with Members of the Congress as a

whole?
]Nrr. Railsback. Will the gentleman yield ?

]Mr. ]Mezvinskt. Yes.
]Mr. DoAR. The short answer to that is that we do not—Mr. St. Clair

has not advised me or Mr. Jenner of any guidelines that he is operating

under.
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Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Now, I would like to add the second point and then
I will be glad to at least assert what rights I have as a member of this

ber I want to at least assert what rights I have as a member of this

committee. We indicated yesterday that Mr. St. Clair told us that
before our requests for information will be met that we have to study
all of the evidence available to us. And I am concerned that we are into
the proceedings as to getting the grand jury material, and does this

mean that St. Clair is telling us that if tlie grand jury evidence is tied

up in the court for an indefinite period of time, tliat the committee will

be denied other evidence until all appeals are adjudicated ? Do we have
any indication that that is the position ?

Mr. DoAR. No, it does not mean that. Mr. St. Clair did not, nor did
he tell me or Mr. Jenner that we should study all of the material as a
precondition to making requests for further material. He did say that
to the extent that our request reflected review of the material we al-

ready had, and set forth as specifically as we could the basis for our
request, that that would be helpful to him and so that he did not lay
down any condition with respect to that. Pie did not.

Mr. Mezvinsky. So, there is no position on our part that we cannot
request what information we think is necessary, irrespective of the

time line that we may find ourselves under concerning trying to get

access to that material from the grand jury ?

Mr. DoAR. Congressman, both Mr. Jenner and I were both very spe-

cific and very clear about that, that if there was a delay that there was
no question that the committee, as far as we could sense the will of the

committee, was that they were interested, felt that it was necessary that
these six specific items be produced, and that we did not think that it

was possible, or it was right, or that we could fairly represent you by
not pressing as hard and as strenuously as we could for the delivery of
that material, and that what may or may not have happened in the

court with Judge Sirica's material was of not inconsequence with re-

spect to the position of the committee.
Mr. Railsback. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. The gentleman has no further time within which to

yield, and I would like to state that while we are not operating strictly

under the 5-minute rule, since this is a briefing session, nonetheless. I

would like to advise the members that I would hope that they would
restrict their remarks so that there is not a s]:)eech made, but tliere

is a question directed to the counsel for the purpose of being at least

informed as to what this matter is all about ; that that be the procedure
that will be adhered to. Otherwise, the junior members and those who
remain to be recognized are not going to be recognized within the hour
that is left to us.

I now recognize Mr. Butler.
Mr. Butler. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
IMy concern is that, as the counsel indicated, with the procedures

for taking depositions before the committee. I have felt that deposi-

tions in this particular instance, my view of it is slightly different

from what I understand counsel to say yesterday. T. for all purposes,

believe they are CAndentiary hearings of the Judiciary Committee out
of the presence of the committee or a subcommittee, but they have
all of the evidentiarv value of evidence taken before the committee.
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Therefore, I think it is very important that we adopt our rules and
tliat we consider them carefully and that we recognize what we are

doing. Are they different from an affidavit, are they different from an
investigation report in that they are evidence of a hearing available

as part of the evidence of the committee ? Therefore, I would like at

this time to receive your assurance that I, as a member of this commit-
tee, will be personally notified of the taking of any deposition and
given an opportunity to be present, if I so desire.

The second thing I Avould like to be assured of is that no further

deposition will be taken until the rules have been formally adopted
b}^ the committee for the taking of these depositions. If I could receive

your assurances in these two, then, Mr. Chairman, I will have used
m}" time well.

Mr. DoAR. Congressman Butler, I am prepared, of course, to assure

you with respect to the second matter. I would hope to be able to per-

suade you that prior notice to the committee members with respect

to the taking of the depositions would not serve the best interest of

the committee. And I say that respectfully. I would say that really

these depositions are not any more evidentiary than a sworn statement
taken under oath.

If you see the last paragraph of rule 11 at the top of the last page,
page 4, it says that the deposition, if received by the committee, and
so that the committee, the intent and spirit of these depositions rules is

that depositions would only be considered by the committee, if the com-
mittee decided at the hearing or at the presentation that they would be
received. If the committee were to decide otherwise, then they would
not be received, and then they would call the witness themselves before
the committee. And there was no intention here. Congressman Butler,
to build massive evidence outside of the presence of the committee.
The purpose was to expedite the presentation with respect to eviden-
tiary matters about which there might not be any dispute, and, second
of all, to help us in our investigative inquiry where we had a witness
who would not testify except under the compulsion of a subpena and
that it would serve the interests of the committee and expedite things
if that kind of compulsive testimony, prior to an evidentiary hearing,
was held without the necessity of the committee members being
present.

I personally feel as your counsel, that in preparing this case we can
better serve you if we go out, if we follow this procedure under your in-

structions and guidelines as quietly and in as professional a manner as
possible. It seems to me that based on my observation of how the Sen-
ate selected committee worked, the more people outside the staff that
were aware that a particular person's deposition was about to be taken,
or in that case it was before a committee member, that that became
news in the paper, it created public attention and, in my judgment as
a lawyer, it makes it more difficult to search out the truth.' So, I would
liopo that with respect to your first assurance, that the committee
would consider that before it adopts it or a rule, but of course, if the
committee asked me to give that assurance, you can be sure I would.
Witli respect to the second matter, I give you that assurance. No depo-
sitions will be taken until these rules are determined and established
by the committee.
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But, we went ahead and took one deposition last week before this

came np, and I explained that to the Conofressman, it was the deposi-

tion of a man who wanted to be subpenaed and it involved what I do
not think Avas a controversial matter, a former U.S. attorney from
California that gave us some testimony. And. as I say again, if the
committee were to review that and say we would like to have this man
come in and examine him on that, of course we would. He would be,

of course, brought before the committee.
Mr. Butler. Well, I thank you. I appreciate your assurance that

we will resolve these questions before we go to the taking, before we
take any further depositions. I am still strongly of the feeling that
the committee is entitled to make the decision as to whether we would
attend the taking of the depositions or not, and I would like to be
advised of it for that reason. I think if it develops that you cannot
depend upon the discretion of the committee ; if it develops that you
cannot depend upon the members of this committee to respect the
importance of the proceeding quietly with this sort of tiling, then, of
course, it creates another problem. But, for the moment, that would
be my view of it. Of course, it is a policy decision, as you recognize,
that the full committee will have to make when we undertake the
formal consideration of these rules.

I thank you very much. a.nd. Mr. Chairman, I would like to yield.

The CiiAiRMAx. I would like to advise Mr. Butler that we presently
have under consideration whether or not we will formally hold some
hearings on that question, which I think is very central to this wliole
issue. And I feel this is important and must be resolved, and the de-
cision ultimately will be the decision of the committee. I would hope
that we also recognize, however, that this is going to also create prob-
lems with regard to the question of expediting these proceedings. And
all of that will have to be taken into consideration. But, the Chair is

considering this and will be consulting with the ranking Kepublican
member, Mr. Hutchinson, and if we reach a decision that hearings are
necessary, and at this time, I feel they might be, but I do not expect
that to be a final judgment, at least on my part, and I would think that
we will then advise the committee.
Mr. McClory. Will the chairman yield on that point to me?
Is this not a subject that we are going to resolve in this committee,

and on the basis of the precedence? We do not have to have any hear-

ings on this subject, do we ? The question is

The Chairmmst. Well, I would like to remind the gentleman that if

there are precedents, the precedents are both ways, and whether or

not the precedents establish the right of any counsel representing the

individual who is the subject of the inquiry is something that I tliink

is not resolved, is something that certainly, in my judgment, does have
an impact on the total constitutional process, as I see it. And I do not
think that we can dismiss it lightly as the gentleman would suggest.

Mr. McClory. Well, no, Mr. Chairman. I am not suggesting that

we dismiss it lightly. But, we have been able to adopt our other rules

of procedure without having any hearings, and it seems to me that this

is something we could do as a committee without conducting hearings
on our procedure, because we can go down the line with regard to other

items of procedure and this could go on and on and on, as the Andrew
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Johnson case did go on, because tliey got into sucli confusion as to lio\^

to proceed.

The Chairman. The Chair does not intend to delay this proceeding

at all, and the Chair has not made any decision and will not until we
have consulted.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, I just want to make it perfectly clear

that I am very much interested in moving this along, and my insistence

on this is not'to delay. I hope we can early resolve the question of these

rules and move on.

The Chairman. We must and we will.

Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman, thank you for yielding to me some

time.

I am interested, particularly, in the subject of whether or not

Mr. St. Clair or any other person who is a stranger to these proceedings

could participate in any respect in these proceedings, and I want to

make it clear that although this is a briefing session, I think it also,

shall I say, is a debriefing because I think that the chairman and the

ranking minority member and the other members of the committee, as

well as our counsel, should know how each of us feel about it. I fully

expect our able counsel to take their instructions from the committee

as a whole and not from an individual member. But, I want my posi-

tion to be eminently clear.

I hope that the counsel will continue their past practice of work-
ing in a very professional manner with Mr. St. Clair or anyone else

with whom they have to work in order to meet the responsibilities of

the committee, and I am confident that they will. But, when it comes
to the question, if there be one, of whether White House Counsel. Mr.
St. Clair, or anyone else should have any right to participate in these

proceedings, I would submit that that is not negotiable. The Congress
recognizes, and it provides expressly for vacancies in the Office of the

President. It recognizes those vacancies can take place by removal of

the President from office by his death, his resignation, or his inability

to perform his duties. We are not here concerned, obviously, with death
or inability to discharge duties. And we are not, for the time being at

least, concerned with resignation. But, we are well along, I submit, in

the process provided in the Constitution for the removal of the Presi-

dent from office, provided expressly in the Constitution that the Presi-

dent shall be removed by the process of impeachment. It says that the

House of Representatives. shall have the sole power of impeachment,
and that the Senate shall have the sole power to try impeachment cases,

and that the punishment, in case of impeachment and conviction is

removal from office.

I want to point out that, in my opinion, Mr. Chairman, this is a sole

and exclusive power vested in t;he House of Representatives. It orig-

inates in the Constitution. It is not limited, it is not subject to quali-

fication. It is not subject to limitation, and is not at all permissive of

limitation or regulation or even reviewable by the executive or the

judicial branches of our government.
I submit that we, as members of this committee, and Representatives

of the House of Representatives, have no right under the Constitution

to relinquish or abdicate or delegate any part of our responsibilities
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in the process of impeachment. Neither Mr. St. Clair nor anyone else
has a right to interfere with tlie orderely discharge of onr duties. And
that also goes to the naive concept that some so-called impartial third
person should pass upon what we are going to be able to examine in
onr inquiry.

Now. as to the so-called grand jury papers, which I understand are
now before an appellate court, I hope and trust that the judicial branch
will recognize forthwith, today I mean, that they have no jurisdiction
over those papers or over this proceeding, and that they will order
them delivered to this committee today. In my opinion, the judicial de-
termination of wliat is a legislative question would work just as much
mischief as a legislative determination of a judicial question.
One last point : I am a little bit tired of seeing on television, hearing

on the radio, reading in the paper, that the White House says that this
committee is indulging in delaying tactics and is stalling and dragging
its feet. All of the stalling and delaying I have been able to discover
emanates from outside sources, many of them at the White House.
There is the withholding of necessary evidence which is simply a delay-
ing and obstructing procedure, and I hope it terminates forthwith.

I vield back the balance of my time.

The CiiAiKMAx. Mr. Cohen.
Mv. Cohen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
If I might be permitted, I would like to yield briefly to the gentle-

man from Illinois, my good friend, Mr. Railsback, for a brief

statement.

Mr. TvAiT.SRArK. Mr. Chairman, this will be fairly brief, and I hope
that it is fairly emphatic. I have been proud of the way this committee
has been handling itself. I think that since our initial little partisan

exchange over the one-man subpena power, we have proceeded with,

by and large, fairness. We have been judicious. We have tried to be iipn-

partisan.

I suggest to you, Mr. Chairman, that if we do not give the respondent
the right of counsel present, some of us, I think, are running the risk of

causing a real partisan confrontation. And I say that as being one of

those that is supposed to be, according to one of the magazines, the

persuadable, and I think I am a persuadable. Let me just say that since

1876 and the impeachment of the Secretary of War, William Belknap,
every respondent in every such inquiry, which resulted in impeachment,
has been permitted, on his request, the privilege of having counsel

present. And in addition to this privilege, which has been granted in a

total of five impeachment hearings, the respondent or his counsel has

been granted the privilege of cross-examining witnesses, raising ob-

jectio7is. and testifying in his own behalf.

I do not know what we are trying to do in this case. This is by far

the most serious impeachment case. I think the only way you are

goinar to have a successful inquiry is to see that this respondent is

treated as other respondents have" been, particularly in recent cases.

You are looking, in my opinion, for nothing but trouble if you do not

giA-o him the same privileges that we have given other respondents.

INTr. CoTTEX. If T could have my time back, now ?

INIr. TiAiLSRArK. Yes.

Mr. CoTTE>r. Thank vou.
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Mr. Doar, yesterday the gentleman from ^lassachusetts asked a ques-

tion as to Avhether or not we were proceeding in a fashion similar to

that of a grand jury, and your statement was unqualified that we were.

It seems to me that that is" not the case, that if we were proceeding as a

grand jury we would be proceeding on an ex parte investigatory basis,

in whicli it would be secret. And I would just simply suggest that to

the extent that we are going to make these meetings, or briefings or

revelations about our process and progress public, then the proceeding

is not necessarily investigatory. It becomes accusatory at some point

along the way and I think this has a bearing on what Congressman
Eailsback is saying. To the extent that we are conducting this in public,

we ought to have some concern about the rights of those who are going

to be ultimately accused by the process. And it does become in that

middle ground between investigatory and accusatory, and I think we
have to take due consideration of the rights of the respondent.

And second, I have another question, and that deals with the

uses of depositions. I have not been out of the practice of law too

long, but it seems to me that both in civil and criminal practice that

we would use depositions for the purpose (1) perpetuating testimony
if someone were dying or in danger of dying or leaving the country
and not coming back where you might use the deposition for pur-
poses of positive proof. But, basically, you use a deposition only for
purposes of impeachment; namely, impeaching the credibility of a
witness and not as a basis for positive proof. So, I was a little bit con-
cerned about your statement that tlie committee can either accept
a deposition or require the testimony pul)licly or privately, as we
decide. It seems to me you might have a different result, that if we
call a witness to testify there may be a ruling that we have the counsel
of the other respondent present, whereas if we just call for the deposi-
tion, there is no opportunity to cross-examine. And all I am suggest-
ing is that we still have not received any guidelines from your staff

as to whether we are proceeding as a grand jury and, if not as a grand
jury, exactly how we are proceeding and what are going to be the
evidentiary guidelines. And I think this would solve a lot of problems
for many of us.

Mr. DoAR. Congressman Cohen, we are working on these guidelines
and as soon as they are finished and they should be finished witliin
a few days, I Avould hope by early next week we would provide these
additional sources of information to you.

Let me say this : I respect your views very much with respect to and
your experience as a lawyer, and your experience with the use of
depositions in litigation. I think, however, that that really reflects
what our problem is perhaps in that we all, having backg-round as
lawyers, tend to think of an impeachment proceeding as a trial or a
pretrial and, constitutionally, that is, in my judgment, not the case.
The Constitution says that the trial shall be in the Senate. The
Constitution says that the House shall have the sole power of im-
peachment which means that the House, as I imderstand it, shall haA-e
the sole power to investigate, to inquire and to decide whether to
bring charges.

Now to that extent, then, we are not talking about using deposi-
tions at a trial. If one of these depositions were, they could not pos-
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sibly be used if the proceeding went so far as to involve the trial in the
Senate. But, before a grand jury, from time immemorial, there have
been use of sworn statements and taken outside of the presence of the
committee and this committee, in its wisdom and judgment, could
do that here.

Mr. Cohen. I would like a clarification on the point, if we are,

in fact, proceeding as a grand jury, what are the guidelines to be fol-

lowed here, and I would like to yield just a moment to my friend
from California, Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Counsel, would you state your opinion as to whether

or not the fifth amendment of the U.S. Constitution is applicable to
these proceedings ?

Mr. DoAR. I have no doubt that all of the Constitution is applicable
to these proceedings. No question about it.

Mr. Cohen. On the question of the grand jury, could we have in

your recommendations in the next couple of days exactly what the
guidelines are going to be ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.
The Chairman. Mr. Edwards.
jNIr. Edwards. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I want to respond in one small way to the remarks of the gentle-

man from Illinois, Mr. Railsback, and Mr. Danielson. I would not
want anybody to think that there is a polarization taking place on
this committee on the important and really vital issue of representa-

tion by counsel of the President or the other matter of depositions.

This committee is also the guardian of constitutional rights as well

as the impeachment committee. And, above all, we intend, I am sure,

to be very fair in everything we do. And I have great respect for the

lawyers on the other side. I think that we have proven that we can

work together. I think we have virtual imanimity on the vital issue

of the evidence that the White House has refused to give us to date,

the fragments of 41 tapes. So, we have proven we can work together.

And I am not going to vote on these rules that are going to be pro-

posed until we have had an exhaustive and explicit study of the

precedence, because there are precedents that can apply in this area of

representation.

I think that the gentleman from Illinois was absolutely right when
he said that counsel—well, now, counsel for judges, judges have not

been represented by counsel, these judges under impeachment in the

investigatory process preceding the actual hearing before the Judici-

ary Committee. But, when they did get before the Judiciary Commit-
tee, judges, all of them that I have been able to quickly look up in

the 20th century, by the time they got to the Judiciary Committee,
when the proceedings started they were, by grace, not by right, rep-

resented by counsel. And whether or not all of these precedents apply
in this case is something we are going to have to sit down together and
talk about. And I think we can resolve it. And I am sure that we are

not polarizing Democrats versus Republicans on this issue, because

I certainly do not intend to be.

The Chairman. Mr. Lott.

Mr. Lott. First, Mr. Chairman, I would like to yield very briefly

to my colleague, Mr. Dennis.
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Mr. Dennis. I thank the gentleman for yielding. I would just like

to point out to everyone that this is a very serious matter and we
ought to give it careful and not partisan consideration. Mr. Railsback

is right about his precedent and if we go into the cases that were not

brought to trial, he is even righter. There are about 40 of them and
in more than half of them it is a matter, not of right, but of what the

conunittee thought was right, and in more than half of those other

cases counsel were hei'e before the committee.

We pay a little attention to Jelferson's JNIanual. Let me tell you what
it says, section 505

:

In mauy instances the committee lias made its inquiry ex parte. But, iu tlie

later practice the sentiment of committees has been iu favor of permitting the

accused to explain, present witnesses, cross-examine, and be represented by
counsel.

Now, that is not limiting the inquiry or letting anybody lay down
the ground rules. That has been done because the committee has felt

that that was fair, and that that was the best way to arrive at the truth,

wliich cross-examination usually is. And it also applies to depositions,

because under our very proposed rule here, these depositions, if ac-

cepted by the committee, and we can accept any of them, may be used

without restrictions in the inquiry, and in the same manner as testi-

mony taken in the presence of the full committee, and that is evidence.

And the right to appear or the grace to appear because it is fair or

right, applies there as well as here, if you have got an evidentiary type

of deposition, which is what we are talking about in these rules.

I thank the gentleman for yielding.

Mr. LoTT. Mr. Doar, I would like to ask you a couple of brief ques-

tions. Is the staff preparing or doing some studying further for the

committee members as to exactly what the precedents are in this area

of rights to counsel ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes ; we are.

Mr. LoTT. Are you giving consideration, and maybe I should address

this to the chairman, to having maybe some hearings and some testi-

mony perhaps from experts on this subject, as I heard on the radio
coming into work this morning ?

Mr. Doar. Well, yesterday, Congressman, the chairman announced
that he was giving consideration to that. We are taking the directions

from the chairman and from tlie committee. If it is the committee's
will to do that, we would attempt to present it in a fair and as objective

and professional a way as we could.

Mr. LoTT. One area that is obviously bothering the members of the

committee, and the news media, is this letter that we have discussed

so often and the six areas of materials and tapefs that you have re-

quested. Let me ask you to reemphasize you are continuing to discuss

this particular area of trying to work out some agreement with Mr.
St. flair, are you not ?

Mr. Jenner. We are undertaking that, and we do have conferences
with him. We understand it is the direction of the committee that we
proceed accordingly, and we have been adhering to that quite literally.

Mr. LoTT. So, this is proceeding ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes ; it is.

Mr. LoTT. Like most members of the committee, I was very disturbed
about the way that was handled, and I do want to emphasize before
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I would support taking any additional steps. I would have to know
more about why this material is relevant and what other material or
information, what reasons you requested it. I assume you are givino;

some consideration at some point, if it is necessary, to have a meeting
and directing your comments and allowing us to ask questions on this

particular subject, or perhaps we are at a stage where that is not e\'en

being considered right now.
Mr. DoAR. Well, with respect to the six items of material of items

that were requested, Mr. Jenner and I re^newed that, those six items

with the chairman and the ranking minority member in detail, setting

fortli the justification for those six items. When Mr. St. Clair asked
us what the reason we wanted those particular items were, we gave
him all of the information which formed the basis of our request,,

and that is the way we proceeded.
Mr. LoTT. I will yield back.

Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. I wanted to follow along with some comments which

Mr. Edwards made, because I think after we give some careful

thought, we may make certain judgments as to how we ought to

proceed with respect to this request for participation. But, I think

in thinking about that we have to be clear in our own minds of the

nature of the proceedings that we are embarked upon here, because

it seems to me Mr. St. Clair's approach basically treats this as a

pretrial matter, and that he is entitled to participate in it in a wav
that he would be if there was an accusatory process taking place. I

did not understand the endeavor on which we are embarked to be of

that nature. I understood it to be in the nature of an investigation

and an inquiry with no predetermination as to the end results. And,
in fact, leaving open the question that the end result may be that no
charges should be brought, as well as the possibility that charges
ought to be brought. So, I think it is important to have some under-
standing of the nature of the process that we are in and I would
appreciate it if counsel could respond to that question in terms of the

kind of process we are proceeding under and the nature, as to whether
it is in the nature of an adversary proceeding.

Mr. Doar. Well, it is counsel's opinion that we are not proceediiig.

our instructions are not to proceed in an adversary fashion, and that

this is an inquiry and it is not accusatory.

The Chairman said to me when I was asked if I would accept this

job, would I be prepared to develop the facts forcefully, thorougldy
and as completely as I could, whetlier or not the facts as found showed
that tliei-e was a basis or a complete lack of basis foi- tlie charges. And
I said I was prepared to do that, and he said that I would not have
retained you if you had said otherwise. And he said, are you pre-

pared to state to the committee and to present every fact, whether or

not it leads to any further proceedings by this committee. And I said

that I was prepared to do that, to the best of my ability.

In the hiring of every member of the staff the chairman has in-

structed me to inquire specifically whether or not the staff member
has any preconceived judgment with respect to the charges that

have been leveled against the President of the United States, and if
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the applicant responded that he had made a preconceived judgment^
one way or the other, that he was not to be hired, and those instructions

have been followed to the letter. So the response to your question is

that we have not proceeded as if this was an adversary matter. We
have not proceeded as if this was an accusatory matter. We have pro-
ceeded as if it was a search for the facts so that the committee could
determine the truth of the matters that have been presented to it, and
which it has, in our judgment, and the committee said this before, an
inescapable responsibility to decide.

Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Jenner, could you respond to that point, please ?

Mr. Jenner. Yes, Congressman. Thank you.
When I was retained as counsel for the minority, the chairman

and Mr. Hutchinson had the same kind of convei"sation as to character
and truth that was to be our obligation, Mr. Doar and myself and
the staff, to investigate fully and to present to this committee all of
the facts, without any judgmont on our part whether they were favor-
able or unfavorable, except that if we had regarded something as
possibly favorable and exonerating, we should be very careful to see

that that is presented to the committee as well. And I said to both the
chairman and to the ranking member that I thought that was a sound,
professional, and constitutional way of proceeding with this matter,
and that I could retain my professional integrity and responsibility

on that basis. And we have been proceeding accordingly.
Mr. Sarbanes. Well, you do not perceive the endeavor that we are

engaged in as adversary in any sense, and that whatever judgment
we may make on the?e other questions, they, at least, ought not to
flow from a premise that assumes that our endeavor is an adversary
one. Would that be correct?

Mr. Jenner. That is correct ; that is my judgment. That is my under-
standing of the attitude of the committee. That is my judgment as to
the proper interpretation of the Constitution. And I understand from
both Mr. Hutchinson and the chairman that that was their position,

and I think it is a sound one.

Mr. Sarbanes. Thank you.
Tlie Chairman. Mr. Mayne.
Mr, Mayne. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I will certainly look forward to the authorities which are going

to be prepared by counsel on the matter of these rules for taking
depositions and, for my part. I Avould hope, Mr. Chairman, that we
would not have to resort to hearings and take the time necessary to
hear a parade of law professors lecture us on a subject which I be-

lieve is within our competence to determine for ourselves.

I want to defer any final judgment of the matter until I have had
an opportunity to examine the authorities to be presented by a very
able counsel. And, incidentally, I want to join with the gentleman
from California, Mr. Edwards, in the statement that he made about
having respect for counsel in this case, all counsel involved. I think
it is important. I recall how bitterly members of this committee on
both sides resented attacks on our counsel last week. And I think as

members of the legal profession ourselves we should refrain from per-

sonal attacks on any counsel involved in this matter.

Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield ?

41-OlS—75—pt. 1- 16
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Mr. Mayne. And I think that the gentleman from California said

something very much needed to be said. I will yield.

Mr. McClory. Would you gentleman yield ?

With respect to the rule of our chief minority counsel, I think that

it is appropriate to point out that the minority members of this com-
mittee do feel the need for minority counsel and his input in this in-

vestigation and this inquiry is substantial. I do not think that the mere
fact that we get similar or identical views with regard to the consti-

tutional role of this committee, or its work, should be interpreted as

the minority being submerged in the majority. We do have occasion

for independent counsel from our chief minority counsel and his input.

And his role is substantial, as I assume the minority members' role

will be substantial in the course of this inquiry. I think that there is

some misunderstanding sometimes as to a delineation of our respective

responsibilities here in a common function of this committee at tliis

time.

Mr. Mayne. Mr. Chairman, I think that it does demean the commit-
tee for us to engage in attacks on counsel. Every American is entitled

to representation, and we should be aware of that and preserve that

right more than anyone else.

Now, as I have said, I do want to defer final judgment until I have
seen the authorities to be prepared by counsel. But, inasmuch as others

are stating their position, I would like to make it clear that my very
strong present feeling on this subject is that the President's counsel

should be notified and should be allowed to participate in all deposi-

tions. If the committee were to conceal from the President's counsel

that it was deposing a witness, or bar such counsel from being pres-

ent, this committee would itself be guilty of a coverup. I think it would
violate every principle of fairplay for this commitee or its staff to be

in a position to conceal testimony or to suppress testimony. We are en-

gaged here under the Constitution in a search for the truth, not an at-

tempt to surprise the President with hidden evidence unfavorable to

him or to conceal evidence favorable him.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Father Drinan.
]\Ir. Drinan. Mr. Chairman, I have here before me most of the prec-

edents with regard to the question of whether the respondent can l)e,

in fact, represented. The precedents are not very clear. In the case, for

example, of Andrew Johnson he was invited at the second hearing to be

present and he declined.

The overwhelming fact is that no precedent, however, is really a

precedent because we have an entirely unique situation here. In all of

the 50 or more precedents we never had a respondent who had refused

to give over documents requested by the committee that was investi-

gating him. The respondent was able to appear in many cases to ex-

plain the information that the respondent had already given. But,

as long as the present situation obtains, there is no precedent. That
is the only clear precedent that we have, that if a respondent asks,

for example, to go before a grand jury while he is withholding critical

and crucial information from that grand jury, no one is likely to say

that he should be heard for reasons of justice or grace or equity.

The situation, therefore, is entirely distinguishable from everything

that has gone before. Professor Burger said the other day, the great
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expert on impeachment, that the President is acting like a president
of a bank who is under investigation, and this president of the bank
is telling the investigators what accomits they can look at. And Pro-
fessor Burger said that if it were not the President of the United States

that the entire Nation would scorn him.
There is no real difference, Mr. Chairman, of opinion on tliis com-

mittee. This committee wants to be fair and will give all due process

to the President and to his attorney. But, if the President or his

comisel want tliis, then they first must olfer all of the evidence re-

quested. Then we might well want an explanation by persons repre-

senting the President of all of those documents and tapes which the

President would give.

I yield back the balance of my time.

The Chairman. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Mr. Chairman, on the subject of whether the Presi-

dent's comisel and the President should have the right to participate,

I think it is highly important that we consider that while this com-
mittee has a tremendous amount of authority under the Constitution,

we also have a great responsibility to see that these hearings are con-

ducted with absolute fairness to the President and to the people of

the country. We have a Nation that is greatly divided on this issue,

and is important to us and to the Nation that all of the people of
the country accept the verdict that is handed down, not only by this

committee and the Congress, and if it went that far, the Senate. If we
are to have a people that can be brought back together, if we are not
only fair but appear to be fair in every single stage of this proceeding,
I think we will subject ourselves to tremendous criticisms. The Presi-

dent has asked through his counsel that he have representation and
notice of these depositions and these hearings to give him that rep-

resentation and the right to notice, and it does not do anything to tear

down our authority in these hearings, nor does it do anything to destroy

the evidence and the information that we will get. But, it will build

it up. It will bring out the facts to us that might not otherwise come
to us. And I think that to reject it at this time we are flying in the face

of fairness, and we will bring discredit down upon this committee.
Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. Moorhead. I will yield the balance of my time to Mi'. Wiggins.
The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
My. Wiggins. fFust for a question, Mr. Chairman. I thank the gentle-

man for yielding, and I would like to address a question to counsel.

Both counsel have characterized the current proceeding as some-
thing other than an adversary proceeding and I shoidd like to sug-
gest to both of you that such a characterization is really not too help-

ful in terms of the kinds of problems that we are confronted with.

If our committee has any charge at all it is to ascertain the truth
with respect to the Pi'esident, and there can be no disagreement around
the table on that question. And so, Mr. Jenner, I address this question
to you as a man who has had perhaps more experience than any one
of us in the trial of cases. Have you not found in your experience, Mr.
JenncT'. that the right to cross-examine is an important, often an es-

sential vehicle in ascertaining the truth? Is that not your experience,
sir?

Mr. Jenner. That is my experience.
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Mr. WiGGTXS. I tliink it has to follow then. Mr. Jenner. that the

presence of counsel at the proceeding where evidence is to be taken,

and according that counsel the right to cross-examine witnesses would
be helpful to this committee in ascertaining the truth, which is our
overriding mission.

I yield back the balance of my time.

The Chairman. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. JoRDAisr. ]^rr. Chairman, I fail to see the necessity for a hearing-

on the issue of representation at the taking of depositions because it

would appear that we are having that hearing today. T would further
submit that if the staff of this impeachment inquiry needs any as-

sistance in the development of a memorandum for this committee to

help it reach a judgment, that certainly they have had ci*^ed this

morning enough legal precedents that all they need to do is to get the

court reporter's notes after our meeting this morning and they will

have all, perhaps all of the precedents they need.

Now, I say that not just to be facetious, Mr. Chairman. I want to

know, is it contemplated that there will be a memorandum from staff

presented to this committee on the question of the propriety of the
representation at the taking of depositions et cetera of the President's
counsel ?

The Chairman. The C-hair would like to state that the instru'^tions

have been given the staff to draw up such a memorandum, which will
be a memorandum citing the precedents and citing the Constitution,
and without, however, coming to any conclusions.

Well, if this is the case, in the intei-est. and T am sui-e that tliis is

the interest of those of us Avho serve on this committee, since we do
haA^e a professional staff. I know that after the submission of such
a memorandum we would want to certainly be advised as to the pro-
fessional opinion of the staff counsel. And T. for one, who stated from
the very beginning, and as Mr. Doar and INfr. Jenner have A^ery suc-
cinctly and very, very specifically stated. I proceeded, when given
this assignment, on the assumption, and this has been my assumption
all along and I have not changed my attitude, that this is not an ad-
versary proceeding, that we were assigned the task of inquiring under
the Constitution whether or not there, indeed, were facts, evidence,
and public records or otherwise which would lay the basis for tliis

committee coming forth with a recommendation either to find im-
peachable offenses or to recommend against. And it seems to me that
although the Chair will defer his final conclusion and judgment imtil
after the memorandum and after a further search, despite the fact
that I am aware of precedents, nonetheless, I am going to seek to be
as fair as any other member here is going to want to be. This is a
matter that is of tremendous concern and interest and of serious im-
poi'tnnce to the country. And T believe our responsibility is to the
people of the United States of America and we speak for them. And
T believe that their question is, is this or is this not an inquiry, or is

this or is this not at attempt on the pai-t of some people to create an
atmosphere that is adversary to the proceedings when there are, in
fact, only allegations and no chai-ges before this commitee, as I see
it, against the President of the TTnited States.

'Mv. Hutchinson. Will the cfentleman vield?
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Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman, I still have the time, even though you
made a speech. I will yield to Mr. Hutchinson.

Mr, Hutchinson. Will the gentlewoman yield to me at this time?

Ms. Jordan. Yes.

Mr. Hutchinson. I thank the gentlewoman for yielding.

I want to underscore the chairman's instructions to the staff that

in the preparation of this memorandum there shall be no conclusions.

It is not the function of the staff to draw conclusions.

Second, with regard to the question of adversary proceedings, I

would simply state my present thinking which is that I do not believe

that cross-examination would make this an adversary proceeding in

that strict sense, because as Mr. Wiggins has pointed out, and others,

the overriding mission of this inquiry is the truth. And as a lawyer,

I do not know of any way to glean the truth better than through the

function of cross-examination.

And I just want to make that statement so that if I disagree with

the chairman on that, why I do. But, I think that it is important to

understand that I do not see how, T just do not see how we could deny
the President's counsel the right, I do not mean to say the privilege

to request to appear, but I would go this far. I would. I think that it

would be within the proper scope of this committee's function to lay

down some conditions under which his appearance could be made. In
other words, we can say. yes, you can appear, but you will be bound
by our rules of confidentiality, for instance.

The Chairman. IVIs. Jordan still has the time.

Ms. Jordan. Mr. Doar, is it correct in assuming that in the rules that
you have simply recommended the draft rules, that any depositions
that would be taken within the context of these rules would only be
for the interest of the staff in defining the perimeters of the material

it will ultimately present to this committee, and that if such a deposi-

tion which is taken imder the proposed rules, were used before this

committee as evidence in the development of either a bill of impeach-
ment or charges or whatever, that all of the rules of due process would
be observed at that point in the use of the deposition?

Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentlelady yield ?

Ms. Jordan. I would like to have the question answered, first, if I

could.

Mr, Doar. The purpose of the deposition rule was to permit us to

secure a factual statement from a witness who was unwilling to give
information to the staff about matters under the inquiry unless he
was subpenaed. And the purpose, the principal purpose, was to secure
the information that would help us prepare for the presentation of
the case.

In addition to that, there were certain matters that because of the
size of the matters that were the subject of the inquiry, that could be,

in our judgment, be presented to the committee in the form of a
sworn statement rather than having the witness here, if the committee
approved that process and felt that it accorded due process and fair-

ness to the proceedings. But. it was the judgment of the committee
at the later stage that fairness was actually being applied, that would
be the test. So, the answer is "yes", to your question,

Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentlelady yield?
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Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman, I yield back the balance of my time, if

I have any.

Tlie Chairman. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Maraziti was recognized yesterday.

Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman, I will yield briefly to my friend from
New Jersey.

Mr. Maraziti. Thank you very much, Mr. Latta.

There has been a great deal of discussion about making analocries

between this committee and this proceeding and a grand jury. The
human mind likes to make analogies, but I rejected the analogy. There
are many differences. In the first place, a grand jury is selected at

random. This committee is composed of members of two great politi-

cal parties. The proceedings before a grand jury are secret, they are

not public, and, therefore^ I do not think it is proper to draw the

analogy and, therefore, come to the conclusion that all of the proceed-

ings should be ex parte, as they are, and as I understand they are

before a grand jury.

We have a special, unique proceeding here, impeachment. Novv-, as

Mr. Dennis has mentioned, we set our own rules of what is just and
what is fair, and what is equitable. We want to get at the truth. And
it has been said here all morning and agreed, there is no better method
to arrive at the truth than under cross-examination.

Now, in conclusion, I think the real danger lies in subdivision No.

II or paragraph No. 11 of the proposed rules, if they are adopted,

that the depositions taken under the rules as proposed, may be used

as evidence by this committee. That is where the danger exists and
we will make the judgment, I know, but liow can we really make the

judgment that the alleged facts procured ex parte are the facts when
they have not been subjected to cross-examination? In other words, we
would not laiow if there are some other facts that could have been

brought out. So. I submit to you that, and I agree with the chairman
that we are representing the American people, but I also agree and
suggest that the American people want a set of rules that are fair

and equitable, and I think that calls certainly for presence and the

right of cross-examination by counsel which alleged evidence is going

to be used as evidence.

Thank you.

]Mr. Doar. Congressman, could I

The Chairman. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. If you would like to respond
The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Latta. I am a very patient individual.

The Chairman. This'will be taken out of your time. Mr. Latta.

]Mr. Latta. I know that.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. I just wanted to say to the Congressman that I recognize

that the analogy to the grand jury is not perfect for the reasons tliat

you have pointed out. But. T think there are two things that I would
like to respectfully call the Congressman's attention to.

No. 1 is that we are at the investigative stage of the proceeding,

and hi the investigation of the proceeding and the development of the

facts for consideration, I know of no situation where counsel is per-
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initted to be present during the questioning of witnesses preliminary

to presentation to the committee or to the grand jury.

The second thing is that there is a search for the truth here, but the

question is that this committee is to decide whether or not there is

reasonable cause for the proceedings to go forward.
Mr. ]\Iaraziti. I certainly agree with your observation that you

should have, and I would say, the sole right of investigation, which you
can do by talking to the witnesses. But, when you have rule Xo. 11

here which anticipates evidence, testimony under oath, then that may
be taken by this committee as evidence and there is where the danger
is.

INIr. Latta. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chair]vian. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Let me say that being the least senior member on the

seniority totem pole and because we are getting close to 12 o'clock,

and I have to handle a couple of rules after 12 o'clock, that I had a

beautiful speech made up here, but I think most of the questions I

would have brought up in my speech have already been answered. But,

I do have a couple of things that I would like to note.

I noticed in the press the other evening or, so they report, that the

Democratic majority has already met with counsel and decided this

matter, but here we have spent an hour and a half on this. And I hope
this is not true. I hope this is not true, that this has already been de-

cided out of hand because I am a political realist. I know at any time

when any partisan isssue comes up you want to outvote the minority,

and can do it, and we do not want this to get into a minority and
majority matter. And I like to read these accounts that we are not

going to be partisan in this matter, because it is too imporant to the

American people and too important to the system of government that

we are blessed to have in this country of ours. I think these things are

extant, and I think the American people will certainly wonder why the

President's counsel was not given the opportunity to cross-examine

witnesses. We are lawyers around this table, and as has so aptly been

stated by so many, we know that to cross-examine in cases that we have

had in court, on cross-examination we learn from our own witnesses

things that they did not tell us for reasons of their own. And the

American people are going to be asking why. They do not give a hoot

about the precedence of this case, or the lack of precedence, they want
things upon this table and aboveboard. Tliey want it all out. We have

had too many coverups, as this gentleman from Iowa has pointed out.

They do not want any more coverups. They are fed up. I am fed up.

And I say to this committee, we have a responsibility to come out with

it and come out with it now, and I do not think that we need any
memorandum, whether it is majority or minoritv. The American
people want the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, and

I think that is our obligation and the sooner we get to the task the

better off we are going to be. And that is my speech and I will yield.

The Chairman. Thank you, Mr. Latta, and the gentleman has no
further time left.

Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thoknton. Thank vou, Mr. Chairman, for yielding.
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I would like to first comment briefly on a point just alluded to by
our distinguished counsel, Mr. Doar. My own experience in the prepa-
ration of lawsuits is that it goes through several stages. First iS a
preliminary investigation, then perhaps a presentation to a grand
jury and, finally, if need be, a trial before a petty jury.

I think you have correctly characterized the state in which we now
find ourselves at as being a preliminary investigative stage in which
our own staff is sifting and screening information, and determining
which of that information should be presented and in what form to

this committee at a later time. It seems to me most unwise, premature,
and improper to allow outside counsel to participate in this screening

or developing of material in its investigative stage for later presenta-

tion to the committee.
Uo you have any comment on that ?

Mr, Doar. That would be my professional opinion.

Mr. Wiggins. I would like to question that professional opinion

if somebody will yield to me.
Mr. Thornton. If I may continue for just a moment. It seems to me

that there is a question, a basic question of fairness, which all of the

members of this committee are interested in and have demonstrated,

and I was impressed by my colleague, Mr. Maraziti, for his suggestion

that maybe a direct comparison to a grand jury is not always appro-

priate. Certainly there are differences. We are proceeding in public.

We are discharging the constitutional duty that is nearly unique in

the history of our Nation. But, not long ago we also discharged a con-

stitutional duty imposed on us by the 25th amendment and I cannot

help but draw some similarities between the role in which we now find

ourselves as determining, as representatives of the people, whether
charges should be presented to the Senate for trial, and our duty in

that hearing of reviewing for the first time in the history of the Nation
whetlier any man should liecome Vice President without a vote of the

people. And, as I draw that comparison in my own mind, I cannot help

l3ut reflect upon the fairness, demeanor of this comimttee as it ap-

proached that proceeding and also upon another important factor, that

in our search for truth, the now Vice President of the TTnited States

did not bring his lawyer to the committee, but his life as an open book.

And I would like to suggest that if we are to get the truth on this

important question, the thing for the President to do is to send to this

•committee the records and the facts and not his lawyer.

Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Hoi.TZMAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for vielding.

T want to go back to some matters that the President referred to

in his press conference and T would appreciate counsel clarifying the

record for me.
Is it not true that on February 2.5 we requested of the President,

through his counsel, six items of material which we have still not

received.

Mr. Doar. That is true.

Ms. Holtzman. And I understood that the President took the Posi-

tion in hi=! press eonference that this reouest was somehow outside of

the Constitution. Is it not a fact. ]SIr. Doar, that these six items relate

to the allegations of the Waterirate ooveru'^ ?
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Mr. DoAR. The six items do relate to the matter of the "Watergate

coverup.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. And is it not true, Mr. Doar, that no matter how
3'ou define impeachal^ie offenses, if the President was found to be par-

ticipating in the Watergate coverup, that would be an impeachable

offense by any standard of definition of high crimes and misde-

meanors ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, that would be the judgment of the committee to

make. The extent to which I as your lawyer could go, I think, would
be to say that as a legal matter that such a judgment could be made
on those facts.

Ms. HoLTzMAN. Has anybody ever suggested the contrary with
respect to whether or not participation in the Watergate coverup

would not be a high crime or misdemeanor ?

Mr. Doar. I do not know of anybody suggesting to the contrary.

Ms. Holtzman. I understood that the President also stated that

giving us this material would delay this investigation. Is it not a

fact that this investigation would be delayed by our having to wait

as long as we have had to wait, and we will have to wait in the future

to get this material ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. I think if we received the material promptly it

would expedite the investigation.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. The President also stated in his press conference

that we do not need this material, that we would have sufficient

evidence otherwise, both from Judge Sirica and from the materials

he has already turned over to us to make an ample judgment. Is it the

opinion of counsel that, in fact, this material we have requested is

necessary to a full and thorough determination of the facts?

Mr. DoAR. It is my judgment it is.

Mr. Jenner. And I would wish to join in that.

Ms. HoLTz:^rA^^ Well. I think it is important to clarify these issues.

Xow, has Mr. St. Clair stated to you that these materials in our
request exceed our constitutional right ?

Mr. DoAR. No, he has not.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Has he suggested that we do not need these ma-
terials because they are not in any way necessary to the scope of our

investigation ?

Mr. DoAR. He has suggested we might not need them.

Ms. HoLTZMAx. Has he suggested that giving this material to us

would delay the committee's investigation ?

Mr. Doar. No, he has not.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Would you please advise me what ])osition ISIr. St.

Clair has taken insofar as refusing to give us the materials we have

asked for since February 25 ?

Mr. DoAR. Mr. St. Clair has taken basically two positions: No. 1.

that the decision whether or not to give this material to the committee
is to be made by the President of the United States, and that he has

no authority to make that decision.

No. 2, is that to the extent that the committee counsel, Mr. Jenner
and I, can be as si:)ecific as we can with respect to the particular items

we want, it would be helpful to him.
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Rut uow that that particularization has been made,

his own reason for not complying with this request is that the Presi-
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dent lias to make a decision on this. Have we been advised when the
President will make a decision on this ?

Mr. DoAR. No, we have not.

There is a third matter that we were discussing that I mentioned
before, Ms. Holtzman, and that is that Mr. St. Clair has raised that
we have discussed the problem of the authentication of the particular
segment of the tapes that we asked for.

Ms. Holtzman. Well, I would hope that this matter could be
clarified as soon as possible.

The Chairman. The gentlelady's time has expired.
Mr. Owens,
Mr. Owens. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, I, for one, do not think that that section of the letter

which has become the most controversial, whereby we requested to

know the files of the White House, of those four counsel to the

President, Mr. Haldeman, Mr. Ehrlichman, Mr. Dean, and Mr. Colson,

to know how their files are indexed so as to develop some kind of a

system whereby we can find out what evidence is in those files which
l^ertains to Watergate is improper or was incorrect to have in that

letter. Obviously, we have got to get into those files. As I understand
it, am I correct in my understanding that neither the Watergate grand
jury nor the Ervin committee or anyone else has had access to any-
thing from those four files ?

Mr. Doar. That is my understanding.
]\Ir. Owens. It is not the opinion of counsel that we cannot get

to the bottom of the President's involvement in these matters without
knowing, without materials from those files, presumably?
Mr. Doar. Well, I would not want to make that statement, no, be-

cause I do not know what is in the files, and so that it was for that

purpose that we suggested to Mr. St. Clair that if there was an index
to the files that then we could identify and pinpoint matters that

clearly might be necessary to the inquiry and matters that clearly

were outside of the scope of the inquiry.

Mr. Owens. And that is Mr. .Tenner's opinion, too, as I understand?
Mr. Jenner. That is correct, sir.

Mr. Oavens. Well, I share Mr. Edwards' concern that we not be
polarized on this key question of whether the President ought to be

represented at every stage of the discovery process in this matter. But,

it seems to me that we have got to avoid, if we really want the com-
mittee to expedite these hearings, we have got to avoid having to try

this matter, not just twice but three times. If we go to the concept that

^Ir. St. Clair has a right to be present at every single discovery process,

to introduce his own witnesses, to cross-examine, we will be trying

it n third time in the press, as well as in the public eye. and T am
one who believes that we ought to conduct the whole thing pretty

much in the public eve. just ns much as possible. But, I am concerned

about the extraordinary delays and about the loss, basically, of

national patience if we go through this three times in an adversary

way.
After all, if we accept the grand jury analogy at all, and I think

most of us on the committee do to some extent, we are reallv builrlincr

evidence of probable cause. We are not, as a Judiciary Committee,

eoing to sav the President is guiltv and ousrht to be removed from office.
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We will draw conclusions that the evidence is so substantial that we
ought to put him on trial and, therefore, it seems to me that this is

simply an investigation. And, as everybody knows who has been

involved in an investigation, that is not a trial, and I think we ought

to avoid that polarization in this committee. And we ought to be

extremely concerned about how much of a delay factor this is going

to have in the collection of evidence, if we make it an adversary

proceeding. And I just want to commend counsel, both of them, for

their position and their attitudes.

But, I am, on the other hand, very concerned that this be conducted

in the public eye and I look forward to this brief which counsel has

promised, and I, contrary to what others have suggested, I hope that

counsel will give us their advice, they will not make the decision on
it, but they ought to give us their best professional advice as to whether

under the circumstances this would be wise, under the precedent.

The Chairman. Before we go to the floor to respond to the quorum,
I know the gentleman from Missouri was seeking recognition, but out

of courtesy to the junior member he consented to defer until now.

So, I recognize the gentleman from Missouri.

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, I could not improve on silence at

this time.

Thank you.

The Chairman. This will conclude today's briefing and the Chair

will defer announcing whether we have a meeting or a briefing until

later on tomorrow.
[Whereupon, at 12 :07 p.m., the briefing was concluded.]
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The committee met, pui-suant to notice, at 10 :25 a.m., in room 2141,

Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr.
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Kastemneier, Edwards, Hungate, Eilberg, Flowers, Mann, Sarbanes,

Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Rangel, Jordan. Thornton, Holtzman,
Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, McClory, Smith, Railsback, Wiggins,

Deimis, Fish, INIayne, Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froehlich, Moorhead.
Maraziti, and Latta.

Impeachment inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Albert E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority ; Samuel Garrison

III, deputy minority counsel ; Joseph A. Woods, Jr., senior associate

special counsel ; and Hillary D. Rodham, counsel.

Committee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general counsel ; Gar-
ner J. Cline, associate general counsel; and Franklin G. Polk, asso-

ciate counsel.

The Chairman. The committee will come to order.

As the members recognize, this is a briefing session for all members
of the. committee with respect to the impeachment inquiry, and it is

not a business meeting, and the Chair will first read a statement.

It has been 2 months since the House of Representatives by an
overwhelming and historic vote autliorized and directed this commit-
tee to investigate whether grounds exist to impeach Richard M. Nixon,
President of the United States.

It is a serious matter for our people and our whole constitutional

system. We have gone forward in lull awareness of its importance
and its seriousness.

We have gone forward assuming good faith and cooperation. As
regards the President himself, we have been respectfully patient. The
courts were patient. The House has been patient. The people have been
patient for a long, long time.

The i^atience of this committee is now wearing thin. We have a con-

stitutional responsibility in this inquiry. "When we made our request,

we made it not out of curiosity, not because we were prosecutors, but
because it is our responsibility. We have tried to pursue it in a spirit

of accommodation with this President.

(249)
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Yet there comes a time when patience and accommodation can begin
to undermine the process in which we are engaged. February 25, the

committee made a specific request to the counsel of the President for

specific evidence of specific facts of specific relevance to our inquiry.

That request so far has not been honored.
"VVe believe strongly that the impeachment inquiry is not an ad-

versary proceeding, nor, contrary to the express provision of the Con-
stitution, a trinl either in this committee or in the House itself.

The Constitution confers the power to remove a President from
office in two parallel clauses. The House has "the sole power of im-
peachment," and the Senate "the sole power to try all impeachments."
The House conducts an impeachment inquiry through one of its com-
mittees and initiates the proceedings through majority vote to impeach
(bring charges against) the President. The Senate hears evidence and
legal arguments presented to it by House managers and by counsel

for the President in a trial and votes upon the articles of impeachment
brought by the House. Conviction requires a two-thirds vote of the

Senate.

The committee has instituted its staff to develop the evidentiary

data, which it is now doing. The com.mittee has made no charges

—

it is inquiring for the purpose of deciding whether or not charges
will be brought against the President of the United States. That will

depend on the committee's judgment and decision only after a full

consideration of the evidentiary material presented to the committee.
However, in order that we not deviate from our pursuit of the facts,

and so that we are not entangled in a web of procedural questions,

we instructed our special counsel to prepare a staff memo-^without
conclusions—on the subject of procedures, with a view toward arriv-

ing at some accommodation as to the question of the President's

counsel's participation in this inquiry. It wouldd appear that at a
subsequent meeting—when the staff memo on this subject and Mr. St.

Clair's memo, which has been distributed have been carefully ex-

amined, we can reach a resolution as to the question of procedure dur-
ing the evidentiary presentation. I am certain our committee members
would want to have the views of counsel on this subject.

However, we are going forward. We have asked for evidence. We
have been asked to be more specific with, respect to the matters to

which the 6 items relate-—the 41 recorded conversations, and. so as to

avoid any possible basis for misunderstanding, we have instructed our
counsel to send to Mr. St. Clair another letter setting forth specifically

why the committee has the responsibility to examine the particular
eonvereations.

We shall not be thwarted by inappropriate legalisms or by narrow
obstacles to our inquiry.

We have waited patiently to get the recorded conversations. We
can subpena them if we must. Whether the evidence is inculpatory or
exculpatory, we will scrutinize it fairly.

In the meantime we will proceed, as we have been proceeding, with
other aspects of our inquiry and hope that out of respect for our
institutions, out of respect for the integrity of this process, out of
respect for our institutions, and out of respect for the integrity the

American people have a right to expect from the elected officials of
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their Government, some of our spirit of accommodation will be recip-

rocated by the White House and our President.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. McClory, Mr. Chairman, would the chairman yield for a com-
ment on your statement ?

The Chairman. Before I yield for any comments, I am going to

ask Mr. Hutchinson if he would like to comment. And following that,

I am going to ask Mr. Doar to read the letter and then I am going
to make some other announcements, and then we may comment.

Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, this committee has displayed an
extreme amount of patience, and I think that we continue to be
patient. But we do think that this matter can be disposed of more
expeditiously. Of course, if there will be turned over to this com-
mittee such documentary and other evidence as is relevant to our
inquiry, it seems to me that counsel, our counsel, and counsel at the

White House, all being most able lawyers, should be able to, by dis-

cussion, clearly understand what it is that is necessary. And I cannot

understand why there should at this late date still be any doubt in

anybody's mind as to what it is we are after. We are not after irrele-

vant material, we are not after a state secret. We simply are after the

information that is going to bring this matter to a conclusion.

And I say to you, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your statement. I agree

that we have been patient. I think we should continue to be patient

because I do not think confrontation will settle anything.

I would say, Mr. Chairman, that I hope that you can set a business

meeting of this committee before the commencement of the recess

for the reason that there are some matters that this committee as

a whole should decide and I implore you to have a meeting, a business

meeting, next week on these matters so that the committee can express

itself.

Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. I am recognizing Mr. Doar for the purpose of read-

ing the letter which is going forth to IVIr. St. Clair.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, may I just supplement that?

The Chairman. I have recognized Mr. Hutchinson and we will not

go beyond that. We will get into a discussion after Mr. Doar has read

the letter that is going to Mr. St. Clair.

Mr. Doar. ]\Ir. Chairman and members of the committee, on Monday
afternoon, Mr. Jenner and I met with Mr. St. Clair and in the course

of that discussion, he asked if we would send him a letter, being more
specific with respect to what the 6 items, the so-called 41 recorded

conversations related to. And we said we would do that, and we have
prepared this letter which I would now read to the committee.

Dear Mr. St. Clair :

In response to your request at our meeting of April 2, which you and Mr. Biiz-

hardt, Mr. Jenner and I herewith supplement the specific basis for obtaining

the items of information therein set forth in our letter of February 25, 1974.

Those items were as follows :

1. Certain conversations between the President and Mr. Haldeman and/or
Mr. Ehrlichman, or Mr. Dean, in February, March and April 1973, as follows

:

(a) Conversations between the President and Mr. Haldeman on or about
February 20. 1973, that concern the possible appointment of Mr. Magruder to

a Government position.
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(b) Conversations between the President, Mr, Haldeman, and Mr. Ehrlichman
on or about February 27, 1973, that concern the assignment of Mr. Dean to work
directly with the President on Watergate and Watergate-related matters.

(c) Conversations between the President and Mr. Dean on March 17, 1973,
1 :25 to 2 :15 p.m., and on March 20, 1973, from 7 :29 to 7 :43 p.m.

(d) Conversations between the President and Mr. Ehrlichman on March 27,
1973, from 11:10 a.m., to 1:30 p.m., and on March 30, 1973, from 12:02 to

12 :18 p.m., and
(e) All conversations between the President and Mr. Haldeman and the Pres-

ident and Mr. Ehrlichman during the period April 14 throiigh 17, 1973, inclusive.

This request includes in each instance all tapes, dicta-belts or other electronic
recordings, transcripts, memorandum, notes or other writings or things relating
to the particular conversations referred to.

Before sending you our letter of February 25, Mr. Jenner and I reviewed our
request with Chairman Rodino and ranking minority member, Mr. Hutchinson,
and it was sent with their specific approval. After the request was bent, we
have on numerous occasions reviewed with the entire committee the basis
for the request and have been directed by tliem to pursue our discussions with
you in the hope that the House Committee on the Judiciary could secure these
recorded conversations and related materials reasonably promptly without the
assurance of a subpena.
In view of the matters already of public record in the possession of the

committee about the events of February, March, and April 1973, respecting
the investigation of the Watergate break-in and related matters, the Judiciary
Committee concluded that it has a Constitutional responsibility to examine these
particular conversations to determine :

1. Whether any of the conversations in any way bear upon the knowledge or

lack of knowledge or action or inaction by the President, and/or any of his

senior administrative officials with respect to the investigation of the Watergate
break-in by the Department of Justice, the Senate select committee, or any other
legislative, judicial, executive, or administrative body, including members of the
White House staff.

2. Whether any of the conversations in any way bear upon the President's
knowledge, or lack of knowledge of, or participation in, or lack of participation

in, the acts of obstruction of justice and conspiracy to obstruct justice charged
or otherwise referred to in the indictments returned on March 1 in the District

Court for the District of Columbia in the case of United States v. Haldeman.
3. Whether any of the conversations in any way bear upon the President's

knowledge or lack of knowledge of, or participation or lack of participation in
the acts charged or otherwise referred to in the information or indictments
returned in United States v. Magruder, United States v. Dean, United States v.

Chapin, and United States v. Ehrlichman in the District Court for the District

of Colimibia, or other acts which may constitute illegal activities.

The committee believes that it has the Constitutional authority and duty to

make the determination of the relevancy of these conversations and that it

must do so under House Resolution 803, a copy of which we have heretofore
furnished yoii. Of course, if any of the conversations requested in our letter of
February 25, concern a subject entirely unrelated to the matters that I have
outlined, the committee would have no interest therein. In the final analysis,

however, the committee itself would have to make that determination. I am
sure it would give careful initial consideration to your response in making its

determination as to a particular conversation which you might believe to be
totally unrelated to the matters that I have outlined.

The committee is under considerable pressure to proceed expeditiously with its

inquiry. We have now had the opportunity to work with recorded conversa-
tions, and we appreciate the time required to prepare such a conversation for

presentation to the committee. We, therefore, request a reply by Tuesday,
April 9, at the latest, with respect to whether or not the conversations referred
to in our letter of February 25, will be delivered to the committee.

Sincerely,
John Doar, Special Counsel.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar, this letter is being sent this morning?
Mr. Doar. Yes, it is.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar, will you now, in accordance with the

pui'poses for which this briefing session was called, will you now
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make a presentation of the memorandum ^Yhich we instructed you to

prepare, regarding the rules of procedure concerning the requests

made by the President's counsel, for participation in this inquiry?

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. For what purpose does the

Mr. Wiggins. I seek recognition for the purpose of asking counsel

questions about the letter which he just read.

The Chairman. If we are now going to get into some other matters,

the letter is being sent out. Mr. Hutchinson and I already agreed that

the letter would be sent, and the letter is being sent. I would hope
that we get on with the purposes of today's briefing and that is the
presentation of the staff memorandum on the question of rules of
procedure.
Mr. Wiggins. Well, I request to ask questions. The Chair can rule

against that request.

The Chairman. The Chair will recognize the gentleman for that

purpose later on.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, meanwhile can we have copies of the
letter?

The Chairman. The letters are not available for the members at this

time, but the letters can be made available to the members. The letter

was finalized in the final draft which was prepared only after Mr.
Hutcliinson had had an opportunity to finally review it early this

morning.
Mr. LoTT. Mr. Chairman, are copies of the memorandum available

to the members ?

The Chairman. Copies of the memorandum of the staff have been
distributed to your office early this morning, together with the
memorandum which was presented to this committee for distribution

to the members by Mr. St. Clair. Those were distributed to your office

and I am sure if you check wdth your offices, you will find that the
memoranda are there.

Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman, I am holding in my hand the letter

sent February 25, and one item which was requested February 25
was left out of the letter that Mr. Doar read this morning. I was
wondering if there is any reason for that. It was "all conversations
between the President, Mr. Kleindienst and the President and Mr.
Petersen during the period April 15 to April 18.

Mr. DoAR. Excuse me, Ms. Jordan, I did leave that out inadvertently
from the letter as read. That was included in the letter as sent.

Ms. Jordan. Thank you.
The Chairman. Well, I would recognize, having recognized Ms.

Jordan, now I will recognize Mr. Wiggins who wanted to comment on
the letter so that we will continue our spirit of impartiality.
Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Doar, it would really, truly, be helpful if I had

a copy of the letter, but on the basis of some notes, I have some ques-
tions and perhaps you can help me resolve those questions.

If a tape recording in the possession of the Wliite House contains
conversations which are relevant to this specific request, and conversa-
tions which may be irrelevant to that request, does the President have
the right, pursuant to your letter, to excise those portions of the tape
whicli are irrelevant ?

41-OlS—75^pt. 1 17
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Mr. DoAR. Well, yes, he does. He does, when you say, have the right,

in the initial instance. I think the committee in the last analysis has

to make the determination if they got the portion of the tape that they

considered to be relevant.

]\Ir. Wiggins. Well, I am riOt precisely clear then. Do I understand

that your request is for full tapes, covering a certain period of time,

and all conversations thereon, accepting the probability that some of

those conversations will be on extraneous subjects ?

]\Ir. DoAR. No. Our rec^uest is for conversations relating to the

specific matters that we have set out in our letter.

]Mr. Wiggins. All light. Then the answer to my question is that if a

tape recording contains a conversation on an extraneous subject, the

President's counsel would have the right to excise that portion of the

tape in responding to your request ?

Mr. DoAR. He would have the right initially, yes. And if he sent it

to us and said, I am sending you all of the material, the committee
would consider it, but I think the final judgment would have to remain
with this committee.

]Mr. Wiggins. All right. Now in the exercise of that final judgment,

if the committee determines the irrelevance of a specific conversation,

and by the committee I presume that at this juncture we are talking

about the staff making an initial determination of irrelevance of a

given conversation, what is the dispostion of that irrelevant data ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, the disposition of any data that has been received

by the staff would be that it w^ould remain in the staff files under the

rules of confidentiality.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, do I have your assurance that there will be no
reference to irrelevant data in any report filed to this committee con-

cerning the evidence in this case ?

Mr. DoAR. You most certainly do.

The Chairman. Let us proceed to the presentation of the memo-
randum concerning the rules of procedure. And I am advised, also, the

Chair will state, that the Chair recognizes that there is before each
member a memorandum, the minority memo which has been prepared,

which is a memorandum with conclusions concerning rules of proce-

dure and concerning the request which was made by Mr. St. Clair for

participation, which contrary to the spirit of the memorandum that

we had instructed staff to develop, is a memorandum with conclusions.

And the Chair wants to state that this is the first time, or early this

morning, that we were aware that such a position had been taken.

]Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, could I ask one question on the sub-

ject of tliG letter ?

Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. McClory. Well, Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that you are

discriminating insofar as

The Chairman. The Chair merely—the Chair has recognized one
member from the majority side and one member on the minority side.

INIr. McClory. I asked recognition at an earlier point, and I have
one question with regard to the letter, Mr. Chairman.

Tlie Chairman. The gentleman will please adhere to the rules and
and the Chair is requesting Mr. Doar to proceed.
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Ah\ McClory. Mr. Chairman, it seems to me you are making the

rules as you go along here and that is one of the things

The Chairman. I think that the committee has decided that the

Chair directs this meeting, and this meeting has been called for that

purpose. So, I think rather than get into any wrangling about whether

or not the Chair has or has not developed rules, why let us go on.

]\Ir. Doar.
]Mr. DoAR. Members of the committee

:

Late last week we received from Mr. St. Clair a memorandum
entitled "In support of the President's request for the right to liave

the President's counsel participate in the impeachment proceedings

conducted by the Committee on the Judiciary of the U.S. House of

Iiopresentatives."'

The chairman instructed me to distribute this to the committee at

the time that the memorandiun, which the staff was preparing, which

was entitled, "Presentation Procedures for the Impeachment Inquiry."

I apologize to the members of the committee for the late date on which

these two memoranda were furnished to the committee. I assure you
that this wiU not happen again. I hope by now that each member has

a copy of these two documents.
And in my initial presentation, I would like to turn to page 11 of

the memorandum presented by the inquiry staff where the procedures

are summarized with respect to the precedence and I would like to

read those, if I may, to the committee.

1. There has been a definite trend, especially in this century, towards per-

mitting participation by the official under investigation, particularly in those in-

quiries in which a proponent of impeachment presented an adversary case before

the committee.
2. The issue of participation by the official under investigation has been ad-

dressed by committees as a question of grace, not of right, and committees do
not appear to have felt bound by the procedures followed in previous impeach-
ment inquiries.

3. In a number of inquiries, including several in this century, the official under
investigation was denied some or all of the participatory privileges he sought.

4. No record has been found of any impeachment inquiry in which the official

under investigation participated in the investigation stage preceding commence-
ment of committee hearings.

5. The precise extent and manner of the official's participation generally was
determined when a specific question arose in the course of the hearings, rather
than being decided in advance. And,

6. The extent of participation, especially in terms of the presentation of rebut-

tal evidence and questioning of proponents' witnesses, was supervised and some-
times restricted by the committee.

I would like to also call the committee's attention to the chart that

is attached in the appendix, a table, which, in a tabular form, seeks

fairly and accurately to sot forth what has happened in all prior im-

peachments with respect to participation. I think that the committee
has to use this chart, together with the text of this memorandum to

evaluate precisely the extent of participation in a particular prior

impeachment inquiry.

Finally, I would like to discuss paragraph 5 of the memorandum
starting on page 22, because I think that the committee will want to

know just what the staff proposes, how the staff proposes to proceed

to make its initial presentation in this case. And I say that in connec-

tion with paragraph 5, in keeping with the instructions, we have not
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made any recommendations with respect to what the committee will
or will not do. But, we do, just in order to highlight the points in-

volved, we do have several times where we say the committee may
wish to do this, or the committee may wish to do that, so that we
have alerted the committee to the practical procedural problems in-

volved as we see it.

What we would propose, with the committee's approval, is that we
would present to the committee a proposed statement of fact in para-
graph form of the relevant facts which the staff believes can be estab-
lished to the satisfaction of the committee. Each one of the statements
of fact would be annotated to related evidentiary material, whether
it was grand jury material, whether it was testimony before a court,

before another committee of Congress, or whether it was a document
or documents, or a series of documents, or whether it was a recorded
conversation or whether it was an affidavit. And these annotations to

the paragraph of the proposed "Statement of Facts" would be pre-

sented to the committee in notebook form. Each member of the com-
mittee would have one of these notebooks before them. And then the
counsel for the staff would proceed to go over and review each one of
the paragraphs and the evidentiary material supporting the para-
graphs for the committee. If there was a recorded conversation that
the staff believed the committee would want to hear, or a portion of a
recorded conversation that the staff believed was relevant, then the

staff would ask the committee to listen to that recorded conversation,

and there would be furnished a transcript of the recorded conversation
for each committee member to follow.

The reason for that, members of the committee, is that some of these

recordings are of relatively poor quality, and it is very difficult in

some instances to make out every word in the recording. And, in fact,

there are many times where you cannot make out the words at all, and
where you cannot be certain. We would try to make—there would be no
guessing whatsoever with respect to the transcripts.

Ml". Dennis. Mr. Chairman, may I ask a question on that point for

clarification only ?

The Chairman. "VYliy don't we continue with the presentation and
defer the questions until the counsel has made the presentation. And I
think we will be in a better position then to ask pertinent questions.

Mr. Dennis. Well, it was right on this subject that he was on, was
the only reason I raised it.

Mr. DoAR. After the counsel has reviewed this proposed statement
of facts with the committee, from beginning to end, then the commit-
tee would ask questions, and discuss any questions it had with respect
to the evidentiary matters. And the staff, our counsel for the staff,

would indicate what additional witnesses—the committee—might
want to call, and the reason why the committee would want to call

them, and the subjects covered by the oral testimony. The committee
itself might decide that it wanted to call witnesses before it, with re-

spect to one or more of the proposed "Statements of Fact." Tlie com-
mittee might decide that it wanted to inquire into a matter or matters
that were not covered in this initial presentation and would direct the
staff to proceed to prepare material on that subject.

Now, Avithin that framework, members of the committee, the com-
mittee will have to decide the question of participation by counsel
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for the President, Mr. St. Clair. We have indicated that we have con-

chided that the taking of depositions are not an eifectiye, efficient way
to prepare for this, and we have conchidod that we will not take any
depositions. Of course, we would not take any depositions until the

matter of the procedures for taking depositions were resolved any-

Avav, and we have taken no depositions.

Now, within that framework, the committee has two matters to

determine. One is to what extent should three matters, to what extent

should the President's counsel be afforded the proposed "Statement of

Facts;" two, to what extent should the President's counsel be afforded

access to the committee's annotation to the "Statement of Facts;" and,

three, to what extent should the counsel for the President be afforded

tlie opportunity to question any witnesses that we called or to call ad-

ditional witnesses in the President's behalf.

And we have made suggestions, and only suggestions, to the com-
mittee in paragraph 5 to summarize those three matters that the com-
mittee would want to consider, reflect upon and decide.

Now that. Mr. Chairman, concludes my presentation. Perhaps Mr.
Jenner would like to add something to that.

The Chairman. Mr. Jenner.
Mr. Jenner. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ladies and gentlemen of the committee, I have participated in the

drafting of the memorandum which Mr. Doar has now reported to

you, thinking that that was the request and direction of the committee
given to us at the last meeting.

It does appear that in this present century and perhaps I think
fairly stated 100 years, that there has been gi-adually growing a

greater and greater partici]^ation on the part of a respondent's coun-
sel in impeachment proceedings. The record we have ; and that is the

Libi'arv of Congress, the records of this House, sometimes are some-
what fragmentarv and it is difficult, it has been difficult for us to re-

port with you with great preciseness and fullness the extent of the

participation in particular proceedings.

Now, it was Mr. Doar's and my understanding that we should pre-

pare a staff memorandum that did not contain conclusions, and we
have done our best to do that in attempting to present to you various
possible alternatives for you to decide and not for us to determine. We
have presented the type of proposed presentation for action by this

committee now fully described and reported to you by Mr. Doar and
further elaborated upon in the memorandum itself.

You do have before you, as I understand, on your desk another
memorandum of the minority members of this committee which was
requested to be prepared on behalf of the minority members. And it is

more in the nature of an advocate's memorandum and has been dis-

tributed. That will be one of the considerations and matters which you
will have in mind in undertaking ultimately, not today, but ultimately
to resolve the question of the method of presentation.

INIay I say to you, that as a trial lawyer of many years experience
over the years, it has been my practice in complicated questions, and
ones not so complicated, but ones which would take care in presenta-
tion of proof to prepare a trial book, and the character of the trial

book that I prepare with my paitners and associates in these long
trials and complicated trials is in the nature and character reported to
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you by Mr. Doar and in the written memorandum which you have be-

fore you. That is generally, a trial lawyer has a book in which he has
a leading paragraph of an objective or a group of facts that he
would seek to present to the court and the jury if the case be tried be-

fore a jury. And under that paragraph of facts, statement, there is

listed the names of witnesses with respect to a particular item, docu-
ments and other matters that is, in the opinion of counsel, trying the

lawsuit or defending it, either plaintiff's side or defense side, civil and
criminal, that is the proof that he thinks he has. Before the trial begins
that is all reviewed, and sometimes we excise what we have stated in

itemization under our lead paragraphs and sometimes we add to it,

and as the trial goes along, of course, and many of you are trial law-
yers and realize that the case runs from day to day. And the procedure
presented to you is one that Mr. Doar and I consulted on for a good
many days, and drew, at least I drew, upon my trial experience in the
presentation in this memorandum.
The Chairman. It is contemplated within the spirit of the document

that you have presented that counsel for the President would be given
the opportunity to participate at that stage when the evidentiary

material is being presented ?

jMr. Doar. It is contemplated that the counsel for the President
would be given a copy of the proposed "Statement of Facts" at the

same time that the committee is given it. And the question of whether
and in what way counsel for the President would be permitted to re-

view the annotations with the evidentiary material which support the

proposed "Statement of Facts," the committee would have to consider,

depending upon taking into mind some of the rules of confidentiality,

and its pledge of responsibility with respect to this material, and at

the same time, taking in mind that if the President's counsel, if he
were to participate he would be permitted to review that material in

some fashion, so he knows the basis upon which the proposed "State-
ment of Facts" is made.
The Chairman. IVIay I ask another question with relation to partici-

pation?
Has it been the practice in any investigatory proceeding or prelimi-

nary proceedings to generally, without regard to the specific instances,

give full participation to the counsel of the respondent, or, in this case,

of course, where there is no adversary, to counsel of the President ?

Mr. Doar. No, it has not.

The Chairman. It has been, as I understand it, from the memoran-
dum on an ad hoc basis ?

Mr. Doar. That is right.

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
INIr. McClory. Well, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Initially, I wanted to commend you, Mr. Chairman, on your state-

ment this morning.
The Chairman. Thank you very much.
Mr. McClory. And your determination to see that the committee

gets the material that we have requested, and also your suggestion
that we should take some action at a meeting.
Now, I think my principal comment is that we must and should have

a meeting of this committee. At an early stage, I suggested that this
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inquiry should be conducted by the committee and it seems to me the

only way the committee can do it is for the committee to meet, and for

the committee to direct the action to be taken. These briefing sessions

are very important but if there is no opportunity for taking action

at the session, why I think they are quite inappropriate in the fulfilling

of our function.

I would like to comment with regard to the report given to us here

this morning, with regard to the procedures and state very emphati-

cally that in my oi:>inion, before we get this trial book, before we get

the evidence laid out in the form of citations and so on, that we should

adopt our rules of procedure. The suggestion made in this memoran-
dum in the second paragraph on page 22, where the staff suggests that

the committee defer adoption of procedures, seems to me to be putting

the cart before the horse. We should adopt the procedures and then go
forward with the presentation of this case.

Now, it seems to me that in order for the representative of the

President to be effective and to fairly represent the President's inter-

ests before this committee, it is extremely important that he be present

at the time this initial presentation is made. If w^e wait until we go
all the way down this road, as Mr. Doar suggests here this morning,
that the committee complete its presentation, or the presentation of the

so-called facts from beginning to end, and then decide w^hat we are

going to do with respect to testimony, with respect to the presence of
the President's counsel, it seems to me that the committee would not
be proceeding in accordance with what I would regard as the prece-

dence, and with regard to the question of fairness insofar as the

President and his counsel are concerned.
Now, ^Ir. Chairman, it seems to me that both with respect to resolv-

ing this question of what action we must take with regard to these 41
tapes, these requests that we have made to the White House, whether
we are going to recommend the issuance of subpenas, or what action
we are going to take w^ith respect to them ; and, also, with regard to the
adoption of procedures, we should have a meeting early next week
before we go on recess so that when we return, before starting to lay
out the case, and deferring the adoption of procedures, we should
adopt the procedures before we go, and then wdien we come back from
the recess, we will be in a position to have the case laid out in accord-
ance with the procedure that we have then adopted. Otherwise, it seems
to me we are heading for a chaotic and very confused and very awk-
ward and unwieldly situation which would be most unfortunate.
And so, Mr. Chairman, first of all, I request that you send out notices

for a meeting, covering at least these two subjects, or I would prefer
to say Tuesday of next week. And I do make that request most em-
l^hatically, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Eailsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. I believe that Mr. Doar wanted to comment on a
statement made by Mr. McClory.
Mr. Doar. Mr. McClory, I am afraid that I did not make myself

clear with respect to the adoption of rules, with respect to the pro-
posed "Statement of Facts," and the opportunity to examine the an-
notations or the factual support for the "Stateinent of Facts." I in-
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tended to suggest that the committee could decide to make that avail-

able, might want to decide to make that available immediately to Mr.
St. Clair. So that there was no question about waiting until after the
whole presentation before you decided that Mr. St. Clair would have
notice and an opportunity to review, so that he could present his views
to the committee.
Mr. McClory. Well, INIr. Doar, as I understand the presentation, the

trial book that will be presented with the evidence, or with the citation

in support of the various charges will be made here before the full

committee, and will be made by you and Mr. Jenner. And I would
suggest that, at that time, Mr. St. Clair should have the opportunity
to be present, and either to make comments with regard to the matter
that is being presented, to object to it, or to make some statement
with regard to other material, which he feels is omitted, so that we get
the whole case initially and not get it at some later stage.

And, now, if you agree with that then I do not have any complaint
about the procedures.
Mr. DoAR. Well, in only one way do I disagree respectfully with that,

and that is that I think Mr. St. Clair should have an opportunity to

examine it. I think the question of whether he should be liere during
the meeting depends upon the question of the rules of confidentiality.

But, I think that we ought to go through the material without com-
ment, and discussion, and wait until the end for him to then comment
on the material.

Mr. INIcClgry. Well, may I ask this

:

Insofar as the rules of confidentiality are concerned, the committee
is bound, too, so in order for the committee to receive this documented
material, it would have to—the rule of confidentiality would have to be
expanded and it should be expanded to include counsel for the Presi-

dent.

Mr. DoAR. Well, the committee might well conclude when it hears
this evidence and the evidentiary material, to be in executive sessions

and, of course, the committee at that time would hear this material,

whether it is grand jury, some of it, and some of it is recorded con-

versations. And all I suggested is that if you are expanding that, you
have got one person, additional person, besides the committee and the

staff that knows what this material is.

]Mr. McClory. Well, do I understand then that except with regard
to grand jury material, or except with regard to material which is

bound by the rule of confidentiality, that ]\Ir. St. Clair will be present

and will have the opportunity to comment ?

Mr. Sabranes. Will the gentleman yield ?

This is a decision for the committee to make.
Mr. McClory. As soon as I have the answer.
Mr. Sarbanes. That is not a question for counsel to answer. Counsel

has suggested certain alternatives.

I\Ir. McClory. I am asking his recommendation.
Mr. Doar. It is my—the suggestion that we make in the brief, and

only a suggestion, would be that some wav be made so that Mr. St.

Clair could review all of that material, all of it, including the grand
jury material, subject to him agreeing to be bound by the rules of con-

fidentialitv. But, that with respect to commenting on the material,

that that be delayed until we have completed our initial presentation.
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And that is the orderly way it is done in every kind of a proceeding I
have ever been part of.

Mr. McClory. He would not be present ?

Mr. DoAE. Whether he would be present or not would be the decision

for the committee.
Mr. McClory. Could I ask
^Mr. Sarbanes. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired. I recognize Mr.
Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, thank you for recognizing me.
The Chairman. I have given the gentleman more than 5 minutes.
Mr. McClory. Four and one-half minutes.
The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I want to say, first, I appreciate counsel,

both counsel, both Republican counsel, for their very splendid memo
which we had a chance to read this morning. I want to say that we have
three memos apparently on my desk, one for Mr. St. Clair, allegedly a

Republican; one for myself, and another from the minority. And I
hope that we can study those as soon as possible.

I feel certain that this committee will be fair. I know that I want to

be. I would say that to add to the interest in procedural matters, I
would like to put an excerpt from Representative Gerald Ford, late

Representative, and now Vice President, to Chairman Cellar, former
chairman of this committee, concerning the President's respondent's,

counsel during committee investigations or the proposed impeachment
of Justice Douglas. And he said in that letter

:

The adversary proceeding of a formal impeachment trial by the Senate clearly

permits the accused and/or his counsel to be advised of the charges against him.
When such charges are still imformulated and unappraised by the whole House
or even by the full committee on the Judiciary, no such right exists. Counsel
for the accused does not sit in the Grand Jury room. If any such procedure is

being pursued by the Special Subcommittee, or clandestinely by the staff, the
result can only be a sweeping whitewash of every allegation as it appears.

I would say that on procedural matters, that would be an interesting

comment for him.
I want to say that I do not want to follow this procedural rabbit

trail, and obscure the failure of the President and Mr. St. Clair to fur-

nish this committee the evidence we have timely and graciously re-

quested. We have requested it, we have asked for it, we have talked.

We have talked, we have written them letters, letters. There is nothing
difficult about it. And I think that the technique of obscuring the real

basic need of the committee ; that is, to acquire the evidence for a com-
plete evaluation, is the main, principal matter that we ought to be con-
cerned with.

And I will just say in conclusion that we have worked with those
l^eople for 40 days and 40 nights trying to get some material that they
have, and understand could produce and send down here in 10 hours.
And I will conclude by saying as I have said all of my life, particu-
larly before I was married, that fun is fun, but you cannot laugh all

night.

The Chairman. Mr. RailslDack.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for yielding
and just say that I share the concerns that have been expressed by
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Congressmen Hutchinson and McClory about business meetings. It is

my understanding that we have had in respect to this impeachment
inquire/, only three business meetings where we can really try to bring
anything to a head. And I thinli that that is unfortunate. I feel very
strongly about that, because I think there are a majoi'ity of the people
on this committee, Democrats and Republicans alike, that would like to

just resolve this business about the right of the President to have
counsel.

In other words, Mr. Doar, I will say to you that in looking at your
memorandum, I find that of the 20tli century impeachment cases, some-
thing like 19 of them, counsel was permitted to be present, and at 17
he Avas permitted to cross-examine, and in two other cases he was in-

vited to cross-examine. And then there were 6 of those total of 29 or
something like that, and I think I am pretty close, where there was a
lack of information as to what procedural rights were extended to him.
What it means to me, it is that the whole tendency has been in the 20th
century to permit the respondent to be present, or to have his counsel
present, and that that counsel has had the right to cross-examine.
And in respect to what my friend from Texas said, let me tell you

what Justice Douglas' lawyer said about this. Justice Douglas' law-
yer said

:

To achieve this goal, these rules have become well-established in proceedings
relating to the impeachment power. (1) Respondent and his counsel may attend
every session at which evidence is taken or of which arguments are addressed
to the subcommittee; (2) Respondent, personally, and through counsel, may
cross-examine all witnesses and call witnesses on his own behalf.

And then he goes on to say that the hearings are judicial in style.

We are getting all kinds of countering arguments, but one thing is very
clear to me. In recent cases, the respondent has obviously had a right

to have counsel. The ACLU, the American Civil Liberties Union has
called for the same thing.

I just think, jVIr. Chairman, that it is imperative that we have a busi-

ness meeting so that at least we can resolve these issues rather than
defer.

Mr. Brooks. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Railsback. I would be glad to yield to the gentleman from
Maine.
Mr. Cohen. I thank the gentleman for yielding.

I found it very interesting that the nonpartisan gentleman from
Texas now accepts the les'al judgment of Gerald Ford. This probably
makes it the first time in his long career in the House that such a meet-
ing of the minds has been accomplished.

Second, I have a question, Mr. Doar. Congressman Wiggins has
raised some doubts in my mind about your answers, particularly your
answers to his questions. I think you said initiallv with respect to those
items which have been requested from the White House, and the 41
or 42 conversations, I believe you said, initially, Presidenfs counsel
could delete irrelevant portions. Now, the question I have is assuming
some of the information you are seeking would involve conversations
dealing with Jeb Magruder's appointment to an office, and others deal-

ing with national security or other items, and these conv^ersations over-

lap, as many times conversations do, are you suggesting—and I want
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you to clarify this for us—that the Presidenfs counsel could initially

delete that material he considers to be irrelevant and turn the rest over

to us ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.

Mr. CoHEisr. What method would you have of determininir vrhether

the information which has been excised or exorcised from those tapes

were, indeed, relevant to this inquiry? How would you check that?

Mr. DoAR. Well, the only way you would check it is that the com-
mittee would have to reserve the final judgments on that itself, and it

would listen to what Mr. St. Clair turned over, and it would then make
a judgment of whether or not it was satisfied.

Mr. CoiiEN". What I am saying is that in the course of conversations

we may have several diiferent subjects discussed, each of which may
overlap, and a sentence or a paragraph might have tremendous im-
portance. And if that were, in fact, deleted or excised out of the tapes,

how would you really determine that, whether or not it did have a

bearing upon our inquiry ?

jMr. DoAR. Well, I think that there would be a showing, there would
be a showing that there was a deletion in the transcript or in the tape

and then the committee staff and tlie committee members would
review that, and if the staff and the chairman and the ranking minority
member had a question about it, it would bring it to the committee. But
the thing is, the point is, that in the first instance you take the rep-

resentation of counsel, with respect to the material being what you
called for. But, we do not, the committee would not, want to say that

in the final analvsis it would not reserve for itself that determination.

Mr. Cohen. The second point I would like to raise : On page 23 of
the memorandum which you prepared, in a footnote you indicate that

the staff' has concluded that the taking of depositions is not an efficient

way to prepare for the initial presentation and, as I recall it, at our
last meeting we raised the question as to whether or not Mr. St. Clair

could be allowed to participate in the taking of depositions. It seems
to me this is rather a subterfuge of sorts to simply exclude entirely

the question by minimizing the importance of taking depositions. And
I think we ought to be forthright and simply say we are not going to

take depositions because we do not want to reach the question, or vote

upon the question, or whether Mr. St. Clair ought to participate.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Railsback, would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Cohen. No, I will not yield.

Mr. Railsback. I think I have the floor.

Mr. Flowers. Mr. Chairman, the gentleman has had over 5 minutes.
Mr. Cohen. I do not mind the use of affidavits to establish proof of

facts which are not disputed, but it seems to me that when we get

into areas of disputed facts, that the affidavit should not be used to

establish those kind of critical factors. And I would have some serious

reservations about voting for it.

Mr. DoAR. I think you will have to make the decision after you see

the affidavit and after you see what the facts purport to establish. I
certainly agree with that. There was no attempt, however, not to be
forthright with respect to these depositions. It really is not an efficient

way to prepare.

Mr. Cohen. To the contrarj\ The use of depositions is the ordinary
way to prepare for a case.
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The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired.
Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for recognizing me.
I think we are putting the cart before the horse here. Not that I

want to avoid the issue of whether or not Mr. St. Clair ought to be
present at certain stages of our proceedings or not. I have already
decided in my own mind that we ought to extend that privilege at some
point, and I think a lot of members of the committee have. But, I think
at the point we are at now, my goodness, the members of the commit-
tee have not had that privilege yet. I do not want to give Mr. St. Clair
something that we have not got for ourselves, before we get into that
stage.

As I understand it, the staff is accumulating evidence. They are
putting it together, most of which is largely uncontroverted, uncon-
tested documentary evidence, some of it reported in the media, that
will be placed in some sort of a brief presentation to us. At the time
that the evidence is presented to this committee, or I think in advance
thereof, is when we need to talk about the procedure for handling
that stage of it, and that is the point I would envision that the Presi-

dent's counsel sliould have some privileges extended to him. But. I

think that we are making a momitain out of a molehill at this point,

Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Flo^vers. I yield to the gentleman from Ohio, first.

Mr. Seiberling. I would like to subscribe to everything that the
gentleman from Alabama has said. Of course, we want to be fair to

the President of the United States. But we also have to carry out our
responsibilities and do it in an orderly way. And I do not think any-
body can criticize the procedures that this committee has followed up
to date, in trying to do it in an orderly way. We have circumscribed
our own ability as members to get to the facts until the staff has fin-

ished obtaining the evidence and organized it. And at that point, we
reach a new stage which is that the evidence will be ma.de available

to the members of this committee, and not before. And before the mem-
bers decide anything, I am sure we will all unanimously agree that

]\Ir. St. Clair and any other counsel the President chooses will have
the opportunity to scrutinize the evidence, comment on it, produce
additional evidence if he wants. But. to allow Mr, St. Clair to get into

the middle of this investigation by the staff would be to totally obfus-

cate orderly procedure and make a shambles of this whole investi-

gation.

And I commend the gentleman from Alabama for his comments.
Mr. ISIgClory. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Flowers. I will yield to the gentleman from Illinois, if I have
any further time.

JNIr. JNIgClory. I thank the gentleman for yielding.

The question I want to ask is this : Do you not envisage the pres-

entation of the trial book with the evidence and citations and the

charges as the inquiry that we are conducting? Are we going to have
two hearings ? Are we going to have that presentation, and then have a
second presentation ?
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INIr. Fi.o^\^RS. I am soriy that tliG word "trial book" was used, be-

cause I do not think that that is what counsel really meant, in the

sense that this is a presentation for the plaintiff or the State's evidence.

I think what he means by a trial book is in the sense that this is a com-

plete layout of the evidence, and this is what we have and we recom-

mend it go.

Mr. McClory. But, that is going to contain all of the references to

docmnentary evidence, is it not, and the question as to whether or not

we have live witnesses may never be determined.

Mr. Flowers. Well, at that stage of the game is when we ought to

have the respondent's counsel present, and we ought to talk about it in

advance of that stage of the game. But, we are not there now. That is

all that I have said.

Mr. Chairman, if I have one-half minute, then I am going to yield to

the gentleman from California.

Mr. Danielson. I thank the gentleman for yielding. My sole con-

tribution to this is if Mr. St. Clair wants to be of assistance to the com-
mittee and his client at this time, I think the most appropriate thing
is to turn over the evidence which we have been seeking for 40 days and
40 nights.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I have a number of observations I would like to make about the

situation. The first thing is that I want to reemphasize and support, as

I think tlie discussion this morning has already reemphasized and sup-
ported, the great need of this committee to have a business meeting
where some of these issues can be decided. And I would like to specifi-

cally request the chairman to call a meeting for next week before the

adjournment at which we would consider the matter of the repre-

sentation by comisel for the President, and the matter of whether we
call oral testimony, the matter of narrowing the issues and other im-
portant issues which are before us, and which certainly need to be de-

cided before we progress much further in this proceeding, and wliich

cannot be decided as long as we are simply having briefing sessions,

which has now been the case for maybe approximately a month. I want
to be just as firm on that point as I can be. If we do not have a meet-
ing next week, where we can transact some business and decide some of
the questions, including the questions raised by the memorandum sub-
mitted by Mr. Doar this morning, we are just going to drift into a situ-

ation when we come back, where it will be a fait accompli and we will

go ahead on a schedule set forth in this proposal here, because it has
been said that is our schedule to start hearings immediately after the
recess, and we will drift into that situation without any action by this

committee at all on the suggestions by the staff. And I absolutely pro-
test that kind of a proceeding. We have got to have a business meeting,
and have the committee decide a few of these things.

Mr. Wiggins. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Dennis. I yield very briefly, though.
Mr. Wiggins. Counsel, could you answer the question as to whether

or not it is your intention to present a summary of the evidence with
respect to all 55 or 56 charges which were detailed in your March 1

memorandum ?
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Mr. DoAR. No ; it would not.

Mr. Wiggins. Can you report to lis the extent to which you have
detennined that some of those charges should be deleted from further

inquiry?
Mr. DoAR. I can report to you that with respect to some of the

charges in the area of agency practices, that Mr. Jenner and I are pre-

pared to recommend or to tell the committee that we have looked into

these preliminarily and find no basis for proceeding.

INIr. Wiggins. What area was that, counsel ?

Mv. DoAR. The agency practices.

Mr. Wiggins. Any other ?

INIr. DoAR. Those are the ones that we are prepared to recommend
to the. committee now.
Mr. Wiggins. Do I understand, therefore, that Cambodia and im-

poundment and OEO is still in the ballgame ?

INIr. DoAR. Well, the decision with respect to those matters are deci-

sions for tlie committee, not for the staff.

Mr. Wiggins. Ob\nously so, but I am wondering what your recom-
mendation will be. You are going to make a recommendation with re-

spect to agency practices. Are you also going to make a recommenda-
tion in those areas ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, the questions with respect to Cambodia and im-
poundment and agency practices, we would be prepared to make a rec-

ommendation. I would be, if the committee asked us, to make the rec-

ommendation.
Mr. Wiggins. I so i-equest, ]\Ir. Chairman.
Mr. DoAR. If, with respect to the other ones, we can say we have

looked into these particular matters and find no basis for the allega-

tions on the basis of our investigations.

Mr. Wiggins. I thank the gentleman for yielding.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chainiian, I still have the time. I think I yielded

to the gentleman from California. What he has said to Mr. Doar and
vice versa only underlines what I have already said. If we had a meet-
ing we could thrash some of these things and get rid of some of these

issues.

Now, let me point out in the few minutes I have remaining, a few
reasons why this memorandum, for instance, which has got to be
acted on, as counsel well says, it is only a suggestion, we cannot do any
of it, either the part someone else wants to do or the part I want to do,

or the part I want to object to cannot be acted upon until we meet and
act. Now, counsel suggests in here a procedure, subject to our approval.
And we have got to approve it. And the procedure is tliat they present
this so-called trial book, they present the documentary evidence that
may support the so-called trial book, and they suggest that maybe we
will let the President's counsel be present at the time of the presenta-
tion. That is up to us. We have got to resolve that question. That ques-
tion we have got to resolve before we start.

^
Then the recommendation is after the completion of this presenta-

tion, the committee will be in a position to detennine how to proceed
further. At that point, a decision on participation of the President's
counsel can best be made, meaning very plainly all you need to do is

read paffcs 22, 2o, and 21 of tliis memorandum, and as far as counsel's

suggestion is concerned, wo miglit allow the President's counsel to be
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present at the initial presentation, but we would not decide until after

that is over, whether he can cross-examine witnesses or call witnesses
of his own or anything of that kind. Now, I do not subscribe at all to

that position of this memorandum. I think we not only can but should
determine at this point whether, as a general principle—we do not
have to decide what evidence is going to be called down—but we can
certainly decide right now, and ought to, whether as a general prin-

ciple, if we call our testimony, the President's counsel is to be allowed
to cross-examine. You do not need to defer that until after this initial

presentation. That is a matter of principle which can be determined
right now as to whether he shall cross-examine when and if we call

evidence.

All right. How about calling witnesses? Some of those questions

ought to be determined right now. And there are several good reasons
for that. We can
The Chairman. Would the gentleman yield at this point ?

Mr. Dennis. I will, but I do not want to lose my time, Mr. Chair-
man. I would like to finish my point, if you will let me finish.

The Chairman. All right, go ahead.
Mr. Dennis. I can conceive that this case may be presented partly in

documents, presented partly on prior testimony, partly on oral testi-

mony, but I do think we are going to want to call some oral testi-

mony. I think there are some witnesses obviously that have got to be
called. Mr. Dean, for instance, some of the othef witnesses that bear on
this alleged payment on the night of March 21, and they ought to be
called, subject to cross-examination, which they have never been sub-
jected to. and those things. And whether the President's counsel will

be allowed to cross-examine if they are, ought to be determined right
now, not later on.

On the deposition business, we had a long, complicated set of rules

about taking depositions, and when it became obvious that there was
a majority here that thought the President's counsel ought to be
present, if we were going to take evidentiary depositions, it was de-

cided that we would not take depositions.

The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired.

Mr. Dennis. Now, wait a minute. We have got to get a determina-
tion on some of these things is my point. And there is one more point,

Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Well, now, the gentleman's time has expired. Mr.

Hungate. I have given the gentleman more than 5 minutes.
Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Dennis. All right. We have got to act on this.

Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman, it is with reluctance that I disagree in

part with my distinguished colleague from Indiana, for whose legal
ability I have the greatest respect. Mr. St. Clair is certainly a dis-

tinguished Harvard lawyer, and I am pleased to see the school recog-

nized at such a high level of Government. But, he is not a Member of
Congress or the Judiciary Committee.
Mr. Chairman, there have been current suggestions that the staff

has flipped its halter in this investigative work, and I would remind
the committee that the Joint Committee on Internal Revenue Taxa-
tion filed a report yesterday that I understand the committee had not
read and had not approved as such. They presented a staff report, and
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on the basis of that a half a million dollars apparently has changed
hands. Reliance on staff work is not unheard of in "Washington, so long
as the final decision and the discretion remains with the committee.
Now, as to this proposed "Statement of Facts'' that counsel lias sug-

gested, which I understand would contain annotations, would coun-
sel think that perhaps when a "Statement of Facts" is submitted that
some of the proposed charges, or this list of 56 or whatever we have
might be eliminated, due to this work ?

Mr. DoAR. It would not be included in the initial presentation. The
question of—they would not be included, that is right.

Mr. HuNGATE. You would at this point have eliminated some of it,

some of what are generally referred to as the 56 items, is that right ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, the elimination is a matter for the connnitteo to

decide but if the committee, after they have looked at the "Statement
of Facts" were to say, well, here you have not included one particular

subject, and we direct you to include that also, then we would. In that

sense, it would not have been eliminated.

Mr. HuNGATE. Well, it would seem to me that it would almost be
certain that some, that wdien you present your "Statement of Facts,"

with the annotations, that it will almost be certain that some of these

56 items would be eliminated.

INIr. DoAR. It is certain.

Mr. HuNGATE. And-depending on the discretion and judgment of

the committee, more miglit be eliminated, more might be added ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. HuNGATE. Well, it simply seems to me that it may be a little

premature then for counsel for the President to be examining and
cross-examining, and pawing—I would withdraw that—looking over

documents over which we may never disagree. Is it not possible that

a good part of this material would never have to be worked on by the

other party?
Mr. DoAR. It is possible.

Mr. HuNGATE. Is it possible that some of the affidavits that I under-

stand that have been taken or may be taken, would prove to exonerate

any one of the charges suggested ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, that is possible.

Mr. HuNGATE. I thank counsel.

If I have time remaining I will yield to the gentleman from
Indiana.

]\Ir. Dennis. Well, I thank the gentleman from Missouri very

kindly for that, and I just want to make one more point, ajid it is a

serious point about the calling, or the determining now as to whether
we call w^itnesses. Some of these witnesses, if we call them, will prob-

ably claim their constitutional privileges under the fifth amendment
and we will be faced with the question of whether immunity should
be granted. Now, as I understand the procedure there, we have to go
to court if we want to grant Use Immunity, and get a court order.

We have to give the judge 10 days notice, and the prosecuting attorney

then has 20 days to answer. And, in effect, this happened in the Ervin
committee, you will remember. You cannot call those witnesses for 30

days after the committee here decides on the question of whether we
want to grant immmiity. Now, if we wait to decide problems like that
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until the preliminary presentation is over, and we are down to the

calling of evidence, we are going to have to be stymied for 30 days,

or else just say, or, well forget it, we will do it without it. And I do
not think that we ought to put ourselves in that position. And I just

say again we have got to have a meeting where the committee, and
not the staff, can decide these things. And if we do not have that, and
have it next week and continue to have them, I want to register my
emphatic dissent and disenchantment, too, with our entire proceeding.

Thank you.

The Chair]man. I think the gentleman has made his position rather

abundantly clear, or perfectly clear, as he said.

Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, in the past briefings it has been my understanding that

you have made the point that you wished to complete your work
before making any presentment to us of the case. You did not want
to do it piecemeal, but to have all of the work done before presenting
this to the committee. Is that correct ?

Mr. DoAR. To the maximum extent possible. Of course, that turns
upon the amount of cooperation that we would get from the White
House with respect to materials we request.

Mr. Fish. Well, now, I have also heard that the presentation of the

case to the full committee will be ready by the end of April. Is that
accurate ?

Mr. Doar. We are trying to have the initial presentation ready so
that it could be presented to the committee the first week of May, so

we are setting a kind of an end-of-April deadline. But we would hope
that we could be finally prepared for the initial presentation in early
May.
Mr. Fish. It was my understanding, though, that the hearings, such

as they will be, are not going to occur before that ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct. So we would not be ready.
Mr. Fish. Sir, this is the sort of thing about what we were led to

believe about all of the work being done first. I will jdeld at this point
to Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. I would just like to follow this up and offer this

suggestion. At one time, we were told that we were going to have the
evidence presented on April 22, when we returned. At least, that was
the rampant rumor. Would it not make sense to have the fii*st pre-
sentation ready at that point, so that then members would be able to
request a recess, which we are probably going to do at some time,
anyway, and respecting each of your presentations so at that point
we could at least go over, those of us that wanted to, and look at the
materials that you have indexed for us. Would that not make sense
to expedite it ?

Mr. Doar. We just cannot do it by that time. We just cannot do it.

Mr. Fish. Mr. Doar, one further question.
The hearings will be interspersed with the presentation. Can you,

without the material in today's letter to Mr. St. Clair, those 42 tapes,
can you make this presentation ? Will your case be complete ?

jNIr, Doar. It will not be complete but we will make the presentation
with the best evidence we have available. We will do it. Of course,

41-018—75—pt. 1 IS
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we think that these 42 tapes have a bearing on this matter or we would
not ask for them.
Mr. Fish., Certainly. I agree with you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
iSIr. KAsni:NMEiER. Mr. Doar, I was interested in the colloquy you

had with the gentleman from ]\Iissouri, Mr. Hungate, and with the
gentleman from California, ]\Ir. Wiggins, in terms of items which
might be excluded of the 56. I am wondering why there should be, as
you suggested, a presentation in which these items do not appear at

all? I say this because I think the American people might w^onder
what disposition was made of them, and why, and what the logic of
it was, whether you fomid no evidence, or what your recommendation
is in connection with these. Whether these are agency practices, OEO
dismantling, Cambodia bombing or impoundment. And I do not dis-

agree at all with whether these might well be excluded. But, should
they not be formally presented with a recommendation that there is

no evidence to support this, or that the recommendation of the counsel
is that these matters not be pursued for other reasons, other than
l^urely omitted as you suggest might be done ?

Mr. DoAR. I did not mean to suggest that they would be purely
omitted. I would thinlv at one point in the proceedings they would be
presented with a recommendation. But, I am just saying that they
would not be presented with the idea that we think that this is a matter
that the committee would want to consider factually initially. That is

all. And it is just a matter of getting started, and getting organized,
and getting the work underway of the committee.

Mr. Kastenmeier. I understand further that particularly in terms
of the OEO, Cambodia, impoundment issues, the staff was not devot-
ing any time to investigating it, particularly at this point. And I am
woundering why any early determination that these, any earlier than
a determination, for example, in early May, when we get the total

presentation, should be made to us, need be made by the committee?
"Wliy is there any urgency about excluding at this point, particularly
when you have to make presumably a presentation along with the
recommendation on these issues, as well as those which you might want
included?

]Mr. Doar. Well, there is not any need for an early elimination of
any items, except for the fact that we do want to be candid with the
committee on what we are working on, and what we are concentrating
on. And if the committee were to ask for that, we would be prepared
to tell them and make our recommendation. But, there is not any need
that thnt be done.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Well, my interest in this is in connection with
whatever report or recommendation is made, that the whole spectrum
of charges be publicly explored by the committee and a rationaliza-

tion or a justification made either for their inclusion or exclusion, so

that the American people may well understand what happened to

all of these issues.

The Chairjian. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Yes. I yield to my chairman.
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The Chairman. I would merely like to state that I think the staff

contemplates, and I believe this was within the instruction from the

committee, that all of those charges that have been before us, and all

of those allegations that are in the various categories are a subject of

investigation. The presentation which will be made is going to be made
initially as a preliminary presentation. The committee will then con-

sider whether or not there are other matters that it considers of more
urgency. But, no elimination will be made without the decision or the

judgment of the committee, and I think that the fact that certain

matters which have come to our attention which are being given this

priority attention, is just as a matter of necessity and as a matter of
procedure and orderly procedure rather than a question of judgment
on the part of the committee at this time, as to elimination of any
items that are presently under consideration.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Well, I apjDreciate my chairman's statement and
I only wanted to say that I think there is a case against preemptively
excluding certain charges rather than to, as I say, view comprehen-
sively all of them in due course, appropriately, with supporting
evidence for or against.

The Chairman. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Thank you, Mr, Chairman.
I did want to address my first remarks here to you, Mr. Chairman.

ISIr. Chairman, in the statement which you read at the beginning of

todays briefing, you said that it had been 2 months since the House
took its historic vote. But, I think we should recall that it was in

October that the Speaker referred this matter of impeachment to

this committee, which indicates that we have been proceeding at a

very leisurely pace indeed. That is some 5I/2 months during which
the committee has met. at which any action was permitted at all on
only three occasions which were outlined. I believe, by the gentleman
from Illinois, Mr. Eailsback, and even on those three occasions, yon,

Mr. Chairman, very severely circumscribed the agenda as to what
action the committee could take. The only thing that we were allowed
to act upon were the subpena resolution on January 31, the rules on
confidentiality on Fcbruaiy 22, and on March 7, the request to Judge
Sirica by letter for certain materials.

Now, it does seem to me that the time is long past due for some
action by the committee, itself, that there are a number of very impor-
tant subjects which cannot be stalled properly or delayed, certainly not
until after the Easter recess, which would mean 6 months gone by
without any action by this committee. And among the items, the No. 1

item that I think tliis committee should act on before we go on recess

is the unresolved question of the President surrendering these tapes,

which Mr. Doar has explained to us this morning. And certainly we
have waited long enough and we should take action in the meeting
before we go on recess to issue a subpena if that is what is necessary.

There is no sense in waiting 6 months for staff and the chairman to

work this out in an amicable manner.
Now, No. 2, at this business meeting, we should at least be able to

narrow the issues. There are apparently 55 or 56 alleged grounds of
impeachment still kicking around. We all know that a lot of those
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have no chance of being the basis for a bill of impeachment. We, I
think, are entitled to vote on that. The gentleman from Wisconsin
elicited or inquired as to how much work was being done on a lot of
these window-dressing, filler issues. But, I would like to ask counsel, is

it not true that members of the statf are assigned to each and every one
of these issues, doing some work on them ?

Mr. DoAR. ISIembers of the staff have been assigned but on some issues

they are not working on them now.
Mr. Mayne. Have all members of the staff been taken off of some of

these issues ?

j\Ir. DoAK. Yes.
Mr. Mayne. What issues ?

]Mr. DoAR. Well, there are two or three issues with respect to

practices of the agencies.

]SIr. Mayne. Then with the exception of two or three issues, you
still have got staff' working on 55 or 56 so-called grounds for
impeaclunent ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. That is true.

Mr. Mayne. Well, I would like this committee to have a chance to

get down to the real guts of this issue and have staff stop frittering

away their time and the taxpayers money on developing a lot of infor-

mation that is not going to amount to a tinker's dam when we get

down to making the real decisions in this case. Let us get on with the

serious business of the inquiry, and let us vote on that next week. We
were assured, it seemed to me, at a briefing 2 weeks ago that staff was
going to make definite recommendations to us about dropping. a lot

of these less serious and unsubstantiated and inconsequential charges.

That has not yet been done, and should be decided no later ''han next
week at a business meeting.
Now, another issue which should be decided at that meeting is the

question of whether the President's counsel will have the right to

appear at the depositions and otherwise in this matter. This was a

matter which was very hotly debated at our briefing 2 weeks ago. You
gentlemen of the staff presented proposed rules which placed a very
high importance on depositions. You put them right out in No. 1

jDosition in that series of procedures, and people on this side objected

very strenuously to those depositions taking place without the Presi-

dent's counsel being present. A good many members on the other "side,

stated just as strongly that it would be unthinkable for him to be

present. And that was pushed aside and in the interval, we have seen

reports in the press that this is going to be a compromise in some
manner, that there would be an accommodation suitable to both sides.

Well, what has happened this morning is we see that you come out

with a proposal that there just is not going to be any depositions, and
it seems to me like a very transparent dodge to say instead of the

depositions, which were the crux of the argument, the debate, 2 weeks
ago, that you are not going to have depositions now, you are going to

have something called affidavits. And, of course, the President's coun-

sel would not have anything to do with that.

Well, now, that is not a decision for the staff. That is a decision for

us and we should not abdicate our responsibility to the staff or to the

chairman on that. I respectfully urge, Mr. Chairman, that we do have
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a meetinor ^t the earliest possible moment. I think the American people

are entitled to much more expeditious attention and treatment than

the committee itself has been giving to this matter, I think that they

are not going to tolerate the kind of delay which we have been per-

mitting, where if we come back after the recess and still have not had
a meeting, and taken some action, it will mean that 6 months have gone

bv without action by this committee.
"

So, I respectfully urge you, ISIr. Chairman, to hold the nieeting at

which we can at least take "action on these items of urgent business that

I have recommended to you.

Thank you.

The Chairman. I would merely, before recognizing Mr. Sarbanes,

I would merely like to point out to the gentleman, Mr. INIayne, that

he referred to the matter of having been referred to us on October 15.

As you know, the resolutions were introduced in the House at that

time. But, it was much later that the referrals and the assignments

were made, and much later when the House finally gave us the au-

thority that we do have to inquire and the setting up of staff was a

matter that took a long time. And we were in the middle, as the gentle-

man knows, and no matter how much rhetoric is stated here, the gen-

tleman knows that we were in the middle of considering the question

of the confirmation of the then Vice President designate Ford and did

not complete that matter until the sixth, when the House then went
into recess after that. And we did not reconvene until January.

IMr. Mayne. Mr. Chairman, I did not use the 15th. I said in Oc-
tober. I will now use the date October 23, as the date on which the

Speaker assigned this responsibility to this committee.

Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman, there have been a number of

The Chairman. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes [continuing]. Comments made or phrases used in

the course of questioning counsel, or making statements this morn-
ing, and I want to be sure that we are clear with respect to those.

One statement was that when the staff brought its charges to the

committee. Now, it is my understanding that that is not what the

staff is doing, and that is clearly not what your memorandum begin-

ning on page 22, "proposed presentation of evidentiary materials"'

suggests. It suggests that you will be presenting to the members of

the committee a review of the factual material, not presenting char.q-es

to the committee. The charges are a matter to be determined by the

members of the committee and I know that phrase was used in the

course of the questioning, and I think it is very important to clarify

that that is not the case. That responsibility is ours. And I perceive
that the staff understood it and I thought the members of the com-
mittee understood it. Perhaps it was an inadvertent use of language.
Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield? Is it not true that the

facts are in support of specific charges that will be delineated in the
fact book ?

Mr. Sarbanes. No. The facts are carrying out an investigation with
respect to allegations that have been made, but they do not constitute

charges. And whether there are to be charges, is a judgment for you
and me and the other members of this committee.
Mr. McCi-ory. That is the distinction, but I meant the allegations

that are made in the resolution
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tions because I think the role we have is an important one.

The second point I would like to pursue is the question of the par*

ticipation of the President's counsel in the proceedino:s, and I think it

poses some important and serious questions which deserve the care-

ful attention of the members of this committee. I a;^ree with Mr. Flow-
ers in the view that he ought not to have a participatory role greater

than that of the members of the committee. And we have imposed upon
ourselves certain restrictions in terms of our own continual participa-

tion, although we have reserved at the end total participation. I think

those were wise rules. I think they have contributed to carrying forth

an expeditious inquiry, which everyone continues to emphasize. So, it

does not seem to me that in addressing that question, or it seems to me
that we ought to recognize the minimum nature of the participation

that each member of this committee has in these proceedings and ousht
to move forward and, therefore, I think the question to respond to

something that Mr, Railsback says is really it gets into questions at

what point and in what manner are we talking about this question, and
that is something I think we have to focus on.

Thirdly, I do not believe that it is the staff's role to make a judg-

ment on facts which conclude that notliing further should be done.

That is the committee's judgment. The staff may present us the facts

and say, well, there are no facts with respect to this allegation, or^

on the matter with respect to Cambodia, or impoundment, you may
say. well, here are what the facts are. And the judgment of whether the

facts are something we ought to proceed with or not is a judgment
for the members of the committee to make, and in that sense I support

strongly what Mr. Kastenmeier said with respect to the need to be

certain that what we receive is the factual statement witli regard to

these allegations. And that our judgment with respect to the import
of those facts is a judgment to be made by the members of the com-
mittee.

I regret. Mr. Chairman, that apparently on this serious question of

the participation of the President's counsel that some members of
the committee ha^-e apparently moved to a conclusion without con-

sidering, I think, all of the aspects of the thing. I had understood at

our last meeting that we recognized it as a possible question to be
decided by us, and that we were going to try to come at it in an open-

minded way, and receive materials on the past precedents and some of

the arguments for and against it. And I would hope that we could

revert back to that approach in an effort to try and develop what
seems a sensible arrangement.
The final point I want to make is that I really do take some umbrage

when members of the committee scorn the committee with respect to

the way it has handled this matter, and the work it has done. I think
it is rather clear that from the period of October until the Christmas
recess, this committee was very much involved. I think, in carrying out

in a very fine way, the question of the confirmation of the Vice Presi-

dent. And I think since that time, we have proceeded clearly and
expeditiously in carrying forth this inquiry. We are now talking about

being in a posture sometime and I take it the first part of May to be
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able to consider the evident] ar}" situation after the facts have been as-

sembled, and I do not really think it does fairness to the job the
committee has done or the stall has done to loosely use a 6-montli's time
period, which I think is totally inaccurate, or to suggest that the com-
mittee or the staff is not carrying out its work in a proper and expedi-
tious manner.
The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

INIr. Butler. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would recognize that we are moving rather rapidly now so I will

not take but a moment. But, I would like to inquire further of counsel
with reference to the question of depositions again. I think essentially

my question is this : In view of the fact that you have abandoned for
the present, at least, the depositions and the subpena, therefore, as an
investigative aid, what device is counsel presently using to obtain the
evidence of a reluctant witness ? I am concerned that you are not pur-
suing reluctant witnesses at this time, and we are about to receive a
preliminary determination of fact that really does not pursue this area.

Mr. DoAR. We are not pursuing reluctant witnesses.

iSIr. Butler. So at the moment, and when you make a preliminary
determination of facts or present us with a trial book or whatever we
have, we will simply be presented your determination, or your pre-
liminary recommendations of findings as to facts as to witnesses who
have come forth voluntarily, who have not declined to be interviewed.
Would that be a fair statement ?

Mr. DoAR. That is a fair statement, yes.

]Mr. Butler. Well, now my next question, of course, follows. Are
there any reluctant witnesses which you think we ought to be examin-
ing before you can make an intelligent preliminary determination of
fact ? And I laiow, of course, the quite obvious answer is the President
of the United States, but are there any others ?

Mr. DoAR. We think not. If there were, Ave would bring them to the
attention of the committee immediately and suggest tlie committee
deal with that.

Mr. Butler. Well, would it be fair to ask counsel to assure me that
before you make a preliminary determination of facts, or a recom-
mendation of this sort, that you would let us know if there are any
witnesses that you think ought to be interviewed who have not been
interviewed because of their reluctance to testify ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.
Mr. Butler. Thank you.
The CiiAiKMAN. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman, I am a bit surprised that some of my

colleagues would be critical of the speed with which we are moving
on the impeachment inquiry, inasmuch as I, for one, thought that this

should have priority over the Gerald Ford coronation which this

committee took a lot of time in deciding. Nevertheless, I think it is

clear from all of the members of this committee that we have delegated
to counsel and their staff the availability of far more evidence that
we have access to. And it seems from what I understand that we are

bent on allowing Mr. St. Clair and his staff to receive rights and access

to material tliat we still have not had before us. And, in any event, I
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would have no objection to that if ISIr. St, Clair would share access to

information he might bring to us for the first time from the White
House.
But I liope I misunderstood you, Mr. Doar, in connection with Con-

gressman Wiggins and Congressman Cohen's question as to, are you
saying that the White House will have the right in the first instance
to erase from any tapes or excise from any documents evidence which
they consider national security, or not relevant to this inquiry ?

Mr. Doar. Well, they would not have the right to erase anything
from a tape, certainly, and I do not think that would happen. But, if

there was a part of a conversation, or a conversation that we had that
did not relate to the matters which we have under inquiry, then I

would expect that Mr. St. Clair would say that with respect to that
conversation it docs not have any bearing, and it relates to such and
such a matter.

Mr. Rangel. Now, how would you know that they were telling the
truth?
Mr. Doar. Well, you know, you have to take in the initial instance

a lawyer's word. Now, we bring that matter to the committee, and the
committee decides that in the last analysis. But, let me give you an
illustration. Suppose we asked for 41 conversations and 38 are pro-
duced. And Mr. St. Clair says with respect to these three other conver-
sations, or part of the three other conversations, they were unrelated.

And we listened to the 38 and we would then bring that to the com-
mittee and the committee would then have to make a decision whether
or not it wanted to accept this w^ord.

Mr. Rangel. How in God's Heaven can we make the decision, when
we have not heard the three tapes ?

Mr. Doar. You cannot. But you have to decide whether you want
to hear the three.

Mr. Rangel. Suppose the "Wliite House tells us that the 42 tapes
are not relevant, and the President did not make any statements on
them to incriminate them ? Then what do you do ?

Mr. Doar. Then you have to decide that you want to subpena the
tapes.

Mr. Rangel. Are you saying in the first instance, they would make
a moral judgment as to what evidence we will receive ?

ISlCr. Doar. Any time you request information from a person who has
possession of it, the i^erson who has possession of that evidence makes
the first jufl.ofment. There is not any other way around it. He has the
material. You ask him to furnish it. He furnishes it to you. He is mak-
ing? a judgment.
Mr. Rangel. Well, suppose the judument is that the interpretation

is subject to different types of reception, depending on who is listen-

ing to it ?

Mr. Doar. If he brings that information to you with the full dis-

closure, the committee would then decide whether they would accept
it or not.

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Doar, if it is full disclosure, we have no problem.
But you are saying that since we are not dealing with subpena and
since we are dealing with this request, which is long outstanding, we
can only take what we get.
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to that, in the first instance, you take what you receive on the repre-

sentation of counsel that this is all of the material that you have
asked for.

Mr. Rangel. Well, I hope that you Iniow that we are good on this

committee, but we are not good enough to make a judgment on ma-
terial wliich the White House says is not relevant.

INIr. Cohen. Would tlie gentleman yield ?

Mr. DoAR. Congressman Rangel, we made that clear in the letter,

that the committee has the final authority to decide that it wants all

of tliose recorded conversations. We have not backed ofT of that one bit.

Mr. Rangel. My last question before I yield : Has staff considered
the effect, if any, on the speed with which this inquiry is going to

move if the President removes himself from the jurisdiction for a

trip to Russia, or any place else ?

Mr. Do;\R. No, we have not considered that.

Mr. Rangel. Do you believe that it would be an important con-

sideration as to whether or not the President was available to consult
with his counsel, who now may become a member of the committee,
if lie is not in the country ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I do not really believe—I think that the President
can continue to meet his responsibilities, and it would not interfere

Mnth the way this committee would conduct this business. I cannot
foresee that, no.

Mr. Rangel. Well, then, you do not believe that it is possible that
the committee might ask the President of the United States to come
before us ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I think that that would be up to the committee in

its judgment. If it happened to do that, I am sure that could be done
at a time when the President was available.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Would the gentleman yield?
Mr. Rangel. I vield, I promised to yield to Congresswoman Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chainnan, I recognize our time is short, and I

will not take long. But, I do not want us to be misled now. At the
last time when we met, you, the cliairman directed the staff to pre-
pare this memorandum coming to no conclusion about the extent of
the participation of the President's counsel. And the staff did that.

Then this morning we are confronted with another memorandum by
minoritv members of this committee, coming to a conclusion, an advo-
cate's document. If any bipartisanship has been destroyed it has
not been destroyed bv you, the chairman, who has continually asserted
that you want to be fair and exercise good judgment and be judicious
in the kinds of decisions which are reached. And I hope that the 38
of us who are on this committee do not become the victims of parti-
sanism, partisan devisiveness when we really did not intend to become
a ])ait of it at the beginning of this inquiry, and when we wanted it

to be open and aboveboard. We ought to have the good judgment to
understand when we are being pushed into a confrontation with each
other, at the expense of this inquiry.

Ms. Holtzman. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Cohen. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Rangel. I yield to the gentleman from Maine.
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Mr. Cohen. Thank you for yielding.

I have just one question, Mr. Doar. As I understand it, the ranking
minority leader, Mr. Rhodes, has made a proposal whereby you
and Mr. Jenner and the chairman and the ranking member, Mr. Hutch-
inson, would listen in conjunction, listen to those documents and tapes,

rather in conjunction with Mr. St. Clair, and would subject it to a
majority vote. In other words, the committee could overrule, if

Mr. St. Clair's judgment is that he says it is irrelevant and not mate-
rial to our inquiry, 3'ou could overrule that. But, it would seem to

me the position you are taking is giving him the absolute authority
in the initial instance, and which works to the detriment of this

committee.
Mr. DoAR. No, it is not giving him the absolute authority in the

initial instance. We have preserved that but we have not said that

it would be the judgment of myself or Mr. Jenner or Mr. Hutchinson
and the chairman. It would be the committee and if the committee
delegated that to us, we have made it clear that the

Mr. Cohen. It seem.s to me that Mr. Rhodes' proposition of letting

you all listen to it, and decide what is relevant and not relevant, and
put it to a vote by the majority would be a much preferable way of
handling it.

Mr. DoAE. I agree.

The Chairman. The second bell of the quorum has rung and the

briefing session will adjourn. And the Chair will announce when a
further briefing session will take place early next week.

[Whereupon, at 12 :20 p.m., the briefing was adjourned to reconvene
subject to the call of the Chair.]
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The Chairman. The committee will come to order.
The Chair would like to make a statement. I know that all of the

members have before them a letter that has been received from
Mr. St. Clair. The press also has that letter. It is a reply to our letter

of April 4. Well, the letter should be, a copy of the letter should have
been distributed and I am sorry if it is not before the press. But, I had
instructed the staff to distribute such a letter and have it in the hands
of the press.

On April 4, Mr. Doar received a letter that is before you from
INIr. St. Clair. Mr. St. Clair has promised to respond to Mr. Doar's
letter by Tuesday, April 9.

While his letter suggests that there will be a delay of a day or two
because the President attended the funeral of President Pompidou,
Mr. St. Clair has since advised Mr. Doar that we would have his reply
by tomorrow. This was as the result of a telephone call I instructed
Mr. Doar to make to Mr. St. Clair that we would be expecting a reply
by tomorrow.

Accordingly, I propose to hold a meetins: of the Judiciary Committee
later this week, maybe Wednesday or Thursday, to decide what we
should do in the light of Mr. St. Clair's reply, which we cannot
speculate upon at this time. And it may be, and I know that Mr. Hutch-
inson and I would want to discuss this and the members of the com-

(279)
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mittee will have an opportunity to discuss tliis this morning, as to

whether or not the committee might want to delegate authority for

the issuance of a subpena during the recess if, in the judgment of
the committee, that is v/hat is required. I would not want to call

the committee back during the recess, but it is important to have
the authority from the committee to issue the subpena during the
recess if, in the judgment of the committee, that is the appropriate
course to be taken.

I hope that this will not be the case. But, as I have mentioned before,

there is a contradiction in efforts to determine whether the Office of the

President is being faithfully executed is met with the claim that the
faithful execution of the Office precludes the disclosure of the rele-

vant facts. And if such be the claim, then, in my judgment, we would
have to subpena the material necessary to meet our constitutional
responsibility.

I discussed with Mr. Hutchinson last weelv a possible schedule, and
I think this would be an appropriate matter for us to talk about this

morning. The Chairman intends to schedule a meeting or meetings
during the first week after the recess to decide on whether and how the
issues before the committee can be narrowed. I tliink this is an impor-
tant matter for discussion, and Mr. Hutchinson agreed. And I am
sure that this is a matter that is high in the minds of the members of
the committee that we do resolve that issue as best we can. And I have
instructed the special counsel to prepare a memorandum on those
matters which the staff thinks should be brought to the attention of
the committee during that week, with full explanation, factual and
legal, of the basis for the recommendations.

I know that the committee will have to adopt the rules to govern
its procedures during the evidentiary hearings, and I would hope that

those could be considered during the second week after the Easter
recess. The adoption of rules of procedure is not a simple matter. I
think we have got to recognize that once we adopt these rules of pro-
cedure, they become inflexible and may tie us down to rules which we
may find do not comport with the situation.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Chairman, can I just ask a question ?

The Chairman. Let me conclude my statement, if you will.

Mr. Railsback. OK.
The Chairman. I am concerned about two things

:

First, the question of confidentiality during the evidentiary hear-

ings. And I think this is a matter and a subject that should engage the

attention of each of us. I am concerned with preserving the integrity

of the committee, and adhering to the rules of confidentiality which
were adopted with the express purpose that we woidd be able to not
interfere with ongoing trials and not prejudice the rights of indi-

viduals. I know that it is going to be difficult to be able to comply with
those rules of confidentiality unless we adopt some stringent proce-

dures, and unless we know where we are going during the presentation

of the evidentiary material and how we present that evidentiary ma-
terial. And I would hope that we consider that if it becomes necessary,

and we find we are not able to comply with those rules of confi-

dentiality, I would rather prefer that we consider the question of go-
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mg into open hearings and opening up everything that we have got. I

think that that is a matter that the committee, however, has to consider

and consider seriously.

Second, it is my conviction that we should not be bomid to inflexible

procedures unless we have had the benefit of the initial evidentiary

presentation by the staff. And I called this briefing session this morn-
ing so that we could further discuss this matter.

And I know that Mr. Hutchinson would like to make some comments
regarding this.

Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, I am delighted that the Chair
has announced that immediately following the recess the committee
will meet in a business session to narrov/ the issues before this Com-
mittee. That is something that a good many members of the committee
have been thinking a matter of priority for some time.

With regard to a subpena, Mr. Chairman, I sincerely hope that it

would not be necessary to issue any subpena during the recess. I an-
nounced at the outset, Mr. Chairman, that I would not join you in

issuing a subpena to the President of the United States, but that that
matter would be something that would have to be decided by the full

committee, so far as I was concerned. I think it would be unfortunate
for this full committee to be asked to decide whether such a subpena
should be issued in advance of the circumstances, which might warrant
its issuance. I do not feel, however, Mr. Chairman, in view of the pub-
lic statements that I have made, including statements made on the
floor of the House by me, I do not feel that I would be at all comfort-
able in having the committee direct just you and me to issue a subpena
to the President of the United States during the recess, because I, as I

say, have rather committed myself in my own conscience, at least, that
I would not join you in such a procedure.
With regards to the rule of confidentiality during the evidentiary

hearings, Mr. Chairman, I feel very strongly that we must find a way
to maintain those rules of confidentiality. I think it would be ex-
tremely unfortunate if we decided that we could not do so, and so
would simply open the thing up. I thinlc that if we did so, we would not
be keeping faith with the grand jury and Judge Sirica who turned the
material from the grand jury over to us. While I recognize that the
judge and the grand jury certainly realize that once those materials
were turned over to us, in our hands, they lost control of them. I think
that there was—I think we have a very strong moral obligation, ]Mr.

Chairman, to maintain that confidentiality for the protection of pur-
poses who are being subjected to trial and so I would not happily go
along with your alternative, Mr. Chairman, that if we cannot find
a way to preserve the doctrine of confidentiality, we throw it over-
board. I think we must find a way to preserve it.

Mr. CoNYERs. Would the gentleman from Michigan allow a
question ?

Mr. Hutchinson. Yes, I yield to the gentleman from Michigan.
]Mr. CoNYERS. Thank you. Do I understand you are saying that you

have determined in your own mind that you are not going to join on
a subpena under literally any circumstances ?

Mr. Hutchinson. I am talking about a subpena to the President of
the United States. And if the gentleman will read my statement on the
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floor of the House, during the subpena debate, I made that statement
that I would not. That tvouM be a matter that would have to be
decided by the full committee.

ISIr. CoNYERS. In other words, there are no circumstances that you
could imagine that would warrant you to evaluate those facts to deter-

mine whether a subpena should issue?

Mr. Hutchinson. I would not do so, Mr. Conyers. I have stated that

I would not join the Chairman in a subpena to the President of the

United States. I would insist that that matter be decided by the full

committee, I stated that at the outset. I still stand in that position.

Mr. Conyers. "Well, would that allow some people to misconstrue
the position of the distinguished ranking member of this committee in

having determined prematurely, prior to any analysis of the situation,

that it might require us to determine the issuance of the subpena,
fully and totally in advance of any fair review ?

Mr. Hutchinson. I would think, if the gentleman will permit me to

say this, I would think the gentleman would be delighted that my posi-

tion is that the full committee should make the decision on such a grave
matter, so that the gentleman, himself, can participate in that posi-

tion and not delegate it simply to the two members of the committee.
The Chairman. Will the gentleman yield so that I may clarify?

]Mr. Hutchinson. Oh, yes ; I yield to the chairman, of course.

The Chairman. I would like to state to the gentleman that I would
not want my position to be misunderstood. I think all of us know that

the issuance of a subpena to the White House or the President would
necessitate the issuance of that subpena by the full committee's au-

thority. And the reason that I made the suggestion that I did would be
that in the light of the fact that we may be going in recess, as the

House will go on the recess at the completion of business this Thurs-
day, I would want the committee to determine, based on the reply

that we might get from Mr. St. Clair, whether or not the committee
would want to issue such a subpena. And I suppose this would be
only after we considered the reply of Mr. St. Clair. So, therefore, this

would be a matter that would be a committee matter.

Mr. Hutchinson. I thank the chairman. I have completed my state-

ment.
Mr. Railsback. INTr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Just a parliamentary inquiry, INIr. Chairman. I gather

you are seeking the authority to act in that regard in the event that

iSIr. St. Clair does not respond during the Easter recess. When do you
propose that authority will be considered by the committee?
The Chairman. Well, Mr. St. Clair has indicated that we will ex-

pect a reply by tomorrow, and only after we have considered that
reply are we ofoing to be able to make a judgment as to what action

we will take. It is for this reason that I have announced that I propose
to hold a meeting of the committee, a business meeting of the commit-
tee, either Wednesday or Thursday of this week.
Mr. Waldie. Well, Mr. Chairman, I hope the committee will au-

thorize the power you seek. I am personally persuaded that Mr. St.

Clair has no intention of cooperating ; and I am personally persuaded
that Mr. St. Clair desires this matter to be delayed, and the delay would
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occur if you do not liave tliat power dui'ing the Easter recess. And I

trust that you will seek it and that we will grant it to you.

]\Ir. Railsback. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. :McClory.

]Mr. McClory. I thank the chairman. I would like to make some
comments on the statement you made, Mr. Chairman.

I am delighted that the chairman is considering holding a meeting

later on this week. I think that it is important for us to have busi-

ness meetings of this committee. And I have issued a statement indi-

cating mv displeasure with the fact that we are having briefings and
not meetings, because it seems to me that there is a great deal of busi-

ness that this committee should be doing.

And in addition to the subject of the subpena, and I G:atlier that the

subpena could be issued pursuant to authority of the chairman or the

ranking member, or both of them jointly, but if Mr. Hutchinson indi-

cates that he wishes to have this come to the full committee, then that

is the way it has to be under the rule as we adopted it.

It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, with respect to your statement about

the rules of procedure, and the timing for adopting them, that we
must adopt rules of procedure before we get the initial presentation

from the staff because, as I understand, this initial presentation, and I

stand to be corrected, but as I understand, this is something that is

going to take a matter of weeks. We are going to go through a great

deal of documentary evidence, and virtually all of the documentary
evidence that the staff has put together. And we will meet day after

day at this initial presentation which, in my opinion, would be virtu-

ally the case insofar as the charges against the President are con-

cerned. And that if we defer the adoption of the rules until after we
have this complete presentation, it seems to me that we will, indeed, be

putting the cart before the horse and adopting the rules after the

case is already made.
The subject of confidentiality is an extremelv difficult one, but I

know that the decision is ours to make. Judge Sirica has not imposed
any restrictions on our use of the grand jury material, and is his own
order he has left that subject entirely up to us. But. the question I
asked, IMr. Chairman, is this : How are we going to receive confidential

material upon which to base a case for or against the articles of
impeachment of the President, which we are going to have to report

to the House of Representatives without violating the rule of con-

fidentiality? In other words, we certainly cannot make our decision on
tlie basis of confidential material that we will not present to the House,
and if we are making it on the basis of material that we are going to

present to the House, then it seems to me that we have to adjust or
revise this rule in some way so that the basis upon which our decision

is made is something that can be reported in a report or statement to

the House of Representatives.

I have, as you know, requested a special order for this afternoon on
the floor of the House, in which I believe a number of my Republican
colleagues and I would join for the purpose of setting forth in a little

more detail, not with the limitations we have here in this briefing

session, our position wath regard to a fair and impartial hearing, not

for the purpose of complaining about or indicating any hostility or
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indicating any partisanship, but for the purpose of endeavoring to see

that this inquiry does remain bipartisan, impartial, and objective to

the extent possible. And it seems to me that initially it is important
for us to adopt rules of procedure which are going to apply throughout
the inquiry. And I hope, myself, that before we go on recess that we
can have a draft. As I understand the staff is working on a draft, and
if they can make available to us a draft of the rules of procedure, we
can study these during the time that we are in recess so that we can
act promptly on them when we return.

The Chairman. Might I ask both ^Ir. Doar and Mr. Jenner con-

cerning the suggestion of Mr. McClory ? I know how hard you have
both been working together Avith the staff on putting together this

kind of a memorandum in kind of a draft. I would like you to address
yourself to the members.
Mr. Doar. We did not contemplate that we would be ready to

present these until after the recess.

Mr. Jenner. It is not possible, I was going to say, physically, but
we cannot get it on paper with the kind of presentation that this

eminent committee would expect from the staff before the recess.

Mr. McClory. Could we liave, Mr. Chairman, an outline or could we
have a rough draft? Now, I have looked over the rules of procedure,
Mr. Jenner, that you adopted in connection with the Warren Com-
mission hearings, and it seems to me that what I am suggesting is

something comparable to that, with regard to the appearance of
counsel, and with the right to comment and cross-examine, and that
sort of thing. If we could have an outline of what the staff is working
on so that we could have some input if we have suggestions at the
return after the recess ?

Mr. Jenner, Mr. McClory, I think it is possible to prepare an
outline. But, I must say to you, that it will be just that and little or
no text.

Mr. McClory. Could I just ask this further? Is there any reason
why we should not adopt rules of procedure before we go into the
initial presentation, in your opinion, Mr. Jenner ?

Mr. Jenner. Well, Congressman IMcClory, I do not see how it is

possible to do that, frankly.

Mr. Hogan. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Jenner. I am sure my response will disappoint you consider-

ably and some other members of the cormnittee. But, until the factual

data is all assembled, at least in statement form, it seems to me as a

trial lawyer that it is difficult, professionally, to make a decision in

tJiat connection until you have at least the general tenor and the
general bodj^ of what the staff intends to present.

]\Ir. HoGAN. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. McClory. We have the Federal rules of procedure which are

certainly applicable before we start a hearing, do we not?
Mr. Jenner. I beg your pardon ?

Mr. McClory. We have the Federal rules of procedure which are

certainly applicable to the procedure before the hearing or before the
trial.

]Mr. Jenner. That is so, but the Federal rules of procedure exist,

and trial orders frame their presentation, their views on pleadings
and what not in lifflit of those rules that exist.
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Mr. McClort. Could I just ask this ? Is it not true that the initial

l^iesentation that you have in mind is something that is goiiig to take
4 or 5 weeks of hearings by this committee ?

]Mr. Jenxer. The actual presentation may well take 4 or 5 weeks.
Mr. HoGAN. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. DejStnis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. McClory. During that time we would be working without rules

of procedure.
The CHArRMAN. No, I am afraid
Mr. Jenner. I think not.

The Chairman. The geiitleman has completely misunderstood what
is contemplated here, and I think if Mr. Doar would address himself to
that ?

Mr. McClort. Mr. Chairman, I have just asked the question. You
banged the gavel without letting the gentleman answer the question.

]\Ir. DoAR. Congressman McClory
Mr. McClory. Wliether or not to adopt the rules of procedure.
yir. DoAR. Congressman McClory, it was our su.'rgestion that we

would have proposed rules for the committee to consider after the
recess, that some of these rules, or all of tliem, could ])e adopted before
the proceedings got underway, or at the time the proceedings got un-
derway. We thought that the final ization and the making specific rules

with respect to examination of witnesses by counsel, by the committee,
and by the President's counsel, depending ui:>on what ])i-ivileges are

afforded the President's counsel by the committee would best await the
committee's examination of the material that it has presented to it

initially. And I shall await the committee's decision with respect to

confidentiality.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Doar, the problem that I have a])pears in the

staff brief here on page 22, where you and Mr. Jenner, the staff, say

:

It is suggested that the committee defer adoption of these procedures until

it has received and considered tlie initial presentation.

Now, the initial presentation, I understand, will take 4 or 5 weeks
and, consequently, the rules of procedure will not be adopted un.til

after we have the initial presentation. That is the thing that bothers

me. If I am wrong on that, I want to be corrected. And I think that

should be clarified before we start hearing any evidence in this case.

Mr. Doar. Well, I guess the problem was in language. Congressman
McClory. What was meant is that they defer adopting all of the rules

with respect to the presentation until they had the material, and that

some of the rules might be adopted before the proceeding started,

some of the general rules might be adopted at the time the material

came to it, and some of the rules might be adopted at the close of the

presentation.

]Mr. McClory. Well, how about adopting the very basic rule of per-

mitting counsel for the President to be present and to comment and to

object, and to otherwise participate ?

The Chairman. I do not think counsel need answer that question.

We are not going to adopt any rules at all that are not going to comport
with the proper procedure. Now, we as a committee, I think, have an
obligation to ensure that the rules that we adopt are gfoing to be fully

thought out. And the Chair has announced that the rules will be
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considered, rules of procedure will be considered prior to the pres-
entation of the evidentiary material.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, I think you have demonstrated pre-

cisely why we have to have a special order and put this thing on the
record on the floor of the House of Representatives, because you are
preventing the witness from answering the question that I am asking.
Mr. Sarbanes. Which witness ?

Mr. CoNTERS. Mr. Chairman, parliamentary inquiry ?

Mr. McClory. The staff from answering the question.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. HoGAN. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. I wish the gentleman would further reflect before
he speaks.

Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvixsky. Mr. Chairman, thank you.
I am disturbed by the remarks of the gentleman from Illinois. I. for

one, feel Mr. Jenner and Mr. Doar should be commended for tlieir

efforts. I think the memorandum was exactly what this committee
requested. There was no recommendation in that. It was left open.

I think Mr. St. Clair and the President will be given due process.
And I think that to get oft' on a side issue, and I am very concerned
aliout partisanships, it bothers me as one member of this conunittee. I
would like to really have two major points that I think we should at

least get on the table and get clear. We arc having a special order this

afternoon. We had a minority memo that was presented to us. It was
my opinion that Mr, Doar and Mr. Jenner were in agreement on this

memo from the staff. To me it was unusual to receive a minority memo
actually at the same time, in some respects, prior to going over the
general staff report. If this is the case, I would like to know first of
all who prepared the minority report? Does it speak for all of the
minority members? And maybe more specifically are we going to go
through this on every issue ? ^Vlien I see that INIr. Jenner and Mr. Doar
are in agreement, when I am trying to avoid the partisanship issue, who
is speaking, when I see a minority report? Who prepared this report?
And does this represent every view of the minority members ? Does this

represent a separate view of the staff ? What is happening ? Why are we
having this kind of situation, that I think does a disservice to this

committee and certainly to the fine work that both Mr. Doar and Mr.
Jenner have given to us. So I guess the first point is who prepared the
minority report? Mr. Doar, Mr. Jenner, would you care to comment
on that?
And I might say I do not question the right of the minority to have

its views heard.
Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Hutchinson. Would the gentleman yield to me ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Hutchinson, I will be glad to yield to you.
Mr. HtT'ciiixsoN. I thank tlie gentleman for yielding to me. The

minority views were prepared at the request of the minority.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Did Mr. Jenner prepare this report? "V\nio pre-

pared this?

Mr. Hutchinson. Yes. Mr. Jenner prepared this report.
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Mr. ISIezvinsky. Mr. Jenner prepared the minority report?

Mr. Hutchinson. He did,

Mr. INIezvinsky. All right.

Mr. Jenner, it was my understanding that—this was sort of a sur-

prise coming out as far as the timing of that

Mr. HoGAN. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. ]\Iezvinsky. Is that incorrect?

Mr. Hutchinson. If the gentleman would yield further to me on

that. There was no intent to be surprised about anything here. The
point is that once before we put out a minority report and there was
a great amount of interest about whether all members of the com-
mittee should have access to that minority report. So, as a matter of

policy, we decided that we would send it to everybody, including the

majority.

Mr. Mezvinsky. All right. ]Mr. Chairman, I just want to make my
point. As far as I am concerned, we are shifting oil', and we are having
special orders and we are finding an attempt, I think, to not make it

bipartisan. And the gentleman from Illinois, ^Ir. Eailsback, at one
point in the briefing said that we have had, to a great extent. \A-

partisanship, and I think that is important.
Xow. the second question I want to raise is that all of us. I think,

know that we have had the Joint Committee report on the President's

taxes in front of us, and I am convinced, as I have just come home
from the district, and I have had a lot of questions as to what is on
the peoples' minds concerning this, and what the committee is doing,

and I just have several basic questions I would like to ask on that.

Have we requested and, if so, have we received the IRS report, which
is really what the President has agreed to abide by ? And I might say
that I think this is important because it is my understanding that ^Ir.

Nixon waived the attorney-client relationship for the IRS investi-

gation, which reportedly he does not intend to waive for our com-
mittee. And I would hope that : One. we have requested these reports

;

two, that we have a tra,nscript of the interview; and three, that the
Joint Committee on Internal Revenue Taxation, the backup evidence
is available for us to take a look at. And I might say that I do not
tliink ^ye can avoid the fraud question. And to me, when I see the fact

that the President and his tax attorneys are hightailing it away from
any responsibility for the errors in his tax returns, it gives the infei--

ence that simple negligence was not involved. And I think that is all

the more reason for us and for this committee to get to the root of the
matter.

So, specifically, have we requested the IRS report for our delibera-
tion on the matter of the President's taxes?

jSIr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Jenner.
Mr. Dennis. JNIr. Chairman ?

Mr. Jenner. May I speak to the committee on a point of personal
privilege, because my professional integrity has been involved by
the discussion that has occurred. I participated in the drafting of the
staff report presented to this committee at great length and for many
hours. And all of what is in that staff report has my professional
approval.
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I understood, and I still understand, and I think it is correct that
the minority may ask me to prepare an advocate memorandum, or any
member of this committee, whether minority or majority, may ask
me, or ask Mr. Doar, to prepare an advocate's memorandum vrhen it

is known that it is an advocate's memorandum. And when the minority,
in a caucus, by unanimous vote, requests that a memorandum of that
character which you received be prepared, two of the fme young con-
stitutional lawyers on the staff, prepared the memorandum that was
delivered to all of joii last week as the minority memorandum. I par-
iicipated in part on that. Now, nowhere to the extent that I partici-

pated in the report of the staff memorandum. I sought to go through
to eliminate abrasive mateiial, what I thought was abrasive material
in that memorandum. And Mr. Hutchinson is correct in his response
to the gentleman that I saw to the preparation of that memorandum.
And if you please, Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen of the com-

mittee, those are the facts.

Mr. PToGAN. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.
]Mr. Mezvinsky. Can I have the answer to the question, if I may, on

the IRS question?

]Mr. Dennis. Point of order, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Well, Mr. Mezvinsky, I would like to state I think

that you were making a statement rather than inquiring and I think

that you suggested that this material, if it has not been before us,

that it be material that we consider. And, as you already do know,
the staff has this area of inquiry under study at the present time, and
certainly any material that is going to be pertinent to that area of

inquiry is going to be received, and is going to be requested if we do
not have it. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Mr. Chairman, I have been asking tlie same question

now since January 7, when I came back from Jam.aica and met with
you and the senior members of both sides. And the same questions

have not been answered any more than any of the questions have been
answered here today.

Now, I do not want to be disrespectful to the authority of the chair-

man. But, when are we going to vote on some things on this com-
mittee? ^\nien is this committee going to do something? I have been
asking this question.

The Chairman. Will the gentleman yield at that point, since that
is a direct question ?

Mr. Sandman. Yes, sir. I am not yielding all of my time, however.
The Chairman. No, I will give the gentleman his time.

I would hope that the gentleman wants to vote on this when he
has a thorough and complete report from the staff, when the White
House has supplied to us the pertinent information, the relevant in-

formation that we are seeking, when we have been able to evaluate
this. And I am sure that the gentleman would want to do no less than
make that kind of a judgment only after we have had a complete and
thorough inquiry.

]Mr. Sandman. I agree with you, Mr. Chairman, on the facts. I do
not want to make any decision on the facts until they are all presented.
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This is not what I am talking about. I am bringing up exactly the

same things that we discussed around that table with ^Mr. Doar,

yourself, aiid the ranking members on both sides on January 7, when
we brought up the fact of when are we going to decide the rules of

procedure.

Now, regardless of what we say here today, and wliat you have

already said in your press release, that you are not going to do this

until after you present the evidentiary material, and I never heard

of such a thing and neither did you. You do not adopt rules after you

start a trial. The rules are adopted before the trial.

And, second, ]Mr. McClory three times has asked Mr. Doar questions.

lie has not gotten an answer yet. Is there a good reason why we cannot

vote today on whether or not the President should have counsel ? AVliy

do you not answer that question ? Why do we have to have any evidence

presented for you to answer that question ? Why do we need another

brief?

Mr. Sarbanes. W^uld the gentleman yield ?

INIr. Sandmaiv. No. I want a question answered by Mr. Doar.

The Chairiman. Mr. Doar.
;Mr. Doar. The matter of the presence and participation of the

President's counsel breaks down into a number of elements. Some of

the elements can be answered today, in my judgment. Some of the

elements should not be answered until the committee has the matters

that are going to make up the initial presentation before it, xVnd in

my judgment, the matter of notice, the decision with respect to notice

of the proposed "Statement of Facts" could very well be answered

today. The question with respect to the availability of the material,

evidentiary material, that supports the presentation of facts ought not

to be answered until the connnittee thinks through very carefully, Mr.
Congressman, the question of its rules with respect to confidentiality >,

tlie question about the scope of the examination, and the examination

by the members of the committee ought to be considered at the time

that the committee has a specific idea of the nature of the evidentiary

material, which it has before it. That is my judgment.
So, in answer to your question, there are some things that can be

answered today, and I will say to the Congressman that in our memo-
randum that we were asked to prepare, we were instructed not to make
any recommendations about that. That is the reason why we did not

make them.
]Mr. Sandman. Yes, but look. As one lawj^er to another, have a

right to disagree with what you just said.

Mr. Doar. Sure you do.

INIr. Sandman. ISTow, I am wondering when am I going to have a
right to reflect that in a vote as a member of this committee. Am I
going to have a right to do that some day ? I do not agree with what
he just said. I do not agree with that at all.

The Chairman. Of course, the gentleman
]Mr. Sandman. Well, when am I going to get that right?

The Chairman. The gentleman is a member of the committee and
the gentleman will vote on the adoption of the rules of procedure
when those rules of procedure are before the committee.
Mr. Dennis. Will the gentleman yield for a question?
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Mr. Sandman. One other question I would like to ask. On the

question as to preferring affidavits over depositions, now who made
that decision ? This committee did not. Who made that decision ?

Mr. Brooks. I have been for it all of the time, and I would like to

take a little credit for it. I have advocated it strongly.

Mr. Sandman. Let me ask Mr. Doar. Did you advocate it, using

affidavits instead of depositions?

Mr. Doar. At all times since I have been here, I have considered

the possibility of using both affidavits and depositions. There never

was a situation where there were only going to be used depositions

and no affidavits. Depositions were going to be used in a case where
you could not get a witness to give you a sworn statement, under oath.

Mr. Sandman. All right, now. What are you going to do with the

affidavits? Are you going to try to present those as evidence to this

committee without witnesses ?

Mr. Doar. They will be presented initially to the committee, some
affidavits, some sworn testimony before the grand jury, some sworn
testimony before other committees of Congress, and the committee
then, when it sees that, will make up its mind what it wants to do
with it.

Mr. Sandman. And if the committee wants more information that

is not discussed by the affidavit, no doubt we will require a majority
vote of the committee to have that presented by live witnesses, will

we not ?

Mr. Doar. You would.
Mr. Sandman. All right. In the absence of an affirmative vote along

that line, what posture do those affidavits serve?

]Mr. Doar, The affidavits would be considered for such weight as

the committee chooses to give to them.
Mr. Sandman. I would like to yield to Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

Tlie Chairman. Is the gentleman yielding his time ?

Mr. Sandman. May I yield to Mr. Kailsback what time I have ?

Mr. Eailsback. I think Mr. Hogan—why don't you yield to Mr.
Hogan ?

The Chairman. Well, he has yielded to you, Mr. Eailsback.
Mr. Railsback. All right.

Let me just say then, briefly, and I think I will have some time,
I hope, coming up, and I am going to be very brief. But, you know,
I want to agree with some things the chairman said about the subpena.
I want to ask him some questions about how far we are going and
I think we are kind of—we are beginning to turn into a real pai'tisan

squabbling body, and I kind of hate to see all of this partisanship. I
do just want to reemphasize what he said about this affidavit business.
I cannot help but think that we would be making a terrible mistake
if, after rejecting, which apparently you have decided to do, re-

jecting the procedures that you were recommending for the taking of
depositions, if we really did go to a system where we used—I think
some of them are just signed statements, I think, or sworn—if we
start using those as evidence. I can tell you right now that I think
there would be unanimity on this side "as far as objecting to that
kind of a practice. I am not going to say it is a subterfuge, you know.
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That has been said already last week. It seems to me we are going

to extremes, really, to keep Mr. St. Clair out of action, and I will

elaborate further when I get recognized.

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.

Mr. IvASTENivrEiER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
This is a briefing session, and I would like to hear what counsel

has to say about a couple of questions. And I might observe, Mr.
Chairman, that I still think in terms of priorities we are still at the

stage of collecting the evidence. And that comes first, before, yes,

even l^efore the representation of the President, whom I might perhaps

facetiously observe seems to be rather aggressively represented pres-

ently. I do not know that he even needs Mr. St. Clair.

I would like to go to the question of the tapes and ask, we have
before us, of course

Mr. McClort. If the gentleman will yield, I view my position as

rej^resenting the Congress of the United States and not the President,

and not the prosecutor of the President, but it seems to me that in

order for us to be impartial, we should not only have our counsel

to present the case, but we should also have as every other, as in

every other impeachment inquiry since 1854 or 1876, accord the

right to counsel for the respondent to be present here and cross-

exnmine or comment, and that is the only point that I am trying to

make; not to try to champion the position of the President but to

chami)ion the position of the Congress.
Mr. Kastenmeier. I appreciate my friend's point of view, and we

will liear further from him later in the day.

My point is, that since we have before us the letter of April 4 to you,

I think over the weekend, the last 4 days, we have heard a number of

reports in the press about whether arrangements have been made, or

are being reached informally, with respect to the production of

certain of the evidence that we have requested. And I am wondering
whether there is anything further you can report to us before tomor-

row in those terms, because, after all, whether these reports or opinions

of others, which do appear in the press are correct or not, I suppose

we ought to know rather than have to await a later date.

Mr. DoAR. There has been no—I have no information with respect

to anything further with respect to the position of Mr. St. Clair,

except that which is outlined in his letter that we will have his

answer tomorrow.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Are you convinced that his letter tomorrow will

be definitive in terms of how we must proceed in terms of what we
have requested ?

INIr. DoAR. ISTo. I am not convinced ftf that. I have no idea what his

letter will contain.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Because we may still approach a moment of

truth as far as what we will do, and it would seem to me that he has

said that, as a result of our discussions, referring to the discussions

you have had, that progress has been made, and I wondered whether
you could report anything further alDOut that? Are you convinced in

your own mind that progress has been made with respect to the end
that this committee seeks in jretting the evidence?

Mr. DoAR. Well, Mr. St. Clair has said that the last letter wherein we
set forth—which spelled out the basis for the six items of requests

—
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was helpful to him in reaching a decision as to what to recommend to

the President with respect to the production of those tapes. That is

all I can report.

Mr. I^STENMEiER. One other question. Assuming we get the tapes, or

much of the tapes, the question also was raised the last tinie whether
those tapes, whether you had suggested to us that he might be able to

edit those tapes. That is to say, to edit, and then the question arose

whether the editing that you apparently alluded to should pertain to

the segments in which we are interested, or the segments that may be

on the tapes which were not included in the matters in which we were
interested. Could you illuminate the committee on that point?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I did not use the word "editing." But I did say that

in the first instance, that when you request documents from an attor-

ney representing a party that he makes the first decision as to what to

to produce. He will produce those conversations that are covered by
our letter. And we will have to examine what he produces in order to

determine whether or not that is satisfactory.

Mr. Kastenmeier. You suggested that he had a certain discretion in

this connection, and I am wondering w.hat discretion he would have
insofar as your requests were quite specific? What discretion ought
he to have about any given conversation, whether to make that avail-

able to the committee or not?
Mr. DoAR. Well, if one of those conversations, let us say, between

the President and one of his assistants, related to a mattei- involving
the Near East totally related to a matter in the Near East, then that

would not be covered by our request. And in that situation, that par-

ticular conversation would not be produced.
Mr. Kastermeier. And you would probably rely solely on Mr. St.

Clair's discretion ?

Mr. DoAR. No. I would not rely on ISIr. St. Clair's discretion at all.

I would just report back to the committee wdiat was the answer of

Mr. St. Clair with respect to our demand for information. And tlien

the committee would take the final determination as to whether it was
satisfied with that or not. And it would take into consideration what
information was produced, and the reasons that were given why certain

other conversations were not produced.
]Mr. Kastenmeier. Is it contemplated that you or any other mem-

ber of the committee might listen to those conversations with iMr. St.

Clair to make that decision, or to participate in it ?

Mr. DoAR. Not unless the committee authorizes that. It is our posi-

tion right now that it is for the committee to make that decision,

and the committee only. The committee and only the committee could
decide that it would be for mysqlf and Mr. Jenner, or for several mem-
bers of the committee to listen to make a decision about a tape that

you may desire to have.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman, I will not pursue the matter any

further. But, I think following whatever receipt or acknowledgement
we get tomorrow from Mr. St. Clair, we should be prepared to con-

sider the details of how some of this evidence might be produced or

received.

Mr. Doar. I agree with that.

The Chairman. INIr. Railsback.
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]Mr, Eailback. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to ask some questions, and I think I should direct them

probably to the Chair, and maybe counsel would want to help out.

Is it presently your thinking, INIr. Chairman, that if the "VMiite

House did not produce the additional materials that we have requested,

that any subpena power that you would request would be limited to

the certain specific items that we felt necessary ? In other words, if on
Wednesday or Thursday we decide to subpena or authorize the chair-

man to subpena some materials, I take it that request would be a
limited request rather than just a general subpena povrer request?

The CnAiR]vrAN. I would rather not speculate on what we might do,

what the committee might do, until we have received a reply from Mr.
St. Clair.

Mr. Railsback. Let me just say to the chairman, in my personal case,

I think I might be willing to support a subpena if it was for certain

requested materials that have not been produced.
Let me ask Mr. Doar. Mr. Doar, would it make any difference to

you, or do you have a recommendation as to whether we might be able

to strike an accommodation with Mr. St. Clair in the interest of

expediting this whole inquiry by permitting him to just simply sit

in and listen, if we say that he did not have the right to object, or

to object as to relevance or anything, but to let him offer any sug-

gestions that he had at the time that we get these additional materials?

Would you have any objections to that? This is a proposal that has
been put forth, I think, by Mr. McClory and also Mr. Rhodes.

]\Ir. Doar. Yes. I do have a recommendation. My recommendation
would be No. 1, that as soon as the committee receives a copy of the

statement of facts, proposed statement of facts, that they be made
available to Mr. St, Clair. No. 2, the committee work out a way where
Mr. St. Clair would have an opportunity to make laiown to the com-
mittee the President's viewpoint with respect to the way the presenta-

tion is going to be conducted so that the committee would have Mr. St.

Clair's view as to whether or not the procedure was, in his view, fair.

No. 3, and I have to preface this with what I want to say to the

members of the committee, that I am ver\% very concerned about the

question of confide]itiality with respect to the material. I understand
what the rules of the House are with respect to executive sessions.

But, I also, have great respect for this committee and great respect for

the Plouse, and I would be very fearful of the possibility of a leak of
this material during the evidentiary presentation, however, it comes
out.

Mr. RArLSBACK. Well, let me just interrupt you and just suggest

to you : My feeling is that the White House does not necessarily have
the right to participate. I think what we are talking about, when we
ai'e talking about procedure, we are talking about congressional grace

or privileges that we are giving to him. Now, I think that it is very
obvious that some of your concern, if he is given untrammeled discre-

tion, say, to object as to relevance or anything along those lines, I think
that that can be controlled by this committee, just as I think the ques-

tion of confidentiality can be protected by this committee. In other

words, it is something we could address ourselves to. I think he is com-
ing here because of a privilege we are giving to him. It is something we
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should do for him because it has been done the last 100 years. But, I

just wanted
Mr. DoAR. Now, Congressman, I agree with that. I think that the

two points with respect to participation depend upon the committee
making a decision as to how that can be handled, and the two tilings

that the committee has to do, or has to think about, are : First, the con-

fidentiality ; and second, how it can get along with its business, so

that objections, viewpoints, positions, are made at an orderly time
during the proceedings.
Mr. Eailsback. Well, now, I share that, and I think that we can

work this out. I think that we can protect the confidentiality. I think

we can protect some unreasonable delays. And tliere are ways to do
that and we should be addressing ourselves to that.

Mr. DoAR. Well, now, that is exactly what Mr. Jenner and I are

doing, and it is for that reason that it takes a little longer than you
might think in spelling out the rules of procedure to govern the evi-

dentiary presentation.

Mr. Railsback. All right, now
Mr. DoAR. But I want to be clear again with respect to participa-

tion and affording Mr. St. Clair the opportunity to have the proposed
statement of facts, and know what is in the evidentiary material, that

I think that it would be fair that he should have that at the same
time that the committee has it, no sooner.

Mr. Railsback. All right. Let me just summarize because you are

going to soothe a lot of our minds if you answer this question the way
I think you are going to answer it.

Are you proceeding—and am I correct you want to proceed—by
presenting us with the trial book, which is going to contain statements
of facts, and references, and then before we get into any of the evi-

dence, whether it is documentary evidence taken in executive session,

or are we going to determine before we reach that point, whether or not
Mr. St. Clair can participate ?

Mr. Doar. No. Well—I do not like

Mr. Railsback. You see, we have to have an answer to this. It makes
a big difference to a lot of us.

Mr. Doar [continuing]. The words trial book bother me. That does
not comport with my concept of how the presentation will work. The
presentation, in my mind, would be that there would be a proposed
statement of facts, supported by evidentiary materials. This eviden-

tiary material would consist of a document or documents, would consist

of swoni testimony before committees of Congress or the courts, ex-

cerpts, would consist of grand jury testimony, would consist of por-
tions of all of one or more recorded conversations.

""Mr. Railsback. Would it not be references to those various docu-

ments, rather than—in other words, I can understand why you would
want to get this ready for us so that we have references of indexes to

materials that you are going to present to us. But, before we actually

meet in executive session to have those things read to us, first I think it

is very important that St. Clair, whether he has a ricrht to object or

not, at least be present to sit in on all of those proceedings. And I see

no reason in the world why he should not be permitted to be here, once
we start actually presenting. Now, wliat are you sajang about that ?



295

Mr. DoAR. I do not see any objection to that either, subject to the

fact that YOU can adopt rules'of procedure where the staff would have

the op]3ortunity, would have the opportunity to present this material;

to YOU in an orderly fashion.

iSIr. Railsback. With Mr. St. Clair present ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, with him present.

Mr, Railsback. If we agree—

—

iNIr. DoAR. If that was your wish.

Mr. Railsback. All right.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, I would like to follow up the questions that Mr. Mez-

vinsky asked because I read the Joint Committee's report, and a num-
lier of A^ery serious questions were raised in my mind with respect to

it. And I would like to Imow, are we going to seek the IRS report?

?ih-. DoAR. The answer is "Yes."
]^^s. HoTTZ^iAx. And the committee is not precluded, and the staff

is not ]irecluded from investigating wh'^ther or not there was tax fraud

in connection with the President's tax returns ?

Mr. DoAR. The answer is "Tlie committee is not."

Ms. Holtzman. OK.
Mr. Doar. The staff is not. excuse me. And, as a matter of fact. I

will say to the Congresswornan from Brooklyn that we have begim to

analyze the report of the Joint Committee. We have had meetings

with, the coimsel for that committee. We have agreed to an exchange
of information. We have made a number of inquiries with respect

to questions in that report, and we are giving the matter careful

examination.
Ms. Holtzman. Well, I thank you, Mr. Doar, for that assurance.

I also have been concerned about one other area that I raised with

you at the very outset of tliis inquiry, when you advised me that you
were going to make requests of the JPresident, or through his counsel

for various materials. And I asked you at that time whether or not

you were going to raise the matter of safekeeping of the documents and
materials that we requested during the pendencv of our requests. Has
anything been done to raise such a matter with Mr. St. Clair, especially

in view of certain rumors that certain tapes that we have requested are

not in existence ?

jVIr. Doar. Well, each time we have met with Mr. St. Clair and Mr.
Buzhardt, they have explained to us how these tapes are now in a safe

at the White JETouse, and how the Secret Service checks everybody in

and out any time anybody goes in the room where these tapes are kept.

Ms. Holtzman. Are they still writing it down on a little slip of

brown paper, or are they keeping better records than they used to do ?

Mr. Doar. I think that you would find that the procedure and the

recordkeeping with respect to the tapes, you would find it now satis-

factory. Now, I have not seen it but that is my judgment.
Ms. Holtzman. Have you satisfied yourself in your own mind that

the procedure for the safekeeping of the documents are adequate to

insure this committee gets the materials it has requested ?

Mr. Doar. I think I should say to the members of the committee
that some of the tapes, or the recorded conversations that we have
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requested, were for the afternoon and evening of the 15th of April.

At the hearing before Judge Sirica, there was testimony offered, there

was testimony offered that the tape ran out that afternoon, and that

the conversation between the President and John Dean was not re-

corded. That was earlier in the afternoon of that da}-. My assumption
is that it may be that some of the conversations later on that day are

the ones that, as we have gotten in the press reports, may not have been
recorded.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. I just Wanted to make one final observation with
respect to the participation of the President's counsel. One is that I
was disturbed to read in Mr. St. Clair's brief that the President wished
"to participate fully in all matters related to this committee's im-
peachment inquiry." That seems to me to be such an extraordinarily

broad request and so completely unsupported in the precedents that

I found it rather astounding that it was made. I take this to mean par-

ticipation in the deliberations of the committee, participation in the

legal analysis of this committee, rather than the appropriate par-

ticipation by counsel, and I thought it was an extremely broad request.

I also feel that with respect to Mr. Eailsback's suggestion that per-

haps we could agree to take less than we have requested, in view of ex-

pediting the matter ; that the President's counsel has had our request

outstanding since February 26, and he has had the opportunity since

that time. And it has been over 40 days to give us any one of those

tapes over which there was no question. And in my mind, he has not

sought to do so, and I think the expedition would come if he gave us

the materials immediately, and if he had given it to us when we had
asked for it 40 days ago.

The Chairman. The time of the gentlelady has expired.

3Ir. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. I think we did not recognize Mr. Hogan at the last

-meeting, so we will recognize him now.
jNIr. Hogan. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
First of all, Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask Mr. Garrison to re-

spond in view of a column which appeared over the weekend, a syndi-

cated column, which carried information which seems to be directly

contradicatory of information that INIr. Jenner gave us on this point

of personal privilege. I think in fairness we ought to allow Mr. Gar-

rison a point of personal privilege to respond to the question that Mr.

ISIezvinsky asked.

The Chairman. If ^Ir. Garrison would like to respond.

Mr. Garrison. Mr. Chairman and ladies and gentlemen of the

committee, I think fhe queptiou. that Mr. Mezvinsky asked, and that

Congressman Hutchinson answered, probably disposes of the essential

points that were raised in that article, except that I would lilce to

comment that stories such as that appear to me to emanate from

people who basically confuse defense, or, having^ different view m
<^ritical matters facing this inquiry, with obstruction. I think it is un-

fortunate that the efforts of both sides of the committee and both

sides of the staff to reach agreement, wherever possible, on policy posi-

tions, caused him to feel that if agi-eement is not achieved that that is

somehow obstructing: or impeding^the inquiry. I think that is the same

mistake that is made, allegedly, by the administration that we are m-
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vestigating, in some instances in the past. And I am very sorry that

this minor, usually, and sometimes not so minor, disagreement witliin

the staff seems to be portrayed as obstruction or impediments.

I would make one other comment, and that is, that, with respect

to the question of delaying decision on whether the President's coun-

sel should be involved in these proceedings, it is not, so far as I

know, the view of these two gentlemen that Mr. Jenner referred to,

the minority lawyers who worked on that project, or myself, that that

decision need be delayed,

Mr. HoGAN. Thank you.
Now, Mr. Chairman, directing myself briefly to the procedural

question, I will not belabor the observations made on both sides of the

aisle on the St. Clair question. It obviously seems important that we
make that decision before we begin hearing the evidence.

But another procedural question to which we have also not addressed
ourselves, which it seems to me we must handle much before that, is

what we do in the case of our issuing a subpena and having the subpena
ignored. Now, if it is going to be our procedure this week to debate
and perhaps vote on the question of whether or not a subpena should
be issued, then we certainly cannot delay until after the Easter recess

to decide what procedures we are going to follow in the event a subpena
issued is ignored. I wonder if counsel would respond to that ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, Cona:ressman Hogan, we have a brief prepared with
respect to the alternatives tliat are available to tlie committee in the
event that a person who has been subpenaed chooses not to comply
with tlie subpena. And we would be prepared to present that to the
committee at the tune that they consider the issuance of the subpena.

Briefly, the committee could consider this and vote to recommend
to the House itself, that the person who defied the subpena be held
in contempt. The other thing the committee could do would be to take
that failure to comply into account in considering the evidentiary

material that was presented to it, and the committee would have to

decide that.

A third thing the committee might do, or the committee might
consider doing, is going to court with respect to enforcement of the

subpena. There are substantial and serious difficult legal problems
with respect to that course. The fourth course might be that the person
who has been subpenaed would choose to go to court, and the com-
mittee would have to decide what his posture would be in opposition

to an application to a court by the person subpenaed.
We have a brief being worked on, outlining and summarizing those

positions.

IMr. HooAN. I certainly agree about the complexity of it, and that

makes it that much more important that this committee resolve those

questions as quicklv as possilile. And since we are going to be depart-

ing Thursdav for Easter recess, I think it is imperative, Mr. Chairman,
that we resoh^e that question at the same time we resolve any question

of whether or not we are going to issue a subpena.
The CPTATRMAisr. Well, we would hope to consider

Mr. DoAR. Could I say, I think. Congressman, that I would caution

the committee not to resolve that. I would assume, and I would suggest

the committee might be well, if it assumed that any subpena that this
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committee issued would be complied with, and that it would not ^-et

into the question of what would we do if it were not complied with
mitil that day came and passed that there was noncompliance.
The Chaieman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. JNIr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman, certainly we are proceeding with a

very difficult constitutional matter and the bipartisansliip that we
have allegedly displayed so far, I think is something we would all

seek to retain and regard as our solemn responsibility.

To me it is not unlike a levee along the river. We have just had a

200-year flood that may have influenced me some on the Mississippi,

and the levee offers protection, as the Constitution offers protection,

and a shield to its citizens as it protects the mayor, the minister, the
priest, and the penitents. It protects the prisoners in the city jail. And
as our constitutional safeguards are weakened, they will be weakened
for all citizens. One that is lowered as a shield for Angela Davis
may find that the shield is lowered for John Mitchell. One that is

lowered for Ellsberg may find it out of repair for Maurice Stans.

One that is a disrepair for Adam Powell may suddenly be applied to

Richard Nixon. If we lower the height and standards of a levee we
endanger all, good, bad, rich, poor, all colors. And if we do that with
the Constitution with Charles Manson that same standard may be
lowered when it applies to someone else.

We act here, I hope, professionally, and we are a professional seg-

ment of society as well as a political one in tlie Congress. There are

other professionals, doctor, podiatrists, psychiatrists, obstetricians.

"Wlien I think of the problems with Mr. St. Clair I think of an
obstetrician. For an obstetrician to be helpful and competent in

delivering a child, it is not necessary for him to attend the conception.

Indeed, his presence at that stage may hinder the expeditious comple-
tion of the project.

]Mr. Chairman, I have been a prosecutor in a very small area, and
a sheriff might come in with a complaint or a State patrolman might-

come in, or the FBI might make a report, or a private citizen more
likely would come in, and at that point, it was not customary to call

the subject of the investigation, not the defendant, the subject of the

investigation, and tell him he can get an attorney, and get down here,

and say "I want to cross-examine everybody ; I want you to call wit-

nesses.'" You could never have run an office in that manner, and I do not

think you can run this investigation and study in that manner.
It is important to be fair. It is important to be fair to the President

and to the American public. And in the choice between being fair and
appearing to be fair, I would hope this committee of distinguished

lawyers will chose to be fair.

I* admire loyalty. I am from Missouri. I think we must not put

toValty ahead of our responsibilities and I am sure we will not. I am
concerned about partisanship. We have just had a special, separate

recommendation and conclusions the last time we met, sort of a

minority view. My input was not sought. We are going to have a

separate, special order today. My input was not sought. I would prefer

to think that that was because of partisanship rather than competence.



299

But, you can spell partisanship and that starts to spell it and I hope
that we can just dispel it and overcome it. "We do need, we have talked

alwut impeachment and rules of impeachment, the definition. Now,
we are lawyers and we know better than that. "WHio of you can tell me
the name of any Member of the House of Representatives or the

Senate to whom you can dictate his definition of impeachment. We
can be persuasive, we can set guidelines, and I think the staff is doing

a good job of that. But, to hang up on the idea that you can tell a

freely elected INIember of this Congress how to define impeaclinient, we
are kidding.

Procedural rules, I would hope you can have some on this committee

and this committee can have an input and consider them by the last of

this month. I would think that that would be a reasonable time. We
must not be precipitous. I do not know about getting the cart before

the liorse. Mr. Cellar used to warn us against confusing a horse chestnut

v.itli a chestnut horse. We must proceed with great care and i:espect

our responsibilities in the Office of the President, and we all have
7-ospe<;t for that Office. And we seek to do nothing that would weaken
it. and we seek to have the occupant do nothing that would weaken it.

And if I may, in conclusion, Mr. Chairman, my feeling on that issue

is related by Brooks Hays in his story of a San Francisco earthquake
wliere the father and the son see the house trembling and they run in

the house, and they run to the basement, and the chandeliers and every-

ting are shaking and the father said to his son, he said, "God is great

and God is powerful and God is good. Do you want to pray to God to

protect us." And he said, "No, tell him to cut it out."

I have my faith in the rules of this Republic, and let us see that every-

body plays by them.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
T^t me say I am not gonig to make a speech on a conception and the

birth of a baby. But, I do want to comment on something that the

gentleman has said, and to which I have listened to since I came on
this committee, about nonpartisanship. I can count. The gentleman
from Missouri can count. If we really wanted to have a nonpartisan

display of support of the initial action, the House would have come
\\]) with an e^jually divided committer, so many Democrats and so

many Republicans. And as I look at this, we have 38 members on this

coininittee, 21 Democrats, 17 Republicans, and if I were on the major-
itv pide. T would say that is nonpartisanship. So, I think that the mytli

about this being a nonpartisan committee ought to be expelled.

Mr. HuNGATE. Would the gentleman yield ?

]Mr. Latta. I will be happy to.

Mr. HuNGATE. The gentleman would agree that the issuance of sub-

penas is between the chairman and the ranking Republican member?
Mr. Latta. I said nothing, I did not comment about subpenas. I was

talking about the nonpartisanship that we have heard so much about.

But, as a new member of the committee, I am interested in knowing
w])o i"? (lirectinjr this inquiry, whether it is the staff or whether it is this

committee, and I have not been able to find out.



300

I recall we had one discussion here a couple of meetings ago, or a

couple of briefing sessions ago, whichever you like, whichever term you
like to use, where I thought at the next meeting of this committee we
were going to discuss this matter of subpena powers and the right of

Mr. St. Clair to be present at the taking of depositions. Then it came to

me that in the statf there was bemg circulated a memorandum as to

how you were not going to take depositions, you were going to take

affidavits. So, I took that to mean, and I am not wholly naive, to be a

calculated attempt to circumvent the wishes of the majority of tliis

committee. And I might say for the record, I do not like it. I did not

like it then.

This idea of waiting until a statement of facts is presented is ridic-

ulous on its face, because everyone on this committee, especially those

who have been in political battles and know something about politics,

know something about public opinion, know full well that once a state-

ment of facts is issued by the stall', the ladies and gentlemen around
that table, and these television cameras will be telling the world tliat the

staff of the Committee on the Judiciary has issued a statement of facts.

And for all practical purposes that will be the issue right there. And
Mr. St. Clair and company, whoever they might be, will have
abolutely no opportunity to have interrogated those witnesses, and I

said at the time that this matter was brought up that I think that

the American people want the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but
the truth. And, as a lawyer, there is only one way you can get all

of that truth, whether it is in this investigation, or some subsequent
investigation. It is to give those individuals an opportunity to cross-

examine.
And even the Washington Post, if you please, and the Evening Star

newspaper here, the New York Times and others who have not treated

the President very kindly, immediately came to his defense. They want
the truth, as the American people want the truth. And they said they
should have the right to cross-examine in those depositions. So. we
very carefully come up with the idea that we are not going to take de-

positions. We are going to take affidavits, and we are going to take
statements. And I learned that they were already taking these state-

ments and informing the people, Mr. Chairman, that they really did
not have to submit to a deposition, they did not have to submit if they
did not want to. They were appearing voluntarily.

I do not think, Mr. Chairman, that is the way the American people
want this committee to proceed through its staff. And as I raised the
question initially, I wonder who is conductinfi' that investigation. I
certainly know it is not this gentleman from Ohio.
The question about the staff will soon once again be before the House.

As I have heard the reference from Mr. Hays of Ohio, we are about
ready to run out of money, and I, for one, am not going to be ready
to vote on that, an additional amount of money before we find out how
the first $1 million has been expended. And I cannot answer to my
people, and I do not know whether we can answer to the American
people because we have had so little input.

Mr. HuNGATE. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Latta. I really pray, Mr. Chairman, that henceforth this com-
mittee can have more direction in what the staff is doing, and that we



301

will bring out something that concerns the committee, that the commit-
tee will decide the matter and not the staff. After all, they are only sup-

posed to be working for us, and not us working for them.

The Chairman. Mr. Latta, I merely would like to comment be-

cause I think it becomes necessary to do so. It is unfortunate that Mr.
Latta has come on late to this committee. But I am sure that had he lis-

tened to all of the statements made by Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner, who
have been acting on behalf of the committee, with instructions from
the committee, that at no time had they made judgments or decisions

except to follow the direction and the authorization of the committee
to get the facts, the unadulterated facts which the gentleman is inter-

ested in getting and to present them. And I am sure that that was not

anything that the committee members contemj^lated doing, or could

have done. And I am sure that if we are patient, as we must be, and
await the presentation of this material, and have the rules of procedure
before us, as we will

Mr. Latta. That is the point, Mr. Chairman, I am raising, that it is

too late when you present to this committee a statement of facts, based
on what the staff thinks is a statement of facts, and you have no right

to cross-examine from Mr. St. Clair, that it is too late, because in the

minds of the American people and the minds of the world, the issue

will have been met at that point. And I do not think that is fair and
I think that we need some instructions from this committee to the

staff as to how to proceed before we get this statement of facts.

The Chairmam. IMr. Rangel.
]Mr. E ANGEL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, last week I asked you whether or not you thought the

proposed trip of President Nixon to Russia might delay our inquiry,

and I think you answered in the negative. Then today our chairman
indicates that because the President is attending a funeral, that ques-

tions we had raised as of February 25, are now going to be delayed in

answering. Do you still believe that the President's proposed trip

would in no way interfere with our inquiry, and that Mr, St. Clair and
his associates would be able to do whatever they want to do in con-
nection wnth our inquiry, without the presence of the President of the

United States?
"

^

Mr. Doar. Yes, I do. And I will say two things : the first thing is

that there are no charges yet against the President of the United
States.

And, No. 2, Mr. St. Clair has told me that the information that we
have asked for will be submitted to us tomorrow. In his reply he has
told me that.

]Mr. Rangel. 'V^Hiat have charges got to do with Mr. St. Clair's

participation?
]\rr. Doar. It does not have anything to do with it.

Mr. Rangel. Wliat we are talking about today is they want to par-
ticipate long before we determine whether there are any charges.

]Mr. Doar. It does not have anything to do with his participation.

But, your question was whether or not the President would continue
in the performance of his duties pending this inquiry.

Mr. Rangel. You used the words "performance of his duties," I am
talking about leaving the United States of America for a prolonged
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period of time, whether in performance of his duties or not. I am ask-
ing if the short absence of the President makes it impossible for Mr. St.

Clair to respond on time to what we have requested. Why do you be-
lieve that a prolonged absence of the President would allow him to be
more effective ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, Mr. St. Clair has said a short absence would not
make it impossible for him to reply.

Mr. Eangel. Thank you.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Rangel. I yield to Mr. Edwards.
The Chairman. Mr. Rangel, have you yielded 2

Mr. Rangel. I yield to Mr. Edwards.
The Chairman. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Thank you. I thank the gentleman for yielding and

I am only going to make one brief comment.
It seems to me that this morning the majority side is being put into

a position where we are being implicitly accused of not offering the
President due process. And I want to protest this most mightily. We
have not voted on the matter of representation by INIr. St. Clair. I^t me
say that I disagree veiy strongly with any idea that this side of the
aisle is not going to be more than fair to the President, more than fair
all the way down the line with regard to due process, representation.
We are not going to end this impeachment, as far as a number of iis

on this side are concerned with anyone saying that we did not offer

him a very square deal.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Butler.
Mr. Butler. Thank you, I\Ir. Chaimnan,
The Chairman. We did not recognize Mv. Butler at the last meeting,

and I am recog-nizing him now.
Mr. Butler. Well, I will take only a moment. But, I am concerned

about, specifically, the mechanics of this and how we are proceeding.
Counsel, I take mild exception to your representation in your letter to
Mr. St. Clair that you have been directed by this committee to pro-
ceed with these requests, simply because we have not had a business
meeting in which the formality of that was undertalcen. And I am
anxious about the directions, things tiiat pro roprcsonted as the direc-

tions of this committee be actually tlie nr' iiiil formai direction of this

committee.
I am also concerned that we talk about l!ie precedents, from a point

of view of legal procedure. I would like to receive in advance of the
committee meeting, where the subpena is going to be under considera-
tion, a formal statement, de novo, as to exactly why we need those
items requested, and a copy of the form of the subpena that will

be used, and perhaps even the appropriate motion. I am anxious to
have an opportunity to think about tliis step and, specifically, what
we are asked to do and why we must do it, because it is a tremendous
step and it concerns me greatly. So. can T haA'e your assurance that we
will get a formal statement in advance and an opportunity to study it?

INIr. DoAR. Yes, you will.

]\Ir. Butler. All right, sir.

M'ow, also, with reference to Mr. Rodino's release this morning and
his statement, I am pleased that we are going to have a meeting during
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the first week after tlie recess to decide on wliether the issues, and how
the issues can be narrowed. Now. you have been instructed, as I under-
stand it, to prepare a memorandum on these matters and I think we
have had some discussion of it here this morning-. I would like to have
this memorandum in advance of our return. The impression created

here is that when Congress goes into recess that we are out of com-
munication, that perhaps, you know, we are in the Far East or some
place. This is my intention, and I Avould like, if possible, that we would
have this memorandum as soon as it becomes available and then we
would not have to wait until we get back from recess. I would like to

think that we should be able to get it in mid-week, next week, and if it

could be delivered to the members of the committee well in advance
of the meeting we plan, it would be vei'V helpful to me. Is that possible

at all?

Mr. DoAR. "Well, T think—I vrould say that there might be more than
one memorandum. Some of the memorandums would be ready and I

see no reason why they should not be distributed to the committee for

their consideration as soon as they are ready.

Mr. BuTi.ER. I appreciate that.

Mr. Chairman, may I yield to the gentleman from Ohio. From
Indiana.
The CiiAiPtisrAN. The gentleman from Indiana.
Mr. Dennis. I thank the gentleman for yielding. I am sure that

tlie chairman would have recognized me, and I appreciate the gentle-

man yielding.

I cannot understand why there should be any question raised here
by anybody about the right of the minority to ask their counsel to

present a legal brief on a proposition with which the minority is

disagreeing. We will do that any time we please, as far as I am con-

cerned, and I cannot see why it should be a matter of comment by
anyone. We ]mve a right to ask our counsel to do that, and we have a
right to expect him to do what we instruct him to do. And there just

cannot l>e any cjuestion about that in my mind.
Second, it is a matter of great gratification that we are going to

begin holding some business meetings, which, as I indicated at our last

session, I thought absolutely imperative.
Now, I would ]ike to come to the point that we have talked about

quite a little bit, about adopting those procedural matters, particularly
with Mr. St. Clair, as to Mr. St. Clair's participation before the pre-

sentation of the evidence begins.

I am not suggesting, and do not think anyone is suggesting that
]\rr. St. Clair participate in the investigatory stage. But, what we
are all talking about is his right to participate at the time that evidence
is presented to the committee, either documentary or, even more
importantly, orally. And these two things are connected. We need not
only to determine his rights before we begin, or his privileges, or the
rules before we begin taking testimony. We need to determine also

wliether we are going to call some live witnesses. Some of them at least

we can determine on now, because his rights are not going to amount
to anything unless we have live witnesses to cross-examine. And I
have not got my mind made up about this matter any more than the
rest of the committee has. But, I am telling you it is going to take a
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lot to persuade me to vote for an impeachment on a docmnentary
record without any witnesses here, or without any cross-examination.
You miglit as well understand that right now. I do not think anybody
would want to.

Now, Mr. Sandman says "are we going to get a vote on these mat-
ters" and the chairman said "yes," but the point that is important is

when do we get a vote on them. We ought to get a vote on them
before the presentation of testimony begins. Now, Mr. Doar says
some things, they are different, and you can decide now and some you
cannot. But, you can decide rules now, I will submit.

If you think the thing to do is present your documentary e^^dence
first in a closed session, for instance, we can decide to do that. We can
decide whether Mr. St. Clair should be present at such a session or not.

Now, I am open to argument on that question. But when we begin to

present them publicly he ought to be there. Wlien we call testimony,
he ought to be there. And we ought to decide now whether we are
going to call testimony, because as I pointed out last time, if we get
down to the place where we are presenting this documentary testi-

mony, and we have not decided to call any evidence, then we want to

do it. If anybody claims privileges we have got to wait a month, and
the result is going to be exactly what Mr. Latta says; we are going
to do it on a written record. And I am telling you I am not going to

do it on a written record. You have got to do better than that. You
have got to determine these things, and you have got to determine them
not after you start testimony. You have got to draw the ground rules

right now before you put in a bit of testimony before this committee.
And we have got to have a meeting where we can vote. Look, if they
vote us down, OK.
The Chaikman". ^Ir. Butler's time has expired.
Mr. Dennis. They can vote us down but we have to vote before we

go to putting in evidence. Anybody who says differently is wrong.
The Chairman. Mr. Butler's time has expired.
I am advised that the bells have rung. There is a quorum call, and

the committee will stand adjourned. We will have a meeting this week
which will be announced in accordance with the 24-hour rule.

[Whereupon, at 12 :22 p.m.., the committee was adjourned.]



IMPEACHMENT INQUIRY

Impeachment Meeting

THURSDAY, APRIL 11, 1974

House of Eepresentatives,
Committee oist the Jtidiciart,

Washington^ D.G.
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Present: Eepresentatives Eodino (presiding), Donohue, Brooks,

Kastenmeier, Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, Waldie, Flowers,

Mami, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Drinan, Eangel, Jordan, Thornton, Holtz-

raan, Owens, Mezvinsky, ECutchinson, McClory, Smith, Sandman,
Eailsback, Dennis, Fish, Mayne, Hogan, Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froeh-

lich, Moorhead, Maraziti, and Latta.

Impeachment inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Samuel Garrison III, deputy minority counsel ; Joseph A. Woods, Jr.,

senior associate special counsel; and Hillary D. Eodham, counsel;

William Weld, counsel.

Committee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general comisel ; Car-
rier J. Cline, associate general counsel ; and Franklin G. Polk, associate

counsel.

T]ie Chairman. The committee will come to order. The Chair will

read an opening statement. During the past several weeks members
of the Committee on the Judiciary have considered the procedures to

be followed during the evidentiary presentation of our inquiry. We
have had two purposes in mind. First to determine how best to meet
our constitutional responsibility in a proceeding that occurred only

once before during the 200 years of our Eepublic. And second, to

determine how to insure throughout the proceedings fairness to the

President of the United States.

I am now prepared as chairman to recommend some general prin-

ciples with respect to our evidentiary proceeding. First, it would be
my hope that the committee would receive from the staff, that the

committee intends to receive from the staff and to consider initially

all reliable material which tends to establish the facts in issue. At the

time that our evidentiary proceedings begin, we should afford the

President the opportunity to have his comisel present and to receive

such documents and materials as our staff presents to us for our
consideration.

Second, during the presentation of this evidentiar}^ material,

whether in executive or in open session, subject to the rules of the

(305)
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House, the committee should afford the President the opportunity tO'

have his counsel present and to hear the presentation.

Third, at the end of this presentation, the committee should afford

the President the opportunity to have his counsel make his position

known either orally or in writing with respect to the evidentiary

material received by the committee. At that time the President's coun-
sel should also be afforded the opportunity to recommend to the com-
mittee names of witnesses to be called, and to advise the committee as

to the witnesses' expected testimony.
Fourth, if and when witnesses are called, the coriimittee sliould

afford the President the opportunity to have his counsel ask such
questions of the witnesses as the committee deems appropriate.

These policies, in my judgment, are fair and accord with tlio rnle?^

of the House and with past policies of the Judiciary Committee niid

prior impeachment proceedings. In prior impeachment proceedings
the committee was always careful to point out that counsel did not

appear as a matter of right, but was afforded the opportiuiity to

appear by the courtesy of the committee. I say this not in a narrow
sense, but only to point out the fact that the committee, under the

Constitution, camiot relinquish its control over its own proceedings,

and its sole responsibility to determine the course of its impeachment
inquiry:

Accordingly, in keeping with this spirit. I will submit these general

principles to the committee at a meeting during the second week after

the Easter recess when it will convene to consider rules of procedure
for our initial evidentiary presentation.

ISIr. Latta. Mr. Chairman, will we have a copy of those in the
meantime ?

The Chairman. This is merely a statement, and I hoped that tlie

statement had been distributed to you.

Mr. Latta. I do not have a copy. We do not have a copy at tlii- e^^^

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. The statement will be distriluited.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. I am not going to recognize anyone at this time

unless Mr. Hutchinson has something.
Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Chairman. ]\Ir. Doar, will you kindly read the letter which was

received by you from Mr. St. Clair ?

Mr. Doar. Mr. Chairman and members of tlie committee, before

reading the letter, Mr. Jenner asked me to explain to the committee
that he was unable to be present this morning because he asked last

fall to deliver the Henry Scottsburger annual law lecture to the

University of Texas in Austin, and that the engagement had been

made prior to the time that he thought that there would be a meetiiig

this morning. And he asked me to explain this to the members of the

committee, explain his absence.

Now, the letter that the chairman asked me to rend is dated April 9.

and it is from the White House, Washington. It begins

:

Dear Mr. Doar,
I am pleased by the progress evidenced by your letter of April 4. As we have

discussed previously, the request of the committee of February 25 consisted

principally of a blanket demand for tapes and related materials of all dis-



307

cussious between the President and certain of his aides between specifier! dates.
Obviously these conversations would have covered a variety of subjects, and this
made it difficult to balance the requirements of confidentiality again.'t the
legitimate needs of the committee.
However, your letter of April 4 goes a long way toward providin? the addi-

tional specification we felt were lacking in your original request for tapes and
materials. Although further specification might be desirable to assist the Presi-
dent in determining what he should provide the committee, he has directed me
to advise you that a review of the material in question is under way. We expect
that the review can be completed by the end of the Easter recess, and additional
materials furnished at that time will permit the committee to complete its inquiry
promptly.
Regarding an important related issue, I hope that the committee will decide

on my role in its proceedings before the iipcoming recess. There is much work to
be done if the committee is to complete its timetable, and I once again urge that
this vital issue be resolved as soon as possible.
The President wishes me to reiterate to you and the committee his continuing

desire to cooperate so that the pending inquiry can be brought to a prompt con-
clusion. If any problems develop, I, of course, stand ready to meet with you in an
attempt to resolve them.

Sincerely, James D. St. Clair, special counsel to the President.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar. lias there been any subsequent communi-
cation from the White House or Mt. St. Clair following the receipt

of that letter?

Mr. Doar. There has, Mr. Chairman. Yesterday afternoon, early in

the afternoon, Mr, St. Clair called me and asked if I could give him
further information with respect to the February 20, or the on or about
February 20, conversation between the President and Mr. Haldeman.
And I furnished that information to him in the latter part of the
afternoon around 6 o'clock last night, or perhaps a little later than
that. He was having difficulty locating that conversation.

This morning around a quarter of 10 Mr. St. Clair called me and
said that he would like to know whether or not I thought that if he
delivered or was able to deliver to the committee within the next 2 or
3 days, or the next day or two, I do not remember which it was, the
first four items that were requested in our letter of February 25,.

whether that would avoid the issuance of a subpena by the committee,
I told INIr. St. Clair that I, of course, could not speak for the commit-
tee, but that I would bring that to the committee's attention promptly
at the beginning of the m.eeting. That was the conversation.

The Chairman. I am advised that all of the members have at their

desks and have been handed the bidef or the memorandum which jus-

tifies the requested conversation. Is that not so ?

Mr. Doar. That is so.

The Chairman. And I recognize Mr, Donohue.
Mr, DoNOHUE. Mr. Chairman, I move that the Committee on the

Judiciary authorize and direct the issuance and service upon Richard
M. Nixon, President of the United States, of a subpena to be signed by
the chairman, the text of which is at the desk, and copies of which are

now before the members of the committee.
The Chairman. The clerk will read the subpena.
The Clerk [reading] :

By authority of the House of Representatives of the Congress of the United
States of America, to Benjamin Marshall, or his duly authorized representative,

you are hereby commanded to siimmon Richard M. Nixon, President of the United
States of America, or any subordinate officer, official, or employee with custody or

control of the things described in the attached schedule to be and appear before-
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llie Committee on the Judiciary in the House of Representatives of the United
States, of which the Honorable Peter W. Rodino, Jr., is chairman, and to bring
with him the things specified in the schedule attached hereto and made a part of
thereof, in their Chamber in the City of Washington on or before April 25, 1974,
at the hour of 10 a.m., then and there to produce and deliver said things to said
committee, or their duly authorized representative in connection with the com-
mittee's investigation authorized and directed by H. Res. 803, adopted February 6,

1974. Herein fail not and make return of this summons. Witness my hand and seal
in the House of Representatives of the United States, the City of Washington, this
11th day of April, 1974, Peter W. Rodino, Jr., Chairman.

Mr. DoNOHUE, Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Donohiie.
Mr. DoNOHUE. In the hopes of hearing as much discussion as pos-

sible, I now ask unanimous consent that general debate on this matter
proceed for 30 minutes so that a vote on final passage may take place
before 11 :30.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, reserving the right to object •

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I have, at the appropriate time, an

amendment that I wish to offer to the motion. And, of course, I would
like to discuss that.

The Chairman. The gentleman will recognize that the motion is

only on general debate.

Mr. Dennis. Well, of course, I want to offer my amendment at an
early time and we can discuss the whole thing.

The Chairman. The gentleman's right to offer the amendment will

be protected.

Mr. Dennis. I appreciate that.

Now, the next thing, Mr. Chairman, I do not want to be obstruc-

tionary at all. I think we should move along with due course, but we
have got a lot of people here, and this is very important. I just do not

know whether I want to concede only a half an hour to it, although I

assume that my amendment would be adding to that ; is that correct ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. McClort. Reserving the right to object further, Mr.
Chainnan
The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. My reservation is for this purpose, I wonder if it

would not ha possible before we set a time limit on the motion of the

gentleman from IMassachusetts if we could not inquire a little further

with regard to the telephone conversation this morning with Mr. St.

Clair? I have a great
Mr. CoNYERS. Regular order, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. McClory. I have a couple of questions on that. Could we defer

that until we inquire as to the conversation? Would the gentleman
from Massachusetts yield for that purpose ?

Mr. CoNYERS. Regular order, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. McClory. This is a regular order.

Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman, I object to the unanimous consent

request of the gentleman from Massachusetts.

The Chairman. Objection is heard.

Mr. Donohue. Mr. Chairman, I move that general debate on this

matter proceed for 30 minutes so that a vote on the fuial passage may
take place before 11 :30.



309

Mr. Butler. Point of order, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. All those in favor of the motion
Mr. Latta. Rollcall, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Rollcall, Mr, Chairman.
The Chairman. The question is on the motion offered by the gentle-

man from Massachusetts. All those in favor please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. And all those opposed ?

[Chorus of "noes."]

Mr. Mezvinsky. Rollcall.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, may we have the copy of the motion?
Do we have copies for distribution ?

The Chairman. The motion has been offered by the gentleman, and
it is a very simple motion, and there is no need that the motion be at

the desk of all of the members.
Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman? Mr. Chairman? Mr. Chairman, I de-

mand a rollcall.

The Chairman. A call of the roll is ordered. The clerk will please

call the roll.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeior.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoNYERS. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr.Eilberg.
Mr. EiLBERG. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
The Chairjian. I have a proxy from IMr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. IMs. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Excuse me. Ms. Jordan. Mr. Thornton.
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Mr. Thornton. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Kailsback.
Mr. Railsback. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Hutchinson proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.
Mr. Butler. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. No.
The Clerk. Mr.Lott.
Mr. LoTT. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. No.
The Clerk. ^Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead, No.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.
Mr. Latta. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. Aye.
The Clerk. Ayes 2-2. naves 17. I'm sorry. Correct the record.

Tlie Chairman. What is the vote?
The Clerk. Tl^ere are 21 ayes and 17 nayes.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. The gentleman is recognized.

Mr. Dennis. I have an amendment to the motion, if wc have the

motion before us about the subpena. I guess we do ?

Tlie Chairman. We do.

Mr. Dennis. I have an amendment to the motion which I think 1

mioht as well offer at this time.
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The Chairman. The clerk will read it.

The gentleman recognizes that there is time for general debate?

Mr. Dennis. All right. I will defer as long as I can add it on at

the end of general debate, which I nnderstand you told me before I

could do, and would be given an opportunity.

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. Dennis. All right.

Mr. McClort. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. I would like to ask our counsel some questions, if

I may.
The Chairman. Before the gentleman proceeds, will the gentlemen,

will the members, kindly indicate who wants to be heard so that the
Chair will be able to apportion the time equally ?

[Show of hands.]
The Chairman. The members recognize that the time is going to be

apportioned equally up until 11 :30, for a half an hour, until it is 11 :20 ?

Has the clerk got all of the members ?

The Clerk. We have 19 members, 20, 21, 22.

Mr. Dennis. Read the names.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks, Mr. Kastenmeier, Mr. Conyers, Mr.

Hmigate.
Mr. Conyers. Take my name off there.

Mv. Hungate. People mistake us all of the time.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie, Mr. Flowers, Mr. Mann, Mr. Sarbanes,

Mr. Seiberling, Mr. Drinan, Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Yes.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman, Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton, ]\Ir: Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Yes.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens, Mr. Hutchinson, Mr. Hutchinson? ISIr.

McClory, Mr. Smith, :Mr. Sandman, Mr. Railsback, Mr. Railsback?
Mr. Railsback. Yes.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis, Mr. Fish, Mr. Mayne, Mr. Latta, Mr.

Hogan, Mr. Butler, Mr. Cohen, Mr. Lott, Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead, Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Clerk ? Am I on that list ?

The Clerk. Yes, sir, you are.

Mr. Hutchinson. In the interests of letting everybody else have a
little bit more time, you can strike my name from the list.

The Chairman. How many members are there who are seeking
recognition ?

The Clerk. Twenty-five.
The Chairman. The Chair will recognize each member for 1 minute.
Mr. McClory.
Mr. INIcClory. Mr. Chairman, first of all I want to protest the sharp

cutoff of debate. I think that the partisan action taken this morning
is a very, very serious, adverse step in connection with the objective,
bipartisan efforts which this committee is taking and I want to protest
that as vigorously as I can.
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]S"ow, I want to ask ]Mr. Doar. I want to make a further statement,

and that it that it is my feeling that whatever we get from the Presi-

dent voluntarily on their part is going to be a lot more efficacious than

what we are able to get under the subpena power, which I tliinlv we
may be completely unalDle to and incapable of enforcing. Is it not true

that Mr. St. Clair did not attach any qualification to his offer this

morning, but he said he would deliver the first four items with no

strings attached? Or did he say only that he would deliver them if

we did not take the subpena route ?

Mr. Doar. No. He said if the committee decided to issue a subpena.

he would prefer to comply with the subpena in its entirety, deliver

everything that he thought was required by the subpena at one time.

Mr. McClory. Did he indicate that he would comply with this sub-

pena if the subpena was issued ?

Mr. Doar. He did not. But, he did not indicate that he would not.

Mr. IMcClory. Witli the four items if the subpena was not issued?

Mr. Doar. That is what he said.

Mr. McClory. That he would deliver it if the subpena was not

issued ?

Mr. Doar. He said he wondered whether or not it would make any
difference if he was able within a day or two to bring the first four

items, to deliver the first four items to the committee.
Mr. IMcClory. You interpret that as assurance that he would bring

the first four items ?

Mr. Doar. Only if the subpena was not issued.

INIr. INIcClory. Thank j^ou very much.
The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.
]\Ir. Brooks. I yield my time to Mr. Dennis who has an amendment,

and I want him to have an adequate opportunity to present it. And
I have a copy of it and can read it,

Mr. Dennis. Does the gentleman want to yield at this point!
Mr. Brooks. At the point at which you will take your time.

Mr. Dennis. Thank you.
The Chairman. Who is next on the list ?

Mr. Smith ? Do you seek recognition ?

Mr. Smith. Mr. Cliairman, I yield my time to Mr. Dennis.
Tlie Chairman. ]Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Well, Mr. Chairman, I would like to observe

that there may be a difference of opinion here this morning. But, I

think it is a little too late to make a deal. I think the course has been
set, and it is important that this committee embark upon it and has
not been set by us.

My only reservation, for the record, about the preparation of the

subpena is that I would have preferred a return date of April 22,
rather than April 25. But, I will not quarrel about that, Mr. Chair-
man, nonetheless. And I would furthermore suggest that if there is a
question about whether or not the last two items are sufficiently

specific, it would seem to me that the White House would have had,
over all of this time, nearly approaching 2 months and much before
then adequate time to evaluate precisely what is involved, and to reply
to us in a helpful, cooperative way, which they have chosen not to do.
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So, I think all six items are appropriate and we ought to embark
on the course suggested by the motion of the gentleman from Massa-
chusetts.

The CHAiRiyrAN. Mr. Sandman is recognized for 1 minute.

Mr. Sandman. Mr. Chairman, I think what we are doing today has
personified what a ridiculous thing we are doing overall. I have been
trying since this committee first started to get some work done, and
nothing happened along that line. We still have not voted on any
of the rules of procedure, and it is unlikely we are going to for some
long time.

Now, on one of the most important subpenas ever issued in the

history of mankind, each of us has 60 seconds to discuss it. I was pre-

pared to A^ote for a subpena and said so if I thought it was the only
way we are going to get this information. And from the best infor-

mation available to me, jSIr. Doar is going to receive today or tomorrow,
AYithout condition, all of the things that he seeks with the exception of

E and Xo. 2 on his list and I think that is all he is entitled to at this

moment. The other things are too indefinite and the other things will

take hours upon hours to even find and unless there is some other

reason why we should have the subpena, second, it is going to be
done, as I understand, voluntarily, long before the return date of this

subpena, so the subpena is needless at this time.

The Chairman. The time of the gentlemen has expired.

Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hunoate. Mr. Chairman, I ask unanimous consent to yield my

time to ]\Ir. Dennis whenever he is recognized.
The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Doar, I would like to ask you a qusetion. I

do not know whether you can speak for IVIr. Jenner or not. ]\faybe I
can ask ^Mr. Garrison, too. Based on your screening of the Senate Wa-
tergate materials and the materials of the bulging briefcase, are you
reconmiending to this committee today that we subpena not just the
four items ? Are you reconmiending that we subpena all of those things
that we requested, or is it possi])le for you to recommend that we hold
otf, assuming that the Wliite House will ])resent the first four items,
and then we can work something out with the other two ? What is your
recommendation ?

Mr. DoAE. My recommendation is that the committee issue the sub-
pena for all six items today.
Mr. Railsback. Do you know from your own conversations with Mr.

Jenner, is that his view as well or can you speak for him ?

Mr. Doar. I believe that that is his view as well.

Mr. Garrison. If I might add, I have not had the opportunity to
Sjieak with Mr. Jenner since the communication with Mr. St. Clair
this morning, and because of the possibility that that development
might be viewed as altering the judgment which may have been
reached prior thereto, I would not hazard a statement.

]Mr. Railsback. Let me just say
The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.
Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. No.
The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
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]Mr. Dennis. I thank the chairman, and I think I am recognized for
about 4 minutes, if I understand the situation.

In the first place, Mr. Chairman, I cannot let the moment pass with-
out commenting on the fact that we are heading into a truly historic,

constitutional confrontation here with a partisan limitation of debate
of 30 minutes. And I do not feel that that reflects credit on his com-
mittee or its procedures.

Second, I want to thank my colleagues on both sides of the aisle

who were good enough to yield me their time. I do have an amendment
which I will offer, and which I think is before the members. And I

will spell it out again at that time. But, what it does, very briefly, is

propose to strike from the subpena the last two items which are the
general items rather than the specific items, the firet four being very
specific. The last two are all conversations between the President and
Mr. Haldeman, and the President and Mr. Ehrlichman during the

4-day period April 14 through April 17 inclusive ; and all conversa-
tions between the President and INIr. Kleinrlienst and the President
and Mr. Petersen during the 3-clay period, April 15 through 18

inclusive.

Now, the reason for that is this, if the committee please, and I hope
that my colleagues will give this some attention because I do not regard
this as partisan or anything of the kind. I think if we are going to

issue a subpena here, we want to issue one on which we can be suc-

cessful. Now, if we issue a subpena for irrelevant material, the
President can take us to court, move to quash and beat us on it. And
I think we will look pretty foolish if we do that.

Now, it seems to me that the first four items are certainly specific,

and in all probability relevant, because if they were not, it would be
the simplest thing in the world for counsel for the President to tell

us why they were not, because he can really pinpoint those. But. on
the last two items, we call for all conversations during this period.

Now, INIr. Doar has submitted to us this morning for the first time,

and I have not had an opportunity to read it all, some supporting
information as to why those conversations might, or some of them
might be relevant. But, I point out to you again that we are calling

for all conversations between certain individuals during quite an ex-

tended period of time, and these individuals undoubtedly talked about
a lot of things, presumably including the things we are interested in.

But, almost certainly including other matters completely irrelevant

to our inquiry.

Now, I feel we are making a serious mistake to issue the kind of a
blanket subpena, and maybe get slapped down on the latter, and that

is the point of my amendment which I will offer. And it seems to me
we have just been told we can get the first four without a subpena at

all, but I am willing to subpena him nevertheless, which my amend-
ment would do. But, why in the world don't we do that, and then see

whether we can work out something on the last two ?

Mr. Wiggins has submitted some proposals here about editing the

last two by our chairman and ranking member, Mr. Doar and Mr.
Jenner, and the President's counsel, which I think makes very good
sense. I may say that I have had some indication myself that that

might be acceptable downtown, and we could get down to the things

that are relevant.
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The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired.

Mr. Dennis. That is my amendment and the points of my argu-

ments against the motion and what is at stake here.

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman, I support the motion of Mr. Donohue,

and it strikes me that we ought to understand that the tactic that St.

Chair and the White House have used in this case, which is to delay

the matter for roughly 45 days, and then at the moment they are

about to fall over the parapet, to come up with some suggestion of

compromise is not a new tactic.

It has been used throughout the entire proceedings before the grand
jury, before the SpeciarProsecutor, before Judge Sirica. And if we
permit them to do that to this committee, they will do that from now
on. They have the right not to turn over anything they desire. But,

we have" the right to seek the evidence we require to perform our con-

stitutional duty by the only manner available to us. I think in the

future we ought not to tolerate negotiation in the hopes that have been

thwarted in every instance in the past that there will be cooperation

forthcoming in the A^Hiite House. There will not be. We ought to per-

form our responsibilities with no consideration as to the hope for

cooi^eration, and conclude these hearings and this inquiry.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Fish. Mr. Chairman, over these past several weeks, I have ap-

preciated your position which has been bent over backward to avoid
confrontation with the Wliite House. But, in the light of this totally

unre.sponsivo letter that Mr. St. Clair delivered on Tuesda}^, I c»me
to this meeting prepared to vote for a subpena. I think that the di-

latory tactics by Mr. St. Clair have been outrageous and an insult

to the House and making the process very difficult for minority mem-
bers. This morning, due to developments, however, that a partial direct

reply to our letter, which said advise if you are going to make delivery,

would appear that our question here is whether the subpena will really

be productive, whether we receive the material voluntarily, the 12th

or the 13th of April as distinguished from involuntarily the 26th after

the subpena.
The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. No.
The Chairman. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I was certainly not satisfied with INIr. St. Clair's letter of April 9,

and was prepared to vote for a subpena on the first four items this

morning, if we did not receive much more specific assurances as to

early delivery of these four items. As I understand it, these four

items are the only ones in which there has been a strong indication

of relevance, unless there may be some further indication in the mate-
rials which were just placed on our desks this morning. Now that we
have received assurances in the statement made by Mr. Doar that

Mr. St. Clair has assured that these first four items will be delivered

to the committee within the next 2 days, it seems to me that we have
a different situation, and that we should not provoke a confrontation

ourselves. And let there be no mistake about it, it will be the com-
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mittee, not the "\^niite House counsel who will be provoking the con-

frontation of a subpena, because they have largely met our demands.
Those who want a confrontation can go ahead and follow the sub-

pena route, but I think we should realize that is what we are doing,

and it is a travesty for us not to have more than 1 minute apiece to

consider this historic and drastic step.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

]\Ir. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I am somewhat astonished that the resolve of this committee to

get on with its work can be so easily diluted. "^Ylien it became apparent

that this committee was not going to be further deterred in its work,
then a so-called compromise offer came forth, and to permit that to

cause this committee to again defer positive action, to again defer

expeditious action when the business-like professional effect of a sub-

pena is to permit and, as I visualize it, in this case, to permit the

respondent to produce the evidence, or to give reasons why evidence

should not be produced. And I find it rather interesting that there

are those here who would prejudge the relevancy of the material that

we have requested.

Xow, if you have information that I do not have, I would like to

have it.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

]Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman, I think that what we do in this com-

mittee is very, very important and we ought to do it in such a way
that the American* people have a feeling that it is being done fairly

and objectively.

I am astonished that we have 1 minute each to debate one of the

most important constitutional and historic questions ever to face the

Congress of the United States. The American people I do not think

can have much confidence that this is being done fairly. I have a

12-page memorandum in front of me which is justification for the

subpena which I have not had time to read. To listen to the debate,

read this and have an opportunity to ask questions, I think is im-

portant. Why are we in such haste? Because we want to go on Easter

recess ? No wonder the Congress is in such low repute with the Amer-
ican people. Why could we not have met at 8 or 9 a.m.? The House is

going to adjourn this afternoon at 2 or 2 :30 p.m. Why do we not come
iback then ? Why could we not work tonight or tomorrow as we dicl in

the Jerry Ford hearings? I just think it is terrible that we are doing

this in such haste.

I deplore the dilatory tactics of the White House as much as any-

body on this committee. I have publicly and privately criticized them
for this. But, I do think the importance of this warrants a more judi-

cious analysis of it so we Imow what the heck we are doing, so that

we can do it properly and defend what we do to the American people

and in the courts.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

!Mr. Sarbanes.
INIr. Sarbanes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman, I believe this committee has shown an extraordinary

and commendable degree of patience in this matter. The initial letter
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was sent to Mr. St. Clair on February 25, so it is now more than
6 weeks in terms of dealing with the response. Now, there have been
references to tlie historic and unique nature of the subpena. I only
want to point out that the Watergate Special Prosecutor has found
it necessary in a number of instances, in order to obtain relevant evi-

dence from the White House, to issue a subpena to the White House.
Now, it is very clear that until the committee indicated its resolve

to forward, there was no responsive action on the part of Mr. St. Clair.

I still do not know that there has been responsive action. If
Mr. St. Clair really wanted to respond, lie could have had a letter

in the hands of every member of this committee this morning saying
the following items are being dispatched to you immediately, other
items are being reviewed and prepared and with respect to certain

matters, we believe they are not jDertinent to your inquiry and are

prejiared to state to appropriate representatives of the committee our
reasons for thinking so.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Sarbanes. He has not done that, and I think we should proceed.

The Chairman. Mr. Butler.
]Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, I cannot endorse the systematic fall-

back procedures that the White House has adopted during the course
of these proceedings. But. I do want to register my protest that despite

the assurances of counsel on Monday that I would have well in ad-
vance of this meeting, the information was delivered to me some 45
minutes before this meeting with some 30 pages of material. I protest
that we did not have an oppoi-tunity to review it, and I hope that when
the chairman has time of his own, that he will explain why that was
delayed.

]Mv intention is to vote for whatever form of subpena the majority
of this committee deems appropriate. But, I would prefer that the
record show that we have a more full and complete debate. And I sus-

pect that full debate took place within the secrecy of the confines of
the Democratic caucus on this matter, and that it will shame us not to
have public debate on the same issues.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.
]Mr. Seiberling.

^Iv. Seiberling. INIr. Chairman, I must confess astonishment that in

all of the 6 weeks that we have been waiting for a response and a
compliance by Mr. St. Clair, I have heard no statements on either side
of the aisle criticizing the six categories of dociunents and tapes re-

quested. And now all of a sudden because Mr. St. Clair says he will give
us four of those, we find that some members here are clancing to his
tune. In these 6 weeks we have been met with nothing but lawyer-like
tactics on the part of Mr. St. Clair and promises of cooperation from
the President, alternating with insults from his staff, like Mr. Ziegler.

It seems to me, gentlemen, that it is time we sent a message that the
playing of games is over, and that this committee means business.
And that is why I support this motion.
The Chairman. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to commend

Mr. Butler for his statement and associate myself with his remarks.
Mr. Doar, is there any difference in your opinion between the letter

41-018—75—pt. 1 21
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of February 25 and your letter of April 4 which Mr. St. Clair says

goes a long way toward clarifying the issues which are so vague and
ambiguous ? Is there any difference in substance ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, there is not, in my opinion. There is no difference

in substance. We do set forth specifically the basis for the six items,,

although I think it is clear from the context and from the public

record.

Mr. Cohen. In your opinion, is there any useful purpose in con-

tinuing negotiations about the other two items, the ones that Mr. St.

Clair is not prepared to turn over ?

Mr. DoAR. No, I thinlv in my opinion that there is no useful pur-

pose. I think that as your counsel I would have to say that when you
have any doubt about the production of items that you believe to be
necessary, and I think that Mr. St. Clair's letters leaves the matter

in considerable doubt, that the business-like, professional way to pro-

ceed is to issue a subpena.
Mr. Cohen. And that no further useful purpose is served by trying

to negotiate for these ?

The CiiAiRMAiSr. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman, I have only two reservations about the

resolution. I would have preferred a return date of Tuesday, April 16.

April 25 was chosen to go the final mile, 3 days beyond what the Presi-

dent suggested, and to give him 60 full days in which to comply.
My second reservation is that Mr. St. Clair may delay further by

bringing this matter to the courts, and further by refusing all further

requests. The President is entitled to clue process, and he will receive

it from this committee, and from this Congress. But, the people of

America are also entitled to due process, and the people have been
denied due process by the President for 45 days and 45 nights. And
this subpena is the only way to vindicate the constitutional rights of
Congress on the country.

The Chairman. ]\fr. Lott.

Mr. LoTT. Mr. Chairman, I think that there are a couple of very
basic points that are being overlooked here, and I would like to em-
phasize them. Some of them have been touched on.

First of all, it has been mentioned that we have just got this

memorandum on what is included in these six blocks of material that

are requested. We, contrary to what the American people apparently
think, the committee members, have not been mo^dng forward with
this investigation. The staff has. We have never yet been told why
these six blocks of material were requested and on what basis, whether
it was because Mr. Jaworski was not able to get this material, or was it

because or based on information they had at their disposal, that it was
requested or why?

Just this morning were we given any explanation, and I dare say

there are members of this committee right now that do not know what
is included in these six blocks of material, and they do not know why
it has been requested.

Secondly, I do not understand why we must have a confrontation at

this time on this particular point. It is not as if we did not have mate-

rial. We have volumes of it over there in the Congressional Hotel right
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now. This material, or four portions or sections of it will be turned
ovei'. What is really going to be accomplished by this subpena ?

There is a real and strong indication in the letter of Mr. St. Clair

—

and by the way, I do not agree with that letter either—that we could
get this before the 22d, and I do not understand the basis for this con-

frontation at tliis time.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Kangel. Mr. Chairman ^

The Chairman. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. I request unanimous consent to yield my time to ]Mr.

Railsback so that he can pursue his questions that he had of counsel.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Doar, I think some of us on this side might be
willing to support a full subpena, but I think we are concerned about
tiie fact that in the last two items, they are pretty general, although I
think you have made a pretty good case, when I read your memorandum
concerning those requested conversations. Now, personally—and, Mr.
Chairman, I would like to have you involved in this, too^would you
personally be willing to let Mr. St. Clair sit in on the screening of those

last two items if he did not have the power to object to the relevance,

but could make suggestions as to national security concerns, and the

possibility of nonrelevant items.

Mr. Doar. Yes, if that was the committee's wish, I would think I

would be willing to do that.

Mr, Railsback. Mr. Chairman, let me just say in the interest of
fairness, and from our previous meetings, I kind of got the idea that
we might be able to agree to that, I would hope if we could give you
full power of subpena, that we may be willing to go that extra step to

let Mr, St. Clair sit in to just offer suggestions as to what he thinks may
be of national security concern or nonrelevant.
The Chairman. I would like to advise the gentleman that Mr. St.

Clair initially has that right. He will deliver to us what I suppose he
will want to deliver to us,

Mr. Railsback, Well, I do not approve of that, frankly.
The Chairman, AVell, under the circumstances, however, the com-

mittee will ultimately make its decision. But, if there are mattere of
national security, if there are matters unrelated to our inquiry, it has
been stated time and again to Mr. St. Clair that we are not interested
in those matters. We have laid the predicate in the request for those
matters that we are seeking because there are logs and other, other
intimations that they relate to the inquiry.
Mr. Railsback. Then he would, do I understand it, we are kind of in

agreement here that he would be permitted to at least sit in on the
screening of those particular items ?

Mr. Doar. Well, if the committee, if it were the committee's will that
rather than have the committee as a whole screen these, these six items,
that it would be done through counsel and Mr. St. Clair, that I would
think would be a very workable way to do it, or with the chairman
and the ranking minority member.
Mr. Railsback. I would think so, too, and I would hope we could

agree to that.

The Chairman. I have personally no objection, as I have stated
time and again, because there are matters that Mr. St. Clair might
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point out that are national security matters, that are unrehited, and I

woiikl be willing, if that were the case, and we considered it initially,

and then w^e presented it to the committee, I would be willing to go
along with the judgment of the committee.

Mr. Eailsback. I think you are going to get some support then. I

would hope, anyway.
Tlie Chairman. Mr. ]Moorhead.

]Mr. ]MooRHEAD. Yes, Mr. Chairman. I came here today with the idea

that I would support a subpcna because I believe it is necessary that

we get all of the materials tliat are necessary.

I do feel, however, the manner in wliich we are doing this thing, and
running this thing through without debate, in view of the offer of
the President, to come up with most of the materials that we have
specifically requested, and to discuss the details of the last two trivial

items which are not specific in nature, is a mistake. I feel that we bring
disrepute down on our committee when we engage in tactics that can
be disputed by the other side, and which w^e very well may lose in

court.

The Chairman. ]\Is. Holtzman.
]Ms. Holtzman. Thank you, ]Mr. Chairman. I am reminded at this

time of the statement that the former Attorney General John Mitchell
made, and that was that this administration ought to be judged not
by its words but by its actions. And I am reminded that we are sitting

here 45 days after our initial request was made, and we do not have
a single tape or a single document before us. The American people and
this committee are entitled to the facts, and this committee has a con-
stitutional duty to obtain them.

I am also deeply disturbed by the implication in Mr. St. Clair's

comment this morning that he would not turn over these four addi-
tional items if we issued a subpena. I do not think this committee can
submit itself to this kind of threat. I think St. Clair has had the oppor-
tunity and the President has had the opportunity to issue the materials
to this committee.

I also want to point out that in the 45 days that Mr. St. Clair has had
our request under consideration

The Chairman. The time of the gentlelady has expired.

Ms. Holtzman. He has not indicated that the materials would not
be relevant.

The Chairman. Mr. ]Maraziti.

Mr. ]\Iaraziti. Mr. Chairman, first I would like to say that I am
amazed that we are permitted to discuss this very vital question for
only 1 minute. I concur Avith ]Mr. Sandman that this action is prob-
ably one of the most liistoric actions taken in the history of this Nation.
I concur with the remarks of Mr. Dennis. We will receive a con-

siderable amount of infoi-mation voluntarily. It does not seem wise to

me to invite a confrontation at this time, which I think will lead to a

;judicial confrontation, which will result in considerable delay. The
subpena calls for delivery on April 25. And I am sure that we could get

n great deal more sooner voluntarily. I do not think the subpena route

is wise.

The Chairman. Mr. ^Nlezvinsky.

!Mr. Mezvinsky. ^Iv. Chairman, I think the reason that the subpena
is necessary is because, to a great extent, the respect for this commit-
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tee and for the House of Representatives is really at stake. And I

think what we are seeing is, we are seeing that the people have de-

manded that we take action. And I think that we are saying that we
should remove ourselves from the maze of dilatory tactics that we
are finding in front of ns. The President said 1 year of Watergate
is enough. "We are close to one-sixth of a year waiting for a response

from our letter of February 25.

For that reason, I think the subpena is absolutely necessary.

The CiiAiRMAX, Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Thank 3-ou, ]\Ir. Chairman.
In view of the time limitation, I just want to reemphasize what has

already been said about E and No, 2. Now, everybody on this com-
mittee, 38 members, are lawyers. If you ever saw a subpena drafted
in any more general or any more inadequate terms, we have .it here.

I may say when we say all conversations between JNIr. Haldeman and
the President and INIr. Ehrlichman and the President during the
period April 14 through April 17 inclusive, they do not say where
they are supposed to have taken place, what time of day they were
supposed to have taken place, what subjects they were supposed to

be talking aljout durhig that time. It is an impossible situation. And
No. 2. wlien they say all conversations between the President and jNIr.

Kleindienst and the President and ^Ir. Petersen during the period
from April 15 through April 18, 1973 inclusive, we have the identical

situation. They do not say whether they have taken place, what time
of day they were supposed to have talven place, what subjects they
were supposed to have covered and it seems to me if they really wanted
to contest this matter, they would go into court and say that it is too
indefinite to comply with, and there would be 38 members of this

committee with reel faces, including 3,8 or 40 members of the staff.

The Chairmax. The time of the gentleman has expired.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Fish. Parliamentary inquiry, ]Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The gentleman will state it.

Mr. Fish. Mr. Chairman, I know the committee has made no dis-

position, no determination of this position in the record of transcripts
being kept of meetings such as this. And my inquiry is whether or not
the members who have been limited today to only 1 minute can have
the opportunity to revise and extend their remarks that will be in-

cluded in the permanent record of these proceedings ?

The Chairman. I am advised that this has not been the procedure.
This is not the rule in the committee, that it is only the privilege that
is extended in the House.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
The Chairman. The clerk will read the amendment.
JVIr. Dennis. I have an amendment at the desk.
The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment offered by Mr. Dennis of Indiana.
In the schedule attached to the draft subpena, strike out the following listed

therein

:

E. All conversations between the President and Mr. Haldeman and the Pres-
ident and Mr. Ehrlichman during the period April 14 through 17, 1973. inclusive.

2. All conversations between the President and Mr. Kleindienst, and the Pres-
ident and Mr. Peterson during the period from April 15 through 18, 1973, inclusive-
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The Chairman. The gentleman is recognized for 5 minutes on his
amendment.
Mr. Dennis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My colleagues, I submit to you that in connection with this amend-

ment "we are really deciding whether w^e want a confrontation or
whether we want information for our inquiry. Now, I am perfectly
prepared to believe, though you may not deem, but I am prepared to

believe that there may be people in the White House who would prefer
a confrontation. Ancl although I hope not, there may be members of
this committee who would likewise prefer a confrontation.
There may be others who being irritated, not without cause, by

the conduct of the White House, are possibly even falling into a White
House trap. I think that is a distinct possibility. Every single member
of this committee knows that there is really no effective way to en-

force a subpena against the President of the United States and that
is why we have been patient. Every single member knows that you
cannot enforce a subpena against anybody unless it is relevant to your
inquiry.

Now, under this amendment, we do not have to rely on Mr. St, Clair,

although he has promised to produce. Under this amendment, we
will get everything which we obviously are entitled to. which is

specifically requested, which is clearly revelant, and we will get that.

And I will be happy to vote for that kind of a subpena if this amend-
ment is adopted.

Later we can discuss the other matters, as has been suggested here.

And in my opinion, in the end, maybe with some more footdragging,
but in the end, we will get all of the other two items too to which we,
by any theory, could reasonably be entitled to as relevant to our inquiry.
Mr. CoNYERS. Would the gentleman yield for a question ?

Mr. Dennis. I would rather not just now, John. I might if I have
a little time left.

"Wliy don't we pursue the route of sanity here instead of the route
of confrontation where none of us really know where we are going
down that road or what we will get. •! do not want a confrontation.
I think it is completely nonproductive from our point of view, the
White House point of view. I just offer this very clear, very simple
amendment in the name of reason, and sanity and I urge my colleagues
on both sides of the aisle to support it as such.
Mr. Latta. AVould the gentleman yield ?

IVIr. Dennis. I will yield to the gentleman from Ohio.
ISIr. Latta. In view of the fact the gentleman has offered this

amendment, let me ask this question.

I pointed out earlier whether or not No. 1 he knows what subjects

are covered by the E and 2 that he wishes to strike out. No. 2 or whether
or not he knows when these conversations were supposed to have taken
place during the day, and where they were supposed to have taken
place ?

INIr. Dennis. Well, obviously, I do not, Mr. Latta. There are 8 days
here. Every single conversation between these individuals, I do not
care if it is on South Vietnam, European affairs, anything is coA^ered

by this subpena. And I am telling you it is a foolish thing to do. And
we do not need to.
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Mr. McCrory. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Dennis. I yield to the gentleman.

Mr. McCrory If at a later time we had further specific designation

as to times and places and subjects, then I assume that we could review

1 his again. As I understand, this part of this, if there were some conver-

sations within this period which would produce evidence favorable to

the President insofar as his actions are concerned, that we are con-

sidering here, then it is certainly an obligation on our part to bring out

the exculpatory as well as the damaging evidence so that both types

you would want to have included if we specify, is that correct ?

Mr. Dennis. I agree, of course. I think we ought to get everything

that is relevant, good or bad. I am for that. I agree with the gentle-

man. I just cannot say it more strongly, but I say again there is no
reason for the blanket-type subpena at this stage unless you are just

so mad
The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

]\f r. Dennis. Or you do not care and you want a confrontation.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, may I ask for a rollcall when we vote

on the amendment?
The Chairman. The Chair would like to state that if the members

are so inclined, the Chair is prepared to continue this meeting after

the House adjourns, if it feels that this matter has not been amply
debated. It would seem to me, however, that after 45 days of discussing

this matter and having an acute awareness as to what this inquiry is

all about, and having had specified in the initial letter that was sent

to Mr, St. Clair, particularizing as a result of logs that are ^vithin the

knowledge and information of the committee, that those logs certainly

indicate the necessity of receiving this information for the purpose of

this committee's inquiry to conduct a fair inquiry of materials that

may be not only inculpatory, if they are, but exculpatory, and later

on having addressed ourselves with even more specificity for Mr.
St. Clair, that I would think that this committee, as stated time and
again, that it wants to get on with this business, that it wants to do
a proper job and a reasonable job, would recognize that the only
reason that we are moving in this direction is because we believe that
we have a responsibility under the Constitution and to the people
to pursue this inquiry fully and completely, and not to leave it for a
determination by Mr, St, Clair, or indeed, the President of the United
States to state when and where we make that determination.

It was only this morning at about a few minutes of 10 o'clock that

Mr. Doar received this telephone call from Mr. St, Clair, without spe-

cificity, but again merely indicating a suggestion that if the committee
were not to do thus and so, the "\'\niite House might within a day or two
make a delivery.

Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield?

The Chairman. Now, it would seem ito me—please let me make my
statement.

iSlv. McClory. Well, if you have accurately stated it, it is all right.

But, I do not understand from Mr. Doar, our counsel, Mr. Chairman,
that there is any condition attached, or that he might or anything like

that. As I understood, he said he would within the next day or two
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deliver these items, and if he -would, it seems to me that is something
we should consider very carefully because we do not know how we
are .G:oing to enforce a subpena if we issue it.

The Chairman. Well, I would ask IMr. Doar whether or not that
was it? I was present at the time the conversation was held.

Mr. DoAR. Congressman, it was only if the committee did not issue

the subpena that he would produce the items within a da}^ or so.

Mr. McClory. Not that he might, but he would?
Mr. DoAR. He would, if you did not issue a subpena. But, if a sub-

pena was issued, then he would prefer to make compliance at one time.

The Chairman. It would seem to me—

—

Mr. McClory. Or noncompliance.
INIr. DoAR. He said he would prefer to make compliance at one time.

I told him the return date on the subpena would be the 25th, and he
said, "Well, under those circumstances, I would prefer to make compli-
ance at one time."

Mr. McClory. Would the chairman yield ?

Do you interpret that to mean that he would comply with the
subpena, that we should issue a subpena and then he would comply
with it, or he would prefer to have compliance with* the sul)pena. or
he would prefer to have compliance without a subpena, or partial
compliance, or what ?

]\Ir. Doar. I do not know that Mr. St. Clair was inviting a subpena.
I could not say that. But, I can just report to you that he said that
he would deliver the four items if a subpena was not issued. If a sub-
pena was issued, then he would comply with the subpena at one time.

INIr. Dennis. Might I ask the counsel a question ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. As I understand you, Mr. Doar, from your previous

remarks, by this word "compliance," you did not understand that he
necessarily indicated that he would obey the subpena, but merely that
he would make some kind of a return, is that correct ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

]\Ir. Dennis. Thank you.

The Chairman. The Chair would like to complete his statement.

I think the Chair has a couple of minutes, too.

It would seem to me that after having waited all of this period of

time, it would seem to me that the committee would want to, respecting

the institutions of government, and respecting the Constitution, which
I believe we have sought to comply with in every respect, and respect-

ing the mandate of the people, that I believe are waiting to hear

whether or not we can fully discharge our responsibility, unless we
get cooperation, it would seem to me that this committee would want to

move ahead and that every member of this committee does know that

these requests were made by counsel, by counsel and minority counsel,

that the material requested is necessary. Now, why try to disguise by
stating that we do not have time or that we did not have time to debate ?

We have been debating this for a long period of time and it would
seem to me that the committee, if it has any dignity, if the House of

Representatives has any dignity, if it respects the institution of govern-

ment, if it respects the Constitution will proceed in this only orderly

and responsible fashion and move on ahead. And if Mr. St. Clair and
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tlie President comply, and regard the siibpena as a direction, then I

am sure that there will be no confrontation. I am not seeking a con-

frontation. I am seeking evidence to make a determination that is fair

and honest to the President, and most important, to the American
people.

Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. ISIr. Sarbanes.
]Mr. Sarbaxes. Mr. Chairman, I would like to address myself very

briefly to two important points. One is the assertion which has been
made that item IE and item 2 in some way or not pertinent or im-
portant to this inquiry. Now, that is limited to a few days, it involves

certain conversations between the President and his principal aides.

Tlie President has publicly stated that it v\'as on April 14 that Mr.
Ehrlichman reported to him the results of the inquiry of the Watergate
matter, which the President ordered him to conduct. It was on April 15

that Mr. Kleindienst and Mr. Petersen directly brought to the attention

of the President the information which was being conveyed to the

prosecutors by Mr. Dean and j\Ir. Magruder. Now, there are a whole
series of conversations over those few days that one obviously can
reasonably assume involved these matters. These were issues that were
present. I do not know what is in those conversations, in response to

Mr. Latta.

Perhaps he does. I do not see any way for any member of this com-
mittee to know what is in the conversations.

But, it seems to me, given the public record by the President in terms
of wliat was being reported to him at that time, that it is perfectly

reasonable to seek these convereations. They are clearly relevant to

this inquiry.

Now, the second point I want to address myself to is the assertions

tliat have been made that somehow Mr. St. Clair has offered this or

offered that. Now, perhaps others on this committee have been in

conversation with Mr. St. Clair. I have not had any such conversa-

tions. And I think if Mr. St. Clair wanted to communicate with the

committee, I repeat that he could have sent to us a letter indicating

what steps they were prepared to talce immediately in order to respond,

and how they would follow up on that. That has not been done and it

seems to me we should move ahead with the subpena.
]\[r. Butler. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would appreciate it if counsel would respond to the questions with

reference to the specific statements required in a subpena. I am con-

cerned about the generality of the statement and the items in question

with the amendment, and specifically I would like to know, coimsel,

we have listed in the memorandum you have supplied us with this

morning a good deal more specific designation of the conversations we
want. Why did you not in the subpena that you drafted and the sched-

ule that you drafted set out these conversations specifically, and
secondly, has Mr. St. Clair to this point been advised specifically of
these conversations to which we refer in the memorandum ?

]\Ir. DoAR. Yes. Mr. St. Clair has been advised of these conversations.

He is familiar with these specific conversations.
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Mr. Butler. Excuse me ?

Mr. DoAR. He is familiar with these specific conversations.
Mr. Butler. All right.

My second question was why did you not, in drafting the subpena,
set them out specifically in this in the order in which you set them out
in the memorandum ? Is there some reservation in your mind about the
relevancy of all of these conversations?
Mr. DoAR. Well, there is no reservation in my mind with respect to

that they are necessary information for this committee, and that in pre-

paring the subpena, that the proper and appropriate professional way
to do it is to ask for the material. If there is a question about relevance,

you deal with that at the time of compliance with the subpena. But, yon
preserve for the committee the final decision with respect to the ques-
tion of i-elevance. This is the only way that, in my judgment, it is

appropriate to do. Although we do have listed the specific conversa-
tions, Mr. St. Clair knows these, he has the logs from which we drew
these conversations.

Mr. Butler. Well, then, do you not anticipate that he would in his

return of the subpena, he would challenge those portions of it on the
grounds that they were not specific enough ?

Mr. DoAR. No. I do not anticipate he would do that.

Mr. Butler. And it is further tliat you anticipate that any exchange
between the counsel and the return by counsel for the White House, that
it is yet another round and that when he replies to this, it is your respon-
sibility then to come back to the committee for whatever further in-

structions we might have with reference to his response to this subpena ?

Mr. DoAR. The committee makes the decisions with respect to this.

Mr. BuTT^ER. Your recommendation will be that the full committee
be convened in a business session if the St. Clair resj^onse falls short of a

full compliance, as you interpret it ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, that would be my recommendation.
Mr. Butler. Thank you.
Mr, Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. I am amazed that ]SIr. Latta and Mr. Dennis have not

done their homework. On pages 5 through 10 of the memo that we re-

ceived this morning, there are specific detailed reasons wliy the con-
versations that would be deleted by the Dennis amendment are abso-

lutely urgently required, and those who vote for the Dennis amend-
ment will be unconsciously voting to cover up the cover up.

]\Ir. CoNYERS. I move the previous question.

The Chairman. Mv. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Mr. Chairman, I would say to the gentleman from INfassa-

chusetts, I have always been an admirer of his, and he obviously is a

very fast reader, liecause lie knows that all of this material was
delivered to us at the time when you came into the committee meetin'r.

Mr. Chairman, my questions are to the counsel. Is it not true, Mr.
Doar, that Mr. St. Clair has raised the issue of relevancy with regard
to IE and 2?
Mr. Doar. No, he has not.

Mr. Fish. He has not raised the issue of relevancy of this material

to you ?
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Mr. DoAR. Xo, because I do not believe he has listened to the con-
versations.

Mr. Fish. You have had conversations, have you not, in the past
45 days with Mr. St. Clair about this material and about the produc-
tion of it?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. He asked us to be as specific as we could with
respect to why we wanted the material, and we told him that.

Mr. Fish. And he has not, he as not come back and challenged in
any way, I mean he has not differentiated between IE and 2 and the
first four categories ?

Mr. DoAR. No, he has not, not since we sent him the letter.

Mr. Fish. And do you tihink that the suggestion by the gentleman
from Illinois, Mr. Railsback, that a group such as yourself and Mr.
Jenner, and the chairman and the ranking Republican member, as well
as Mr. St. Clair screening this material would hopefully be a step
towards resolving any problem that they have in the production of
IE and 2?
Mr. DoAR. Yes, I think it would.
Mr. SivHTH. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Fish. I yield to the gentleman from New York.
Mr. Smith. ]Mr. Doar, did you say as far as you knew, Mr. St. Clair

had not listened to these convei-sations?

Mr. DoAR. That is right.

]Mr. Garrisox. Mr. Chairman, could I comment on that point?
The Chairman". Mr. Garrison.
Mr. Garrison. Congressman, I would only make one observation

not arising out of conversations which have taken place, which I was
not a party to, but I would cite to you, Mr. St. Clair's letter of April 9
in which in tlie first and second sentence as he refers to the original
request from the committee of February 25 as principally a blanket
demand for tapes and related materials of discussions between the
President and his aides between specified dates. Part of the items on
this schedule are items described onlv by reference to the dates. It

would appear that the second sentence of Mr. St. Clair's letter which
says ob\-iously these conversations would have covered a variety of
subjects does explicitly raise the question of possible irrelevancy of
some of the conversations within the specified dates and it seems to me
that if you read Mr. Dear's letter of April 4, in which the rationale
for these requests is set forth, in conjunction with the memorandum
distributed this morning, it would be very clear that all of the ma-
terials on the schedule are, in fact, necessary to the conduct of this

inquiry.

The only question that arises is whether the formulation on the

subpena schedule is on its face overbroad, not whether it is in reality

overbroad and the overbreadth question would only ai'ise in some
appropriate judicial form.
The Chairman. I would like to point out for the benefit of the

committee that just as Mr. Gai-rison has stated, that in reference to

House Resolution 803 under which we are operating, that on page 2
one finds it clearly stated that for the purpose of making such investi-

gation, the committee is authorized to require, by subpena or other-

wise, the attendance and testimony of any person, including the taking
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-of a deposition by counsel for the committee, and the production of

such things, and by interrogatory the furnishing of such information

as it deems necessarv^ to such investigation.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Does anyone else want to be recognized on the

amendment ? I think we have debated this.

Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. "Well. Mr. Chairman. I would like to ask you or

Mr. Doar whether or not in discussing compliance with the subpena
that has been drafted by the staff, assuming it were adopted without
the Dennis amendment,' that Mr. St. Clair would be informed that

compliance witli IE and 2 would be. that in complying with it he
could take into consideration the memorandum to the committee that

we received today, including the explanations as to tlie reason why
we consider these particuhar items necessary so that he would have
some more detailed guideline as to what was intended by the language

of the subpena ?

]\fr. Cohen. Mr. Chairman ?

"Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman ?

3Ir. Seiberling. I would like an answer if the chairman desires.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. Yes, Mv. Chairman. Mr. St. Clair could take that into

consideration, but again, the committee would make the final decision

with respect to compliance.
Mr. Seiberling. "Well, it seems to me that in the light of this record

here today, and it is amply clear what is intended by IE and 2, that

any court would take into consideration the record established here

today, including the memorandum to the committee and that there

is not any doubt in Mr. St. Clair's mind what we are getting at, and
he is the one in the first instance who is going to come up with the

documents to respond to the subpena. So, it seems to me that Mr.
Dennis's amendment is not necessary, and that there is no defect in

the form of the subpena, in fact.

Ms. Jordan. I move the question.

3rr. Brooks. Question, Mr. Chairman,
The Chairman. I recognize Mr. Cohen.
3rr. Cohen. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.
3rr. Doar, is there any legal objection, in your opinion, to simply

attaching a copy of your memorandum outlining the specific items to

the subnena just to remove any doubt about this ?

Mr. Doar. I do not think. Mr. Congressman, that we should attach

that memorandum to the subpena. I think it is perfectly appropriate

to send it to Mr. St. Clair, that memorandum.
Mv. Cohen, At the same time ?

^fr. Doar. Sure.

!Mr. Brooks. Question, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The question has been asked for.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. The question is on the amendment
'Mr. HoGAN. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman. The gentleman will state it.

Mr. Hogan. Under the rules, does not each member have the right

to 5 minutes pro or con on the Dennis amendment ?
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The Chairman. No. The question has been moved and when the
question is moved, the Chair will act.

Mr. HoGAN. There were a number of us who were seeking recogni-

tion before the question was moved.
The Chairman. I recognized the gentleman who moved the question.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I asked for a rolecall.

The Chairman. The question occurs on the amendment of the
gentleman from Indiana, and the clerk will call the role.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. HoGAN. Parliamentary inquiry? Is this on the previous

question ?

The Chairman. This is on the amendment offered by the gentleman-

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Aye. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Donohue votes no ; Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. No.
The Clerk. Mr. liungate.
Mr. HUNGATE. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.

Mr. Eilberg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. No.
The Clerk. ]Mr. jNIann.

Mr. Mann. Nf).

The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
The Chairman. Mr. Danielson, no, proxy.
The Clerk. Mr.Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. ;Ms. Holtzraan.
Ms. HOLTZMAN. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. No.
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The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
ISIr. Mezvinsky. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
IVIr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
JNIr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Hutchinson. Aye by proxy.
The Clerk. Mr. Demiis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. Lott. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.

Mr. Froehlich. Aye,
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorehead. Aye. ,
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. Maeazitt. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. No.
The Clerk. Nays, 22, ayes. 16.

The (^hairman. The amendment is not agreed to.

Mr. Hogan. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman ?

Could the stenographer tell us who moved the question on tliat

Dennis amendment?
The Chairaian. Mr. Brooks moved the question.

Mr. Hogan. Is that on the record ?

Mr, Brooks. There were several other members.
The Chairman. The Chair has stated that Mr. Brooks moved the

amendment. The Chair recognized Mr. Brooks, and I hope the stenog-

rapher has that.

]\Ir. Hogan. I would like to say, Mr. Chairman, that I resent the

way the debate was cut off from the Dennis amendment.
The Chairman. The Chair recognized the gentleman for parlia-

mentary inquiry, and not for one of his harangues.
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Ms. Holtzman.
]Vis. Holtzman. I have a parliamentary inquiry. Before we vote on

the motion of Mr. Donohue, did you tell us when it is anticipated

tliat this subpena would actually be served ?

Is that within the motion ?

Mr. DoAR. The subpena would be served forthwith.

Ms. Holtzman. I thank the chairman.

Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Latta, for what purpose;

]Mr. Latta. I would like to move at this time that we amend this

subpena to make 1-E and 2-E specific and spell it out specifically.

The Chairman. Has the gentleman an amendment? The gentle-

man has no amendment on the desk. The gentleman has no amend-
ment at the desk.

Mr. Latta. We will be glad to prepare it.

The Chairman. Well, I am sorry. The amendment comes too late.

^Ir. Butler. Parliamentary inquiiy, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Latpa. Mr. Chairman, I think this is too important to be

facetious about. I do not think we ought to impose gag rules at this

time. I move we now adjourn and come back after the session.

The Chairman. I am merely following the rules of the House,
Mr. Latta, and there is no amendment at the desk, and I am sure

that the
Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman, I now move that we adjourn and come

back after the House adjourns today.

Mr. ButIjER. I second the motion.

The Chairman. The motion to adjourn is in order. All those—is

that to adjourn ?

Mr. Latta. We return after the session today.

The Chairman. The question is on the motion of the gentleman that

the committee return, adjourn at this time or recess at this time and
come back after the proceedings of the House.
Mr. Hungate. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman. I want to

be sure I understand on what I am voting, that we would recess, not
that we are adjourning, that we would recess until after the adjourn-

ment of the House, at which time we would reconvene, I take it ?

Mr. Latta. And the purpose of my request is so that I can draft

tlie amendment that will be acceptable to the chairman and I think
that we ought to have that right, because I would like to vote to get

the information that this committee wants, whether it is by subpena or
otherwise. But, to vote bjindly on 1-E and 2-E as proposed here, I can-

not do it.

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. The Chair has already indicated that we would
come back, we would reconvene if we had not completed the business

of the day after the House had completed its business. And if you
are so inclined, why we will state a time certain as well.

ISIr. Rangel. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The gentleman will state it.

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman
Tlie Chairman. Parliamentary inquiry? Is this a parliamentary

inquiry?
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INIr. Rangel. Yes. Does the motion to recess carry the same priv-

ileges as the motion originally made to adjourn ?

The Chairman. Unless it is for a motion to adjourn to a time
certain. But, a motion to recess does not carry the same privilege.

Mr. Eangel. Well, I understood the motion was to adjourn.
The Chairivian. It is merely a recess. Now, I put the motion to

the committee. All those in favor of the motion offered by the
gentleman from Ohio please say aye.

[Chorus of "aj^es."]

The Chairman. All those opposed.
[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. The Chair feels that the ayes have it. And the ayes
have it and the Chair will state that the committee will reconvene
at 1 :30.

[Whereupon, at 12 :05 p.m., the committee was recessed to reconvene
at 1 :30 p.m. this same day.]

afternoon session

The Chaiiuvian. The committee will come to order. And in keeping
with what the Chair had already agreed to, the committee was
disposed to recognize Mr. Latta for the purjDOse of offering

an amendment.
Mr. Latta. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I move that the more de-

tailed schedule of four pages specifying the time, the conversations, the

text of which is at the desk, and copies of which are before the mem-
bers, be substituted for the schedule originally attached to the form of

the subpena under consideration. It is my understanding that all

members have copies of this document.
The Chairman. I would like to ask does the gentleman want to be

recognized on his amendment ?

Mr. Latta. Yes. I think, Mr, Chairman, that my amendment will

spell out specifically what the committee wants and it wiU alert the

White House as to what the committee wants and as I said this

morning, I thought that the way item IE and 2 were drafted, tliey

were too general and it would be very difficult for anyone to answer
that subpena. And I think what we have done here, we have spelled

out specifically what is wanted, and they ean answer this subpena the

way it is. Otherwise, I do not think they could properly answer it.

The Chairman. I would like to reply to the gentleman and state

that the amendment is agreeable to the Chair, and I would hope that

the amendment would be adopted,
Mr. Dennis, Mr. Chairman, may I ask counsel when you are

through a question, before we vote on the matter ? Whenever you are

through ?

The Chairman. I feel that the amendment does specify the times of

conversation and is in keeping with the spirit of what we have Ix^en

attempting to do. And I would hope that the amendment would bo
agreed to.

Mr. Seiberling. Parliamentary inquiry ?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ^

The Chairman, Mr, Dennis.
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Mr. Dennis. May I inquire of counsel briefly, I would like to ask
Mr. Doar, this will attacli when adopted, the particular occasion

specified in the memorandum you gave us this morning, which I

think is a good idea. But, I want to go back to your letter of April 4

where you expressed in numbered paragraphs 1, 2, and 3 on pages
2 and 3 of that letter your reasons for relevance on the subject matter
rather than the date in which you are interested. And I ask you
whether your view as to the subject matter which we should acquire

under this subpena remains the same as expressed in your letter of

April 4 in the subparagraphs referred to '^

Mr. Doar. It does, Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. And extends only to that subject matter, is that

correct ?

Mr. Doar. It does, with the understanding that the committee makes
the determination of whether or not the particular conversation is

relevant.

Mr. Dennis. I understand that the committee always has the final

decision, but as to whether something is relevant or falls within these

categories, what we are asking for now under the subpena and under
the subpena as amended, if Mr. Latta's motion is adopted, will still

be confined to the subject matter in which you stated our interest lay

in these paragraphs of your letter of April 4, 1974, to Mr. St. Clair?

Mr. Doar. No. That is not correct. It is not correct.

Mr. Dennis. That is not correct ?

Mr. Doar. That is not correct. The subpena is not limited by the

paragraphs in my letter of April 4. The subpena speaks to particular

convereations on particular dates.

Mr. Dennis. Well, I understand
Mr. Doar. And it is one thing to put that kind of subject matter

reference and specificity in a letter, but in my professional opinion,

you camiot do that in a subpena and for that reason I would say that
^Ir. St. Clair, the President and Mr. St. Clair woidd be bound to

furnish to the committee these particular conversations, whether or

not they relate to the matters in paragraph 1, 2, or 3 for the com-
mittee's determination as to relevancy.

Mr. Dennis. Well, then, your statement is that they must furnish
under the subpena, as you interpret it, each of these specific conversa-
tions listed in your memorandum of today, even if they do not Ix^ar

on the subject matter that you inquired about and gave as your
specification in your letter of April 4, is that correct ?

Mr. Doar. Well, they are required to do that. But, in the matter
of compliance, if Mr. St. Clair brought to the attention of the chair-

man the ranking minority member, or the committee, that a particular

conversation was not relevant, and the committee considered it and
decided it did not want it produced, then the committee would not
have to require its production. But, that is a matter of compliance.
But, in initial instance, with respect to the command of the subpena,
under this subpena, the President or his subordinate officer is com-
manded to bring these particular conversations to the committee,
Mr. Dennis. All right. They must bring everything listed here,

whatever the subject matter might be ?

Mr. Doar. That is risfht.

41-018—75—pt. 1 22



334

Mr, Dennis. All right.

Now, is it your thought, however, that when this committee—they

•must bring it here, right ?

Mr. DoAR. Eight.
Mr. Dennis. But, is it not your thought, however, that when the

•committee then passes on the matter, that the committee should be

guided by the subject matter limitations expressed in your letter of

April 4?
Mr. DoAR. It is.

The Chairman. May I express to you at this time that I am sure

the gentleman is aware of the fact that we do have rules of confi-

dentiality. If Mr. St. Clair or the President were to state in the first

instance that matters are unrelated, that they deal with national

security, Mr. Hutchinson and myself have the initial responsibility to

look at that, and then we would make a determination oui-selves along

with them. And I am sure that if these were matters that were
sensitive, if these were matters of national security, and we were so

advised, I am sure that we would so regard and make tliat kind of a

recommendation to the committee.
Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield a moment to me, the

chairman ?

The Chairman. I yield to the gentleman further.

Mr. Dennis. Well, thank you for yielding. I am sure that you and
the ranking member, whenever you have duties to perform, will cer-

tainly attempt to perform them to the best of your ability. I am con-

fident of that in both cases. But, what I am concerned about here, in

Mr. Doar's letter of April 4, in answer to Mr. St. Clair's request for

tlie basis of our inquiries. Mr. Doar was quite specific as to the type

of subject matter, and I thought quite properly so. Now, under the

subpena, the subena is broader, according to Mr. Doar, and even though
matters covered by the subpena fall outside of the parameters of his

letter of April 4, it must be produced here for the committee's ulti-

mate decision as to whether it does or does not fall within these para-

meters and it seems to me in the subpena we are going somewhat
beyond the basis that counsel expressed in his letter of the 4th of

April.

Mr. Railsbaok. Mr. Chairman ?

Tlie Chairman. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. In reference to your statement just a moment ago,

I personally feel that counsel has adequately answered ISIr. Dennis'

question. But, I have a question. Under our rules of procedure for

handling the impeachment inquiry material, which I think is pretty

important, I favor this kind of a screening process that we had agreed
to, and I understood that you and Mr. Hutchinson, and Mr. Doar and
Mr. Jenner will be permitted to initially screen, and you have agreed,

I guess, to have—that is my understanding—to have Mr. St. Clair

there as well. Now, normally the order of sequence would be that you
would make your presentation to us, and at that point, we would be
given an index of all of the materials and the statement of facts, and
then under our existing rules, any member would be able to go over and
look at any evidence that you have screened. And it seems to me in

this case that it would be desirable if maybe we could alter that
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mechanism to let you have the initial and final say as to any national

security items.

The Chairjman. I believe that would be a matter we would con-

sider when we consider the rules of procedure.

Mr. Railsback. But do you see what I mean ? It is a touchy thing,

because as I understand it, we are really not protecting from any mem-
ber seeing these things that may involve national security, and it seems

to me that I, for one, would be willing to take your recommendation
as to what may in this particular instance constitute national security

materials.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman \

The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling was asking for recognition.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Well, Mr. Chairman, could I also comment on Mr.
Railsback's statement ?

The Chairman. You have the floor.

Mr. Seiberling. It seems to me that it is quite obvious that the Chair,

the chairman and Mr. Hutchinson would rule on whether this was or

was not within the scope of the investigation. If they ruled it was not,

I assume that the matter would not be taken by the committee. It would
be returned to the "White House.
Now, if they rule that it was, then I think any member will prob-

ably
Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Ms. Holtzman. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Seiberling. Have the right—I would prefer not to yield at this

point because I just want to raise one matter of information, and then

if someone else wants to raise a point, they may.
My question is, Mr. Chairman, whether or not this, and perhaps

Mr. Latta can answer this or Mr. Doar, whether or not this schedule

that has been offered by Mr. Latta is the same, covers all of the same
meetings, or rather conversations that are covered in the memorandum
that was submitted to the committee this morning by Mr. Doar listing

the conversations?
]Ms. Holtzman. Would tlie gentleman yield on that point?

]\Ir. Seiberling. Well, I would prefer to get an answer first, if I

may.
Mr. Doar. The amendment does cover all of the conversations cov-

ered in our memorandums submitted this morning.
Mr. Seiberling. Thank you. I yield to the gentlelady.

Ms. Holtzman. I thank tlie gentleman for yielding. I have just

compared the schedule that was produced by Mr. Latta with the pages
of Mr. Doar's memorandum, and I mean in just my comparison I have
noticed at least five conversations that are missing. Xow, perhaps some-
body else can compare them, and maybe there was not any intent to

leave anything out.

]\Ir. Doar. I think they have been rearranged, Ms. Holtzman. But,
I do not believe that there are five conversations omitted.
Mr. Seiberling. I yield back the balance of my time.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, mav I make a comment?
The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
]Mr. McClory. I want to make a very brief comment, Mr. Chairman.

This mornine: I indicated that if there was a commitment from Mr.
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St. Clair to deliver voluntarily four of the six items, that I would pre-
fer that over the subpena. I have, during the recess, I have endeavored
to get some such commitment in writing from Mr. St. Clair, unsuccess-
fully, and I think that the offer is entirely too equivocal—too condi-
tional upon which to base a vote against the issuance of the subpena.
And unless there is some other evidence of voluntary compliance, I
would not want to rely on that kind of voluntary judgment.
You have not received any, Mr. Doar, you have not received any

commitment in writing, have you ?

Mr. DoAR. No ; I have not.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous question.

The Chairman. The question is on the motion offered by the gentle-
man from Ohio, Mr. Latta.

All those in favor of the motion say aye.

[Chorus of "'ayes.-']

The Chairman. All opposed ?

[Chorus of "'noes."]

The Chairman. The ayes have it and the motion is agreed to.

There being no other amendments before the Chair, the question is

on the

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. On the adoption of the motion as amended. All
those in favor of the

—

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I would like to be heard on the motion.
The Chairman. I will give you the 1 minute.
Mr. Dennis. All right, I really have a question, and I do not care

who answers it, or is authoritative enough to do it. But, when I talked
to Mr. Doar a moment ago, as I understood him, everything must be
produced in answer to tliis subpena which is called for whetlier or
not it is bound with the bounds of his letter of April 4, and then the
committee decides the matter.
My friend, Mv. Seiberling, says that the chairman and the ranking

member and the counsel decide the matter, which is quite OK with
me. But, it is not the same thing. And I do not see wdiere anything
says that tliat is what happens instead of what Mr. Doar said happens.
And I would like to know which way it is and on what basis? If you
are to do it, where is the authority? Counsel says we all do it.

The Chairman. The question is a question as to the rules of con-

fidentialit}^ that we will adhere to and make a recommendation to the
committee which I hope the committee would then comply with. And
I think that that is the Avay it would go.

Now, the question is on the adoption of the motion as amended by
the gentleman from Ohio, All those in favor
Mr. Brooks. Rollcall vote is demanded.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Eecord vote.

The Chairman. A record vote is demanded and the clerk will call

the roll.

Those in favor say aye and those opposed, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohite. Aye
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Aye.
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The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Himgate.
Mr. HuxtjATE. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.

Mr. Conyers. Aye.
The Clerk. ]Slr. Eilberg.

Mr. Eilberg. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr! Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
IMr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.

Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.

The Chairman. Proxy. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
]Mr. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eangel.
Mr. Eangel. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
!Ms. Jordan. Ave.
The Clerk. Mv. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. HoLTZiSrAN. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. ISIr. INIezvinsky.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. :^rcClory.

Mr. McClory. Aye.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Smith.
'Mr. Smith. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. PIuTCHiNsoN. Proxy. No.
The Clfjrk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Aye.
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The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr, Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk, Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan, Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. Lott. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. INIaraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.
Mr. Latta. Aye.
The Clfjik. Mr. Rodino.
The Chahiman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Chairman-
The Chairman. The clerk will announce the vote.

The Ci^RK. Ayes, 33 ; nays, 3.

The Chairman. The motion is agreed to. And I recognize Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that it would be appro-

priate for you as chairman to—well, in the first instance I recall

that the chairman wrote a letter to the President concerning our
request for evidence and the counsel wrote a letter to the President's

counsel concerning the request for evidence.

Now, that we have issued this subpena, it seems to me it would be

appropriate for the President to be advised that negotiations with
counsel have not been satisfactory with reference to the production of

evidence, and the committee has found it necessary, pursuant to its

constitutional duty to issue a subpena. And I make that suggestion for

the additional reason that the letters of Mr. St. Clair and certain other

statements are full of implications that this is all that the committee
needs or this is all that the committee is going to get. And I think

that we need to reserve to ourselves at this point unequivocally the

right to request or subpena such additional evidence from the White
House as this committee may deem necessary in accordance with our
understanding of that term. I just feel tliat it needs to be done, and I

can think of no better vehicle or way to do it other than your writing

such a letter. And I make that suggestion to you, I do not know that

you need any direction from the committee to do it, but if you do. I

ask unanimous consent that you be authorized to write such a letter.

The Chairman. Is there objection?

No objection being heard, the Chair will direct such a letter.

Mr. Edwards, Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. To the President.

Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman, I would like to call the attention of

the committee to your opening remarks wherein you stated your per-

sonal views and I am sure that these are the views of most of the
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members of this committee if not all of them with regrard to repre-

sentation by the President. And I commend yon for those remarks..

And I hope that they will be included in the rules that we draw up-

down the road.

But, I would also point out that your opening remarks should cer-

tainly allay the fears once and for all of those who have for one

moment thought that this committee is not going to give to the

President of the United States every possible benefit of due process-

and Constitutional rights.

The Chairman. Mr. Eailsback.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I was one of the those that I think

maybe got a little bit hot under the collar when the question as to the-

right of the President to have counsel present, and the right for that

counsel to cross-examine, when we earlier had a rather heated dis-

cussion, and let me say from listening to your original statement. I

also think that you are to be commended for that, and I think

honestly that you and Mr. Hutchinson, both of you have done a good

job as far as trying to conduct this in a judicious manner.

I^t me just say that I still feel that all of us are going to be judged

on how we conduct ourselves, ourselves, and I tell you that it is not

just the Judiciary Committee, it is the Congress as an institution. And"

I sincerely hope that as we get to the more difficult hearing stages, or-

they may be more difficult, that we can conduct ourselves in the same-

kind of a way that I think we have displayed here this morning.

The Chairman. Before we conclude
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. May I announce the schedule and then I will

recognize further members ?

As the members are aware, the House will be in recess beginning-

today for the Easter holiday and we will reconvene on Monday,
April 22. The Chair, however, will remain in close touch with the-

committee, and especially with the ranking minority member dui'ing-

the next week and the inquiry will go forward without interruption.

Although it is not the present intent of the Chair to call the com-
mittee into session during this period, our resolution from the House-

permits meetings during the recess and I shall be prepared to give

immediate notice to the members if any contingency arises calling for

the exercise of the committee's responsibility.

After the recess on Tuesday, April 23, there will be a full committee
meeting for the purpose of considering legislation and it is expected

that both public and private bills will be on the agenda at that time.

It is further expected, and I shall call a meeting or meetings for much
of the balance of that week after the Easter break to continue con-

sideration of the scope of the impeachment inquiry, and to analyze

and determine the areas for further investigation, or to narrow the-

investigation.

During the following week, the week of Tuesday, April 30. it is the

hope of the Chair that the coinmittee can consider its procedures for

the next stage of our inquiry, and it is anticipated that the initial-

evidentiary presentations will begin on or about May 7. Again, I will

be in close consultation with members during the recess.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?
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'Mv. Flowers. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will just be brief.

I would like to congratulate Mr. Latta, the newest member of our
committee, for coming up with a workable compromise. It looks like

on an issue that was before us today and I think that it is full

BAndence that this committee is basically together on the way we are

going. AikI I am certainly happy that we were able to resolve this,

what I consider to be a very small problem to date. And I think the

gentleman from Illinois expressed it, that the harder decisions are

going to be down the line somewhere. And I do not think the members
of this committee, and I think that the audience and the press ought
to realize that most of us do not view what we did today, most of us,

anyway, as any really large undertaking. I think we did what was
necessary and obvious for us to do. And if it is interpreted by the

audience or the press as an obvious 36 to 3 vote against the President,

they are, in my judgment, at least for this member, erroneously

interpreting my vote. I voted for this committee to have the informa-

tion that it deserves. It has a right to under the Constitution and our

duties and that is all I did. And it is not going to govern what I do
down the line. I am going to maintain mv own independent judgment,

to render it as the time arises in the future.

And I think we ought to recognize that this is not—I am a little

disturbed because we lost half of our audience when the vote was
annoimced—but this is not, in my judgment, a momentous occasion, as

some have said it was. I think it was merely another step along the

line of what we have got to do. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
ISIr. Dennis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am very gratified that we

have now established the highly important principle that the Presi-

dent's counsel should participate in our proceedings when we reach

the stage of presenting evidence. At the same time, I want to note that

how important that may be depends on how we implement the prin-

ciple, and there really is not very much that counsel can do unless we
call live witnesses here and give him a chance to cross examine them.

There are a number of very important witnesses in this matter which
I think almost any member here could readily name, some of whom
have testified, none of whom have really been subjected to cross ex-

amination on the important points on which this committee is con-

cerned and I hope very much that as we consider the rules of proce-

dure, that we will at an early date so that we can resolve it well ahead
of time and determine the niatter of calling witnesses, what witnesses

will be called, and the matter of the right of counsel on behalf of the

President as well as counsel on behalf of the committee to examine and
cross examine those witnesses.

The Chairman. We have not had an opportunity to fully discuss

that, and we will meet for the consideration of those rules of proce-

-dure, the week after the recess.

Mr. Dennis. I think we cannot proceed this ex-parte. It is entirely

i;oo important to do that.

I yield to the gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. McClory. I would just like to make this comment. I think it

is important for counsel for the President to be present even though
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we do not have live witnesses to comment upon docmnentary and other
types of evidence that we receive and to object to certain types of evi-

dence and to explain, if possible, so that we do get the best possible

concept of the evidence.

]\Ir. Dennis. I agree to that, but it is his important function, and
I yield to the gentleman from
The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired.

I recognize the gentleman from Missouri, Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. I commend Mr. Hutchinson and the chairman on

their patience and I hope that they do not develop boils. So, I would
like to move that we now adjourn.
The Chairman. The question is on a motion to adjourn. Those in,

favor please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. And the committee is now adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 2 :10 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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The Chairman. The committee will come to order. And the photo-

graphers and others will clear the room.
The Chair would like to make a preliminary statement. It is the

understanding of the Chair that some confusion existed regarding the

timing of the afternoon session of the committee's April 11 meeting
when it met to consider the issuance of the subpena upon the President.

As members will recall, that meeting recessed at noon to convene
again later in the day. Some confusion apparently ensued during the

break as to whether the meeting was to commence again at 1 :30 p.m.

or at such time as the House completed its business and adjourned for

the Easter recess. The uncertainty apparently was not clarified in time

to permit our friend, Mr. Sandman, our colleague from New Jersey

to make the 1 :30 meetins:, which is the sole reason his vote is not re-

corded on the issuance of the committee's subpena.

The Chair wishes to make clear, however, that Mr. Sandman's
absence reflects only the scheduling uncertainty, and not any unreadi-

ness on the part of Mr. Sandman to cast his vote. And I recognize

Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. I thank the chairman for the statement. And what

I have to say I have to say directly to the media as well as the chair-

(343)
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man and other members of the committee. I am certain this did not
happen because anyone intended to embarrass me.

But second, every member of the media was here wlien this did
happen. We did adjourn at noontime. The firet announcement was that

the committee would resume after the House adjourned. I left the room
and was interviewed by most of the TV media outside of the wall and,

yes, the largest newspaper in the District of Columbia, for the first

time, I think it was. had my name fjlarina^ly on the front ])aofe as the

only member who missed the vote on this most important vote. This
I think is not only unfair, this is dishonest reportino;.

The Chairman. The chairman wishes to announce that on Monday
of this week, Mr. James D. St. Clair, special counsel to the President,

requested on behalf of President Nixon an extension of time on or be-

fore Tuesday, April 80, 1974, to respond to the subpena of the Com-
mittee on the Judiciary authorized, issued, and served on Presideiit

Nixon on April 11, 1974.

Mr. St. Clair respresented to Mr. Doar that he was having difficulty

assemblinof the material to be submitted to the committee, and that the

President wanted to review all the material at one time prior to re-

spondinof to the committee's subpena.
After consultation with Mr. Hutchinson. I authorized IVIr. Doar

to tell Mr. St. Clair that I would recommend to the committee at the

meetin£j on Thursday, this Thursday, that it grant this 5-day extension

of the time for the President to respond.
Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, I want to join you in your state-

ment. You did, indeed, consult with me as soon as the message was re-

ceived from Mr. St. Clair on this matter, and you and T agree that if

the President's counsel required a reasonable additional time that it

should be granted.

I think that the situation is that we must recognize that the Presi-

dent's counsel is not only having to respond to this committee, but he
has to respond to the Special Prosecutor and so on. And I think that

under the circumstances that the committee should grant this extension

of time, and I am happy to join you, Mr. Chairman, in that recom-
mendation.

Mr. McClory. "Would you vield for a question ?

The Chairman. Before Mr. Doar, would you kindly read the letter

from Mr. St. Clair.

Mr. Doar. This is dated April 23 [reading] :

Dear Mr. Doar :

Further in respect to my letter to you this date will ronfirm that T requested
on behalf of the President an extension of time within which to respond to the
House subpena in order that the material to be submitted to the House could be
finally reviewed by the President prior to submission to the Committee on the
Judiciary.

Sincerely yours,
James D. St. Clair.

The Chairman. Thank you. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Mr. Chairman, in accord with the President's request

of Tuesday, I move the adoption of the following resolution: Re-
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solved that the Committee on the Judiciary extend the time for a

response to its subpena of April 11, 197'1, until 10 o'clock Tuesday,

April 30, 1974.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
]Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, may I on the motion, may I ask

this question of counsel, or you, Mr. Chairman, or whoever might have

any information^ 1 just wonder whether, have there been any conver-

sations or any indications as to w^hat kind of a response we are going

to get? Is it going to be a favorable response, or a favorable response

in part, or do we have any information along that line?

Mr. DoAR. Well, we had no indication that it was going to be no
response at all.

Mr. St. Clair has just said that he is having difficulty assembling the

materials and he wanted, the President wanted, the opportunity to

review^ it all before he made the response. There was no indication

that there was going to be any limitation with respect to compliance.

Nor was there any statement that there would be full compliance, as we
interpreted it.

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. I second the motion, with limited optimism.
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Eangel, Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. My. Chairman. I am going to oppose the motion, as I

have announced. I think the President has had 60 days and his counsel

has had 60 days to get the material together and it does seem to me
that all the President is doing, or all his counsel is doing is that which
any defense counsel does, is seek to delay ultimate compliance with
any of the proceedings of this committee.

If the commitment has been made by Mr. St. Clair on behalf of the

President that at the end of the 5-day extension he would comply with
the subpena. I would vote for it. Absent that commitment, I am per-

suaded, in fact, he will not comply, and that all we are doing is adding
5 days to a process that has been interminably delayed already, and
tluit the end of this 5 days we will be precisely where we are today.

We will be meetin*? to determine what we are going to do because of
the failure to comply.

I think also, Mr. Chairman, that when the committee voted ?>8 to 3

to issue the snb]>ena to the President to obtain the materials than had
not voluntarily been supplied us as we had requested and negotiated for

45 days, we at that time exhibited a long overdue will on the part of
this committee to confront the same sort of will the President was
exhibiting. Our will was to procure evidence; his will was to withhold
^?vidence.

It seems to me we are now backing down from that day, and I was
pleased with the committee's response of the 33 to 3 vote. I think this

is a retreat fi'om that commitment, Mr. Chairman, and I will vote
against the 5-day extension because it does not seem to me it is in the
best i]itei-est of the committee to plav that game with Mr. St. Clair
without better promises from Mr. St. Clair or better evidences of
cooperation than he has extended thus far.
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If you review the performance on the part of the President throngli
every single inquiry that has been conducted into this situation before
anybody, the grand jury, the Special Prosecutor, Judge Sirica, and
this committee, you will find no instance of cooperation.
The only time anything has been forthcoming from the "W^iite

House has been under the compulsion of an order of a subpena, and it

does not seem to me that we have any realistic reason to expect any
different performance in this instance and I am troubled. Mr. Chair-
man, as to what this means in terms of the request of last Friday,
where I understood we made a request for additional information. Da
we then negotiate another 60 days for that request and at the end of
that time issue a subpena or does failure to comply vv^itli this subpena
and failure at the end of the 5-day extension, which most assuredly
will be the case, mean that our patients will finally have been
exhausted with the President?
The Chairman. I would like to respond to the gentleman by stating^

that this in no wise indicates that we are setting a precedent at this

time that we would wait for response to the further requests we have
made of the President.

I would believe, however, in keeping with the patience that we have-

demonstrated for this period of time, and in demonstrating as well

quite clearly that we were interested and are interested to meet our
responsibilities to make a determination based on the evidence that we
feel is necessary to be before this committee, we are concerned and
anxious for the receipt of this data which we believe is pertinent and
relevant, and necessary, and we would hope that the President's
request is premised on the fact that he intends to reply and to comply
with the subpena.
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, I am going to support tliis motion
and I am going to do so on the premise that it is reasonable to infer
from the request for an extension of time that the original position

taken by Mr. St. Clair prior to the time we issued the subpena, namelv.
that he would make partial compliance with our request by the
22d of this month, and now indicating a desire to have more time
indicates an intention to comply fully, and that the additional time is

needed to obtain the additional evidence that he had previously
planned to give us. And if we do not get full compliance, then I think
this committee is entitled to take that into consideration in an}' future
dealings with respect to additional material requested.

I am going to support this solely on that hope, and inference that
we are going to get full compliance.
The Chairman. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Floavers. Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your yielding to me. I

would more or less identify mj^self with what the gentleman from
Ohio has said. I cannot imagine that this does anything other than, if

possible, place a stronger burden on the White House to comply with
our reasonable request, and I do not want to be overly optimistic, but I
certainly hope that this is their intention.

If they are dealing fairly with this committee, I would agree with
the gentleman from Ohio, this is a reasonable inference from the
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request to extend the time, and I hope that within the extended time

frame we will have as full compliance as is physically possible to a

subpena issued by this committee.

Mr. Kangel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. I would like to ask counsel a couple of questions in

connection with this proposed resolution. The subpena which was
issued called for 10 a.m. today as the return time and date for the

materials subpenaed, as I understand it. Right?
Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Danielson. If we should extend this time by means of this-,

resolution, will we not have waived the failure of the President to

comply with this subpena of April 11
'?

Mr. DoAR. No, we will not.

Mr. Danielson. Would the resolution as drafted be sufficient t^, in^

fact, extend the time for compliance without waiving the compulsion

of the subpena ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. In my opinion it would.

Mr. Danielson. You feel then that there would be no necessity to

issue a new subpena at this time returnable on April 30 ?

Mr. Doar. No, I do not.

Mr. Danielson. I then would make one suggestion, Mr. Chairman.
And, in fact, I will so move at the appropriate time that the resolution

be amended to read that

:

The Committee on the Judiciary extend the time in which the President shall

furnish the committee with the documents and things described in its subpena-

of April 11, 1974, until 10 a.m. on Tuesday, April 30, 1974.

This implicitly is demanding that there be a furnishing of the

documents and things subpenaed rather than simply a response to

the subpena.
The Chairman. Will the gentleman withhold that ?

Mr. Danielson. I will. I simply wish to put this thought into the

debate here, because I think it is essential to the resolution of the

question.

The Chairman. I would like to respond to the gentleman by saying

that since counsel has ceded unequivocably that there would be no-

weakening of the original subpena, that the subpena would have the

same force and effect, except if the time element would be extended,

it would seem to me that to add any other language, would, I think,,

probably color the original subpena. I would hope that the gentle-

man would reconsider his intention to offer such an amending motion..

Mr. Danielson. I do not offer it as a motion at this time, though at

the moment it is my intention to do so at the appropriate time. Per-
haps I will change my mind

;
perhaps I will not.

Thank you.
The Chairman. Thank you. Father Drinan? Mr. Eangel.
Mr. Rangel. May I make an inquiry of counsel ?

The Chairman. The gentleman will proceed.

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Doar, I understand that it is not the President's,

counsel that is not prepared to turn over the information that we
requested, but rather the President has not had the time to review-

that information. Is that correct ?
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JNIr. DoAR. No, it was that the—of course, it was the President that
makes the tlecisioii with respect to responding to the subpena and jSIr.

St. Clair said that he had not had time to assemble all of the material,

and that the President wanted, and he recommended to the President
that the President wanted to review the response and the material that
was going to be submitted at one time, I had asked him why it was
not possible,to make partial compliance today, and he said it was
because the President wanted to review all of the material at one time.

]Mr. Rangel. I still do not know whether that material has been
compiled and we are now waiting for the President to review it all

at one time, or whether the President, because of other activities, had
not liad the time to review what is compiled,
Mr, DoAR. My impression Avas, Congressman, that all of the mate-

rial had not been completely compiled by Monday, but it was almost
compiled, but then it had to be reviewed by the President.

Ml'. Rangel. Thank you.
Mr. Chairman, on the motion I will be voting against the motion.

It seems as though the President of the United States has had a

sufficient time to morally come forward with the information that
the American people have asked, I have yielded to the Chair and the
anajority of the members of this committee in waiting for a response
from our request, and obviously, there has been some problem with the
lawyers in understanding what we were requesting. I thought earlier,

in fairness to the President and the American people, that the issuance
of the subpena much earlier would have joined the issues, I think it is

safe to say that after the expiration of these 5 days that we will not
even get substantial compliance from the Office of the President, that
we will hear some additional exchanges between counsel as to the scope
of the subpena and perhaps the President might take to the airwaves
as to explain why he is not complying.

Sooner or later, we as lawyers and as Members of Congress and
this committee will have to go to the mat as to just how far the Pres-
ident is going to go in not supplying the information which we have
requested and now we have subpenaed.

I think that we have exercised patience, exercised fairness, and I
think the record in the future will indicate that we are not going to

^et anything from the President because there are no tapes, because
some erasures have been made on tapes, or because he would like to

give his own summary as to what he meant rather than what is on
the tapes.

I have yielded my personal feelings because I thought perhaps the
strategy, as outlined by the majority of the members of this commit-
tee, might evidence some cooperation from the President's Office. "We
have waited a long time. I think we have reached that point in our
patience where we should find out exactl}^ what the President intends
to do.

For those reasons, I will be compelled to vote against an extension
of time.

Mr. Mezvixsky. INIr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Ms. Joi-dan ?

]Ms. Jordan. Mr, Chairman, I would make note at this point that
I will vote in favor of the motion sfrantine to the President this addi-
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tional time to reply to the Committee on the Judiciary. It has been

our practice since the beginning of this impeachment inquiry to give

to the President not ordinary due process, but due process quadrupled

and I am quite willing to quadruple the President's due process, if it is

going to help us at some point make a resolution of the issue which
confronts us, which is defensible and sensible. Now, this committee,

if it votes for this extension, will demonstrate clearly, not only to the

President, but to the rest of the world, that we are not out to kill the

king or behead him, that all we want is to present a presentation of

evidence to support whatever our conclusions are which can stand

the test of time, the test of history, the test of logic and good judgment.

I would simply hope, Mr. Chairman, that in granting this addi-

tional time, we have made it absolutely clear that we fully expect the

President to comply in every particular with the subpena, with the

information that we have requested of him, and at the granting of

this extension is no lessening of our resolve to get everything we need

to carry this inquiry to a prompt and just conclusion.

And for that reason, Mr. Chairman, I feel that it would be a fur-

ther demonstration of our good faith, whether it is met in kind or not,

if we were to approve this motion.

The Chairman. Thank you.

Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to just briefly

^echo the reason why I will support the extension and say that I think

notice should be given to Mr. St. Clair and the President that when
we say full compliance, full compliance does not mean transcripts.

Full compliance does not mean minus one of the items or two of the

items. Full compliance means every item specifically stated, as pointed

out in Representative Latta's statement, and no transcript.

Now, I have one question. We have seen reports that possibly some
;tapes may not be available, they may be lost, the machine may not

have been working. Are we at all on notice, Mr. Doar, or Mr. Jenner,

that, in fact, there is the possibility that some of our specific requests

as to taped conversations may not be available, may be lost, and that

the machine may not have been working specifically at the times that

we laid out in our subpena?
Mr. DoAR. Well, it is a matter of public record, Congressman that

on the 15th of April, the testimony in Judge Sircia's courtroom was
that the machine, the tape had run out, and conversations on that date

were not recorded. Only to that extent have we been notified that in

any way there has been any missing tapes, or missing or unrecorded

conversations.

Mr. Mezvinsky. So that as far as our knowledge to date here this

morning, outside of that point, we can fully, at least expect and hope
to expect that the conversations requested are available and within the

<;onfines of the President and the White House which will be ulti-

mately given to our committee in compliance with our subpena?
Mr. DoAR. Well, let me add one more thing.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Is that a correct interpretation of at least what our

understanding is here today as far as the committee is concerned.

Mr. DoAR. That is my understanding, although let me add one more
,thing, that at some time after we had made our request in our letter

41-018—75—pt. 1 23
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of April 4, Mr. St. Clair called me and said that he was having difficulty

locating the conversation that took place between the President and
Mr. Haldeman on or about the 20th of February and he asked me if I
could give him any further information with respect to the time of that
conversation.

We went back through our records and gave him that. I called and
gave him that infromation. We have not heard anything further from
him.
Mr. Mezvinsky. We have nothing specifically as to the March 27

or the March 30 conversations.

Mr. DoAR. No. There has been no indication at all about those
conversations.

Mr. Mezvinsky. OK. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman ?

The CiiAiRMAisr. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.
I expect to support the motion. I think the record should point out

that we did not make a small request. I think that we subpenaed
something between 1,200 and 1,300 minutes of conversation. Is that
correct, Mr. Doar?
Mr. Doar. I think that is correct.

Mr. Latta. Something like 20% hours at that time.

Mr. Doar. Something in the order of 1,600 minutes.
Mr. Latta. 1,600 rather than 1,200 or 1.300 ?

Mr. Doar. But mindful of the fact tliat a good portion of those

were on the 15th of April, which was on the day that the recording
machine was not operative. So, it would be I suppose 1,200. Your
estimate would be 1,200.

Mr. Latta. 1,200 to 1,300. So, we did not ask for a small amount
of information. And from a practical standpoint, it takes some time

to get tliis material. So that for that reason, Mr. Chairman, I feel

that the committee is using its better wisdom in extending this time.

The CiTATRMAisr. Thank you.

Ms. PToltzman.
Ms. HoLTZMAisr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
After searching my conscience for a substantial time with respect

to the extension. I find that I will be unable to support the motion. And
I do so with some reluctance because I respect the recommendation
of my chairman. But, I also do so because I am troubled by three

things.

I am troubled first by the offer that Mr. St. Clair made to us when
we met on April 11 and voted for the subpena; namely, that within

4 days he would turn over four of the items called for if we did not
issue a subpena. Now. we are informed that there cannot be an7v" par-

tial compliance until the President has reviewed all of the material.

I think the question has to be raised before this committee as to the

bona fideness of Mr. St. Clair's offer to us on April 11, in view of the

subsequent events.

Second, the President has asked for this time, through his ronn-

sel, on the basis that he needs the time to rcAnew all of the tapes. Since
February 25. the President has taken substantial time to make ap-

pearances explainijig why he is not going to comply with our request.
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He has spent substantial time in an appearance in Chicago ; he traveled

to Houston, he made a substantial trip out there and back to discuss

why he would not comply. He made an appearance in Nashville and

he campaigned in Michigan. He took a vacation in Key Biscayne. To-

day he is in Mississippi, to my understanding. I think the President,

since February 25, has had more than ample time to make a direct re-

view of the materials and in view of the time he has spent on political

matters, it seems to me that the committee's insistence on compliance

with this date is not unfair.

Thirdly, I am concerned about the delay that this extension may
occasion to our inquiry. There may be materials in those tapes that

will cause us to ask for other doucments and other materials. And every

day of delay, it seems to me, is going to hamper the expedition with

which we conclude our efforts here.

And I think, too, just simply, that we have given the President

substantial time. We have leaned over so far backwards that I am
afraid some of us have fallen over, and I would suggest that we insist

on compliance with the subpena in full on this date.

Thank you.
The Chairman. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman, I am going to support the motion

generally for the reasons advanced by our colleague from Texas,

Ms. Jordan, and at the same time expressing no disagreement with
any of the statements that have been made by the previous members
of the committee.

However, I would like to ask counsel a question. As of right now,
as of 10 o'clock this morning, our subpena has been resisted, has been
refused, is that not correct?

Mr. DoAR. I did not understand.
Mr. Edwards. The demand of the subpena has been refused as of

10 o'clock this morning ?

Mr. Doar. Well, it has not been refused. It has not been complied
with.

Mr. Edwards. It has not been complied with. Is that not correct?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. That is right. But, I will say that when counsel

called me and I called him back, I advised him that the chairman
would request of the committee, after consultation with the ranking
minority member, approval for the extension of time.

Mr. Edwards. Would counsel also agree that there could be here in

this noncompliance, as of right now, with the subpena, that there is

a possible violation of title II, United States Code 192 that provides
that refusal to produce evidence as required by this subpena is a

Federal misdemeanor subject to a fine of up to $1,000 and imprisoji-

ment up to 1 year ?

Mr. DoAR. No, I would not believe I could agree to tliat. Congress-
man. I think that in my discussions with Mr. St. Clair that I indi-

cated to him that the extension, on the instructions of the cliairman,
that the committee, this would be presented to the com.mittee on
Thursday, and that the chairman and Mr. Hutchinson would recom-
mend it. And I do not believe imder those circumstances that yon
could, that you could charge Mr. St. Clair with any kind, or "the

President, with any kind of a willful defiance of the subpena.
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As a practical matter, the committee was not together, and the
request was made and that was the way it was handled. And so, I do
not believe that it would be, I could advise you professionally that
there has been any defiance of the subpena by the President.
Mr. Edwards. Thank you.

The Chairman. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, did I understand you to say that Mr. St. Clair indicated

that he could not make partial compliance by 10 o'clock this morning
because the President wanted to review all of the materials, all of
them before they were submitted to us?
Mr. Doar. That is right.

Mr. Owens. But there is no indication to what degree they would
comply ?

Mr. Doar. There was no indication of that.

Mr. Owens. We are not I assume taking, they would not be supply-

ing the only copies of the documents, the tapes ? The President would
still have access to those tapes, would he not ?

Mr. Doar. Yes. They would. The system is that the White House,
under Mr. Buzhardt, makes copies of the conversations and furnishes

us a copy of the tape.

Mr. Owens. So is there not implicit in that, in that reply, the

President's desire to review the tapes that conceivably he would hear

something that he did not want to turn over to this committee.

Mr. Doar. Well, I do not think—I would not want to make a judg-

ment on that, Congressman. I think it is a reasonable request that

the person who is going to respond to the subpena have before him all

of the material to review before he responds. I think that is, rather

tlian have his attorney give it to him piecemeal, I think that this is

—

the President obviously feels that he has an important position here,

and as your attx^rney, I am confident that the committee has an im-

portant^ and it is a constitutional position to protect here. And, there-

fore, I see no reason why we should not permit the President the op-

portunity to proceed carefully and with the committee being aware
that the President makes liis decision, he does make it with all of the

facts befoi*e him.
Mr. Owens. Do you have any information as to whether, in fact,

as reported, there has only been one attorney and one secretary work-
ing on those tapes? Did they give you any information about how
hard they were working in preparing those materials ?

Mr. Doar. No. I do not have any information on that.

Mr. St. Clair indicated that he had been working over the weekends,

and that he was just having, he said they were having a difficult time

getting it all together. And I can not tell you, I can not tell you
Aviiether or not the recordings were easily transcribable or difficult to

transcribe. Our experience with the tapes that we have are that some
are very easy to transcribe, some are very clear, and some are very
difficult.

Mr. Owens. And they offered no explanation other than what you
have told us this morning?
Mr. Doar. That is all.

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, I reluctantly support the motion, al-

though I do so in a sense in a grudging way, and simply because of
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my respect for the chairman and the ranking Republican member,
aiid the fact that they have, in essence, given this assurance to the

President's counsel. But, I will not vote to extend it any further. And
I am under the distinct impression the President simply will not com-
ply imtil, and whether he will do it then is an open question, he is

faced with a contempt citation. I recall the first Watergate grand
jury subpena, and it was after, as I recall, only 4i/^ days of being in

contempt of that citation, although not having been cited for contempt
by the court, that the President finally, finally complied at least par-

tially with that subpena. And I regret that we are asked to extend

this time without any assurances whatever that the President will

comply with the tapes or whatever, or to what extent that he will

comply.
But, I will support this because the time has now expired and be-

cause the chairman and the ranking Republican have given that assur-

ance. But, I will hope that the President will comply, and I agree

with my colleagues that this imposes, I hope, will impose upon him
a greater obligation and feeling that he has a greater obligation to

comply.
The Chairman. Thank you.
Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, if there is no further debate, I would

like to move the question. I will withhold it if anybody has anything
more.
The Chairman. The Chair would like to make a statement before

the question is put to the committee.
The Chair would like to state that on recommending this extension

to the committee, the Chair is primarily concerned with meeting the

responsibility of this committee under the Constitution and under
the resolution that was adopted by the House of Representatives by
vote of 410 to 4 directing this committee to inquire as to whether or
not evidence does exist upon which to base grounds of impeachment.
I think that we will not be diverted from that course. I think we should
not be diverted from that course.

"Wliatever is in the mind of the President, I cannot read. I would
only hope that having made the statement that he did, in his address,

on the state of the Union, that he meant what he said when he stated

that he recognized the special responsibility of this committee to con-

duct this inquiry, to conduct it completely and fairly. And this is all

that the Chair has in mind.
If there is any other interpretation that is in the mind of the Pres-

ident or the White House, or those that are directing this strategy,

I would hope they are alerted to the fact that this committee is doing
what it is doing with tremendous restraint only because it feels that

it owes an obligation and a primary responsibility to the American
people to try to assemble the evidence that is necessary, that is relevant

to make a judgment that will be fair, that will be comprehensive and
that will be complete. And only in this spirit do I recommend this

extension to the committee, not only in the hope but expressing, I be-

lieve, the desire of the American people, that the President come
forth with this evidence, with this data, so that once and for always
this committee may be able to, based on the evidence, come forward
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with the judgment as to whether or not the President, in the conduct
of his office, has committed impeachable offenses.

And having said that, I do say that I recognize that the members on
the majority side who are going along and going along with reluctance,

I want to commend them for their restraint, and I recognize, too, the
inability of some of them at this point to go beyond todtiy in having
the response, a full response to this committee's subpena.
And now I put the question to you.
Mr. Waldie. Rollcall, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The question is on the motion and the call of the

roll is ordered. The clerk will call the roll.

All those in favor of the motion please say aye and those opposed,
no.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue,
Mr. Donohue. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. Aye.
The Clerk. Mn Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clfj?k. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aj-e.

The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Aye
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mt. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
]Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
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Mr. IVIezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
JSIr. McClory. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr, Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. ^Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. Lott. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Aye
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chaieman. Aye.
The Clerk. Thirty-four having voted aye, four voting nay.
The Chairman. And the motion is agreed to.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Rodino ? Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Before recognizing Mr. Wiggins, the Chair would
like to state that the Chair is prepared to recognize Mr. Wiggins after

a discussion with Mr. Wiggins as to a motion that he would like to

present, which has to do with a matter that I believe is of importance
in the conduct of the inquiry of this committee. However, it is my un-
derstanding that the motion may be, will be offered, but that any vote
on the motion will be deferred until a further date?

Mr. Wiggins. Yes.
The Chairman. Is that correct ?

Mr. Wiggins. That is correct, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
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Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, parliamentary inquiry. Is such a motion'
in order today ? Is it on the agenda ? I just asked that question. I do
not know.
The Chairman. The Chair will rule that since the agenda provides

for the consideration of areas within the scope of the impeachment in-

quiry, I believe that the motion, as the gentleman has expressed it to

me, which relates to the material that may be presented to this com-
mittee or may be forthcoming, or may be demanded, that I believe it

is in order.

Mr. WiGGixs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. The Chairman is correct that it is my intention to

move the adoption of the resolution which I have circulated to all of
the members, but then to ask unanimous consent that further consider-
ation of that resolution be deferred until our next regular meeting.
My reason for doing so is that I want all of the members to have

ample opportunity to study the resolution in advance of their vote
and to have staff also to have an opportunity to comment upon the
proposed resolution.

I will say at this time, in advance of moving the adoption of the
resolution, however, that the resolution is intended to be constructive
and it is intended to deal with four areas only.

Mr. HuNGATE. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Wiggins. Of course.

Mr. HuNGATE. Is the gentleman, in effect, moving, asking unanimous
consent that his motion be considered today but not voted today ?

Mr. Wiggins. Well, it is not my intention that it be debated today
either. That is my personal intention. I would simply like to move the

adoption, and then defer any further consideration until the member.^-

have had a more thorough opportunity to consider it.

But, to aid your consideration I will just take less than 1 minute to

say that it is intended to deal with objections which may be raised

by the President to request for information from him. It is anticipated

that the only objections which the President might make are to the

relevancy of the data requested. He may make an objection based
upon a claim of privilege with respect to the information requested.

It is conceivable that the President may make an objection based upon
the grounds that the evidence requested deals with national security

matters, or some overriding national interest.

The motion which I shall make is intended to establish a procedure
for dealing with those objections. And the gentlemen, after studying

the resolution, will be assured that in all cases the final resolution of

those questions is vested with the committee and not with the Pres-

ident.

And finally, at the end we may as well confront the question of the

possibility of transcripts being tendered in lieu of tapes themselves

and it is intended to offer a mechanism for resolving that question.
_

Now, I will be happy, of course, to answer the questions, but it

would be my wish that we not get into this matter in detail, but that

the members study it carefully over the weekend so we will have art

opportunity to discuss it intelligently.

Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield to me ?

Mr. Wiggins. Of course.
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Mr. Dennis. I would say that I have had an opportunity to look
at the gentleman's motion, which does address itself to very important
questions which are going to be before us. And generally speaking, I

think it addresses itself very well to those questions, and I would
anticipate that I would be in basic support of the motion at the proper
time.

I would like to take this opportunity to commend the gentleman for

deferring its detailed consideration until we have all had a chance
to consider it. And in that connection, Mr. Chairman, I would like to

voice a concern which I do have in that that procedure be followed in

general.

Now, next week, as I understand it, at some point we are going to

have a meeting on adopting procedures. Probably Mr. Wiggins'
motion would be one of the procedures. I assume there will be others.

I understand the staff will be preparing some suggested procedures.

Now, I think it is exceedingly importaait to every member of the
committee that that staff preparation be given us a reasonable number
of days before the meeting so that we can consider it, and caucus on
it if we want to, and offer amendments and have them ready. And
now last week we had a very fine, I think very adequate justification

for our subpenas, but because of the circumstances, which I do not
have any quarrel with, but the fact is, we never saw the justification

until we just had to vote on it, without reading it, and I do not think
that ought to happen again.

Now, not only the procedures next week, we are also going to have
that matter up about the extra or additional requests that have been
made, as I understand it. I think we ought to have that letter so that
we will know what we have asked for. And certainly we ought to have
the justification so that w^e would not be in the situation we were last

week.
So, I want to commend the gentleman from California, and I want

to very strongly request that our procedural proposals, and these other
matters I have mentioned, be given the members of the committee
long enough ahead of time so we can consider them and prepare any-
thing we may want before we have to take action.

The Chairman. The gentleman is assured that the committee will

be provided with the draft rules of procedure so that the committee
will have ample time to consider them before taking those rules up.
Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Wiggins. I yield to the gentleman from Ohio.
Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman, I raise a question of parliamentary in-

quiry, because I hope we do not get into the business of this unilateral
pedalling of motions in advance. Now, my friend from California does
not want us to debate the motion. We have had him speak in favor of
it. We have had another member speak in favor of it. I think we should
observe more regular order in the presentation of motions. There are
going to be a number of them coming up from a lot of members, and
we do not want people speaking to their motion and then several days
later they will be willing to engage in a little debate.

Mr. Wiggins. I am attempting to accommodate the chairman. I will
say to the gentleman. I am perfectly willing to proceed.
Mr. CoNYERS. I am willing to yield to the gentleman on another

technical rule, if you will. I object, Mr. Chairman, I say this strongly,
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to having people who have motions present thom, to speak to them,-
and then to suggest that they are accommodating the chairman. I do
not think they are accommodating regular procedure.
Mr. Seiberlixg. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Wiggins. Speaking of regular procedure, ]\Ir. Chairman, I be-
lieve I have the time, do I not ?

The Chairman. The gentleman from California has the time. I
would hope that having
Mr. Wiggins. I yield to the gentleman from Ohio.
]\Ir. CoNYERS. Point of order, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The gentleman from California was recognized for

the purpose of offering a motioii, and assured me that it would take
2 or 3 minutes. Now the gentleman is now yielding. I would hope that
the gentleman having stated what the motion was all about, would
now be in a position to ask unanimous consent that the motion be con-
sidered, only next week, for the purposes of debate.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, I am prepared to do that, Mr. Chairman.
And accordingly, Mr. Chairman, I move the adoption of the resolu-

tion which I have distributed, and ask unanimous consent that further
consideration of that motion be cleferred.

Mr. CoNYERS. Objection.
Mr. Drinan. I object.

The Chairman. Objection is heard.

^
Mr. Wiggins. I have previously moved the adoption of the resolu-

tion. Now, Mr. Chairman, I move that further consideration of the^

motion be deferred imtil the nest regular meeting next week.
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Charman ?

Mr. Cohen. Parliamentary inquiry.

The Chairman. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. What is the effect of moving the adoption of the reso-

lution ?

The Chairman. Well, the gentleman has the right to move the
adoption of the resolution.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, may I speak just briefly on this be-
cause it is something in which I am interested and others are interested
as well, I know. What this motion does, the motion which has been put
together very ably by the gentleman from California, Mr. Wiggins.,
is to develop a means by which our counsel, and counsel for the Presi-
dent may jointly act in reviewing or screening taped materials which
we expect are going to be forthcoming from the White House for the
benefit of this committee. And it seems that we do have to, it seems
to me we do have to adopt an orderly procedure, and I think that it

is fair, it is a fair and equitable way in which the interest of the Presi-
dent can be protected, and at the same time that this committee can
be accommodated and there must be some mechanism at some time by
which we can act on this.

So, I am hopeful that this matter may be reviewed carefully, and
thoughtfully, and impartially and objectively by this committee, and
then we can take action on this mechanism which I think is a logical
one.

Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Flowers. Mr. Chairman ? Mr. Chairman ?
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Mr. Sedberling. "Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Dennis. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. McClory. I am happy to yield to the gentleman from Indiana.
Mr. Dennis. I thank the gentleman from Illinois.

It seems to me that I do not understand my friend from Michigan
here.

The Chairman. The Chair would
Mr. Dennis. The gentleman yielded to me, but I will stop if the

chairman thinks I ought to.

The Chairman. I think so.

Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. If the gentleman from California will withdraw
his motion, the Chair will assure the gentleman from California tliat

since it is a matter that relates to the obtaining of materials necessary
for the impeachment inquiry and in accordance with the stated agenda
of the Chair that this would come within the framework of adoption
of rules of procedure, that this would be one of the motions that we
would consider.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, that is the only assurance I really want, Mr.
Chairman. And I certainly do not wish to provoke a controversy and
with that assurance, I will be happy to withdraw all of my motions.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. Members of the committee, Mr. Jenner and I would like

to report to you this morning on the present status of the work of the
impeachment inquiry staff. All of the members have before them a
memorandum ^ dated April 24, as well as the memorandum dated
March 1, 1974. And if I might suggest, it may be useful for the com-
mittee members to look at those two reports together. The reason for

that is that in the introduction of the April 24 report we indicate to

the committee where our priorities have been with respect to our in-

vestigation, what work we have been doing, what materials we have
been analyzing and then say that the body of this report summarizes
certain areas and categories of, but not all of them, and that in the
areas and categories not specifically mentioned, our investigation is

continuing, and we regard those areas as priority matters where we
are giving them detailed attention.

Now, then, turning to the next page of the report, the first letter

there on page 3 refers to the letter D. The reason for that, members
of the committee, is that the allegations in the March 1 report with
respect to allegations concerning domestic surveillance activities con-

ducted by or at the direction of the White House, which was divided
into six items, are still under investigation.

The allegations under B concerning intelligence activities conducted
by or at the direction of the White House for the purpose of the Presi-

dential election of 1972, consisting of four items, are still under investi-

gation, and the C allegations concerning the Watergate break-in and
related activities, including alleged efforts by persons in the "Wliite

House and others to cover up such activities, including 13 items, are

under investigation.

And, of course, as the committee knows, the material that we have
received from the White House, the material we have received from
the grand jury relates in large part to these particular areas of our

1 See "Appendix V—Status Report as of AprU 24, 1974", In book III "Impeachment
Inquiry".
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inquiry. And wliat we have been doing is digesting and analyzing and
organizing that material for part of the initial presentation.

Now, area D dealt with the personal finances of the President, and
what this report attempts to do is to briefly summarize the findings

of the Joint Committee on Taxation with respect to the President's

1969, 1970, 1971, and 1972 income tax returns. And particularly with
respect to items of unreported or underreporting of income, or deduc-
tions that were disallowed in the staff report of the Joint Committee.
At the conclusion of that report, the Joint Committee indicated

that it was making no investigation whether or not there was any basis

for criminal tax fraud allegations against the President for which
the President might be responsible.

It has been reported, and I have verified that the Attorney General
Saxbe has made a formal delegation to the Special Prosecutor of
authority to investigate possible tax fraud in connection with the

question of the pre-Presidential papers. We assume, that is Mr. Jenner
and I assume that whatever investigation the Special Prosecutor con-
ducts, it is likely to be prolonged, and that the result will not be avail-

able to the committee under the committee's contemplated timetable.

Now, in connection with the gift of the pre-Presidential papers,
the Joint Committee sent to the President on March 22 certain ques-
tions, and they are found at the page beginning at page A, appendix
770 of the Joint Committee report. And we have under considera-
tion, the staff has under consideration these interrogatories which
were not answered, there was no response by the President, whether
or not that is a matter that the committee might wish to consider in

connection with the investigation and its inquiry into the personal
finances of the President.
There has also been
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman, may we interrupt at a time when we

do not understand a particular point ?

The Chairman. The gentleman may.
Mr. Waldie. What was the date of the interrogatories that were

submitted for response to which none has been received ?

Mr. DoAR. March 22.

Mr. Waldie. Is that referred to in your memo ?

Mr. Doar. The date of the reports referred to. It is on page 9
of the report.

Mr. Waldie. I thank you.
The Chairman. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Doar, in regard to this, I went through this

and I just have one question as far as the tax matter. There was a
previous question at a meeting as to the cooperation from the IRS.
Have we received from the IRS, from the Internal Revenue Service
the report that was compiled that laid out the tax deficiency for the
President and tlie reasons for that deficiency ?

Have you and the staff received the complete work product by the
Internal Revenue Service?
Mr. Doar. No, we have not. As a matter of fact, we have not yet,

we have not requested that report for the reason that we were con-
tinuing our discussions with the staff of the Joint Committee with
respect to tliat report before requesting it. So, we have not requested
it, nor received it.
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Mr. Mezvinsky. Do we plan to request that ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.

Mr. Mezvinsky. When?
Mr. DoAR. Congressman, there are a number of matters that the

chainnan and the ranking minority member and Mr. Jenner and I

would like to discuss with Congressman Mills of the Joint Committee.

Aiid I would like to defer responding to that, defer my recommenda-

tions on that until we have had that meeting.

Mr. Mezvinsky. You mean to say that there is a possibility that we

may not request the IRS report ?

Mr. DoAR. No ; I do not mean to say that at all.

The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I have two questions regarding this. I have asked you the question,

I think it was at least 3 weeks ago, as to whether or not you were going

to request the IRS report, and you assured me in this meeting, public

meeting, that you were going to request it.

Mr. Doar. That is true. That is true.

Ms. Holtzman. Can you tell us wlien that is going to be done ?

Mr. Doar. Well, what we are anxious to do
Ms. Holtzman. This is not a 60-day process either, is it ?

Mr. Doar. No. But, what we are anxious to do is to secure the in-

formation and we are working with the Joint Committee staff to be

sure that the legal basis for securing this information is set forth

carefully and as responsibly as we can before we submit a request.

i\Is. Holtzman. But the request will be submitted shortly ?

Mr. Doar. Yes ; it will be.

Ms. Holtzman. Also, you said that you had satisfied yourself that

tlie Special Prosecutor is reviewing tax fraud in connection with the

President's taxes.

JNIr. Doar. No ; I did not say that.

Ms. Holtzman. I was unclear as to what exactly you were saying
with I'espect to that.

Mr. Doar. And I said, and I verified this specifically and it is set

fortli on page 9. that under the authority and delegation between At-
torney General Saxbe and the Special Prosecutor, the Attorney Gen-
eral has the authority to delegate certain matters to the Special Prose-
cutor for investigation. And specifically. Attorney General Saxbe
made a formal delegation to the Special Prosecutor of authority to

investigate possible tax fraud in connection with the question of tlie

pre-Presidential papers.

Ms. Holtzman. But we have no information one way or the other
as to whether or not Mr. Jaworski is, in fact, investigating the Presi-
dent in connection with the allegations of tax fraud ?

Mr. Doar. Well, they are investigating the matter. That is, as far
as—that is the only statement that has been made.

ISIs. Holtzman. Thank you.
IMr. Raxgel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Well, just to follow up on that, Mr. Chainnan,

I am quite disappointed that we have not moved forwai'd, because
actually we have known for weeks, if not montlis that the Joint Com-
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mittee would not make a determination of any tax fraud, or make any
assessment of the President's activities other than to assess an amount
that might be due. Correspondingly, we knew that if there was to be
such a determination, or such an investigation, it would largely have
to come through our own efforts, I would have thought, and I am very
disappointed that we have not initiated such independent investigation
of this point.

Mr. DoAR. Well, Congressman, let me say this. The investigation of
tax fraud is a complicated matter, and it seemed to me wise that we
have the benefit of the expertise of the Joint Committee staff in con-
nection with that investigation. Now, we have had people working
on this, and working along with the Joint Committee all of the time
that the Joint Committee has been working and we are very familiar
with the results of the Joint Committee's investigation. And we do
know where and what steps to take to further the investigation.

The point that we are making this morning is that in order to com-
plete the investigation we are going to have to now go ahead and
conduct interviews, and it may be necessary for tlie committee to
subpena witnesses and hear testimony from people about this matter.
Now, because there is no other body that is now investigating, that
is doing this, and I think that all of the—there would have been really

no feasible way.
Your staff did not have the capability of developing the factual

material that is contained in this report with respect to the gift of
papers, but now that that development has been made, that basis has
been made, and we have had the benefit of frequent conferences and
consultations on that, we are ready to move forward and are moving
forward with the inquiry.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Well, I as one member of this committee would
urge that you do so, and with all possible speed. But, the language in

your status report suggests that this is in the future. It will be neces-

sary for the committee to conduct its own investigation, if it is to

pursue the subject and that is the language you use, and this is what
suggests that there may be a great deal more, that we will have to do,

and has not in fact, been done in the past.

Mr. DoAR. Well, I am afraid that is true, that the questions of in-

vestigation of criminal tax fraud are not easy questions, and I can just

say to you that whatever investigation the Special Prosecutor may be
making is such that there is no way, feasible way under this committee's
timetable that we can wait for that, and we are moving forward now
in conuection with this area and there are certain investigations that

we are now conducting, interviews we are now conducting.

But, we may have a problem of unwilling witnesses. We may have
to ask the committee to subpena witnesses and proceed in tliat fashion.

And that is a little different, that is a little different than the kind of
investigation Ave have been conducting to date in other areas.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. I will not take all of my time, but I would like to di-

rect just a few questions to counsel.

T^p to this point, it has been my understanding that there has been
no finding of intent to defraud. Now, reading the report submitted by
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the staff, it is clearly stated here that no investigation had been made
„of any kind into whether or not there was any intent to defraud. Now,
the question is, if you look into all of these facts and these claims, dis-

. claim all of these deductions as taken by the President, how can they

disclaim those without making a close investigation as to whether or

not they were done legally or fraudulently, intended to be done wrong ?

How would you expand on your investigation in all those areas ? How
would your investigation be any different from what the Joint Com-
mittee on taxation has already done ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, the investigation would involve a questioning of

those persons that have prepared or assisted or directed the prepara-

tion of the President's 1969 income tax return with respect to the gift

of the pre-Presidential papers, and would be also, it may well be that

the questions that were propoimded to the President on March 22

would be relevant to that inquiry.

Mr. Sandman, Now, would this be limited to a gift of the pre-Presi-

..dential papers, or would it go into all of these disallowed deductions?

Mr. DoAR. No ; it would be limited to the gift of the pre-Presidential

papers in this area?

Mr. Sandman. Oh, I see. Well, then, that would not be a prolonged

investigation, would it?

Mr. DoAR. Well, any
Mr. Sandman. The only thing that you would have to determine is

whether that was done with the intent to defraud.

Mr. DoAR. Yes. Well, there is also the question, there is one other

area, and that is the question with respect to the matter of, with

respect to the work done on the San Clemente and Key Biscayne. We
. are still conducting some investigation to round that out. But, with

respect to the income tax return, the only question is the pre-Presi-

dential papers. That is right.

Mr. Sandman. But, here again, if you are looking into what was
spent at San Clemente or Key Biscayne, the Joint Committee on Tax-
ation disallowed those two deductions. Now, how would your investiga-

tion into that same matter be conducted any differently than the wajJ

the Joint Coimnittee on Taxation did it?

Mr. DoAR. Well, it might be conducted in no different way. We might
, get information with respect to certain of these disallowances.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Brooks.
INIr. Brooks. I would say to my distinguished chairman and to our

, counsel, I note on page 2 of this document that it says in each area

. and category noted in the March 1 report, but not specifically men-
tioned in the memorandum, the investigation is continuing. Now, does

that mean that those items specifically mentioned in this memoran-
. dum are not going to be continued open files available to the members
if they want to take a look at them, available to additional information
should be turned up? I just want to make clear—I better not use that

phrase—I want to make it obvious that I do not believe that this

committee wants to draw up any single charge and say we are not

going to include San Clemente or Key Biscaj^ne expenditures there

, or any other facet of the myriad of different allegations and investi-

gative areas that we have taken a look at.
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The Chairman. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. Brooks. I would be delighted, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairjman. I would first, in order that we be precise about what

we are saying and what we are doing, I would like to state unequivo-
cally that there are no charges being leveled. These are allegations that

are being looked into. And it is an inquiry. And I believe that we can
state, and I know emphatically that no phase of the investigation is

concluded or discontinued as such, especially in light of the fact that

there may be material that may be relevant that certainly could shed
some further light. I think that what counsel is doing and what we
have got to recognize as to this committee, that with the resources and
the capability of staff, that they are trying to allocate the resources

in order to meet certain priorities. And this is what is now being done.

But, I want to give them my assurance that in no way will we speak
or can we understand or at least it is not my impression, that there

is a determination or a tearing off or conclusion, or a writing fini to the

allegations that have been made. I think this is part of the total

inquiry.
Mr. Brooks. Is tliat the clear understanding of coimsel?

Mr. Doar. That is correct. That is my understanding.
Mr. Brooks. Thank you veiy much.
The Chairman. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. I am reassured by tlie chairman's statement because I

join my friend from Wisconsin, Mr. Ivastenmeier, in expressing some
amazement that this committee, for all of its responsibility is taking
so long to get to perfectly anticipatable questions. Now, the question

of fraud was clearly not going to be iiiled on and its impeachability, or

its being an offense witliin tlie context within which this committee is

working was clearly not going to be considered, and so with all due
respect to my good friends, ]\Ir. Doar and Mr. Jenner, I must ask you
ancl the chairman, do you have sufficient staff to move as expeditiously

as everybody keeps asking this committee to move, and is it arranged
or organized in a w^ay that is fully satisfactory to you at this point ?

Mr. Doar. Well, the honest answer to that is "Xo."
Mr. Conyers. I am glad to hear that.

]Mr. Doar. But I do not know that any step could possibly be orga-

nized to meet the expeditious requirements that everybody some-

times places on us, including the spokesman for the White House.

We are trying to do our best we can. We are trying to organize in a

way that we run down all of the areas that the committee has indicated

as part of this inquiry, and we are trying to do it with as much speed

as we can, and still do it carefully and responsibly. And we de have
the manpower to continue this investigation that you are referring to

here.

Mr. Conyers. Well, the simple question is, do you have enough
lawyers to get into all of these areas at once? We are moving toward
evidentiary hearings. That means that in approximately 50 some odd
different areas, we are going to be moving our information forward
througli a process of liearings and it seems to me that, as j\Ir. Ivasten-

meier pointed out, if it takes us 3 weeks to get a report; for example,

I do not know what the legal problem is in getting, in getting the IRS
report on this and we knew that Ave were going to liave to investigate
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for the fraud and if we are that far behind on these obvious matters,

where are we on some of the more difficult and closer questions in

terms of getting the evidence together ? It is a little bit disturbing to

me, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, I wonder if we could not have the

counsel complete the presentation of this status report? I know there

are a number of other items in here, and I know we do want to get

through with it. And I was interested in having him point out those

items on which there appears to be a little evidence, or inadequate
evidence and that sort of thing so that I think we could possibly learn

a great deal from this presentation.

Mr. Raxgel. On that question, Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. I appreciate the chairman clearing up earlier with

counsel that there is no arbitrary decision being made as to what is

going to be eliminated from this inquiry and I was not prepared to

speak until my colleague, Mr. McClory, raised a question about who is

going to determine, Mr. Doar, what evidence, little evidence, or no
evidence in any manner ?

Do I understand the Chair correctly in saying that in that matter
what it is that you are prepared to give us is a written report, and as

Mr. Brooks pointed out, that we will have the obligation and the op-
portunity to then look at the information that joii base that report on ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Mr. Rangel. So that this dispels any rumors in the media that we
are going to eliminate. We are merely going to make an assessment as

to the priority of staff and this committee's time ?

]Mr. Doar. Well, that is correct. I would say to you that in some
areas we have investigated and found that there vras no basis for the
allegations.

Mr. Rangel. Well, why can we not have a report ?

Mr. Doar. You will get a report on that.

Mr. Rangel. So what we are doing now is just preliminary, without
any decisions ?

Mr. Doar. That is right. That is right. It is a summary of where we
are.

Mr. Rangel. And this committee will determine whether or not
there is evidence or not?

Mr. Doar. That is my understanding.
Mr. Rangel. Thank you.

The Chairman. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Rangel elicited the information

that I was seeking. Thank you, IMr. Chairman.
Tlie Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. eTust one very quick question with respect to tiiis

tax fraud issue. Does the committee have on its staff or as a consult-

ant any experts on the subject of tax fraud, which is a very specialized

field?

Mr. Doar. Yes; vre do.

Mr. Seiberling. Tliank vou.

41-OlS—75—pt. 1 24
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TVIr. Owens. Mr. Chairman?
The CiiAiR3viAN. Mr. Owens.
Mr. OwExs. Mr. Doar, I just wanted to clear up the question, the

problem propounded by Mr. Conyers. I recall in a briefing some 3
-or 4 weeks ago directing in essence that same question to you and
receiving, as I recall, your almost unequivocable reassurance that you
had adequate staff resources to pursue all substantive leads. May we
have your indication of whether you are going to request additional
staff or request additional resources, or what is the appropriate way
in which we might be better assured that we are going to follow the
leads in this different area and get to the bottom of this evidence,
which is what all of us have been promising the public we are doing?
Mr. Doar. Well, we have no intention of asking for additional staff,

and we are proceeding as rapidly and as effectively as we can in all

of these areas. But, Congressman, we camiot get it all done at once.
For example, by the time we make our initial presentation, we are not
going to be able to be finished in all of the areas.

Mr. OwT^NS. I am troubled that there are several places in your
memo here, and several places in your testimony today where you refer
to limited resources. And I understood you on page 14, for exam.ple,
recognizing that time and resources did not permit an exhaustive and
^conclusive investigation of the allegation in each category. I was
troubled when I read that, and I was much more troubled today as I
listened to you respond to tlie question of Mr. Conyers, and as you
made other comments. From what you say, from the fact that we
have not pursued this very obvious IRS infonnation, preparing a legal

basis on which to ask for it, I am concerned whether there is adequate
resources to meet this in some tolerable period of time.

Mr. Doar. Well, when you take the allegations listed in E with
respect to 26 allegations involving a number of department actions
of a number of departments of the executive branch, and a number of
independent agencies, any investigative step has to make a prelim-
inary investigation, and then has to make some distinctions with respect
to priorities. And to some extent, in looking preliminarily at these
things, we had to make some judgments.

JSTow, we say this, as we have said it, because we want to make it

clear to the committee that we are not closing any inquiry, but that
our recommendations or our status is based on X)i"eliminary examina-
tion. And I think that that is quite appropriate.

Mr. Owens. I am not challenging counsel, for whom I have the
greatest respect for his capabilities and his judgment. I am not chal-
lenging him on tlie question of whetlier he is allocating his resources
that he has adequately. I am concerned that there appears to be a sig-

nificant problem which is not being pursued, and if we need another
•20 lawyers, then I assume that the House, or lawyer investigators, I
assume we can get the money to do that so that we can feel that the
conclusions at tlie point in time when we consider the evidence at the
time when we draw some conclusions, that we have, in effect pursued
each of these to their reasonable end. And I am concerned that the
language that you are using both in this report and today that we are
not getting to the end of it.

Simply putting these matters over until the end, is, while we are not
tabling it, we are leaving open that possibility of pursuing it, we Imow
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the pressures we are starting to feel now and we will feel in May and
in June and in July, and we laiow that we cannot, in essence, reopen
complete new areas in July, or June. At least it looks infeasible to me
at this point. I just feel like if we need more lawyers we ought to get
them. And I think we all have an obligation to say that in good faith

to the people who are going to be holding us accountable this fall, if

not before, that we pursued every reasonable lead.

The Chairman. Might I say that if we are going to get on so that
when the House convenes at 12 o'clock we will have had the oppor-
timity of availing ourselves of the presentation that is attempted to be
made by Mr. Doar, and then we can evaluate it, and I think it would
serve our coimnittee. I am wondering if we cannot go forward.
Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. Well, in the area of E, which is efforts by the White Itouse

to use agencies of the executive branch for political purposes, and
alleged ^Vhite House involvement in the election campaign contribu-
tions, there were 26 areas that we were investigating.

Briefly, a number of those we have looked at and concluded that on
the basis that no, presently no further investigation is warranted, and
we are ready to report to the committee on each one of those so that
the committee would be able to decide. I think there are some 10 or 11
of those. And in the area of campaign contributions specifically, which
is a large area, we are examining four contributions. One, the—^this is

found on page 15—the Howard Hughes $100,000 contribution, the con-
tribution by Robert Vesco, the contribution by representatives of the
dairy industry, and finally, the pledge by a subsidiary of ITT relating
to the 1972 Republican National Convention,
Just to finish the report, with respect to the allegations involving

other misconduct. Presidential misconduct which relates to the mat-
ters involving Cambodia, and the reporting about Cambodia to the
Senate of the United States; impoundment of funds by the Presi-
dent; and the dismantling of the OfRce of Economic Opportunity,
let me only say this, that with respect to the matters involving Cam-
bodia, the Senate Armed Services Committee, they have conducted
hearings, some in executive session with respect to that bombing, and
falsification of bombing reports, and false reporting of the operations
to the Senate. We are awaiting the release of that report so that we
may be able to report to the committee.
On the question of impoundment of funds, and the dismantling of

OEO, let. me say that we have looked at about 50 of these cases in
the area

JNIr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

INIr. Doar. It is our feeling that the legal questions are complicated
and the actions were generally taken in the c-ourt and the positions
that were asserted by the executive branch, they were respectable posi-
tions. And on the practice of impoundment
Mr. Donohtte [presiding]. If you could pause there a minute, I

understand Mr. Waldie has a question that he would like to propound.
Mr. Waldie. Yes. I wanted to know when you were expecting the

report from the Senate committee on the Cambodia matter?
Mr. Doar. Mr. Jenner has been in toucli with that committee.
]Mr._ Jenner. Congressman Waldie, as soon as the chairman of the

committee, the distinguished Mr. Rodino, and the ranking member,
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the distingiiislied ]Mr. Ilutcliinson, are able to arrange a courtesy

meeting with Senator Stennis, who is chairman of that committee,

early next week, then we are advised that the galley proofs of the staff

report will be made available immediately to the staff. And there

is no reluctance that I have detected up to the moment whatsoever
about that being made available to us. And when that courtesy visit is

made, the staff will have the report.

Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Waldie. Thank you.

Mr. Drinax. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. DoNOiiUE. Congressman Drinan.
Mr. Drinax. I want to make it clear as I understand it tliat the

Cambodian bombing is by no means set aside and that I would hope
that riot merely are you pursuing Senator Hughes' documentation, but
also your own initiative.

I raise a question, JNIr. Chairman, however, with regard to the im-
poundment, and it seems to me that the last sentence on page 22 is

open to some serious question.

''Under all the circumstances, no one of which is determinative,
the staff" is not presently conducting further investigation with respect

to these categories." And I take it that that is the dismantling of the
OEO and impoundment. In the statements on impoundment, I find

serious errors, or at least statements that are open to question, and it

seems to me that a decision has been made by the staff', contrary to

what was said here previously a few moments ago that the commit-
tee ultimately will make all of the decisions, that the decision to stoji

further investigation is a decision, and I wonder if Mr. Doar and
Mr. Jenner would elaborate upon my comments ?

Mr. Doar. Well, Congressman Drinan, when we say we have stopped
further investigation, that is that we have considered the matter, which
is examined the suits, and examined the position of the administra-
tion, examined the findings of the court, the decisions by the court and
are prepared on the basis of that to report to the committee on the

question of the impoundment and the dismantling of the Office of

Economic Opportunity. Vfe do suggest in this memorandum that it is

our professional opinion that the complexity of the constitutional

question and the fact that the action that was taken was done openly,

the fact that when the matters were contested, when the question of

authority and ]50wer between the Congress and the President was
laised, it was taken into the courts, and the coui-ts seemed to have been
able to resolve these matters under the circumstances are matters that

would indicate, matters that we feel the committee would want us to

call to its attention.

Mr. IIailsback. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Drinan. Does that include the moratorium on housing?
Mr. Doar. Yes ; that does.

Mr. Drinan. Which still continues, therefore, the report is wrong
when it says that the administration ap]iears to have complied with
those court determinations. That is not so in housing.

"Well, Mr. Doar, the otlier point on Cambodia, would you give your
comments on that ?

Mr. Doar. Well, the judgment of, tlie professional judgment of the

staff was, Mr. Jemier and myself, and after staff' members had talked
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to the staff of the Senate Armed Services Committee, that it would
be an inappropriate obligation of our manpower, if we did conduct any
detailed investigation until we saw or had the benefit of that report.

Mr. Drinax. Do you expect to subpena or request any tapes in which
the President personally talks with shall we say the Joint Chiefs of

Staff about these secret, clandestine bombing?
Mr, DoAR. We have no present intentions to do that.

Mr. Drinax. Why not ?

Mr. DoAR. Because we have not reached that point in the investiga-

tion.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. DoxoHUE. Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that the report, it

seems to me that the reiwrt speaks for itself. But, it is my understand-

ing that we are not going to be asked to adopt the report, at least at

this meeting, and that it is more or less kind of in the nature of the

pi'ogress report.

I personally want to commend, want to commend counsel for ful-

filling what I thought was their responsibility. In other words, am I

correct that there actually were investigations of all of the various

areas that are included in here? In other words, where there were

people assigned ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.

Mr. Railsback. To seeing whether there was Presidential involve-

ment ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, yes, there were, and, of course, in some cases, such

as in the matters involving Cambodia, the matter involving impound-
ment and the dismantling of OEO. there is not any question about

the fact that there was Presidential involvement.

Mr. Railsback. I just want to say that I am sure that there are dif-

ferent items in here that may not be, may not be agreed upon by some
of the individual members. But, I want the staff to know that I would
guess there probably is substantial support as far as many of your
recommendations. I do not want you just to think that all of us are

harping about this report, because I think it makes a great deal of sense

to clo in this particular inquiry what we do in any other kind of an

inquiry. Sometimes there is evidence, sometimes there is not evidence,

and there are sometimes many, many allegations that are, as I under-

stand it, are under an even more vigorous investigation than otherwise

would have been possible had we not had to allocate priorities. In other

words, what you are doing is, I assume, anyway, you are now able to

assign some people that were on some of these other matters to pursuing

some of the matters that you believe are more relevant?

Mr. Flowers. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Railsback. Yes.
Mv. Flowers. I would like to identify myself with your remarks

and put some perspective on this thing.

I commend the staff for the inquiry in this way, and it ought not to

be something that we have to vote on. Commonsense dictates that

there are some things that have been broadscaled, that ought to be kind

of put on the backbumer now while we deliberate on the issues that are

relevant, that are possible impeachable offenses. And I think this is

a good way to pursue it. I commend the staff.
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Mr. Sarbanes. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Railsback. I will be glad to yield.

Mr. DoNoiiUE. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. Thank you, ]\Ir. Chairman. I think we are getting into

an extremely critical area in which I am not sure if the staff has the
authority to discontinue the investigation of any area that raise

allegations of impeachable conduct, No. 1.

I specifically take exception to that, and will resist that kind of
report writing, especially in view of the fact that we have just been
advised that we are short of staff, that we are many weeks, if not
months behind in some various obvious areas. Now, this member went
over to the offices of the impeachment staff the day before yesterday
to inquire with reference to the Cambodia file, and I was handed by
the gentleman to Mr. Doar's left two memorandums written by two
different lawyers on the staff that consisted of the file on Cambodia.
And I was assured that it was not complete, that we were still awaiting
obviously Senator Hughes' report.

The President's involvement is clear from newspaper clippings and
Wliite House announcements, and for us to even suggest that no
further investigation is warranted at tliis point is to me an incredible

act. If I am not correct on this, would you please attempt to set the

record straight on this point, and I yield to Mr. Jenner.

Mr. Jenner. Thank you, Congressman Conyers, and also you, Father
Drinan. I do not want to leave the burden on Mr. Doar. These areas

have ])een my responsibility.

The two reports that Mr. Woods exhibited to you, sir, when you
were over there were draft reports which we were considering in

connection with making this report. That was not the file. These three

items have been under investigation under my supervision for several

months, in depth, and the so-called—well, I will not say so-called—
the file is a bulky file, and I regret that you interpret it, I think, about
four sheets of paper you received, if I recall it, because I kept saying

to the men who were working on it to cut it down, cut it down, because
all we were going to do was to use it in the status report to the com-
mittee. And there has been a thorough investigation.

Mr. Conyers. Of course, that does not constitute any change of the

impression that I have received, that the staff is not presently further

conducting investigation with respect to those categories. Does that

apply to Cambodia ?

Mr. Jenner. Might I say as to Cambodia, as I think Mr. Doar now
and I have tried to indicate to all of you ladies and gentlemen, that

we are going to pursue that as soon as we have the courtesy call on
Senator Stennis and the Senate Armed Services Committee report,,

and not only that which is galley proofs, but that the committee
is undertaking to screen out some things that may affect national

defense and we expect to be permitted to examine that even though it

is not publicly published.
Mr. Conyers. Now, finally before T yield

]\Tr. Donohue. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Conyers. Yes, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DoNOHUE. I would like to point out that the Chair is presently

making every effort, and I think will succeed in arranging an appoint-
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ment with Senator Stcnnis and his staff in order to get into this matter..

Mr. CoNYERS. I am glad to hear that.

Now, with reference to this matter of advocacy briefs that werer

raised at one time by I remember Mr. Dennis specifically, and maybe^
others, that practice has not been discontinued, has it ?

]\Ir. DoAR. There has been no further brief.

Mr. CoNTERS. Right. I yield to Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Well, I just would like to follow up with one further

question here, and that is as to the contemplated procedure by which
we will finally determine whether or not we pursue a particular line

of inquiry. And I think that is really the terminology that is most
apt. At some point, is it your plan that this, or is it perhaps the

chairman's plan that this committee will have a statement made to us&
with respect to each line of inquiry, and that we will have the oppor-
tunity at that time as individual members, to raise questions as to the

extent to which that line of inquiry has been pursued, the evidence

that is available, and to make suggestions as to whether or not fur-

ther investigation should be made before the committee droj^s it or
not?
Mr. DoAR. Yes, yes.

Mr. Seiberling. So that these are all still open lines of inquiry

which the committee may finally decide to dispose of one way or
another.

Mr. DoAR. That is right. But, this report does attempt to indicate

the areas where we have been necessarily concentrating our priorities.

Mr. Seiberling. And what you are doing is a matter of working ar-

rangements within the staff focussing on certain things without rul-

ing out the possibility of going into other lines of inquiry that are

dormant as to any particular time ?

Mr. DoAR. "Well, we have gone in preliminarily to all of the areas

except those areas where other committees of Congress are making an
exhaustive study.

Mr. SisiBERLiNG. Thank you.

Mr. DoNOHUE. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I, just in the few minutes remaining, want to ask counsel if I can

recap and see if I understand the presentation here. The April 24

report referring to the numbered paragraphs in the March 1 status

report, am I correct that A, B, C, andD are still in ?

Mr. DoAR. Right.
Mr. Fish. In their toto, completely, and that in the set of allegations

numbered E, that 13 of those 26, it is the staff recommendation that

no further work be done at this time ?

Mr. DoAR. That is right. I believe that is correct.

Mr. Fish. And under F, which has three parts, with the caveat

about the Senate report on Cambodia, the staff recommendation is that

the three matters under F also be discounted at this time ?

Mr. DoAR. No, not that the three matters be discontmued but that

we are not carrying on any further investigation. We ai-e ready to make
a report to the committee on those as soon as we can pull together

all of the material that we have already assembled.
Mr. Fish. Fine. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DoNOHUE. Ms. Holtzman.
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Ms. IToLTZMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I really had two trivial

questions. One with respect to the language on page 22 where it says
that the legal arguments presented on the impoundment cases were
respectable. Does that mean the staff is saying that the administra-
tion's position, the President's position on impoundment was proper?
Mr. DoAR. Not proper but respectable.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Well, whether or not impoundment is an impeach-
able offense, it seems to me that the question of the propriety of the
action is really inappropriate in terms of the staff to draw a conclu-
sion with respect to and I would hope
Mr. DoAR. What I mean
Ms. HoLTZMAN. I would hope this does not mean that you are con-

doning or saying that it was a proper course of action to take. It seems
to me the committee can make that judgment.

Mr. DoAR. Not at all. I was just saying that the arguments, in our
opinion, were not frivolous. That is what I was saying.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Well, I have a second question. I am veiy pleased
to see that you say that the judgments you made with regard to 13
allegations are based on a preliminary investigation. I think there
have been some questions raised to me by the press and constituents

and the like that the failure to pursue these charges means that we
have exonerated the President on these charges. Has the investigation

been pursued in each one of these areas to make that judgment, or are

you just simply saying that we have done a preliminary investigation,

and we do not feel that the staff time is warranted in going further
on them?

Mr. DoAR. Well, there is some of each. There are some matters that
we have looked into sufficiently to make a judgment that there are no
bases for the charges. And
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Well, Mr. Doar, that is what disturbed me because

I reviewed the nature of the investigation, and I would be happy to

find the President innocent on charges. But, I do not know how you can
make a conclusion with respect to anything if all you have done is

let us say, on item No. 20, is to review the agency files and speak with
the staff member. I mean, with regard to the Price Commission the
nature of the investigation was simply to review files and talk to

a staff member. No member of the Price Commission was interviewed
and the President was not asked to supply any materials that he may
have with respect to this, and it negates the existence of any materials.

And I do not know how you can draw a conclusion with respect to

that one way or another. It seems to me that the investigation is so
preliminaiy that the drawing of conclusions with regard to that is

improper, and I would say that with respect to the other charges
and I would appreciate your comment on that, because that concerned
me very much.

Mr. DoAR. Well, Ms. Holtzman, I would like to defer referring to

that until I could familiarize myself completely with the specifics of
item 20 and give you some answer in writing on that.

Ms. HoLTZMAN". I think if you will review all of the rest of the
items, they simply indicate that agency files were examined and that
the agency files failed to show anything improper. But, I am not sure
that on the basis of reviewing agency files that you can make a judg-
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ment or a conclusion. I mean, you have not, I do not think, in any

instance, have the parties themselves, or the heads of the agencies,,

been interviewed. You are just talking about the files themselves, and I

do not know whether they have been cleansed or whether they are

complete.
Mr. DoAR. I think you are correct. We have only made a preliminary

investigation in these matters by looking at files and talking to some

people that were familiar with the files about them. We have not

made a full investigation. But, it is a matter, as I say, of priorities.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. f would not disagree with that. That is wise. But,

to draw conclusions on the basis

Mr. DoNOHUE. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I wanted to address some

questions to Mr. Doar about your statement that the staff is planning

to continue to investigate the contributions to the President's cam-

paign by the milk producer cooperatives. Now, does this, Mr. Doar,

involve the President's decision to raise the milk support level to

85 percent of parity, which w^as announced by Secretary Hardin on

March 25, 1971?
Mr. Doar. Yes, it does.

Mr. Mayne. And is the thrust of this allegation for impeachment
purposes that the President accepted a bribe for this in the nature

of a campaign contribution to his campaign committee ?

Mr. Doar. Well, the allegation is that the President, in response

to contributions from the dairy industry, changed the decision of the

Secretary of Agriculture with respect to price supports.

Mr. Mayne. Well, now, I want to ask Mr. Doar if the staff, in con-

nection with this investigation, is also going to investigate the very

numerous contributions, some of them very large, which were made
to Members of the House and Senate, both before and after tliis

contribution to the President's campaign by the milk producers asso-

ciations ?

Mr. Doar. Well, we had no present intention to do that. This investi-

gation involves the action of the President with respect to a change
in the price support level, as well as the contributions.

Mr. Mayne. Well, are you aware, Mr. Doar, has the staff investi-

gated sufficiently to know, for example, that TAPE ADEPT SPACE
contributed more than $500,000 to candidates for the House alone in

1969 and 1970 as shown on reports on file with the Clei-k of the

House?
Mr. Seiberling. Point of order, Mr. Chairman. This investigation

is not an investigation into the actions of the Members of Congress.

It is an investigation into the President, and I think this is a scurri-

lous effort to introduce totally extraneous matters.

Mr. Mayne. Well, Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask counsel as

to whether or not he thinks it is relevant for Members of the House
to consider as an impeachable item against the President things which
they themselves have done. And for which they have received

Mr. Seiberling. Point of order, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Mayne. They have received contributions from the same identi-

cal source.

Mr. DoNOHUE. The Chair rules that your line of inquiry is out of
order at this point.
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?>Ir. Sarbanes.
]Mr. Sarbanes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to clarify

one matter with counsel with respect

Mr. Mayne. Do I still have the time. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. DoxoHUE. No, your time has expired.

Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman, thank you. I would like to clarify
one matter with counsel with respect to the status report. It is my
understanding

Mr. Maynb. I object to the rulinc: of tlie Chair that my time has
expired. I believe I do have some time left. I object to the ruling of
the Chair. I think I have only used about 2 minutes.
Mr. DoNoiiUE. Well, I have been advised that you had used 5 min-

utes and that is why I made the decision.

Mr. Mayne. I protest the ruling of the Chair, and I appeal to the
committee to be able to complete the allotted 5 minutes.

I have had no time until now and I think this is a very important
matter in which I am entitled to question counsel.

]Mr. CoNYERS. Unanimous consent.

Mr. DoNOHUE. Mr. Sarbanes, have you completed?
Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman, I will yield to the gentleman from

Iowa to ask a further question.

Mr. Mayne. I thank the gentleman from Maryland. I want to ask
Mr. Doar if he does not intend as a part of this inquiry as to the milk
matter to look into the fact that 125 Members of the House and
25 INIembers of the Senate sponsored bills which would have forced
the President to do precisely what he did when he raised the support
price to 85 percent of parity and that that was done at about the same
time, between March 16, and 25, 1971.

Mr. CoNYERS. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman.
Has that not been ruled out as objected to and precluded from

further inquiry, Mr. Chairman. Has that not been ruled out and
objected to and precluded from further discussion?

Mr. DoNOHUE. Yes. The Chair has ruled that that line of inquiry
is out of order.

Mr. Mayne. ]\Ir. Chairman, that has to do with the bills that were
filed by Members of the House and Senate to force this action.

I\lr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman? Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Mayne. They not only made contributions, but on the acts which

were urged upon the President
Mr. Sarbanes. If the gentleman persists in pursuing a line of ques-

tioning that is outside of the proper framework, I must cease to jaeld

to him and proceed on my own time.

Mr. DoNOHUE. You may proceed, IMr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. And I yielded on the assumption that the gentleman

was going to proceed within the framework
Mr. ^Iayne. Mr. Chairman, point of order. Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Sarbanes. Do I understand that with this

]Mr. DoNOHUE. The gentleman from Maryland has the floor.

Mr. Sarbanes. That this constitutes in effect a status report as to

the nature of the factual investigations and the indications as to

where the staff is going to direct its energies and attention, but with
respect to matters which you say you have examined and you have not
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found facts, and there are other matters, as I understand, where you
feel 3'ou have assembled all of the facts that are pertinent for the

judgment of those matters subsequently by members of this committee,

and we are going to at that point, at some point making a major judg-

ment about them, if in fact, you have not thoroughly done the factual

investigation that ought to back up and do it before the end of the

inquiry, and tlien you will have to stand resx:)onsible for it at that time.

Is that correct^

Mr. DoAR. That is correct,

Mr, Sarba]S'^bs, So, there is no, there is no judgment or conclusion

being reached on that substance?

What is being reached is that indication as to where the factual

inquiry has gone, wliat needs or does not need to be done with respect

to the^ factual inquiry in these various areas, and how you intend

to channel your attention and resources in the period just ahead of us,

is tliat correct ?

Mr, DoAR. Tliat is true, and what issues in certain instances that are

the issues,

Mr, JSIaraziti, ]\Ir, Chairman?
Mr. McClory, Mv. Chairman ?

Mr. Latta, Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. DoNOHTjE. Mr. Latta,

]Mr, Sandman. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman, so that there is no dispute on time, I no-

tice that the clock says 11 minutes after, so apparently under the rules

of this committee where we have 5 minutes that will be 16 minutes

after. Is that correct?

Thank you.

I yield to. the gentleman from Iowa.
Mr. Mayne. Jklr. Doar, I would like to pursue with you further the

relevance of this matter and ask you if you do not consider that it is

relevant on the question as to whether or not the President committed
a crime in connection with the milk contributions that the records of

the Congressional Quarterlv show that froui April 7, 1972, to Decem-
ber 31, 1972, TAPE paid some $906,000 plus to Members of the House
and Senate; ADEPT over $324,000

]Mr. CoNYERS. I object to this,

Mr. Mayne, And SPACE over $254,000, and many of these pay-
ments going to Membere of the House and Senate who had either intro-

duced bills to force the 85 percent of parity payments or who had urged
the AVhite House and the Department of Agriculture to take the action

wliich the President did take on May 25, 1971 ? Now, do you feel that

that would be relevant, Mr. Doar, to the President's conduct and the

standard by which he is to be judged by the Congress, first on the ques-

tion as to whether or not Members of the House will consider that an
impeachable offense ; and second, as to whether members of the Senate
should sit in judgment after having done substantially the same thing
by permitting such contributions to be accepted by their campaign
committees ?

Mr. DoNOHUE. I think he should be permitted to answer the ques-

tion. Are you prepared to answer the question ?

Mr. Doar, Well, I think I am. I think that the fact that there was
congressional activity with respect to the increase of the milk support
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price is relevant to this inquiry, and in explaining or tending to pos-

sibly explain the President's decision and I think the question of the

amount of contributions that any particular Congressman may have
received from any dairy group would not be relevant to the inquiry.

And I do not think that that does have a bearing on the question

that we are examining with respect to Presidential conduct, with re-

spect to receipt of or alleged receipt of a substantial contribution in

exchange for the increase in the milk support price.

Mr. Mayne. Well, Mr. Chairman, I respectfully submit that the

staff should be instructed to investigate fully the payments received

by Members of the House and Senate, or by their campaign committees
from TAPE, from ADEPT, and SPACE, being the political arms of

the milk producer cooperatives in 1970, 1971, and 1972. And also to

determine which of them urged the price support to be raised either

by filing bills requiring at least 85 percent, and some filed bills re-

quiring a mandatory 90 percent of parity support. And also to de-

termine which of them urged the Dej^artment of Agriculture and ad-

ministration to take the action in March 1971 which is the basis of this

area of inquiry by the committee. It seems to me that under the state-

ment made by Mr. Doar, and in any concept of fairplay, this should:

be deemed relevant to our investigation.

Thank you.
Mr. Latta. Thank you.

I have one question.

The Chairman. The gentleman has 30 seconds remaining.
Mr. Latta. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I just want to join those who have commended the staff for their

work. I think everybody must understand that this committee gave
you absolutely no direction, or certainly none since I came on this

committee as to other areas that you should have gone into. And I

agree with the apparent agreement between INIr. Hutchinson and the

chairman that we are not going to vote on these things, because I

think it would be improper for us to vote to take tliem out when we
did not vote to put them in. I just want to commend you. I think that

there comes a time when we have to either fish or cut bait, and I think

that this is the time.

The Chairman. In the light of the fact that there is a quorum call,

the Chair will state that the committee stands adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 12 :17 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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Impeachment Inquiry Procedures

WEDNESDAY, MAY 1, 1974

House of Representatives,
Subcommittee on Courts, Civil Liberties,

AND the Administration of Justice of the
Committee on the Judiciary,

Washington^ D.C.

The subcommittee met at 10:50 a.m., pursuant to recess, in room
2141, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Robert M. Kastenmeier

(chaiiTnan) presiding.

Present : Representatives Kastenmeier, Danielson, Drinan, Mezvin-

sky, Railsback, Smith, and Cohen.
Impeachment inquiry staff present: Joseph A. "Woods, Jr., senior

associate special counsel; Samuel Garrison III, deputy minority coun-

sel; John B. Davidson, counsel; John R. Labovitz, counsel; and Hil-

lary D. Rodhan, counsel.

Committee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general counsel ; Wil-
liam P. Dixon, counsel ; and Franlvlin G. Polk, minority counsel.

Mr. Kasten]meier. The subcommittee will come to order.

The Subcommittee on Courts, Ci^al Liberties and the Administra-
tion of Justice is meeting this morning to consider and make recom-
mendations to the full Judiciary Committee regarding certain proce-

dures to be followed in conducting its impeacliment inquiry. Each
member of the subcommittee has received a draft of the procedures
which has been prepared by the staff. Now, each of us had a very short

period of time in which at the outset to review these proposals, so

really, in a formal sense, they are being discussed here in detail for

the firet time.

At the outset, we have two early formations of the proposals relating

to the areas which I think can best be described as the general impeach-
ment inquiry proceedings relating to the initial presentation to the full

committee, and another draft relating to or dealing with the calling

of witnesses and the hearing of oral testimony. These are joined to-

gether this morning.
We are also authorized to consider other proposals, including that

of CongrCvSsman Wiggins, and any other proposal relating to proce-
dures, relating to the inquiry and to witnesses that would be relevant.

This morning we will start with the draft proposal some 4 pages long
which each member should have at his desk. And in addition, we hope
that there are copies available for the working press. If there are not

(377)
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presently copies available, we will make them available as soon as
the machine grinds them out for yon.
In any event, I will ask our staff, includino: the senior associate

counsel, Joseph Woods, and he is accompanied there, and I would ask
Mr. Woods in additioii to Mr. Samuel Garrison to identify the other
counsel present for the reporter and for the committee, following
which I would ask you to start reading the draft to the committee.
Mr. Woods.
Mr. Woods. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On my left is Hillar^^ Rod-

ham and John Labovitz ; on the far right John Davidson of the inquiry
staff.

The following is the draft of procedures to which the Chairman
referred.

Mr. Kastenmeier. It is captioned "Impeachment Inquirj^ Proce-
dures," is that correct ?

Mr. Woods. That is correct, sir.

The document referred to is hei'ein titled "Impeachment Inquiry
Procedures."
The Committee on the Judiciary states the following procedures

applicable to the presentation of evidence in the impeachment inquiry
pursuant to House Resolution 803, subject to modification by the
committee as it deems proper as the presentation proceeds. [Reading :]

A. The rommittpe will receive from committee counsel at a heariuie: an initial

presentation consisting of (i) a written proposed statement of fact that details
in paragraph form the facts believed hy the staff to be pertinent to the inquiiy,
(ii) a general description of the scope and manner of the proposed presentation
of evidence, and (iii) a detailed presentation of the evidentiary material, other
than the testimony of witnesses.

1. Each member of the committee will receive a copy of (i) the statement of
fact, (ii) the related documents and other evidentiary material, and (iii) an
index of all testimony, papers, and things that have been obtained by the com-
mittee, whether or not relied upon in the statement of fact.

2. Each paragraph of the statement of fact will be annotated to related evi-

dentiary material—that is, documents, recordings and transcripts thereof, tran-
scripts of grand .iury or congressional testimony, or affiadvits. Where applicalile,

the annotations will identify witnesses believed by the staff to be sources of addi-
tional information important to the committee's understanding of the subject
matter of the paragraph in question.

3. Each member of the committee will be given access to and the opportunity
to examine all testimony, papers, and things that have been obtained by the
inquiry staff, whether or not relied upon in the statement of fact.

4. The President's counsel will be furnished a copy of the statement of fact and
related documents and other evidentiary material at the time that those materials
are furnished to the members and will be invited to attend and observe the
presentation.

B. Following that presentation the committee will determine whether it

desires additional evidence.
1. Any committee memlier may bring additional evidence to the committee's

attention.
2. The President's counsel will be invited to respond to the presentation, orally

or in writing as shall be determined by the committee.
3. Should the President's counsel wish tlie committee to receive additional testi-

mony or other evidence, he will be invited to submit written requests and precise
summaries of what he would propose to show, and in the case of a witness pre-

cisely and in detail what it is expected the testimony of the witness would be. if

called. On the basis of such requests and summaries and of the record then before
it. the committee will determine whether the suggested evidence is necessnry to a
full and fair record in the inquiry, and if so. whether the summaries will be ac-

cepted as part of the record or additional testimony or evidence in some other
form will be received.
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C. If and when witnesses are to be called, the following additional procedures

will be applicable to hearings held for that purpose

:

1. The President and his counsel will be invited to attend all hearings, in-

cluding any held in executive session.

2. Objections to the procedures of the committee relating to the examination
of witnesses or to the admissibility of testimony and evidence may be raised

only by a witness or his counsel, a member of the committee, committee counsel

or the President's counsel and will be ruled upon by the chairman or presiding

member. Such rulings will be final, unless overruled by a vote of a majority of

the members present. In the case of a tie vote, the ruling of the Chair will

prevail.

3. Committee counsel will commence the questioning of each witness and
may also be permitted by the chairman or presiding member to question a
witness at any point during the appearance of the witness.

4. The President's counsel may question any witness called before the com-
mittee, subject to instructions from the chairman or presiding member respect-

ing the time, scope, and duration of the examination.
D. The committee will determine, pursuant to the rules of the House, whether

and to what extent the evidence to be presented will be received in executive

session.

p]. The chairman will make public announcement of the date. time, place,

and subject matter of any committee hearing as soon as practicable and in no
event less than 24 hours before the commencement of the hearing.

F. The chairman is authorized to promulgate additional procedures as he
deems necessary for the efficient conduct of committee hearings held pursuant
to H. Res. 803. provided that the additional procedures are not inconsistent with
these procedures, the rules of the committee, and the rules of the House. Such
procedures will govern the conduct of the hearings, unless overruled by a vote

of a majority of the members present.

That concludes the reading of the procedures.
INIr. Kastenmeier. Thank j^ou, Mr. Woods.
I take it tliat this represents, among- otlier thin<x-. the views of tlie

staff of the impeachment staff and that there are not other formula-
tions other than that presented to us this morning with respect to the

subject matter ; is that correct ?

]Mr. Woods. TJiat is correct, Mr. Chairman. This is the result of a

considerable study and joint effort by all members of the staff, includ-

ing minority counsel.

]Mr. Kastenmeier. May I say what T propose to do tins morning is

to just ask one or two questions of you and then I propose to yield for

questions or colloquy to members on each side, following whicli we will

read paragraph by paragraph for adoption that which is before us.

I take it that this reflects the statement of the chairman of the com-
mittee, Mr. Eodino, when at a committee meeting about 2 weeks ago
he stated certain general principles with respect to the privileges to be
afforded the President's counsel? That is generally reflected in tliis

draft, is it not?
]Mr. Woods. That is correct. The effort was to take those major points

as they were outlined by Chairman Rodino and simply render them
hei'e in more explicit detail.

^Ir. Kastex:meier. In paragraph A the first line reads: "The com-
mittee will receive from committee counsel at a hearing initial pres-
entation." A^^len you say at a hearing, that is to say that the initial

presentation will, for purposes of the rules of the House, or rules of
tlie committee, be treated as a hearing ; is that correct ?

]Mr. Woods. That is what is contemplated by the draft, yes, sir.

Mr. Kastexmeier. I yield to the gentleman from Illinois, ]Mr. Rails-
back.
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Mr. Railsback. I want to thank the chairman for yielding. I have

several questions, and I wonder, to begin with, in paragraph A, if it

would not be better to have the words "at a hearing" at the end of the

paragraph?
Mr. I^STENMEiER. You are saying it would appear that "The com-

mittee will receive from the committee counsel," and then seven lines

down, "testimony of witnesses or not, but testimony of witnesses, strike

the period, at the hearing?
]Mr. Railsback. Yes. Right, Mr. Chairman.
Hay I just explain that if we have at a hearing following or where

it presently is as read, it might be construed as requiring that the

proposed statement of facts also be presented at a hearing, which I

understand, you know, may not be the case. In other words, it could be

hand distributed, not that it makes—I am just wondering what your
feeling is about that.

]\Ir. Woods. It was my understanding in drafting this, and what was
intended by the draft, was that the words, "at a hearing" would be

applicable to each of the three subdivisions of the paragraph. Now,
we may have misunderstood the desired intent, but that is what was
written.

Mr. Railsback. I see. In other words—well, do you think by putting
it at the end
Mr. Garrison. Could I interject, Congressman? I think that the

matter included in roman (i) would be construed as an opening
statement, but very much part of the presentation which is called

the initial presentation.

Mr. Railsback. Yes. I am not going to belabor that. But, maybe
I would want to come back to it.

I think you omitted what may be a desirable change in paragraph
D. As I read, I here read language as I checked my copy, you have
language in there "before each session" and it seems to me that it

might be the desire of the subcommittee to renew that language "be-

fore each session."

]Mr. Woods. In reading it, I did eliminate that. Congressman.
IMr. Railsback. You did ? It is in our draft.

Mr. Woods. I realize that it was. It was a clerical error, and in reading
it I attempted to—I did correct that, and also in certain instances,

read the word "will" where the word "shall" appears in what is before
you.

Mv. Railsback. Yes, you did.

Mr. Woods. To conform to the style of the remainder of the
-document.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Following up on what Congressman Railsback is

referring to, in other words, how should D. read, should it read "the
committee shall determine?"
Mr. Woods. The committee will determine pursuant to the rules

of the House, whether and to what extent the evidence to be pre-
sented will be received in executive session.

]\Ir. RailspxAgk. ]\Ir. Chairman, I have one other question. I call

attention to C. 1., "the President and his counsel." The way the draft
reads is "shall be invited to attend all hearings." The way I heard
you read it it sounds like again j^ou said "will" and it seems to me in
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that case, maybe "shall" because it appears to be more mandatory,
would be better language.

Mr. Woods. The reason for changing in my reading these various

"shalls" to "wills" was that if you will recall, we combined two
documents to create this document. One of these documents had
adopted consistently the use of the word, "will" and the other had
adopted consistently the use of the word "shall" in comparable situa-

tions. And I simply conform the second one to the first. There are a

number of other situations I think in wliich your comment would
be equally applicable.

Mr. Railsback. Yes. I was an English major, but to tell you the

truth, I need help. Is not "shall" in that particular case, would that

not be stronger language, "The President and his counsel shall be in-

vited to attend all hearings," or do you not think it makes any differ-

ence ?

Mr. Woods. It certainly would be in a more mandatory form. There
are other places in the draft where if one were making the change that

vou have indicated one would similarly substitute the word "shall" for

"will."

Mr. Railsback. Why don't we make it "shall" everywhere ?

Mr. Woods. That is fine with me.
Mr. Railsback. I mean, making it a little bit more directive and

mandatory, and these are rules. I respectfully suggest that maybe it

would be better to have "shall".

Mr. Ivastenmeier. Let me put it tliis way, if the gentleman will

yield, why do you not at the appropriate time, I think we will need

a motion both in terms of section D for David and in terms of "wills"

and "shalls", and that is, I think essentially a clerical change, a change
for style and consistency, and both of those will be in order.

Mr. Woods. Mr. Chairman, if I could also point out in the second

line of C on page 3 after the word "additional procedures" there was
a clerical omission which I supplied in reading, and the line reads,

"additional procedures will be or shall be applicable to hearings." The
two words "will be" were left out.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I know my time has expired, and I

want to commend the staff for doing what I think is a fine job of pre-

paring these proposed rules wliich I think are very fair, myself, and
I hope very acceptable to the other members of the minority

._

Mr. Kastenmeier. I thank the gentleman from Illinois. I would
like now to yield to the gentleman from California, Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. I want to caution first of all that we not get hung
up on the "shall" and "will" too much. In the context of which the

gentleman from Illinois referred, I think that "will" would be manda-
tory, and I, in my opinion, think "shall" is a better word, and I would
not want it to become jurisdictional to be made some kind of an error if

we forget to send out an embossed invitation.

In paragraph sub 2. of paragraph C, I shall, at the appropriate time,

recommend that we strike the language in line 5 which would permit

the President's Counsel to object to procedure imless counsel's answer
here will clear something up for me. Is it contemplated by this lan-

guage, counsel, that the role of President's Counsel will be the same as

provided under sub 2 here as it is under paragraph B, subs 2 and 3 on
page 2 ?

41-018—75—pt. 1 25
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Mr. Woods. I think, Mr. Danielson, that in drafting this we contem-
plated more a contemporaneous role for him.
Mr. Danielson. In other words, that he would be, imder "C" for

"Charlie," 2 in line 5, you are contemplating that the President's coun-
sel would be authorized to object to questions, for example, on grounds
of materiality, relevancy, or whatever it may be, competency, or even to
procedures that the committee might be following as they are taking
place ?

Mr. Woods. As they are taking place in the context of the hearing at

which live testimony is being received, and in having in mind that at

all times all aspects of the role of the President's counsel will be under
the control of the c aairman and of the committee, because his presence
here is as a matter of grace of the committee.
Mr. Danielson. It is my understanding of this type of proceeding

that the appearance of the respondent's counsel or respondent is a mat-
ter of courtesy rather than right, and if I understand this correctly,

after we have had our colloquy, you are going to be open to motions,
is that correct?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Yes. The gentleman is correct.

Mr. Danielson. I will simply state that I will, at the appropriate
time, move to strike "or the President's counsel" and make appropri-
ate editorial changes in that section. I yield back my time.

Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman from New York, Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. INIr, Chairman, I too want to commend counsel for a

good job of editing and compacting and getting together these pro-
posed rules of procedure under our impeachment inquiry. It was not
nn easy job, and I think counsel has well gathered the thouglits of
the committee as expressed in informal hearings. I shall probably
support the motion of the gentleman from Illinois, if he makes it, to
change the language from preparatory to mandatory because these are
rules that we are proposing.

I yield back, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman from INIassachusetts, Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Counsel, would you sav that Mr. St. Clair can never be ex-

cluded from anv session including exe^^utive sessions under the rules?"

Mr. Woods. That is what the draft provides for. Father Drinan,
subject alwavs to the power of the committee at any time as the pro-
cedure goes forward, to make a appropriate changes in its rules.

Mr. Drinan. I wonder if the
Mr. Kastenmeier, May I ?

Mr. Drinan. Yes.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Follow up on that. T do not read it to be so. The

attendance section, Cl, says the President and his counsel shall or will
be invited to attend all hearings, including any held in executive
session. This would not seem to pertain to executive sesisons for meet-
ings for other purposes of the committee, even though related to the
impeachment inouiry.

Mr. Drinan. The chairman has made the point very well. I wanted
to clarifv that vou can have executive meetings where the committee
meets without the President's counsel.

Mr. Woods. That is correct. I am sorry. I misunderstood the question..
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Mr. Drixan. All right. Thank you.

Now, I wonder if the staff had thought of giving some guidelines

as to the duration of the time permitted to the President's counsel.

On page 4, Xo. 4, it says, ''The President's counsel may question any
witness called before the committee, subject to instructions from the

chairman respecting the time, scope, and duration of the examination."

I do not think that it is a partisan suggestion to indicate that the

President has engaged in dilatory tactics, and that the President's

counsel may continue those. I wonder if the counsel has thought of

putting down some simple giiidelines as to the duration of the exam-
ination. One simple one would be that the President's counsel would
have, under no circumstances, any more time than the other side would
have had ?

Mr. Woods. We did not consider that for the reason that we felt it

was somewhere between difficult and impossible to project what the

situation would be with respect to a given witness and the possible need
or lack of apparent need of the President's counsel to examine that

particular witness. Aiid we felt that that was the sort of thing that

the chairman and the committee could best deal with and control as

the situation might arise.

Mr. Drinan. It places a burden on the chairman, and I am not
opposed to this, but I'm just wondering if at a moment in time you
did go through and you did try to propose rules that would equalize

without maximizing his opportunity.
Well, on another point, I am not certain that this subcommittee has

to devise guidelines for the TV but we have followed, as I understand
it, and correct me if I am wrong, that the draft before us does not
change the House rules about the admissibility of the TV in any way ?

Mr. Woods. The draft does not address itself to the question of
television coverage.

Mr. Drinan. All right.

Mr. Woods. And, therefore, the normal rules applicable under the
standing rules of the House prevail.

Mr. Drinax. Except that do I understand that at every moment

—

for example, on page 1 under A, at a hearing, that means that at a

hearing television may be permitted unless by a majority vote of the
committee it is excluded ?

Mr. Woods. This is a hearing, and that is the standing rules of the
House applicable to electronic media coverage at hearings which are
applicable to the presentation, yes, sir.

Mr. Drinan. And every presentation by the staff will be a hearing?
Mr. Woods. That is what is contemplated by this draft.

Mr. Drixan. Fine. Thank you. That was my understanding. Thank
you verv much, I yield back the time.

IMr. Kastexmeier. I thank the gentleman from IMassachusetts, and
the Chair would observe that that was the purpose of my question at
the outset.

In designating the presentation to be a hearing, it enables that, as
well as all subsequent proceedings in which testimony of witnesses
is produced to be considered hearings, and as such would be eliirible

for electronic media in accordance with the rules of the House. If the
hearings are, in fact, otherwise opened and not closed for any special
reason which could be invoked by the committee, is that correct?
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IVIr. Woods. That is correct.

Mr. Kastenmeier. I would like to yield to the gentleman from
Maine, Mr. Cohen.
Mr. ConEX. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would just take this opportunity to commend Mr. Woods and the

members of the staff for their efforts in putting together this recom-
mendation, this proposal. I would also commend the gentleman from
Illinois, jNIr. Kailsback, who possesses a sharp and unerring eye as

an English major, which is news to most of us. And if he will make
the motion, I, like my fellow colleague from New York, shall support
his effort.

I would like to ask you, Mr. Woods, this may be an unfair question,

and perhaps you have not been working in this particular field, but
with respect to the rules of evidence before a congressional hearing,
what would be the basis for objections? Would they be on the basis of
irrelevancy, immateriality before the committee itself? For example,
there is some concern which has been exhibited by Mr. Danielson
that this might turn into an adversary proceeding whereby counsel for

each of the witnesses, for perhaps the President might object on the
basis of a question being irrelevant. As I understand it, the State of
the law is there is no judicial review of the proceedings before this

House or even before the Senate, and if it should reach that stage,

would relevancy and materiality be viable objections on the part of
counsel ? I think this is addressed to the concern of having it turn into

a judicial proceeding with many, many objections being made.
Now, I am not sure there is any basis for that fear.

Mr. Woods. As I understand it, from our examination of the pre-
cedence of the House, the committee has the power, the right and the
continumg responsibility to pass upon the usefulness of evidence that
is offered to it. And it does this in terms of whether it is pertinent
to the matter of the inquiry, and whether the commitee deems that
evidence to be reliable evidence. And the technical objections that
we encounter in courts are simply not appropriate here because the
committee is not bound by any such rules. It is bound by its own judg-
ment as to the usefulness to the conmiittee of the particular piece
of evidence.

Mr. CoHEX. In other words, if the committee members were to pose
a (question to a witness, counsel would not really be in position to
object on the grounds that that question is irrelevant on the part of
the committee member?
Mr. Woods. I should think it would be both fruitless and unwise

if he did so.

Mr. Cohen. And really not well anchored in precedent ?

Mr. Woods. That is correct.

Mr. Cohen. So there would be opportunities, for example, to object
on the basis of incriminating evidence under the rules of the House,
defamatory statements, things of that sort, but not really a series of
objections on the basis of relevancy, immateriality and that sort of

Mr. Woods. The technical rules of evidence simply are inappro-
priate, and the chairman and the committee would have the power to
deal with any asserted objections on the committee's own terms.
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Mr. Cohen. And, therefore, the allowing of Mr. St. Clair to par-

ticipate on those grounds really would in no way legitimately interfere

with the conduct or presentation of the witnesses under those ground
rules?

Mr. Woods. Well, I suppose that one could consider the possibility

that in any proceeding coimsel who is permitted to voice objections

may become unduly enthusiastic in doing so. However, that is I should

think, a theoretical fear.

Mr. Cohen. Well, the only point I am trying to make is in the

course of congressional hearings, as I understand it, coimsel for wit-

nesses do not and have not been permitted to do so in the past, to object

on the basis of technical irrelevancy, or materiality, questions or ob-

jections that might be voiced in a court of law, that that simply is not

done? They may advise a witness to invoke the fifth amendment or

object on the basis of defamatory statements, but generally speaking,

it is not the same as in a court of law and, therefore, there would be
limited amounts of objections. I think one would reasonably anticipate

that and I think that what Congressman Railsback is suggesting is we
ought to afford to President's counsel the same rights as coimsel to

other witnesses, but no more, simply the same rights would be applied

to everybody?
Mr. Woods. With, I suppose, the further qualification that this right

would be afforded to him with respect to all witnesses, whereas in the

normal situation before a committee, counsel is simply permitted to

advise his client and not to deal in any way with the testimony of

persons other than his client.

Mr. Cohen. Thank you.
Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman from Iowa, Mr. Mozvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to say at least at the outset that I think these rules,

as laid out, and I want to commend the staff and the member that

have worked on these, that it is clear that in all of our problems and
deliberations concerning due process for the President and for his

counsel, I think these rules clearly establish that this committee, at

least the draft of which I will support, entitles the counsel and the

President to due process and I think that is very significant. And I

am pleased that we were able to resolve this and what appears to be
a rather harmonious kind of conclusion.

I might also say that I am pleased, too, that we have classified

these as hearings during the presentation stage as well as during any
possible subsequent hearings as to witnesses so that we can allow
and have the opportunity, if we so decide, to have as complete coverage
as possible so that the public can also have the opportunity to under-
stand that our actions are open, and that nothing will be held behind
closed doors.

Now, I have one specific question as to the draft and that is on
page 2, No. 3. I have been very concerned as to the fact as to when
members of this committee will have the opportunity to go through
the information and the files in order to be privy to the information
that we can base our decisions on. I am concerned still by the language
of No. 3, and I raise the point as to at the presentation stage, if we
break it down into areas, will the members of the committee have
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the opportunity prior to the commencement of a hearing, to look at

the material that may, in fact, be presented at a particular hearing?

For example, if at a particular time we know that the hearing will

relate to personal finances and the President's tax returns, will the

members have the opportunity prior to that presentation to at least

go over the material so that we will be prepared and have some idea

in mind prior to the presentation ?

The reason I raise the question is because if there is some doubt in

my mind, I may suggest language that would say that prior to the

commencement of the hearing, each member would be given access,

so with that question in mind, would you care to comment, Mr.
Woods, whether I as a member or any member of this committee
prior to the hearings on a particular allegation would have the oppor-
tunity to look at the material so that we have at least the question in

mind during the presentation in case we want to add or include any
additional material ?

Mr. Woods. Mr. Mezvinsky, it was contemplated by this draft that

all of the material in the possession of the staff would be made avail-

able to the members of the committee at the time the presentation

commences. That is, at the time the first part of the presentation

conmience. And this would mean then that as to that segment of the

case first presented, there would be a contemporaneous access to the
materials; that as respects all subsequent segments of the case, there

would be prior access. You would get access all at one time, at the

time that the presentation commences.
Mr, Mezvinsky. So then at the beginning, at the first day of the

presentation we will walk in basically cold, and then from that point
on the members will be able to go into the files, or review with the
staff as to any particular material that may be brought up at any
subsequent hearings from the beginning day ? Is that a proper proce-

dure ? In other words, I am concerned, and 1 think some members have
expressed that we walk into the presentation with as much back-
ground and information so that we may raise some questions, Mr.
Chairman, and consequently will be able to have a clear insight. So, is

it clear that the first day we walk in cold? From that point on we
will then have the opportunity to look at each allegation prior to that
time and go in and talk with the. staff ? Is that the lay of the land as
far as we see it?

Mr. Woods. That is correct. And the qualification that is stated

there with respect to the first day is simply a practical one of the
ability of the staff to prepare for the presentation. It is not intended
to be in any sense a delay of access. It is simply a practical require-
moTit on the resources of the staff to prepare for a presentation which
would be following very shortly.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Would the staff indicate then after the first day
and every subsequent hearing thereafter the subject matter that will

be considered by the committee so that the members know what subject
matter will be presented, and we can have the opportunity to look at
that particular material prior to that time ?

Mr. Woods. I feel sure that the fullest possible information will be
given to the members, having in mind that at some time the order
in which thinjjs would be received mijiht be subject to change because
of some practical presentation problems. Yes, sir.
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Mr. MEZ^^xsKT. Mr. Chairman, I will defer any further comments.
Mr. IvASTEXMEiER. I tlumk the gentleman from Iowa. He has raised

an important area in what we understand, and I think this is new
and vital information, which is that at the outset of the presentation of

the statement of facts, at that time, if it is 10 o'clock on a Tuesday
morning, at that very time all of the evidence will be available to

members in terms of the annex, going over to the annex and having
access to appropriate evidence. Is that not the case?

Mr. Woods. That is correct. Yes, sir.

Mr. Kastenmeier. That concludes the line of questioning.

The Chair would like to entertain motions or amendments.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I will recognize the gentleman from Illinois,

Mr. Railsback. And I think, may I, before I yield to him, I would
like to say that hereinafter, again, Mr. Woods, I will have you read
each paragraph and at the end of each paragraph as it appears to be

a paragraph, if there are amendments to that paragraph, I will recog-

nize members for such amendments.
I yield to the gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. Railsback. Well, Mr. Chairman, in the light of what you have
said, I wonder if kind of a general conforming amendment is in

order at this time or should I hold up ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Yes; I would say it would be at the outset.

Mr. Railsback. All right. Before I offer it, I would just like to ask
Mr. Woods one other thing tliat it is important that it be on the rec-

ord, and that is, and I will ask it kind of in an almost rhetorical way,
because I think I know your answer, but I want to make it crystal

clear on the record, that the statement of fact is going to be just that,

it is going to contain the actual facts that you believe have been
divulged by your investigation, and will not draw any conclusions at

nil? And in the case.s where there would be controverted facts, both of

the sets of facts will be stated ? In other words, no conclusions will be
drawn in the statement of facts ?

Mr. Woods. That is correct.

Mr. Railsback. OK.
Having said that, Mr. Chairman, I would like to move that the

procedures that we are considering be amended, wherever applicable,

to use the word "shall" where the staff thinks that the committee de-

sires to use mandatory language. In other words, to conform in those

places, wherever "shall" is properly to be used. For instance, wherever
we are obviously trying to direct or mandate the committee to do some-
thing or an individual involved in the impeachment inquiry pro-

cedures.

Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman from Illinois has offered an
amendment.
Mr. SisriTH. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastensieier. Yes.
Mr. Smith. May I comment ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman from Illinois has offered an
amendment, and I will recognize the gentleman now.
The gentleman from Illinois has offered an amendment directing

the staff to conform the use of the word "shall" and "will" witiiin

the document consistent with their meaninof as he so stated.
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I will yield to the gentleman from New York.
Mr. Smith. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman and Mr. Kailsback, I would think that since these

are procedural rules that we are offering, that the use of the term
"shall" should be used all the way through instead of "will" rather

than leaving it to the discretion of the committee. I believe that in

procedural rules you can use the term "shall" all the way.
]Mr. Danielsox. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Smith. Be happy to yield.

Mr. Danielsox. I would prefer to follow Mr. Eailsback's sugges-

tion which I think has great merit. I have just run through this. There
are 27 instances in which "shall" or "will" are used, including a couple

in which it is "may", and in some instances, they are definitely manda-
tory and in other instances, they are simply referring to a future act

and I would think Mr. Eailsback's proposed amendment would be

probably more in keeping with good draftsmanship. And I would
support Mr. Eailsback's amendment as made.
Mr. Eailsback. Would you yield, Henry ?

Mr. Smith. Be happy to yield.

Mr. Eailsback. I thank you for yielding. And I think the gentle-

man makes a point. There is a distinction between using the word
"shall," which is directive, and mandating something, and using the

word "will" which does refer to a future act. And I think that dis-

tinction may be proper and can be left to the staff under those direc-

tions, our directions.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Are you ready for the question? The question

is on the amendment offered by the gentleman from Illinois. All in

favor say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

Mr. I^STEXMEiER. Opposcd, nay.
[No response.]

Mr. Kastenmeier. The amendment is carried.

I will now ask counsel again to read the draft, paragraph by para-

graph, pausing at the end of each paragraph to see whether there

are any amendments offered to the paragraph. Mr. Woods.
Mr. Woods [reading]

:

Impeachment Inquiry Procedures.
The Committee on the Judiciary states the following procedures applicable to

the presentation of evidence in the impeachment inquiry pursuant to H. Res. 803,

subject to modification by the committee as it deems proper as the presentation

proceeds.

INIr. Kastenmeier. Are there any amendments to the first para-

graph ?

Hearing none, I will ask you to read paragraph A up to Al.
Mr. Woods. I might say, Mr. Chairman, in reading this I will still

be in the "will" mode [reading] :

The committee will receive from committee counsel at a hearing an initial

presentation consisting of (i) a written proposed statement of fact that details

in paragraph form the facts believed by the staff to be pertinent to the inquiry,

(ii) a general description of the scope and manner of the proposed presentation

of evidence, and (iii) a detailed presentation of the evidentiary material, other
than the testimony of witnesses.

Mr. Kastenmeier. On that point, I yield to the gentleman from
California, Mr. Danielson.
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Mr. Danielson. I wish to raise a question as to the word "proposed"
at the end of the second line and again at the end of the fifth line, "a
written proposed statement of facts" and ''the proposed presentation
of evidence." Does this imply, it could imply that the statement of
fact is only a proposed or a preliminary statement and would require
some action by the committee before it became formally accepted as a
statement of fact. If that is the intent of the drafters, I would like to

know that. If not the intent, then I would probably offer an amendment
to strike it.

Mr. Woods. I believe that the purpose of the word "proposed" was
to express the staff's deference to direction from the committee at

that point, that it did not wish to proceed in the manner advanced by
the staff, and it serves, as I see it, no function other than that, And,
therefore, if it is the desire of the committee to delete it, it represents no
problem whatever to the staff.

Mr. Danielson. I would like then, Mr. Chairman, to move that we
strike the word "proposed" only because—may I speak to the motion ?

Mr. Kastexmeier. Yes. You are recognized.
Mr. Danielson. Speaking to the motion, I think that the word

being present could give rise to some controversy down the line, that

this has not been officially adopted, or words to that effect. And since

it serves no functional purpose, I urge that it be stricken.

Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. Railsback. I move the question on the amendment.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Does anyone else wish to speak further on the

amendment ?

The amendment is proposed by the gentleman or suggested by the

gentleman from California that in section A, the second line and the

fifth line there of the word "proposed" be stricken. All in favor of the

amendment please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

Mr. Kastensieier. Opposed, nay ?

[No response.]

Mr. Ivastenmeier. The amendment is adopted.
Now, read Al.
Mr. Woods [reading]

:

1. Each member of the committee will receive a copy of (i) the statement of
fact, (ii) the related documents and other evidentiary material, and (iii) an
index of all testimony, papers, and things that have been obtained by the com-
mittee, whether or not relied upon in the statement of fact.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Are there any amendments ?

If there are none
Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman, a point of information.
Mr. Kasteninieier. The gentleman is recognized.
Mr. Drinan. In the rules adopted by the committee on February 22,

of this year, it is stated under 3 in the following words

:

The special cotmsel and counsel to the minority, after discussion with the
chairman and the ranking minority member, shall initially recommend to the
committee the testimony, papers, and things to be presented.

I wondered if counsel would tell us, is that rule of February 22 appli-
cable to Al so that we as members of the committee will receive only
those things which the special counsel and the counsel to the minority
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liave ill fact, discussed with the chairman and the ranking minority
member ?

Mr. Woods. I am sorry, Father, I am not in a position to answer
the question as to the precise degree of participation of the chairman
and the ranking minority member in each and every paragraph of the
presentation which will be before you. It will be a matter of virtually
hundreds of pages, and I think that the only fair answer I could give
you is that in general outline, the answer to the question would be
yes, but that in precise detail I suspect the answer would be no.

Mr. Drtxan. Well, I am sure that you understand what I am driving
at, that some members will say that have certain materials been
screened out because after discussing this with the ranking minority
member, he feels that it should not be presented ?

Mr. Eatlsback, Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinan. Therefore, are we getting material which has been
prescreened ?

Mr. Railsback. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinax. Yes.
Mr. Railsback. My recollection, and I thank you for yielding, my

recollection is that we go through the initial screening procedure, and
then, as is stated in this, in these proposed rules, we are given an index
of all the materials whether thev are used or not, and we are in a
position, even if something has been screened out by this screening
process, we are still in a position to go over and ask to see any materials
that were not used.

Is that correct, Counsel ?

Mr. Woods. That is correct. And that is the basic reason for the
distribution of the index, is to enable the committee at all times to be
in a position to examine the
Mr. Railsback. Any of the materials that were part of the inquiry ?

Mr. Woods. The completeness, yes, sir, and to pass judgment upon
the adequacy of the presentation that is proposed to be made by the

staff.

And later on in these procedures that are before you this morning,
in paragraph Bl, it makes clear that each member is privileged to

bring to the committee additional information. And, of course, that
is not limited to information that the member might secure by exami-
nation of those files, but it certainly includes thnt examination.
Mr. Mezvtistsky. Will the gentleman vield ? I think your apprehen-

sion, I certainly can understand it, and tliat is tlie reason why I thought
it was very vital that under the following provision, that No. 3, that
each member does have access and can have access after the beginning
day to the files and to the information. So that whether it relates to

the grand jury report or whatever, each member will have the oppor-
tunity to take a look at that so that we can be briefed to some extent
before the statement of fact. So, I can understand the apprehension,
but I think with the check of each member having the opportunity that
we are basically coverinpr that point.

Mr. Drinan. Well, Mr. Chairman, I will iust leave it at this, that
there is an ambiguity in that in the rules of February 22, 1 think that
there is a gloss on the ri<rht of the member, and I would not repeat it,

but it is a limitation and a qualification whiHi still obtains because we
have not superseded the rules of February 22. Perhaps it would have
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been better if we had, but the rules now to be adopted on INIav 1 seem

to be apparently inconsistent on this one point with the rules of

Februai*y 22.

I yield back the balance of my time.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Would you read A2, please?

Mr. Woods [reading]

:

2. Each paragraph of the statement of fact will he annotated to related evi-

dentiary material (e.g., documents, recording.s and ti-anscripts thereof, tran-

scripts of grand jury or congres.sional testimony, or affidavits). Where applica-

ble, the annotations will identify witnesses believed by the staff to be sources

of additional information important to the committee's understanding of the

subject matter of the paragraph in question.

!\rr. Kastenmeier. Are there any amendments to section A2 ?

If not, would you read section A3 ? •

Mr. Woods [reading]

:

3. Each member of the committee will be given access to and the opportunity
to examine all testimony, papers and things that have been obtained by the

inquiry staff, whether or not relied upon in the statement of fact.

Mr. Mezvinskt. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman from Iowa.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman. I Avould submit an amendment

whereby we would add at the beginning, prior to the word, "each"
the words "on the commencement of the hearing each member of the

committee will be given access," so it is specifically stated that at

the beginning or the commencement of the hearing each member
would have access to the tCvStimony, papere, and things. So, I would
so move that language "on the commencement of the hearing."

Mr. Woods. Mr. Chairman, if that is to be done, it might conform
to the style of the document more easily if it reads "on the commence-
ment of the presentation."

Mr. Kastenmeier. I would agree. I think that the term "the hear-

ing" does not have any precise meaning in this document.
Mr. Mezvinsky. OK. That is fine. I shall change it to "on the com-

mencement of the presentation.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Is there any discussion ?

Mr. Woods, would you find any difficulty with that amendment?
Mr. Woods. No, sir.

jNIr. Kastenmeier. Is there any further discussion ?

You have heard the amendment of the gentleman from Iowa. All
those in favor of the amendment say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

Mr. Kastenmeier. Opposed, nay.
[No response.]

Mr. Kastenmeier. The amendment is carried.

If there are no further amendments to section A3, would you read
section A4 ?

Mr. Woods [reading :]

4. The President's counsel will be furnished a copy of the statement of fact
and related documents and other evidentiary material at the time that those
materials are furnished to the members and will be invited to attend and observe
the presentation.

Mr. Cohen. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman from Maine.
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Mr. Cohen. Could we state for the record, to make it clear, that
under this section 4, that it is not contemplated that the President's
counsel is furnished an index to the information that will be furnished
to the members. Is that correct ?

Mr. Woods. That is correct.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Are there any amendments to section A4 ?

If not, proceed to section B.
Mr. Woods [reading

:]

B. Following that presentation the committee will determine whether it de-
sires additional evidence.

1. Any committee member may bring additional evidence to the committee's
attention.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Section B2 ?

Mr. Woods [reading :]

2. The President's counsel will be invited to respond to the presentation, orally
or in writing as shall be determined by the committee.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Section B3.
Mr. Woods [reading]

:

3. Should the President's counsel wish the Committee to receive additional
testimony or other evidence, he will be invited to submit written requests and
precise summaries of what he would propose to show, and in the case of a
witness precisely and in detail what it is expected the testimony of the witness
would be, if called. On the basis of such requests and summaries and of the
record then before it, the committee will determine whether the suggested evi-
dence is necessary to a full and fair record in the inquiry, and, if so, whether
the summaries will be accepted as part of the record or additional testimony or
evidence in some other form will be received.

Mr. Kastexmeier. If there are no amendments, section C.

Mr. Woods [reading] :

C. If and when witnesses are to be called, the following additional procedures
will be applicable to hearings held for that purpose

:

1. The President and his counsel will be invited to attend all hearings, includ-
ing any held in executive session.

Mr. Kastexmeier. It will not be necessary and I take it it was a
clerical omission only that the words "will be" or "shall be" applicable
are included, is that correct ? The final draft as adopted by the commit-
tee in section 3 will read "additional procedures will or shall be" ?

Mr. Woods. Shall be, I should think.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Shall be.

Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman, I am wondering if

JMr. Kastexmeier. The gentleman from Massachussetts.
Mr. Drixax. If counsel suggests any difference in the language

here? We have the President and his counsel shall be invited, whereas
previously _ it was simply the President's counsel. Is that a happen-
stance, or is it by design that we say the President himself shall be
invited to attend all hearings, including any held in executive session?
Mr. Woods. I think it is a happenstance.
Mr. Drixax. I move that the President's counsel, as much as we

would love to have the President here, I think we should be consistent
and have the President's counsel.
Mr. Daxlelsox. Will the gentlema n yield ?

Mr. Drixax. Yes.



393

Mr. Danlelson. Why do we not just extend the courtesy to the

President and say the President and his counsel ?

Mr. Drinan. Well, throughout the document it has been the Presi-

dent's counsel, and I do not see any reason, and counsel has indicated

there is no reason for changing that parlance, and I just suggest in CI
it be "the President's counsel."

Mr. Garrison. If I might comment, Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Garrison, would you desire to comment on
that observation ?

Mr. Garrison. Mr. Chairman, I think that in terms of a choice as to

which way to conform the two provisions, that it should be pointed out
that it has been customary in prior impeachment inquiries to accord
the respondent personally the right to be present.

Mr. Kailsback. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Ivastenmeier. I yield to the gentleman from Illinois, Mr.

Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I was just about to mention that in

reading some of the precedents, I think counsel is absolutely right,

normally they have, it is my understanding, always invited the re-

spondent himself and the counsel to be present.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. I would say that to me it seems obvious that if we

allow the counsel in, we should have the President in, or at least

invite the President. We should not get ourselves caught in the situa-

tion where the counsel is invited but the President is not. So, for that
reason, it seems logical that we would broaden it and say the President
and his counsel and not get in the untenable position of having the
counsel invited but not the President.
Mr. I^stenmeier. The gentleman from California.
Mr. Danielson, I agree with Mr. Mezvinsky, and whoever else has

asked to have the President as well as his counsel invited. It is up
to them whether they want to attend. I only wish to make the record
clear that the respondent has not normally attended impeachment
hearings. He has from time to time.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Does the gentleman from Massachusetts

desire

Mr. Drinan. I would be delighted to invite the President and his
counsel and change the language in all of the rules to invite the
President.
Mr. Kastenmeier. As I understand it, there may be reasons in other

sections why the President is not also named in addition to the counsel.
So, I think, I gather matters will be left as they are in terms of the
draft.

Mr. Woods. Mr. Chairman, the place that it does come up I think in
relatively comparable context is in paragraph A4 on page 2. It has
to do with the invitations to attend, and it is correct that there is an
anomaly here in the language.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Is it your view that on page 2, paragraph A4 that

it should read, "the President and his counsel will be furnished a
copy," et cetera ?
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Mr. Woods. Yes, sir.

Mr. Danielson. JNIr. Cliairman, that requires two sets, and I only

got one set of these transcripts, and I did not know why they need

more than one set down there.

Mr. Smith. Mr. Chairman, I think
Mr. Kastenmeier. And will be invited to attend to observe the

presentation is a continuation of that paragraph, and unless you
care to have it read "the President's counsel will be furnished a copy
of the statement of fact in related documents and other evidentiary

material at the time those materials are furnished to the members, and
the President and his counsel will be invited to attend and observe the

presentation." Is that an appropriate formulation?
Mr. Woods. Yes, sir.

ISIr. Garrison. Yes, sir.

Mr. IvASTENMEiER. I offer it then as an amendment.
Any further discussion ? If not, all in favor of the amendment please

say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

Mr. Kastenmeier. Opposed, nay.

[No response.]

Mr. Kastenmeier. The amendment is adopted.
Counsel, you may proceed, Mr. Wood, at C2, please.

Mr. Woods [reading]

:

Objections to the procedures of the committee relating to the examination of
witnesses or to the admissibility of testimony and evidence may be raised only by
a witness or his counsel, a member of the committee, committee counsel or the
President's counsel and will be ruled upon by the chairman or presiding member.
Such rulings will be final, unless overruled by a vote of a majority of the members
present. In the case of a tie vote, the ruling of the Chair will prevail.

Mr, Danielson. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman from California.

Mr. Danielson. I propose an amendment to C 2 in line 5 to strike

the words "or the President's counsel" and to make such appropriate
editorial changes are needed in the context. I would like to speak to

my motion.
Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman is recognized for 5 minutes.
Mr. Danielson. I feel that this language as presently in the rules

goes too far towards encouraging the perception of this inquiry as

being an adversary proceeding. I would like to point out that in lines

1 and 2 of subsection 2 this would permit objections to procedures of

the committee as well as objections to the admissibility of testimony.
This is not an adversary proceeding. It is the grand inquest of the
Nation, and as counsel has pointed out, the committee is not bound by
ordinary rules of evidence.

A study of the historical precedent which was completed by counsel
and furnished to us some 2 months ago reveals that throughout the
entire history of impeachment proceedings there have been objections
to evidence on the grounds of relevancy, materiality, competence, and
almost every other conceivable technical objection to evidence that you
can think of. Historically the chairmen have ruled upon them usually
sometimes sustaining and sometimes overruling, but consistently, al-

most invariably pointing out that the House committee conducting
the inquiry is not subject to the ordinary rules of evidence, and that
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this is an inquisition for the purpose of obtaining facts and under-
standing, and evidence which might not be admissible in a court pro-
ceeding, for example, is admissible for the purpose of furthering that

understanding. We all know that a zealous counsel can be obstructive

by interposing frivolous objections or sincere objections, with too great
a frequency and much too hair-splitting judgment. I do not feel that
it is essential, in fact, or even meritorious to have this provision in

section 2. We should bear in mind that participation by the President's

counsel is a courtesy offered by the committee and not a matter of

right, and we should further bear in mind that this subparagraph 4 of
section C, which appears on page 4, the President's counsel is already
given the option of questioning any witness called before the commit-
tee. And therefore, it would seem to me to be redundant and umieces-
sary to provide that autliority here in subsection 2.

My distinguished colleague, Mr. Cohen, has argued earlier that the
Pi'esident's counsel should have the same rights as counsel for any
other witness. I am not presently advised that the President intends
to appear as a witness. It he does appear as a witness, of course his

counsel should have the right to protect him in any way he wishes to

do so. But, until or unless he does appear as a witness, giving his coun-
sel the right to interfere with the testimony brought forth by other
witnesses would be giving him a power that is not given to comisel for
other witnesses, nor to the committee. So, therefore, I urge that we
strike the langTiage I referred to, "or the President's counsel" in line

5 of subsection 2.

Mr. Cohen. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. If I may respond briefly, I sympathize with what
the gentleman from California has said. It is a view shared by many
members, but it seems to me that the philosophy is that we accommo-
date the President and his counsel in terms of procedural opportuni-
ties and safeguards, and that, in fact, we lean over backward to do
so. This is part of the philosophy of this document and the philosophy
of our committee in terms of being fair. The philosophy of this docu-
ment, is, as the gentleman said, as a matter of courtesy, and the chair-

man of the committee and the committee do control the proceeding.
That would leave no doubt, not Mr. St. Clair or anyone else. And at

the outset as well, if abuses do occur, we have stated, and I quote:
''Subject to modification by the committee as it deems proper, as the
presentation proceeds," we are referring to the procedures which we
have outlined, so that the committee has ample opportunity to protect
itself against any excesses that we appear to yield herein to Mr. St.

Clair or anyone else. For that reason, I must respectfully oppose my
friend's motion.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I yield to the gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I will try to be very brief. And
I want to commend you for your statement and point out that I think
it is absolutely essential that this particular amendment be defeated.
I think the Congress itself as an institution is going to be on trial. I
tliink it is important that we do just what we suggested, that we lean
over backward to give the President and his counsel every opportunity
to participate.
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And let me just give you some examples of the necessity of having
that language in there. It may be that a witness would be called, that

the President's counsel may have reason to believe would be defama-
tory or would be demeaning, or would say something that could be

incriminating. And in that event, I think it proper that the Presi-

dent's counsel be permitted to raise an objection so that possibly

we could consider going into executive session. I can see that. I can
see that happening.
And I also agree with what you said that if he should be arbitrary^

if Mr. St. Clair should be arbitrary, the chairman has the complete
control. And in the event we did have to change the procedures, we
have the mechanism to change the procedures. So, I just want to com-
mend you for your position and indicate my support of it.

Mr. Cohen. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kj^stenmeier. Are we ready for the question?

The gentleman from Maine, Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Just a couple of points, Mr. Chairman. I can direct

this to the staff perhaps. In your perusal of the impeachment proceed-
ing, do you find the records proliferated with objections as to irrel-

evancy, materiality, or any other sort of technical objection that

takes place during the course of a law trial ?

Mr. Woods. You find a record of a considerable amount of objection.

Mr. Cohen. Is it on a basis, or has it been on the basis that the in-

quiry should be limited to the commission of a criminal offense and
not for any broader interpretation ? In other words, that evidence com-
ing in does not bear upon the commission of a crime, as many of those

who have been impeached or considered for impeachment purposes
have alleged in the past, and, therefore, a line of questioning might be
considered irrelevant on that basis ?

Mr. Woods. It is a very rare thing. Perhaps it has occurred, but not
frequently. And we are not aware of any circumstances in which any
such objection to the relevancy of the line of questioning has been
sustained.

Mr. Cohen. And it would be further your understanding that those

witnesses who have been called to testify in past impeachment pro-

ceedings ordinarily have the benefit of counsel with them ?

Mr. Woods. I'm sorry, I did not hear.

Mr. Cohen. They have the benefit of counsel with them ?

Mr. Woods. Over the long range of the impeachment history I think
the answer would be no.

Mr. Cohen. They do not ?

Mr. Woods. There is probably an increasing tendency for it. For
counsel.

Mr. Cohen. The question I was going to raise is it would be rather

inconceivable to me, although I am assuming that counsel for the wit-

ness might not raise an objection on the ground that it might be de-

famatory and incriminating and have counsel for the President sitting

there who would raise it instead. That is not ordinarily done in my
opinion, and I think to allay, if we can, the apprehensions of my col-

league, Mr. Danielson, I think it becomes rather evident if the counsel

for the President were to interpose objections periodically throughout
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the investigation and where counsel for the defendant, or counsel for

the witness rather would not. It would become rather apparent rather

quickly that this was being interposed for dilatory or obstructionist

purposes, and I do not think it is a legitimate concern and, therefore,

I intend to vote against the amendment.
Mr. IvASTENMEiER. The gentleman from Massachusetts, Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. I would like to raise a question upon the objection to

the procedures of the committee, Mr. Counsel. Do you mean that the

rules of the committee—nobody can object to the proceedings of the

committee ? They are set forth in the House rules, and are you saying
the objection to the rules of the committee relating to the examination
of witnesses or the admissibility of testimony ?

Mr. Woods. I think, I believe, the reference is somewhat broader
than that. Tliere are no objections to the House rules over whicli the
committee has no control, but as to the procedures that have been
adopted by this committee for the conduct of its business.

Mr. Drinan. Well, I have difficulty with that because not even a
member of the committee can raise a protest because those rules are
pre-established, or those procedures, but do you mean that if by a ma-
jority vote the committee decides that a particular line of questioning
is not admissible, then the President's counsel can object to that ? Well,
what can he object to that the members of the committee can't object

to? But it is decided by a majority vote. I am not certain where or

what the meaning of rule C 2 is.

Mr. Woods. Well, first. Father, if I could point out the procedures
referred to in C 2 are those relating to the examination of witnesses,

not to the proceedings at large, and as to the second part of the ques-
tion, the objection is not a controlling event in any sense. It is the rais-

ing of a point which counsel desires to be considered by the committee,
and certainly if the committee has decided that it does not want to

pursue a given line of questioning, or that it does want to pursue or
that it wishes to receive tape recordings in lieu of personal appear-
ances, or whatever kind of decision the committee has reached, counsel
voices an objection to that and the committee hears his reason for
thinking that the committer should decide otherwise, and then the
committee proceeds to use its own best judgment as to how this matter
should proceed. This is not a granting of any power, as I see it, to
counsel. It is simply granting him the chance to be heard, and then
be either sustained or overruled as the committee, in its wisdom, de-
cides he should be.

Mr. Drinan. Well, Mr. Counsel, why do you want to restrict that
power, therefore, to these two elements alone, the examination of wit-
nesses and the admissibility of testimony ? Why do you not delete that
and simply say objections to the procedures of the committee may be
raised only by a witness and by the President's counsel? Why don't
you broaden his right and say that he may raise an objection to proce-
dures about anything ?

Mr. Eailsback. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I recognize the gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. Kailsback. I wonder if it would not help if we amended to
strike out "the procedures of the committee relating" and just said
"objections to the examination of witnesses or to the admissibility of
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testimony and evidence may be raised only by a witness." In other
words, instead of "procedures''.

Mr. Woods. That would certainly be consistent with what the staff

had intended by the draft
;
yes, sir.

Mr. Drinatst. Objections to what, to the examination
Mr. Railsback. I think what we ought to do is strike out in C 2, say

"objections" and then strike out "to the procedures of the committee
relating," so that it would read, "Objections to the examination of
witnesses or to the admissibility of testimony and evidence may be
raised only," instead of getting into this business of procedures, which
I think is maybe a little bit misleading.

Mr. Drinan. I accept that. I think that is a good suggestion, except
that the essential question is not raised, is not answered yet by counsel.

Why does he want to restrict the President's counsel to raising objec-

tions only to those two areas ?

Mr. Woods. Sir, I did not hear the question.

Mr, Drinan. It was the same question as before, and that is, why do
you want to restrict the President's counsel in his right to raise objec-

tions only to admissibility of evidence and the examination of wit-

nesses ? There would be other things.

Mr. Woods. I should think that the basis for the limitation is that

it is simply that it was thought it was practical for him to have and
useful to him, and we did not contemplate that he would have any
occasion to object to what we think are, and what the committee by
that time has determined to be a fair and appropriate way in which
to proceed.

Mr. Drinan. Unless somebody else wants to talk, I would move the
question.

Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman, point of order. I believe I have an
amendment pending, and I have not yet had an opportunity to have a
vote on it. I moved an amendment to strike "the President's counsel"
and to make certain editorial changes, and I make a point of order that
the amendment is out of order.

JNIr. Railsback. Whose amendment are you suggesting is out of
order?
Mr. Danielson. Robert Drinan just offered an amendment.
Mr. Railsback. I have not offered mine yet.

Mr. Danielson. Mr. Drinan just offered it.

Mr. Kastenmeier. There is no amendment by the gentleman from
Massachusetts pending.
Mr. Danielson. Fine. May I close on my amendment ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. ISIr. Chairman ? I just want to say that I

Mr. Kastenmeier. I yield to the gentleman from Iowa, Mr. Mezvin-
sky.

Mr. ]Mezvinsky. I think that ]\Ir. Woods' comment about a practical

solution, I am aware of the gentleman from California's suggestion,

the reason we have this is because of due process, and we are leaning
over backwards, and it is a practical kind of solution. It is like what
Congressman Railsback says ; it is basically keeping peace in the fam-
ily; namely, on the Republican side, and for that reason, I will un-
fortunately and respectfully have to oppose the amendment.

]\Ir. Railsback. Question.
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Mr. Iv.\STENMEiEE. Docs the oentleman from California desire to be

^^Mfl^NiELSON. Yes. I wish to close simply and to urge that the right

that would here be granted by the President's counsel is a right in ex-

cess of and not granted to counsel for any other witness who would ap-

pear before the committee. I am certainly in favor of him having the

same ricrhts as everyone else, but 1 do not believe he shou d have rights

over and above those afforded to other witnesses. And I, therefore, urge

adoption of my amendment. ,• o rr^i ^•

Mr Kastenmeier. Are you ready for the question? The question b

the amendment by the gentleman from California striking the words

"or the President's counsel" in section C 2.

All those in favor of the amendment please say aye.

rChoi-us of "ayes."]
^ , n . i

Mr. Kastenmeier. All those opposed to the amendment please say

nay.
[Chorus of "nays."] . ^
Mr. Kastenmeier. The nays have it and the amendment is rejected.

T^Ir R viLSBACK. I have an amendment, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kastenmeier. I recognize the gentleman from Illinois, Mr.

M? Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I move to amend C 2 by striking

after the word "Objections to the procedures of the committee relat-

ino-, to the procedures of the committee relating" so that it would read

"Objections to the examination of witnesses," and so forth from that

^°Mr Kastenmeier. There has already been a discussion of the amend-

ment. Is there any further discussion of this amendment?

Mr. Garrison. Mr. Chairman? _ ,r n •

Mr Kastenmeier. Who is seeking recognition? 1 es, Mr. (jarrison.

Mr Garrison. If I might. Mr. Chairman, ]ust one observation.

It should be pointed out that there may be a difference m scope by

the omission or inclusion of the word "procedures'; which would arise

in the following example : whether the examination of a particular

witness occurs in open or in closed session I think would clearly be

a procedure relating to the examination, and an objection interposed

bv the witness' counsel that this examination is proper, but should

only occur in closed session and would be an objection going to the

procedure, and not an objection to the examination And in tjiat sense,

if the deletion were to take place, it certainly should be clarified on the

record that an objection to such matters as whether the examination

would be open or closed is not intended to be eliminated.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ? m • •

Mr Kastenmeier. The gentleman from Illinois.
_

Mr Railsback. Let me just briefly reply by saying what my^ in-

tent is. My intent is not to prevent any of the people given the various

privileges under item 2 from objecting for instance, to having testi-

mony heard in open session. And I want to make it very clear that I

fully believe that even if my amendment is adopted that there could

still be an objection raised, for instance, to the question of whether a

witness should be examined in open session or m a closed session. Ana

so it is not my intent to be so narrowing or confining by the amend-

ment. I want to make that very clear. The other way, however, it we
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leave in "to the procedures," I think that we really are misleading,
and perhaps confusing what really is the intent as I imderstand it

of staff.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Is there any further questions ?

i\lr. Woods. Mr. Chairman, if I might make an observation ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Woods.
Mr. Woods. Perhaps the intent that Mr. Railsback has here, and

Mr. Garrison's question could be reconciled by having the first por-
tion of 2 read "Objections relating to the examination of witnesses
or to the admissibility of evidence."
Mr. Kastenmeier. Leaving in the word "relating"?
Mr. Woods. Inserting the word "relating" in lieu of the word
Mr. Railsback. I have no objection to that. And, Mr. Chairman,

I ask that my amendment be amended by including the word
"relating."

Mr. KASTENiiiEiER. Without objection your amendment is so
amended.
The question is now on the amendment. All those in favor of the

amendment please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]
Mr. Kastenmeier. Opposed nay.
[No response.]

Mr. Kastenmeier. The amendment is carried.
Proceeding on to, yes, I recognize the gentleman from Maine.
Mr. Cohen. I ask unanimous consent that the rest of the pro-

posed procedure be considered as read.
Mr. Kastenmeier. And open to amendment at any place ?

Mr. Cohen. And open to amendment.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Without objection the gentleman's request is

agreed to.

Are there any other amendments ?

The Chair has one amendment, and that is in section F, second line,

"necessary for the," insert "fair and efficient conduct." "Fair and."
It is a staff suggested amendment.
Mr. Smith. Mr. Chairman, is that fair and necessary ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Fair and efficient conduct. Fair and is the addi-
tion. Is there any discussion thereof ?

If not, I put the amendment to you. All those in favor of the amend-
ment please say aye.

[Chorus o^" "ayes."]
Mr. Kastenmeier. Opposed nay.
[No response.]
Mr. Kastenmeier. The amendment is carried.

Are there any further amendments ?

If not, the Chair will call the question on the document, the im-
peachment inquiry proceedings as amended. The question is all those
in favor of the procedures as amended, please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]
Mr. Kastenmeier. Opposed nay.
[No response.]

Mr. Kastenmeier. The procedures are adopted, and the committee
will adopt the report for the full committee.
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I am informed and asked that the chairman has said that the meet-
ing tonight will be at the time of 7 :45 in this room.
One other question. The Chair will state that tliis subcommittee did

not take up the Wiggins proposal today. The Chair, in discussions

with my colleagues, feels that in view of the fact that it does relate

to the President's response that this matter will have to be taken up
first; that is to say the subject of the meeting tonight, before tliis

subcommittee can properly address itself to the question of the pro-
cedures suggested by Mr. Wiggins. If the full committee thereafter
wishes us to report out procedures relating to the clearing of evidence
flom the "Wliite House, we will be in a position to do so.

The subcommittee then stands adjourned and will report to the
full committee.
[Whereupon at 12 :18 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned.]
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The Chairman. The Chair has called this meeting tonight to con-

sider the response by the President of the United States to the com-
mittee's subpena of April 11. At the same time, however, as this matter
has occupied our attention, members of the committee have been going
forward responsibly to consider rules of procedure for implementation
Avhen we begin evidentiary presentations. The Subcommittee on Civil

Liberties, chaired by Mr. Kastenmeier, met in two extensive briefing

sessions with counsel and in one business meeting over a 2-day period

to consider the draft procedures and rules. Their work has been com-
pleted and the proposed rules are being made available to the members.
They will be brought before the full committee for consideration on
tomorrow, providing we are able to waive the 24-hour requirement
rule so that we will meet and deliberate, on these rules of procedure.

And I would ask the gentleman from Wisconsin at tliis moment, at

this time, if he will not make that unanimous consent request?
Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman, as you have statecl. the Subcom-

mittee on Courts, Civil Liberties and the Administration of Justice

is prepared to report to the full committee in terms of its recommenda-
tions for procedures in connection with the impeachment and accord-

ingly, I do move at this time that the rules

(403)
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]\Ir. Kailsback. Could I just ask a question? Would tlie gentleman
yield?

The Chairman. The gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. Kastenmeier. I yield to the gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. Eailsback. I thank you for yielding. Just in the interest of

possibly heading off an objection, am I correct that the rules them-
selves are very brief, I think something like what, 4 or 5 pages, and
that they are going to be available tonight for all of the members to

stvidy prior to the meeting tomorrow ?

Mr. Kasten^ieier. As^a matter of fact, you are correct. They are

4 pages long. There were two sets which we put together and I will

say we simplified, if anything.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, reserving the right to object, if I

Mr. Kastenmeeer. If I could merely respond to the gentleman, and
I would assume that they ought to be in each member's office at this

very hour, are they not ? I would ask
Mr. Woods. They were distributed this afternoon.

Mr. Kastenmeier. And have been probably since this afternoon.

So, they were adopted as of 12:15 at noontime today, and within the

several hours following were made available to each member of this

committee, I would say to the gentleman from Illinois-

Mr. Kailsback. Yes. Would you just yield for one more question?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I will further yield.

Mr. Railsback. During the consideration of the rules, we had sev-

eral counsel present, including, I think, Mr. Garrison was present, I

think Mr. Polk on our side was present, and the rules were adopted
unanimously. Am I correct ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. That is correct. The rules were adopted unani-
mously. Counsel representing the committee, every spectrum of the

committee, both the impeachment staff and the regular staff were
present and participated in all the deliberations, and to the final ver-

sion there is no dissent other than I would say the gentleman from
California, Mr. Danielson, on my side had a serious question. Wliether
he still raises it or not is his prerogative, but there was no dissent to

the rules as finally adopted. And I think they represent, quite candidly,

a position the full committee can adopt.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, reserving the right to object?

The Chairsian. The gentleman is recognized.

Mr. Dennis. This matter of procedures is probably as important
in its way as anything we are going to do. Felix Frankfurter said one
time in an opinion, if I remember, that the history of American liberty

was largely the history of procedure. I do not have any desire to delay

the proceedings of this committee. None. But, I do have ideas on this

subject. I do think it is important. I may want to offer some proposals

of my own. I may want to offer some amendments to the rules proposed
by the subcommittee, and I have had them on my desk now since about

5 o'clock or something like that this afternoon, and no chance to look

at them and we are going to be down here now in a night session

tonight. I do not know how late. I do not think it is reasonable to go
back to the office when we adjourn here around midnight and start

getting ready for a rules session tomorrow, and drafting amendments
and what have vou if we want to. And so I do not think we are under



405

quite that much of a pressure. If we want to go to Friday, I will meet,

but, I am certainly going to be constrained to object, and I will object

to a meeting tomorrow. I do object.

The Chairman. Objection is heard.

Mr. Rangel. Move.
Mr. Kastenmecer. Is it, Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. Under the rules, imder the rules of the committee,

a two-tliirds vote would be required to schedule the meeting without
having given a 24-hour notice.

Mr. Kastexmeier. Well, Mr, Chairman, I am constrained, not-

withstanding the appropriate concern of the gentleman from Indiana
to offer amendments as he may tomorrow and, indeed, if we even are

able to conclude tomorrow, no one can say with any certainty that the
proceedings which we embark upon to dispose of this question, can
be concluded tomorrow morning. I do not know that it can. But, I

would only say it is in the interest of the committee as a totality that
we move as expeditiously as possible, and that I can only say to the
gentleman from Indiana he will have occasion to oiler his amend-
ments. He will have occasion for them to be considered. All I shall do,

if my request is granted, or should a motion be agreed to by this com-
mittee, is offer on tomorrow what the subcommittee has already
agreed to. I know the gentleman understands that it is hoped for that
next week we will already embark upon the enterprise that the coun-
try insists that we urgently do; namely, to go into the statement of
fact and start the evidentiary proceedings, and that unless we are
prepared to do this in advance by having procedures to accommodate
that, we would not be able to proceed as expeditiously as the country
and we here on the committee
Mr. Dennis. Would my friend from Wisconsin yield?
Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Of course I yield. I yield first to the gentleman
from Indiana.
Mr. Dennis. I appreciate the gentleman yielding. The gentleman

knows and the committee knows I am one of the members of this

committee who has been insisting for a number of weeks, and quite
vigorously that we should have business meetings and resolve some
of the very questions to which the gentleman's subcommittee has now
addressed itself and in my judgment, we might well have done that.

Now, I can not really see why, not having done that, we now have
to do it overnight, draw your amendments, if any at midnight, when
we are through here. Now, it just does not really appear reasonable
to me, and that is the reason I am going to object. As I say, we can
still get in before next week. There is Friday there, and I am willing
to go along with that. But, I will object to tomorrow because I just

do not think it is fair or reasonable, although I have the very highest
respect for my friend from Wisconsin. But, I think you appreciate my
position.

Mr. McClort. Will the gentleman from Wisconsin yield ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I will yield to the gentleman from Illinois, but I
would like to comment only briefly. Of course, it would be very nice if

we had had a great deal of time in advance of any obligation, pro-
cedural obligation we would embark upon to consider matters. But,
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very often—but, it is I think the case that we could not have materially
considered the rules, procedures that we considered yesterday and
today 30 da>s ago or some other time in a vacuum. We had literally to be
confronted with what is known as of today and yesterday and the day
before and was not known a month ago. In this sense, we are embarked
upon an unprecedented course, and we have to respond to this on the

short-term basis and I think it is unfortunate that we were not noticed

for tomorrow morning in advance. But, I would hope that so being
vulnerable, it would not have subjected us to the situation where we
have to further delay sometliing which is very important for this com-
mittee and for the country.
Mr. McClory. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I yield to the gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. McClory. I certainl}' do not want anybody to be deprived of a

thorough review of the rules not the opportunity to offer amendments
to the rules. And I might say that I intend to offer an amendment to

the rules that are being proposed by your subcommittee.
However, I think it is extremely important that we act promptly on

these, and that we have the rules of procedures adopted, if possible,

tomorrow, and if not by Friday, so that we can proceed next week with
the receipt of the initial presentation, and hopefully the receipt of
evidence by this committee. And it seems to me that it is in the interest

of an expeditious resolution of this entire impeachment inquiry that
we waive the rule, waive the rule on notice at this time, that we do
conduct the meeting on adoption of the rules tomorrow morning.
And I cert4iinly hope that a large percentage of the members on the
minority side will support the motion so that we can meet tomorrow
mornincr on the rules.

Mr. Kastenmeier. I appreciate and accept the gentleman's state-

ment.
Mr. HuTCHiNsox. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I vield to the gentleman from Michigan.
Mr. Hutchinson. If the rules are suspended so that we can meet

tomorrow, and we adopt the rules of procedure at that meeting tomor-
row, are we assured that the evidentiary hearing, proceedings will

commence on the 7th of Mav ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I yield to the chairman.
Mr. Hutchinson. Can the chairman state when they will commence ?

The Chairman. I can assure the gentleman only that they will

commence next week. I am highly doubtful that we can commence on
the 7th of May. But, I will assure the gentlemen that tlip initial pres-

entation of the evidentiarv material will begin next week.
Mr. Hutchinson. Would it then be—is it then so essential that the

matter be disposed of tomorrow? Could it as well be disposed of on
Mondav ?

Mr. Kastenivieier. The rules, amonfj other things, I would say to

the gentleman from Michigan, state times during which members of
this committee will have access to evidentiary material and other
matters which, if not determined in advance, at least some davs in

advance of the hearing on the presentation of statement of facts,

there will be a totally unknown quantity existent. It is, I think, in

the interest of this committee, that these matters be resolved and put
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to rest some days in advance, not only for the purpose of administra-

tion in terms of the staff, but so that we ourselves and the country at

large know what the rights of the witnesses are and the members of

this committee are with respect to the evidence. I do not think that

matter ought to extend into next week for a resolution.

I move, Mr. Chairman, that this committee suspend the rules and
announce a hearing, a meeting for tomorrow mornnig at 10 :oO for the

purpose of considering rules of procedure as reported from the Sub-
committee on Courts, Civil Liberties, and the Administration of

Justice.

Mr. Dexnis. The gentleman
The Chairman. The motion has been seconded and the question is

on the motion of the gentleman from Wisconsin for suspension of the

rules and a two-thirds vote of those members present is required in

order to suspend the rules.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I move for a rollcall.

The Chairman. A call of the roll is demanded and the clerk will

call the role.

All those in favor please say aye, and all those opposed no.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. DoNOHUE. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoNTERs. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
]\rs. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Tliomton.
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Mr. Thornton. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. "Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. Lott. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. Maraziti. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Chairman, 32 members have voted aye, 5 members

have voted no.

The Chairman. Two-thirds of the members having voted in the

affirmative, the rules accordingly are suspended and the meeting on
adopting the rules of procedure will be scheduled for tomorrow morn-
ing at 10 : 30. It will also be in order at that time that motions re-

garding procedures, including the motion previously offered last week
by our friend, Mr, Wiggins, will be in order, although, as I did ad-

vise the gentleman, that motion, in liglit of the response, that we are

considering tonight is rather moot.
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I would also like to state that in scheduling this meeting I recognize

that we had a Democratic caucus this morning and a busy legislative

schedule for this afternoon, and I also had hoped that the members
would have been sufficiently informed by the transcripts that they
had received from the Wliite House, as long as in advance of this

meeting as possible, so that they might understand the nature of the
transcripts and understand as well the nature and the substance
and justification of our initial request for materials from the President
which are in the hands of the members and have been in the hands of
the members.

Tonight, however, the committee concerns itself with the matter on
the agenda, the response of the President to our April 11 subpena.
And for the purpose of advising the committee precisely on the ma-
terial furnished, I am going to recognize Mr. Doar, and I will not
recognize any member until Mr. Doar has completed his presenta-

tion, since I think that this is extremely important to an understand-
ing of what position we are in.

Mr. Doar, will you please proceed.

Mr. Doar. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, before begin-
ning, Mr. Jenner asked me to express his apology to the committee.
He has scheduled many months ago a speaking engagement in Detroit,

Mich., and he was not able to cancel or change that engagement because
of tonight's meeting. Mr. Garrison is here with me on behalf of the
inquiry staff as the senior minority counsel.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, on April 11, 1974,
this committee authorized and issued a subpena which was served
on that day on Richard M, Nixon, President of the United States,

to be and appear before the Committee on the Judiciary, and to bring
with him the things specified in the schedule attached hereto and
made a part hereof.

On or before April 25, 1974, at the hour of 10 o'clock, this com-
mittee extended the time to answer this subpena to the President of
the United States to April 30, 1974, at 10 o'clock. The President, pur-
suant to this subpena was commanded to then and there produce and
deliver said things to said committee or the duly authorized representa-

tives in connection with the committee's investigation authorized and
directed by House Resolution 803, adopted February 6, 1974. Attached
to the subpena was a schedule of things required to be produced pur-
suant to the subpena dated April 11, 1974. The subpena was very
specific. The subpena required the President of the United States to

produce all tapes, dictabelts or other electronic recordings, transcripts,

memorandums, notes or other writing or things relating to the follow-
ing conversations and then there were listed between February 20,

approximately on April 18, 42 conversations between the President of
the United States and certain of his key administration officials.

Prior to the submission of this subpena, service of this subpena,
counsel for the committee has explained to Mr. St. Clair, counsel for
the President, the relevancy and the materiality of the conversations
requested.

On April 30, 1974, at 9 :30 a.m., approximately, I received from Mr.
St. Clair certain, documents in response to the subpena. Although all

of the members of the committee have received. Chairman Rodino's
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request. Mr. St. Clair's response, his official response to the subpena, I

would like to read the letter now. It is from the White House and it is

dated April 30, 197-1, And it reads

:

Dear Mr. Doar

:

At the direction of the President, I am forwarding lierewith his submission of

recorded presidential conversations to tlie Committee on the Judiciary of the
House of Representatives by President Richard Nixon.

Sincerely yours,
James D. St. Clair, special counsel to the President.

Attached to this letter was a 50-page document entitled "Submission
of Recorded Conversations to the Committee on the Judicially of the

House of Representatives by President Richard Nixon," dated
April 30. On page 3 President Nixon explained that this 50-page
docimient was being submitted in order that the material submitted in

this response to the committee's subpena can be viewed in the context of
the events surrounding the Watergate incident and thereafter, the fol-

lowing summary is provided. At the end of the 50-page summary is

an appendix consisting of the items which were submitted, a reference

or an index of the items submitted to the committee. And I have before

me, members of the committee, in these three folders as part of the

official response, the appendix to the submission.

This morning, at Chairman Rodino's request, I circulated to the com-
mittee the appendix that was attached to the official submission so that

all members would have the opportunity to see what was furnished,

what materials were furnished to the committee by the President of
the United States. Members of the committee, this appendix is a dif-

ferent appendix than the appendix that was attached to your submis-
sion, to the submission that was furnished to you, and each member of
the committee received the same documents, but in addition, received

certain additional transcripts of recorded conversations between the

President and John Dean. As a matter of fact, seven recorded con-

versations which the committee staff had received earlier from the

VvHiite House. I just want to emphasize that the official appendix
to the submission is the one that you received this morning and it

is different from the appendix which you received. The significant

part, the difference is that there is a brief explanation in the right-

hand column of this appendix explaining that some of the materials

which had been requested had not been supplied. And if the com-
mittee would permit me, I have, or rather the inquiry staff have,
prepared a chart that will illustrate what materials were asked for and
what materials were submitted. And if I could bring that into the com-
mittee room, I think it would make the presentation clearer and if I

just could describe it verbally.

The Chairman. You may proceed accordingly.
Mr. Doar, might I ask if that chart which you are going to present,

does that reflect the charts which are at the members' desks?
Mr. Doar. I have not seen the chart at the members' desk. Is there

a chart ?

No. it does not. It just is a chart, it is a large chart that I would hope
that I could explain to the committee what material was furnished,
but it does key to this appendix that is at the members' desk.

The Chairman. I understand.
Mr. Doar. I wonder if all members can see this chart?
The Chairman. Why don't you get it further over this way ?
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Mr. DoAR. Briefly, members of the committee, at the bottom of the
chart are nmnbers, 1 through 52, which key to the appendix to the
response of the President of the United States. On the left-hand
colunui here are the materials which were specifically requested by
tlie committee in its subpena which was served on April 11, and at
the top of the chart are dates indicating the dates of the conversa-
tions running from February 20 over here, a number of conversations
on April 15, and a number oi conversations on April 16, and the num-
ber of conversations on April 17, and then conversations between other
officials and the President on April 15. I believe these are Mr. Peter-
sen and—or Mr. Kleindienst and then rumiing finally to conversations
on April 30.

Now, I want to call the committee's attention that the committee
only required the President to produce 42 items in the subpena and
there are 52 items that we have listed here.
Now, with respect to the response to the subpena, the first item that

the conunittee asked to be produced were certain tapes and dictabelts,
42 tapes and dictabelts were asked to be produced, and none were de-
livered by the President to the committee.
The next, skipping over transcripts for a minute, the next item was

that of Presidential notes of conversations.
The Chairmax. Just a moment, Mr. Doar.
Mr. Wiggins. I realize, I realize you said no questions, but I cannot

understand without asking the question, Mr. Doar.
Mr. CoNYERs. No questions.
Mr. Brooks. Eegular order.
Mr. Seiberlixg. Regular order.
Mr. CoxYERS. No questions.
Mr. Rangel. No questions.
The Chairman. Is this directed to getting a better understanding

of the presentation ?

Mr. Wiggins. Entirely. It is not argumentative at all.
The Chairman. The gentlem.an may ask the question.
Mr. Wiggins. My only question, Mr. Doar, is this, and tliat is in

each of the 42 cases, has the committee established that an electronic
recording exists, and in each of the number of cases, has the committee
established that tapes and dictabelts—I have trouble reading it—but,
do Presidential notes for example, exist in all of the cases across the
wa\'

Mr. Doar. We do not have any information with respect to whether
or not they do exist. But, we do have indications that President Nixon
has stated that he maintained such dictabelts and notes of certain
meetings and conversations. And on November 12, 1973, in a Presi-
dential statement, he said

:

Since I have been in Office, I have maintained a personal diary file which
consists of notes which I have personally taken during meetings and of dictation
belts on which I record recollections. The dictation belts and notes are placed inmy personal diary file by my secretary.

Now, in respon.se to the subpena that was issued by Judo-e Sirica
last summer m which nine Watergate tapes were respondecl to and
where Presidential notes or dictabelts were asked to be furnished on
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two of the conversations there were Presidential dictabelts furnished.
One was on June 20, 1972, and the other on June 30, 1972.

The President has also stated that he said to Mr. Petersen on about
April 18 that he had a tape of a conversation with Mr. Dean on April 15.

I have seen a letter from Mr. Buzhardt to Mr. Cox, the Special Prose-
cutor, which states that when the President spoke of that tape, he, in

fact, was speaking of a dictabelt that he had made, or a recording that
he had made after the conversation, so that while we do not have evi-

dence of what material existed, we did not receive any information
from Mr. St. Clair that any of these did not exist.

Mr. Wiggins. All right. Thank you, very much.
Mr. DoAE. The same is true of other notes and other memorandums.
Now, Mr. Ehrlichman has testified that he took, on many occasions

when he met with the President, verbatim notes of the conversations.

Ehrliclmian stated : "I say substantially verbatim notes of my con-
versations with the President." And as I say, when the White House,
when the President responded to the subpena issued by Judge Sirica

with respect to three conversations with Mr. Haldeman, the President
produced notes of conversations with Mr. Haldeman of which there
was a tape recording as well, and then there were notes. Pardon me.
There were four instances of conversations with Mr. Haldeman where
there were Presidential notes produced in response to the subpena.

In response to the subpena of this committee, no notes were furnished
to the committee, no Presidential notes of any of his key officials nor
any memorandum dictated by any member of the meeting contempo-
raneous with or after one of tlie recorded conversations.

Now, there was furnished to the committee some, but not all of the
conversations, transcripts. The reason why the line is wavy here, rather
than up to the full—well, line here, bar line across, is that in a graphic
form it seemed to me to be a fair way to indicate to the committee that
these were partial and/or edited transcripts, and that they were not
complete, full transcripts.

There is no denial about this. There was not anything indirect about
the fact that the President advised the committee directly that he was
submitting edited versions of the transcripts, making judgments with
respect to relevancy and making judgments with respect to certain

statements that might be offensive and which did not offend the sense

of the conversation.
Now, over here on the very left, or my very right of the chart are

eight conversations colored in dark and then a light brown, or a light

red and a dark red. Now, these conversations were submitted in order,

according to the President's response, so that the committee would
have a full picture of all of the Watergate and the aftennath in order
for it to make its decision with respect to the matters pending before
it, with respect to the incident known as the Watergate matter. Now,
paragraplis in our letter of April 19, we requested 75 additional items.
Now, these 75 additional items ran back in time, principally back to the
day that the Watergate break-in took place, which, if you had a chart
would be over here somewhere, about, well, over 8 months before. And
the only 3 of the 75, or maybe it was 79 recorded conversations that
were submitted, were these 3 in the last days of April 1973? These
convereations that are in dark red were transcripts, or press statements,
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or partial press statements by White House officials that the President
felt were relevant to the committee's consideration.

That briefly indicates the extent of the response to the committee of
its subpena on April 11, 1974. Mr. Chairman, perhaps I could stop
there and see if there are any questions.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar, I notice that there are tapes and dicta-

belts that are described, and I would like to know whether or not the

subpena which we issued specifically called, and I know that members
may not recollect, but there was a description of the materials that
were requested in the appendix or the attachment to the subpena. Did
the subpena call for materials other than tapes and transcripts, and
were they produced at all ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, the only thing that was produced, Mr. Chairman,
were partial transcripts that are in these three folders right hei'e on
the table.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, may I ask a question ^

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Did the staff submit a detailed justification for each

request for a Presidential conversation ?

Mr. DoAR. We did. We presented that to the committee before the

subpena was issued.

Mr. Brooks, Well, has the counsel for the President requested any
further elaboration as to why a particular conversation was being re-

quested ; and if so, were such elaborations supplied ?

Mr. DoAR. No request was made for any further elaboration.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Doar, I will recognize each member who wants
to be recognized for the purpose of asking questions since I think it is

important to this proceeding that questions be asked.

Mr. Doar, what troubles me is that the President did, in his television

telecast, did propose that in the event that these transcripts were not
sufficient, that Mr. Hutchinson and I would have an opportunity to go
to the White House, to listen to the original tapes. You and your staff

have been at work on this investigation and have had to deal with tapes
and recordings, and I would like to ask your professional opinion, and
I know that you have some people on your staff who are professionally
expert in supplying the answers, is it prudent for me and Mr. Hutchin-
son to make a determination of relevancy with respect to portions of
tape recordings, not already transcribed ?

Mr. Doar. It is not prudent for you to do so.

The Chairman. Will you explain why ?

Mr. Doar. Well, the problem of listening, taking a transcript, and
if you take a transcript and just take any substantial transcript like

this of a conversation on April 14, 1973, and it may be 50 pages long,
it may be 20 pages long, it may be 1 page, but they are varying
lengths and, therefore, in these transcripts there are indications of
omissions and there are also indications of where the conversation was
unintelligible and, of course, there is a statement—I can't tell you
how many times—"material unrelated to Presidential action de-
leted," and, therefore, you would have to take each one of these, Mr.
Chairman, and go down to the White House, and listen to it, to each
tape and go through it, and come to the portion deleted, and review
each one of these tapes carefully and thoroughly before you could

41-018—75—pt. 1 27
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mako a judgment about the accuracy of the tape or the relevancy of
the omissions.

But, we have found that, quite candidly, these transcripts are not
accurate.

Now, I hasten to say, when I say they are not accurate, that I am
not suggesting any intentional distortion. Not at all. I want to make
that very clear. I am not suggesting any intentional distortion. What
I am saying is that the amount of time and effort that you put into
listening to one of these tapes is, that you can improve the tran-
script, the quality and the fullness of the transcript substantially by
the type of equipment that you have and the patience and the energy
that you have in listening to the recording.

The Chairman. Well, you say that we can improve. Has it been
your experience with your professional staff that, as a matter of fact,

that has occurred in your investigation of the tapes and in your
examination of the tapes ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes; we have done that in two ways. No. 1 is through
the equipment that we have over in the Congressional Office Build-
ing. We have been able to get better quality of recordings than you
get from the machinery that is down at the White House. This is

through filtering and changing of things that are too complicated
for me to explain. But, we do get a better quality, audible sound out
of our equipment.
No. 2 is that we have found that we can make better recordings with

our equipment, and that we could filter out noise, and that we can,
therefore, pick up parts of the conversation that were marked mi-
intelligible on the WTiite House transcript.

I would strongly recommend to the members of the committee that
they keep that in mind in reading these transcripts, not because there
would b© any intentional distortion, but because our transcripts of the
conversations that we received, not in response to the subpena, but of
the transcripts that you received as certain additional conversations be-

tween the President and John Dean, our transcripts are fuller and more
complete.

Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Thank you, Mr, Chairman.
I might say, Mr. Chairman, that I would have hoped that the Presi-

dent had included in his response the inclusion of our chief minority
counsel and our chief counsel and chief minority counsel among those
to screen or to review the tapes as to their accuracy and completeness
and I also realize that we do have sophisticated equipment in our com-
mittee staff headquarters which would be very useful.

However, I would like to ask some questions, Mr. Doar. One things
the tapes which we have already received, edition, we have received
some tapes

Mr. DoAR. Yes ; we have.
Mr. McClory. And it is proposed, is it not, in presenting evidence

to this committee, and at least initially, to present it in the form of
transcripts which you and other members of the staff will prepare for
the benefit of the committee ?
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Mr. DoAR. No ; it would be proposed, Congressman McClory, that

the committee give us permission to equip the room so that the mem-
bers of the committee could listen to the transcripts as well as follow

it along with respect to some of the conversations. We think that there

is a very significant difference between listening to a conversation and
reading a transcript. All of us who are trial lawyers know the differ-

ence in the live courtroom experience and reading a brief on appeal.

And it is substantially that. There is a substantial difference.

Mr. McClory. In the presentation of evidence to the committee, is

it proposed to play the tape before the full committee or to have us
use earphones or what ?

Mr. DoAR. To have you use earphones and play the tape before the

full committee.
The Chairman. Would the gentleman yield so that I may enlighten

him?
Mr. McClort. Before the full committee ?

Mr. Doar. Yes.
The Chairman. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. McClory. Sure.
The Chairman. I would like to state, since the gentleman has already

asked a question, which I think is very pertinent, I have instructed
Mr. Doar to equip the room properly so that recorded conversations
may be heard by each of the members. And Mr. Doar is going to pro-
ceed, and this is one of the reasons too that it is going to take some
time. This room will be equipped accordingly.
Mr. McClory. So that with respect to the tapes we have already

received, it is proposed, too, that we will listen to those tapes ?

Mr. Doar. That is right. We would not, we would not ask the
committee to listen to every word of every tape, because we would
only pick out those portions that we felt were relevant. But, of course,
once the evidentiary presentation starts, all of the tapes would be
available for any committee member to listen to over in our office.

Mr. McClory. Now, with respect to the matters that are omitted
in the transcript, from the tape to the transcript, you are not suggest-
ing, are you, that Mr. Kodino and Mr. Hutchinson would not be
capable of determining the relevancy or the irrelevancy of the omitted
material ?

Mr. Doar. Well, with all due respect, I am suggesting that. I do
not think that
Mr. McClory. Do you think counsel is better
The Chairman. I am not offended.
Mr. McClory. Do you think that you and Mr. Jenner are better

able to determine the relevancy than the chairman and the ranking
member ?

Mr. Doar. Well, I think any lawyer that knows the case, and knows
all of the facts, is better able to make a judgment as to whether or not
a particular conversation—some of these are very—could be very
close matters of relevancy.
Mr. McClory. Well, they can do a better
Mr. Doar. If I could just say to members of the committee that we,

the transcripts that we received, that you received from the White
House with respect to some of the John Dean conversations, there
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lias been a judgment about relevancy made, so some of the conversa-

tion is not in your transcript, but it is in the transcript that the White
House furnished to us about 2 months ago. Now, that meant that

there was a judgment made on relevancy;.

Mr. McClory. Well, you can so advise them about that, and they

could still do a pretty good job, could they not?
Mr. DoAR. Well, no. You mean advise them
Mr. McClory. Advise them about the discrepancies in the tapes

that you have already received and the transcripts that you have
already seen? You could advise them about that without depriving
them of the right to listen to them ?

Mr. DoAR. Under the procedure I do not think it would be possible

for me to brief Congressman Rodino, Chairman Rodino, and Congress-
man Hutchinson as to what they might try to listen to.

Mr. McClory. Would your opinion be different if they improved the

quality of the equipment at the White House for screening and listen-

ing to these tapes ? What if they got as good equipment as we had at

the staff headquarters? Then that would not be a valid argimient,

then, would it?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I think, without again—I do not want to be in

the position of seeming to disagree with the Congressman from
Illinois, but I really, respectfully say that in evaluating relevancy
on matters in connection with these conversations that it really is, it

is critical, and I really do not think that it would be possible to really

advise on that.

Mr. McClory. May I ask one more question ?

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired and we are
going to get on with other members.
Let me state that I have given a great deal of time to listening to

tapes, to reading transcripts, and I must confess that despite the fact

that I have been eager in pursuit of this responsibility, and have given
it as much time as I possibly can, that it would be absolutely impos-
sible for me to adequately and properly and fully discharge the
responsibility that I have to the committee, to visit, as to what I have
heard, to be able to authenticate and to be able to verify without
having the opportunity to have counsel and technical experts in sup-
port of what I might say.

Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Doar, did I imderstand you to say that on the

March 21 transcript that the President provided us, the deletions or
the illegibles, and the inaudibles in some instances we have deciphered
on our own equipment ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, yes. I did say that.

Mr. Waldie. Is that a rare thing, or is that a fairly common thing ?

Mr. Doar. Well, it is—there is, there is an improvement in the full-

ness of the recording.

Mr. Waldie. Then may I direct a question to the Chair? Mr. Chair-
man, it would seem to me that the purpose of confidentiality was to

respond to what Mr. St. Clair had represented was the President's
concern that this committee could not keep these things confidential.

It is quite apparent tliat the President is no longer concerned about
these materials being kept confidential, and if we have a better
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transcript of that recording than the President provided us, where the

unintelligibles and the inaudibles, in fact, were transcribed, we surely

should have that, and I would ask the chairman if the transcript of

that nature could be provided each member of the conmiittee?

Mr. Cohen. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. Is the gentleman putting a question to me regard-
ing the providing of those transcripts that are not contained in the

transcripts that were provided by the White House?
Mr. Waidie. Yes, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Well, I believe that we are governed by the rules

of confidentiality at this time, and until the committee decides other-

wise, I do expect to comply with those rules.

Mr. Waldie. Well, Mr. Chairman, maybe I did not make myself
clear. Just let me limit it at this moment to the March 21 conversation
of Mr. Dean and the President as to which confidentiality obviously
no longer applies. The President has breached confidentiality. May
we in the committee now have the transcript that our committee has
prepared ?

The Chairman. I believe

Mr. Waldie. With the unintelligibles and the inaudibles now clari-

fied?

The Chairman. I believe the committee should be provided with
those, and it is the intention of the Chair, at least, to provide the

committee members with those transcripts, which I believe the staff

is already considering doing.
Mr. Waldie. May I ask one further question of Mr. Doar? I did

not hear you relate to that chart where the missing tapes or transcripts

were to be placed ? Are those the white portions ?

Mr. DoAR. Congressman Waldie, there are the white lines, and in

the transcripts bar here, the second bar, the first two, and then No. 14.

Mr. Waldie. When you describe the numbers, will you describe the
reason that was assigned to their absence by the White House?
Mr. DoAR. Well, item lA, or item 1 here, was a conversation that

occurred between the President and Mr. Haldeman on or about Feb-
ruary 20. The transcript, the appendix, indicates that a search of
the tapes failed to disclose such a conversation. That is all the explana-
tion there is.

With respect to the second one, it is a conversation between the
President and Mr. Ehrlichman assigning Mr. Dean to work with the
President on Watergate. That is on Fel^ruary 27. Again a search of
the tapes failed to disclose such conversation.

Item 14 here, and item 17, or 16 and 17, were conversations that
occurred in the executive office building after 2 :22 p.m. on April 15,

and according to the appendix, the tape ran out during a meeting with
Mr. Kleindienst and nothing further was recorded in the executive
office building office of the President on that day.
And then the other explanations were that the calls were made from

a resident telephone and so the conversation was not recorded. One
was 12:08 to 12 :23 a.m. on the 16th. No. 18 was the one on April 16,
early in the morning, 8:18 to 8:22. And I believe one on April 16
between the President from 9 :27 to 9 :49, a call made from a residence
to the White House and then a short call from 10:13 to 10:15 on
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April 13, a telephone conversation between the President and Mr.
Kleindienst. And then on item No. 42, which is telephone conversa-
tion, the conversations were not recorded, because the conversation
was at Camp David.
The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I am not going to use all of my time.

But, I can see, what I am afraid I can see is the press coming up
afterwards and taking pictures of this chart, which looks like there are
a series of omissions, and yet, in response, Mr. Doar, to Mr. Wiggins'
question, I think we ought to make it crystal clear that we do not know
whether there was memoranda or notes or Presidential notes, or dicta-

belts, or electronic recordings on all of those days that are left blank.
Is that right?
Mr. DoAR. Well, we know only—we certainly do not know with re-

spect to the President's notes, other notes or memoranda.
Mr. Railsback. But I mean, leaving those things blank, I can see

pictures of that reproduced which make it look like he has complied
with, you know, and I am not satisfied, and I want to make it clear,

that I am not satisfied completely with his response, but I think that
could be misrepresentative.
Mr. Doar. I think that is fair, and I would have no intention to mis-

represent that. I would say that if you look—I would say that if you
took this part of the chart from this point up, that it is fair to show
that there is no tapes. The tapes were not furnished and, of course,
on these conversations you would have to have tapes to get the tran-
scripts.

Mr. Railsback. Yes. But, in respect to the dictabelts, for instance,
we are not even sure there were dictabelts on all of those days, are we ?

Mr. Doar. Not at all. I only tell you what I know with respect to
the habits of the President, and with respect to the fact that dictabelts
were furnished on the 20th and the 30th of June.
And there is testimony and statements that there was a dictabelt

made on the 15th of April.
Mr. Railsback. I will yield to the gentleman from Maine.
Mr. CoTiEN. I thank the gentleman for yielding.
Mr. Doar, just a couple of questions that I have on the tapes. Is it

my imderstanding, is it correct, that we have in our possession a tape
from March 21 ?

Mr. Doar. Yes, we do.

Mr. CoiiEisr. And do you have transcripts furnished by the White
House to the committee ?

Mr. Doar. Yes.
Mr. Cohen. Am I correct that you have two separate transcripts

from the "White House as to that date ?

Mr. Doar. Yes, we do.

Mr. Cohen. And am I further correct that there is a difference be-
tween both of those transcripts ?

Mr. Doar. I cannot represent that, because I have not examined that
transcript that closely.

Mr. Cohen. Do we have a third one from the Special Prosecutor's
office?

Mr. Doar. We have one from the Special Prosecutor's office.
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Mr. Cohen. Do you know whether that is consistent with the other

two?
Mr. DoAR. No. Tliat is an improvement on the other two.

Mr. Cohen. And then we have one of our own ?

Mr. DoAR. And that is an improvement on the other three.

Mr. Cohen. But one other point I would like to make on this. Am I

correct also that in the material that has been furnished to us, the

transcripts, that there are portions of that transcript where there are

words missing without any notation in the transcript of words having
been deleted for reasons such as being inaudible, or expletives, but
have been picked up on the recordings that we have on our equipment
and added to the transcripts that will be furnished to us ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Cohen. And I assume the reason for this is because of our
superior equipment ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, and our superior diligence in listening to the tapes.

Mr. Cohen. Thank you.

The Chairman. ]Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I hope my voice will

hold up. I will just ask one question. Did Mr. St. Clair or the President
make any explanation as to why the President was not supplying any
items other than the transcripts ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I believe that in the submission that was enclosed
it does make an explanation of supplying the transcripts, the edited

transcripts and not the recordings, but there is no explanation with
respect to Presidential notes, other notes, or memoranda.

]Mr. Seiberling. So that he has not said that there are no notes, or
memoranda, but has merely done nothing in response to that portion
of the subpena ; is that correct ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Seiberling. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Dennis. ]Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Seiberling. I yield to the gentleman from
The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Thank you, IMr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, If I understood you in answer to Mr. Wiggins and Mr.

Railsback, you have already told us that with respect to the items
on your chart, the President notes, other notes and memoranda, that
as to those three items you do not, in fact, have any personal knowledge
whether any Presidential notes, other notes, or memoranda dealing
with the matters in the subpona exist ; is that correct ?

Mr. Doar. No, I do not have any pereonal knowledge. I think
Mr. Dennis. And, therefore, even though your chart under those

three headings is white, or blank, so far as your personal knowledge
goes, there may have been 100 percent compliance with the subpena as

to those three headings, is that not true ?

Mr. Doar. That is possible.

ISIr. Dennis. And as to the matter of dictabelts and electronic re-

cordings, how many of them, to your personal knowledge, exists deal-

ing with the matters called for in the subpena ?

Mr. Doar. I do not know that.
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Mr. Dennis. So that while that line two is white or blank, again
there may have been 100 percent compliance, as far as you personally
know, under that heading ; is that right ?

Mr. DoAR. That is on this heading here ?

Mr. Dennis. No. I said tapes, dictabelts, and electronic recordings.
How many of them exist as to the items called for in the subpena, to

your pei-sonal knowledge ?

Mr. DoAR, Well, there are tapes and dictabelts for all of the dates on
which there is a yello,; portion in the second line.

Mr. Dennis. You are sure that there was a dictabelt for each tape;
is that correct?
Mr. DoAR. Oh, no. A tape. I am not referring to dictabelts.

Mr. Dennis. Well, I say there would be a tape, yes, right. Of course
there would be a tape. That is where the transcript comes from.
Now, what I am asking you, do you know anything about dictabelts

as respects the matters called for in the subpena ?

Mr. DoAR. I only know that the President has stated that he
had a
The Chairman. Mr. Doar. Will you kindly speak up ?

Mr. DoAR. I only know that the President has stated that there was
a tape of a conversation with John Dean on the 15th of April.
Mr. Dennis. All right.

Mr. DoAR. And there was a letter from Mr, Buzhardt in which he
said that the President was speaking of a dictabelt, of a recording dic-

tated later, not a tape.

Mr. Dennis. Well
Mr. DoAR. That is all of the knowledge I have.
Mr. Dennis. All right now. Is the 15th of April dictabelt the only

one that you know of which bears on, is relating to the mattei-s called

for in our subpena ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. I think so, and I would also like to add, Mr. Dennis,
that I know that the Special Prosecutor made an effort to get that, and
I think, I believe, that they were not able to find that dictabelt.

Mr. Dennis, All right. If you follow then, in your first line up there,

dictabelts, the same procedure that you have used in transcripts, so
far as you know it would l^e 100 percent compliance except for the
dictabelt of April 15?

Is that not true ?

Mr. DoAR. That is true and I cannot represent that with respect to
the 15th of April.
Mr. Dennis. Well, let me ask you a question. The chairman asked

you a minute ago if it was true that you did not do certain things.
Do you think it is fair to bring that chart, which on the transcript line

is white, where there are no transcripts, and filled in where there are
transcripts, and then on all of the other lines they're apparently white
and vacant, and yet you have no personal knowledge as to whether the
items exist?

Mr. Doar, Yes : I do think it is fair. I think
Mr. Dennis. Well, I do not.

Mr. Doar. Could I explain myself ?

Mr. Dennis. Of course, you can explain yourself. But, it seems to
me before you do it that you ought to treat them the same, because
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you give the impression here that out of five lines only one has been
complied with and yet you have just told me that the other four may
have been 100 percent complied with, with the exception of some dicta-

belt on April 15, as far as you know, and yet you show them as if blank
on your chart. And that is why I do not think it is fair. Now, you tell

me why it is.

Mr. DoAR. Well, Congressman Dennis, the issue is in this presenta-

tion what did the President furnish to the committee in compliance
with its lawful subpena. A subpena under our system of law is a
process whicli commands, which orders, the low and the high to obey
an order of duly constituted authority. In this case and in every case

in this country, there are no exceptions to the conmiand of the law.

It would have been a very easy thing, it was in the President's knowl-
edge to advise tliis committee that there were no dictabelts.

Mr. Dennis. May I interrupt you right there, Mr. Doar?
[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. If the gentleman will pardon, Mr. Doar is answer-
ing the question which the gentleman asked him. Now, let him com-
plete his answer.
Mr. Doar. Well, I will complete it briefly. I do not want any im-

pression left with any citizen of this country through any picture of
this chart that there is any suggestion that the White House is full of
notes and memorandums of transcripts. But I do think it is fair, Con-
gressman Dennis, to say that in response to a lawful subpena, the Pres-

ident did not indicate one way or the other that there were no materials
of the kind tliis committee commanded him to deliver on April 30, at

10 o'clock.

Mr. Dennis. All right. Now, may I ask you this

The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired.

Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Dennis. Well, Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired. I have given

the gentleman 5 minutes.
Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. FiX)WERS- Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Hungate. Am I recognized ?

The Chairman. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I guess I am as con-

cerned as anybody else about the forum that was chosen by the Presi-
dent for the presentation of the transcripts. Let me ask you tliis, Mr.
Doar, prefacing m^ remarks by saying this, I think that the com-
mittee staff has maintained scrupulous confidentiality in this entire
matter. I think that stands loud and stands tall, and speaks loud for
this entire committee and this entire process. And I thank you and
the staff for doing that. It will speak well of this committee for a long
time to come.
Now, having said that, let me ask this question. Had the President

complied with our subpena, that is, had they supplied the tapes that
were requested, giving reasonable answers for those that could not
be supplied, and the same is true for the dictabelts or notes or what-
ever, what presently would be the status of that subpenaed material ?

Mr. Doar. Well, the subpenaed material would be in the possession
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of the inquiry staff under the rules of confidentiality adopted by this

committee.
Mr. Flowers. And it would not be public knowledge as it is now ?

Mr. DoAR. It would not be public knowledge.
Mr. Flowers. It would not be in the newspaper, or as the audience

has it, the book form, and it would not be in that condition now ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Flowers. It would be under the same rules of confidentiality as
the other material that has come to the committee staff up to this

point?
Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Flowers. The tiling that bothers me then is the fact that the
form that was chosen for this was not the committee which was and
is the legitimate forum for responding to the subpena and I just

wonder what this requires in terms of using the public forum for
further meetings of this committee? I am just thinking out loud,
and I think^ as a minimal prerequisite, Mr. Chairman, I am glad
that you said that you would, when members of this committee
brought up the President's presentation of any facts, that at least

immediately we be furnished with the committee's transcripts of
those tapes that we have that correspond to the transcripts that we
have been furnished by the President's counsel.
And I hope that you, Mr. Chainnan, and your staff, our staff in this

instance, can do that as soon as possible, and not await the presentation
next week.
Thank 3'ou, Mr, Chairman.
Tlie CiTATRMAN-. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, there is a lesson for the committee in

the report which has just been made by Mr. Doar, and the lesson is

this: that we should be more careful lawyers in the future than we
have been in the past to ascertain by discovery techniques which are
available to us, that any material which we subpena, in fact, exists,

and that it is under the possession or control or subject to the disposi-
tion of the President. Once we have that information in hand, and
desire it or believe it would be relevant, then we might subpena it.

We, on the contrary, embarked on a subpena without knowing
whether the material subpenaed, in fact, existed. And I suggest that
that is not a procedure which we should follow in the future. We do
have the power to ask the President under oath with respect to inter-

rogatories as to material in his possession, and if we get an affirmative

answer that it is in his possession, then there is no doubt, there is no
ambiguity, left when he fails to furnish that information pursuant
to a subpena.
The gentleman, our counsel, was advising us as to the law. It is an

accurate statement of the law as well that the person subpenaed is

under no legal duty to provide the issuer of that subpena with an
explanation as to why material which was subpenaed was not fur-

nished. He is merely obliged to meet the command of the subpena. And
it might well be that the President, at least insofar as transcripts are
concerned, met that command, and we are in an awkward position

now, Mr. Doar, of not knowing whether he met our commands or not
with respect to the other matters, because we did not know for sure,
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and do not know for sure, what he had in his possession. I think we
ought to try to avoid that in the future.

Mr. DoAR. Well, we do know about the tapes on the days where we
have transcripts. And we do know that the transcripts are edited and
partial transcripts.

Mr. Wiggins. Well now—well now, do we really know that ? We, in

fact, have been careful students of the newspaper and we have been
reading transcripts from other proceedings but we have not dire<5ted

to the President, so far as I know, any interrogatories finding out from
the President just what tapes are in existence. I think that the Presi-
dent's statement under oath with respect to that question ought to
precede any subpenas of those types.

Mr. DoAR. Well, it has not been my experience that when you issue a
aubpena duces tecum to produce books, records, and documents that it

was necessary to ask the person subpenaed if the documents were in
his possession before you issued the subpena.
Mr. Wiggins. Let me assure the gentleman that that has been my

experience, and when you seek to hold a person in contempt for exam-
ple, for failing to adequately respond to a subpena, you best have
him under oath in advance that he, in fact, has the material, or you are
apt to find that you are out in left field in seeking a contempt citation

in normal civil litigation.

And I cannot agree with the gentleman's assessment of common prac-
tice.

The Chairman. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, in the subpena we sent down there by a 33 to 3 vote, which

was prepared I think in a bipartisan manner, we did request items you
have listed, did we not, tapes, dictabelts, electronic recordings, tran-

scripts, memorandums, notes, or other writings? Those are the terms
of that subpena ?

Mr. DoAR. Those are the terms of the subpena.
Mr. Hungate. Was any response made to the effect that there are no

Presidential notes ?

Mr. Doar. No.
Mr. Hungate. Or that there were no other notes ?

Mr. DoAR. No.
Mr. Hungate. Or that there were no memoranda ?

Mr. Doar. No.
Mr. Hungate. Or that there were no dictabelts? Did they respond

that there were no dictabelts ?

Mr. Doar. No.
Mr. Hungate. So, to the best of your ability, you have listed there

the things that this committee, in a bipartisan way, requested, and
where you received the items you have so indicated and where you
did not receive them, and did not receive a denial of their existence,

you have indicated that you have not had a response to that part of
your subpena. Is that fair ?

Mr. Doar. That is true, with the exception of these blank white
areas marked in here, and in these things there has been an explana-
tion of why the transcripts were not furnished.
Mr. Hungate. In your opening statement, did I perhaps misunder-

stand you as regarding some statement that had been made by the
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President at some time on television as to the existence of notes, liis

notes or diary on these events ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, I did make a statement. I have it here. Just permit
me to see if I can find it. The President said in a statement on Novem-
ber 12, 1973

:

Since I have been in office, I have maintained a personal diary fi'e which con-
sists of notes which I have personally taken during meetings and have dictation
lelts on which I record recollections. The dictation belts and notes are placed in
my personal diary file by my secretar.v.

Mr. HuNGATE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
The Chairman. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. INIr. Doar, the letter of April 30 which you sent to

each of us and which had a copy of the letter of James St. Clair to
yourself in the appendix, that appendix, was that appendix prepared
) )y tl le "Wliite House ?

Mr. Doar. Yes, sir.

Mr. Sandman. Well, does not that appendix in 52 items give
reasons for why some of them were not supplied ?

Mr. Doar. Yes, sir.

Mr. Sandman. So you did know from his appendix what was not
supplied and what was not available, did you not ?

Mr. Doar. With respect to transcripts, we did have an explanation.
Mr. Sandman. Yes. But I mean, for example, in the areas where

they had items 1 and 2 where it says a search for the tape failed

to disclose such a conversation, do you have any knowledge that a
convei^ation was recorded by tape or otherwise on that date ?

Mr. Doar. Well, we hadi a reasonable basis to believe that there
was such a conversation. There was an agenda prepared for a meet-
ing between the President and Mr. Haldeman with respect to the

possible

Mr. Sandman, Yes. But we do not have any real evidence that any
such thing did exist, do we ?

Mr. Doar. No ; we do not.

Mr. Sandman. All right. That is an important point. Now, let us
get back to the one that you cite, April 15. On April 15, according
to item 31, the tape ran out and they said that five items that you
requested were not recorded because the tape ran out.

Now, do you have any special knowledge to prove that the tape
did not run out ?

Mr. Doar. No ; T do not have any question

Mr. Sandman. Well, is that not a fair answer ?

IVIr. Doar. Yes. And I make it.

Mr. Sandman. OK. Now, eight other items were not recorded. It

says so right on here. If you have some knowledge to the contrary,

or some evidence to the contrary, why do we not have that?

Mr. Doar. We do not have any evidence to the contrary.

Mr. Sandman. So, we have no proof that such items ever existed?

Mr. Doar. We have diaries indicating that there was a conversa-

tion, but not that there was a recording of it.

Mr. Sandman. Yes. But of the five items not recorded in answer to

item 31 . we cannot dispute that they were recorded, can we ?

Mr. Doar. No, sir.
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Mr. Sandman. OK, so those I think we have to accept that they

were not recorded and the eight items that were never recorded, ac-

cording to the appendix, unless we prove to the contrary, and that

answer would seem to me to be acceptable, would it not ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes.

Mr. Sandman. OK. That is 13 of them right there.

Now, let me ask you a simple question. What would the ordinary

man on the street think of this chart of yours, where all of these blanks

exist ? Would he not believe that somebody deliberately withheld all

of those blanks ?

Mr. DoAR. No ; I do not think he would.
Mr. Sandman. What other conclusion could he reach ?

Mr. DoAR. What other conclusion he could reach ? He would have
to have my presentation, my presentation in connection with the chart.

I am not speaking with this chart alone. I am giving it to you with an
explanation. There was no response with respect to these items which
were subpenaed.
Mr. Sandman. All right now, in the 13 items that I did discuss

with you, which is in the lines of transcripts, they all show blanks.

Mr. DoAR. That is right.

Mr. Sandman. And reading your chart there isn't one item of
answer as to why those blanks exist, and to give a fair account of those
transcripts, should not your chart show something about why they're

not included there ?

Mr. Doar. My explanation is there is a reason for that and the
reasons are this : You have to consider the chart with the appendix.
I did not purport that this chart would speak entirely for itself.

Mr._ Sandman. Yes. But you know what is going to happen ? That
chart is going to be on the front page of every newspaper.
Now, second you give a quantity which shows a percentage of what

was given for what you requested on a given date. Some of those it

looks like it may be 85 percent, some may be 90 percent. I think that
is what you meant to do, the rest being deleted, is that true ?

Mr. Doar. Well, we just wanted to indicate that they were partial,
edited transcripts.

Mr. Sandman. OK. That is all I want to know. Now, something was
edited, something is not recorded. You have not listened to the tapes,
and obviously, the chairman does not want to listen to the tapes
The Chairman. The gentleman
Mr. Sandman. Pardon me. How do you know
The Chairman. I am afraid that the gentleman is trying to read

the chairman's mind.
Mr. Sandman. How do you know, how do you know what was

deleted ? You could not know.
Mr. Doar. No.
Mr. Sandman. Because you did not read the transcript or the tape,
Mr. Doar. Well, in some cases you can see that portions are deleted.

In other cases, by looking at the transcript you cannot tell that.
Mr. Sandman. Well, he did not record everything because every-

thing was not absolutely material t-o this. This at least is what I am
told. Whether this is true or not I do not know. And if somebody does
not listen to these tapes I am never going to know.
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The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.
Mr. Mami.
Mr. ^La.nn. Mr. Chairman, I am pleased that the gentleman from

New Jersey has called attention to the letter of transmittal of April
30, 19T4, which I think each member will aclaiowledge is on his desk,
and happens to be signed by John Doar. And it includes the White
House statement as to why those white spaces exist.

However, I find by looking at the chart, which says response to sub-
pena, that you left out a white space. No. 42 which is not here.

Mr. Doar. Well, the reason, and I wanted to explain that, is that
this 42, in order to make it easier for the committee, corresponds to the
42 items that are listed in your appendix and so that it is set up on the

other appendix but exactly the number you would find in item 42 falls

into another item on this chart.

Mr. IVIann. Now, if there is any question about the explanation of

the TVTiite House for the failure to produce the items, it is involved in

your letter and appendix of April 30, and if it is not available to the

press, then here is my copy. I am somewhat surprised at the statement

of the good lawyer from California, Mr. Wiggins, that this committee
should be clairvoyant in its knowledge of what is available at the

White House. I am particularly disturbed about what that indicates

with reference to communication between this committee and the

White House. After 2 months and 5 days, instead of this comrtiittee

being advised of what was or what was not available, the President

mounts his electronic throne and tells the American people what isor

is not available. Has this committee failed to offer to communicate with

the White House?
Mr. Doar. No ; it has not.

Mr. Mann. You know, certain deletions from and inadequacies of

these transcripts cause me some concern and these expletives, actions

not related to the President. I recall in World War II that the Ameri-

can people took a great deal of satisfaction out of [expletive] nuts.

I also recall they took a lot of satisfaction or dissatisfaction as they

may have seen it out of President Truman's response to certain musio

critics' statements, which all goes to show that the tapes as sub-

penaed by this committee, and an expert analysis of those tapes is

essential to a determination of the whole truth. Now, how can anyone

object to the whole truth ? If one does not understand the motivation

of this committee, then they can't understand the motivation of this

member, that I am not concerned with partisanship, I am not con-

cerned with anything but the whole truth, and imless I get it, I am
handicapped in my service to the American people in determining

this issue.

The Chairman. My Latta, were you seeking recognition? Mr.

Butler?
Mr. Butler. I pass, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. I have I believe three questions. I will try to move
them along pretty fast.

With respect to the 10 voids in the list of transcripts, there are 10

as I count them, it is my understanding 10 out of 42 that the White

House did give an explanation that the tape was either not found

or otherwise not available, is that true ?
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Mr. DoAR. Yes; either that there was no recorded conversation or
that the tape had run out.

Mr. Danielson. But at least there was an explanation ?

Mr. Do.ui. An explanation ?

Mr. Danielson. An explanation of the fact they were missing ?

Mr. DoAR. Eight.
Mr. Danielson. A reason why they were not produced ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct. Eight.

Mr. Danielson. Was there any similar explanation as to the other

four categories of material, tapes, dictabelts, electronic recordings.

Presidential notes, other notes or memoranda ?

Mr. DoAR. There was with respect to tapes.

Mr. Danielson. Well, the tapes, as to the 10 tapes

Mr. DoAR. With all of the tapes the President said that he was sup-

plying transcripts in lieu of tapes.

Mr. Danielson. Oh, he conceded there were tapes but that he was
only supplying transcripts.

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Danielson. But on the voids, the voids in the transcript line,

there was an explanation that they did not exist or at least were not
found, is that true ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Danielson. And no such explanation on the other categories?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Danielson. As to the tapes, and the taping mechanism, do you
know on the basis of your work and study of the transcripts, and the
like, who at the White House knew that these conversations were being
taped ?

Mr. DoAR. I know only of some people that knew.
Mr. Danielson. Do you know if the President knew ?

Mr. DoAR. The President did know.
Mr. Danielson. Do you know whether Mr. Dean knew ?

Mr. Doar. I do not believe Mr. Dean knew. No ; I do not think he
knew.
Mr. Danielson. Do you know anyone other than the President who

knew that the tapes or the tape recordings were being made ?

Mr. Doar. Yes ; I know Mr. Butterfield knew.
Mr. Danielson. Oh, yes.

Mr. Doar. I believe, I believe Mr. Haldeman knew and there may
have been one or two other Secret Sendee people who knew.
Mr. Danielson. All right

;
you have also worked with some of the

few tapes we do have in our possession. Have the expletives been elimi-

nated, erased from those tapes ?

Mr. Doar. No ; they have not.

Mr. Danielson. Lastly, do you believe having listened to some of

these tapes, that it would be possible for our chairman, Mr. Eodino,

and for Mr. Hutchinson, to make an examination of the tapes at the

White House and at that time determine whether or not the tapes, the

integrity of the tapes themselves, has been preserved ? That is, could

they determine whether there has been any additions, deletions,

erasures, mutilization, recordings over or any form of alteration

which would alter them from their original condition ?
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Mr. DoAR. No ; they could not determine that by themselves.
Mr. Danielson. That would require a technical examination by

electronic or mechanical specialists ; would it not ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Danielson. Thank you.
Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Doar, with respect to your comment about who knew

the tapes were being made, do you know at what point the President
knew? Did he at one point make a decision that the tapes would be
made or did he know on an ongoing basis ? The reason I ask, I have
come to the inescapable conclusion that he must have forgotten they
were being made. In other words, I can well understand that if the

Secret Service sent him a memorandum and said in order to protect

your life we need to record everjrthing that goes on in the Oval Office,

and he writes "OK" on the memorandum and then so he did have
knowledge of it. But, did he on an ongoing basis have access to the

tapes, and was he reminded that they were being made ? If so, I find

it very hard to believe.

Mr. Doar. I do not have any indication of that ; no.

Mr. HoGAN. You do not know at what point in time he found out

they were being taped ? I mean, or granted approval for it ?

Mr. DoATj. Well, I believe, I believe that the—I do not know when
the first tape was made, when the system was installed. I believe it was
sometime in 1971.

• Mr. Hogan. So could we assume that he approved the installation

and then perhaps promptly forgot that it was even there ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, you can assume that, you can assume that he, the

President, of course approved the installation.

Mr. HoGAN. Thank you.

The Chairman. Mr. Mezvinslcy.

Mr. Mezvensky. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, T am concerned that somehow the questions raised by

the gentleman from California, whom I respect as a lawyer, seems to

be asking you to provide the information we, in fact, we're asking the

President to provide, and I just—you made a point as to explaining

what a subpena means for any ordinary individual, whether it is the

President or vhether it is a Member of Congress or whether it is a pri-

vate citizen. And I note that under the rules of procedure for non-

compliance that we have the language of failure by any person without

adequate excuse to obey a subpena served upon him may be deemed in

contempt, noncompliance from which the subpena issued. Is it true

then regarding the other matters that the Presidential notes and other

notes and the memoranda, that in this case he had no excuse, whether
it was adequate or inadequate? Is that a fair conclusion as to the other

items that seem to be blank there on the chart ?

Mr. Doar. Well, I do not think it would be fair to make a judgment
without an explanation but as the matter stands now, there is non-

compliance with the subpena because there was no explanation. There
may—^the President may have an explanation. Certainly

The Chairman. I would like to advise the gentleman that I do not

think that it is fair to ask Mr. Doar to conjecture on these questions.
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I think that Mr. Doar is trying to give us a professional opinion as

to what he actually knows and what his experience is with these tapes

and recordings.

The gentleman may proceed.

Mr. Mezvinsky. I certainly understand the point made by the

chairman and I think the point that seems to be coming through loud

and clear is that with no adequate excuse, to me we do seem to have the

appearance of noncompliance, which somehow upsets me because it

almost gives us the feeling that we are going through a constitutional

process of tiddly-winks from the White House and he does not seem
to understand that noncompliance or compliance with the information

is in effect, ignoring the rule that this committee has. So, Mr. Chair-

man, I respect the presentation by Mr. Doar, and I am concerned that,

in fact, by this presentation, it does have the appearance without ques-

tion of noncompliance.
The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Doar, just one question or two, Mr. Doar. With
reference to the items, excluding tapes, leaving that question out of it,

and in dictabelts, can you give us a list of the otlier things which you
requested and how we requested and transcripts, memorandums, notes

and other writings or things. Those in the language of the subpena
that you can describe with particularity and now exist from your pres-

ent research and could be stated more specifically if you had to state

in the below the yellow lines there, where you could fill in the blanks,

the blanks of your own knowledge, or of the staff of what was not

submitted ?

Could you provide us with a list of those or are there any ?

Mr. Doar. I could not provide you with a list and I do not know
whether there are any. I do know that there is testimony to the effect

tliat some of President Nixon's key aides kept notes or memorandums
of conversations. But, I do not know about these conversations.

Mr. Butler. Well, now, that specifically is my question.

Mr. Doar. I do not know about these conversations.
Mr. Butler. Can your staff put together from their present knowl-

edge a list

Mr. Doar. No : we cannot. No ; we cannot.
Mr. Bun.ER. Well, then, are you going to suggest a procedure for us

to determine, for example, possibly interrogatories, where there are
some items, some such items or not or do you think that we have got to

go forward with what we have ?

Mr. DoARt Well, the appropriate procedure is for the person who
receives the subpena to indicate that there were no such documents,
memorandums available. When the President responded to the subpena
in Judge Sirica's court he submitted certain things, and if they were
not he indicated with respect to the transcripts which ones were not
available so that would be the appropriate procedure.
Mr. Butler. Well, I know, recognize that and I realize I am beat-

ing kind of a dead horse here but we have been down that road and we
do not know and the President has declined and now I judge from
what you say that we are just going to go forward from this point
without any knowledge as to those items and that really does not con-
cern me too much at the moment. I think we could probably find out
by interrogatories if we found out that was insignificant.

41-018—75—pt. 1 28
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But, the next question to me is your evidentiary presentation, we
are hopino: to proceed with next week, is that going to be delayed by
shortcomings in the response to the subpena, as you view it, or can we
go forward now with the evidentiary presentation in any event ?

Mr. DoAR. No. We can go forward with the evidentiary presenta-

tion. Rut it is always the best way if you, this committee, is satisfied

that they have all of the material which they feel is necessary to con-

sider in connection with this inquiry.

Mr. Butler, Well, I share that view. Thank you.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar, why don't you sit down. I am sure you
are rather tired of standing there.

Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Mr. Doar, I do not know why we have that chart

either. But you did not issue any subpena to anybody, did you?
Wasn't it this committee that issued a subpena ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Mr. Rangel. And 33 people on this committee either present or by
proxy voted for that subpena, is that correct ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Mr. Rangel. And you are now reporting back to us what we received

as a result of that subpena ?

]\fr. Doar. That is correct,

Mr. Rangel. And all of the listing on the left, hand side of that chart

is what we as a committee requested and that yellow business is the

business that we got on television and sent to us, right ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Mr. Rangel. And so it is safe to say that if we requested it we wanted
it, we did not get it, and all we have are these edited transcripts. So,

I do not see the need for the chart myself and I have to agree with
some of my colleagues on the other side that the fact remains that we
requested information, we thought that we needed it then, we did not

get it nor did we get an explanation of why we did not get it so that

the question of noncompliance I think is moot and while the chart is

colorful in parts it is just as absent as the response to our subpena
and I thank you for your presentation without the chart.

The Chairman. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
Let me say at the outset, Mr. Chairman, that I was quite disap-

pointed to hear Mr. Doar say that you were not prudent, nor was our

rankincr member prudent to listen to these tapes because I needn't

remind you that on February 22 this committee adopted rules of con-

fidentiality which restricted the members of this committee to two
individuals to listen to these tapes. And you happen to be one of them,

and the ranking member the other. Now, I was quite disappointed to

hear that comment.
But, let me just ask the question here, Mr. Doar. Turning to the

subpena itself and the schedule of things required to be produced
pursuant to the subpena dated April 11, 1974, 1 would like to read the

first paragraph. "All tapes, dictabelts or other electronic recordings,

transcripts, memoranda, notes or other writings or things relating to

the following conversations:" Am I reading from the proper
document ?
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Mr. DoAR. Yes
;
you are.

Mr, Latta. I would like to ask you whether or not it would be pos-

sible for anybody to interpret this to be in the alternative, and if so,

Mr. Chairman, I would hope that this committee in its hearings on
this serious matter would not turn into the road show that we had on
the other side of the Capitol Building. I would like to ask you, Mr.
Chairman, Mr. Doar, why you did not state, all tapes, dictabelts or

other electronic recordings, transcripts, memoranda, notes, or other
writings and things rehiting to the following conversations so that
there could not be any possible question as to what this committee
wanted ?

Mr. Doar. Well, I do not believe that the "and" would change the
meaning of the language.
Mr. Latta. There would not be any possibility in that case, how-

ever, of it l>eing interpreted as being in the alternative whether or not
we wanted the tapes or whether we wanted the transcripts.

Mr. Doar. Well, I see that, yes sir.

Mr. Latta. One further question, and that is with regard to the
chart.

Did the committee request you to prepare that chart, or did the staff

do it on its own?
Mr. Doar. We prepared that for presentation to illustrate this

tonight.

Mr. Latta. Well, I am certain that this committee as a committee
wants to be fair and I think that j^ou have admitted that this chart
can be misinterpreted. I think you made the comment that you could
point out what you meant by the chart but certainly you cannot ac-

company this chart when it is printed in the newspapers or put on
the screens of the television sets across the counti-y as to what you
meant, so I would hope that when you leave you would cover up the
chart and take it with you so that we do not have this misinterpretation.
Mr. Rangeij. No coveiiips.

The Chairman. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman, in light of the comment that was

made, shortly I believe before, I think it is imperative to underscore
what I think is a very essential difference in the role that you and Mr.
Hutchinson assumed under the rules of confidentiality of this commit-
tee with respect to screening factual material, including tapes, in the
course of getting ready for a factual presentation.

It was clearly understood and included in those rules of confidential-

ity adopted by us that at the time when the factual presentation would
be made that the actual material would then be available to each mem-
ber of this committee, including the tapes, if we chose to listen to them
and deemed that it was pertinent to hear the tape in order to hear how
something may have been said as well as to read in fact what was said.

Now, that was a rule of self-limitation that we imposed upon ourselves,

but it was one of timing and not one of denying to those who must
make the final judgment, which was all 38 of us, denying us access,

prior to making the judgment, to the best material available if we
de^m.ed it necCvSsary to hear it or to have access to it. The proposal that
has been advanced does not comport with that principal which we
have followed in the rules of confidentiality that in effect would place
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the other 36 members of this committee m the position of delegating an
important constitutional responsibility of theirs and I do not believe

that we should be called upon to do that. Nor, that the chairman and
the ranking member should accede to that role. It is a fundamentally
different role that is being put forth and it is imperative that that dif-

ference be recognized if the integrity and the judgment of each member
of this committee in this important matter is to be preserved.

The Chairman. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, following up on the conversation earlier

as a result of a question by Mr. Waldie of California on the tape of

March 21, which vre have a co])y, the li/2-hour conversation, as I

imderstand it, between the President and Mr, Dean
Mr. DoAR. We do have that.

Mr. Owens. I think it would be extremely helpful and educational

to the committee, Mr. Chairman, if our staff were to take that tape

and make a copy of that tape, with the deletions that are in the Presi-

dent's transcript, and allow the members of the committee either at

a special briefing say on Friday or late tomorrow or at our conven-

ience in the committee headquarters in the Congressional Hotel to

hear that tape. We would not be making public any additional infor-

mation. It would have the deletions that the President has made, and
let us hear the inflections as we move to try to decide how important

it is that we have the tapes if there are any, if there is anv compromise

that can be worked out; and I submit it would be terribly educational

for us to be able to hear that tape. And we would not be breaking

in any way our rules of confidentiality. Is there any reason that can-

not be done, Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. I do not believe that there is. However, until this

time I know that we are governed by the rules of confidentiality, and
I would like an expression from the ranking minority member.
Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, you see we are revealing nothing that

the President has not made public. It would be edited to take out the

materials that the President's transcribers had taken out and it would
simply have the materials on the tape which are recorded in the tran-

scrints he has offered the committee.

The Chairman. Since the President has already made the tran-

script public, I have no objection as such so long as, I believe, that

the ranking minoritv member would join with me in this and if this

would comport with our rules of confidentiality. I think that cer-

tainly we would have no objection.

Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, let me just state that I think

we would not violate any rules of confidentiality by^ making available

to members of the committee the same material which has been made
available publicly via the transcript. In other words, the tape that

would express the same things as is in the transcript. I cannot see that

we would violate anything there.
^ , .

Mr. Owens. A lot of members are concerned how important it is

that we hear the inflections and this would certainly give us a very-

educational experience.

The Chairman. I will so instruct the staff.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, reserving the right to object, since

that is apparently in violation of the rale, it would take unanimous
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consent and I reserve the right to object if I may. I want to be sure

I understand what the chairman is ordering. Is the chairman ordering

that all of the members are going to listen or are we going to receive

anotlier transcript, this one prepared by your own staff '? What is it our

chairman is ordering?
The Chairmax. The Chair has ordered that the transcript, the

transcript which has been prepared by the staff, which is the same

transcript except that this is in our judgment an improvement, be

released to the members.
Mr. Wiggins. All right now
Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, my request was that we be able to hear

a recording, the recording of the March 21 conversation, the hour

and one-half conversation between the President and Mr. Dean from

which a copy of, obviously, of the tape that we have from which the

material, which the material was exorcised, would also be exorcised.

In other words, no new materials than what was in the President's own
public transcript, the tape recording, and then to compare that. Or,

Mr. Chairman, to compare that with the written transcript for voice

inflections to see whether in fact that really is that important.

The Chairman. Well, first of all I would like to say that I believe,

witliout wanting to just go beyond what is compliance, I think that

we would have to be released from the rules of confidentiality that

presently exist with relation to those matters, and if we are released

from those rules of confidentiality with reference to that particular

tape then I believe each member can hear it. And I do not see any
reason why they cannot, except for the fact that I believe it would
also be in good taste that those expletives be edited from the tapes.

Mr. Owens. My suggestion is that we make the same exact editing,

exorcising of the tapes which the President did, that we be able to

hear, if there is a conversation.

Mr. Brooks. Would the gentleman yield to me?
Mr. Owens. Certainly.

Mr. Brooks. It is my understanding that we will take up the proce-

dures, the procedural rules tomorrow and that tomorrow we will do
that, and anticipate that by Monday of next week, Monday or Tues-

day of next week, sometime next week, all of the tapes, all of the

materials that are in the hands of the staff will be available to the

members. And I think that it will just about solve that problem.

Mr. Owens. Well, is it intended we will hear the March 21 tape next
week in the first 5 days of our overall presentation ? I was not under
that impression. Is it intended that we will hear the March 21 con-

versation between Mr. Dean and the President in our overall initial

presentation in the first 4 or 5 days of next week?
JMr. DoAR. Yes, it is intended.

Mr. Owens. I was trying to work, as we suggest we try to work
out a compromise, if one is being attempted to be worked out that

that would be helpful.

The Chairman. I would hope the gentleman would defer that.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, have you made an order, Mr.
Chairman ?

Mr. Hogan. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Wiggins. Have you made an order, Mr. Chairman ?
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The Chairman. No. I actually have not. I have stated that the tape
of the 21st, that insofar as that tape is concerned that I think that
Mr. Hutchinson and I are bound by the rules of confidentiality, and
until the committee releases us from that compliance I do not believe
that we could permit the members to listen to the tapes and to that
tape of March 21.

Mr. HogAN, Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Chairman, the gentleman from Ohio yielded to me and I would
like to use that time to direct a question to the chairman.

I understood the chairman to say that the expletives would be de-
leted from the tape which we would be allowed to listen to. If that is

the case, I would like to suggest Mr. Chairman, that from reading the
transcripts it seems to me that in many instances they are essential to
understanding the meaning of the sentence. And I would, I would sug-
gest that the members of the committee ought to be mature enough
to be able to listen to those witliout being shocked. But, I do think
that they do directly relate to the meaning of the sentence in many
instances.

The Chairman. Well, in light of the fact that tomorrow we're going
to be considering the rules of procedure I believe that it would be in
order to take up this question and since I think that until such time
the committee has bound the chairman and the ranking minority
member and the staff to adhering to compliance with the rules of
confidentiality.

Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Mr. Chairman, as we have been discussing for the

last few minutes the importance of the members of the committee to
hear some of these tapes I would like to point out that the President
has offered that the chairman and the ranking Republican member
hear all the tapes that are present at the White House. And I feel this

is far less than a refusal for compliance when he has offered to make
that available to the chairman and the ranking member. I feel it is

the responsibility of this committee to do everything tliey can to find

out the facts and when those facts have been made available to the
two members of our committee, who have heard certain tapes already,

I think it would just be the worst possible kind of behavior for our
ranking member and our chairman not to listen to those tapes that are
made available and check them against the transcripts. They may not
be as capable. Maybe they are as capable as the people we have hired
to help us. But I do think both of the gentlemen are highly competent
lawyers. I think they can get most of the information that we want,
and they certainly could advance this inquiry a long ways if they
would do that job.

The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We were not supplied, I understand, Mr. Doar, with any explana-

tion for the failure to respond to the items in the subpena, the notes

and other memorandums. Presidential notes, dictabelts, and the like,

is that correct ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Ms. Holtzman. Now, I also gather then on April 11 you informed
this committee that Mr. St. Clair was prepared to turn over tapes
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in response to four items on our February 25 letter. Has Mr. St. Clair
ever indicated to you since that time why he was willing to turn over
tapes if we did not issue and subpena, but is not willing to turn over
tapes in response to a subpena ?

Mr. DoAR. No ; he has not.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Now, further along those lines, did Mr. St. Clair
indicate to you, did he indicate to you that he was going to turn over
tapes in response to the first four items of our February 25 letter ? He
did, is that correct ?

Mr. DoAR. That was what we were discussing
;
yes.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Now, is it not correct that item one of those first

four items is the conversation on February 20, 1973, between the
President and Mr. Haldeman ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Ms. HoLTZMAN". And Mr. St. Clair did not at that time advise you
that no such tape existed or could not be found ?

Mr. DoAR. No ; that would not be fair because we had two conversa-
tions. "What he said was, in that conversation, was just before the
committee met to vote on the subpena, he said what would be the ac-

tion of the committee if he furnished three or four of the items in
the subpena required by the letter in the next few days. And if you
would just permit me and I do not mean to interrupt you
Ms. HoLTZMAN. I do not mean to interrupt you.
Mr. DoAR [continuing]. And I apologize, but I think it is important

that I relate to the committee that I did have an earlier conversation
with Mr. St. Clair in which he said :

Are you sure that the conversation that you listed in item 1 occurred on
February 20 because we have looked for it and we cannot find it. And would
you check back and give me all of the bases for vour belief that it was on
the 20th.

And I did do that. And so that he had told me prior to the conver-
sation on the morning of April 11 that they were having difficulty in
finding that recording.
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Did he advise you—well, I will just withdraw any

further questions. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr, Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. Mr. Chairman, about 2 weeks ago I circulated a ques-

tionnaire in my district and asked a number of questions concerning
the impeachment inquiry. And one of the questions I asked was "Do
you believe the President should give the House Judiciary Committee
all of the information the committee requests for its impeachment
inquiry?" And I tabulated the first 1,000 returns in my district and
they were as follows in answer to the question : Yes, 78.3 percent ; no,
16.2 percent ; undecided, 4.7 percent ; and no response, 0.8 percent.
In other words, Mr. Chairman, the first 1,000 responses indicated

that by a percentage of 78 percent that the President should give the
House Judiciary Committee all of the information it desired. I have
had perhaps 10,000 replies come in since the very beginning and I have
not tabulated beyond the first 1,000 but from my estimate of the re-
turns, the figures are approximately the same, perhaps a little bit
higher than 78 percent. I suggest Mr. Chairman, this represents the
mood of the people and since we represent the people I think it is
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time for the committee to consider what to do about the President's

faihire to supply all of the information requested.

The CHArRMAx. I would like to direct a question to Mr. Garrison.
Mr. Garrison, can you give us your professional opinion as to

whether or not, in fact, the subpena issued by this committee has been
compliexi with ?

Mr. Garrtson". Mr. Chairman, I think you have to answer that
question in something other than a yes or no. T do not think there is

any room for doubt that literally the subpena has not been complied
with. However, we are not at this juncture in the style of a litigant in

court, arguing a case as to whether there has been a literal compliance.
I think it would be more accurate to view our position at this moment
as if we were a litigant or a party deciding whether to seek forceable

compliance.
IVIr. Chnirman, what I am saying is that T think that whether the

President has complied with the subpena, in the final analysis, is really

answerable only in terms of whether this committee thinks that the
President has complied with the subpena. It is a qualitative matter,

not a quantitative matter. I am not suggesting anv phrase such as sub-

stantial compliance or others that have been used as a legal theory to

answer the question. I am only saying that just as it would probably
not be asserted that receipt of the original tapes as opposed to copies

is the only acceptable compliance that the committee has to make
judgments beyond whether a copy is acceptable in lieu of the original,

but then on to whether an edited copy is acceptable in lieu of an uned-
ited one and so forth and that the question of actual noncompliance
is a very different one from the question of literal noncompliance.
The Chairman. Mr. Garrison
Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman, could I get a copy of his reply?
The Chairman. Mr. Garrison, vou as a member of the minority

staff have joined in the requests that were made in the preparation
of the subpena, is that not correct ?

Mr. Garrison. Yes ; it is.

The Chairman. Did you not join in the preparation of this sub-

pena on the basis of information which you felt was reliable enouofh

that the matters that you were seeking, conversations and others, other

matters, other things, other documents, were relevant and necessary

to this inquiry?
Mr. Garrison. Yes, sir.

The Chairman. And do you feel that on the basis of the subpena
that you helped to prepare that there was sufficient information to

warrant that conversations do exist on the specific items requested

at the specific times requested ?

Mr. Garrison. No, sir, T would say that there was sufficient in-

formntion to war^^p'^t the inference that conversations mav exist and
that that was a suffi'^ient showin.<r for purpo^^es of issuing the subpena.
The CttAIRMAN. And at no time to vour knowled":? has a member of

the minority staff learned, havp yon as a member of the minoritv staff,

have you learned that the Whifp House has been in fnnph with us in

anv A^av to say whether or not thev would or \YOuld not complv with

the subpena?
Mr. Garrison. T ^m nvaro of no comm'inicationc; other than those

which liave been revealed to the committee through previous meetings
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and this evening. And I would not, I would not want to elaborate upon
that.

The Chairman. Well, thank you very much, Mr. Garrison.
Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Mr. Garrison, as you have stated to the chairman,

you assisted in preparing the subpena. You understood what was
meant by the different items set forth in the subpena, did you not?
Mr. Garrison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Donohue. And when the subpena mentioned tapes, it was your
understanding tliat it meant the tapes, is that not so ?

Mr. Garrison. Well, let me say
Mr. Donohue. Is it so or is it not so ?

Mr. Garrison. I would say if the question is my understanding that

the answer is certainly that that would be the most appropriate
response. But, of course, my understanding would not be controlling

as to the legal effect of the subpena or the adequacy of the President's

response. I am sure if you were to query all staff members you could
get many understandings.
Mr. D0NOHU15. But wlien you prepared, set forth that expression

"tapes" you anticipated that if the "WHiite House was so inclined, they
would produce the tapes : is that not so ?

Mr. Garrison. Well, Congressman, I really feel that that question

imposes a burden upon individual staff members which is not really

fair for the purposes of this inquiry. All members of the staff would
view the wording of that subpena and place their personal interpreta-

tions.

Mr. Donohue. But you will expect that the response to that subpena
would be the furnishing of the best evidence, and the best evidence
would be the tapes themselves ; is that not so ?

Mr. Garrison. I would say, Congressman
Mr. Donohue. As a professional man.
Mr. Garrison. Professionally, the reason I suggested earlier that

the analysis of the adequacy of the President's response should be a

qualitative one, and not a quantitative one, is that I would think that

a member of the committee could determine that in some cases a

transcript was an adequate compliance with the terms of the subpena
as to a particular conversation.

Mr. Donohue. In your opinion would a transcript be as good as

the original tape itself?

]\Ir. Garrison. In some respects, Congressman, in all honesty, the

transcript could be better if the original tape is not easy to understand,
and you do not have equipment that enables you to interpret what is

being said.

Mr, Donohue. Even though the transcript was prepared by the

party that was being checked, as it was in this case?

Mr. Garrison. Congressman, I think Mr. Doar has indicated that

where we have detected differences between the transcripts prepared
by the party ; that is, the White House and our own, that those dif-

ferences have not always been such that would impair our ability to

rely upon the Wliite House transcript. There are differences but the

significance of those differences varies a great deal from instance to

instance.



438

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. DoNOHUE. Well, Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. At this time I ask unanimous consent that the chair-

man be authorized and directed to send a letter to the President on
behalf of our committee stating that the response received from the

President on April 30 is not in compliance with the committee's

subpena that was issued on April 11, 1974.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman
The Chahiman. Is there objection ?

Mr. Hutchinson. Objection.

The Chairman. Objection is heard.

Mr. Donohue. Well, now, Mr. Chairman, in view of the objection

I move that the chairman be authorized and directed to send a letter

to the President on behalf of our committee stating that this com-
mittee finds the President has failed, as of 10 a.m. on April 30, to

comply with its subpena that was issued on April 11, 1974.

Mr. Brooks. I second the motion, Mr. Chainnan.
The Chairman. The motion is made and seconded.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Before we vote on the motion, I want to make this

comment. It seems to me that the testimony here, the statements
we have received here, the large volume of material we have received

in the form of transcripts, together with the explanations and sup-
plementary material, provide the committee with a great volume of

information. And it is information that we are seeking, and it is not
a rigid response to the subpena, or a toeing the line insofar as some
demand of this committee is concerned, but it is information. And it

seems to me that to the extent that we may feel that this informa-
tion is inadequate, or is incomplete, or is inaccurate, the mechanism
is provided whereby you, Mr. Chairman, and the ranking member,
Mr. Hutchinson, can go and listen to the complete tapes of all of

the material that we have requested, and test the accuracy and the

completeness.

And it seems to me that that is a substantial and an adequate re-

sponse to our requirement and does provide this committee with a
great volume of necessary and relevant information upon which we
can go forward in this inquiry. And I hope that we will not be di-

visive at this stage in any way and that we can go forward with a

united and combined and bipartisan etfort toward completing this

inquiry expeditiously.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairaian ?

Mr. Setberling. Question.
The Chairiman. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I wonder if perhaps we would not

be well advised to consider sending a letter that would be the least

bit conciliatory or constructive rather than just what I would call,

T think ns Mr. Donohue's position, it is almost like rescinding a decla-

ration of noncompliance. I do not really see, I really do not see where
it accomplislies anything. And it is my understanding that Mr. Cohen,
if he is given the opportunity, has a letter which he believes is con-

structive in tenor and tone and might be acceptable to the majority,
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or perhaps they would want to amend it. But at least it is a counter-

proposal that kind of keeps things alive rather than hardens any of

the positions. And I just think a declaration of noncompliance does

not do anything.
Mr. Cohen. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Railsback. I will be glad to yield to Mr. Cohen.
The Chairman. Not for the purpose of offering any amendment.
Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Well, Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask counsel sev-

eral questions.

Mr. Doar, is noncompliance the same as contempt ?

Mr. Doar. No ; I do not believe it is.

Mr. Waldie. In what respects does it differ? Would the failure to

comply with this subpena be grounds for contempt ?

Mr. Doar. Well, the failure to comply—well, you could not have
grounds for contempt unless a person failed to comply with a subpena.

But you could have a failure to comply that would not be con-

temptuous.
Mr. Waldie. Well, what is the not contemptuous ?

Mr. Doar. Well, the most classic example
Mr. Waldie. No, in this case is it not contemptuous ?

Mr. Doar. Well, I would not want to express a judgment on that.

Mr. Waldie. What would it take to be contemptuous ?

Mr. Doar. Again, I would not—I think that I would not want to

express a judgment on that, because I think that the committee needs

to consider a number of elements in making that decision.

Mr. Waldie. Is noncompliance willful ?

Mr. Doar. If noncompliance is willfulness, that is a relevant ele-

ment in considering whether it is contemptuous.
Mr. Waldie. Was it willful, willful in this instance ?

Mr. D©AR. It was willful in this instance, because with respect to

the tapes
Mr. Waldie. Is noncompliance an impeachable offense ?

Mr. Doar. Legally, noncompliance with a subpena could be con-

sidered an impeachable offense under certain circumstances.

Mr. Waldie. May I address that question to Mr. Garrsion? Mr.
Garrison, do you concur that under these circumstances noncompliance
"could," and the answer would be "Yes."
Mr. Garrison. I would have to answer that, underscoring the word

could, and the answer would be "Yes."
Mr. Waldie. Why do you underscore the word ?

Mr. Garrison. Because it would be, ultimately be, in the judgment
of the committee.
Mr. Waldie. Of course. But. noncompliance with a subpena could

be asserted as an impeachable offense ?

Mr. Garrison. I would think so.

Mr. Waldie. Noncompliance with a subpena could be, if willful,

contempt ?

Mr. Garrison. It could be.

Mr Waldie. In either of your opinions, what would it constitute
to find willfulness in this instance of noncompliance? Is willfulness,

is willfulness absent, in either of your opinions?
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Mr. DoAR. No. With respect to, with respect to the tapes.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. DoAR. The submission sets forth the President's position.

Mr. Waldie. Which is a willful noncompliance ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman, just in closing, I do not think non-
compliance really amounts to anything except indicating a laclc of

will on the part of the committee to say that the President, in fact,

has been contemptuous of the committee. It does seem to me the Presi-

dent has been contemptuous, and it has been a willful noncom])liance.

And to back away from it by sending him a letter informing him
that he has not complied, which would seem to me to be informing
him of something he probably is aware of, really constitutes nothing
constructive except to indicate perhaps a lack of will or impotence
on the part of the committee. It would seem much more proper for

the committee to find the President to be that which he most assuredly

is, in contempt of this committee. And I would hope that at an appro-
priate time there would be an opportunity for the committee to deter-

mine if they would not prefer that course of conduct than a conduct
that does not seem to me to possess a great deal of meaning. And I

yield back the balance of my time.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. I can recognize members for the purpose of discus-

sion only to the motion.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I happen to agree with the gentleman from California with respect

to the lack of constructive implications of the motion that has been
made. This is a matter of rather deep personal and professional and I

would suppose political conviction to each person on this cfimmittee
and I, therefore, only want to take this opportunity to set forth my
own personal views.

When I voted to issue the subpena to President Nixon, I did not
cons'd'^r i<" ^"o be ^ hollow or pn idle oct nnd that vote for me at least

carried with it the full weight of this body's historv, its heritage,

and I would hope its legacv. It is mv understanding that if the tapes

had been turned over under our rules of procedure which we have
adopted and the rules of confidentialitv, you and the chairman and
Mr. Hutchinson would have had the opportunity to listen to the tapes

in coniunction with Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner and have had the benefit

of technical experts who would be competent to verify their authen-
ticity. My understanding is under the proposed procedure of President

Nixon that would be available.

So, T Tvonid sav as a mattf^r of technical compliance there has been a

failure, j^t the same time, I am also concerned about Mr. Doar indi-

catin<T here earlier tonisrht that manv of the trarsrripts contained

in th'^Fe 1 .200 pa^^ps where it is marked inaudible couM be picked up by
our eouipment. Manv of the omissions which do not appear on these

documents could also be pi'^ked up by our equipinpnt which only con-

firms my own f^elinffs in this matter that we do have to make some
access to the tapes.
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I was interested to hear one of my colleagues mention that he has
been polling his district to find out what the public wants. Frankly,

I do not think that is a proper consideration, with all due respect,

because the argument has been made to me that perhaps the public

will perceive the President's tender to us as substantial compliance.

In my own opinion, the great decision which faces us cannot be based

upon the shifting sands of public opinion. Although I have only read

certain poitions of the transcripts it occurs to me rather readily that

what has been done in this long year of Watergate has been directed

to the PR factor, whether it be public relations or public reaction, and
I think my duty as a member of this committee rests on much hig'her

grounds than that. I feel that there are no contours to the Constitu-

tion, that we have to turn square corners with it. But, by the same
token, I believe there is an area of compromise. I do not believe the

chairman has any intent of foreclosing the opportunity of this com-
mittee to conmiunicate to the President our objections, what we find

objectionable to the procedure. And at the appropriate time, I would
like to offer an amendment to the pending motion to indicate what I

think the major objections of this committee are, to set them forth in

the letter, at the same time indicating that what has been furnished
is not technical compliance or full compliance, and indicate quite clear-

ly to the President what we feel would be essential to comport with our

subpena. I would hope that it would have the support of both sides

of the aisle.

The Chairman. Thank you very much, Mr. Cohen. At this time

I would like to read a statement which I prepared and I prepared it

after much deliberation. And I would hope that the committee would
be-ar with me. The statement was prepared as a written statement,

because I wanted it to be accurate and to accurately reflect my feeling

in this matter.

To this point in our proceedings my statements and my actions have
been dictated by the responsibility I owe to the committee, to the House
imder its resolution, and to the people under article I, section 4 of the

Constitution. I shall continue to follow this course.

Because of my great respect for the Office of the President and for

the dignity of the House of Representatives, I, at every turn, as chair-

man of this committee, liave sought to avoid prerinitous action in

our search for the truth in the matters inescapably before us.

I regret that while we demonstrated time and time again that we
were not seeking any confrontation with the President of the United
States, we were only seeking evidence—the best evidence—evidence,

the relevance of which under the Constitution and the resolution only

we can determine—that we have been delayed by the President.

There is no question that, whatever else the President may have
done or been thought to have done on Monday evening, and whatever
individual members of this committee may think of the merits of tliat

action, the President has not complied with our subpena. We did not

subpena an edited White House vei-sion of partial transcripts of por-

tions of Presidential conversations. We did not subpena a Presidential

interpretation of what is necessary or relevant for our inquiry. And
we did not subpena a lawyer's argument presented before we have
heard any of the evidence.
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We did subpena specific documents of specific facts of specific rele-

vance to our inquiry. We had hoped and I had hoped very firmly and
expected the President lawfully to comply. The President did not.

Under the Constitution it is not within the power of the President
to conduct an inquiry into his own impeachment, to determine which
evidence, and what version or portion of that evidence, is relevant and
necessary to such an inquiry. These are mattere which, under the Con-
stitution, only the House has the sole power to determine.
Former Attorney General Elliot Kichardson said last Sunday that

the supplying of edited transcripts would be an insufficient response
to the subpena. He said

:

I think the Judiciary Committee has a right to know what has been omitted, in
effect, and to exercise some independent judgment as to what is relevant to its

purposes, and I don't think that for the President unilaterally to furnish what
he thinks is relevant and say "That is all you get" is a sufficient response to the
subpenas.

Furthermore, the procedure suggested by the President for Mr.
Hutchinson and me to come to the White House to review the sub-
penaed tape recordings to determine the relevance and accuracy of
the partial transcripts is not compliance with our subpena.
The subpoena issued by the committee required materials covered

by it to be delivered to the conmiittee in order that they be available

for the committee's deliberations. There was good reason for this. It

is not simply a question of the accuracy of transcripts or even of the

relevancy of omissions, although both factors are obviously critical.

The procedures followed by the committee must be such that all com-
mittee members—each of whom has to exercise personal judgments on
this matter of enormous importance to the Nation—and ultimately

all Members of the House of Representatives, are satisfied that they
have had full and fair opportunity to judge for themselves all the
evidence. It is, therefore, mandatory that the committee not depart
from the ordinary and expected process in the way the President sug-
gested, or in any other manner that might suggest the intrusion of
secret accommodations, or raise new questions about the thoroughness,
fairness, and objectivity of the committee's work.
Our proceedings must be clean and straightforward and complete

if we are going to restore fimdamental confidence among all of the

people in the integrity of our institutions. After all of this time, after

all of the arguments, after all of the confusion, it is essential that these

procedings be absolutely straightforward and not equivocal, in any
way. The President's suggestion that the committee have only the
transcripts is not something that I or any member of the committee can
explain to the American people. It would only raise questions about the

committee's inquiry. The committee must follow the appropriate, the

proper, the lawful way as it moves ahead.

I still hope, and I believe all of us still hope and expect that the

President will comply with our subpena.
We are going to go ahead, preserving the integrity of our consti-

tutional process. We are going to move ahead fairly and thoroughly
and expeditiously as the American people expect and the Constitu-

tion requires us to do. The evidentiary presentation, as I stated before,
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will begin next week. I will announce the date and time to the com-
mittee members on Monday. Once we start the evidentiary proceed-

ings, I expect to hold the committee in session for at least 3 full days,

morning and afternoon, each week.
And I hope and trust that next, as I have instructed Mr. Doar, he

will prepare and equip the committee room so that we can listen, at the

appropriate time, to relevant recorded conversations.

Now I shall recognize any other member.
Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, I have been silent during much of

this debate, both this time and during the debate when the subpena
was issued.

Mr. Chairman, in our system of separated powei*s, it was never con-

templated that the coordinate branches of Government should con-

front each other, and confrontation should be avoided at all costs, in

my opinion, because confrontation never works. Confrontation pro-

duces merely stalemate.

Recognizing that, Mr. Chairman, it was my philosophy that since,

for all practical purposes, the subpena of this committee against the
President of the United States could not be enforced, that the subpena
ought not to have been issued. I think that since, and again this matter
is just my own philosophy, but since this committee can no more order
the President of the United States to do something than it could order
a court if we should issue our subpena to a court, I just wonder how the
court would comply with our subpena. My idea, Mr. Chairman, is our
proper course of action must have to be the road of discussion, nego-
tiation, and reason. And I hope that since that is the only way that we
can succeed, that we pursue that road and not the road of confronta-
tion at all.

Now, in my opinion, the subpena to the President was simply an addi-
tional request, to me, and I think that the material that he has offered
to us we should receive, and we should consider and act upon, not that
that means that we cannot continue to discuss, and negotiate and point
out those particular areas where we think we need more information.
But, that is the only way we are ever going to get it, is through a road
of negotiation and discussion, Mr. Chairman. Consequently, I voted
against the subpena. I do not think that we should simply declare that
the President has not complied with our subpena. I think we should
make a good faith effort to accept this material and to digest it and
then to make further representations if it proves to be inadequate.

I admit that I am not an expert in electronics and there certainly are
other lawyers probably better qualified than I to weigh evidence. But,
I am prepared to do my very best if this committee instructs me to do
so. I am prepared to go down to the White House and do my very best
to compare the President's transcripts with the original tapes and to
report back to the committee accordingly. I, of course, would not do so
unless the chairman also would participate and unless the committee
instructed us to do so. But I think, Mr. Chairman, that is the course
of action that we should pursue.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
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The Chairman. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that this proposal, as

made by Mr. Donohiie, is modest, and a fair proposal. And I do not
think in any way it can be interpreted as a confrontation. It can
not be interpreted in any way as a resolution to cite the President in

contempt. We have a mandate here, a very clear one, from the House
of Representatives, and that is to get the best evidence. We have no
choice. It is our responsibility and we cannot negotiate it away.
Now, Mr. Cohen's substitute that we have seen for the first time, and

I have read it, I am afraid we should remind ourselves that our staff

has been negotiating with Mr. St. Clair and with the Wliite House on
this matter for over 2 months. The original letter went out on the 27th,

I believe, of Febmary. 2 months of negotiation. I am sure the White
House heard about the very, rather acceptable proposal I believe,

offered by the gentleman from California, Mr. Wiggins, that was never
actually considered by this committee. But I am sure that it would
have been received rather well by the committee, which would have
had the tapes. Is that your proposal, Mr. Railsback?
Mr. Railsback. No. Would you yield ?

Mr. Edwards. Yes. Go ahead.
Mr. Railsback. I want to thank you for yielding. And, you know

what I wonder about, what I wonder about, what you are suggesting
is whether we have really ever officially or formally conveyed to the

White House our willingness to set up that procedure that we have all

talked about so much, but I do not think we have ever really conveyed
it to them.
Mr. Edwards. Well, the enactment or the passing of the Donohue

resolution does not preclude any negotiation. It permits us to go about
our business and stop this endless negotiation, or hassling that we
have had over the past 2 months. I really think it is a most modest
proposal.

I yield to Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. I thank the gentleman for yielding. I believe you indi-

cated that my proposal does nothing but indicate more negotiation. As
I understand ^Ir. Donohue's proposal or motion, he simply puts this

committee on record as saying there was not compliance with the

subpena. The second paragraph of the letter that I propose indicates

exactly "We regret to advise you that the committee finds that these

transcripts do not represent full compliance with the subpena issued

by this committee on April 11," the same objective, and also setting

forth the reasons why we do not. Now, that does not seem to me, in view
of the chairman's statement, where he said that he hoped the President
will comply, that means, in effect, he is saying I hope he will in the
future. But. we're not foreclosing that, nor does this letter. It simply
sets forth in detail exactly why we feel there has not been sufficient

compliance.
Mr. Edwards. I would not be in favor of your proposal, although I

do respect your submission of it. And I think that it ought to be
pointed out that the members on the minority side have been of great
assistance during these past 2 months in urging the White House to

comply. They have offered real leadership to the White House and
asked them over and over again, would the White House comply with
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the terms of the subpena. But, I thiiik, I do think that Mr. Cohen's
counterproposal is weak in many ways and I think it is less than digni-

fied for us not to just make a simple, polite statement of noncompliance.

The Chairman. ISIr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. It seems to me

that the motion of the gentleman from Massachusetts is premature
at this time. I think there must be a great many members of this com-
mittee who have not finished reading all of the transcript that we
received yesterday. The cliairman has said that the staff is going to

supply this committee with our transcripts made by our staff from
tapes in our possession for comparison with similar transcripts now
supplied by the President, made from the same or copies of the same
tapes. It would seem to me that it would be the better part of wisdom to

wait until this committee had finished reading the transcripts that the

President has furnished to us, and until we have had a chance to make
this comparison between the transcripts made by our perhaps better

equipment and the transcripts which have been furnished.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairivian. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. I just want to say it seems quite obvious that it is

pretty late now and that I would like to quote our current Vice Presi-

dent, who I know Mr. Colien and I have an equal regard for, and in a

letter dated the 29th of July 1972, former Chairman Emanuel Celler to

then Representative Gerald Ford, commenting on the use of subpenas
during the investigation of Justice Douglas, and he said

:

I cannot perceive how you can conduct a meaningful investigation, neither
witch hunt nor whitewash, as promised, without obtaining sworn testimony and
production of private records other tlian those conveniently volunteered by the

accused and his associates.

Now, the counsel have made clear that as a factual and legal matter,

that the subpena has not been complied with, and that is again a simple

matter of fact. The tapes were sought and the tapes were not delivered.

And I have got the greatest faith in the ability and in the integrity of

our chairman and our ranking member, Mr. Hutchinson, but they
-cannot and should not be expected to undertake the enormous constitu-

tional responsibility that reposes in the full House. Were they to do
that, were they to accept the arrangement proposed, I could not in

good conscience answer to my constituents, the House could not in good
conscience answer to the American people.

From all indications, it takes several hours of trained listening to

make out 1 hour of tape. Our chairman and Mr. Hutchinson, alone,

without technical assistance, have neither the time nor the particular

expertise as tape experts to assume tliis responsibility. But, the specifics

of any counter offer are not at issue.

Wliat is at issue is the rule of law, as both a factual and legal mat-
ter, that the President is in noncompliance. And I do not believe that

the work of the Congress should for this reason be delayed. But, I

do believe that the committee simply and with dignity should so state,

that the President has not complied.
Mr. HoGAN. Will the gentleman yield ?

41-018—75—pt. 1 29
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Mr. Brooks. I would be delighted to yield to my friend from Mary-
land, Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. As a matter of fact, were subpenas issued to Justice

Douglas ?

Mr. Brooks. I do not recall. I am just quoting the statement as to
what should be done by the now Vice President. I do not use him very
often, but when I think he is right.

Mr. Hogan. Well, if the gentleman will yield further, my recol-

lection is that subpenas were not issued in that case and yet the sub-
committee recommended against impeachment.
Mr. Brooks. Well, I would just want to point out as a member of

the subcommittee, that I do recall Justice Douglas furnished volun-
tarily everything that we asked in the way of personal records, ex-
penditures, his income, his traveling, and there were some other rather
interesting facets of his life that were revealed too.

The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, as I understand the existing procedure
with reference to the tapes which now counsel and the chairman are
now listening to, they're actually not the original tapes but are tapes
which have been copied at the White House and brought to the com-
mittee, to the staff, and they are subjected to our more sopliisticated

equipment ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. Butler. I would like the chairman's assurance that insofar as
the tapes are concerned, and the subpena is concerned, with tapes, tliat

this is, this procedure is a compliance, in your judgment, with our
subpena; that is, the acceptance not of the original of the tapes but
a copy which has been made in the presence of the staff of the com-
mittee. And I would also, Mr. Chairman, would like your assurance
that in communicating with the White House our feeling of noncom-
pliance that the procedure which this committee would contemplate
is a continuous reference to tapes, is a continuation of the procedure
which we have used in the past with reference to the tapes which are
now in our possession ?

The Chairman. Of course.

Mr. Butler. And I would appreciate then, Mr. Chairman, your
assurance that in communicating this in the letter, that Mr. Donohue
contemplates, thnt this will be made perfectly clear, both to the White
House and to the President.
The Chairman. Perfectly clear.

Mr. Butler. Thank you.
Mr. Lott. Mr. Chairman ?

]Mr. Chairman. Mr. Lott.

Mr. Lott. Mr. Chairman, is a copy of the proposed letter available

to the members of the committee so that we can see what we are fixing

to vote on, the languaire we are fixing to vote on? The proposed let-

ter ? Not Mr. Cohen's, the one
The Chairman. No. I believe that all the gentleman has suggested

is that a letter be directed in accordance with the resolution which
he has offered.

Mr. IjOtt. Well, Mr. Chairman, I would like to say that I think
that we have now come to the point for which this meeting was really
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tailed, and I think that I just could not vote on a situation or a letter

that will go out without knowing exactly what was gonig to be m
that letter. Mr. Cohen^s letter was prepared this afternoon, certanily

after 5 o'clock, and do you have a copy of the letter ?

Mr. Danielson. It was distributed. It is probably at your desk.

Mr. LoTT. The letter is simply going to be this resolution ? I believe

I do not have it.

The Chairman. I have none, but the gentleman has supplied me
with a copy of the proposed letter which would merely read that the

President, tha ^Yhite House, and I believe the gentleman has now been

provided with a copy so I need not read it.

Mr. LoTT. I would think that other members would like copies.

Thank you very much.
Mr. HoGAN. Could other members get a copy of the letter ?

The Chairman. I have been furnished with a copy. This is the first

time I have been furnished with a copy [reading] :

The President, The White House, Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. President

:

The Committee on the Judiciary has directed me to advise you that it finds

that as of 10 a.m., April 30, you are in noncompliance with the committee's

subpena of April 11, 1974.

Sincerely, Peter W. Rodino, Jr., chairman.

Mr. ]\Iez^inskt. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
In the discussions that I have participated in, since the subpena

was issued and the subpena was extended, and Wednesday's television

as to what action the committee should take, some people have talked

about impeachment, some people have talked about contempt, and
one of the milder suggestions was a simple letter that this is non-
compliance. And I have heard no suggestion that we send a letter

that this is compliance. I think the letter is mild, and I think it should

be mild. And I heard in this discussion with members, and these alter-

natives in discussions with people from my district, and I do not, as

some may, have criticism for those who survey their districts as to

what their people think on these issues. I call that representative

govcT'nment as opposed to the public be damned. I think there is a

judicial matter in here too and when we consider the judicial nature
of this proceeding I just wonder if a subpena from the House of

Representatives or if any of us on this committee think such a subpena
is inferior to a subpena issued by the court. And I wonder if the mem-
bers of this committee, all of whom are lawyers, have ever tried to

judge on a qualitative, quantitative sufficient in kind answer on a sub-

pena. I have never been very lucky with it.

Now, it was suggested that they would permit, permit, if you will,

the chairman and the ranking member to go down to the White House.
The subpena was issued from this body, Mr. Chairman, and to me this

House of Representatives is the people's body. Somebody cannot die

and get you into this office. Somebody cannot appoint you to this of-

fice. The Members of the Plouse are elected and that is the only way
you can get here. And they are elected every 2 years. And I think we
carry a heavy responsibility, and when you consider the separation
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of powers, perhaps you can surmise whicli one I think is the greatest,

the one that is closest to the people. And I think that the letter of the

gentleman from Maine offers many constructive alternatives, but I

think when it goes on, as I read it, it still means that I must delegate

my right to hear those tapes to a decision by the chairman and the

ranking minority member. And I just cannot do that.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
]\Ir. ]Mezvinsky. ]\Ir. Chairman ?

The Chairman. INIr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Thank you, Mr. Chairman for yielding to me.
]Mr. Chairman, I want to compliment you on the eloquence of your

remarks. And I have heard many other statements which were ob-

viously deeply felt by members. But, we should not confuse the emo-
tionalism which tends to be involved in this issue from the law. And
I have lieard some misstatements of law, I believe. And I do not hold
myself out to be that much of an orator, but I believe some of the
statements were in error. We are asked this evening, Mr. Chairman,
to determine that the response of the President is inadequate.

Xow, for any member to vote aye on that resolution, he has to decide

for himself that the material requested by this committee, in fact,

exists. Our counsel has advised us that he is unsure with respect to

some of the matters. In addition, we're going to have to decide in

order to vote aye that the material requested not only exists but is now
in the possession or under the control of the President. Our counsel

has advised us on that point that with respect to much of the matters
requested he is unsure. And that finally, and this is the most difficult

of all, we have to decide that the President has failed adequately to

deliver the material requested and has done so without lawful justifica-

tion or excuse. Now, that is the tough question.

TTnless we are going to be slaves to form, rather than substance,
unless we are going to be more concerned with a tape than the sub-
stance of the testimony, we should not decide that a tape is necessarily
adequate and that a transcript is inadequate. I want the gentle-

men here present and ladies present to know that I, too, am somewhat
dissatisfied with the response, but I am not prepared to say that as a
matter of law it is insufficient.

People have stated here this evening, Mr. Chairman, that the Presi-
dent is dutvbound to furnish whatever this committee requests. Well,
I beg to differ. I beg to differ. The President is not bound. The Presi-
dent is under no lawful obligation to furnish this material which is

irrelevant to the impeachment inquiry. Tliis committee has no richt
to demand information which is irrelevant to the impeachment inquiry.

Tlie problem is that we do not have a court in this proceeding
standing between the parties to determine the issue of relevancv and it

points up with emphasis. !Mr. Chairman, the necessity of working out
an adequate mechanism for the resolution of this matter. Now we do
not solve it by saying that we have a right to all that we request, be-
cause we do not. That misstates the relative duties of the President, the
committee vis-a-vis the President.

Let me tell you, ISIr. Chairman, w^hat I think we ought to do. I
do not think that we ought to be slaves to form, at least at this junc-
ture. If the President has, in fact, made a significant, substantial com-
pliance, and I do not know that he has not, then we ought to recog-
nize that fact. The difficulty, Mr. Chairman, is that I diligently have
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perused this mass of material delivered to my desk yesterday morn-
ing, and I am on page 200. 1 hope this weekend, barring interruptions,

to complete it. Who on this committee has read it all? I doubt that

anybody has yet read it all. I frankly doubt that the staff has care-

fully digested the entire submission.

Is it not ob^aous, Mr. Cb.airman, that it is premature for us to now
determine the substance of what was delivered to us is inadequate
when we have not read it ?

I think so. "VVliat we're doing instead is saying that the form of the
submission is insufficient, and in that respect I do not think we should
slavishly adhere to form but rather should carefully adhere to sub-

stance. The better part of wisdom was expressed by the gentleman
from Xew York, and this matter ought properly to be considered after

the members have read the material submitted. And I hope that the
members will vote no to the resolution for those reasons and we can
take that up next week.
Mr. Mann. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Wiggins. Of course I will.

Mr. Mann. I have great respect for the gentleman's legal ability.

But, what lawful justification or excuse has been even advanced by
the President for the failure to furnish the tapes, the relevant por-

tion of the tapes?
Mr. Wiggins. Well, I have not read the entire submission, I have

read portions, and the President has claimed that he is apparently
under no duty to furnish portions of the material, for the reason that
it is irrelevant. Now, if he is not right, he is not on good grounds.
Mr. Mann. I have a reference to the portions that have been fur-

nished us in written form. What lawful justification or excuse has
been offered? Has national security been mentioned, has executive
privilege been mentioned, or has privacy been mentioned ?

]\Ir. Wiggins. Relevance has. Eelevance has.

Mr. Mann. Relevance, I am not objecting to for the moment, as
to those portions which are excluded on the basis of relevance. But,
what lawful justification or excuse has been advanced to not furnish
this committee with the items subpenaed that are relevant, and that
are recognized to the relevant by the fact that they were furnished
to us in writing ?

]Mr. Wiggins. Yes. I think on the narrow question the President
is probably under no duty at this time to give advanced justification.

It has to be resolved in some way. in some other forum, I suppose. I am
not sure what that forum would be, but I do not tliinlv that the gentle-

man ought to be that slavishly following the form of this submission
if, in fact, the substance of it meets our needs. We are simply provok-
ing a confrontation with the President.
The Chairman. I recognize the gentleman further, and if the gen-

tleman would yield, I would like to recognize the gentleman.
Mr. IVIann. I yield.

The Chairman. I would like to advise the gentleman from Cali-
fornia that it has been a matter of record tliat in everv communica-
tion that was sent by Mr. Doar to Mr. St. Clair, along with Mr. Hutch-
inson's absolute understanding that this would be the case, that we
sought, in all instances, with every specific request, only those mate-
rials that would be relevant to the inquiry. And we gave an absolute
assurance, Mr. Hutchinson and I, that under no circumstances would
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we want to keep any material that was not relevant, that would

have been material that there would have been the daim of national

security information or anything that was outside of the scope of our

inquiry. This was never even in any way replied to or responded to.

This offer on our part has been long outstanding and has been included

implicit and expressed in every communication and piece of corre-

spondence that we sent along with our requests.

Mr. WioGixs. Well, Mr, Chairman, if I could partially respond,

I will be pleased to.

Mr. Mann. I yield.

The Chairman. The gentleman has the time.

Mr. ISIann. I yield.

]\[r. Wiggins. I recognize that the committee on several occasions

indicated that it has no desire to take possession of irrelevant mate-

riah I read some correspondence to that effect this afternoon. Indeed,

as I remember the letter of April 4, signed by our counsel, Mr. Doar,

he indicated to counsel for the President that it would be expected

that in the first instance the President would make some claim of

irrelevancy. I think that is proper. And has not, in fact, the President

made a claim of irrelevancy now ?

Let us not decide the issue against him without working out a mech-
anism for considering it. To say tliat he is in noncompliance for failure

to furnish information is not to give proper consideration to his justi-

fication that it is irrelevant.

We ne^d some mechanism to solve that, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I have an amendment at the desk to the

motion by Mr. Donohue, the amendment being a letter which tracks his

position which you read, which says

:

The Committee on the Judiciary has directed me to advise you that it finds

that as of 10 a.m. April 30 you have failed to comply with the committee's sulv

pena of April 11. 1974. Peter "W. Rodino, Jr., Chairman.

I would offer that as an amendment, copies of which are available.

The Chairman. The gentleman will not be recognized for purposes
of offering an amendment at this time since we are just discussing the

motion.
Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, when this matter arose yesterday I gave

it considerable thought as I know all of the other members of the

committee ha^^e. And I made a statement to the press at that time and
this is what I said. I said the President's proposal is a considerable step

and should furnish a satisfactory basis on which to move forward. I
have confidence in Mr. Hutchinson and in IMr. Rodino. I think they can
and will compare the transcripts and the original tapes. There may be
additional necessan^ adjustments. If, for example, Mr. Hutchinson and
Mr. Rodino should come to the conclusion that a particular original
tape or tapes should be heard by the committee or that any ta]">e or
tapes should be checked by an electronic expert, then I think the Presi-

dent ought to agree. But, the President's proposal ought to furnish a
framework within which reasonable men can proceed.
Now, that is still the way I feel about this proposition, and that is

the spirit in which I wish this committee could proceed at this time.
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For example, it has been suggested that counsel should have been in-

cluded and certainly I would have had no objections had our counsel

been included, but they cannot really add anything beyond the chair-

man and the ranking member. They are not electronics experts either.

In the past, experts at the White House have taped off things for our
counsel and they have brought them back up to our sophisticated equip-

ment, listened to them, rerecorded them. Mr. Hutchinson and Mr. Ro-
dino can do that just as well as counsel, if, assuming that the same
cooperation should be forthcoming from the White House, and I am
not sure it is foreclosed. And that is the kind of thing I thinli that we
ought to explore before we get into a confrontation situation.

Now, I do not see much sense in sitting down and writing the man a

letter. If we think he is in contempt, I am kind of inclined to agree

with the gentleman from California, Mr. Waldie, that sure, if we have
reached that point and I do not think we have, why don't we go ahead
and say so. If we intend to try to work things out, which for the rea-

son Mr. Hutchinson has suggested, I think is the sensible thing to do,

then what good does it do to sit down and write a contentious letter

about it, imless of course, you want to set up a basis for taking a con-

tempt action later on.

But, we can always do that if we get to that point in the road, as

has beeii said before. I just think we are premature. Wliy get into a
confrontation unless we need to? There are 1,200 pages to read here.

ISIaybe I will feel differently when I have read them. Maybe I will feel

differently next week or in 2 weeks. Now, we have got an awful lot of
work to do here and until we do it, until we do it, why take off into

the wild blue yonder ? I am not sure at all that contempt is an impeach-
able offense. Nobody has ever held that it is. I do not really think
myself that it is one that will go down with the American people very
well.

But, if we get around to that, there is plenty of time for it. If we
need more information, there are lots of things that we could do. We
are not closing the door. I am not closing my personal door. I just raise

the question whether we are really accomplishing anything at this time
by sitting down and writing the President a letter and saying you are
not in compliance.

It does not make him any more in compliance if he is not and it

does not make him in compliance if he is. We are just sort of lamenting
our feelings when we are really not willing to do anything about it,

such as contempt, and very wisely so for obvious reasons. So, I am going
to vote against this motion and I hope some of my friends on both
sides of the aisle will do so likewise, just for commonsense reasons, as

I would say.

The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, I move that all debate on this motion
and all amendments thereto end at 11 :15.

]Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Sarbanes. Second the motion.
Mr. Seiberling. Question.
The Chairman. The motion has been made and seconded that all

debate on this motion, amendments thereto, end at 11 :15.

All those in favor of the amendment please say aye.
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[Cliorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "nays."]

The CiiAiEMAN. The ayes appear to have it and the ayes have it.

Mr. Maraziti. Mr. Chairman ?

The Cpiairman. INIr. Maraziti.
Mr. Marazpii. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It appears to me that

basically what this committee is interested in is procuring the facts

and I think that a mechanism has been set forth whereby the facts

can be procured. And it may very well be as has been indicated here,

that the President is in substantial compliance with the subpena.
Transcripts have been submitted and I can imderstand that members
of the committee and the President may have a question as to whether
or not these transcripts are authentic. But, we have a mechanism to

determine it. I for one and I know that many members of the commit-
tee have confidence in the chairman and in Mr. Plutchinson to verify
whether the transcripts are correct. And if they are not, we can face
the issue at that particular time.

I think they should listen and report to us and then act. I concur
with the observations of Mr. Wiggins that today is not the time to act
on this motion. I concur with the observations of Mr. Hutchinson. I

think nothing can be gained by a controversy. We have the mechanism
to procure the facts. We have the right to submit interrogatories un-
der oath. And it seems to me that taking a course that would lead to a
controversy would only impede the effectiveness and the work of this
committee.

Mr. Fish. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman, I agree with you to a large extent that the response

is not complete, and I also share your hope that the President will fully
comply in the near future. It seems to me there are very important mat-
ters around the whole issue of the language of the subpena. I personal-
ly believe that our counsel should be included in any review of the ac-

curacy of the tapes.

Speaking for myself, and I imagine a great many members of the
committee, I am not willing at this time to forego what I believe is my
right to personally listen to a tape when in the course of the presenta-
tion to us it seems to me there is a critical tape and a part, or parts of
one that will be important in my deliberations on this matter.
We further have the question of the authenticity of the ^Yhite House

tapes themselves which has not been discussed. The question of the
Wliite Plouse equipment has been mentioned, and it seems to me that
this is one that could be resolved either by our taking our equipment
down there or the White House themselves improving the quality of
their own equipment.

I was really quite disturbed by one remark that the Donohue motion
would end the hassling. If this"^ means the end of the negotiations. I
think we are getting into very dangerous ground. Wiiat I am really
raising is will the letter that is proposed in this motion and the amend-
ment before us accomplish fuller compliance and an agreement on the
issues that you have raised ? I think this is the fundamental issue be-
fore the committee, Mr. Chairman.
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The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I move to amend the motion by Mr.

Donohue to include the letter I read shortly before, and which mem-
bers have a copy of at their desks.

Mr. Donohue. Mr. Chairman, I will be very pleased to accept the

gentleman's amendment.
Mr. Dennis. Is that this 4-line letter ?

Mr. Brooks. That is correct. Yes, sir.

The Chairman. The gentleman who has offered the motion has
accepted the amendment, and I do not believe that there is any need
to vote on that.

Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
At this time, because of the limited amount of time, I would like to

simply read the motion for the benefit of those here who do not have
a copy. It would in essence state exactly what the Donohue letter is

proposing. It says

:

Dear Mr. President

:

The House Judiciary Committee acknowledges receipt of the transcripts of
White House conversations which you forwarded to the committee on April 30,

1974.

We regret to advise you, however, that the committee finds that these
transcripts do not represent full compliance with the subpena issued by this

committee on April 11.

The committee recognizes your interest in protecting the Office of the Presi-
dent against the dissemination of information that is of a national security
nature or that is irrelevant to or beyond the scope of the committee's investiga-
tion. We trust that you recognize the committee's obligation to the American
people under the Constitution to search out and review all information relevant
to its inquiry.

We believe that both the committee's and the President's interests can be
protected and that a fair, just, and mutually satisfactory resolution of this issue
can be found.
We believe that it is essential that the committee have the benefit of counsel

in reviewing the original tapes on which the transcripts were based. In addi-
tion, the committee believes it essential that it have the opportunity to verify

the authenticity of the tapes through the use of technical assistance. It also may
be that, upon further examination, the committee will find the need to review
certain of the original tapes which, in the opinion of the chairman and the ranking
minority member, are of importance to the committee's inquiry.
We trust that you will recognize and be willing to satisfy the needs of the

House Judiciary Committee on the particulars outlined above.

Mr. Flowers. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered by the

gentleman
Mr. Flowers. Mr. Chairman, I have a parliamentary inquiry. Would

an amendment to the gentleman from Maine's amendment be in order?
Mr. Chairman. Yes ; it would.
Mr. Flowers. Mr. Chairman, I have an amendment to the gentle-

man from Maine's amendment. Having grappled with my own letter

writinc: ability, I will ask, without any time for a debate, I will ask
my colleagues to Dlease refer to the gentleman's letter that he has fur-
nished all of us. My amendment would be to strike the language con-
tained in paragraph 8 beginning with "the committee" through the
end of paragraph 4, the word "found."
The next paragraph .5, strike the language on line 5, "upon further

examination." Strike the word "certain" at the end of line 5 and the
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word at the beginning of line 6. On line 6 strike the words "in the

opinion of the chairman and the ranking minority member" and add
to the end of the sentence on line 7, beginning with at the end of the

sentence "the committee's inquiry" to read "the committee's inquiry in

accordance with the same rules of confidentiality as applied to pre-

vious material requested and received by the committee,"

Mr. Cohen. I have no objection to that.

The Chairman. The question is—

—

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. Did the gentleman from Maine accept?

Mr. Cohen. I do, yes.

The Chairman. The amendment ?

Mr. Railsback. Could we have it read, Mr. Chairman ?

Read the whole thing.

The Chairman. Will the gentleman read the amendment ?

Mr. Flowers. Read it as it would appear ?

The Chairman. As it would appear and as an amendment to the
amendment.
Mr. Flowers. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

(Dear Mr. President

:

The House Judiciary Committee acknowledges receipt of tlie transcripts of
White House conversations which you forwarded to the committee on April 30,
1974.

We regret to advise you, however, that the committee finds that these tran-
scripts do not represent full compliance with the subpena issued by this com-
mittee on April 11.

We believe that it is essential that the committee have the benefit of counsel
In reviewing the original tapes on which the transcripts were based. In addition,
the committee believes it essential that it have the opportunity to verify the
authenticity of the tapes through the use of technical assistance. It also may be
that the committee will find the need to review certain of the original tapes
which are of importance to the committee's inquiry in accordance with the same
rules of confidentiality as applied to previous material requested and received
by the committee.
We trust that you will recognize and be willing to satisfy the needs of the

House Judiciary Committee on the particulars outlined above.
Sincerely yours.

The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered by the
gentleman as amended by the gentleman from Alabama.

All those in favor of the amendment please say aye.
[Chorus of "ayes."]
The Chairman. All opposed, no.
[Chorus of "noes."]

Mr. Railsback. Could we get a vote, Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. A rollcall vote is demanded, and the clerk will call

the roll. All those in favor of the amendment as amended by the gen-
tleman from Alabama please say aye. All those opposed, no.
The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. DoNOHUE. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. No.
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Mr. Clerk. Mr, Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. No.
Mr. Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.

Mr. Eilberg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
INIr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. No.
Mr. Clerk. Mr. Eangel,
Mr. Eangel. No.
The. Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. No.
The Clerk. :Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. No.
The Clerk. ]\Ir. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eailsback.
Mr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. IMr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. No.
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The Clerk. Mr. Butler.
ISIr. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. Lott. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
ISIr. Froehlich. No.
The Clerk. Mr. INIoorhead.

Mr. MOORHEAD. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.
Mr. Latta. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. No, the clerk will report.

The Clerk. Eleven voted aye, 27 voted no.

The Chairman. And the amendment is not agreed to.

The question now occurs on the motion
INIr. Latta. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. The question now occurs on the motion offered by
the gentleman from
Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman [continuing]. Massachusetts as amended by the
gentleman from Texas, Mr. Brooks. All those

Mr. Latpa. Mr. Chairman ? Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. A rollcall ?

Mr. McClory. Eollcall.

Mr. Latpa. Mr. Chairman, I was seeking recognition. I move to lay
the motion on the table.

INIr. Lott. Second.
The Chairman. The motion to table is in order, and no debate on

the motion. The question is on the motion to table.

All those in favor of the motion to table please say "aye."
[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed, "no."

[Chorus of "noes."]

Tlie Chairman. And the noes appear to have it.

Mr. Latta. Rollcall, Mr. Cliairman.
The Chairman. A rollcall is demanded and the clerk will call the

roll. All those in favor please say "aye," all those opposed, "no."

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue. •

JMr. DoNOHTJE. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
!Mr. Hungate. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
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Mr. CoNYERs. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.

Mr. ElLBERG. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. No.
The Clerk. JNIr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
]Mr. Hutchinson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClort. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
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Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.
Mr. Lott. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.
Mr. Latta. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kodino.
The Chairman. No, the clerk will report.

The Clerk. Eighteen voted aye, 20 voted no.

The Chairman. And the motion is not agreed to.

The question now occurs on the motion offered by the gentleman from
ISIassachusetts, as amended by the gentleman from Texas, Mr. Brooks.

All those in favor of adopting the motion please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed, no.

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. I know that you are going to call for a roll, and so I
anticipate it. A rollcall is demanded.

All those in favor of the adoption of the motion please say aye and
all those opposed, no. The clerk will call the roll.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Ivastenmeier. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
IMr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.

Mr. Eilberg. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr.^ Waldie.
IVIr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
INIr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
]\Ir. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. ]\ir. Sarbanes.
]Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

]Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Daniclson.
IMr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
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Mr. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eangel.
Mr. Rangel. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eailsback.
Mr. Eailsback. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. No.
The Clerk, ^ir. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. LoTT. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
]\Ir. Froehlich. No.
The Clerk. ^Ir. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. ISIaraziti. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.
Mr. Latta. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eodino.
The Chairman. Aye, the clerk will please report.
The Clerk. Twenty voted aye, 18 voted no.

The Chairman. And the motion is agreed to.

Mr. Conyers. Mr. Chairman ?
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The Chairman. The gentleman from Michigan, Mr. Conyers.

Mr. Conyers. I would like to be recognized for the purpose of mak-
ing a motion, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The gentleman is recognized.

Mr. Conyers. The motion has been distributed to all of the members
and I move that the Committee on the Judiciary of the House of

Eepresentatives cite Kichard M. Nixon, President of the United States,

for contempt of the Congress for failure to comply with the duly

authorized subpena issued on April 11, 1974.

I seek recognition to speak on it, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, point of order. In making a point of

order, I make a point of order against the motion.

The Chairman. The gentleman will state the point of order.

Mr. Wiggins. All right. The motion, by its terms, has this committee

citing the President for contempt. Under the law, this committee has

no power to cite anybody for contempt. The House of Representatives

does, but not this committee. Accordingly, a point of order will lay

as to the motion.

Mr. Conyers. Well, Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. Will the gentleman want to reply to the point of

order ?

Mr. Conyers. Certainly, Mr. Chairman. I think that this is a tech-

nical reference. This same motion in this same form has been made in

the Congress as of September of 1973 before and in the Armed Services

Committee on the same basis. If the chairman insists on recognizing

the point of order, I am perfectly prepared to amend the motion to

meet the technical objection raised by the gentleman from California.

Mr. Wiggins. I insist on my point of order, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The gentlemaji from California makes a point of

order, which while technical the Chair must sustain.

Mr. Conyers. Well, Mr. Chairman, I seek recognition for another
motion.
The Chairman. The gentleman is recognized.

Mr. Conyers. I move that the conmiittee give that consideration to

the matter of citing Richard M. Nixon, President of the United States,

in contempt of the Congress for failure to comply with the duly au-

thorized subpena of April 11, 1974.

And I would like to be recognized to speak to the motion, Mr.
Chairman.
The Chairman. The gentleman is recognized.

Mr. Conyers. Mr. Chairman
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, could we hear that motion ?

The Chairman. Will the gentleman restate his motion? The gentle-

man from Indiana has not heard it.

Mr. Conyers. Will the secretary read the motion, will the reporter
read the motion?

[Reporter read back prior motion by Mr. Conyers.]
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, point of order.

The Chairman. Tlie gentleman makes a point of order.
The gentleman will state the point of order.

Mr. Dennis. I do not want to raise a question about writing bexjause

I do not think that might be fair under the circumstances, but I do
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make the point of order that there really is not—^the motion just does

not make any sense. Give that consideration—I do not know what that

means. I think we ought to have intelligible motions before us.

Tlie Chairman. Well, if the gentleman—the Chair is prepared to

rule on the point of order, unless the gentleman wants to be heard.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman, I would like to withdraw that motion.

I think I can meet the objection raised by the two gentlemen in tlieir

previous points of order.

The Chairman. If there is no objection, the gentleman is recognized.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman, I move this time that the Committee
on the Judiciary recommend to the House of Representatives that

Richard M. Nixon, President of the United States, be cited for failure

to comply with the duly authorized subpena of April 11, 1974.

And I seek recognition on that motion.

The Chairman. The gentleman is recognized.

Mr. CoNYEES. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I have

rather carefully considered all of the testimony that has been pre-

sented here by our staff counsel. I have listened with great interest

and as carefully as possible to the comments of the members. And in

my conscience I would like to make clear that at this point I am
unable to honestly believe, as the chairman rather eloquently articu-

lated, that perhaps by sending the President of the United States a

letter he will see the light and begin to comply.
Now, I find that the suljpena was clearly, duly issued, that the

materials requested were relevant and extremely specific, and that,

without any attempt to create division on this committee, I think

that we can no longer ignore the fact that the President of the Ignited

States is in willful noncompliance, and that there is little real likeli-

hood that this well-intentioned missile from the Judiciary Committee
is going to correct an intransigence that is now, I think, rather deep

in the conduct of the person subject to these impeachment proceedings.

And so I think that notliing would be more appropriate than because

this is Law Day, May 1, that we begin or at least close it by enforcing

the law against and upon the President of the United States.

I say that we can order the President to do something and that

under the Constitution it is rather specific and clearly enunciated.

We have here a procedure that I would like to recall to the members'
attention in the United States Code Annotated. It is in title II, section

192 and 194, that deals with tlie method of certification in which we
would send to the Speaker a notice of the noncompliance with a re-

port from this committee and that the Speaker would not have to worry
about the problems of enforcement. It seems clear to me, and I think

reasonable to suspect that there will be other subpenas and other

noncompliances and I would like these contempt citations to stack up,

if you v/ill, in the Speaker's office rather than we be drawn into anj
kind of litigation in the court, at least on our part.

And so, it is out of my concern for the integrity of this Congress
which has clearly been impugned by the conduct and the method in

which the President has determined to treat our very first request that

I ask the earnest consideration of every member of this committee,

and that they support this motion to cite the President for contempt.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

41-018—75—pt. 1 30



462

The Chaikmax. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. It will only take a moment. I regret that my

friend from Michigan has offered this motion, but since he has, and
since he speaks with clean truth about the matter, I am reluctantly

going to vote for it.

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman, I support the motion, and I do so

with these comments. There was an effort, and I understand it, that if

we went soft, and if we did not confront what had really happened,
and called it by another name, we could preserve a bipartisan vote

on this committee. I think the vote that was cast upon the calling of

contempt noncompliance might very readily assure those who are so

persuaded that that course of action is really not very productive.

If contempt is wdiat in fact the President has committed, contempt
ought to be what this committee calls it, and describes it as being.

Second, I have heard numerous comments tonight that confronta-

tion is something to be studiously avoided. I find that spirit very

prevalent in the committee. I find it lacking totally on the part of

the President. Confrontation is a course of action that he chooses,

and I only suggest to those who believe that confrontation ought to

be avoided that the impeachment process is the ultimate confronta-

tion of the legislative branch wdth the executive branch by a con-

stitutional definition. And for us to be frightened, for us to be

overly cautious, for us to be wary, of confronting a President who
does not possess the same reluctance to confront the Judiciary Com-
mittee, plays into his hands, Mr. Chairman. I think we have to, some-

where along the line, tell the President, and tell the members that

believe in the President, that the committee no longer is going to

tolerate the contemptuous conduct that he has demonstrated toward
this committee.
Now, the only way I know of telling him that is to comply with

the rules of our House, and I find nothing in the rules of our House
about noncompliance. I find much about contempt. And I will sup-

port the gentleman from INIichigan's motion in that regard.

Mr. ISIayne. Mr. Chairman ? Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. The Chair would like to—the Chair would like to

state that I regret very much that the gentleman from IVIichigan has

offered such a motion at this time. I seriously question the wisdom of

the motion at this time, despite the fact that I know that the gentleman

has time and again demonstrated great restraint. But, at this time,

recognizin.<? that the President has failed to comply, to seek to call

upon the House of Representatives to cite the President for contempt,

it would seem to me that this course is totally unwise, since it diverts

us from the purpose which I think we have set ourselves upon, and that

is to inquire, to inquire, and to inquire. And I stated that next week
this committee will be considering the evidentiary material which
is necessary for this committee's honest judgment of the facts that

presently are before it and of such other facts that may become
before it.

And I, therefore, believe that taking the time of this committee
to pursue this course, which would only mean that the Speaker at some
time would be authorized to so summon the President under the cus-
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tody of the Sergeant at Arms, and would bring the President before

the bar of the House, and a full hearing before the House, and then

to find him in contempt, have him cited, reprimanded, and then re-

leased from custody by the Speaker, would certainly be not the kind

of action that would bring forth the kind of results that we are seek-

ing, and that is to make a determination for the American people.

We can consider the noncompliance of the President when we are

considering the question of possible grounds of impeaclunent. And I

think that this is a very serious and sobering thought, and I would
hope that the gentleman from Michigan recognizes this. And while I

know he is determined to continue with his motion, I would hope that

he would withdraw his motion. If not, the chairman is going to vote

against it-

Mr. Seiberung. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Matne. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. INIatne. I call for the question on the motion.

IMr. Flowers. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. SErBEELiNG. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairivian. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr- Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, there is no question in my mind
that the
Mr. Mayne. Mr. Chairman, point of order. Has the Chair ruled on

my request ? I moved, called for the question.

The Chairman. Well, I did not hear the gentleman move the ques-

tion. The gentleman merely asked the question, said the question.

Mr. IVIatne. Well, I will move the previous question.

The Chairsian. Well, I am going to recognize the gentleman from
Ohio.
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, there is not any question in my

mind but what the President's action toward this committee and
toward the Congress has been contemptuous in the extreme. To re-

spond to a lawful subpena by going on television is not a decent thing
to do. And at a proper time I would support a motion to hold the

President in contempt of Congress, but this is not that time. We have
a job to do, as the chairman has pointed out, and we should not be
diverted from it. And at the proper time we could take into consider-

ation the actions of the President. And therefore, I move to table this

motion.
Mr. CoNYERS. Point of order, ]\Ir. Chairman.
Mr. Brooks. The motion is to table.

Mr. CoNTERS. As the Chair well knows, the motion
Mr. Seiberling. I have moved to table the motion.
^Ir. CoNTERS. A motion to table is not debatable either before or

after.

The Chairman. The motion to table is not debatable, and the ques-

tion is on the motion to table.

All those in favor of the motion to table please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. The ayes appear to have it.
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Mr. CoNYERS. Rollcall.

Mr. Latta. Rollcall, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman. A rollcall is demanded, and all those m tavor ot

the motion to table will say aye, and all those opposed will say no.

The clerk will call the roll.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Aye.

The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.

Mr. Brooks. Aye.

The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.

Mr. Kastenmeier. No.

The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.

Mr. Conyers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.

Mr. Eilberg. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.

Mr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.

Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.

Mr. Drinan. Abstain.

The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.

Mr. Rangel. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.

Ms. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.

Mr. Thornton. Aye.

The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. No.

The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Ow^ENS. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Aye.

The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.

Mr. Hutchinson. Aye.

The Clerk. Mr. McClory.

Mr. McClory. Aye.

The Clerk. Mr. Smith.

Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
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Mr. Saxdman. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clekk. Mr. Wiggins.
^Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr, Dennis.

Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. IMr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. INIr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. ISIr. Cohen.
!Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. LoTT. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.

Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. ISIaraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. Aye.
The clerk will report the vote.

The Clerk. Mr. Chairman, 32 voted aye, 5 voted no, 1 abstention.

The Chairman. And the motion is not agreed.

ISIr. Seiberling. I move we adjourn.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Move we adjourn.
The Chairman. The motion is made to adjourn.
All those in favor, please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed, no.

[No response.]

The Chairman. And the committee is adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 11 :40 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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Garner J. Cline, associate general counsel ; Franklin G. Polk, associate

counsel ; and Dan Cohen, counsel.

The Chairman. The committee will come to order.

This morning's meeting has been called for the purpose of consider-
ing the rules of procedure, and in accordance with last night's vote
on the part of the committee to waive the rules, to suspend the rules,

we are meeting at this time to consider these rules of procedure.
I would initially like to state that the gentleman from California

I know had originally proposed a motion that he had intended to make
which would be considered along with the rules of procedure.

I understand that the gentleman recognizes at this moment that that
proposal might be moot at this time and, therefore, although I still

will reserve for him the right to make that motion when he does come
in, I feel that we should go on now with the consideration of the rules

of procedure. And for that purpose I recognize the chairman of the
Subcommittee on Courts, Civil Liberties and the Administration of
Justice, Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

(467)
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Our subcommittee was referred the question of considering and
recommending to the full committee the procedures to be followed in
conducting the committee's impeachment inquiry. Following two brief-

ing sessions, the committee met formally yesterday and considered
the procedures. At the conclusion of that meeting, the subcommittee
voted unanimously to vote favorably for the proposed procedures
which are before each member of the committee entitled "Impeach-
ment Inquiry Procedures." It is my understanding that they were in

the hands of members—at least in their offices yesterday afternoon.

The procedures we have adopted are intended to permit each mem-
ber of the committee to make his own decision with respect to the

evidence which will be before us during the conduct of the impeach-
ment inquiry. With this in mind, the procedures provide that at the
outset of each presentation, committee coimsel shall make a presen-

tation consisting of a general overview of the material to be presented.

At tliat time, each member of the committee will receive written ma-
terials relating to the presentment which will follow.

There are provisions in the procedures to permit individual com-
mittee members to present additional evidence to the committee.
There are also procedures whereby each member of the committee

has full access to all materials which have been obtained by the in-

quiry staff.

Finally, there are provisions respecting the participation of the

President's counsel in these proceedings.
In addition to the document entitled "Impeachment Inquiry Pro-

cedures," each member of the committee should also have before him a

report which details with greater specificity the procedures we are

considering today. It is my expectation that there will be a general
discussion of these procedures prior to the consideration of the pro-
posal. It is also my understanding at this hour Mr. Chairman, that

there may be a number of amendments to be offered.

In consideration, Mr. Chairman, of what you have said with re-

spect to the proposal of Mr. Wiggins, at the outset there were
three proposals, one was a draft of impeachment inquiry proceed-
ings dealing with the method of factual presentation to the commit-
tee; and second, there was a draft of hearing procedures dealing with
the receiving of testimony, should the committee determine to call

w^itnesses, these two separate drafts were joined by us, were put to-

gether into the single document before you.
Of course, members of the committee had before them for some

days a proposal by Mr. Wiggins with respect to screening material,

evidence that might come from the White House in terms of any
issue raised by the President with respect to relevancy, and national

security or executive privilege. The committee, in the light of events
this week, as the chairman stated, felt that the question might be
moot, and if it were, indeed, not moot, the question would have to

turn on what the committee determined with respect to the President's

offer, or suggestion, as conveyed by his submission earlier this week.
We felt that it contained matters affecting policy which would require

a mandate from the full committee with respect to whether or not
this subcommittee should present to the full committee any formula-
tion of rules with respect to that question.
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The subcommittee stands ready, should the full committee so direct

us, to consider rules with respect to screening of evidence, or with re-

spect to otherwise handling matters suggested in the proposal by the

gentleman from California, Mr. Wiggins.
I would say only finally, Mr. Chairman, that the rules, that the

procedures that we have suggested, have included, we think, generous
participation by counsel to the President, and that there was not, on
this point, perhaps unanimous views in the subcommittee. But, we were
prepared to believe that the general suggestion made by the chairman
a week ago or so with respect to that, those privileges to be accorded the

President's counsel, were appropriate, and to a very great extent that
are embodied in the procedures we are submitting to you this morning.

It is also clear that the philosophy, however, of these procedures
and rules, is that the control of all of these proceedings be in this

committee, and in its chairman, and of that there should be no doubt.

We furthermore state at the outset of the procedures, the first line,

which I should read to you

:

The Committee on the Judiciary states the following procedures applicable
to the presentation of evidence in the impeachment inquiry pursuant to H. Res.
803, subject to modification by the committee as it deems proper as the presenta-
tion proceeds.

This is important, because should any exigency arise, any question
about the role of those who appear before us, the committee can, it is

anticipated, address itself to that by modification of the rules.

Mr. Chairman, at the proper time, I would move adoption of the
recommendation of the committee with respect to impeachment inquiry
procedures. I will only make one additional comment, which I should
make and state that we determine the presentation of the statement of
facts, the original presentation to the committee is a hearing for
purposes of the House rules. This means, of course, that if the full

committee agrees, that proceedings which are not otherwise closed, in

connection therewith, for good and sufficient reason as determined by
the full committee, shall, indeed, be opened, and the rules of the House
with respect to hearings shall obtain.

Thank you, Mr. ChaiiTnan.
The Chairman. Thank you.
The Chair would like to state that after conferring with the rank-

ing minority member it is the intention of the Chair to proceed with
the general discussion of the proposal for no more than a half hour
and that would mean at 11 :30 general discussion would be concluded,
and we would hope that we could conclude it prior to that, and then
go on with the reading of the rules and open the proposal for amend-
ment.

If there is no objection, I would so proceed.
Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I want to join with my colleague

from Wisconsin, Chairman Kastenmeier, in what he said, and I would
like to just give you and the committee a little more background.
Initially there was presented to the members of the subcommittee a
staff report and a staff recommendation. There were some substantial
changes made from the original staff report. For instance, there was
a proposed rule which really would have permitted, and I know that
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this was not the intent, but would have permitted meetings to be

called without notice at all, and the reason was to get around the 7-day
normal requirement of the House rules. We changed that to kind of

conform with our other procedures which provide for at least a 24-

hour notice to be given of any meeting.

Second, there was a provision that said Mr, St. Clair, the President's

counsel, may be permitted to participate in executive sessions. And
we changed that to mean sliall be permitted so that he is always assured

of being entitled to participate, or at least be present at all of the

executive sessions.

Third, there was a concern expressed under the original draft that

our counsel would not necessarily initially present or—I'm sorry, that

counsel would not initially examine the witnesses, and there was, I

think there was, a concurrence of opinion that it was desirable for our

counsel to initially examine so that we could avoid having a lot of

repetition, and then members could possibly fill in the gaps at the end
under the 5-minute rule.

I have just a kind of a technical amendment that I will offer at the

proper time. But I want to say that, in my opinion, the members of

the committee and the subcommittee, including the majority members,
have leaned over Imckwards to try to assure that Mr. St. Clair, and the

President, would receive a full opportunity to participate in every

single stage. And I personally appreciate this because there have been

some areas of disagreement from time to time, and I personally am
very satisfied, very satisfied, with the rules.

The Chairman. The Chair would like a show of hands of those

members who would like to be recognized, with preference being given

to the subcommittee members, so that I will allocate the time equally

among the members.
[Show of hands.]
The Chairmais^ Thirteen members are seeking recognition, and that

means that we will allot 2 minutes to each member.
I recognize the gentleman from Illinois, Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. For 2 minutes.

IMr. McClory. Tliank you, Mr. Chairman.
Each of the members has before him a proposed amendment that

I will offer, which does nothing more than to provide that at our open
hearings we shall permit television and radio broadcasts, and photog-

raphy in addition to, of course, having the writing press.

We must all recogni:^e that there is broad general interest in tliis

subject. The facilities here in the committee room are limited, and
this will provide an opportunity for those who want to view our pro-

ceedings on television to have that opportunity.

Tlio amendment, of course, will be subject to the House rules, which
provide very strict limitations with regard to protections of wit-

nesses, with regard to limitations on commorcial advertising, if they

are live hearings, and other precautions, otlior protections, wliicli of

course, will have to be observed. However, I think what this would do,

it would be to obviate the necessity for a separate vote with respect

to each session, and to have the television excluded if there is an objec-

tion on the part of one member.
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We do heave a precedent for this in the televising of the Ford
Confirmation Hearings, and it seems to me that this is consistent with

the practices of our committee.
I yield to the gentleman from Wisconsin, Mr. Kastenmeier.

Mr. Kastenmeier. I thank my good friend from Illinois. His amend-
ment, in my view, is acceptable. It is contemplated that these are

open hearings, and that the electronic media would be permitted to be

present.

But, the committee would be required, under the rules, to vote

affirmatively at the outset of each session. This obviates the necessity

for that particular vote and for that reason I think is more practicable,

and for my own part, I am agreeable.

]\Ir. jSIcClort. I thank the gentleman, and I will offer the amend-
ment at the appropriate time. And I yield back the balance of my
time, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairisian. The gentleman's time has expired. Thanks.
The Chair failed to recognize that the gentleman from Texas, Mr.

Brooks, was also seeking recognition, so we will allot another extra

2 minutes.

]Mr. Brooks.
]\rr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I want to ask if it is the understanding

of the Chair that the full committee staff, both Democratic and Kepub-
lican, will be allowed the same access and opportunity to examine all

testimony, papers, and things obtained by the inquiry staff at the same
time that we as members get that? Will our stall have that same
opportunity, or do we need to have an amendment to provide for that

on page 2, subchapter 3, or paragraph 3 ? I am talking about the full

committee staff, Mr. Polk on your staff, and Mr. Zeifman, ISIr. Cohen ?

The full committee, both Republican and Democrat given appropriate
access ?

The Chairman. The Chair will have to refer that question to the

gentleman from Wisconsin.
Mr. Brooks. Wlio ?

The Chairman. The gentleman from Wisconsin.
Mr. Kastenmeier. If you Avill yield to me
Mr. Brooks. I am trying to get this question answered.
jSIr. Kastenmeier. Of course it has to do with the definition of the

term "staff" here. I assume that for all other purjjoses, the procedures
of the committee as followed in the past will be followed with respect

to full committee staff. If it is contemplated that they do not presently
have access and require access, in my view, the rules should so state,

if that is the purpose of the gentleman.
]Mr. Brooks. That is my intention. But. how do you interpret the

existing procedure or policy? What do you plan to do? This is what I
am trying to find out. If there is any doubt in your mind, I will offer

an amendment to make it clear that we do.

As Mr. Kastenmeier points out
The Chairman. Well, it would be my intention to include the com-

mittee staff, the full committee staff, and that would include Mr.
Zeifman, Mr. Polk. Up until this time it was my understanding
that it was the impeachment inquiry staff that was privy to all of
this. But, I think for purposes of the rules of procedure, I think that



472

this would be a determination by me and ]\Ir. Plutchinson, and I would
certainly have no objection to that.

Mr. Brooks. I would not offer the amendment since it would be taken

care of in that fashion.

Mr. IvASTENMEiER. Yes. If the gentleman from Texas would yield,

we did not contemplate that particular point in the procedures we are

submittinir to you this morning,
]Mr. Brooks. If I have any time left. I would just like to say in

one-half a second that I am hopeful that we can alter a little bit the

thrust of Mr. Kastenmeier on page 1, subparagraph A, line 3. I
understand that Mr. Hogan is going to introduce an amendment to
that effect, but I had thought about it last night, and it worried me
abont the statement of fact that details in paragraph form the facts.

And I was thinking that something like his statement of detailing

evidence is good enough language, or a summary of the evidence would
be preferable to a statement of fact detailing in paragraph form.
The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired.

INIr. Brooks. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Eailsback for 2 minutes.
Mr. Railsback. I think, Mr. Chairman, if ]\Ir. Dennis is going to-

be recognized next I can yield. Can I yield to him ?

All right then, I will yield back.
The Chairman. The Chair recognizes ]\Ir. Con3'ers for 2 minutes^
Mr. Conters. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
I am disturbed about the rights of counsel of the President in these

evidentiary hearings, and I want to direct your attention to section

C4, in which, as I interpret this language, the President's counsel is

going to have rights to cross-examination and to call witnesses, I am
not going to support any such provision or anything near it.

And I feel constrained to advise the chairman, and especially my
friend from Wisconsin, that I may offer an amendment to delete C4
in its entirety if there is not some clear understanding on it.

Now, as a civil libertarian, it seems to me that we have gone to-

great excess in and are probably making a serious mistake that will
insure that we never ever emerge from these evidentiary hearings in

terms of allowing the President's counsel to take this unlimited and
overfull participation in hearings that we are conducting to merely
advise the Congress. This is not a trial, and it may be that for one
time this committee has been bent over backwards in trying to maintam
this theoretical bipartisanship that is going on. And I yield to the
subcommittee chairman if he wishes to throw some light on this.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Well, I thank the gentleman from IVIicliigan

for raising that. It will, I think, also be raised by one or two others.

The subcommittee, in agreement I think with the chairman of this
committee, determined upon, settled upon the notion that these pro-
cedures sliall reflect ample participation by the persons representa-
tive of whom is subject of the inquiry. Whether or not in due course
anyone will have to regret that, one cannot say. But. in terms of the
precedent of the past, which while uneven, nonetheless seems to amply
justify, and particularly in such a case, the representation of ]Mr.

Nixon in this case.

The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired.
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The Chair recognizes Mr. Eilberg for 2 minutes.

Mr. Eilberg. Mr. Chairman, I think that there is such a multiple

interest identified with this matter that we should bend over back-

ward to allow the public and the news media to participate. And in

connection with Mr. McClory's proposed amendment, which the

gentleman from Wisconsin stated he would accept, I would just like

to ask a couple of questions of Mr. Kastenmeier.
In the language it refers to television, radio broadcast, still photog-

raphy. Am I correct in assuming this would be not only tapes, but
live broadcasts as well ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. To the extent, if the gentleman will yield, and you
are referring to the proposed amendment by the gentleman from
Illinois, which I have just seen 5 or 10 minutes ago, to the extent that
it is consistent with the orderly proceeding, I assume that live broad-
€asts are permitted. But, I would yield to comisel, that is to say, are not
distinguished from other still or taped or filmed television, but I would
yield to counsel, either I think perhaps Mr. Zeifman or Mr. Cohen. Is

he present? Or Mr. Doar perhaps. Do you have any comment on
wlietlier or not live television would be permitted at such a hearing,

assuming the electronic media are otherwise permitted? It is my
understanding that they would be if, indeed, they do not interfere with
the hearings themselves. Is that not correct ? I yield to my chairman
perhaps.
The Chairman. Counsel, Mr. Cohen, who has been following this

has I think the rules which will explain it.

]\Ir. Dan Cohen. Under the rules of the House, the committee can
vote if two conditions exist, to authorize television. The two conditions

that must exist are a hearing, and a hearing that is open to the public.

Under those circumstances, the rules of the House permit the commit-
tee to authorize the presence of electronic media, and then it is a matter
for the networks and for the industry themselves to determine if that

would in their interest include live TV. So, the committee can au-

thorize it, and then it is up to the industry to determine if they wish
to go forward.
Mr. Kastenmeier. The answer to your question then is yes.

Mr. Eilberg. Mr. Chairman, one more question. I would like to see

live coverage of the executive meetings too, except where perhaps
there are indicted defendants whose rights might be privileged or

wlien there might bo other special reasons whv there should be no live

coverage. I wonder if the chairman, Mr. Kastenmeier, would react

to that ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. It is my understandins: that the present House
rules do not permit the telecasting of official meetings of the com-
mittee. It is for this reason that we very carefully denominated the

presentation to be a hearing.

Mr. Eilberg. I thank the chairman.
The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

ISfr. Dennis for 2 minutes.

Mr. Dennis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
First I would like to compliment the subcommittee on doing what

I regard as a good job in general on the rules of procedure, particularly

so far as I am concerned with recognizing the right of the President's

counsel to be present and to examine and cross-examine witnesses.
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As a civil libertarian myself, and one who has spent a certain amount
of time enforcing civil liberties in the courtroom which is the only
place where they mean anything, I think that provision is of the
essence of due process.

Now, I have five amendments that I intend to offer and I will dis-

cuss them in greater detail at the proper time. I may say at this time
three of them, I believe, strengthen and improve the right of the de-
fendant's counsel or the President's counsel, making slight changes in

the language. The otlier two, one of them specifically recognizes the
right and prerogative of members of this committee under the 5-

minute rule to question if they so desire, and the final one expresses
my view that we should determine at this time who certain key
witnesF^es are, particularly those vrho apparently may have some in-

formation on the alleeed payment made to Mr. Hunt's counsel on
the night of March 21, 1973. and should be called. I do not address
myself to the question of whether or not they should be given im-
munity, should any of them claim it. But. because that is a possibility,

I think we should now grapple with the question of whether we should
not call them, and the general question of whether we should not have
oral testimony.

And that is the subject of my last amendment. And I will discuss
all of these matters in greater detail at the proper time and I thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The Chair recognizes for 2 minutes ISIr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. I was a member of the subcommittee and in general

I approve of the report we have submitted.

At the appropriate time, however, I am going to offer, and it has
been prepared, an amendment to strike that portion of paragraph C2
which would permit the President's counsel to participate in the ques-

tioning of witnesses. This is not a trial. It is not an adversary pro-

ceeding. The President and his counsel are here only as a matter
of courtesy extended by the committee and not as a matter of right.

They have no standing in this hearing whatever except in connection

with the courtesy which we haA^e granted to them.
This is a constitutional, parliamentary proceeding rather than a

trial, and the sole power of impeachment being vested in the House
of Representatives. I submit that it is probably even iinconstitutional

for us to permit participation in the actual work of the committee
by the official whose activities are subject to the inquiry itself.

Historically, as you examine the cases, from far back to the incep-

tion of impeachment right down to the present, objections tp the ad-

missibility of testimony have been raised from time to time in almost

each case. I can envision the President's counsel objecting to almost

every question that is asked, and then trying to indulge in cross-exam-

ination. There are ample other opportunities for President's counsel

to participate under the other rules in this present report.. And I shall,

therefore, move to strike the words "or the President's counsel" in

subparagraph 2 of section C.

I yield back.

The Chairman. The Chair recognizes INIr. Seiberling for 2 minutes.

Mr. Seiberling. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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I too, have tlie same kinds of misgivings expressed by Mr, Daniel-

son and Mr. Com-ers with respect to the participation by the Presi-

dent's counseh I think that the approach taken by the draft rules sub-

mitted by the staff was far more circimispect and far more in keeping
with the kind of inquisition, which is what this hearing is, which is

more comparable to a grand jury than to a trial, and therefore, I

may well support the amendments proposed by Mr. Danielson and
Mr. Conyers.

I would also like to question the chairman of the subcommittee as

to whether in paragraph Bl, it would not be desirable to stipulate

some time within which committee members ma}^ bring additional

evidence to the committee's attention and I wonder if that has been
considered?
Mr. Kastenmeier. If the gentleman will yield ?

Mr. Seiberling. I will yield to the gentleman.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Yes, if the gentleman will yield, we did not dis-

cuss that in any detail but I will saj that my problem with the time
is that we did not want to restrict members. We did not want to say

that you would have to bi'ing additional evidence by any certain date

or at the outset of some sort of presentation, because that after all,

most members are under the disadvantage of not having had, other

than those transcripts before them now, any of the evidence until

sometime next week, so that it may take them some time to determine
what additional evidence they may be interested in bringing to the

committee.
JVIr. Seiberling. Well, should it not be
Mr. Ivastenmeier. We would not be in a position to set a time limit.

Mr. Seiberling. Should it not be limited to some time prior to the

or up to the completion of the presentation? After that is completed,

are you suggesting that ?

The Chairjvian. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Seiberling. That additional evidence could be submitted ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. No, I am not.

The Chairman. The Chair recognizes Mr. Hogan for 2 minutes,

]\Ir. HoGAN. Thank you, j\Ir. Chairman.
At the appropriate time, if I am recognized, I intend to offer an

amendment which would, throughout the committee's proposals of
procedure, delete the word "fact" where it appears and insert instead

tlie word "evidence". Now. this may at first seem to be a semantic
distinction, but I do not believe that it is. I think it is very important,

because in our understanding of the law, facts connote a conclusion

made upon evidence and the staff is not the trier of the fact in this

inquiry; the committee is. So, I think it is very important that we
make it eminently clear that if the evidence is going to be assessed,

and if we are going on that evidence, come to some conclusion of fact,

we, the committee, are doing that, and not the staff.

So, I would urge my colleagues to support the amendment which
does not do any injustice to the fine work of the subcommittee, but I
think does make clear where the constitutional responsibility resides

in this impeachment inquiry.
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I also, on page 2, include in my amendment, copies of which are
Hieing typed, the suggestion of the gentleman from Texas, Mr. Brooks,
which would insure that the full committee staff, majority and minor-
ity, would have access to the evidence.

The Chairman. The Chair recognizes Mr. Rangel for 2 minutes.

Mr. Rangel. Thank j'ou, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to join in with my colleagues in restricting the activi-

ties of the President's counsel. And if my colleague, Mr. Dennis, is

holding himself out to be a civil libertarian, then I would like to

take on the role of a strict constructionist of the Constitution in in-

dicating that it seems to me that the legislative body has a constitu-

tional responsibility to investigate activities on the part of the Presi-

dent of the United States which is the executive branch of Govern-
ment, and that we have to take into consideration that Mr. St. Clair

has been far less than responsive to the legitimate inquiries made by
this committee in order to obtain the facts and that this committee

has voted that the President of the United States is illegally in non-

compliance of our subpena. And the Vice President of the United
States has viciously attacked the integrity of Mr. Jenner, one of our

counsel, of the legislative branch, and it seems to me that he has been

in office long enough that he could discharge Mr. Agnew's speech-

writers. But, obviously he sees fit to follow in the same trend which
means that as we search for the truth, what we are attempting to do

is to give tools to the executive branch of Government which would
impede our efforts in order to search for the truth.

And I certainly believe that most of the work that has been done by
the subcommittee in extending a courtesy to the President's counsel

rather than a constitutional right, should be adoped. But, to say that

he could sit there and question and object, and intimidate witnesses

that may be able to shine a light as to what really happened within the

executive branch of Government
Mr. Railsback. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Rangel. I hope that this committee might see fit to recognize

that we have our obligations to the House of Representatives rather

than to the counsel to the President.

The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired.

Mr. Rangel. Thank you.

The Chairman. The Chair recognizes Ms. Jordan for 2 minutes.

Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman, I have some similar concerns to those

which have been expressed.

I think it is important for this committee to keep control of the

inquiry, because it is our function, it is our responsibility, and I would
like to propound this question to Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier, if I could have your attention for a moment. It is

contemplated in C4 where the w^ords appear "the President's counsel

may participate subject to instructions from the chairman", is it

contemplated that the chairman would have the right to require the

presubmission of questions by the President's counsel before those

questions would be propounded to a witness ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. On that point, I would like to yield to counsel,

Mr. Doar.
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My recollection is we did—let me say to the gentlewoman from
Texas there was a discnssion of that point. I do not see it resolved

elsewhere in the rules. As you can determine from the reading of 4,

which reads as follows : ''The President's counsel may question any
witness called before committee, subject to instructions from the

chairman or presiding member respecting the time, scope, and dura-
tion of the examination," we meant to give the chairman the authority
to limit, consistent with orderly procedure, such examination. We
contemplated that the questions could be either in writing or orally

presented, but whether the chairman shall have the right to deter-

mine that in advance, in terms of the President's counsel, I would
yield to Mr. Doar to respond.
Mr. Doar. Congressman Kastenmeier, ]Mr. Wood, who worked with

your subcommittee, is prepared to give you the answer on that and
elaborate on the discussion.

The CiiAiR]\iAx. Mr. Woods.
Mr. AVooDS. Mr. Chairman, it was contemplated that the chairman

would have whatever authority and means of control were appropriate
to the situation as it developed during the hearing. And I would con-
ceive that this would include the right, should it become necessary, to

i-equire that questions be submitted in advance in writing. And it would
not necessarily require that. This would be a matter which would be
left to the discretion of the chairman.
The Chairman. The gentlelady's time has expired.
The Chair recognizes Mr. Waldie for 2 minutes.
J^.Ir. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. ]Mr. Chairman, I yield to Ms. Holtzman.
The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
]Ms. Holtzman. Thank you very much, ]Mr. Waldie. I have a few

questions.

Specifically under Al. Mr. Kastenmeier, are we precluded from re-

ceiving the statement of fact prior to, a day or two before we actuall}^

conduct, we actually conduct the hearing ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. It is contemplated that at the outset; that is to

say, the first day of the proceedings, before the proceeding commences,
that members shall have a copy of the statement of fact.

Ms. HoLTZZMAN. Now, with regard
Mr. Kastenmeier. And have access at that time to all evidence, re-

lated documents and other evidentiar}^ material and an index.
Ms. Holtzman. Thank you.
Mr. Kastenmeier. But not necessarily anj^ time before then.

Ms. Holtzman. Now, with respect to C2, and the right of the Presi-
dent's counsel to raise objections, u.nder the language of that paragraph
it would seem to me that as the witness is being examined and respond-
ing that the President's counsel could at eveiy moment raise an oral

objection to the presentation by the witness. And I think that would
create the possibility of turning this proceeding, which ought to be
orderly, into a circus. I have no problem with permitting the Presi-
dent's counsel to raise objections after a witness has testified or before
the committee makes a judgment on the testimony, in writing. But, I

would strongly object, if that is the purport of paragraph C2, to allow-
ing the President's counsel to interrupt the examination of the witness.

41-018—75—pt. 1 31
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Mr. Railsback. Would the gentlewoman yield ?

Would the gentlewoman yield ?

Ms. HoLTZMAN. I would like to have an answer from Mr. Kasten-
meier whether or not he feels that paragraph would permit the Presi-

dent's counsel to interrupt the examination of the witness to raise

objections ?

Mr. K^STENMELER. Well, it does, yes. It would. I think obviously the

objection must stand on its own feet. I contemplate, I think the sub-

committee contemplated that the Chair would have full control over
the proceedings with respect to entertaining objections. There is a

right to make objections, but I think objections may be appropriately
made.
Well, I can say that the majority of the subcommittee h.ad no difRculty

in accepting the fact that such objections may from time to time be
made, but could be handled by the Chair and might, indeed, con-
tribute to a fairer and fuller inquiry.

The Chairman. The time of the gentlelady has expired.
The Chair recognizes Mr. Latta for 2 minutes.
Mr. Latta. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I find myself in agreement with my good friend from Texas, Mr.

Brooks, and Mr. Hogan as to the statement of fact which appears in
here. I think that is what this committee is all about, trying to get the
facts, and to permit the staff to issue a statement of fact in advance of
our hearings, I think would be wrong.
There are several things in this document that I think need to be

called to our attention. Certainly I would oppose, as a member of this

committee, and even if I were not a member of this committee, pro-

test as an American, the denial of the President's counsel to play a full

role in cross-examination of witnesses. I believe the American people
believe in fair play and they want the truth. And I think the way the

document is written now it is unusually restrictive, not only for the

President's counsel, but for members of this committee. I would like

to point out just a couple.

On page 2, under B, "following the presentation, the committee
shall determine whether it desires additional evidence. Any committee
member may bring additional evidence to the committee's attention."

Why cannot a member of this committee request that additional evi-

dence be brought to the committee's attention ? Members of this com-
mittee might not have additional evidence to bring before this com-
mittee. So, we are denied the right under this item to even request

that additional evidence be brought forth.

Under 2, "The President's counsel shall be invited to respond to the

presentation, orally or in writing as shall be determined by the com-
mittee." How can you respond in writing if it is oral during the

examination of the witness ?

Mr. Railsback. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Latta. I have only got 2 minutes.
The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Railsback. It is just a technical amendment^
The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

I recognize the gentleman from Iowa for 2 minutes, Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



479

I first just want to say that it is rather ironic that today, and I sup-
port basically the report, I was on the subcommittee, but at the same
time that we are allowing the counsel and spelling out his role, we find

ourselves not allowing our counsel, supposedly, to be privy of the op-
portunity to go to the Wliite Plouse, which I think is rather ironic.

Rut, with that in mind, and with Mr. St. Clair's role in mind, and since

there is some confusion as to wliether Mr. St. Clair has, in fact, liad

the opportunity to listen to the tapes liimself, and is privy to all of the

infoi-mation that may be available, what I want to make clear is there

is nothing in these rules of procedure that preclude any member of

this committee from asking questions of Mr. St. Clair. Am I correct?

Is that a proper interpretation, that no m.ember of this committee is

])recluded from asking Mr. St. Clair any questions that are necessary

for our deliberations? Would counsel or would the chairman of the
sulicommittee care to comment on that point?

Mr. Kastenmeier. That is not precisely covered in the rules, as the

gentleman knows. He participated in the drafting of theuK Biit, I

would think that such an inquiry could be made to Mr. St. Clair, but
he would have, he would have to be recognized for that purpose, which
would have to be given by the chairman.
And if the chairman recognized a member for the purpose of pro-

pounding a question to Mr. St. Clair, I see nothing in tlie ndes to foi-l)id

that such procedure take place.

Mr. Mezvinsky. OK. I would like to yield my 5 seconds to ^Ir.

Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. I support the subcommittee fully and I think all of

the reservations the members have are covered b}^ the first paragraph
of this report that says everything we do here is subject to modification
by the committee as it deems proper, and as the presentation proceeds.

I thank the subcommittee for a good job.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.
All time has now expired for the purposes of debate. And I will ask

the clerk to read.

The Clerk [reading] :

The Committee on the Judiciary states the following procedures applicable
to the presentation of evidence in the impeachment inquiry pursuant to H. Res.
803. subject to modification by the committee as it deems proper as the presenta-
tion proceeds.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, excuse me for interrupting. "We all do

have copies of the proposed rules of procedure. I wonder if there would
be any objection if I would ask unanimous consent if the proposed rules

be considered as read and open for amendment at any point ?

The Chairman. Is there objection ?

i\Ir. Setberling. I object.

]\rr. Danielson. I object.

The Chairman. Objections heard. The clerk will continue to read.

The Clerk [reading] :

A. The committee shall receive from committee counsel at a hearing an initial

presentation consisting of (i) a written statement of fact that details in para-
graph form the facts believed
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Mr, IToGAX. Mr. Cliairman ?

The Clerk [continues reading] :

By the staff to be pertimeiit to the inquiry, (ii) a general description of the
scope and manner of the presentation of evidence, and (iii) a detailed presenta-

tion of the evidentiary material, other than the testimony of witnesses.

The Chairmax. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAX. Mr. Chairman, is it the Chair's intention to entertain

amenihnents at the point we reacli tliem. or to liave it read and th.en

have it open for amendment at any point ?

The Chairmax. The Chair had intended that it be fully read and
then be open for amendment at any point.

Mr. HoGAX. I will withdraw any consideration at this point.

The Clerk [reading] :

1. Each member of the committee shall receive a copy of (i) the statement of

fact, (iil the related documents and other evidentiary material, and (iii) am
index of all testimony, papers, and things that have been obtained by the com-
mittee, whether or not relied upon in the statement of fact.

2. Eacli paragraph of the statement of fact shall be annotated to related evi-

dentiary material (e.g., documents, recordings and transcripts thereof, tran-

scripts of grand jury or congressional testimony, or affidavits). Where applicable,

the annotations will identify witnesses believed by the staff to be sources of

additional information important to the committee's understanding of the sub-

ject matter of the paragraph in questiooi.

3. On the commencement of the presentation, each member of the committee
shall be given access to and the opportunity to examine all testimony, papers
and things that have been obtained by the inquiry staff, whether or not relied

upon in the statement of fact.

4. The President's counsel shall be furnished a copy of the statement of fact

and related documents and other evidentiary material at the tinie that those

materials are furnished to the members and the President and his counsel shall

be invited to attend and oliserve the presentatioin.

Mr. Seiberling. Point of order, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairmax. Mr. Seiberling.

INIr. Seiberlixg. When I made my objection I was under the appre-
hension that we were going to have amendments offered to each sec-

tion as it was reached, and therefore, I would ask unanimous consent

that we do that, and that the amendments to section A now be in order.

The Chairmax. If the gentleman will defer, the Chair has already
stated that the clerk will read, and after the proposal has been fully

read that the amendments may be offered at any point. And if the

member wants to make a point of order at that time he may.
Mr. Seiberlixg. Very w-ell.

The CiiAiR^iAX. The clerk will continue to read.

The Clerk [reading] :

B. Following that presentation tlae committee shall determine whether it

desires additional evidence.
1. Any committee member may bring additional evidence to the committee's

attention.
2. The President's counsel shall be invited to respond to the presentation,

orally or in writing as shall be determined by the committee.
3. Should the President's counsel wish the committee to receive additional

testimony or other evidence, he shall be invited to submit written requests and
precise summaries of wliat he would propose to show, and in the case of a
witnes.s precisely and in detail what it is expected the testimony of the witness
would be, if called. On the basis of such requests and summaries and of the
record then before it, the committee shall determine whether the suggested
evidence is necessary to a full and fair record in the inquiry, and, if so, whether
the summaries shall be accepted as part of the record or additional testimony or
evidence in some other form shall be received.
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C. If aud when witnesses are to be called, the following additional procedures
shall be applicable to hearings held for that purpose :

1. The President and his counsel shall be invited to attend all hearings,

including any held in executive session.

2. Objections relating to the examination of witnesses or to tlie admissibility

of testimony and evidence may be raised only by a witness or his counsel, a
member of the committee, committee counsel or the President's oouns^el and
shall be ruled upon by the chairman or presiding member. Such rulings shall be
final, unless overruled by a vote of a majority of the members present. In the

case of a tie vote, the ruling of the Chair shall prevail.

3. Committee counsel shall commence the questioning of each witness and may
also be pennitted by the chairman or presiding member to question a witness at

any point during the appearance of the witness.

4. The President's counsel may question any witness called before the com-
mittee, subject to instructions from the chairman or presiding member respect-

ing the time, scope, and duration of the examination.
D. The committee shall determine, pursuant to the rules of the House, whether

and to what exent the evidence to be presented shall be received in executive
session.

E. The chairman shall make public announcement of the date, time, place, and
subject matter of any committee hearing as soon as practicable and in no event
less than 24 hours before the commencement of the hearing.

F. The chairman is authorized to promulgate additional procedures as he deems
necessary for the fair and efficient conduct of committee hearings held pursuant
to H. Res. S03, provided that the additional procedures are not inconsistent with
these procedures, the rules of the committee, and the rules of the House. Such
procedures shall govern the conduct of the hearings, unless overruled by a vote
of a majority of the members present.

Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory ?

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, I have an amendment.
The Chairman. The clerk ^yill i-ead the amendment.
The Clerk [reading] :

Mr. McClory. On page 4, after paragraph D, add a new paragraph E as
follows

:

"E. Any portion of the hearings open to the public may be covered by television
broadcast, radio broadcast, still photography, or by any of such methods of cover-
age in accord with the rules of the House and the rules of procedure of the com-
mittee as amended on November 13, 1973,"' and redesignate subsequent para-
graphs accordingly.

Mr. McClory. ^Mr. Chaii-man ?

Tlie Chairman. The gentleman is recognized.

INIr. INIcClory. jNIr. Chairman, I did discuss this generally in the
general debate, and if there are any questions I will be happy to an-
swer them. At that time I did yield to Mr. Kastemneier. the chair-

man of the subcommittee, who indicated that as far as the subcom-
mittee chairman was concerned, he would accept the amendment.

]Mr. HoGAN. Will the gentleman yield for a question ?

Mr. McClory. Yes. I yield to the gentleman from jNIaryland.

Mr. HoGAN. Is it the intention of the gentleman from Illinois if we
have television that it be done on a pool basis with only one camera and
a limited amount of lights ?

]Mr. McClory. It is subject to the general rules of the House. Now,
whether that would be worked out by some arrangement or not, it

could be, but it W'Ould not necessarily be that way. I am not familiar
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with the technical aspects. There are limitations with regard to the
Icinds of lighting and things like that, so it does not interfere with
the operation of the committee. And it seems to me that there are
limitations to the extent that persons who are not members of the
committee are subjected to flashing that might be degrading, or things
like that.

Mr, Kastenmeier. Would you yield ?

JVIr. McClory. I yield to the gentleman from Wisconsin.
Mr. Kastex]meiek. It is my understanding that the practices pur-

suant to the rules of the House is for the chairman to be in control
of the electronic media insofar as they afl'ect the proceedings, notwith-
standing any other right given them.

JVIr. McClory. There is a strict rule in the House rules that limits it

to four television cameras, I might say, if there are no other arrange-
ments made.

If there are no objections, Mr. Chairman, I would move the adoption
of the amendment.
The Chair]max. The question is on tlie adoption of the amendment

offered by the gentleman from Illinois. All those in favor please say
aye.

[Chorus of '"ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed, no.

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. The ayes have it and the amendment is agreed to.

Mr. ]McClory. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The Chair recognizes the gentleman from Mary-

land, Mr. Hogan,
Mr. Hogan. Thank you, ]Mr. Chairman. I have an amendment that

has been passed out.

The Chair:man. The clerk will read the amendment.
The Clerk [reading] :

Hogan amendment. Page 1, line 7. Delete "Fact that details in paragraph
form the facts" and insert "evidence". Delete "facts" and insert "evidence".

Mr. Hogan. Copies should be distributed.

The Chairiman. I believe all the members have copies.

Mr. Hogan. There is an expanded version. I do not know whether
everybody has the detailed one. Would the clerk distribute those?

The Clerk. The last version we received was the typed version of the

handwritten one.

Mr. Hogan. I am not sure whether the committee members have that

version.

The Clerk. This version has been distributed.

[Cliorus of "noes."]

The Clerk. I apologize. We undei'stood they had been distributed.

We can reproduce them and have them in short order.

i\rr. Hogan. Mr. Chairman, it really is a very simple amendment,
and it may appear to be complex as it is read, but all through all we
do is substitute the word "evidence" for "facts" where it appears in

the bodv of ndes of procedure.
Tlie Chairman. IVIight I address a question to the gentleman ? My

undersfanding is that tliis evidontiarv material in the presentation
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is going to take place in two parts. Is there any intention on the part

of the gentleman to have his amendment reflect an amending of the

rules as they would relate to the total presentation, the first and initial

part of the presentation and the second part of the presentation, which
I think is going to deal with an entirely different method of

presentation ?

^Ir. HoGAX. Well, I am addressing my amendment, Mr. Chairman
to the rules of procedure which we are about to adopt today, and wher-

ever the word "fact" appears, I would substitute the word "evidence,"

because as I indicated in my previous remarks, the word "fact" con-

notes a conclusion on the basis of evidence.

]\Ir. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

The CiiAiRMAX. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. If the gentleman from Maryland has concluded,

I would like to respond.

Mr. IIoGAX. Well, I do not think that it has been all read yet, but

where were we, Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. I merely addressed a question to the gentleman. I

believe that the clerk has not yet read the final version of the gentle-

man's amendment. So, the clerk should read.

The Clerk [reading] :

Line 13, delete "fact" and insert "evidence." Line 16, delete "fact" and insert

"evidence."

The Chairman. Excuse me at that point. Did the clerk say line 16

or 15?
The Clerk. 16. There was a typographical error. [Reading.]

Line 17. Paragraph A2, delete "fact" and insert "evidence."
Page 2. Paragraph A3, Line 4. Insert after the word "committee", "and full

committee staff, majority and minority".
Paragraph 4, line 9, delete "fact" and insert "evidence."

The Chairman. The gentleman from Marjdand.
]\Ir. HoGAN. iNIr. Chairman, I will not belabor the point. I made it

during the general debate. I would just like to reiterate that under
our system of justice, "fact" is a conclusion on the basis of evidence

and in an advereary proceeding both sides present evidence trying to

convince the tryer of the fact what the facts are. So, I think it is an
important distinction that we indicate in our niles of procedure that

the staff is not coming to the conclusion as to facts. The staff is coming
forward with evidence on the basis of which the committee will de-

cide wliat those facts are.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. The gentleman raises an excellent point.

However, in fairness to the staff and the original formulation of
what is called "statement of facts" it was termed a "proposed state-

ment of facts." After all, it is not, it is not supposed to be evidence in

and of itself, but rather drawn from evidence. The subcommittee, how-
ever, struck the term "proposed," leaving it bare as a "statement of

fact." We did that notwithstanding the fact that the staff had used
the word "proposed" because it would ultimately be up to the com-
mittee to make the determination of what was a fact in that context.
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However, we felt it was unnecessary, that that was understood pat-

ently, and that it was unnecessary to have the word "proposed state-

ment of fact." This sliould not, the term as used, "statement of fact,"'

should not be assumed to be anything final, or conclusionary with
respect to the elements under investigation.

This is a statement of, for lack of a better word, facts drawn from
evidence, with which the committee may or may not agree.

In that sense it is a proposed statement. The reason that it seems
to me that evidence does not help us, and it may be semantical in

part, is because it is drawn from evidence, and merely to repeat the

word evidence in the manner of presentation of evidence or the like,

of evidentiary material, does not help us descriptively. Descriptively

it should be termed, we believe, either a statement of fact, or if the

committee prefers, a proposed statement of fact.

I would like to yield, Mr. Chairman, very briefly, to the gentleman,
counsel, John Doar, for any comment he miglit have to make.
Mr. Doar. Well, members of the committee
The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. The Congressman from Wisconsin has stated the con-

cept that the staff had when they submitted their draft proposal to

the subcommittee. And this proposed statement of fact would be
drawn from he evidence. It would not be conclusionary of the fact.

They would be evidentiary facts, they would be proposals which the

committee would be free to accept or reject, depending upon the evi-

dence that was presented in a fair and objective way to support them,
statements of fact which we would try to present in an objective, non-
conclusionary proposed manner.
Mr. HoGAN. Will the gentleman yield to me ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Of course, I yield to the gentleman from
Maryland.

Mr. HoGAN. Majority counsel and the chairman of tlie subcommittee
have made the very point on which I object. Both have used the words
facts drawn from the evidence and that is precisely what I object to;

I do not think that that is a staff function. The responsibility for

drawing facts from the evidence is that of the committee members,
not the staff, so that is precisely why I think it is appropriate, desir-

able, and necessary to substitute the word fact with ''evidence'' for

the word "fact" wherever it appears.

Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. HoGAN. The gentleman from Wisconsin has the time.

Mr. Kastenmeier. I yield to the gentleman from Ohio.

Mr. Seiberling. Well, if this change were made, would it be your
interpretation then that anyone could challenge at the outset any evi-

dence in the statement of evidence on the grounds that it was not legal

evidence ?

Mr. HoGAN. Would the gentleman from Wisconsin yield to me to

reply ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Yes, I yield to the gentleman from JVIaiwland.

Mr. Hogan. I would assume that during our deliberations, our re-

sponsibility is to ascertain the truth, and on the basis of a factual sum-
mary, come to the conclusion as to whether or not the President should

be impeached. So I would assume that members of the com.mittee
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might offer evidence, the President's counsel might offer evidence,

which would challenge the evidence offered by our staff. And from an
assessment of these respective offerings, we, the members of the com-
mittee, would come to our own conclusion as to what the facts are.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Well, I understand that. But, what I am raising is

whether or not by substituting the word "evidence" for "facts" we are

going to give rise to a challenge ab initio on each statement in the

statement of evidence as to whether that particular evidence is admis-

sible under the rules of evidence, and whether Ave will do that in the

process of sifting out the whole collection of evidence ?

]Mr. HoGAN. If the gentleman will allow me to answer further, the

rules of evidence really do not apply to our deliberations so I do not

think that is a concern. INIy real concern is that we give the impression

to the world that we have already ascertained the facts when that is

not our status whatsoever. It is to look at the evidence, to see if Ave then
Avill decide tlie facts ?

Mr. Seiberlixg. Well, if the gentleman Avill yield further I think

that if all Ave are talking about is a semantics problem then we can
resolve that by substituting the word "evidence" to make it clear that

Ave liave not already found the facts. There is no objection to that as far

as I am concerned. But, it should not be used as a tool by Mr. St. Clair

or anybody else to try to challenge the initial statement of facts.

Mr. PIoGAX^. I could not agree with the gentleman from Ohio more
fully. We are not looking at this in the context of the Federal iiiles of

evidence. We are looking at Avhat the Avord itself connotes.

jNIr. Kastexmeter. INIay I in conclusion say, Mr. Chairman, and I

have the time, say that it Avould seem to me that to call, to term this a

"statement of evidence" Avould be improper. It is not strictly a state-

ment of evidence. The evidence lays back of this presentation and this

presentation is an attempt to S3mthesize the evidence and to present
Avhat is a statement of fact or a statement of proposed, or pi'oposed

statement of fact.

The Chairmax. The time of the gentleman from Wisconsin has*

ex))ired.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman'. The Cliair AA'ould like to address a question to

Mr. Hogan Avith relation to your proposed amendment. On paragraph
Ao, line 4, insert after the Avord "committee" "and full committee staff',

n.iajority and minority."
Does the gentleman intend that the Chair and the ranking minority

member Avould not have the discretion as they do noAv in the rules of

confidentiality to designate staff as Ave haAe already, already con-

templated that Ave might haA'e, and that would be in the present mem-
l)ers of the staff, Mr. Zeifman and Mr. Polk ?

Mr. Hogax. It is not ni}- intention, Mv. Chairman, to in any Avay

interfere Avith the discretion of the ranking minority member and the

chairman. But, Avhen Ave look at the mass of work that Ave are going
to have to assimilate, I think all of us have ahvays relied on the fine

Avork of our staff". And to hamper our Avork in this area by restricting

tlie staff access to a degree Avliere 38 membeis do not get enough import
from the staff, I think tluit is going to be a problem for us.

But, I certainly agree if the chairman is sa3nng that it should not

ho everyone on the staff' having access to it.

The Ci IAiRiNiAX. The Chair Avould like to advise the gentleman that

presently the impeachment inquiry staff is composed of already 100-

and-some-odd people Avith professional staff' of about 42 who are at
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the disposal of the gentleman. But, we had for purposes of retaining
confidentiality and complying with those rules, we had assured that we
would not go beyond them, and Mr. Zeifman and Mr. Polk. And it

would seem to me that to do otherwise would be to open up this beyond
any ability on my part to compreliend, without violating all of the
rules that vre have presently adopted.
Mr. HoTiAx. Being persuaded by the eloquence of the chaiiman, I

ask unanimous consent that that part of the amendment be deleted
from my amendment.
The Chairman. Without objection

Mr. PIoGAN. The part relating to, on the assurance of the chairman,
a]id his explanation of the problem, the words "and full committee
staff, majority and minority," on line 4 of page 2 be deleted from my
amendment.
The Chairman. Well
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. If the gentleman would yield at that point, the

Chair would like to suggest—and I think this is after conferring with
counsel—that it would serve our purpose better if we would adcl after

the word "minority," "as designated by the chairman and the ranking
minoi'ity member."
Mr. Hooan. I would certainly accept the gentleman's amendment to

my amendment.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

]Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.

]Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I have some questions, just technical

questions. Again, I look at the Hogan amendment that has been
passed out, and I get confused that it is not accurate. Maybe ISIr.

Hogan can correct me or maybe I have got the wrong copy, but I get

here that he has amended line 7. He wants to amend line 13. and those

are correct. And according to his amendment he has got an amend-
ment to line 15, which I do not think is right.

Mr. Hogan. Will the gentleman yield at that point?
My. Railsback. Yes.
Mr. Hogan. Counsel advised us that was a typographical error,

and it should be line 16.

Mr. Railsback. All right. With respect to line 17, I think line 17
should be line 18 and I think j^ou also want to amend line 10.

Mr. Hogan. I am confused by the gentleman's inquiry, unless our
lines are not numbered the same.
Mr. Railsback. Well, I find here if you look down at line 18 and

19, 19 is the one that is A2, that begins with A2, and I would think
that you would want to—or am I wrong? Let me see.

Mr. Seiberling. 17. That is 17.

Mr. Railsback. Line 16 and 17, 1 see. Yes. it is 16 and 17.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman? Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, I wish to offer an amendment in

the nature of a substitute.

Mr. Railsback. I do not think I have lost my time. I have not lost

my time yet. I want to say personally, Mr. Chairman, that I do not
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think the gentleman's amendment does any great disservice, as I

understand it, and with the amendment that has been accepted by
him which was offered by the chairman, I personally, personally do

not have any trouble with his amendment.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I wanted to speak briefly to this and
I do not belabor the point. But, if this committee is going to make
its decisions on the basis of evidence, we must accept the evidence

and then determine that the evidence is a fact. If we are going to have
distinguished and able counsel, as they are, submit to us the facts, we
might as well let them determine the entire conduct of this inquiry.

I am willing to accept the evidence and then to make up my mind as

to what evidence is a fact and should be a part of the Articles of

Impeachment or should not be.

I do not think that I want to abdicate my personal responsibility

as a Member of Congress, as a member of the Judiciary Committee,
to accept as facts from anybody, from Mr. St. Clair, from Mr. Jenner,

from Mr. Doar, especially from Mr. Garrison, Mr, Woods, from any-
body you can think of. I am willing to accept the evidence, but I am
not willing to accept the facts. And I think this committee will be
doing itself a serious injustice to lay itself open to that obvious im-
provable charge, I do not think it will inhibit in any way the presen-

tation of our impeachment staff''s evidence, a summary of that evidence,

an overview of that evidence, and an outline of that evidence. Any
kind of delineation of evidence that you want to call it. But, I think
it would be a serious mistake, not just a semantic mistake, but a serious

mistake for this committee to say we are going to accept this statement
of fact and keep referring to that. I think what we should do, and
I was in favor of this before I heard of Mr. Hogan's interest, but I

am in full support of his amendment and I think we should say a
statement of evidence and I think that this committee then has the
responsibility under the Constitution, under its delegation of author-
ity by the House of Representatives, to determine which evidence is

a fact, and to do otherwise is a serious error on our part,

Mr, Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that, or would ask both

Mr. Hogan and Mr. Brooks if they would be satisfied with the
original version which read this way : "A Proposed Written Statement
of Facts" ? As a member of the subcommittee I am inclined to say that
we committed error when we dropped the word "proposed," and I
wonder if Mr. Hogan would be prepared to Avithdraw his "evidence"
if we asserted the original statement as enunciated in the original
script, "A Proposed Written Statement of Fact" ?

Mr. Hogan. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinan. Yes.
Mr. Hogan. No, I would not accept that, because I think it is im-

portant and I have said it many, many times previously that we make
it eminently clear that we are the triers of the fact, not the staff.

So, "Proposed Statement of Fact" I do not tliink really accomplishes
what the word "evidence" would.
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Mr. Seiberltng. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinan. Yes.
Mr. Seiberling, Well, Mr. Chairman, I was going to offer as a sub-

stitute for the gentleman's amendment just that too, and may I have
the attention of the gentleman from Texas ? I agree with the gentleman
from Texas, but I think that there is a problem here because what
we are going to have is not a statement of evidence but a statement,
a proposed statement of fact. And the evidence is something separate
which will be submitted in support of the proposed statement of fact.

And, tlierefore, when I am recognized for that purpose I will offer
an amendment to simply insert the word "proposed" in front of
the word "statement" wherever it appears and in place of the gentle-
man's amendment.

JVIr. Kastexmeier. Would the gentleman from Ohio yield ?

Mr. Seiberling. The gentleman from Massachusetts has the time.
Mr. Drinax. I yield to the gentleman from Wisconsin.
Mr. Kastexmeier. Well, I certainly will accept that amendment,

and if the gentleman had not offered it, I would propose to do so
myself. As I suggested earlier, we deleted the word "proposed" be-
cause we thought what the fears of the gentleman from Texas were,
were self-evident, and that the impeachment staff could not make a
determination prior for this committee.
However, it appears there are fears and so I suggest that the appro-

priate road to redress that problem is to reinsert, as the gentleman
from Ohio will propose in his amendment, the words "proposed state-

ment of fact."

Mr. Dax^ielsox. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drixax. Yes.
Mr. HoGAX'. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous question.

The Ciiairmax. The Chair is goinq; to state that we are going to

recess until 2 :30 this afternoon in light of the quorum call. The Chair
recesses the committee meeting until 2 :30 this afternoon.

[Whereupon, at 12:10 p.m., the committee was recessed, to recon-

vene at 2 :oO p.m.]
.

afterxoox sessiox

The Ciiairmax. The Chair would like to announce there is a record
vote and the committee will recess for IH more minutes until they have
had an opportunity t-o vote, and return in 15 minutes.

[Wiereupon a brief recess was taken and the committee reconvened
at 3 :15 p.m.]

The Chairmax. The committee will come to order.

I recognize the gentleman from Texas, ]Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, I would submit to the committee in

further consideration of the autlior of the amendment, an amend-
ment to the amendment which would read "a written statement

detailing information believed by the staff to be pertinent to the

inquiry" and it would put in the words "detailino: information," and
would strike "facts" in paragraph number 4 and it would read then,

and copies are being prepared, and I am sorry I do not ha^e them
available, but they will be in about 2 minutes, it will read this way

:

"a written statement detailing information in paragraph form be-

lieved by the staff to be pertinent to the inquir3\" It would also amend
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Mr. Hogan's resolution, I mean amendment, and change the word
"evidence" to "infonnation" in each instance where he had the word
"evidence."

Mr. HoGAN. "Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Brooks. And I would ask, I would say that I hope that this

will, and I will yield to my friend, I would hope that tliis will make
very clear that the decision as to what is done in this matter will be

resolved by the committee. I think it will give our staff an oppor-

tunity to present all of the material, evidentiary and otherwise, that

we have, submitted in due order and that it will retain the concept

of this committee making the decisions necessary.

And I yield to my friend from Mar^dand, ^Ir. Hogan.
]\Ir. HoGAN. I certainly agree with the comments of the gentleman

from Texas because a number of us have been concerned for some time
that the staff has given the impression that they are nnining this

inquiry. And the committee members will recall previously I had taken

exception to a statement appearing in our ]\Iarch 1 memorandum
where it said, "the staff will decide in the next few weeks the areas of

investigation to be continued" and I pointed out then it is not their

function to decide anything. And that is the same basis for the amend-
ment which I offered this morning.

But, as long as there is a consensus on the committee here with the

point I was trying to make, that it is not tlie function of the staff to

decide the facts, it is our responsibility, then I will be willing to accept

the amendment offered by the gentleman from Texas.

But I want to make clear that the word "information" in this con-

text cei-tainly in no way should bo misinterpreted as having any bear-

ing whatsoever on the legal, material information which is comparable
to a legal charge in a misdemeanor offered in a Federal criminal case.

Mr. Brooks. It is not. It is intended not to to be a word of art used
in criminal law. I appreciate the offer of the gentleman to accept my
amendment and would ask the chairman to put the vote.

Mr. Seiberling. Well, Mr. Chairman, a point of information. We
do not have copies of the amendment.
The Chairman. The amendment is now being distributed.

Mr. CoNYERS. Would the gentleman yield to me ?

Mr. Brooks. If I have the floor, yes; I certainly would be pleased

to.

The Chairman. The gentleman still has the floor.

Mr. Brooks. I am pleased to yield to mj^ friend, Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman, I woidd like to indicate my support for

this modification in the language. I think it is a veiy important one. I

think it is significant, and I think it captured what has been already
articulated by both the mover of this motion and the amendment and
that is that we are going to now locate the decisionmaking authority
on this undertaking where it belongs, in the Committee on the Judi-
ciary. And it is for those reasons I support it.

You may recall that I took serious exception to that report by the
staff in which we decided to halt the investigation of some 15 items.

And enactment was undertaken w^ithout any known authority that I

am aware of and I am very enthusiastically in support of this motion,
as amended.
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The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered, by the

gentleman from Maryland as amended by the gentleman from Texas,

Mr. Brooks.
All those in favor it

Mr. PIoGAN. Point of inquiiy, Mr. Chairman. The chairman himself

also amende^l my original amendment.
Mr. Brooks. It is included in the written document.
The Chairman. I understand that is included in the written version

that is before the members.
Mr. HoGAN. Fine.

The Chairman. And the question is now on the amendment. All

those in favor please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chaikman. The ayes have it and the amendment is agreed.

I would like to just make a short statement. I think that it is im-
portant that we put this in the context in which it belongs.

I hope that no one here is of the impression, especially members
of the committee, despite the fact that there has been maybe some
misunderstanding that the staff, which has been doing a remarkable
job, has been attempting to run this committee. I think that this would
be an unfortunate impression to be conveyed and I would hope that

we recognize this. I am sure that neither Mr. Doar, nor Mr. Jenner,

nor any other member of the impeachment inquiry statT has in any
way sought or attempted to usurp the authority of the Chair and
I would hope that the members of this committee would recognize

that that is tlie case and this chairman certainly would be the last

one in the world to delegate this judgment, this authority, to staff.

I recognize Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have an amendment

at the desk.

The Chairman. The clerk will read the amendment.
The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment offered by Mr. Danielson.
On page 3, in paragraph C2. line 4 thereof, strike "or the President's counsel."

Line 3 thereof insert "or" after "committee."

Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Members, the amendment strikes the clause "or

the President's counsel" in subparagi'aph 2 of item C on page 3 of
the proposed rules. The purpose of this as I stated in the general
debate is to eliminate the President's counsel from full participation
as though he were a party to a lawsuit in this proceeding. We are not
just leaning over backward in this set of rules to provide the Presi-
dent and his counsel with a fair and full opportunity to appear, to
attend, to audit, to suggest evidence, and to do many other things
which are unprecedented in impeachment proceedings. Instead of
just leaning over, I am afraid if we go along with this we are going
to be lying down, prostrate.

I pointed out before, this impeachment inquiry is not a lawsuit, it

is not a trial. It is not an adversary proceeding. The President is not
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a party to this inquiry. He is the subject of the inquiry. The Presi-

dent's counsel has no standing before this committee to participate,

as would an attorney before a court, in the proceedings which are going

on here. Not at this time, at least.

And if and v/hen there should be an impeachment by the House of

Eepresentativcs, then, of course there would be a trial in the Senate

and at that time the President and his counsel would have a full right

to participate and his counsel would have a right to examine wit-

nesses, to cross-examine and to do all of the things which are cus-

tomarily associated with the work of counsel in a trial. But, that is

not before this committee, not before this inquiry.

It was mentioned when the subcommittee had this matter before it

that the President's counsel should have the same right to examine
witnesses as should counsel for other witnesses.

That presumes the President is going to be a witness. If the Presi-

dent should appear as a witness then, yes ; I w^ould concede that since

his status here would be that of a witness, he would have, his counsel

would have the same right to object to the examination or the admis-

sibility of testimony and evidence as would counsel for any other

witness. But, until and unless the President becomes a witness then his

counsel does not have that status and should not.

At the present time it is clear that the President's counsel is in de-

fiance of this committee, of the Congress, of the Constitution, and of

tlie American people. I assume that Mr. St. Clair is acting as all good
counsel do and on matters of policy he is following the advice of his

client. I respectfully submit that his counsel has no business in appear-
irig as an adversary counsel in all of the matters which will take place

before this committee. As was stated by one member this morning, I

too, as an American, as a believer in fair play, as one wlio hopes that
our traditions of American justice are carried out, feel that my amend-
inent should be adopted because the American people too are entitled to

fairness and are entitled to have the constitutional provisions for

impeachment carried out to the letter by this committee.
The Chaip3Ian. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, thank you for recognizing me.
I feel very strongly about this particular provision, and I am very

strongly opposed to the gentleman's amendment. We have acknowl-
edged, I think, or many of us have acknowledged, and I have acknowl-
edged, that some of the privileges that we have extended, we have seen
fit to extend to the President and to his counsel, are just that. They are
not rights, they are a privilege.

They are subject to really complete control of the committee and
where we delegate the control to the chairman the chairman really
has complete control subject only to being overridden by the members
of the committee.

I suggest to my friend from California that if the President's coun-
sel were to get arbitrary, were to raise a steady stream of objections,
that that would not serve him very well in the eyes of the members of
the committee. And I also want to point out that these rules are subject
to being modified by the members of the committee, and, actually,
there are even additional procedural rights given to the chairman to
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exercise in his latitude subject to being overridden by the members
of a majority of the committee.
Now, let me just saj' we are bending over backward trying to give

the President and his counsel every opportunity to participate, not

because we want to do him a big favor but because a majority of us
are interested in getting to the truth of the whole Watergate affair

and all of the other allegations that have been leveled against. I think,

for instance, that there might arise an occasion when the President's
counsel might genuinely, sincerely, and correctly be concerned that

some witness that we decide to call may be going to testify to something
which would be better testified to in executive session.

In other words, something defamatory, something demeaning, and
I think it would be a shame if the President's counsel, at tlie proper
point, could not raise an objection.

This, in my opinion, would do a great injustice to these rules. These
rules are designed to be completely balanced. Tliey leave control in

the committee and control to a great extent in the chairman. To take
out something as important as this particular provision I tliink would
do a great disservice to the rules.

The Chairmax. I recognize Mr. Edwards,
Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman, I also am against the amendment. I

think this amendment and others that will be offered imply that democ-
racy and fair play can result only in unacceptable disruptions to tliis

committee, that somehow Mr. St. Clair will virtually destroy tlie

proceeding.

I do not really think the -^8 lawyers here liave that cynical view of
due process. And as INIr. Railsback says, tlie time honored seeking of
truth is through questions, through questioning witnesses. If so, let us
go ahead and see if it cannot work in all of its ugliness. I cannot think
it will happen. I am certain that it will not happen. I am confident that
the rules presented by this subcommittee, chaired so ably by Mr. Kas-
tenmeier, can handle this kind of a situation ver}' well and quite

properly.

Mr. Railsback points out and Mr. Danielson, my esteemed friend
from California, that tliis is not a grand jury. Of course it is not a
grand jury. No grand jury is elected like we are where certain members
go on and become prosecutors in court. This is also not a trial that we
are indulging in. This is a congressional hearing, something that has a
long history, congressional hearings with some very good and some
very bad aspects of it. This amendment, and the others that will fol-

low, fly in the face of precedents. The counsel has made a brief sum-
mary^ of a number of precedents, and I will not go into them in great

detail. But in a number of impeachments of the last 50 years. Judge
Speer in 1914, the counsel for Judsre Spoer was present before the
committee by courtesy of the committee and was permitted to cross-

examine. Judge Wilfley in 1908 responded and counsel was pennitted
before the committee, but their rights did appear to include the cross-

examination of certain witnesses which is something that we are not
asking for here.

Attorney General Daugherty in 1922, he was rejiresented by counsel

and given broad rights to present evidence. Judge Dayton in 1914
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and 1915, and I could go on in an overwhelming number of impeach-
ments before the Judiciary Committee of the House and other com-
mittees, alwaj'S there was substantial representation bv counsel for the

respondent.
This amendment, I am afraid, and the others that follow, would

license historians to say to us you extended less than due process, you
extended less due process to the President in tliis instance than you
did to other respondents in impeachment proceedings. And I do not

think that is acceptable. I think we at least should do as well as the

precedents indicate.

The supportei-s of this amendment would infer that the chairman
could not control the proceedings. As Mr. Railsback points out the

rules, as promulgated by the subcommittee, have ample procedures for

control. Every witness is subject to the rules of the chairman and sub-

ject to the gavel.

To our good civil libertarian friends here let me point out that for
many years the American Civil Liberties Union has been advocating
rules in the House and in the Senate allowing cross-examination. The
ACLU says

:

Though cross-examination lias not generally been recognized as a right or even
a privilege by congressional investigative committees, it is absolutely necessary
to prevent or expose unfounded charges which may ruin an individual's repu-
tation forever. The little time consumed by cross-examination is a fair price to

pay for the assurance that such injustice will be avoided.

And again may I point out that under the rules of the Kastenmeier
subcommittee, cross-examination is not being provided for. Strict rules

are applied.

In summary, I think that the rules as presented by the subcommittee
comply with the precedents. They comply with the requirements of
due process. They comply with the rules of fair play. They comply
with procedures, time proven, to get at the truth, and that is what
we are looking for.

Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman, I support this motion with some reluc-

tance. I am a member of the National Executive Board of the Ameri-
can Civil Liberties Union. So, I come to this question very sensitive
of the rights of a person to be represented by counsel.

Bitt, at the same time I think the question is really how such repre-
sentation will take place. Now, these precedents go all over the lot.

None of them speak directly to this precise question that we have and
I am very concerned that we do not write rules here that exceed our
authority even under the rules and the rules that Ave have been granted
to create the regulations under which we will proceed.

I think very definitely that we should limit the right of cross-

examination.
Now, it has been suggested that there is no right of cross-examina-

tion. Is that correct? Then I will yield to the subcommittee chairman,
or mv friend Mr. Edwards because I am not sure what these rules
provide for.

Mr. Kastenmeier. The rules provide I say to the gentleman from
Michigan, the rules provide for questioning by Mr. St. Clair, not for

41-018—75—pt. 1 32
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examination or cross-examination, which have altogether different

meanings. xVnd this, may I say to the gentleman, may arise, discussion
of this may arise somewhat later when an amendment to that effect is

offered. So, under this proposal, Mr. St. Clair, under very carefully

circumscribed circumstances has a right to question the witnesses, but
not to cross-examine or to examine witnesses,

Mr. CoNYERS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Mr. Cliairman
Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As a member of the subcommittee, I want to try to lend some light"

to this, and I do think that the precedents are overwhelming that the
lawyer for the President, for the respondent, cannot be placed at

any disadvantage, that all of the latter practice of tlie century says
that he must be, the accused or his counsel, must be permitted to ex-

plain, to present witnesses, to cross-examine.
I think tlierefore, that if we did place this particular restriction it

would be, as I read the precedents, the firet time that this has ever been
done in American history in any impeaeliment and even if those prece-

dents are not entirely clear, it seems to me we should recognize that
the role of counsel has been enlarged in the last generation, both by the
Canon of Ethics and by court decisions. I do not think that we can say
that this is a grand jury and, therefore, counsel can be excluded.

We have not done that under C2 for members of the committee or
counsel for the committee and I do not really think that you can place
the President's counsel as a second-class citizen.

And I think in conclusion, that even if some difficulties do arise, even
if some people feel that we have been overgenerous, it seems to me it is

better that we are charged with making or allowing Mr. St. Clair to

be the 39th member of the committee than with the charge that we have
denied him those procedural rights without whicli he cannot fully rep-

resent his client.

I yield back.

Mr. INIayne. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinan. Yes. I will yield.

Mr. Mayne. Well, I am a little uncertain as to the posture of the

subcommittee. I thouglit I just heard the chairman and the gentleman
from Wisconsin say that these rules, as proposed by the subcommittee,
would not permit the President's counsel to cross-examine, where as

the distingiiished gentleman from INIassachusetts has just pointed out
how essential that privilege is, that it has been widely accorded, cer-

tainly in this century and that he strongly supports it. I want him to

laiow that I certainly agree with him. But, I am frankly just diunb-
founded by the statement of the gentleman from Wisconsin that his

interpretation of these rules is that the President's counsel could not
cross-examine. What is the point in being able to ask questions in a

courtroom if you cannot cross-examine a witness ?

Mr. Drinan. If the gentleman will yield, will the gentleman from
Iowa yield ?

Mr. Mayne. I am happy to yield back to the gentleman.
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Mr. Drinaist. Under C2, it is my vuidcrstandiiig that in the teclmi-

cal sense, neither counsel for the committee or counsel for the Presi-

dent may cross-examine. That will be restricted to the Senate where
technically there is a trial, and that we are talking here about objec-

tions relating to the examination of witnesses or to the admissibility

of testimony and evidence maybe raised by all parties of the hearing,

by a witness, his counsel, a member of the committee, committee's

counsel or the President's counsel. So, I thinlc the answer is that under

C2 that there is no cross-examination for any party involved.

Mr. Danielson. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Matne. Well, was not the gentleman also referring to para-

graph 4, or did he mean to withhold comment on that ?

Mr. Drinan. Paragraph 4 is not in dispute in connection with Mr.
Danielson's amendment. We may or may not have, or we will have
amendments about that. That is not in issue at this moment.
Mr. Danielson. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. IVIayne. I thank the gentleman.

Mr. Danielson. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinan. Yes. I yield to Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. I appreciate your bringing this up. My amendment
very simply and clearly pertains only to subparagraph 2.

I am not talking about subparagraph 4. Under subparagraph 4 the

President's counsel is granted rather extensive rights of examination.

My objection is only to including the Pi'esident's counsel in sub-

paragraph 2 for the purpose of making objections to the examina-

tion of witnesses or the admissibility of testimony and evidence and
that is it. That is as far as it goes.

Under subparagraph 4 he is given rather broad latitude in examina-
tion of witnesses and he should be.

And I also would like to point out while I am at it that this has
nothing to do with due process. What is due process under one circum-

stance is not exactly the same as what is due process under another

circumstance. It depends upon the context. Due process before an
inquiry, an investigative board, and a grand jury is quite different

than due process in a criminal trial in the courts.

Mr. Drinan. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Danielson. Yes, I will be delighted to.

Mr, Drinan, Plow would you respond, Mr. Danielson, to the objec-

tion that under C2, if it is amended, amended as you would have
as amend it, that the President's counsel is at a very serious disadvan-

tage in relation to the members and their counsel, and to the witnesses

and their counsel ?

Mr. Danielson. I would respond that I disagree with the gentle-

man in the first place. In the second place he is not representing a
witness unless the President is here as a witness. In that event of course,

he would have the same rights as go to any other counsel for any
other witness.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman from Massachusetts has
expired.

Mr. Kangel.

Mr. Rangel. I would like to continue this with Father Drinan be-

cause I think he called the President as one of the accused. We have
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not reached that point, Father, and therefore, all of the counsel that

yon are talking about that people are entitled to is after they have
been accused and I certainly would join in with you to see that the

President is entitled to counsel if and when the case gets to the

Senate.

My question is to Mr. Kastenmeier as to the reasons why Mr. St. Clair
should be able to object to a question perhaps raised by a member on
this committee? And do I understand tliat this is to prote-t the wit-

ness from defaming possibly the character of another ^

Mr. Kastenmeier. If the gentleman will yield, I think that would
be one of the reasons. Did I understand him to say that we presume that

Mr. St. Clair—yes, could technically I guess object to—there is no
indication in that paragraph that Mr. St. Clair could object to a state-

ment made by a member of the connnittee. Is that what vou asked
about?

Mr. Rangel. Well, you could clear it up for me. Do you see in C2 the

possibility of an objection by Mr. St. Clair to a question directed by
a member of this committee to a witness ?

Mr, Kastenmeier. Yes.
Mr. Rangel. I can see clearly where the Avitness, if it is not the Pres-

ident, I can see where a witness could have his counsel object to a
question. But, it seems as I read C2. that Mr. St. Clair could object to

a question directed by a member of this committee to a witness.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Yes. He could under this paragraph.
Mr. Rangel. Now, my question is wlio would ^Nlr. St. Claii' be pro-

tecting if that witness has his or her own counsel ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. He may be protecting the President.

Mr. Rangel. Well, in this search for the truth, who would the wit-

ness be and how would Mr. St. Clair know that the President would
need this type of protection ?

Mr. Railsback. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr, HuNGATE. Will the gentleman yield to me?
Mr, Kastenmeier, I assume that Mr. St. Clair might well know the

nature of the testimony to be adduced.
Mr. Rangel. That is exactly my point, and that is why I support

this amendment, that if Mr. St. Clair is called liere to object and intimi-

date witnesses as we attempt to search for the truth, then it seems to

me that ho coidd protect the President without restricting the question-

ing of the committee. We have a chairman here, we have a ranking
member. We have counsel to guide us in the questions that we should
ask. And it seems to me that Mr. St. Clair should not be an additional

burden of preventing us from getting tlie answers that we need from
witnesses. We are not doing too well Avith the executive branch of
Government and I hope we can do better with other witnesses.

Mr. ITuNGATE. Would the gentleman from Xew York yield for a
moment ?

Mr. Rangel. I yield to Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. I have reason to believe from amendments I think

that will be proposed that there will be some effort to €all let us say

John Dean as a witness. Under this circumstance, as the rules are

presently proposed would it appear that his counsel would not have
a right to interject and cross-examine others but the President's would
although a key point may be on credibilit}' between those two ?
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Mr. Rangel. Are you sayino; Mr. St. Clair could object to questions

asked of John Dean ?

Mr. HuNGATE. If under the rules as presently proposed, do you un-

derstand it so ?

Mr. Rangel. I understood yes, that the President's counsel could

stop all of the questions.

Mr. Hungate. I would ask further if you think if Mr. Dean were
called as a witness, would his counsel have the concomitant right that

Mr. St. Clair has to object to other witness' testimony ?

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Dean would not have that right, or his counsel

would not have that right.

Mr. Railsback. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Ivastenmeier. If the gentleman would yield I would only re-

spond by saying of course, any such objection is made subject to the

rule of the chairman or by the committee and I have every confidence

that the committee can cope with the situation and that the chairman
can.

Mr. Rangel. Well, I believe that. I have a lot of confidence in the

Chair. But, my concern is that if a witness has to look at Mr. St. Clair

to see whether he is going to object before he answers a question that

the intimidation might be a deterrence to our line of questioning. He
would have to wait until rulings come from the Chair.

I turn back the balance of my time.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman. I am in support of the motion of the

gentleman from California. I believe that he ought to have the right

to cross-examination but I am struck at the nature, the extensive rights

that this provision gives him. Just as a matter of information, how
will the comisel for the President participate? Will he be seated at

counsel table? Are there any rights that he will possess less than the

rights of Mr. Doar?
The Chairman. My understanding is that counsel, if these rules of

procedure are to prevail, would be given the same right to sit at the

counsel table.

Mr. Waldie. Are there any rights that he would possess less than the

right of a member of this committee ?

The Chairiman. I would think so. He would not have a right to vote

on any question that may arise.

Mr. Waldie. That is comforting.
Mr. Kasti-^nmeier. If the gentleman will yield ?

Mr. Waldie. Yes.
The Chairman. First of all, I think it has been stated, and I do not

think it is necessary for the Chair to restate, but it is not a right but a
privilege or a courtesy which is being extended to the President's

counsel.

Mr. Waldie. Well then, would it not be equally valid to simply say
the President's counsel may sit in attendance at the committee hear-

ings and will be accorded rights as he seeks them in accordance, in

accord with the desire of the committee and spell them out no differ-

ently than that?
The Chairman. That is a question for the committee to determine.
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Mr. Waldie. And those rights may be more extensive than those set

forth here and they may be less extensive, depending upon two things

I would assume, the mood of the committee and the cooperation with
the procedures as demonstrated by the President and his counsel. And
it is that latter fact that gives me the most concern today.

I was a champion of the broad extensive rights of representation

on the part of the President assuming that we were seeking truth and
that would assist us in finding it. Last night and the day of response to

the subpena I became disabused that the desire to find truth was shared
equally by all participants to this hearing.

jNIr. ]McCloky. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Waldie. Therefore, I am less inclined to grant to the counsel

for the President the extensive rights the President demanded in that

amazingly arrogant speech on television the other night. Among his

other demands he insisted that representation be given his counsel

before this committee. It seems to me it is time now, Mr. Chairman,
that this committee decide what it will do in that respect. And a broad,

blanket acknowlegement that the President's counsel wull have his re-

quests for participation considered, and considered intently and sin-

cerely, it would seem to me would comply with all of the requirements
of courtesy and comity that we need extend at this moment.

]Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
]Mr. Kastenmeier. I would like to respond to the gentleman from

California.

First of all, there is a desire to spell out in advance as well as we can
what procedures shall be followed, and what courtesies, or rights or

privilege various participants shall have. I do not believe it can be

kept so undetermined as the gentleman from California suggests and
still have us hope to have a proceeding which the people will have
some understanding of their roles, and that we can proceed on an
orderly basis.

I subscribe to much of what the gentleman from California said with
reference to last night. But, that is another matter. That is not the san.ie

matter. We should not respond to how we see Mr. St. Clair's role in

terms of whether he has been cooperative in other respects. That stands

on its own feet. We have the charge of being fair and we also have the

charge of learning the truth.

And it is his participation in this connection that we provide for him.

I might also point out he does not have all of the rights of our counsel

or other members of this committee.
We may delineate and limit and I would read number 4. "The Presi-

dent's counsel may question any witness called before the committee,

subject to the instructions from the chairman
Mr. Danielson. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Kastenmeier [continuing]. Respecting the time, scope and dur-

ation of the examination." And in other respects throughout this doc-

ument, you will see certain limitations placed on the President's coun-

sel. He does not have the capacity to examine the evidence iji the annex.

He may not. He may not interrupt or object to the presentation of our

counsel at the outset. And in other regards he is completely subject to

the chairman and to this committee.
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I think for these reasons the gentleman from California, JSIr. Daniel-

son's amendment ouofl^t to be rejected.

Mr. Danielson. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. The gentleman still has the time. Will the gentle-

man yield to the gentleman ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I yield to the gentleman from California, Mr.
Danielson. I have the time.

Mr, Danielson. I would just like to simply point out that the gen-

tleman has been again misled by diverting to paragraph 4 and other

paragraphs. The amendment reaches only paragraph 2, and very lim-

ited, very extensive within that limitation, right granted to the Presi-

dent's counsel. I concede that under one reason we should eliminate

this from paragraph 2, which is the fact that in paragraph 4 Ave have
given the President's counsel broad latitude in examination. My
amendment simply prevents him from obstructing the proceedings.

]Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman ?

The CiiAiRaiAN. Mr. Edwards.
]\Ir. Edwards. Mr. Chairman, I do not think that we should be neces-

sarily wedded to precedent in the Committee on the Judiciary, but

certainly we should pay a certain amount of decent respect to them.

After all, our predecessors who were members of this committee had
some problems too, and did some very thoughtful work in this area.

The last case we had of impeacliment that went from the Judiciary

Committee to the House and to the Senate for trial was that of Fed-
eral Judge Ritter in 1936. Chairman Sumners, I believe, of South
Carolina was the chairman of the Judiciary Committee and he said, and
I quote Chairman Sumners

:

We find it to be the purpose of the committee to hold the introduction of testi-

mony and the proceedings fairly within the rules recognized in civil proceedings
in court, but since this inquiry is primarily for the purpose, in the first instance,

of familiarizing those who constitute the subcommittee with all the facts and
in order to develop a record which in turn will jiermit the full Committee of the
Judiciary, and maybe the Members of the House, that read the proceedings, to

familiarize themselves with the facts, a good deal of liberty will be allowed in

the introduction of testimony.
Counsel for Judge Ritter will, of course, when they see fit, interpose objec-

tions when they feel such objections should be made.

Counsel for Judge Ritter responded, this is the lawyer for Judge
Ritter

:

We appreciate the fact that in this type of proceeding we are permitted to

appear here by courtesy of the committee, and we wish to assure you that we
will not abuse the privilege or unnecessarily transgress upon the time of the
committee. We will fully cooperate with you throughout the entire proceeding,
and enable you to get to the truth, and in any way determine the truth of the
matter brought to your attention.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I do not pretend that this is Mr. St. Clair
speaking in this last quote. But, I do think that it is important to call

to the attention of my colleagues the last precedent that we have and
to my knowledge the only one where the matter went to the Senate.

Mr. HtJNGATE. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr, Huncate.
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Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, there is nothing lawyers love better
than precedent. "President Grant," and I read from Forge of Democ-
racy, "was harassed by a request from the House to submit informa-
tion obviously intended to embarass him. He had followed the practice
of taking extended vacations outside Washington, and the House asked
him to list all the Presidential acts he liad 'performed at a dis-
tance from the seat of government' witn exi)]anations of why he was
absent from the Capital City. Grant already had become familiar with
House investigations. In 1867. when he was still a genei-al. lie liad been
called to testify on the parole he had granted General Eobert E. Lee
and Lee's army at Appomattox. 'I will state here.' Grant said, in
response to the hostile questions, 'that I am not quite certain whether
I am being tried, or who is being tried by the questions asked.' In
response to the demand for information he received as President, Grant
replied that the request indicated the intent to impeach him. If this was
so, he said, it violated the fifth amendment 'a constitutional guaran-
tee which protects every citizen, the President as well as the humblest
in the land, from being made a witness against himself.'

"

I submit that that is more of a precedent at the stage at which we
now are than one that actually got through the House and into the
Senate, and I would inquire of INIr. Daniclson or the chairman of the
subcommittee if this hallowed precedent should find a 20th century
echo would we still be blessed with Mr. St. Clair's assistance in search-
ing for the truth ?

Mr. I^STENMEiER. I am afraid that I cannot enlighten my friend
on that point.

Mr. HuNGATE. I yield back the balance of my time.

The Chairman. The gentleman from Pennsylvania, Mr. Eilberg.

Mr. En.BERG. Mr. Chairman, I find myself somewhat torn on this

question and could go either way. I think that I am impressed with the
President's failure to comply and feel that we are dealing with an
unworthy client insofar as his concern with this committee in our de-
sire to obtain the truth. On the other hand, I am impressed with the
arginnents that have been made involving fair ])lay, even to an un-
worthy individual, or one who has demonstrated unworthy conduct.
I think the thing I want to do is ask you, Mr. Chairman, if j^ou

could give us some guidance, the chairman of the full committee, in
terms of suppose we are confronted with obstructive tactics by ISIr.

St. Clair where there is an effort or an obvious intimidation of wit-
nesses? I realize it is hard to construct precise actual situations, but
can you give us any advice as to that ?

The Chairmax. Well, I am sure that the gentleman knows already
the Chair would not tolerate any obstruction and I am sure that the

committee would certainly support the Chair in tliat kind of a ruling.

The Chair has already stated, I think when the Chair considered the

question as to wliat participation the counsel to the President would
be permitted to take in the proceedings and I think the Chair went as

far. I believe, as counsel to the President should be jiermitted to go
in the interest of fair play and that was to provide him with every

opportunity that I think is consistent with the ndes contained herein.

And the Chair certainly feels that any ruling that he might make would
be consistent witli the rules that would be adopted here.
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Mr. EiusERG. I Avill yield to the gentleman from Michigan.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. I yield to the ranking minority member.
Mr. HuTCHixsox. I simply want to state. Mr. Chairman, that I

agree with the statement that you just made. I am sure that the corn-

committee would not tolerate any obstruction. Our purpose is to seek

the truth. And we would not want to have the right to object so used

as to abuse the process or the progress of this committee.

Mr. Kastenjieier. Mr. Chairman? Mr. Chairman, I move the pre-

vious question.

The Chairman. The question is on the motion offered by the gentle-

man from California. All those in favor of the amendment please

say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairmax. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of '"noes.'*]

The Chairman. And the noes seem to liave it and the noes have it,

and the amendment is not agreed to.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.

Mr. Dex'nis. jNIr. Chairman, I have an amen.dment at the desk at

this time and I would like to offer my amendment No. ?>, which is

page 3, paragraph C4.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman, is it his intention to offer his

five amendments in sequence at this time?

Mr. Dennis. No, unless of course, if tlie cliairman wants to recog-

nize me for that kind of purpose. Actually, I was going to offer them
seriatim, but I intended to offer Xo. 3, because it seems to be relevant

to the discussion we have just been having. I have two that come
after that in the bill and two that come before. As a matter of fact.

But, I am only offering Xo. 3 at this time and I am perfectly willing

to offer any number for which I may be recognized.

The Chairman. Well, I would think the gentleman will be recog-

nized one at a time.

Mr. Dennis. That is what I figured, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. And will the clerk read tlie amendment, please.

The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment offered by Mr. Dennis of Indiana.
Page 3, paragraph C4. In tlie first line of paragraph 4, strike out the word,

"question," and insert in lieu thereof tlie words, "examine and cross-examine."
In the second line of subparagraph 4 at the liottom of page 3, strike out the

words, "instructions from" and substitute therefore the words, "the rulings of."

At the top of page 4 in subparagraph 4 of paragraph C, place a period after

the word, "member," in the first line on page 4 and strike out the balance of the

first line. Strike out the word, "examination," in the second line ; add the fol-

lowing additional sentence to said paragraph 4, "Such rulings shall be final un-
less overruled by a vote of a majority of the members present."

The Chairmax^. The gentleman from Indiana.
Mr. Dex^nis. Thank you, Mv. Chairman. ]Mr. Chairman, and my col-

leagues on the committee, if this amendment is adopted, paragraph
C-t, which you will find at tlie bottom of page 3 and the top of page 4,

it will read as follows

:
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The President's counsel may examine and cross-examine any witness called

before the committee, subject to the ruling of the chairman or presiding mem-
ber. Such ruling shall be final unless overruled by a vote of a majority of the
members present.

j\Ir. Chairman, when I drew this amendment, it had a little less im-
portance in my mind than it does now because in my view the word
"question,"' for which I substitute "examine and cross-examine" is

certainly broad enough to cover examination and cross-examination
both, because they both fall within the })i'oad term "question" in my
humble judgment. But, the opinion has been expressed now that "ques-
tion" means something different, although as far as I am concerned
if you are dealing with a witness I do not know what you can do except
examine or cross-examine. It seems to me that if you ask him a ques-

tion you are doing one or the other almost necessarily. But, if there is

any question, this would nail it down. I think the right of cross-exam-
ination is the really important matter here. I am very much gratified

that the subcommittee has acknowledged tlie principle of participa-
tion by the President's counsel, but, if such participation is to be mean-
ingful, and if it is to be in accordance with the precedents as cited by
my friend. Mr. Edwards from California, it has to include cross-exam-
ination. That is mostly the purpose of a lawyer, being present in the
courtroom. Now, I cannot imagine that we want to extend this privilege
and tliat is what it is, not a right, a privilege, to the President's coun-
sel to be present unless we want to make it meaningful and effective and
unless we truly do want to use it as an engine to discover the truth.

Now, I have another amendment coming after a while in which I
take up the matter of calling live evidence, witnesses, oral testimony.
Certainly, there cross-examination becomes of greatest importance.
Personally I am going to have to vote here on an impeachment resolu-

tion and so are all of us, and it is a very important vote. I want to
know everything I can know about it. I do not know whether examina-
tion of the witnesses here will assist the cause of the President or hurt
it. It might work either way. It is a two-edged sword. But, what this

amendment does is provide that the President's counsel can do some-
thing useful to us after we bring him here. He can examine and cross-

examine witnesses, subject to the ruling of the chairman, who will

capably act the part of the court here and who can be overruled only
by a majority vote of tlie committee. And that is exactly what this

amendment does, all it does. It is not a partisan amendment at all. It
is an amendment designed to help the members of this committee get
tlie facts, which I think is what we want to do. And I certainly
strongly commend it to all of my colleagues without regard to which
side of the aisle they may be sitting on just as a matter of efficiency

and fairness.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. I would like to speak to the amendments, and

they are, I can see, not partisan but rather procedural amendments.
They are important amendments. Although I will not take all of my
5 minutes, I think in answering them, I recognize, Mr. Chairman, I

think there are some 15 or Ifi am(mdments pending, more since lunch,
I understand and I appreciate (hat we must not prolong. However,
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:Mr. Dennis" amendment is important. What it presumes to do by sub-

stituting for the word "questions" or "questioning", may question

any witness, may examine and cross-examine, has very special mean-

ing. It should be pointed out that this amendment envisions an adver-

sarial procedure that we have scrupulously avoided up to this point,

and while up to this point we have conceded the President's counsel

the right to question witnesses, subject to certain limitations, we do

not presume that he shall, in an adversarial role, lead the witness,

move to strike, or otherwise proceed as one would in a trial. As the

gentleman from California, Mr. Edwards, has suggested, this is re-

served to the Senate. Therefore, it would be not merely unnecessary,

but wrong to use the words "examine" and "cross-examine" rather

than the word "question."

Second, as to instructions from rather than rulings of, instructions

from the chairman presumes that the committee and the chairman

do control the proceedings and may instruct in advance Mr. St. Clair

as to how he may proceed. However, "rulings from" contemplates

that the chairman may only rule after the President's counsel has

proceeded and, therefore, greatly limits the capacity of the chairman

to control the proceedings.

These are the basic two reasons why in my estimation, amendment
Xo. 3 of the gentleman from Indiana must be rejected. I would only,

Mr. Chairman, recommend that perhaps counsel—I see Mr. Doar
has gone. Perhaps Mr. Jenner miffht briefly comment on the meaning
of examine and cross-examine in this context.

The CiiATRAiAN. Mr. Jenner.

Mr. Jenner. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and Mr. Kastenmeier.^ As
all the committee knows, at the outset of the matter of the participa-

tion by President's counsel in these proceedings, it was my view and
urging that the President's counsel be permitted to participate.

i strongly believed in that. You will find precedent, Mr. Edwards,
also in the material to which you averted that the chairmen, the past

chairmen of House inquiry, impeachment inquiry committees have
stated on several occasions that wide latitude is to be afforded to coun-

sel for respondents in the questioning and examination or questioning

or examination of witnesses, that cross-examination in tlie sense that

we lawyers understand it to be, that is as a word of art, is not to be

permitted. In framing this material, Mr. Dennis, an effort was made
to strike an even balance in that respect. The word question here is

intended to mean a wide latitude of examination. The difficulty with
using the word cross-examine, because it is a word of legal art, it was
tliought would import into the rules the right to ask exacerbating,

leading questions, to make assumptions of fact, and make declarations

and conclusions and to get into problems of the scope of cross-examina-
tion where they are limited to the direct or otherwise, whether to

permit counsel, as we do in the trial of a case, to move to strike what is

allegedly a nonresponsive answer and technically unless as you know,
the witness under examination is a party, nonresponsive answers must
be stricken. It was felt, Mr. Dennis, that this would afford what you
wish, and the heart of what you are presenting, and maintain the
dignity and the course of these proceedings, but afford to the fullest

extent under the ruling of the Chair or comments of the committee
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to the Chair, members of the committee and the Chair the fullest

possible basis of inquiry on the part of Mr. St. Clair in questioning a
witness.

The Chairman. Thank you.
jNIr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, may I inquire of Mr. Jenner
Tlie Chairman. ]\[r. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I Avould like to have also Mr. .Ten-

ner's attention in respect to the present lancruage recommended unan-
imously by tlie subcommittee. It is my own belief that there is not
anything that would prevent the chairman under certain circum-
stances from permitting Mr. St. Clair to cross-examine. For instance, if

he had a hostile witness.

Mr. Jenner. That is correct.

Mr. Railsback. Is that correct?
Mr. Jenner. That is correct.

Mr. Railsback. In other words, what you are saying is in tlie

normal circumstances where you do not have, where you do not have
a hostile witness, Mr. St. Clair would be permitted to examine or to

question but I assume, Mr. Chairman, that in the event there was a
very hostile witness that was not cooperating with Mr. St. Clair that
if Mr. St. Clair asked the chairman for the right to cross-examine, that
same right could be extended as would be extended under similar cir-

cumstances in a trial. Is that correct ?

Mr. Jenner. That is correct. That is my understanding.
Mr. Railsback. Well, if tliat is true, I personally am satisfied with

the language as it is and that was my understanding as well.

^Ir. Sandman. Would the wntleman yield ?

i\rr. Railsback. Yes: I vrill be glad to yield.

Mr. Sandman. The thing I cannot undeistand is that you say that
under section 4 on page 3 the chairman can allow the right to cross-

exnmine. The amendment that tlie gentleman from Indiana has put
fortli makes it very clear that he shall have the right to cross-examine.
Now, you have not raised any question against that, have you, Mr.
Jenner ?

Mr. Jenner. If I understand your question, sir. none of the coun-
sel for the staff or for the committee has nnv o]:)iection or misiivinji
about permitting, the Chair permitting a witness to be cross-examined
when tho circumstnnces of need for cross-exnmination ariso. That is.

Mr. Railback has postured a

Mr. Sandivian. Yes, but are vou saA'inef

Mr. Jenner fcontinuingl. Hostile witness.

Mr. Sandman. Are you suggesting he should not have tlie right to

cross-examine ?

IMr. Jenner. He should not hnve the rifht in the first instance
alwavs, except when the chairman should in turn deny that right
to him to cross-examine.

Mr. Ratlsback. If I still had the time and I think I still have the

time and then I yield back.
The Chairman. Mr. Railsback still has the time.

Mr. Railsback. Let me iust say that I can see where situations

coidd arise where Mr. St. Clair is not. he is not exactiv examining
somebody that is necessarily an opposing or a hostile witness and in
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that instance he should examine that witness if that witness becomes
hostile. I would hope that this committee would afford him the right

to cross examine. That is what I am saying.

Mr. Sandman. Will you yield ?

Mr. Railsback. Yes, I will be glad to.

Mr. Sandman. It amazes me the credence that has been given to

the case of Justice Douglas. Everybody likes to cite that when it

suits their convenience. Xow, he clearly says on page 2, the respondent
and his counsel may attend every session at which evidence is taken
or at which arguments are addressed to the subcommittee. Subpara-
graph 2 in bold print, the respondent personally and through coun-
sel may cross examine all witnesses and call witnesses on his own be-
lialf . Now, do you have any argument with this ? And he cites a long
line of precedent.

Mr. Jenner. If you do not mind, Mr. Congressman, I do not have
any argimient with Judge R ifkind on anything and that is Judge
Rifkind's contention with respect to that particular proceeding.
Mr. Sandman. Is it not supported by a vast amount of authority ?

Mr. Jenner. May I say, sir, I have read all of the authority that
Judge Rifkind cited in support and I must respectfully say that ]

think that Judge Rifkind is one of the great lawyers of this coun-
try, but the precedents do not support the affirmative statement he
makes. He is a great lawyer.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous question.
The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered by the

gentleman from Indiana.
All those in favor of the amendment please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. The Chair is in doubt. All those in favor please
raise their hands.
The Chair will count.

[Show of hands.]
The Chaerman. All those opposed ?

[Show of hands.]
The Chairman. A call of the roll is demanded.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Tlie Chairman. And the clerk will call the roll. All those in favor
of the amendment will please say aye and all those opposed, no.
The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
]Mr. Edwards. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. No.
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The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.

IVIr. Eilberg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
]Mr. CoNYERS. By proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Mtinn.
Mr. Mann. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk. JNIr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
The Chairman. By proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. RangeL
Mr. Rangel. No.
Tlie Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
The Chairman. I have a proxy. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
]Mr. Mez\t:nsky. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Smith.
]Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
ISIr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Ci^RK. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Ave.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. No.
The Clerk. Mv. ISIayne.

]\rr. Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mi'. Hogan.
]\rr. HoGAN. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. ~Mr. Butler.

Mv. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
IVIr. Cohen. Aye.
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The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

JNIr. Lott. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. MooiaiEAD. Aye.
The Clerk. ^Ii-. Maraziti.

[No response.]

The Clerk. jNIr. Latta.

Mr. HuTciiixsoN. Proxy. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr, Rodino.
The Chairman. No. And the Chair has a proxy for Mr. Flowers,

No. And Mr. Donohue is present. Mr. Donohiie.
Mr. Donohue. Votes no.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

ISIr. Maraziti. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Maraziti.

^Ir. Mar.\ziti. I ask permission to cast my vote. Aye.
The Chairman. Mr. ISIaraziti votes aye.

Tlie Clerk. Mr. Chairman, 15 have voted aye, 23 have voted no.

The Chairman. And the amendment is not agreed to.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis, might I inquire, in light of the fact that the chairman

of the subcommittee tells me that you have four other amendments
and there are four amendments I notice at the desk, does the gentleman
intend to take up fully 5 minutes in explaining each amendment?
Otherwise I am going to have to recognize others.

Mr. Dennis. Well, I have two amendments, Mr. Chairman, which
are minor comparatively, modifications of the matter of the Presi-

dent's counsel. Therefore, more or less on the same subject, but they
are different subjects. I do not think they would take long debate.

Then I have two other amendments on wholly unrelated topics on
Avhich I would like to take a little more time.

The Chairman. Well, I recognize the gentleman.
Mr. Dennis. I will handle it hoAvever the chairman wants. My

theory now would be to take the two that we might call short amend-
ments and then the others later.

The Chairman. The chairman recognizes the gentleman from
Indiana.
Mr. Dennis. I have an amendment at the desk, Mr. Chairman. My

amendment No. 1, on page 2, paragraph 3B.
The Chairman. The clerk will read the amendment.
The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment offered by Mr. Dennis of Indiana. On Page 2, paragraph B3 in
line 3 of said paragraph 3, strike out the word, "precise."

In line 4 of said paragraph B3, strike out the words, "precisely and in de-
tail," and substitute for the matter so stricken the words, "generally and in
summary form."

The Chairman. The gentleman from Indiana.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, this is a modest amendment which

tightens up and in my humble judgment improves the language of
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paragraph B3 regarding the rights extended to counsel for the Presi-

dent. We say here he shall be invited to submit written requests and
precise summaries of what a witness would testify to if he has to call

or asks to call a witness. I submit that written requests on summaries
of what he would propose to show is quite adequate and that when you
get to precise summaries it is too detailed and makes for too much
argument. Again, we say here in the case of a witness he should submit
precisely and in detail what the expected testimony of the witness

would be if called. Now, I can readily imagine without any difficulty

a situation where you could state generally and in summaiy form
which is the language I propose, what a witness is expected to testify

to. But, it might be quite difficult, maybe even impossible to say pre-

cisely, and in detail, because witnesses surprise you. And then we get

into an argument it seems to mo about whether the submission was
sufficient and so on. So, I am just saying if he has a summary of what
he proposes to show, and a statement generally in the summary form
of wliat he expects to prove, that th.at is all he can fairly be asked to

do, should be asked to do, and I offer the amendment as an improve-
ment.
Mr. Railsrack. Would you yield ?

oMr. Dennis. I yield to the gentleman,
!Mr. Rait.sback. I thank the gentleman for yielding. And let me just

say that the reason for having the language precise summaries and
precisely and in detail is, as T understand it, and. Mr. Chairman, you
can correct me if I am wrong but it was our hope that if it was detailed

and precise enough, that possibly there could be, that an offer could
be made in the nature of an offer of proof, which could be accepted

and become a part of the evidentiary record. Li other words, without
having to go tlirough calling a live witness. Is that right?

]\Ir. Kastexmeier. If the gentleman will yield, that is my under-
standing.

Mr. T>ENXTS. I have the floor. I yield.

Mr. Kastexmeter. Has the gentleman concluded?
]\Tr. Dexxis. Yes. I yield to the gentleman.
Mr. KASTEX^tEiER. Well, I would only say that furthermore this is

still a factfinding exercise. This is not trial. We need precise and de-

tailed information. We need to know this in advance. We have as a

matter of fact on page 1 you wull note been very clear about the

detailed nature of our own staff' report. We are not interested in gen-

eralized summaries in terms of what this committee is all about and
in dealing with the President's counsel. This is part of what we require,

and I would only say, Mr. Chairman, that counsel I think could
fui-ther amplify this. Perhaps. Mr. Chairman, if the gentleman from
Indiana would permit, ]Mr. Jenner might comment further.

The Chatrmax. The gentleman from Indiana still has the time.

Mr. Dexxts. If I still have the floor, of course I would be glad to

honr from Hsiv. Jenner.
The CiiAiRMAX. Mr. Jenner.
]\Ir. Jexxer. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My position is not a happy

one. I must respond professionally to this question. All of you know
that in the course of litigation occasions arise in which witnesses who
have relevant evidence, testimony to be adduced are not immediately
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available. That is the normal circumstance and then counsel seeks delay
and assigns a new day to afford the opportunity to produce that wit-

ness. It is usual and customary in all cases under those circmnstances,
a,nd others I could cite that the court says if you will present a precise

statement of what the witness will testify to, it may well be that
opposing counsel will agree to accept the precise statement or in my
judgment, in exercising my discretion in control of the courtroom,
and the trial, will accept that statement as an evidentiary statement.
The difficulty with the use of a word "general" or "summary" unless
]Mr. Dennis means the sort of thing I am really tallding about anyhow,
that you are not sufficiently informed frequently as to really what the
thrust of the testimony of the witness is intended to be, for example,
a general summary could be that Jones will appear and testify in favor
of something or other, which does not help you any. It is really an
argumentative, inelusitory statement. It could well be, Mr. Chairman
and Mr. Dennis, that using both the word "precise" and the word
"detailed" is somewhat on the restrictive side, but one or the other
should be employed.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Jenner, if I may say so, of course I would agree

with you if we were talking about an offer of proof. But, it does
not seem to me that is exactly what we are doing here. All we're
doing is making a general showing of relevance so that this com-
mittee can decide that this man has got something on a topic in which
we are interested. And I do not see why there is any need for that pur-
pose to make a detailed offer of proof as you might in a courtroom
if the witness were permitted to answer. I offer to prove that he would
testify so and so, and that is not the point. Here it seems to me all

we need to do is to determine that here is something we are interested
in.

Mr. Brooks [presiding]. The time of the gentleman has expired.
Are there any further comments ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I move the previous question.
Mr. Brooks. The gentleman has moved the previous question, and

as many as are in favor of it vote aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

Mr. Brooks. Opposed, no.

[Chorus of "noes."]

Mr. Brooks. In the opinion of the Chair, the noes have it. The
noes have it and the amendment is not agreed to.

The Chair recognizes the gentleman from Indiana for another
amendment.
Mr. Dennis. I offer my amendment number 2, page 3, paragraph

B3 at the top of the page.
The Clerk [reading].

Amendment offered by Mr. Dennis of Indiana.
On page 3, paragrapli B3, in tlie tliird line on page 3, insert tlie words,

"or desirable," after the word, "necessary," in said third line.
In the fourth line at the top of page 3, strike out the word, "whether," and the

words, "summaries shall be accepted." In the fifth line on page 3, strike out the
words, "as part of the record or."

In the sixth line on page 3, strike out the period after the word "received",
^substitute a comma for the period and add the words, "as requested."

41-Ois—75—pt. 1 33
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Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Brooks. The gentleman is recognized for 5 minutes.
_

Mr. Dennis. Mr.Chairman and members of the committee, I think

that this amendment has a little more force and effect to it tlian per-

haps the last one, a little more importance maybe, if you want to use

that word. And I submit it to my collea,gues' attention. WHiat this does

first and foremost is to give the committee an option when the Presi-

dent's counsel is making a request to call evidence, to grant that not

merely if we think it is necessary, which is the effect of the present

rule, but in any case where we think for any reason it is desirable.

Now, it leaves it up to us whether we think it is desirable. All I am
saying is we should not have to be tied down to a standard of absolute

necessity. And then I go on to say that if we do think it is necessary

or desirable, the additional testimony shall be received instead of say-

ing that if we think it is necessary that then we go ahead and decide

whether summaries shall be accepted as part of the record, or whether

we will call additional testimony, and so on. I just say that if we think

it is necessary or we think it is desirable we go ahead and receive it.

It simplifies it and it broadens it.

Mr. Brooks. The gentleman from Wisconsin, Mr. Kastenmeier.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman, striking of the language "sum-
maries shall be accepted" as part of the record, I think this amend-
ment must be rejected because with respect to all other information the

committee must decide what goes in the record. This is important be-

cause the procedures are for handling impeachment inquiry material

which were adopted in February by the committee provide only testi-

mony, papers, or things that are included in the record will be re-

ported to the House.
Mr. Dennis. Would my friend yield briefly ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Yes, I yield.

Mr. Dennis. Does not the gentleman from Wisconsin think that

under my version or without writing summaries for the record in here,

that if that is the form in which this committee decided to go ahead
and receive the evidence, that under our general rules and powers we
can certainly do it that way, if that is the way we want to do it ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. It may well be the case. I would not say we could
not. But, I think the language, whether the summary shall be accepted
as part of the record, that a committee determination is necessaiy for

our purposes and ought not be removed, as the gentleman proposes.
Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentleman yield for a question ?

Mr. Dennis. I think, I am not sure who has the floor, but I cer-

tainly yield for a question if I have it.

Mr. Wiggins. My question is directed to IMr. Kastenmeier. I am con-
fused about the, language of the subcommittee. It appears to me that
there are two determinations to be made when a request for addi-
tional evidence is suggested by counsel for the President. The fii-st

determination is for the committee to decide if it is necessary and then,
having made that determination, there is the second determination to
be made and that is whether summaries shall be accepted in lieu of
the additional testimony itself. Is that a correct reading of the pro-
posed language?

jSIr. Kastenmeier. I believe it is. I yield to counsel for comment.



511

Mr. Woods. Gentleman, it was intended that that would be the
result, that that is in eifect an offer of proof and the offer could be
accepted in the form in which the summary was presented or the
committee might decide that it preferred to hear the testimony or
other evidence itself.

Mr. Wiggins. And the gentleman from Indiana alters tliat proce-
dure which we have agreed is the procedure recommended by the
subcommittee by adding "or desirable" which interjects an additional
element but it removes the second determination as to whether a
summary might be accepted and we then decide Avhether to accept
the testimony itself as distinguished from the summary? Is that vour
understanding. Really I ought to direct that to you, Dave.
Mr. Dennis. Well, the gentleman is correct, except actually we

decide whether to accept additional testimony or evidence in some
other form, because I leave that language in there. So, I think you
could actually under that language use your summary if you really
wanted to. Well, it would just read tliat if so the additional testimony
in some other form shall be received as requested.
Mr. IvASTENMEiER. Well, I would submit and I would ask counsel

to comment on that in any event, if that is what the import of the
gentleman's amendment is, it is unnecessary at the very best and at
worst it makes it difficult for the committee to determine whether in
fact summaries shall be accepted as part of the record. Is that not a
fair reading of the effect of the gentleman's amendment ?

Mr. Woods. Yes. Congressman, it seems to me that the woixlino'
that was reported by the subcommittee makes it much clearer that
the committee will have the opportunity to accept a summary as an
offer of proof m lieu of taking the committee's time to receive the
testimony itself.

Mr. Wiggins. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Dennis. I will yield to the gentleman.
Mr. Wiggins. I would just like to complete my thoughts. I do not

like to oppose the gentleman from Indiana because I think he makes
frequent valuable considerations to our committee. But I would like
to have the assurance of the subcommittee chairman that the word
necessary" m his draft is not intended to mean absolute necessity
but would include such factors as desirability in deciding that
question. *=

Mr. Kastenmeier. I personally am disposed to agree with the o-entle-
rnan. I think that the word "necessary" was used' as a protection for
the committee. But I would think a broad construction of the word
IS desirable.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, if the gentleman thinks that, I cannot
understand really why he objects to the word "desirable" because he
is ]ust saying what I am saying.
Mr. Wiggins Well, I do not even know who has the time, but I amgoing to keep talking •

Mr. Brooks. The gentleman from Wisconsin has the time and
yielded to you.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Does counsel care to comment on that

«

Mr. Jenner I share—I am pleased to have the opportunity to say
tliat I share with Mr. Dennis the addition of the words "or desiral)le"
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after the word "necessary" in line 3. It does afford the committee
somewhat more flexibility to apply to standards and not be possibly

placed in the position of what is the "word "necessary" which might
limit the discretion of the committee at some phase.

Mr, Kastenmeier. ]Mr. Chairman, would ISIr. Woods care to com-
ment?
Mr. "Woods. Yes. I would like to say that the amendment really in-

volves two separate questions and one to which Mr. Wig,o;ins addressed
himself, the meaning of the word "necessary." Certainly in drafting
this, "necessary" was not intended to have a literal absolutely essential

interpretation, and it was meant to mean necessary in the sense of
what would be an appropriate record in the committee's determina-
tion. And my comment earlier, was not meant at all to be addressed
to the addition of the words "or desirable" which it seems to me were
within the original meaning of the word "necessary" but rather with
the remainder of the amendment.
Mr. Kastenmeier. I having the time I would comment further then,

this confirms my own point of view, one that it is probably not neces-

sary to have the words "or desirable," but "or desirable" is not anti-

thetical to the m.eaning of the statement and whether it reads is neces-

sary and close "necessary" is understood to have a broad construction,

or whether one desires to have the words "or desirable," is not of grave
importance as far as I am concerned. And if he would offer an amend-
ment to include only the words "or desirable" it would be acceptable

as far as I am concerned.

Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I yield to the gentleman from Ohio.
Mr. Seiberling. In other words, what you are saying is that the

word "desirable" is not necessary but it is desirable ?

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Kastenmeier ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Htjngate. Mr. Chairman, I would ask to be recognized.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. I would like to inquire of the gentleman from In-

diana first if he could agree to amending the amendment so that it

said "necessary or desirable" and the rest go by the wayside, or can

he do that?
Mr. Dennis. AVell, I suppose I could do that, but in sitting here

thinking about it

Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman, may I proceed ? I want to be sure I

understand Mr. Jenner's comment earlier. And as I understood

you, Counsel, you thought that might even be somewhat helpful?

I am only talking about adding "or desirable" after the word "neces-

sary."

Mr. Jenner. Yes. I do think it would be helpful because it adds

another element of discretion that the committee may find desirable

to use.

Mr. Hungate. Well, ISIr. Chairman
Mr. Dennis. Will the gentleman from Missouri yield ?

Mr. Hungate. I yield to the gentleman from Indiana.

Mr. Dennis. I like to be a semireasonable gentleman occasionally

;

and while I think really my amendment as proposed is the best form,
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I will accept tlie gentleman's suggestion, if the chairman of the sub-
committee, Mr. Kastenmeier, will agree, and amend my amendment
accordingly to leave in the words "or desirable" and strike the rest

of the amendment.
Mr. IOlStenmeier. If the gentleman from INiissouri will yield ?

Mr. HuNGATE. I yield.

Mr. KIastenmeier. I would be pleased to agree to that.

Mr. Brooks. Is there objection to the amendment by Mr. Hungate
to the amendment by Mr. Dennis ? If not, the Chair hears none, and the
amendment is agreed to and is now in order. And the question is

now on the amendment of Mr. Dennis as amended to be adopted. And
as many as are in favor vote aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

Mr. Brooks. Opposed, no.

[No response.]

Mr. Brooks. The ayes have it, and the amendment as amended is

agreed to.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, as I said

Mr. Brooks. You liaA^e two more.
Mr. Dennis. And as I said to the gentleman from New Jersey when

he was in the chair, they are on other unrelated matters to the previous
amendments and they could logically I think come at the end, so I will

be glad to defer until we reach the end of the bill if that is the best.

Mr. Brooks. The Chair recognizes the gentlewoman from New York,
Ms. Holtzman, for an amendment which she has at the desk.

Ms. Holtzman. To clarify matters, the amendment is to paragraph
C2A, page 3. While I voted against Mr. Danielson's amendment
because I think the President's counsel should have the right to object,

I also feel

Mr. Brooks. Will the gentlewoman desist for a moment? Did the

clerk read the motion, or rather did the clerk read the amendment?
Will the clerk read the amendment ?

The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment by Ms. Holtzman.
On page 3, after the word "member" on line 5 of paragraph C2, strike the

period and insert the following : "except that any objections raised by the Presi-
dent's counsel shall be made only after the examination of the witness has been
completed (but before the witness has been discharged, if the President's counsel
desires to make an objection at that time), and shall be in writing unless the
committee otherwise determines."

Ms. Holtzman. May I be recognized ?

Mr. Brooks. The gentlewoman is recognized for 5 minutes in sup-
port of her amendment.
Ms. Holtzman. I will try to be very brief. I feel that while the

President's counsel ought to have the right to object to examination
and to testimony, that that right of objection ought to be done in such
a way that it does not interfere with the orderly presentation of evi-

dence to this committee by a witness. And so what my amendment does
is that it preserves all of the objections that the counsel wishes to make
but allows the counsel to make them only after the witness has com-
pleted the testimonv. Therefore, the committee would have the benefit
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of whatever objections counsel has and in time to reexamine the witness
if the committee wanted to do that. But, we would not be engaged in
the possibility where members' time would be interfered with by
objections by President's counsel or where the orderly presentation of
the evidence could in any way be interfered with.

I think we arc concerned about seeing that the evidence is presented
as orderly as possible. The witness' counsel could of course object to
questions and preserve the rights of the witness but the objections of
the President's counsel to whether or not this is hearsay or whether the
committee ought to consider the evidence, can be just as well received
by the committee after the witness finishes his testimony. And I do
not think in any way that this would undermine the right of the
President to have effective representation, but it would do so con-
sistent with the interest of the committee in orderliness and in the
orderly presentation of the witness' testimony.

]Mr. ]\IcClory. Would the gentlelady yield for a question?
I^Is. IIoLTZMAisr. I will be delighted to yield.

]Mr. JMcClory. As I see this rule in C2 it says that objections re-

lating to the examination of witnesses or to the admissibility of testi-

mony. Now how in the world could we object to the admissibility of
testimony if the objection could not be raised until after the testimony
has already been received ?

Ms. IIoLTZMAi^g^. Well, I think if the President's counsel has objec-

tions to the admissibility of testimony, the coimnittee is in the position

where we are not really acting as a jury. We are in the position of a
judge, and we can hear the testimony and it has the benefit of Presi-

dent's counsel's objections to it after we hear it, and we can discount
it, and Ave can discount it at that point and yve can ask further ques-
tions about it. It would not be—I would not be opposed to allowing
questions to be raised by the President's coujisel before the wutness
would be examined. But I do have objection, and I am concerned
about the interruption of the orderl}'^ examination of the witness by
the President's counsel. That is the purpose of this amendment.
Mr, McClory. If the gentlelady will yield further, do you not feel

that the chairman could regulate the orderliness of our proceedings
without tying him down in this kind of a restrictive language?

]Ms. IToLTZMAN. To auswTr the question, to answer the question, there

is nothing to prevent the President's counsel from standing up and
saying I object consistently as the proceedings go forward. This is

going to be televised. This is going to be before the Nation. I think, I

certainly think that we ought to have the benefit of objections of

President's counsel, and the substance of them, and be able to act on
them. But, I do not think we need to have these objections during the

witness' examination, during examination of the witness, during my
examination of the witness and the like.

^Ir. Dennis. Would the gentlelady yield ?

Ms. HoLTZMAN. I will be happy to yield to my friend from Indiana.

Mr. Dennis. I thanlv the gentlelady from iS^ew York and I have
fought and you have fought many a good battle side by side on
the Subcommittee on Criminal Proceedings striking blows for liberty

and the rights of man and so on and so on. And I am really shocked
almost to see my good friend suggesting that it does a man much good
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to jump up and send a letter around to the judge a week after he has

been killed by the testimony and object to it. I think the gentlelady

knov.'S better than that and I am surprised at her, really.

lils. HoLTZMAN. Mr. Dennis, I would like to respond to that. The
admissibility of testimony before this committee, presumably the only

ground for objection would be on the ground of whether or not it is

an objection as to hearsay and the committee could make a judgment
whether or not to listen' to this. And, if we do hear it, that is OK.
I do not see how the President's counsel or the President is in any way
prejudiced by having to wait until he raises his objection. In fact,

I would have no objection to allowing him to raise a question before

the witness testified, but I do object to having the orderly procedure

and examination of the witness interrupted by questioning which
could be either deferred to the beginning or deferred to the end of

the examination of the witness.

I yield back the balance of my time.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Cohen is recognized.

Mr. Cohen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to speak in opposition to the amendment. The subcom-

mittee did consider this fact and I would suspect that any of the wit-

nesses who were called before the committee to testify will probably
have the benefit of a counsel and I think the President's counsel would
be in an untenable position to constantly be interposing objections to

evidence, admissibility, relevance, and so forth when counsel for the

defendant would not be, or the witness would not be doing the same
thing. I think if that were the case and as pointed out it is going to be
televised, X tliink that the counsel v.'ould be characterized as obstruct-

ing the course of the investigation or the inquiry and really think that

the gentlelady's fears are much more imaginary than real under the
existing circumstances. And so I urge my colleagues to vote against

the amendment.
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Would the gentleman yield ?

]Mr. Cohen. Yes, I will.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. I am glad you raised a question about imaginariness,

because I was very disturbed to read yesterday that Mr. St. Clair

admitted that he had made no effort to clarify the inaudible aspects

of these so that this committee could get the benefit of their best efforts.

The White House did not make their best effort to comply even within

their higlier ranks.

Tt is also disturbing that Mr. St. Clair made an offering to this

committee at an earlier stage of tapes in response to three or four
items and we have never seen those tapes because we issued a subpena.
And I am deeply concerned in fact Avith what has appeared to be an
effort on the part of the White House counsel to use less than good
faith with this committee, and to be less than fair with this committee
and that is precisely my concern, because I do not want to see the

examination that we are going to be conducting which is of the most
serious and solemn kind, turned into a circus.

Mr. Cohen. '\'Vliat I am suggesting to the gentlelady is exactly the

opposite, that these witnesses will be before us at this table in all

probability with their own counsel, and I think it would come through
very clearly to the American public if Mr. St. Clair were to engage
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in this sort of conduct, which is inconsistent with representing his

client. So I do not think nnder those circumstances we should adopt
your amendment.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Beooks. The gentleman from Wisconsin, Mr. Kastenmeier.
]\Ir. Kastexmeier. I reluctantly oppose the amendment by Ms.

Holtzman. It is well constructed and. indeed, I think it might be held

in the back pocket of somebody on tliis committee. But I too am in-

clined to at least proceed on the notion that the objection can be

handled in an orderly way and that the Chair does possess powers to

ob"\nate the use or abuse of these objections. And in the event that ob-

jections become an impediment to a fail- and expeditious proceeding
and the Chair is frustrated in his efforts to control such behavior then

I think that the proposal of Ms. Ploltzman can be considered by the

committee. But, until that point is reached. I think it is a considerable

limitation which we place on the President's counsel that he shall only

after a witness has been fully examined, only then may he interpose

an objection.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. For that reason T must respectfully oppose the

amendment.
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Sarbanes, the gentlemrin from ISIaryland.

Mr. Sarbanes. Would the gentlelady from New York accept an
amendment that made it clear that an objection could be interposed

prior to the commencement of the examiination of the witness or after

such examination has been completed? In other words, it would allow

the President's counsel prior to the start of the witness to gbject. Ill

other words, that would be to this witness being heard for some reason,

for some valid reason, or at the end then to present to the committee
his reasons for objecting to the admissibility of consideration of the

testimony and evidence ?

Ms, Holtzman. I would be happy to accept the gentleman's amend-
ment because it clearly is the intent here wliich is not to interrupt the

process of examination, but to allow objections to be heard either prior

to the time the witness speaks or after the examination has been con-

cluded. So. I will be happy to accept the amendment.
Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Brooks, Is the gentleman
Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman, I ask consent that the amendment

offered by the gentlelady from New York be amended in line 2 to strike

out the words "only after" and insert in lieu thereof "either prior to

the commencement' of," and in line 8 after the word "witness" insert

the words "or after such examination," so that it would read "except

that any objection raised by the President's counsel shall be made
either prior to the commencement of the examination of the witness or

after such examination has been completed."

Mr. Brooks. Is there objection ? Pardon me. INIr. McClory.^

Mr. McClory. Reserving the right to object I would just like to

make this comment. I do not think we sliould adopt an amendment
or amendments to amendments which are based on the assump-

tion that our rules are not going to be complied Avith, or thatour rules

are going to be abused, or that the chairman is going to be incapable
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of applying the rules in a manner which is going to result in an
orderly procedure.

I can conceive in this case for instance that perhaps just after tes-

timony commences and a witness is introduced that it may occur to

counsel or a member of this committee or someone that we should
object to the testimony for any number of reasons, and yet the tes-

timony has already begun. And I do not see any reason why we
should make it so restrictive as to deny the right to interpose an
objection.

Mr. Sarbanes. Well, I think the gentleman's argument of course
goes to the substance of the amendment. And I would like in

view of the fact that the offerer of the amendment is willing to ac-

cept that alteration to at least have that done and speak to the sub-

stance of that amended proposal.

Mr. Brooks. Is their objection ?

Mr. McClort. I object, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Brooks. As many as are in favor of the amendment to the

amendment
Mv. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman ? Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Sarbanes. I offer it as an amendment to the amendment.
Mr, Hungate. Mr. Chairman, may I inquire, does this still require it

to be in writing or did you eliminate that requirement?
Mr. Sarbanes. No ; I did not.

INIr. Brooks. The amendment of Mr. Sarbanes to the amendment
of Ms. Holtzman is the question and as many as are in favor of the

amendment vote aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

Mr. Brooks. Opposed, vote no.

[Chorus of "noes."]

Mr. Brooks. In the opinion of the Chair the ayes have it. Please
liave a show of hands. As many as are in favor of the amendment
please raise their right hand.

[Show of hands.]
Mr. Brooks. Or left hand.
As many as are opposed to the amendment ?

[Show of hands.]
Mr. Brooks. Thirteen in favor and 11 opposed, and the amendment

to the amendment is agreed to.

Mr. McClort. Mr. Chairman, I ask for a rollcall.

Mr. Brooks. Would the gentleman consider that we will have the

amendment
IVTr. McClort. All right, I will withdraw my request.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Hogan, the gentleman from Maryland.
Mr. Hogan. I reluctantly speak in opposition to the gentlelady

from New York's amendment and I have several objections to it.

No. 1, the nracticalitv of imposing upon the President's coun-

sel the necessity for putting his objections in writing, when he is not

going to have access to the facilities necessary to achieve that end,

it is bad enough for members of the committee in offering their amend-
ments to get things in writing. Second, I think the amendment as

nmended is worse now than it was in its original form because I can
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anticipate a situation whereby the President's counsel would be sur-

prised by a witness and his testimony and would not have enough
information, knowledge to object to that until he had heard it.

But, my general objection is I think best illustrated by an observa-

tion which I recall my professor of evidence used to use in commenting
upon the problem in a jury trial where damaging evidence is intro-

duced and then the judge tells the jury to disregard it. And he likened

that to injecting a red hot poker into a cavity of the body and then
telling the victim that it did not hurt. I think basically that is what
we have here. If the counsel cannot object initially then all of the
damage is going to be done before he ever has an opportunity to

object.

Mr. Brooks. Are there any further questions ?

Mr. Kastenmeter. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Brooks. Mr Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. I move the previous question.

Mr. Brooks. The motion
Mr. Wiggins. May I just ask a couple of things ?

Mr. Brooks. Why, of course. Would you desist for just a moment
and we will recognize the distinguished gentleman from California,

Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. I thank you for the kind consideration by my eloquent

friend from Texas. I voted to support the amendment by Mr. Sarbanes
because I thought that it modestly cleaned up an otherwise pretty

bad amendment. This does not mean however, that I support the
amendment and indeed I do not. I think it is important for the mem-
bers to recognize that we have two classes of counsel under this amend-
ment. We have counsel for the witnesses who are permitted the full

right to object and without the procedure imposed upon counsel for

the President. And then we have a special class, the counsel for the
President, where he is required to interpose objections only at a cer-

tain time and to do so in writing. I take it that if he were to make a
written obiection that the members would like to read it. I would
like to read it. And if our purpose is to expedite proceedings, I sug-

gest that the procedure if adopted will considerably delay as counsel

prepares his written objections, prepares adequate copies to circulate

them and permitting the committee to consider those objections or

the rulings thereon.

In any event, all things considered, Mr. Chairman, the procedure,

'

which is well intentioned, will delay our proceedings, will put the
President's counsel in a second-class posture which should not be sup-
ported by our committee. And I urge that the amendment as amended
be rejected.

Mr. Sarbanes. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Wiggins. Of course. I will yield to whomever requests it.

Mr. Sarbanes. I would like to respond just to the substance of it,

since before I was primarily concerned with the amendment, I think of

the gentlelady from New York of course as to the writing require-

ments and the provision is unless the committee otherwise determines

which therefore makes it possible for the committee to dispense with
that requirement and leave it within the control of the committee
to accommodate to the factors which the gentleman from California
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has just underlined with respect to either delay or whatever other

circumstances it may require to hear objections orally rather than in

writing.

And I think the gentlelady from New York has offered an amend-

ment which gives to the President's counsel, with respect to every

witness that comes before us, a role, and I would say that it is a

category superior to that of the other counsel which the gentleman

from California was referring to and preserves to him that role if

the President should be before us and allows him to object prior to a

witness being heard at all or subsequently to register objections to

the testimony and insures, insures that we need not have a situation in

which the questioning either from members of the committee or from
counsel are constantly interrupted. It seems to me an eminently sensi-

ble proposal in terms of safeguarding the process we will follow.

Mr. ICastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Brooks. Would the gentleman desist? Mr. Hungate, the gentle-

man from ]\Iissouri has one comment that he wants to make.
Mr. HuxGATE. Mr. Chairman, I think the amendment is "helpful"

but I shall vote against it because of the written requirement. I think

that is too great a burden.
Mr. IL^STEXMEiER. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous question.

Mr. Brooks. The previous question is ordered, and as many as are

in favor of the amendment by the gentlewoman from New York, Ms.
Holtzman, vote aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

Mr. Brooks. Opposed, no.

[Chorus of "noes."]

Mr. Brooks. In the opinion of the Chair the ayes have it.

Ms. HoLTZ]MAX. Eollcall.

Mr. Butler. Eollcall Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Brooks. A rollcall is demanded indignantly, and as many as

are in favor of the amendment of the gentlewoman will vote aye
when their names are called and vote no those that are opposed.
And the clerk will call the roll.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
]Mr. Brooks. Aye by proxy.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeler. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyeks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. Aye. '

The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Conyers. Aye by proxy.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Brooks. Aye by proxy. .,
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The. Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Brooks. Aye by proxy.

The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.

Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Brooks. Aye by proxy.

The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.

Mr. Brooks. Aye by proxy.

The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.

Mr. EANGEL. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms! Jordan.

Ms. Jordan. Ave.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. HoUzman.
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. OWens.
Mr. Brooks. Aye by proxy.

The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky, Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.

Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. IklcClory.

Mr, McClory. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith,
Mr. Sandman. No by proxy.

The Clerk. Mr, Sandman,
Mr, Sandman, No,
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Cohen. No by proxy.

The Clerk. ]\Ir. Wiggins.
Mr, Wiggins. No,
The Clerk, Mr, Dennis.

Mr. Dennis. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. No.
The Clerk. Mr. ^Mayne,

Mr, Hutchinson. No by proxy.

The Clerk, Mr, Hogan,
Mr, Hogan, No,
The Clerk, Mr. Butler.

ISIr. Butler. No.
The Clerk. ^Ir. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. No.
The Clerk. ISIr. Lott.

Mr, T.OTT, No.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.

Mr. Lott. No by proxy.

The Clerk. Mr. IMoorhead.
Mr. Hutchinson. No by proxy.
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The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. ]VIarx\ziti, No.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Hutchinson. No by proxy.
The Clerk. Mr. Roclino.

The Chairman. Aye.
Mr. Brooks. The clerk will report the vote.

The Clerk. IT voted aye, 21 voted no.

Mr. Brooks. 17 aye, 21 no, and the amendment is not agreed to. The
amendment is lost and the Chair recognizes INIs. Holtzman for her next
amendment.
Ms. Holtzman. Well, Mr. Chairman, in view of that vote I will not

offer the other amendments I had prepared, except that I would like to

ask the chairman, in view of this, in the construction of his right to

instruct the counsel for the President in questioning of the witnesses
whether he feels that he has adequate right to instruct the counsel with
regard to the manner in which the investigation is conducted, and if

he feels that he does, then I will withdraw my amendment that I had
proposed in that vein. Can counsel assure me that that is the case ?

Mr. Woods. In my opinion it is.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, I would like to have the question
stated once more. I do not Iviiow what kind of a connnitment we are
after here. Could I hear the question again ?

JNIs. Holtzman. Mr. Chairman, I have an amendment which Avould
insert the word "manner" on page 4 of the procedures but I am willing
to withdraw that amendment if my understanding is correct that the
chairman can issue instructions with regard to the manner in which
the questions are posed.

]Mr. Woods. And I stated that it was my opinion that it does give the
Chair that authority.

Ms. Holtzman. Then I will withdraw my amendment. I have no
other amendments.
Mr. Brooks. The gentleman from Indiana.
Pardon me. ]Mr. Fish. Did 3^ou have an amendment?
]Mr. Fish. No amendment, but I would like to be recognized.
Mr. Brooks. The gentleman is recognized.
Mr. Fish. Thank- you very much, Mr. Chairman. I would just like

to raise a question here of the chairman of the subcommittee. It con-
cerns me on page 3, C3, which starts, "the committee counsel shall
commence the questioning of each witness." We had a lot of discus-
sion earlier about the role of Mr. St. Clair in questioning of witnesses
and, while I favor Mr. St. Clair's presence, I feel that we have, in
our counsel for the staff, and as our minority counsel, two of the
ablest: trial lawyers in the United States who are fully able to conduct
examination of the witnesses. Mr. Kastenmeier, was it your intention
here where it says : "committee counsel shall commence the question-
ing," that they would be given enormous latitude in which questions
might Avell last for hours or even days, if, in their opinion, this was
necessary before there was any questioning by members of the
committee ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. I am sorry, because of the noise in the chamber
I was not able to hear the gentleman's question. Would my frieiul
from New York restate his question ^
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Mv. Fish. Yes. I am referring to C3 on page 3. It starts off : "Com-
mittee comisel shall commence the questioning," and I am really

interested in whether the subcommittee had in mind that the majoi
burden of the questioning of the witnesses would fall on our able com-
mittee counsel and minority counsel as I believe it should ?

Mr. I\li\STENMEiER. Yes. That is precisely what we had in mind. There
was some discussion of actually trying to curtail extensive examination
of witnesses by members and other than the committee counsel but that

was not acted on. However, it is contemplated that the committee
counsel will bear the burden of the examination or questioning of
witnesses and while members at this point, members always have a
right, but we make it clear that the examination starts with committee
counsel, and that committee counsel is prepared in a special way to

question the witnesses and that is the best proceeding as far as learning

the truth as far as the proceeding is concerned.
;Mr. Fish. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

^Ir. Chairman, I have an amendment at the desk.

The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment by Mr. "Wiggins.

Page 2. To be added to the end of paragraph A3. "All such testimony, papers
and thing examined by members of the committee pursuant to this subparagraph
shall be subject to the procedures for handling impeachment inquiry material
adopted by the committee on February 22, 1974, until such time as such testi-

mony, papers and things be introduced as evidence before the committee."

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. If I may be recog-nized, the general outline of the

procedures under which this matter shall be commenced is that first

we shall receive a proposed statement of information, and thereafter

the committee members will have access to the material in our files

whether or not that information will ever be introduced in evidence.

The material in our files is raw data, I understand, containing materials

which perhaps will never be offered because it does not bear directly

upon any impeachable misconduct. It may contain material which is

unrelin]:)le, or wliich we believe is not true. I thinlv that our raw data
probably contains material which is irrelevant and would not be intro-

duced under any circumstances. The purpose of my amendment, JMr.

Chairman, is to insure that the rules of confidentiality which we have
adopted will apply to each member as they go over to review all of tliis

material in our files. Now, obviously the reason for such a limitation
is first, that it is very prejudicial to the respondent that information
which may never appear before this committee should promptly get
in the public domain as a result of a review by members of the com-
mittee. Second, it is prejudicial to the orderly presentation I believe
of our case by counsel to have potentially everything that he knows
in the public domain in advance of the time that it is presented.
Now, ]\Ir. Chairman, I wish it understood that even though the

amendment speaks to the rules of confidentiality applying up to the
time that the information is introduced, that at the time of the intro-
duction perhaps other rules would be applied at that time. For example,
if the evidence is introduced in executive session, of course, the mem-
bers would be bound by the orders of the Chair concerning material
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received during that executive session. If the material is never mtro-

duced, then the rules of confidentiality would continue to apply, i

hope the members can see the kind of miscliief that the present lan-

miage invites, unless it is refined to insure that these rules of confi-

dentiality continue to apply. I will yield to the gentleman from

Mr Thornton. I thank the gentleman for yielding. I would like to

ask if it is not—and I would like to thank the gentleman for yield-

ino-—I would like to know—if I can locate a microphone—to ask it it

is not the intention to bind all of those persons who might receive

information under the provisions of this paragraph ?

Mr Wiggins. Yes, indeed. It is directed to the members because

the proposed rules before us refer to the members having access.

But my intention is that material which is never going to be before

this committee should not be m the public domain to prejudice our

proceedings. , , i i
• i

Mr. Thornton. Further then, that paragraph has been previously

amended by Mr. Hogan, as amended by the chairman to permit certain

members of the full committee staff to also have access to this informa-

tion and I wonder if you could consent to an amendment to your

amendment to add the words, "or members of the staff" foUowmg the

word "committee" on line 2?.
. . -.i i-

Mr. Wiggins. Certainly, That is wholly consistent with my objec-

tive, and I would consent to such an amendment.

I will yield to the gentleman from New York.
. ,t , t ^ i

Mr Rangel. Would the gentleman yield? I do not think I take

issue with your amendment, but I have some questions. Most ot the

rules of confidentiality have been broken by the White House. Would

there be a general release when, in fact, the information has first been

broken say in a press conference by the President or his counsel?

Mr Wiggins. Well, no. I think in response to the gentleman that

that will require an amendment to our rules of confidentiality, it we

are ffoing to, in effect, make exceptions to this material which has

alre&y been in the public domain, we perhaps ought to do so by

amendment to our rules of confidentiality.
-, -, .

Mv intention is that those rules, whatever they may be, and however

they may be amended, should apply with respect to our members going

over to see, going over and seeing raw, unevaluated, perhaps irrelevant

^Ir^RlNGET." Let me be more specific. On the materials that we

recently received from the President, that is in the public domain now.

Mr. Wiggins. Yes. ., ^ . , , .

Mr Eangel. If, in fact, we hear other evidence which supplements

this, which deals with the very same conversations that we are reading,

would that be covered by your amendment?
-, ^ ^^ t.i „, ^-p

Mr Wiggins. Well, my amendment does not speak to the problem of

hearLo/ evidence. It merely is involved in the matters preceding the

hearSS of evidence. If evi-clence is actually before this committe

Mr. iRANGEL. I did not make my question clear.
-^ r-P^.r.^o !,««

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman from Cahfornia has

^Mr. Rangel. May I be recognized, Mr. Chairman ?
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The Chairman. Mr. Kangel.
Mr. Rangel. We have these transcripts, and assuming, as counsel

has pointed out, we also have evidence held by committee that -would
clarify much of the problems that we are having in keeping up with
this, as relates to the clarification of certain conversations, woidcl j^ou

hold that to be under the rules of confidentiality, even though the basic
document is in the public domain ?

Mr. Wiggins. Well, if the material is in our possession, and is being
now held pursuant to those rules of confidentialitv, then I would not
expect the members to breach those rules following their review in

private of the material in our file.

Mr. Rangel. Yes, because it is very confusing, and we all want to
do the right thing, and I am just saying that where someone has
started a sentence and did not finish it, and our tape finishes the sen-

tence, then are we bound by the rules of confidentiality as it relates

to the completion of the sentence ?

Mr. Wiggins. Well, you are really asking me about the scope of
the rules of confidentiality. I frankly, if I had my druthers, Avould

say that it should not be for individual members to issue press releases

clarifying the President's submission, but rather that the clarification

should come by evidence befoi'e this committee, and at the time it is

before this committee, if it is a public hearing, then all the public
leams our version of the truth at the same time.

Mr. Rangel. My last question is this certainly would not restrict

us from asking a question, the basis of which we received from our
briefing, if we wanted to ask a witness a question? We would not have
to get any clearance in order to ask a question, would we?
Mr. Wiggins. That is not my intention. There ought to be free

opportunity to examine, cross-examine insofar as we have the privi-

lege.

Now. I am talking about a prerelease of information by the mem-
bers which may follow their review of information now being held by
our staff.

Mr. Rangel. Would you consider amending this to make it very
clear that what you are talking about is a member releasing this infor-

mation to the general public, rather than as vague as it appears to be
here? I could support that.

Mr. Wiggins. I am sympathetic with the object.

Mr. Rangel. Well. I am just concerned by inadverently breaching
this rule because of all of the gaps in tlie ti'ansrripts. I am concerned,
and. hopefullv, we will be able to get some holes filled.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, let us not fill them by press release.

Mr. Rangel. No. If you could put something together in there indi-

cating that we should not put out a release on it, and should not talk

with reporters about it, I could support the amendment. But, it is

just hard with all of these conversations to recognize where they all

had been filled, and where the gaps existed previously.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, T find it yevy difncult to achieve the objective

which the gentleman seeks, and which I generally support, by my
amendment. The confidentiality rules can be breached and breached'
in manv ways, and I would hate to start listing the ways in which it

is possible.



525

Mr. Rangel. I yield back my time.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Thank yon, Mr. Chairman.
I want to speak in opposition to this amendment because we ah-eady

have a provision in the procedures for handlin<r impeachment inquiry

material right before us, and I would like to read the language of that^

and I would also like to ask Mr. Wiggins why he departs from that

language on page 1, paragraph 4, Avhere it says before the committee
is called upon to make any disposition Avith respect to the testimony,

papers, or things presented to it, the committee member shall have a

reasonable opportunity to examine all testimony, papers, and things

that have been obtained by tlie inquiry staff. No member shall make
any of that testimony for those papers or things public unless author-

ized by a majority vote of the committee, a quorum being present.

Now, as I understand your amendment, you would amend that pro-

cedure by saying that a majority vote of the committee could not per-

mit the matters to be made public. It would only be made public if it

were introduced into evidence. Now, what does it mean to have things

introduced into evidence when we are having, for example, a state-

ment of infoi-mation presented to this committee ? I wish the gentle-

man from California would clarify that point.

Mr. Wiggins. Well, please l)e assured that this committee can do

what it wants, and if a majority of this committee wishes to abolish the

rules of confidentiality, or modify them in any way, it can. I am not

in any way trying to prevent the majority for doing in the future what
whatever it may thing is best under the circumstances.

Ms. Holtzman. Well, what does the gentleman mean, however, with

respect to the language "'until such time as such testimony, papers, and
things be introduced as evidence before the committee" ?

Mr. Wiggins. Well
Ms. Holtzman. How would that happen in an information presenta-

tion when we are not dealing necessarily with things being introduced

into evidence in a formal, legal sense ?

Mr. Wiggins. By that language I was sim.ply trying to make it clear

that when the evidence is before this committee that the members have
a full right to ask any questions, to call u):>on any information in their

possession without reference to the I'ules of confidentiality. Now, if tliat

evidence, however, should come in in the executive session, vrhich a

majoi'ity of this connnittee has agreed to, then, of course, it could be

l)ound by the rules of the executive session, but not by the rules of

confidentiality.

Ms. Holtzman. But suppose, 'Mv. Wiggins, that material is included
in a statement of information as opposed to being introduced as evi-

dence. Then I have tremendous trouble with your amendment.
Mr. WniGiNs. I am hnding it dilHcuit to understand the circumstances

under which the lady is

Mr. Sarbanes. Would the gentlelady yield ?

Ms. Holtzman. I will be h!i]:)py to yield to Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. I fail to understand why the existing procedure for

handling impeachment inquiry material does not fully cover the

41-018—75—pt. 1 34



526

eventualities which the gentleman from California indicated he was
trying to direct his amendment to. No member shall make any of that

testimony or those papers or things public unless authorized by a

majority vote of the committee, a quorum being present. And it seems

to me that does impose upon each member of this committee a limita-

tion that can only be lifted upon a majority vote of the conunittee,

quorum being present. I think certainly the circumstance or situation

that the gentleman outlined at the beginning as he presented liis

amendment is fully covered by the existing provisions of our

proceedings.

Mr. Wiggins. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. Sarbanes. I do not have the time.

i>fs. HoLTZMAN. I have the time and I will be happy to yield.

Mr. Wiggins. Yes. I was concerned when I drafted this amendment
as to whether or not it was necessary. I was concerned that possibly the

existing rules of confidentiality covered the eventuality which I was
concerned about. But, given the language in this new proposal on

which the committee would vote, I felt that it was absolutely essential

to make it clear that these rules do apply, and that the later vote did

not, by implication, amend the earlier one. And so I erred on the side

of caution and safety by making it clear that these rules of con-

fidentiality do, in fact, apply.

If, in fact, everyone agrees that these apply, then I, of course,

would have no reason in making my motion. But, I feel that an
ambiguity existed.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. I yield back the balance of my time.

The Chairman. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman, I think the gentleman from Cali-

fornia just pointed out that if he thinks the members believe that, in

fact, the procedures we have before handling the impeachment inquiiy

as laid out in No. 4 apply, then we do not have to consider the amend-
ment and the gentleman would be willing to withdraw it. And I per-

sonally feel that they do apply. I think that we are covered under that,

and with that in mind, I would hope that the gentleman from Cali-

fornia would, in a sense, withdraw his amendment with the under-

standing that, in fact, every member of this committee understands

that under No. 4 the material is before the impeacliment inquiry staff

and the rule would apply.

Mr. Wiggins. If the gentleman will yield to me, if I am given that

assurance, if there is no misunderstanding about it, if that is the un-

derstanding of the Chair and the ranking member, then my amend-
ment is simply surplusage, and I would be happy to withdraw it.

]\Ir. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, I have some questions because I am
troubled by some of the publicity that has been going out. We have
transcripts here. "I think that," and this is Ilaldeman, "the Bureau
ought to go to Edward Bennett Williams and question him, and have
him tied up for a couple of days." The President: "Yeah. I hope
they do. Someone should talk turkey to Patman."
"Jerry Ford is not taking an active interest. Stans is going to see

Jerry Ford."
"Eothblatt is laughing." This is Dean. "He is quite a character. He

has been getting into the sex life of members of the Democratic Na-
tional Committee."
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T^ow, are we bound by the rules of confidentiality on that once this

happened, or are we not ?

^Ir. Wiggins, Are you reading from the President's submission ?

Mr. HuNGATE. I am, sir.

Mr. Wiggins. I am comforted, sir, and I would think not with re-

spect to that. You are reading something in the public domain that

has not been received so far as I know, subject to the rules of
confidentiality.

Mr. Hungate. And then will the President's counsel and the Presi-

dent himself, if present, be bound by our rules of confidentiality if

tlie}^ attend ? Can we bind them ?

Mr. Wiggins. I think the answer is obvious, but I will let the chair-

man answer it.

]\Ir. IIungate. I appreciate obvious answers.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. DoAR. I would expect the chairman would ask the President's

comisel if he was invited to come the first morning if he had read and
considered the rules of confidentiality, and if he would, in accepting

the invitation of the committee to be present, if he would agree to be
bound by the rules of confidentiality. And if his client, the President

of the United States, would agree to be bound.
The Chairman. Well, the Chair would want to state in addition to

that, it would seem to me that if this committee has extended itself

to give, in the interest of fairness, opportunity, privileges, and indeed,

all of the courtesies that one feels are necessary in order to conduct
a fair inquiry, that the counsel to the President would accede to being
bomid by the rules of confidentiality.

Mr. Hungate. I yield to the gentleman from Maryland.
Mr. Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman, I just want to add to that I under-

stand the President's counsel under these rules will sit in executive

session. Is that correct ?

Mr. Jenner. That is correct.

Mr. Sarbanes. Now, I understand that our counsel have been pro-

hibited by the rules that we have adopted from discussing these mat-
ters with the press or appearing on television and radio, interview

shows. I understand the President's counsel last night was on national

television conducting an intervieAV, and am I correct that our counsel

has been prohibited from doing any of that sort of activity ?

The Chairman. Our counsel is.

Mr. Jenner. We so understand.
Mr. Sarbanes. That is what I understood. Now, the President's

counsel is going to attend executive sessions and so forth and so on, and
aside from this he is going to be able to walk out of this committee
room and go on national television news shows and conduct his press

conferences.

The Chairman. I do not know how we can restrain liim. But it would
appear to me that the counsel to the President should again understand
the rules of confidentiality.

Mr. Sarbanes. Could I ask the subcommittee chairman, who has

presented these rules to us for adoption here, on the role of President's

counsel, as to whether consideration was given by the subcommittee

with respect to the obligations assumed by the President's counsel in
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terms of public dialog and public expression with respect to his partic-

ipation? Was that considered by this subcommittee?
INIr. HuNGATE. I will yield to the gentleman from Wisconsin for a

response.

Mr. Kastenmeier. It was not considered in detail, but to the extent

that it was, it was my understanding that the President's counsel, when
he submits to the junsdiction of the committee, for those purposes he
would be bound.

I yield to counsel, Mr. Doar, for further application.

Mr. DoAR. Well, since the counsel is here, as a matter of grace and
not as a matter of right, and if he agreed to the rules of confidentiality,

and he then went out and breached the rules, the committee could

withdraw the invitation. That is the poAver that the committee has over

the counsel to the President.

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, I think this is, indeed, a most serious

matter, and the committee should consider that it is offering this right,

this grace, and privilege in the interest or producing the truth and fair-

play, but that we have the reputations of many innocent peoples to be

considered. And I think the committee did a good job and a good
bipartisan job in adopting the rules of confidentiality. And I think

we should guard them jealously.

Mr. Mez^^nsky. Will the gentleman yield?

Mr. HuNGATE. i\Ir. Mezvinsky, I yield.

Mr. Mezvinsky. I am very concerned about this, because at one time,

we had the counsel concerned not only with being counsel, but also

being the lobbying arm for the White House, and I am concerned as

to his ability not only as to making statements on TV, but also dealing

with certain Members of Congress who are not on this committee. I

think it is very significant, so I would ask counsel as w^ell as the

chairman, do you think it is important, and can we spell out that if

we are doing this by a matter of grace, and by courtesy, should we,

and would you recommend that we spell it out in these rules that we
are considering after this time, and are we able to do that?

Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Jenner or Mr. Kastenmeier?
Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Kastenmeier. Well, if you are posing a question to me, while it

is possible for us to do so, I think ]\[r. Doar gave the answer. That is

to say, Mr. St. Clair would be here, his presence would be at the grace
of the committee, if he would violate what we would consider com-
mittee rules in the proceedings, it seems to me he could forfeit his

further rights to appear in behalf of the President, and the chairman
would be in a position to assert that as a condition or. without neces-

sarily it being a part of the rules.

I would just yield to Mr. Doar.
INIr. Doar. I would agree with that.

Mr, Sarbanes. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvtcnsky. May I expand ? Then there is no technical objection

then that if he agrees to come before this committee as counsel for
the President, and we allow him that opportunity, that there would
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be no technical objection for ns to include that in the rules, that as

a matter of grace, b}' his appearance before this committee, he will be

Ijouncl by our rules of procedure concerning confidentiality? And
if there is no objection to that on a very technical ground, then I would
be prepared to submit an amendment to that effect.

iMr. Edwards. INIr. Chairman ?

iSIr. McClory. JSIr. Cliairman ?

The Chairmax. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Wiggins asked for an assurance

from you and the ranking minority member, INIr. Hutchinson, that

those rules of confidentiality adopted by this committee would apply
to the hearings which will be conducted also. I did not hear any such
assurance made by the two of you. I am prepared to support the

amendment of the gentleman from California, if he does not get that

assurance, because it does appear that the fact that the President
leleased information which tliis committee would have kept confiden-

tial, that crept in a feeling which some members of this committee
have, that somehow that released us from our own rules of confiden-

tiality, which in my judgment was not the case.

The Chairman. The Chair will state, and the Chair has stated

before, publicly, that the Chair feels bound by the rules of confidential-

ity, that the Chair understands that until the committee would re-

lease or waive these rules of confidentiality, that the Chair would be
bound. And I would hope that the ranking minority member would
also respond and so I give the gentleman from California my assur-

ance in that direction.

Mr. Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, I have always supported that
until this committee directed otherwise, that the rules of confidentiality

which we adopted on the 22d of February apply, and continue to be
strong and effective and I would insist that they be so respected.

With regard to whether the President's counsel should be bound as

a condition, a precedent to his appearance here, to these rules of con-
fidentiality, I have always supposed that that would be demanded of
him. I can not conceive of the committee pei-mitting his appearance and
participation except on an agreement that lie too will be bound by our
rules of confidentiality.

Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman, I really think we have pursued this

issue long enough. The issue has been cleared, and I wonder if the
gentleman from California, Mr. Wiggins, will withdraw his

amendment ?

]Mr. Wiggins. Yes. If I can be recognized, and I have the assurance
now of the ranking member and the chairman, and hearing no objec-

tion from the members, I take it we all agree that we shall be bound
by these rules of confi.dentiality vrith respect to material to which we
have access as a result of the adoption of these rules. And accordingly,
with that understanding, Mr. Cliairman, I would withdraw my motion.
In doing so I want to make an observation, however, that there is a

liole in this whole thing. I am told that for the first time the regular
committee staff, as distinguished from the staff of the so-called im-
peachment committee, will have access to this information as well.

And it is not my understanding that those rules applied to the regular
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committee staff. And if so, I take it to be only an oversight that we
ought to address ourselves to.

The Chairman. Only as designated, however, by the chairman and
the ranking member.
Mr. Wiggins. And I am sure you will impose those rules on them.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, could I
Mr. Wiggins. And I will withdraw my motion, and I would ask

unanimous consent to do so.

The Chairman. Without objection, the motion is withdrawn.
Mr. IVIcClory. Mr. Chairman, it is on the same issue, but there is

a point that I would like to make. As you Imow, Mr. Chairman, I did
direct a letter to you earlier proposing that the rules of confiden-
tiality be amended to include counsel for the President. That proposal
was made on the basis that we would receive tapes from the President,
and that they would be received under our rules of confidentiality,
with the right of the President's counsel to participate in the screening
or in the elimination of such irrelevant material as might not be ap-
propriate for the impeachment inquiry.

That, of course, appears to be moot because the tapes have not been
delivered, as I hoped they might be. Nevertheless, I would hope that
if we receive additional materials that there might be some kind of an
understanding. For instance, if we are able to receive some of the
memoranda or other materials of that nature as a result of confer-
ences between counsel, that it might be understood that that kind of
participation by counsel for the President would be appropriate as

well under our existing iiiles where our counsel and the chairman
and the ranking minority member are limited in the first instance so

far as the secret material or private material is concerned.

The Chairman. I think the gentleman is addressing himself to a
matter that is not properly a consideration at this time. I think that

that is a matter that for the present is moot, although I think we ought
to address ourselves to it in the evenuality that we may be provided
with further materials and there are further requests.

But, at the present time, I think I want to recognize the gentleman
for a further amendment.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairivian. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. I have an amendment No. 4- which would be an addi-

tional paragraph G on page 4 of the rules.

The Chairman. The clerk will read the amendment.
The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment offered by Mr. Dennis of Indiana.

Resolved tliat the following additional paragraph be added to the Impeachment
Inquiry Procedures of the Committee on the Judiciary.

Gr. Members of the committee shall have the right to question witnesses ap-

pearing before the committee. Such questioning shall be under the .5-minute

rule, and time may be extended by unanimous consent, by the ruling of the chair,

or by majority vote of the committee.

Mv. Dennis. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, in this amendment I really assert an

inalienable right, because I believe every member of this committee

by being a Member of the Congress, and a member of this committee,

does have an inalienable right to question witnesses, which could not
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be taken away from liim, so perliaps in that sense the amendment is

not necessary. But, I feel that it is advisable to reiterate a sound prin-

ciple once in a while and that this is such an occasion, and I certainly

do not think that any member liere wants to vote against this amend-
ment and deny for himself that right, or that would be a catastrophe.

Now I feel that the right should be exercised with restraint. I do

not think members should feel a compelling urge to question, unless

they have something tliey really want to ask and think it material.

And I also think they ought to \vait until counsel is finished, because

quite often counsel will take care of their needs if they will just give

them a chance. But, I do think it is wise to reiterate the fact that in

the end, if comisel have not satisfied us, and we have some reason, that

we do have the right to participate, as has always been the case

throughout history, and in many impeachment inquiries, and all other

inquiries. And I assert our right again in this amendment.
Mr. Smitii. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Dennis. I yield to the gentleman.
Mr. Smith. I would like to say I support the gentleman. The rules

of procedure as written do not specifically give that right and while

the gentleman I am sure is correct that committee members always

have this right, I think it is a good idea to spell it out in the rules, so

that there will be no question about it.

Mr. Dennis. I think the gentleman, and I yield to the gentleman

from Wisconsin, if he wishes.

Mr. IvASTENMEiER. Well, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the gentleman
from Indiana yielding to me.

Actually, I only oppose the amendment because, and the gentleman
himself has said it, it is unnecessary. It is a restatement, as I under-

stand, of the rules of the House, and unless the subcommittee under-

took to attempt to modify that rule, which I think would be very hard
to do without going to the Kules Committee, or through some other

procedure, that rule has guaranteed to each member that right, and
to merely state it in what we have tried to keep relatively simple in

terms of procedures is really unnecessary, and cluttering up some-

thing. As members of this committee, we know that in hearings we are

entitled to 5 minutes. There is a 5-minute rule which will apply.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Conyers ?

Mr. Conters. Briefly, I oppose the motion for yet another reason.

It is not really accurate for us to say that this right is so inalienable.

It is curtailed frequently, both on the floor and in committee. We have
already done it at least once today here, and there may be occasions

wdien we may not be able to afford 38 members 5 minutes to examine
one witness, or extended by unanimous consent. So, w^hy should we kid
ourselves or the record otherwise.

I yield back the balance of my time.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous question.

The Chairman. The question is on the adoption of the amendment
offered by the gentleman from Indiana.

All those in favor please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]
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The Chairman. All those opposed ?

I

( 'horns of ''noes."
|

The Chairman. The noes appear to have it.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I will ask for a rollcall. If this com-
mittee really wants to vote that they do not have the right to do this,

let them do it.

The Chairman. The clerk will call the roll. All those in favor of
the amendment please say aye and those opposed, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
The Chairman. Mr. Donohue, proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
The Chairman. Proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Kastenmeier. I have his prox3^ Proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Hiingate.
Mr. HUNGATE. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
]\Ir. Conyers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
]\fr. Conyers. No by proxy.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
The Chairman. Proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Manii.
!Mr. Mann. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

fNo response.!

The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

FNo response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
The Chairman. Proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
The Chairman. Proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Tliornton.

Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
FNo response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
The Chairinian. Proxy, no.

The Clerk. ;Mr. ;Mezvinsln'.

Mr. ]Mezat:nsky. No.
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Tlie Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. HuTCHixsoN. No.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. No.
The Clerk. jNIr. Smith.
JSIr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eailsback.
Mr. Cohen. Proxy, a.je.

The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. ISIayne.

Mr. ]\Iatne. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. No.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

]Mr. Lott. Aj^e.

The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
]\Ir. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead,
Mr. Hutchinson. Proxy, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Hutchinson. Proxj', no.

The Clerk. Mr. Eodino'.

The Chairman. No, the clerk will report the vote.

The Clerk. Ten having voted aye, 26 voting no.

The Chairman. And the amendment is not agreed to.

But, the Chair would like to state that the Chair continues to adhere

and will adhere, and must adhere to the rules of the House. And the

rules of the House and the rules of the committee ]n'ovide for the

members to be protected at all times and they will have that right

under the 5-minute rule.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Dennis. I appreciate that assurance from the Chair, and I am
very glad to have it. And I certainly believe that that right exists, as

I said at the beginning. But, I also say that I never expected this

committee to sit here and vote that it was a nonentity. I realb; am
surprised.

The Chairman. Mr. ]McClory.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, I haA^e an amendment wliich I wish to

offer. It was an amendment designated by, which Mr. Eailsback in-

tended to offer, and he is not here, and I agreed to offer it in his stead.
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The Chairman. The clerk will read the amendment.
Mr. McClory. On page 2, paragraph B.
The Clerk [reading]

:

On page 2 in paragraph B, after the word "evidence" and in lieu of the period
insert the following : "after opportunity for the following has been provided."

The Chairman. ^Mr. ;McClory.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, this is, I am sure, just a clarifying

amendment to make absolutely certain that following the presentation
to the committee by the committee counsel, and the question is asked to
whether the desires to receive additional evidence, will be determined
after these other things have occurred, which are delineated under
paragraph B. It really adds the words "after opportunity for the fol-

lowing has been provided." In other words, the committee will deter-
mine question of additional evidence after those things have occurred.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. I have not had an opportunity to assess the effect

of this amendment. I would ask the counsel at the table if they have
any olDJection, or whether they see any adverse results of accepting
this amendment ?

Mr. DoAR. No, there is no objection, and there is no adverse result in
our opinion.

]\Ir. Jenner. We think it is inherent, but it might be spelled out.

Mr. Kastenmeier. In which case, Mr. Chairman, on behalf of the
subcommittee, I would have no objection to accepting the amendment.
Mr. McClory. If there is no objection, Mr. Chairman, I move the

adoption.

The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered by the
gentleman from Illinois.

All those in favor please say aye.

rChorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. iVll those opposed, no.

rXo response.]

The Chairman. The ayes have it and the amendment is agreed to.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
]Mr. Dennis. I have an amendment No. 5.

The Chairman. The clerk will read the amendment.
The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment offered by Mr. Dennis of Indiana.
Resolved that the following additional paragraph be added to the Impeachment

Inquiry Procedures of the Committee on the Judiciary,
H. The following individuals (because of their apparent information regarding

the alleged "Watergate "coverup," and particularly regarding the alleged payment
of $75,000 to William O. Bittman, attorney for Howard Hunt, allegedly on the
evening of March 21, 1973) shall be called before the committee as witnesses,
and shall be examined and cross examined by the committee and its counsel, and
by counsel for the President of the United States. John Dean, H. R. Haldeman,
John Erhlichman, John Mitchell, Paul O'Brien, Fred LaRue, Manyon M. Milli-

can, the person who allegedly went out to dinner with LaRue and Millican on the
evening of March 21, 1973, William D. Bittman.

Mr. Ivastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
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Tdr. Kastexmeier. I roluctaiitl}^ maks a point of order against the

amendment of my friend from Indiana, Mr. Chairman. The amend-
ment is not in the nature of a procedure of the committee, but rather a

direction in terms of specifics of individuals to be called to testify.

That list of individuals on the factual allegations in connection there-

v:ith is cited in this proposed amendment and is not procedural in

character. It has to do with the investigation, the policy matters with
respect to judgments as to what individuals are called, and this is not

a matter of the procedures of the committee. I respectfully make a

point of order against the amendment.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, may I be heard on the point of order?

The Chairman. The gentleman is recognized.

Mr. Dennis. I thank the Chairman.
Mr. Chairman, we are dealing here with the paper headed "Im-

peachment Inquiry Procedures." Now, I submit that the question of

how we proceed, what type of evidence we call, whether oral or other-

wise, what witnesses we call while, of course, it will lead to substance,

definitely deals with our procedure from this point forward. And,
therefore, it is relevant and appropriate here.

I point out further that whether or not it is ruled germane here for

this purpose, as I submit that it is, that this is a matter of the hi.ghest

importance which has got to be faced, and faced at an early date if we
are to finish this inquiry with any reasonable speed.

I point out further that this is a matter which goes right to the

crux of this whole inquiry. It is a two-edged sword. It could benefit

the President of the United States. It could damage the President of

the United States. But, I have got to vote here, and you have got to

vote here, and I feel that we have got to have these people before this

committee in order to do our job here. And whether it is satisfied on
a technical question tonight or not, it is not a subject which ought to

be set aside on a technical basis. It is a matter that we ought to decide

in this committee and do so promptly, because I cannot imagine con-

ducting this inquiry Avithout calling these individuals.

The Chairman. The Chair is prepared to rule on the point of order,

and the Chair recognizing the interest of the gentleman from Indiana
in wanting to assure that all pertinent information and testimony
comes before this committee, Imows that this right will be protected

when and if there is occasion and there is justification within the pur-

view of the committee to call the individuals for testimony. This re-

lates to particular instances, specific items that may develop during
the course. They may never develop. The rules of procedure are to re-

late to general rules as to the conduct of the inquiry generally, and
not to specific situations. And, therefore, I sustain and rule in support
of the point of order, and rule against the gentleman from Indiana.

]Mr. Hutchinson.
Mv, Hutchinson. Mr. Chairman, I have an amendment at the desk

and ask the Clerk to read it.

The Chairman. The clerk will read.

The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment offered by Mr. Hutchinson.
At the bottom of page 4, add the following new paragraph :

"H. For pui-poses of hearings held pursuant to these rules a quorum shall

consist of 10 members of the committee."
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Mr. Hutchinson, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairjman. Mr. Hutchinson.
]Mr. Hutchinson. The rules of the House permit standing commit-

tees to determine a quorum for hearing purposes as a number less than
a majority of the full committee. I recall during the confirmation hear-

ings in connection with the nomination of the Vice President, Mr.
Ford, that on one evening particularly, we found that it was very
difficult to maintai]! a quorum of the full committee here. That is to

say, more than half of the 38 members. Even today. And, of course,

this is a meeting, and so this is not a very proper illustration. But,
even today at one time in this meeting there was on the floor of this

committee a simple quorum of the comimttee. If one more member
had absented himself, then it would have been in order for any member
present to make a point of order against a proceeding, because of a

quorum not being present.

As I sa}^, when we look at hearing procedures in the Congress, it is

quite common to have a quorum be defined as a number less than a full

majority of the committee.
The CiiAiRiViAN. Would the gentleman yield ?

]Mr. Hutchinson. Yes.
The Chairman. I would like to commend the gentleman for being

alert to what I think is a necessary amendment to the rules of pro-

cedure, because it would be in the interest of expediting this inquiry

to assure that we can go forward with less than the quorum that is now
required of the committee as such. And I think that the gentleman's

amendment, as a rule of procedure, would not only be in order, but^
would be absolutely necessary and essential and I support him whole-

heartedly.

Mv. Hutchinson. I thank the chairman for his support.

Tlie rationale for choosing the number 10 in this proposal was that

in our subcommittee structure we have either 9 or 10 members in a full

committee, and I think that for hearing procedure purposes, that if

we have the equivalent of a full subcommittee on the floor at any time,

that that would be sufficient. Now, I do not suggest that members are

going to be absenting themselves' unnecessarily in the midst of these

very important hearings. I am not suggesting that at all. But, I am
suggesting that we have, through experience, we already know that

it is very possible that there can become times when you do not have
20 members on the fl.oor. And to reduce it down to 10, I think, is very
reasonable.

Mr. SeiberlinCx. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kjvstenmeier. Very briefly, I should add that the subcommit-

tee did not presume to determine what number less than the full

quonim should constitute a quorum for purposes of these hearings.

Personally, I find the gentleman from Michigan's proposal that

10 constitute a quorum completely acceptable. We have all been
through the experience at the floor proceedings, and I would hope that
the full committee can accept his amendment.

INIr. ]\fayne. ]\Ir. Chairman ?

Mr. Mann. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Mann.
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Mr. I^Ianx. Mr. Chairman, I speak in opposition to the amendment.

We are entering the evidentiary or factfinding stage of this inquiry,

and to even consider the possibility that less than half of the jury

should be, or a quorum, or less than one third of the jury should be a

quorum for the receipt of facts, to me, if such a situation occurs, then

the committee should not be sitting and receiving evidence. I feel

that a simple majority quorum as provided by the rales is the better

part of wisdom, and 1 would be confident that the committee will be

able to fill that quorum.
The Chairimax. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Maxx. Yes.

The Chairman. The gentleman recognizes that if this inquiry were

ever to reach the stage that articles of impeachment were voted, and

the articles would be considered by the House, that the same rules

would apply as to what constitutes "a quonun under the impeachment

proceedings in the House and it seems to me that if the House has not

provided otherwise, and that we do Imow that the Constitution does

provide for the question of impeachment, and the Founding Fathers

did not see it in their wisdom to do other than to still maintain that a

quorum is what is necessary to conduct the hearings, and at that

stage, until the vote is reached, that that would be a majority of the

House, and then it would seem to me that in tlie interest of expeditioiis-

iiess, expedition, we ought to adopt this amendment.
Mr. WiGOixs. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. ]\Ir. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. I oppose the amendment. I am not at all persuaded

that expedition is the highest value here that we ought to consider. I
rather think all of us would be very derelict in our basic responsibility

if we did not recognize that the role of this committee in the impeach-
ment proceeding is unique and it imposes an almost awesome respon-

sibility upon us. And simply to argue that 10 of our number is adequate
to listen to the evidence in a matter of this importance, I find to be
repugnant. Indeed, I thought that perhaps my friend from ]\Iichigan

would suggest that a greater number than one-half would be necessary

to maintain a quorum in this case, rather than less.

I suppose I could tolerate a majority, but I cannot tolei-ate less than
one-third for the purpose of receiving this evidence and niling there-

on. And T therefore oppose the amendment.
]Mr. Dennis. Will the gentleman yield ?

]\rr. Wiggins. I yield to the gentleman from Indiana.
^Ir. Dennis. I would like to associate myself with the remarks of

tlie gentleman from California and the gentleman from South
Carolina.

Mr. BiT^LER. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Brn^ER. Thank you, IVIr. Chairman.
I simj^ly wanted to oppose the amendment with these other people

that ai'ticulated so well, and I do not think it is necessary for me to

repeat it.

The Chairman. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Mr. Chairman, I thank the chaimian for yielding, and

I really was not very much opposed to this amendment until I heard
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onr distinoiiislied chairman's argument, which seems to me to be com-
pletely unacceptable, unless I do the chairman an injustice. It seems
to me^that he is suggesting that we should rely on the full House, which
would have the protections of the regular quorum to correct any mis-
takes which less than a regular quorum would make here in the com-
mittee. I believe we in the committee have a responsibility to decide
this question of whether or not impeachment lies rather than to assume
that the committee will take any such action, and then rely on the full
House to correct our mistake.
The Chairman. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Mayne. I am happy to yield to the chairman.
The Chairman. The Chair did not mean to suggest in any way that

we were going to rely on the full House to protect this committee.
This committee can, I am sure, do what is just and will do what is
right and will protect this inquiry as to its fairness. But, I would, I
would call the attention of the gentleman from Iowa to the fact that
this inquiry could have gone forward, if many members would have
a nimd to have it go forward with whatever number might have been
designated by the Chair, and a committee of 7, and this has happenedm the past where recommendations have been made with a committee
of ( members, of 11 members, and I think the highest was 12 members
when impeachment was considered. And I think, therefore, that while
tins may be an inquiry concerning the possible impeachment of the
President, it would seem to me that we could still go forward and
be deliberate about it, and yet be expeditious with 10 members.
Mr. JMayne. I yield to the gentleman from New York.
Mr. Fish. I thank the gentleman for yielding. And it is difficult to

bo opposed to the amendment offered by the ranking Republican,
supported by the chairman, but I do think that this amendment flies
in the face of the direction that counsel has been movintr in the last
few years since the recent legislative Reorganization Act, I think of
1971, where the record votes in committees are now a matter of record,
and a lot of other inducements to members being present and struc-
tured m that legislation. And if I could address myself to the chair-
mans latest comment, of course the fact is that we do not have a sub-
committee of 7, or 9, or 11. We have 38 that are totally responsible,
and I tor one think we have waited a long time for this' presentation,
and that we should plan to be here.
Mr. Hutchinson. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Fish. Certainly I yield.
^Ir. Mayne. I yield.
Mr. Hutchinson. I would like to remind the committee that tiris

proposal that I have offered does not prevent any member of the
committee from coming and being here, and the fact of the matter is,we expect everybody to be here most of the time. But, it has been our
experience, it was our experience in thQ Ford hearing, that at one
time there we almost had to discontinue hearings that day, or that
evening, because we could not maintain quorum. We just had a bare
quormn for a long time, and we were very apprehensive that some-
body was going to leave.
Now, there is one other argument or matter that I want to bring to

the committee's attention, and that is this : I am informed that the Su-
preme Court has held, the Federal courts at least have held, that in a
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legislative hearing where less than the stated quorum is present, you
can state whatever amount constitutes a quorum, but if there is less

than the stated quorum being present, then the courts would not en-

force perjuiy against a witness who testified before a committee with
less tlian the stated quorum. In other words, if you want to maintain,
if you want to say, say in order to have this hearing legally constituted,

you have to have 20 members of this committee right on this podium
at all times, then that is all right. But I am inviting your attention to

the fact that it is at all times, and sometimes you might be embarrassed
by it.

The Chairman. The gentleman's time has expired.

Mr. IVxVSTENMEiER. Mr. Chairman, I move the previous question.

The Chaikniax. The question is on the amendment offered by the
gentleman from Michigan. All those in favor please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. The ayes appear to have it.

Ms. Holtzman. Rollcall on that, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. A call of the roll is demanded and the clerk will call

the roll. Those in favor will please respond by saying aye, and those
opposed, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
The Chairman. Aye by proxy.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
The Chairman. Aye, proxy.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Ivastenmeier. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Himgate.
Mr, HuNGATE. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoNYERS, No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
The Chairslvn. Proxy, aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Conyers. No, proxy.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
The Chairjman. Proxy, aye.

The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. ISIann. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
The Chairman. Proxy, aye.

The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
The Chairman. Proxy, aye.

The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. No.



540

The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
]\Is. JORDA?^^. No.
T]ie Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thorntox. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzmax. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
The Chalrmax. Proxy, aye.

Tlie Clerk. Mr. ]Mezvinsky.
]Mr. Mezvixsky. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. HuTCHixsox. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. IMcClory.
Mr. McClory. Aye.
Th_e Clerk. ]Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
]Mr. Saxdmax. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Eailsback.
IVIr. Coiiex. Proxy, aye.

Th.e Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
jStr. WiGGixs. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mv. Dexxis. No.
The Clerk. Mv. Fish.
Mv. Fish. No.
The Clerk. Mv. INIayne.

Mv. Mayxe. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mv. HoGAx. Ave.
The Clerk. Mv. Butler.

Mv. Butler. No.
Tlie Clerk. Mv. Cohen.
Mv. CoHEx. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr, Lott. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
ISIr. Froehlich. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorliead.
[No response;]

The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.

[No response.]

The Clerk. ^Ir. Podino.
The Chairmax. Aye.
The clerk will.report.

The Clerk. Nineteen voted aye, seventeen have voted nay.
Mr. Mayxe. Mr. Chairman ?
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The Chairman. The amendment is agreed to.

]Mr. Mayne. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Mayne ?

Mr. Mayne. I would like to state that I was persuaded by the elo-

quent statement of the gentleman from Michigan, Mr. Hutchinson.

The Chairman. There being no further amendments before the

Chair, the question now occurs on the rules and procedures as

amended,^ and will all those in favor of adopting the rules of procedure

as amended, please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed, no.

[Xo response.]

The Chairman. The ayes have it.

Mr. IIoGAN. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. With reference further to the discussion about con-

fidentiality, would the Chair advise me if tlie rule of confidentiality

prohibits the majority and minority counsel from making speeches

on the subject of impeachment and engaging in off the record dis-

cussion with representatives of the media i

The Chairman. The rules of confidentiality have already been

stated, and they govern the members of the staff' as v>'ell.

Mr. Hogan. Well, would the chairman respond to my inquiry? May
the minority and majority counsel make speeches on the subject of

impeachment ?

The Chairman. The minority and majority counsel could not re-

spond, except here, and those are the committee's rules on confidential-

ity, and they will be adhered to.

'Mr. Hogan. Are they not able to make speeches on the subject of

impeachment?
The Chairman. Outside ?

Mr. Hogan. Yes, outside of the committee room ?

The Chairman. I do not know that anyone is bound outside of the

committee room to make any speech that one might make. That v^ould

be impeding the right of a person's freedom of speech.

^Ir. Hogan. Well, talking about what goes on here, might be
rules

The Chairman. The rules of confidentiality, if I might reply to the

gentleman, will relate and refer strictly to the matters that are dis-

cussed here, and to those things that are under consideration and
relate to the rules of confidentiality. Beyond that, they do not relate.

And there being no further business before the Chair, the Chair
would declare the meeting adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 6 :15 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]

1 See "Appendix VI.—Impeachment Inquiry Procedures," in boolr HI, "Impeachment
Inquiry."
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IMPEACHMENT INQUIRY

THURSDAY, MAY 9, 1974

House of Representati\t.s,

Committee on the Judiciary,
Washington^ B.C.

The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 1:05 p.m.. in room 2141,

Raybum House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr. (chair-

man) presiding.

Present: Representatives Rodino (presiding), Donohue, Brooks,

Kastemneier, Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, Waldie, Flowere,

JNIann, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Rangel, Jordan,

Thorntori, Holtzman. Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, McClory,

Smith, Sandman, Railsback, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, JNIayne, Hogan,

Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froehlich, :Moorhcad, Maraziti, and Latta.

Impeacliment inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Albert E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority ; Samuel Garrison

III. deputy minority comisel ; Evan A. Davis, counsel.

Conunittee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general counsel ; Gar-

ner J. Cline, associate general counsel ; and Franklin G. Polk, associate

counsel.

Also present: James D. St. Clair, special counsel to the President;

and Jolni A. McCahill, assistant special counsel.

Tlie Chairman. The meeting will come to order. Three months ago

the House of Representatives considered H. Res. 803. The resolution

ri'ad as follows

:

Resolved, That the Committee on the Judiciary, acting as a whole or by any
subcommittee thereof appointed by the chairman for the purposes hereof and
in accordance with the rules of the committee, is authorized and directed to

investigate fully and completely whether sufficient grounds exist for the House of

Representatives to exercise its constitutional power to impeach Richard M.
Nixon, President of the United States of America. The committee shall report to

tlie House of Representatives such resolutions, articles of impeachment, or other

recommendations as it deems proper.

The House adopted that resolution by a vote of 410 to 4. We are

pioceeding under the mandate of that resolution.

I do not need to stress again the importance of our undertaking and
the wisdom, decency, and principle which we must bring to it.

We understand our high constitutional responsibility. We will

faithfully live up to it.

For some time we have known that the real security of th'S Na-
tion lies in tlie integrity of its institutions and the ti'ust and informed
confidence of its people. We conduct our deliberations in that spirit.

(543)
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"We shall beg-in our hearings by considering materials relevant to
the question of Presidential responsibility for the Watergate break-in
and its investigation by law enforcement agencies. This is one of six
areas of our inquiry. We expect to continue our inquiry until each
area lias been thoroughly examined.

First, we will consider detailed information assembled by the staff.

This consists of information already on the public record, informa-
tion developed in executive session by other congressional committees,
information furnished by the Federal grand jury of the District of
Columbia, and other information.
After today the committee will meet regularly, 3 days a week, for

all-day sessions beginning next Tuesday at U :3U a.m.
The chairman will, as circumstances dictate, be ready to notice such

business meetings as may be necessary.

During the initial presentation, special counsel and minority coun-
-sel will explain and summarize the materials.

Our proceedings are governed by the rules of confidentiality that

the committee adopted on February 22, and the rules of procedure
adopted May 2. The committee has the power to modify or change these

rules during the course of the hearings.

Some of the materials which the committee will consider have been
held confidential by the staff, by Mr. Hutchinson, and myself. This
material inckides tape recordings of conversations among President

Nixon and his key associates. We will listen to these recordings during
these hearings.

After the Judiciary Committee has had the opportunity to consider

this material it will decide if and when, in the national interest, this

material should be made public.

The Judiciary Committee has determined that President Nixon
should be accorded the opportunity to have his counsel present

throughout the proceedings. Mr. James St. Clair is present today.

After the initial proceedings are completed, Mr. St. Clair will be

afforded the opportunity to respond to the presentation, orally or

in writing, as cletermined by the committee. He and his assistant

understancl the committee's rules of procedure and the committee's
rules of confidentiality, and they are bound by those rules.

Our proceedings will be conducted under the Rules of the House of

Representatives. Technical rules of evidence do not apply. We are

governed by the Constitution of the United States which vests the
sole power of impeachment in the House.
A brief report of the day's proceedings will be issued at the end of

each day -s hejtrings.

I recognize the gentleman from Michigan, Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. HuTCHiNSOiSr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Today the committee starts consideration of the most awesome power

constitutionally vested in the House of Representatives. During the
past four months this committee's impeachment inquiry staff' has been
assembling information under the committee's direction and counsel

will now present to the committee the information assembled.
The power of impeachment is one of those great checks and balances

written in our Constitution to ameliorate the stark doctrine of the

separation of powers. But impeachment of a President is most di-astic,
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for it can bring down an administration of the Government. The Con-
stitution itself limits the scope of impeachment of a President to

treason, bribery, or other high crimes and misdemeanors.

A law dictionary publislied in London in 1776 defines impeachment
as

—

The accusation and prosecution of a person for treason or other crimes and
misdemeanors. Any Member of the House of Commons may not only impeach
any of their own body but also any Lord or Parliament. And thereupon Articles

are exhibited on behalf of the Commons, and managers appointed to malce good
their charge and accusation : which being done in the proper judicature, sentence

is passed. And it is observed that the same evidence is required in an impeach-

ment in Parliament as in the ordinary courts of justice.

That definition of the term fairly exhibits, I believe, the under-

standing and meaning of the founders of this Republic when they

wrote into our own Constitution the sole power of this House to

impeach the President of the United States. The standard it imposes

is a finding of criminal culpability on the part of the President him-

self, measured according to the law.

I trust that the members of this committee embark upon their awe-

some task each in his own resolve to lay aside ordinary political con-

siderations and to weigh the evidence according to the law. I trust

that each of us is resolved during this inquiry, schooled, skilled, and
practiced in the law as each of us is, to perform as a lawyer in the finest

traditions of the profession.

And in the view of the enormity of the responsibility cast upon us,

I trust that in the days and weeks ahead each of us will according
to the dictates of his own conscience, seek the guidance of that Divine.

Pro^'idence which can be with us all and be everywhere for good, and
which has so blessed this Nation and its people throughout our history.

The Chairman. I recognize the gentleman from Massachusetts,,

Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Mr. Chairman, as I understand it, the impeachment

inquiry staff has received a wide variety of material which has, up
until now, been subject to the requirements of confidentiality. Included
in this class of confidential material are documents which have been
received from grand juries as well as materials developed by other con-

gressional committees in executive sessions.

Under the circumstances, Mr. Cliairman, it is my opinion we should
not make all this material public today. Tlierefore, I move that dur-

ing this initial phase of the presentation the committee go into execu-

tive session pursuant to rule 11, clause 27 of our House rules. That rule

provides that if evidence or testimony at an investigative hearing may
tend to defame, degrade, or incriminate any person, the committee
shall receive such evidence or testimony in executive session.

Mr. McClory. I second the motion.
The Chairman. The motion has been made and seconded.

Mr. CoNYERS. May I be recognized, Mr. Chairman ?

The Chah^man. The motion, I might advise the gentleman from
Michigan, is not a debatable motion.
Mr. CoNTERS. This motion—well, point of order, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The question is on the motion
Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman, point of order.

The Chairman. Since the question is not one that is debatable, the

Chair will put the question to the committee. All those in favor
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Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman, point of order. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The gentleman will state his point of order.

Mr. CoNYERs. Is the Chair suggesting that a motion of this im-
portance and magnitude, with no more than being stated and seconded,
cannot be considered by the members of this committee gathered here
for the purposes of an impeachment hearing ?

The Chairmax. Is the gentleman stating a point of order
Mr. CoNYERs. Yes.
The Chairman. Or is he inquiring of the Chair? The Chair has

already ruled that the motion is not a debatable one in accordance with
the rules of the House, rule 11, 27M, and therefore, unless the gentle-

man is ready to state that he has an argument to support his point

of order, the Chair is ready to present the question on the motion.
Mr, CoNTERS. I ask for a rollcall vote, Mr. Chairman.
Ms. Holtzman. Parliamentary inquiiy.

The Chairman. The lady will state it.

Ms. Holtzman. Thank you.

Did I understand the gentleman's motion was to close the hear-

ings and receive this portion in the executive session for the first phase,

or only this meeting, this session, this hearing session ?

The Chairman. For the initial phase of the hearing.

Ms. Holtzman. I thank the Chairman.
Mr. Seiberlino. Mr. Chairman, a point of order.

As I understand the House rules, we must vote at each session of
the committee whether the committee shall be open or closed. Is that

correct? Therefore, we are really only voting on today's session?

The Chairman. This, as the Chair will again state, the scvssion that

would be closed, of course, would relate to today, and at any subsequent

time the Chair could entertain another motion. But, the motion that

is put to the Chair at this time is a motion to close this hearing in order
that we hear this initial presentation in accordance with rule 11. 27M,
which suggests that where there is the possibility that any information
may tend to degrade or defame that the session be an executive session.

Therefore
Mr. Seiberlino. Well. ]Mr. Chairman, if I may pursue this inquiry

^'ust a little bit, it is my intention to support the motion. However,
it is my understanding of the rules that at the next session of this

committee, if it is to be a closed session, a similar motion will have to

be made and approved and that at each subsequent session which is

desired to be closed?

The Chairman. The question, the question that the gentleman is

propounding suggests that we will be continuing and we are going to

be continuing this hearing. We will be recessing from time to time.
Mr. Seiberlino. But each day, I mean at each day's session, at the

start of each day, a similar motion must be approved, as I understand
the rules.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, parliamentary inquiry.
The Chairman. The gentleman will state it.

]Mr. McClory. Is it not the rule of the House that we are bound by
and we do not need any motion, we do not need any action by this

committee? All we have to do is comply with the rules of the House,
which is what the chairman is suggesting in the action we are taking
at the present time.
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Mr. Rangel. Parliamentary inquiry. Parliamentary inquiry.

The Chairman. The gentleman is absolutely correct.

]\rr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. I will recognize the gentleman from New York for
a parliamentary inquiry.

Mr. Rangel. Mr. Chairman, under this motion, on the requirements
of confidentiality, does the staff of the President of the United States,
who are now present, are they governed by these rules ?

The Chairman. The Chair has already stated that the counsel for
the President and his assistant are governed by the rules of confiden-
tiality and the rules of procedure.

jVIr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman, parliamentary inquiry.

Mr. Chairman, do I understand since there is no access on the part
of the committee to the materials, do I understand that the Chair is

representing to the committee that these materials do, in fact, tend to
degrade or defame ?

The Chairman. The Chair is stating that in accordance with the
rules, all that has to be suggested in the motion is that they may tend
to defame or degrade, and not that there is a finding of fact.

Mr. Waldie. Well, may I ask if the Chair is suggesting that the
materials may tend to degrade and defame ?

The Chairman. The Chair is merely acting on the motion of the
gentleman from Massachusetts.
Mr. Waldie. Then may I make the parliamentary inquiry to the

gentleman from ISIassachusetts ?

Will the gentleman from ]Massachusetts

Mr. Dennis. Point of order.

The Chairman. Parliamentary inquiry will not be directed to any-
one else but the Chair and the gentleman recognizes that. However, I

would state to the gentleman that the gentleman has already been
told that this is the rule and that there is no need that there be a find-

ing of fact. Therefore, the gentleman's inquiry is out of order and the

Chair now puts the question.

Mr. Waldie. Rollcall, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The rollcall vote is demanded. However, in ac-

cordance with the rules of the House, one-fifth of the members would
have to support a request for a rollcall.

All those in favor of asking for a rollcall by record vote please raise

their hands.
[Show of hands.]

The Chairman. One-fifth of the members, a sufficient number, has
vot^d in the affirmative, and a rollcall is demanded, and the clerk will

call the roll.

All those in favor of closing the hearings please say aye and all those

opposed, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
INIr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier. •

ISIr. IvASTENiviEiER. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
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Mr, Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
[No response.]

The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. INlr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
INIr. Rangel. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
]\Ir. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hoiran.
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]\Ir. HoGAN. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

]Mr, Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. INIr. Lott.

Mr. LoTT. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
]Slr. Froehlich. iVye.

The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. jMoorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. INIaraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.

Mr. Latta. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The clerk will report the vote.

The Clerk. 31 members have voted aye, 6 have voted no.

The Chairman. And the motion is agreed to. And the Chair will
now announce that the committee will go into recess until the television

cameras and other equipment which is not allowed, and persons not
permitted during the course of the confidential hearings will be re-

mo\ed from the room.
[Whereupon, at 1 :27 p.m. the session was recessed.]
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The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 1 :40 p.m., in room 2141,

Eayburn House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Eodino, Jr. (chair-

man) presiding.

Present: Representatives Rodino (presiding), Donohue, Brooks,
Kastenmeier, Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, AValdie, Flowers,
Mann, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Rangel, Jordan,
Thornton, Holtzman, Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, McClory,
Smith, Sandman, Railsback, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, Mayne, Hogan,
Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froehlich, Moorhead, Maraziti, and Latta.
Impeachment inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Albert E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority ; Samuel Garrison
III, deputy minority counsel ; Joseph A. Woods, senior associate spe-
cial counsel ; Bernard W. Nussbaum, senior associate special comisel

;

Richard Cates, senior associate special counsel ; Evan A Davis, coun-
sel; Fred H. Altshuler, counsel; Robert J. Trainor, counsel; Stephen
A. Sharp, counsel.

Committee staff present: Jerome M. Zeifman, general counsel; Gar-
ner J. Cline, associate general counsel ; and Franklin G. Polk, associate
counsel.

Also present: James D. St. Clair, special counsel to the President;
John A. McCahill, assistant special counsel.

The Chairman. The committee will come to order.

While the books are being distributed, the Chair would like to first

welcome Mr. St. Clair, counsel to the President. And Mr. St. Clair
will be given an opportunity to introduce his assistant to the com-
mittee. I would also ask Mr. Doar to present to the committee the
other members of the staff whom the committee may not easily
identify or recognize.

I would like to state, first of all, that. Mr. St. Clair, I am sure that
you recognize that under the rules of confidentiality our cormnittee
members are precluded from discussing any of the materials that are
confidential to it, even with members of their own staff, and this has
been a rule that has been adhered to.

(551)
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The committee prides itself on having been able to retain its con-
fidentiality, and I would hope that we recognize, of course, that the
counsel is counsel to the President and must communicate with the
President, of course, and I am sure Mr. McCahill, who is your assist-

ant, does. But, I would hope that Mr. St. Clair recognizes that he
will be requested and will be expected to comply with the rules of
confidentiality insofar as those materials are concerned.
Mr. St. Clair. I do. Your Honor. JMr. Chairman, excuse me.
The Chairman. Thank you very much.
Mr. St. Clair. I would like to introduce my associate, I\Ir. James

]\IcCahill, for whom I will vouch Avill comply with the rules of this
committee.
The Chairimax. Thank you very much.
And Mr, Dear, will j^ou kindly first present the members of the

staff. I think that we have not had an opportunity to meet each of
them that is here novr.

Mr. Doar. Mr. Chairman, sitting with me at the counsel table today
is, on my left, Mr. Evan Davis, and behind, the committee knows
Joseph Woods, Fred Altshuler, Robert Trainor, Bernie NussbauiD,
Eir-liard Cates, and Steve Sharp.

These members of the staff will be with us today and assisting in the
presentation.

The Chairman. Mr. Jenner ?

3Ir, Jenner, Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
Mr, Doar has introduced the members of our staff as well at the

same time.

The Chairman. Thank you very much.
And the Chair would also like to state that during this initial phase

of our presentation, and in accordance with the rules of procedure, the
counsel, Mr, Doar and Mr. »Tenner, will make their presentation. And
during this time there will be no interruptions. The presentation will

be made until it is completed, I would hope that the members recognize
that this is in the interest of orderly and more efficient procedure.
Mr, Doar, will you kindly proceed.
3Ir, Doar, Mr, Chairman, members of the committee, first I would

like to take a few minutes to explain to you the notebook procedure

or method that we are going to use to help the committee examine the

materials tl\at have been assembled by the inquiry staff during the past

4 n^.onths. The first notebook that I would like to call your attention

to is an index to the investigative files. Under the rules of the commit-
tee, this index is made available to the committee members, but to no
one except the committee members.
For that reason, Mr, St. Clair did not receive this notebook. This

index lists in an organized way all of the material which the com-
mittee staff has assembled. I should say that we had to cut off several

days ago with respect to indexing, and so I cannot represent to you
that it is 100 percent current. It is not. But, we will be supplementing
this index for you at intervals during these proceedings.

This index is divided into five sections. And on the initial page of

the index there is an explanator}' section explaining how it is to be

used. Now, it is from this index that the committee members could

see what material we have presented to the committee, and what ma-
terial we have in the files that has not been presented. For example,
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the documents and testimony related to the six areas of investigation

are subdivided so if you wanted to look, for example, and to see what
materials we had on agency practices, you could go to a section in the

book, in the index to agency practices, and run through that with re-

spect to all of the materials that we have collected over in the library.

The same is true with respect to the other areas under investigation.

We have obtained these materials from the Senate select committee
principally, from other congressional committees, from the Central

Intelligence Agency and from the executive branch departments and
from Federal agencies.

The second section deals with materials which we have received

from the White Plouse. This includes Presidential tapes. White
House files regarding political matters, ITT, dairy price supports, the
activities of the plumbers, the files received from the executive branch
agencies through the White House. It also includes certain handwrit-
ten notes of, for example, the President and H. R. Haldeman for meet-
ings on particular da3's.

The third section deals with court transcripts.

The fourth section deals with Senate select committee public testi-

mony. In that regard we have arranged to have all 9 volumes of the

Senate select committee public hearings, and these 13 volumes distrib-

uted to you at your offices so that you would have that available. It

also includes the executive session testimony before congressional com-
m.ittees other than the Senate select committee.
We will have, members of the committee, two or three persons avail-

able at all times at the office who can explain to you exactly how this

index is to be used ; or if you have any questions about it, so that any
time you have a question, if you call Barbara Fletcher, we will have
people available to ansA^er your questions and make the material avail-

able, and provide ready access to anything that we have in the fi.les

at whatever time an}^ member of the committee decides to examine
it.

Mr. Seiberling. May I ask a question at this time ?

The Chairman. Ko. There will be no questions asked. The proceed-
ings will continue uninterrupted.

Otherwise we ar^not going to have an effective, orderly proceed-
ing. So tlie gentleman will defer his question.

Mr. Seiberling. Does this include questions as to whether this is

subject to the rules of confidentiality ?

The Chair]man. We stated that these are materials that are subject

to the rules of confidentiality.

Mr. Seiberling. Thank you.
IMr. Doar. Without turning to the notebook for a moment, to dis-

cuss the content of the notebook, I would like to explain just the way
the notebooks are organized. In the beginning of each notebook is a set

of paragraphs, set of statements of information, detailed in para-
graph fomi, covering the material, evidentiary material covered in

the notebook. For example, in this notebook today there are 20 para-
graphs, and each of the paragraphs contains annotations which refer

to testimony, memorandums, or documents that establish or tend to

establish a statement of information contained within a i)aragraph.
And then these are all ke^'ed to numbered paragraphs.
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At the start of every evidentiaiy paragraph, the statement of infor-

mation is repeated so that yon don't have to turn back. If you are more
comfortable taking the first part of the notebook and l^eeping it sepa-

rate and adding to it tlie additional paragraphs as we proceed through

the remaining books, that will not handicap you in using the large note-

book at all because you will have the same statement of information at

the head of each section.

For example, section 1, section 2, section 3, and so forth. Each para-
graph, members of the committee, and it is amiotated through a deci-

mal system, 1.1,^ 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, to testimony and to documents that are

found behind the paragraph 1 or the Roman numeral or the number 1,

and the 1.2, as you can see, and 1.3 is typed in, in the markers that
divide the subsections.

That briefly is how we would propose to organize the initial

presentation.

Next Tuesday we will be giving to you two notebooks that have, I

think, 55 paragraplis, and included in that there will be, I believe, three

times when we will ask the committee to listen to recorded conversa-

tions. The following day there will be one or two more books, and there

will be a number of recorded conversations.

That would be on Wednesday of next week.
At the time that the recorded conversations are played, when we come

to that point, because as I say, what we do here is approach this chron-

ologically, and we start with December 2, 1971, and we run forward
from December 2, 1971, in one phase of our initial presentation, and
ultimately we will reach May 9, 1974.

There will be a notebook with respect to the whole question of the

tapes and the tape recording system that was installed at the White
House.
That briefly is the way we would approach each day's presentation.

And I think that as you get into the books, that if you have any ques-

tions about them, members of the staff, after the session or between
sessions, will be available to answer those questions and explain any
particular point, look into further things about which you may have a

question.

And now, prior to going into the book, I thougkt it might be useful

for the committee if I summarized certain backgi'ound information.

And I have prepared a memorandum here called "Background In-

formation," and with your permission, I would like to summarize it

briefly.

On January 20, 1969, Richard Nixon was inaugurated as the 37th
President of the United States. On that day, 81 persons were sworn in

as members of his staff. H. R. Haldeman was appointed as Assistant
to the President. John D. Ehrlichman was appointed counsel. From
that day until May 19, Mr. Haldeman, who worked with President
Nixon since 1956 in the political campaigns, acted as President Nixon's
chief of staff. He was in charge of the White House operation. He
worked directly for the President in implementing his decisions and
directions. Ho directed the activities of the appointments secretary, the
White PTousc staff secretary. He received copies of memorandums and
letters written by senior staff assistants to the President. He established

^ Note.—The tab numbers cited throntrhnnt tlie three volumes of executive sessions
refer to paragraphs in previously printerl piiblieations of the Committee on the Judiciary
entitled "Statement of Information" consistinc: of 12 boolvs containinj? 21 separate vol-
umes and "Statement of Information Submitted on Behalf of President Nixon." 4 books,
all released by the Committee on the Judiciary during July and August, 1974.
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and approved, subject to the final approval of the President, of course,
the White House budget. He had no independent schedule. His sched-
ule was that of the President.
During the reelection campaign, the President's campaign organi-

zation reported to Mr. Haldeman, and the reporting method waa
through his assistant, Mr. Strachan. We received from the ^Vliite

House a number of so-called political matters and memorandums that
we will call to the committee's attention, some of them today. And
!Mr. Haldeman would review these memoi-andums and take action on
them as he saw fit, implementing President Nixon's direction in the
final analysis.

Now, Mr. Haldeman had a number of people working for him. He
hnd two young men, a man named Lawrence Higby and Gordon
Strachan who were really what you might call his special assistants.

Bruce Kehrli was also directly under Mr. Haldeman, who operated
what was loiown as the staff secretary system in the White House.

President Nixon is a very disciplined President. He likes order and
his system of management of the White House clearly reflects that.

That will be apparent, members of the committee, as you go through
these hearings.

As I say, Gordon Strachan became Mr. Haldeman's special assist-

ant. I have heard it said that every President would want a H. R.
Haldeman, and every H. R. Haldeman would want a Gordon Strachan.
The next man on the page is Alexander Butterfield. Alexander But-

terfield went to UCLA with Mr. Haldeman. I think they were in the
same class. Their wives were good friends and fraternity sisters at

college. Mr. Butterfield was an Army-Air Force Colonel in Australia
when President Nixon was elected and he received a call from the
Hotel Pierre, I believe, in New York and was asked to join the ad-
ministration as Mr. Haldeman's right-hand man. And he joined the
administration on the first day. January 21, 1969.

Initially he served as Mr. Haldeman's right-hand man. But then
in Noveml3er 1969, he took the job of really managing President
Nixon's daily schedule. Not his schedule for 2 weeks in advance, but his
schedule on a particular day. You all, I am sure, know who iVIr.

Butterfield is. He is the man who testified about the fact that there
was a tape recording system installed and operative in the Oval Office

and in other offices of the White House. This system was, as he ex-
plained it, was a voice activated system, which means that whenever
one person talked, within the room, that this recording, the tape re-

cording system went on and recorded that conversation. That was true
exf'ept for the Cabinet Room where there was a control on the system.
There was a control in Mr. Butterfiekl's office and there was a con-

trol beneath the desk where President Nixon sat in the Cabinet Room.
That is my understanding. So. in the Cabinet Room that tape recording
system could be turned on and off. But, with respect to the other
places where the system was established, it was voice activated and it

ran all of the time.

There were two tape i^ecording machines installed in a room I
believe in the brisement of the Executive Office Buildina:. And tliese

flir)i)ed from one to the other on a time-activated system, so that if

you ran one 6 hours, not 6 hours of conversation, ])ut 6 hours of time
on one tane recording, it flipped over to the other tape recording and
van for the next 6 hours.



556

It did not flip at the end of the time when the tape ran out but it

rather flipped at the end of a particular time period.

Mr. Butterfield was one of the few people that was familiar and was
aware of the tape recording system and is prepared to testify that

on several occasions that he checked it to establish that it was oper-

ative. Mr. Butterfield reported to Mr. Haldeman. He functioned as

Mr. Haldeman's deputy in handling the flow of paper and people in

and out of the President's Office.

Mr. Butterfield submitted his resignation at the close of President

Nixon's first administration and his resignation was accepted and he

was appointed thereafter as Administrator of the Federal Aviation
Administration, where he now holds that position.

Dwight Chapin, who had known Mr. Haldeman previously, had
worked for President Nixon 2 years before the 1968 election, joined

the White House in 1969 and he served as President Nixon's appoint-

ments secretary. What he really scheduled was not the daily schedule,

but the schedule for the following week or 2 weeks. He was in charge
of what was called in the White House the big trips. That is the trips

where President Nixon went out of town, and he reported again
directly to Mr. Haldeman, and at times to the President. Pie left the
White House and he entered private business in February 1973.

Stephen Bull joined the "\"\n[iite House and worked under Mr. Chapin
in the scheduling office, and he then in 1973 was appointed a Special
Assistant to the President, and assumed additional responsibilities for
implementing his schedule, and is still working for President Nixon.
Stephen Bull is the man who sits outside of President's Nixon office,

the Oval Office, and ushers people in to see President Nixon for his

daily appointments,
Hugh Sloan joined the administration on January 20, 1969. He

worked under Chapin planning the President's appointments and
travel. All of the President's invitations came to ISIr. Sloan. His office

was in the Executive Office Building and he would review and. of

course, have to prepare regrets on most of the invitations, and then
he helped coordinate travel. He left the White House in March 1971

to join the President's reelection campaign organization. And then
he resigned as treasurer of the Finance Committee To Ee-Elect the

President on July 11, 1973.

John Dean was hired by Mr. Haldeman as counsel to the President

in July 1970. He succeeded John Ehrlichman as counsel, but within

the White House structure he reported to Mr. Haldeman. And he
assisted Mr. Haldeman in gathering information on political matters

of interest to the A^Hiite House. On certain domestic matters Mr. Dean
reported to Mr. Ehrlichman. Mr. Dean left the White House on
April 30, 1973.

In October, Fred Fielding was assistant to Mr. Dean and he became
his principal deputy. Mr. Klein was the communications director and,

while his office was not in the chain of command as it was thought to

operate within the "WHiite House structure, he reported to Mr. Halde-
man, and at some time, the exact time of which I don't remember,
Mr. Magruder, who came to work at the "Wliite House, he was hired

by Mr. Haldeman and selected by Mr. Haldeman was named deputy
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director of communications. And he went to Mr. Klein's office to man-
age and handle the day-to-day communications for the director com-
munications office in the executive branch. He resigned in 1971 to work
in the President's reelection campaign organization.

He later became deputy director. He was a public relations man.
The next man I want to mention to you is Herbert Porter. Porter

was offered a job by Magruder, and then he worked there for a while
and then when Magruder went to the Committee To Re-Elect the
President, Porter went with him.

Charles Colson joined the staff on November 6, 1969. He was a

special counsel to the President. It was understood that he reported
to Mr. Haldeman, and he was in charge of special interest groups,,

the big groups, the dairy industry, the labor unions, and other large

special interest political groups.

On some matters Mr. Colson reported directly to the President.

On March 10, 1973, Mr. Colson resigned.

Fred LaRue was a special consultant to the President. He served
without pay. He was there sometime in early 1972 and he later

losigned and went to work for the Committee To Re-Elect the
President.

John Ehrlichman was appointed counsel to the President, but he
reported primarily to Mr. Haldeman. On November 4, 19G9, he be-

came assistant to the President for domestic affairs and the chief

assistant for all domestic matters. He advised the President on those
matters. When the Domestic Council was established with a separate
budget on July 1, 1970, he assumed the job of its Executive Director.

On January 20, 1973, he resigned that position. On January 20, 1973,
the start of the second Nixon administration, he became one of the
four .general assistants to the President, along with Mr. Plaldeman,
and he worked there until May 19, 1973, followmg President Nixon's
announcement of his resignation on April 30.

Now, the people on the White House staff that worked under Mr.
Ehrlichman's supervision were Mr. Egil Krogh. He came to the White
Plouse as a staff assistant to Mr. Ehrlichman. He was then appointed
deputy assistant to the President for domestic affairs. He reported
to Ehrlichman and was in charge of or worked on law enforcement
activities—the FBI, drug enforcement, internal security matters.

In 1971, pursuant to instructions from President Nixon, Mr. Krogh
organized the White House special investigation unit known as the
Plumbers. He worked there until December 1971. In January 1973 he
w^as appointed Under Secretaiy of Trans})ortation.

In 1969, David Young came to the White House as assistant to
Henry Kissinger, and in July he was transferred, July 1971—excuse
me—he was transferred to Mr. Elii^lichman's staff and assigned to

work for JNlr. Krogh in the Plumbers unit. He worked there until

January 1973, when he was appointed to the staff of the Domestic
Council, lie left the White House in March 1973.

Gordon Liddy became a member of the special investigation unit

in mid-July 1971. Mr. Ehrlichman authorized his appointment. He
was placed on the payroll of the Domestic Council. He worked for
Krogh until he resigned in mid-December 1971. He then became comi-
sel to Creep and he moxed there to become counsel for the finance

41-018—75—pt. 1 36
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committee for Creep until he was asked to resign on June 28, 1972, when
he refused to answer questions submitted to him by the Federal
Bureau of Investigation.

This was in connection M'ith the Watergate break-in.

In July 1971, Howard Hunt started to work at the White House
as a consultant. He had been recommended by Colson. He initially

worked under Colson's supervision. He was assigned to the Plumbere
unit where he worked under Krogh. He has a background of some 20
years in the Central Intelligence Agency.

In late 1968, Edward Morgan worked for Mr. Ehrlichman to co-

ordinate some of the President's personal affairs, and he worked on
those personal affairs until he left the AVliite House in January 1973.

On April 8, 1969, John Caulfield, former New York City policeman,

dete-ctive, was hired by Ehrlichman. He worked as a liaison man with
Federal law enforcement agencies and completed certain investigative

assiirnments given to him by Mr. Ehrlichman and by Mr. Dean. In
March 1972 he left the White House to work for CRP. On April 28,

1972, he accepted a position in the Treasury Department and in July
1972 he became the acting assistant director for Enforcement of

Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms Division of the Internal Eevenue
Service..

The last man that I would like to call the committee's attention to

today is Anthony Ulasewicz. He is a retired police detective from
New York City who was authorized by Ehrlichman to work under
Caulfield to carry out investigative tasks by the White House. He was
not directly employed by the White House, but he received his assign-

ments through Caulfield and was paid by Herbert Kalmbach, the

President's personal lawyer, from July 1969 through 1972 and worked
with Kalmbach from June 1972 through September 1972.

Now, the other background information that I wish to give the

committee is Pi'esident Nixon's campaign organizations that were
-organized for the election campaign of 1972. President Nixon and
Attorney General Mitchell in March 1971 discussed the need to set up
an organization independent of and outside of the Republican National

•Committee. Two '\'\niite House assistants, Hugh Sloan and Harry
Flemming were the initial staff at this citizens organization.

At Mr. Halcleman's recommendation, Magruder, the man Mr. Halde-
man had brought to the Wliite House, was reassigned in May 1971 and
assumed the position of acting campaig-n director. In September, a

second campaign organization was formed, and the Finance Commit-
tee, was created with Mr. Sloan as its chairman. There was a dissolu-

tion of a couple of coimnittees, and new names were organized, and
JMr. Stans became chairman of that committee, and INIr, Sloan as

treasurer.

In March 1972, Attorney General John Mitchell resigned and be-

came campaign director of CRP. On June 30, Mr, Mitchell resigned

and Clark MacGregor became the director of CRP.
The information that we will furnish to you during the course of

these hearings will establish that the White FTouse staff was active in

the formation and operation of these organizations. I will say more
about that as we go into tlie proceedino-s today. And there were other

people operating and supervising and directing, especially JMr. Halde-
man, CRP's campaign activities. That, I believe, summarizes the
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background information that I wanted the committee to liave, save

for one fact mentioned on page 14, that beginning in 1969 Herbert

Kahnbach, the President's personal hiwyer, became trustee of the

surphis 1968 campaign funds, wliich were augmented from time to time

by additional contributions. These funds were maintained by Kahn-
bach and dispersed with Mr. Haldeman's approval. And in February
Mr. Haldeman directed that the major portion of the funds be trans-

ferred to the Finance Committee for the Re-election of the President.

Now, if I could just do one or two more things before getting into

the charts or into the books. I would like to just put on the board for

the committee—I believe that this might help the committee mem-
bers to see this. This is President Nixon, and I am setting forth what
I believe the information that we will present to you will reflect was his

organization of his White House staff. His chief of staff was Mr.
Haldeman and under Mr. Haldeman, reporting to Mr. Haldeman, was
Butterfield, who was in charge of administration and the Secret Serv-

ice and some other assignments. And then Chapin and Colson. These
do not mean that the chain goes up through there, members of the

committee. It means that each one of these people reported to Mr.
Haldeman and Mr. Dean.
Now, in addition to these people, these are Mr. Haldeman's special

assistants, Higby, Strachan, Kehrli. These were young men and, as

I say, special assistants to Haldeman.
Now, over here on this side, which is not relevant to this particu-

lar part of the inquiry is the National Security Council and Mr. Kis-
singer and congressional relations and Mr. Timmons, IVIr. Harlow
and several other people. And then here was a box that was for inter-

national trade and Mr. Flanigan operated that box, but in truth, he
really reported to Mr. Haldeman or Mr. Ehrlichman.

But, under Mr. Ehrlichman and the Domestic Counsel was Mr.
Krogh and then Mr. Morgan, the man that worked on personal fi-

nance matters for the President, and then Mr. Liddy and Mr. Hunt,
and they were working in the Plumbers unit.

Now, at some times ]Mr. Hunt and Mr. Liddy worked for Mr.
Dean or did carry out some things for Mr. Colson. But, this was the
way the White House was structured, the organization, the structure.

Now, with respect to Mr. Klein or Mr. Burns, or someone like that,

it has been said that those gentlemen could be gone for 60 days and
the Wliite House operation would run just the way it was run here

—

just the same. It was very tight, a military staff organization, directed

by Mr. Haldeman under the President's direction. I think the informa-
tion that we will develop will show that the President spent most of his

free time with Mr. Haldeman. We do not have all of President Nixon's
appointment calendars, but I think there will come strong evidence
I hat that was the fact, INIr. Haldeman, as I say, was the implementer of
the Presidential decisions of President Nixon. It was President Nixon's
habit to get to work at a regular time in the morning to meet with his

staff' before 10 o'clock, to have appointments from 10 until 1 o'clock

and then to have huich and take a nap. And then to start with
appointments about o o'clock until 6 :30. And then he would go either

to the ^^Hiite House or over to the Executive Office Building for dinner
\vhere he would work in his suite over at the Executive Office Bulding.
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As I understand it, the Executive Office Building had a large suite

of two rooms. Tliat was again taped or set up to record conversations.

And the President worked in the Executive Office Building suite on
many occasions, particularly on evenings.

Now, it was at this suite that the President worked on the 15th of
April when the tape ran out during the conversation that he had with
Mr. Kleindienst at about 2 o'clock that afternoon. And because this

system was such that it did not trigger on until 12 o'clock that night,

the mechanism did not record for that period.

The Chairman. Have you a mike that you can use?

Mr. DoAR. I just have one more diagram. I will talk up in a louder

voice. I apologize. I thought that it might be that the members of

the committee are more familiar than I am with the "White House
layout around the President's office, but just for purposes of illustra-

tion, this w^as the Oval Office where President Nixon operated and
carried on the business of the President of the United States. Stephen
Bull sat out here [indicating].

Now, there was a small offi.ce over here where the President ate lunch
and where he took his nap. And then here was another office. And
until November 1969, Mr. Haldeman had this office. He got too busy
taking care of President Nixon's daily calendar, and so he brought his

friend, Mr. Butterfield down, and ]\Ir. Butterfield had this office until

he resigned from the administration.

Next to Mr. Butterfield was Rose ]\Iary Woods and her assistant. Her
name escapes me right now. And then over here was Mr. Haldeman's
office. There was ISIr. Higby and two secretaries were there—just out-

side Haldeman's office.

After President Nixon came into the "\^niite House, he remodeled
the Fisli Room and the Roosevelt Room and he had a conference
room, as I understand it here. And then next to him was Mr. Chapin
and their secretaries right here.

Now, down this hall was Mr. Harlow and Mr. Timmons, and then
'Mr. Kissinger had a suite over here. That was the organization of
the main floor of the White House. This hall was connected up so

that there was an entrance to the Oval Office. And, as I say, INIr.

Butterfield had this system that he could throw the switch for the
taping in the Cabinet Room. But, in the other places the system worked
automatically.

I believe that there was also a system in the "White House at that

time that indicated where President Nixon was at all times, and that

through a system of lights Mr, Butterfield could know exactly where
the President was. whether he was in the residence or whether he was at

the Executive Office Building, or in the Oval Office or the Cabinet
Room.

That, members of the committee, is the background information I

wanted to give to you this afternoon, and with your permission I would
like to turn directly to book I.

Paragraph 1 presents this information to the committee.
Membei's of the committee, I would like to say one thing about the

political matters memorandiun.
The Chairman. Excuse me, ]Mr. Doar, might I suggest that it would

be helpful to the committee members if you were to prepare for the
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committee members those charts, and I think tlie committee members
could make use of them during the course of their deliberations. Is

it possible that the stafl' could prepare them ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, we would prepare them and it may well be that the

committee would want to have testimony from a witness with respect

to all of tliis, too, at some later period. AVe are prepared to bring what-
ever detailed information is helpful, and we will do that, Mr.
Chairman.

I want to apologize to the committee for the fact that they are

copies, Xeroxed copies of these political matters memoranda, Now,
between September 1971 or August 1971; and September 18, 1972,

28 of these political memoranda were prepared by Mr. Strachan for

]Mr. Plaldeman. There was a memorandum on April 4 which Mr.
Strachan testified before the Senate subconnnittee that he destroyed
after the Watergate bi'eak-in. And a memorandum prepared on
March 30 and which was destroyed after the Watergate break-in. That
leaves 26. We will furnish 21. The representation was made by Mr.
St. Clair and Mr. Buzhardt that that was all of the documents that

could be located in the White House. These are not Xeroxed copies

of the originals, but they are Xeroxed copies of copies, iVnd we asked
the White House attorneys if we could Xerox the originals so that

they would be more legible for the committee. And the White Plouse

was not able to locate the originals. It may be those originals—^it

may be that at some time during the hearings that upon a further

search one or more of those political matters memoranda, the originals

might be located and it would make it somewhat easier for the com-
mittee to examine the material.

As I say, these memoranda were 28 in numl^er and they were repoi+s

to Mr, Haldeman about the campaign activities of Creep, and I

w^ould like to call or skip ahead if I could, to 5.2 in the book to indicate

"what Mr. Haldeman's testimony is, the evidence is that

The Chairivian. Excuse me, Mr. Doar. May I just interrupt. If it

is at all possible, if you mii^ht, during the course of your presentation

to the paragraphs, would it be possible for you to advise if any por-

tions of the paragraph of information is controverted and, if so, in

what respect ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, I will.

The Chairman. Thank you.

Mr. DoAR. I want to say to the committee that we have followed the

practice with respect to documents that we present, of presenting to

you the entire document, although only a portion of that document
is relevant. But, all of the document is presented to you and we will

either make or call your attention to the relevant portions.

With respect to the recorded conversations, we will also, except

in a few instances, present the entire recorded conversation and
where a part of that is not presented, that will be shown and that will

be initially determined by the chairman and Mr. Hutchinson and, of

course, any committee member would be free to examine the whole

conversation at our office. It is only in a very few instances. But, as

I say, these political matters memorandums sometimes are 8 or 10 pages

long, and they are not all relevant. But they do indicate, I think, and
as I say there are 28 of them, and we have not submitted them all to
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you today, or I mean 21 of them, but they do indicate that Mr. Halde-
man ran the 1972 political campaign.

If you look at 5.2 on page 5, and just look at Mr. Ilaldeman's com-
ments to Mr. Magruder on that page, and I am referring now to 5.2,

page 5, you will see that there is a check after each item. Mr. Strachan's

testimony was that when Mr. Haldeman considered an item he indi-

cated that he had given it consideration by a check in the left-hand

margin. The small writing on the left-hand margin is not Mr. Halde-
man's. It is either Mr. Higby's or it is Mr. Strachan's implementing
decisions that had been made in response to this reporting system
from Creep.
You will see under 9, Mr. Haldeman has written "no, do it in small

groups."
Under 11, he has written "utterly ridiculous".

Under 13 he has written, "right".

And if you turn to the next page, and I will read it to you. "]Ma-

gruder and Colson are increasingly at odds. The most recent dispute

concerns the line as to whether IMuskie sliould be personally attacked

on his war stand." I will not read the whole thing. Mr. Haldeman
writes "this is not acceptable. Colson is acting under expressed in-

structions. Tell INIagruder to talk to me if he has a problem. H." H is

Haldeman. The members of President Nixon's staff followed the prac-

tice of signing their memorandums with one initial. Butterfield was B,
Haldeman was H, Ehrlichman was E, Strachan was S, and so forth.

Now, going back to the beginning of the memorandum and dis-

cussing the information that we think pertinent to this part of the

inquiry.

On the political memorandum of December 2, Gordan Strachan re-

ported to JNIr. Haldeman on activities relating to the President's re-

election campaign. In his political matters memorandum on that day,
lie reported that Mr. Liddy had been assigned to the reelection cam-
paign.
You will remember that ISIr. Liddy was one of the Plumbers and he

was going to be general counsel. His assignment was going to be po-

litical intelligence. He was going to work with Mr. Dean on the politi-

cal enemies project and he was also going to work on legal matters.

There is an indication, a reference there, to Sandwedge. That was
a former, another plan that had been developed earlier by Caulfield,

but Mr. Mitchell had not approved it. It had some sophisticated capa-
bility or capability for electronic surveillance, a black bag operation.

It never became operative.

The paragraphs behind, if you turn now to 1.1 and you turn to page
3, and the first paragraph of page 4, at the bottom you will see where
it says "John Dean" and we have just quoted in our statement of in-

formation exactly what that paragraph says. It identifies Liddy,
Krogh, Sandwedge, political enemies, political intelligence and Caul-
field.

The testimony in the other paragraphs—for example, if you turn to

1.2 and you look at the testimony on page 2148, just to run down that
page briefly, if you see Avhere we marked a bracket, we have tried our
best to give the committee a fair and accurate picture of the testimony.
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If you see that on tlie third paragraph, the second paragraph under

Mr. Strachan's testimony, that paragraph reads

:

These inemoraudums would summarize the information that I have accumu-

lated from the poUtically active people on the White House staff, Mr. Colson,

Mr. Dent, information I have accumulated from 1701 from the various State

organizations, he had quite an interest.

Then if you run down further, 1701 was the Committee to Ee-Elect

the President. That was the shorthand word for ITOl.

If you run down further there, you will see what I told you, reported

to you about how Mr. Haldeman operated, where Mr. Strachan said i

Well, he would always read witli a pen, and he would write his comments be-

side them or check the item as he read each particular paragraph. Occasionally,

he would write his views on political matters memo, the paragi-aph that dealt

with a particular subject.

Then Mr. Strachan went on that if Haldeman had a disagreement,

he would send memorandums to John Mitchell, Attorney General,,

or on occasion to Jeb Magruder, "or make a note to me that I should

contact a particular individual about something,"' Then Mr. Strachan

would prepare for Mr. Haldeman talking papers, briefing papers, for

Mr. Haldeman to use in connection with the 19T2 campaign.
Now, Mr. Davis has called to my attention that on page 5 of the

political matters memorandum, there is an indication that, you see

tliere, to indicate the detail of supervision that Mr. Haldeman exercised

with respect to the campaign. Mr. Magruder is over at ITOI and he

received a copy of the news summary. He needs another copy for

Harry Flemming and Ken Reitz.

The Chairman. Excuse me. Where are you ?

Mr. Jenner. Paragraph 1.2.

Mr. DoAR. I am on 1.2, page 5—no, 1.1, page 5.

Mr. Magruder now receives a copy of the news summary. He says

he needs another copy for Harry Flemming and Ken Reitz. Mr. Halde-
man cancels that news summary, and IMr, Davis points out that if you
go through some of the later political matters memorandum, Mr. Ma-
gruder protested and Mr. Haldeman reinstated the news summar^^

I mention that only to give you an idea, as I say, of the detailed

re]:)orting and the detailed direction that came from Mr. Haldeman.
The next paragraph, paragraph 2, reports information with respect

to the fact that Mr. Haldeman approved Gordon Liddy's transfer to

the committee, and he approved an increase in salary of $4,000 per

year which was an exception to the rule that no White House em-
ployee would receive—this is in paragraph 2. Excuse me, I'll go a

little slower.

Mr. Jenner. The white insert marked 2 in the material that follows.

Mr. DoAR. This is a statement of information with respect to the

fact that Mr. Liddy was transferred to the Committee To Re-Elect the

President. As I say, Mr. Liddy heretofore had been a member of the

Plumbei-s unit with Mr. Hunt. Mr. Young, and Mr. Krogh,_ and he

moved over to the Committee To Re-Elect the President at an increase

of $4,000 per year; an exception to the rule that no Whit« Hoiise em-
ployee would receive a salary at CRP higher than he had received at

the Wliite House.
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Mr. Jenner calls to my attention to tell the members of the com-
mittee that one matter that comes at issue is when Mr. Liddy went off

the payroll—when Mr. Hunt went off the payroll of the White House
and went over to the Committee To Re-Elect the President. On Mon-
day, we had some materials reflecting and dealing with that matter. As
I say, Hunt and Liddy worked together on a number of political mat-
ters and other matters for the White House.
The next paragraph, paragraph 2.1, is again a political matters

memorandum. Again I have submitted to you the whole document. I
again apologize, because you cannot read the entire Xerox, but you
are able sometimes to read it.

The reference, the relevant portion is on page 5, and if you look
there, page 5 of 2.1, you will see that the second sentence reads

:

Liddy is paid $26,000 by the Domestic Council ; Bud Krogh has been uris^ng
Keu Cole to raise his salary, but nothing happened during the freeze. Krogh
talked to the Attorney General and recommended that Liddy receive an increase.

If I can make out this writing on the left hand margin, I am satis-

fied in saying that it appears that it was not Krogh that talked to the
Attorney General, it was Liddy that talked.

"No," it says, "no, Liddy talked to the Attorney General." I think
that is Higby's initial below that.

Turning now to paragraph 3, we begin to recap some matters that

are already in the public domain. There is no need to go into them in

any great detail. They involve the so-called Liddy plan. The first plan
was discussed at a meeting in the Attorney General's office between
Dean, Magruder, Liddy, and Mitchell, and the Attorney General re-

jected the proposal.

One point that we think, of information, that is relevant, was that
the plan contemplated the use of electronic surveillance of political

opponents, and other illegal activity.

There was no discussion, Mr. Davis repoi-ts to me, about the matter
of illegal entries at that meeting.
The Attorney General made a point in his testimony that there was

a difference between electronic surveillance and illegal entry. Some-
times you would have to have illegal entry to accomplish the electronic

surveillance ; sometimes you do not.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, I have not the faintest idea where
we are.

Paragraph 3 of what ?

Mr. DoAR. Paragraph 2.

Mr. Jenner. It is the wliite sheet

Mr. Seiberling. Could we call this tab 3 to distinguish from other

paragraphs within the document?
Mr. DoAR. All right, I will. Tab 3.

Now, turning to 3.1, we just set forth Mr. Mitchell's log for you.

Paragraph 3.2, we set forth Mr. Magruder's testimony. On page 788,

you will notice, three-quarters of the way down the page, Mr. Magru-
der testifying that "All three of us were appalled at the proposal."

Now, on the next, 3.2, Mr. Mitchell's testimony in which he dis-

cusses that he rejected the plan, testifies that he rejected the plan.

Then 3.4, is Mr. Dean's description of the plan.
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Then we turn to tab 4. Tab 4 is tlie second meeting in the Attorney
General's Office with respect to the Liddy pLan,

I think that the information that I wisli to call to your attention

is that j\Ir. IMagruder testified that the plan involved wiretapping,
j)hotography, and that there was an attempt to discredit O'Brien. Mr.
Dean corroborated this.

Mr. Mitchell testified on the other hand that he violently disagreed
that the Democratic National Committee should be a target. But some
of the people that were at the meeting identified three targets for the
electronic surveillance—Larry O'Brien's office, the Democratic Con-
vention Headquarters in the Fontainebleau Hotel, and the off.ce of
Henry Greenspun, the editor of the Las Vegas Sun. As I say, the At-
torney General denies that there was a discussion of specific targets..

At the end of the meeting, Mr. Dean said, "This sort of thing should
never be discussed in the Attorney General's office."

Mr. Dean said this sort of thing should never be discussed in the

office, and he should take it away and go back and get rid of it.

Following the meeting, Mr. Dean reported this to Mr. Haldeman.
Again in the paragraphs beneath tab 4, you see the proof of the fact

that there was a meeting. You have the testimony of the people who
were at the meeting describing what took place, the testimony with
respect to the wiretapping, photography, the targets, and Mr. Mit-
chell's testimony that that was not discussed, that he opposed the plan.

You will see on 1612 Mr. Mitchell's testimonj^—this is 4.4— when
he said, "The fact of the matter is that Dean, just like myself,"—I am
reading on page 16.

The Chairman. Go a little slower, Mr. Doar. Otherwise, we are not
going to be able to follow you.

JMr. DoAR. And now, members of the committee, on 4.4, on pages
1611 and 1612—and I am directmg your attention to 1612, where Mr.
Mitchell said in his second paragraph there

:

The fact of the matter is that Dean. jTist like myself, was again aghast that
we \y.oiild have this type of presentation. Dean, as I recall, was not only aghast
at the fact that the program had come back again with electronic surveillance,
perhaps the necessary entry in connection with it—I am not sure that entries
were always discussed with electronic surveillance, because they are not neces-
sarily synonymous. But Mr. Dean was quite strong to the point that these
things could not be discussed in the Attorney General's office. I have a clear
recollection of that.

Now, members of the committee, we come to 4.5, and we have the
first document that we received from the grand jury.

The grand jury testimony, the grand jury material that was pre-
sented to us consisted of an index, a two-page statement, first, re-

questing that the materials be furnished to the House Judiciary Com-
mittee. This was the two-page statement that Judge Sirica permitted
]Mr. St. Clair to examine. Then there was a 50-page index. This index
was divided into four sections, and within each section was a method
of presentation of material, information, quite similar to the method
that we are using in presenting this information to you—statements
of information were contained on separate pages in this index and they
were annotated to either grand jury testimony and/or transcripts of
recorded conversations.
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"We were furnished dictabelts of the President's recollections of
events of a paiticular day. When there was the transcript of a recorded
conversation, the disk of the lecorded con^'ersation, and parts of this

index referred to particular pages in the transcript.

In other words, if the subject matter of the particular paragraph
related to, let us say, the payment of money, that was then annotated
to pages 35 to 42, for example, of a particular transcript of a recorded
conversation on a particular day.
Then, as I say, in addition to that where the testimony was cited of a

witness for this committee, excerpts of testimony of witnesses before
the grand jury were included; and then, finally, there were certain
Presidential statements included in a section of the grand jui-y report.

We are going to present to the committee for its views a complete
set of Presidential statements next Tuesday for your use.

Initially, we will not index them, but as soon as we are able to,

we will index those by subject matter so that you can refer to particu-
lar matters that were discussed in particular Presidential statements.
This material came to us in a large brown briefcase similar to the
one that I was carrying here today and, as I say, it contained tran-
scripts of 19 recorded conversations, tapes of 19 recorded convei^sa-

tions and testimony of grand jury witnesses. But not all of the testi-

mony ; only matters relating to the matters that the grand jury thought
were relevant to this inquiry.

Some of the recorded conversations did not relate to the Watergate
matter. We received recorded conversations for otlier periods, and that
is part of the matters that will be presented to the committee.
Xow, John Dean's testimony before the grand jury sets forth again

his testimony with respect to the plan that was discussed, the targets,
and so forth, the charts—that is, the meeting on February 4. and it is

largely cumulative of the testimony before the Senate Watergate
Committee.
Turning then to page 5, 1 would like to read tab 5 to 3'ou.

In February 1972—this is tab 5—H. R. Haldeman directed that
$350,000 in cash in campaign funds be placed under his unquestioned
personal control. The money was picked up by Gordon Strachan,
Haldeman's assistant, in early April 1972. Strachan, in turn, delivered
it to Alexander Butterfield, a deputy assistant to the President. But-
terfield delivered the money to a personal friend for safekeeping. This
fund was maintained substantially intact until after the November
election.

The committee will recall that Butterfield was Mr. Haldeman'g
friend, the Air Force colonel who came from Australia, who took the
job as Xo. 1 assistant to Mr. Haldeman, then moved into the office next
to President Nixon and supervised and coordinated President Nixon's
daily schedule.

Strachan brought the money over to Butterfield at his office. They
counted it. Butterfield said he had a friend that would be willing to

serve the administration, and serving the administration meant to

take this money and put it in a safety deposit box, cash, and be avail-

nh]e to go on trips if cash was needed quickly, for polling or some
other expenditures, for advertising or something, where they needed
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to get the money out fast. Tliat was the explanation made for tlie

placing of the money outside of a regular bank account.

Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Strachan referred to this as the green, and
throughout the political matters memoranda, when they talk of cash,

they talk of green. This fund was substantially intact until after the

November election. Then it was returned from Mr. Butterfield's

friend, Lilly. He got it out of the safety deposit box, and delivered it

to Mr. Butterfield over at the Marriott Hotel.

Mr. Butterfield went back to his office, went down to tell Mr. St ra-

dian's secretary to tell j\Ir. Strachan he wanted to see him when he
got there. Mr. Butterfield came back up to his office, and Mr. Strachan
came up to Mr. Butterfield's office and he delivered the money to Mr.
Strachan. This was after the election.

Tab 5.1. You wnll see the Strachan memorandum, and you will see

Mr. Haldeman writing on the bottom of the memorandum, "Make it

350 green and hold for us.*'

The third from the bottom line says that only the 230 green will

be held under Kalmbach's personal control, and there is a circle there

and 150 added up above and the note, "Make it 350 green and hold
for us."

On page 2, and I just pass by this because it was not relevant to

this particular part of the inquiry, you will note there the paragraph
at the top referring to Kalmbach, Jacobsen, and dairy commitment.
There is a discussion of whether or not Kalmbach should be involved in

the milk project because of risk of disclosure and the handwritten
comment, "I'll discuss it with the Attorney General."
Turning now to 5.2, Strachan and other political matters memoran-

dum.
Before I go to that, in paragraph 2, there is written that the money

was placed under ]\Ir. Haldeman's unquestioned personal control, it

say that "Mr. Kalmbach cleared with the Attorney General and Stans
the 350 in green."

We have interviewed Mr. Kalmbach. Mr. Kalmbach denies that. He
denies that he was the person that participated in this. You will see his

testimony that he laiew about it—I believe his testimony is here—yes,

his testimony is here; but he denies having any discussion about the

transfer of this money.
Tab 5.3 is Mr. Haldeman's explanation of the need for the $350,000

for special private polling, apart from regular polls that were con-

ducted by the committee.
Mr. Davis calls my attention to 5.2 and if I could turn you back to

that, on the first page of 5.2, 3'OU will notice item 6 of the first page of

5.2, which reads: "Kalmbach granted a full-time gardner at San Cle-

mente a $25 per month raise, bringing his monthly salary to $539."

Now, Mr. Haldeman's explanation was that this $350,000 was used
for private polling, and he didn't want to keep such a large amount of
cash ; he didn't think it should be in the physical custody of a member
of the staff, and he never saw or handled that currency.

Then Mr. Stans' testimony that he recalls that the money was trans-

ferred. There does not seem to be any doubt about that.

Mr. Sloan's testimony at 5.4, 5.5, 5.6. Tabs 5.4 and 5.5 is cumulative.
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Tab 5.6, Gordon Strachan relates the transfers I described to you of
the money to Biittei"field and to Lilly.

Now we come to Kalmbach's testimony, and as I say, he recognizes

the fact that this was transferred. It was transferred just around the

time of great rush, around the 7th of April or a few days after that,

just at the time that the new election campaign laws went into effect.

Mr. Davis calls my attention to 5.1. I'll ask you to turn back to 5.1 at

the bottom of the page where there is a statement that any polling

would be paid for by the regular Nixon Finance Committee.
Now, moving on to item 6

The Chairman. You are talking about tab 6 now ?

Mr. DoAK. Tab 6, yes.

Tab 6 reads as follows : Prior to ISIarch 30—^there is a strong infer-

ence that it was in tlie montli of February—Charles Colson met witli

Gordon Liddy and Howard Hunt, who had served with Liddy, in a

Plumbers unit. Colson telephoned Magruder and he urged Magruder
to resolve whatever it was tliat Hunt and Liddy wanted to do and to be
sure that he had an opportmiity to listen to their plans. This is a refer-

ence t^ the Liddy plan.

Underneath that tab, 6.1, is President Nixon's statement about the

Plumbers. I'll not pause on that now.
Tab 6.2 is a memorandum from Mr. Colson. I think that it is sig-

nificant, or that the committee would want to loiow that the memoran-
dum was not a contemproraneous memorandiun but it was prepared
on Jime 20, 1972, 3 days after the break-in. I think it is fair to say

that the committee may want to look into this, that there was some
scuri-ying around within the A^Hiite House to try to confirm or establish

the fact that Howard Himt had left the "\'\Tiite House in ]March.

]Mr. Colson does, in this memorandum, recall this conversation,,

where he called Magruder.
Tab 5.3 is Howard Hunt's testimony—that is 6.3, excuse me. And

Hunt going back to the back of the room and Hmit saying that after

Liddy got through—^that is page 3684, the second page of ]Mr. Hunt's
testimony, where he says, picking up at the middle of the page : "After
the meeting, did you have a conversation with Mr. Liddy ?"

Mr. Hunt answered : 'T did."

What did Mr. Liddy tell you?
He said "I think I may lir.ve done tis some good."
What was your interpretation of that message?
I realized he was speaking with Mr. Colson about the Gemstone operation.

The Gemstone operation is the bugging of the Democratic National
Headquarters, at the Watergate.
Tab 6.4 is a confirmation of that conversation by Mr. LaRue's tes-

timony before the Senate Watergate Committee.
Tab 6.5 is Mr. Magruder's recollection—this is at page 793 in 6.5.

He says

:

Well, Charles Colson called me one evening, asked me in a sense would we
get off the stick and get the budget approved for Mr. Liddy's plans, that we
needed information, particularly on Mr. O'Brien.

Then we turn to tab 7.

This is a significant date. Mr. Mitchell, Mr. Magruder, Mr. LaRue,
Mr. Haldeman, President Nixon, were at Key Biscayne, and for the



569

third time, Liddy's intelligence gathering plan, budgeted for $250,000,

was again discussed. Electronic surveillance was specified in the budg-

et. There is a dispute as to whether or not Jolni Mitchell approved the

plan ; that is, whether he approved the entry into the Democratic Na-
tional Committee Headquarters, the Fontainebleau Hotel. ISIr. LaRue
testified, as I am reading from Tab 7, that Mitchell stated that they

did not have to do anything on the plan at that time.

Mitchell testified that he rejected the plan. However, after the

March 30 meeting, Mr. Magruder asked his assistant, Eobert Reisner,

to tell Liddy that his proposal had been approved, and Eeisner tele-

phoned Liddy and conveyed Magruder's message.

Eobert Eeisner was in Washington working at 1701 and I think what
is important here is that everyone at the meeting agrees that Mr.
^lit-chell was reluctant about this.

Mr. jSIagruder said that when they put papers in the file to discuss

with Mr. Mitchell, they put the Liddy proposal at the bottom of the

items that were to be discussed about the campaign because they hoped
to be able to discuss it after Mr. Flemming had left the meeting.

^Ir. LaEue testified that the plan outlined a plan for electronic

surveillance.

Xow, turning to 7.6, this is the testimony of Fred LaEue before

the Federal grand jury over a year ago, April 18, 1973.

I think that testimony should be reviewed for you.
Mr. LaEue was asked: ''Did there come a time when you visited

Key Biscayne?"
^[r. LaEue says: "Yes, sir, I tliink in the latter part of March,

accompanying the Mitchells to Key Biscayne for 10 days or two
weeks."
Then the testimony goes on. There is a discussion about the sub-

stance of the discussion, the budget and so forth, and the fact that the
memo that was discussed with respect to the Liddy plan was dis-

cussed—and I am now over to page 11 of the testimony—was discussed
when Mr. Flemming was not there. He says

:

Was Mr. Flemmiug present when that memo was discussed?
No, he was not.

How was that arranged?

Mr. LaEue says: "The next morning wlien he came over, I asked
]NL^gi'uder what in the world was this electronic sur^'eillance."

LaEue says, "This was the first knowledge I had of any such course
cbf contemplated action." And Magruder says the memo required action.

LaEue said:

I don't want to hring this np with Mr. Flemming. I've got it on the bottom of
the stack. When we get through with everything else, we can maneuver Mr.
Flemming out of the room and take this matter up.

Then on the next page, he was asked what in substance was said at
the meeting and by whom. He says

:

To the best of my recollection, the memo was given by Mr. Magruder to Mr.
Mitchell. He looked over at me and asked if I had seen it and I said I had. And
he said, what do you think?

LaEue said, "I don't think it is worth the risk."
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Mr. Mitchell sat there a few minutes, or a few seconds, and said,
"Well, we don't have to do anything on this right now." That was the
end of the meeting.
Tab 7.7 is Jeb Magruder's testimony, again over a year ago, before

the same grand jury.

He relates on page 23 that there were some 30 decision papers for
Mr. Mitchell foi- discussion. He tells about the Liddy plan and he tells

about, on page 24 at the bottom, the proposal included basically wire-
tapping of the Democratic National Committee at the Watergate^
possible surveillance electronically of the Democratic National Com-
mittee Headquarters, possible electronic surveillance

—

We were getting to realize that Mr. Muskie was failing, and if so, if there
would be someone else, we didn't have a specific individual in mind.

He was asked the size of the budget and he testified that it was ap-
proximately $250,000.

Then the question was put to him :

All right, and did you at that meeting discuss with Mr. La Rue and Mitchell
the various pros and cons witli respect to that budget?

And he said

:

Yes, Mr. LaRue had been aware of Mr. I.iddy's proposals but not in the
depth that we had because he had not attended those past meetings. Mr. La-
Rue had some misgivings relating to the project, namely the possibility of
limited information and that, of course, this was illegal. I think we all agreed
that there were potential problems in dealing with Mr. Liddy because of his
stability. Basically, we did agree to affirm the projects because we felt that there
were enough individuals that were interested in this information and we thought
that there possibly could be some use put to this information by ourselves as well
as other individuals.

He says, "Now, after the meeting, did you report the results ?"

Then he relates how he called Mr. Reisner and called him to go over
the discussions.

Then we have Mr. Reisner's testimony in August of last year. You
will see on tab 7.8 at the bottom of the first page, he said

:

Mr. Magruder, some time within the 2 weeks in April, some time—I am vague
about it—but I place the time at the beginning of April, that part of the message
to Liddy was to tell him to get going within 2 weeks. I passed that message on.

1 have the feeling that 2 weeks, that I was thinking in terms of 2 weeks would
be the first 2 weeks of April.

Then he says Magruder stopped in his office and said, "Call Liddy
and tell him it's approved. Tell him we want to get going in the next
2 weeks."
There was after—on the next page, you will see, this is after his

return from Key Biscayne. And he was asked if he called and gave
the message from Key Biscayne and he says he thinks he called but
he does not recall him giving that message.
Then he relates to the reference to Gordon Liddy, I think on the

30th of March is the time when he saw him.
You will see on the bottom of page 41 where he looks at his desk

calendar that he had there before the grand jury and he says:

Your entry on Thursday. March 30, indicates that Magruder had either before
leaving or from Florida had asked you to get Mr. Liddy to call him there.

Then he goes on to talk about the 31st. The question is asked him
on page 42

:

On the ."^Ist. I note that there is an entry tliat just says "Key Biscayne."
Does that indicate where Mr. Magruder was?
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Yes, it does.

Is there also mention of Mr. Liddy on the 31st ?

Yes, there is a column in that log that I used just to note the things that
were coming up, because there was a lot of activity and a lot of interiiiptions,

just so I didn't forget about them, that I had been asked to do. In that column,
which I think means there was an interriiption, there is the word, "Gordon
Liddy." Then it says next to him "give answer." I believe what that refers to
is Mr. Liddy must have stopped by my office and he said he talked to Magruder
yesterday, I need au answer, or I'm waiting for an answer, or something like

that.

Then it reads on following that

:

Did you, you did in fact give Mr. Liddy an answer?
Yes.
Except he said

:

I don't recall being called by Mr. Magruder and asked to give Liddy an answer.
The question is, it is your recollection he was in the doorway when you asked

him? What was Liddy's reaction to your saying, it's approved, get started in

the next 2 weeks ?

So then Reisner goes on and relates the conversation at that time.

Now we turn to tab 8. This is the table that relates

The Chairman. Mr. Doar, let us take a recess for 10 minutes.
[Recess.]

The Chairman. The committee will come to order.

Mr. Doar, will you able to advise us as to the approximate time
the rest of the presentation for this afternoon will take ?

Mr. Doar. I would think, Mr. Chairman, it would be a half hour.
It seems that, seeing the book, it would be much longer than that,

but after I get past this, the matters are of general public knowledge,
so we can go through the last four of five tabs i-ather quickly.

The Chairman. Thank you. I wanted to know so that the members
could make their accommodations accordingly.

Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. It was suggested to me, Mr. Chairman, that I point out to

members of the committee that on certain executive session testimony,
you cannot make out the testimony.
Where there is an illegible page of testimony, we have reproduced

it so it has been typed over and there is a notation that it is retyped
in the front of it. The reason for that is that that testimony was in

blue ink and it just does not Xerox successfully—there are illegible

pages, but we have recopiecl those from the original. But we have in-

cluded the illegible page so that the committee can see a copy of the
documents from which we got the material.

It has been suggested that it might be well for awhile that Mr. Davis
read a few of the paragraphs and then I comment on the pertinent
matters in the paragraph. If that is all right with the committee, I
would like to try that.

The Chairman. Mr. Davis ?

Mr. Davis. This is tab 8.

On March 31, 1972, Gordon Strachan reported in writing to H. R.
Haldeman in a political matters memorandum that Magruder had
reported that C.R.P. "now has a sophisticated political intelligence
gathering system, including a budget of $300,000." Strachan attached
tabs to the memorandum including a tab referring to the political

intelligence reports on Senator Humphrey's Pennsylvania campaign
organization by a source identified as "Sedan Chair 11."
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On or before April 4, 1972, Strachan prepared a talking paper for
Haldeman's use during a meeting with Mitchell scheduled for April 4,

1972, at 3 p.m. The talking paper included a paragraph relating to the
intelligence system, raising questions as to whether it was adequate and
whether it was ''on track."

As indicated below in paragraph 9, both the political matters
memorandum and the talking paper were destroyed following the
break-in at the Watergate offices of the DXC.
Mr. DoAR. The testimony that supports the information in that

paragraph is contained in the back-up material. We will move on to

paragraph 9—tab 9.

Mr. Davis. This is tab 9.

On April 4, 1972, from approximately f3 p.m. until approximately
4 p.m., Mitchell and Haldenuin met in Ilaldeman's White House office.

Haldeman has testified that he does not believe political intelligence

was discussed at the meeting. From 4 :13 p.m. until 5 :50 p.m., Halde-
man and Mitchell met witli the President. Haldeman testified that
his notes of this meeting indicate a discussion of the ''ITT-Klein-
dienst" hearings, and the assignment of regional campaign respon-
sibility and do not indicate a discussion of intelligence.

Haldeman later returned to Gordon Strachan the talking papers
specified in the preceding paragTaph. It was Haldeman's practice to in-

dicate on the talking paper, agenda matters that had not been discussed.

In this instance, there was no such indication with respect to the
agenda items covering political intelligence. Strachan has testified

that on June 20, 1972, sliortly after the break-in at the DXC head-
quarters, in the Watergate Office Building, he showed Haldeman the
political matters memorandum referring to the sophisticated intelli-

gence gathering system and other extensive materials from Halde-
man's files, and that he was instructed by Haldeman to clean out the
files. Strachan immediately destroyed the political matters memoran-
dum, the talking paper he had prepared for the April 4, 1972, meeting
between Mitchell and Haldeman, and other sensitive documents.
Haldeman has testified that he has no recollection of giving

Strachan instiTictions to destroy any materials.

Mr. DoAR. Members of the committee, this is an important date. The
committee recalls that Strachan was Haldeman's special assistant,

worked for Haldeman, since the beginning of the Nixon administra-
tion, and Mr. Haldeman testified that he didn't recall giving any in-

structions to Mr. Strachan to destroy any materials, although Mr.
Strachan unequivocally says that he did, in fact, destroy the political

matters memorandum that he prepared on March oO.

Tab 9.1 is the log of Mr. Haldeman's contacts with the President on
that day and it reflects that the President met with Mr. Haldeman
at 4 :13 to 4 :50. Mr. Mitchell was there with him and then again at 6 :03

to 6 :18. We have no reason to believe that this meetinc; took place other
than in the oval office. It would have been the President's practice and
habit to be in the oval off.cc during that time.

If you will look at the next mark. 9.2, you will see "John ]Mitchell's

Office." He left this office for ]\Ir. Haldempn's. We don't know wdiere

Mr. Mitchell came from but he left his office at 2 :45 and he returned
at 5.



573

Tab 9.3, and this came from the grand jury, is Mr. Haldeman's cal-

endar for that day. It reflects that Mr. Mitchell came to Mr. Halde-
man's office down the hall from the President's office at 3 o'clock and
that then at 4 o'clock, Mr. Haldeman is in the President's office and, as

the log indicates, Mr. Mitchell was there with him from 4 :13 until 5

o'clock, somewhere like that—4 :50.

The other tabs under 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6—deal with Mr, Haldeman's
testimony. I would like to call your attention to 9.6, which is the

testimony of Mr. Haldeman. He says : "I think the effort to bring in

my April 4 meeting with John Mitchell as in some way significant with

regard to intelligence is a little far-fetched. By his testimony, Strachan
doesn't know what was discussed at that meeting. All he says that is

in routine fashion he j^ut an item on the talking paper regarding

the adequacy of intelligence. As a matter of fact, the meeting with
Mr. Mitchell that day was in connection with the meeting of Mitchell

and me with the President. My notes taken at the meeting with the

President indicate the discussion covered "the ITT-Kleindienst hear-

ing and a review of Mitchell's plans for assigning regional campaign
responsibilities to specific individuals. They indicate no discussion

of intelligence."

I pause, members of the committeej to remind you that on April 19,

I sent to Mr. St. Clair a letter in which I asked him if he would give

to this committee a relevant conversation of the meetings between the

President, Mr. Haldeman, and Mr. Mitchell, on April 4, 1972, from
4:13 to 4:50, and between the President and Mr. Haldeman from
6 :03 to 6 :18. I respectfully suggest that the materials that the com-
mittee has heard today, the pertinence of that material, support the
necessity for my requesting that the committee consider the issuance

of the subpena to tlie President for the production of those recorded
conversations.

I recognize that the committee cannot act on that request at a hear-
ing but I would hope that there would be an opportunity for the com-
mittee to consider that matter at the earliest convenience.

The Chairman. The Chair will, at the appropriate time, and in

accordance with the statement already made, notify the committee
as to meeting dates for the purpose of considering those items.

Mr. Davis. The next tab is tab 10.

On or about April 7, 1972, Gordon Liddy showed a budget of $250,-

000 to Hugh Sloan, treasurer of the Finance Committee to Re-Elect
the President. Liddy told Sloan that he would be coming back to

Sloan in a day or two to pick up the first cash payment which was to

be $83,000. Sloan telephoned Magruder who authorized Sloan to dis-

burse to Liddy the $83,000 requested. Magruder told Sloan that Ma-
gruder was to approve all subsequent disbursements of money to

Liddy.
Mr. Doar. The only matter that I wish to call to the committee's

attention with respect to this tab, is that the testimony of Sloan is to

the effect that when Liddy had this conversation with him, he never
handed the document, which was the budget, to Sloan. He just never
let it out of his hand. He just held it out and told Sloan about it.

Tab No. 11.

Mr. Davis. On about April 7, 1972, Sloan met with Maurice Stans,
Chairman of FCRP. Sloan told Stans that Magruder had approved

41-018—75—pt. 1 37
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a cash disbursement of $83,000 to Liddy. Stans met with Mitchell to

confirm Magruder's authority to authorize the requested disbursement.

Mitchell told Stans that Magi-uder had the authority to authorize ex-

penditures to Liddy. Stans then met with Sloan and confirmed Ma-
gruder's authority to approve the disbursement of funds to Liddy.

Stans has testified that when asked by Sloan the purpose for which
the money was to be expended, he replied. "I don't know what is going
on in this campaign and I don't think you ought to try to know."
Mr. DoAR. Mr. Davis has given you Stans' version of the convei'sa-

tion. Sloan's vei'sion, while substantially the same, is a little different.

Sloan testified that Mr. Stans said to him, "I don't want to know, and
you don't want to know."
Tab 12.

Mr. Davis. On or about April 12, 1972, Gordon Liddy gave James
McCord, security consultant for CRP, $65,000 for purchasing elec-

tronic equipment and for related pui'poses.

Mr. DoAR. Tab 13.

Mr. DA^^s. Tab 13. In April 1972, Assistant to the President H. R.

Haldeman, met with Gordon Strachan and instructed Mr. Strachan
to contact Gordon Liddy and advise him to transfer whatever "capa-

bility" he had from the Presidential campaign of Senator Edmund
Muskie to the campaign of Senator George McGovern. Strachan
met with Liddy in Strachan's White House Office and told T^iddy of

Haldeman's desire to have Liddy's "capability" transferred from the

Muskie campaign to the McGovern campaign.
Haldeman has testified that he does not recall giving Strachan that

instruction.

Mr. DoAR. Tab 13.1. This is Gordon Strachan's testimony with re-

spect to this particular incident. I think it is worth pausing and reading
from it. I am reading now at 13.1, page 2455. It reflects Mr. Strachan,

and Mr. Haldeman's relationship and their method of operation.

Mr. Strachan. Yes. Mr. Haldeman called me up into his oflSce. I carried a
clipboard and he told me to contact Mr. Liddy and tell him to transfer whatever
capability he had from Muskie to McGovern with particular interest in discover-
ing what the connection between McGovern and Senator Kennedy was.

Mr. Dash. Was that the limit of the instruction that you had?
Mr. Strachan. Yes, sir.

Mr. Dash. What did you do with that instruction? Did you make a record of it?

Mr. Strachan. We had, I had taken notes as he had dictated that to me. I

walked down to my office, called Gordon I.iddy, had him cleared into the White
House, had him come over to my office, and literally read the statement to him.

Mr. Dash. When he came into your office could you describe what Mr. Liddy
did, if anything?

Tlien there is an exchange about turning on the radio. I move past
that. Then Mr, Strachan said

:

I said that Mr. Haldeman had asked me, Haldeman, to give him this message
and I read it to him.

In other words, you read it almost word for word as you got it from Mr.
Haldeman?

Yes, I opened up my clipboard and just read it.

And you didn't give any further explanation as to what you meant by trans-
ferring his capabilities from Mr. Muskie to Mr. McGovern? What capabilities?

Strachan answers : "No."
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Mr. Dash asked: "Did you know what capabilities he was refer-

ring to?

Strachan said

:

No, I didn't except I suspected that there were plants in Muskie's campaign. It

was fairly common knowledge that Muskie's driver was either in the pay of the
CRP or supplying information to us. I presumed that these employees would be
transferred over to Senator McGovern.

Then Mr. Dasli asked questions about whether the capabilities could
have included electronic surveillance and Mr. Strachan agrees that
he could make that assumption. But he doesn't know am-thing about
it so I pass over that testimony.
Tab 14.

Mr. Davis. In April 1972, Gordon Liddy told Howard Hunt that
the DNC headquarters would be a target of electronic surveillance.

Tab 15. Shortly before May 25, 1972, a group including Bernard
Barker, Eugenio Martinez, Virgilio Gonzalez, and Frank Sturgis,
came to Wasliington, D.C., from Miami, Fla., in response to a re-

quest from Howard Hunt to Barker for a team of men to conduct a
mission.

On or about IMay 25 and May 20, 1972, two unsuccessful attempts
were made to enter surreptitiously the premises of the DNC, and one
unsuccessful attempt was made to enter surreptitiously Senator Mc-
Govern's headquarters.
Mr. DoAR. Members of the committee I don't have any particular

comments about these and some of the following paragraphs, because
the facts are established so conclusively, so we will just move on to 16.

Mr. Davis. Tab 16.

On or about May 27, 1972, under the supervision of Gordon Liddy
and Howard Hunt, McCord, Barker, Martinez, Gonzalez, and Sturgis,
broke into the DNC headquarters. McCord placed two monitoring
devices on the telephones of DNC officials: one on the telephone of
Chairman Lawrence O'Brien and the second on the telephone of the
executive director of Democratic State chairmen, R. Spencer Oliver,
Jr. Barker selected documents relating to the DNC contributore and
these documents were then photographed.
Mr. DoAR. Tab 17.

Mr. Davis. On May 28, 1972, Alfred Baldwin, an employee of CRP
began intercepting conversations derived from the monitoring devices
placed in the telephones at the DNC. Baldwin was unable to pick up
the signal from the device placed in Lawrence O'Brien's telephone.
Between May 28 and June 16, 1972, Baldwin monitored approxi-
mately 200 conversations and each day gave the logs and summanes
to McCord. McCord delivered these logs and summaries to Liddy
except on one occasion when Baldwin delivered these logs to the
CRP headquarters.
Mr. DoAR. Tab 18.

Mr. Davis. Tab 18. During the first or second week in Jime 1972,
Magruder received transcripts of conversations intercepted in the
I)NC headquarters. The transcripts were typed on stationery cap-
tioned "Gemstone." In addition to the transcripts, Magruder was sup-
plied with prints of the documents photographed during the initial

entry into the DNC headquarters.
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During this period, Magnider handed his administrative assistant,

Robert Reisner, documents on the top of which was printed the word
"Gemstone." JVIagruder instructed Reisner to place the Gemstone doc-
uments in a file marked "Mr. JVIitchell's file" which was to be used
for a meeting between Magruder and Mitchell.

Shortly after the June 17, 1972, break-in at the DNC headquarters,
Magruder told Reisner to move the Gemstone files, containing tran-
scripts of conversation and other politically sensitive documents from
the CRP files. Thereafter, Reisner destroyed certain of the documents.
Mr. DoAR. The testimony of Jeb Magruder and Robert Reisner, on

18.1 and 18.2, developed this pertinent information.
Tab 18.3 is a document—this is page 877 of the Senate hearings,

which is the Gemstone testimony and 18.4. Tab 18.4 is the testimony of
Sally Harmony, the secretary, with respect to that stationary and its

use.

Mr. Magruder has testified in his testimony here that the logs were
done in the form that you would know that they were phone conver-
sations, and that he took them to the regular 8 :30 morning meeting
with Mr. Mitchell. Mr. Mitchell, however, denies tliis.

Tab 19.

Mr. Davis. Tab 19, before June 17, 1972, Liddy, Hunt, Barker, and
McCord, engaged in certain preliminary intelligence activities prepar-
atory to the Democratic National Convention to be held in Miami, Fla.
Mr. DoAR. Tab 20.

Mr. Daves. Tab 20, on June 17, 1972, at approximately 2 a.m., ISIc-

Ck)rd, Barker, Sturgis, Gonzalez, and Martinez, were arrested for
burglary in the Watergate offices of the DNC.
On September 15, 1972, Howard Hunt, Gordon Liddy, and the five

men who had been arrested at the DNC headquarters were named in

an eight-count indictment charging, among other offenses, conspiracy
illegally to obtain and use information from the offices and head-
quarters of the DNC. Hunt, Barker, Sturgis, Gonzales, and Martinez
entered pleas of guilty. Liddy and McCord stood trial and were con-

victed on all charges.

An August 16, 1973, Jeb Magruder pled guilty to an information
charging, amon^ other offenses, conspiracy unlawfully to obtain and
use information from headquarters of the DNC.
Mr. DoAR. I pause at this paragraph to refer you to section 20.7,

which is the information that was brought against Jeb Magruder, and
to refer you to the second page of that information. This is 20.7. This is

a criminal action brought in the U.S. District Court for the District

of Columbia, No. 715-73.

Paragraph 7 reads as follows

:

Beginning in and around November 1, 1971, and continuing thereafter through
March 23, 1973, in the District of Columbia and elsewhere. Jeb Stuart Magruder.

the defendant, unlawfully, wilfully, and knowingly, did agree, combine, and
conspire with co-conspirators, unnamed herein, to commit offenses against the

United States, to wit: (a) to unlawfully obtain and use, by illegal means, and
for illegal ends. Information from the offices and headquarters of the Democratic
National Committee and from related political entities and Individuals, in viola-

tion of 18 U.S.O. 2511 and other Statutes of the United States and the District of

Columbia; (b) To conceal, coverup, hinder, frustrate, impair, impede, and cor-

ruptly endeavor to Influence, obstruct and impede the investigation, apprehension
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and conviction of certain of the individuals involved in the planning, imple-
menting and carrying out of the above-described activities, in violation of 18
U.S.O. 1503 and 1510; and (c) To defraud the United States of America and its
Departments and Agencies and, more particularly, the Department of Justice by
hindering, frustrating and impairing the lawful functions of the said Depart-
ment by craft and dishonest means, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 371.

Tab 20.8 is an order in the case of Magruder, U.S. v. Magruder,
indicating on lines 4 and 5 of that order that Jeb Magruder appeared
in open court represented by counsel and waived indictment and en-
tered a plea of guilty. The court accepted the plea of guilty on
August 16.

Mr. Chairman, that completes my presentation.
Mr. Jenner ?

The CHAiEMAisr. Mr. Jenner ?

Mr. Jenner. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have very little to add
at the end of this long day : I would like to call the attention of the
committee if you will return, for a moment, to tab 9.6, wliich you
considered earlier and to which Mr. Doar called your attention when
3^ou considered the possibility of a meeting at an early date concerning
the issuance of a subpena, with respect to two tapes respecting meet-
ings with the President by Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Haldeman. You will

notice on page 2881 of 9.6 that that meeting also included, as you will

read in the last three lines of what is bracketed, indicate that the dis-

cussion, says Mr. Haldeman, covered the ITT-Kleindienst hearings.

So that in connection with the possible issuance of a subpena, there is

also that factor for you to cogitate with respect to, in the meantime.
There were some questions, inquiries of me during the recess as to

what the staff would attempt to cover in the 3 daysliext week. It will

all be Watergate. There will be additional books.

Itlnay well be that you ladies and gentlemen will wish to consider,

since I understand the chairman will announce to you that you may
take these books with you, some means of keeping them under lock and
key or some other method, and you will have to have in mind that
eventually you will have quite a number of these books as we go into

the other areas, in addition to Watergate.
The last remark I would like to make is that, as you notice, Mr. Doar

and I hope, and we tried to present these materials to you very mod-
estly, and we are doing our very level best not to indicate any con-

clusions on our own part. That to which we call your particular

attention is only intended solely to arrest your attention because we
do not want to be in the position, and we will endeavor throughout
this not to voice our opinion as to the truth of the evidence or its

weight.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Thank you very much.
The Chair will state that we will recess until 9 :30 on Tuesday, but,

the Chair would like to remind the members that some of the material
might, while not all of it, and possibly a very small portion is con-

fidential, is material that came to us from the grand jury and has come
to us under a representation by myself and Mr. Hutcliinson and staff

that this material would be treated confidentially.
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As a matter of fact, Mr. Doar, in a conversation with Mr. Jaworski
yesterday, Mr. Jaworski reminded him of the need to retain the con-
fidentiality of this material which relates to items and data, and
individuals that are involved in matters that may be under con-
sideration now and would affect due process of individuals. So, I would
hope that as a result, while the members are Ijoing to take these books
home and have them in their possession, that they use their discretion,

as we have been using up until now, to see to it that they are kept
confidential. And the material may not be discussed witli others than
the impeachment inquiry staff, and they are available to the members
of the committee, together with the impeachment inquiry staff, Mr.
Jerome Zeifman, Mr. Cline, Mr. Parker, Mr. Dixon, Ms. Schell,

Mr. Polk, and Mr. Mooney, who will be available to the members of
the committee for whatever help they might be able to give and who
will be priyv^ to this confidential material.

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman? Mr. Chairman, I have been rather

well satisfied with the security maintained by the staff to this date, and
I wonder if some members, like myself, who might be leaving tonight
for their districts, and are not returning until Monday or perhaps
Tuesday, can leave these, as we received them, and then can check at

the hotel or wherever they are to get them back. Is that an acceptable
procedure ?

The Chairivlan. I see no objection.

Mr. DoAB. We would be glad to do that. "We will deliver them back
to the officers Monday morning.

Ml'. IfUNGATE. Yes.
Mr. Doar. We will pick them up at the end of the meetiug right

now.
Mr. HuNGATE. Thank you.
The Chairman. I might also advise the members that this room is

going to be sealed and is going to be under security which will

carry on from now on until we conclude our deliberations.

Mr. Seiberlixg. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Just following up on what Mr. Hungate said, those

of us who would like to do that, can we just leave these materials here

and will somebody pick them up for us ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. If you would leave them at your places we will be
sure that they are picked up.

Mr. Seiberltng. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Butler. You will hold them until we call for them ?

Mr. Doar. We will hold them until you call for them.
The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Has Mr. St. Clair indicated the extent to which
he agrees also to be bomid by the same rules of confiidentiality ?

The Chairman. Mr. St. Clair.

Mr. St. Clair. I recognize, Mr. Chairman, and Mr. Seiberling, that

we, of course, will abide by the rules of this committee, the full com-
mittee, on the hearing.
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The Chairman. Thank you very much.
Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Chairman. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. I would like to say that I think the presentation,

since the recess, at least as far as I am concerned subjectively, this

has been a lot more understandable for me. I was really having a

problem with the first part, keeping up with the presentation. It is not
intended as a criticism but I appreciate the last form of the presenta-

tion and hope we can continue in this vein.

The Chairman. The chairman took the gentleman's advice and
suggested to counsel that they read very slowly and deliberately the

paragraphs and this would be, I think, better for the members of
the committee.

Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Mr. Chairman, just for purposes of clarification,

are we prohibited by the rules of confidentiality from commenting
on what took place here today ?

The Chairman. No. The members are not precluded from com-
menting on what took place, except that I believe that respecting the
rules of confidentiality, that those items that are confidential cannot
be alluded to or cannot be referred to. And this, of course, is some-
thing that each individual member will have to consider when he dis-

cusses any portion of this with the press or any other individual in

the public.

Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. I gather that all of the materials from the grand jury

fall into the confidentiality ; is that correct ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. Waldie. Do any other materials ?

The Chairman. None of the other materials, I believe, insofar as

I am able to understand, unless counsel has some other opinion. I
recall that the material

^Is. Jordan. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. That we really were concerned with is the ma-
terial that we received from the grand jury.

>\Ir. Doar. The matters that were received under the rules of con-
fidentiality include the political matters memorandums. Some of those
are public and some are not, at the present time.

Mr. Waldte. Well, how does a member of this committee know as

to which he is bound in terms of confidentiality ? I want to share some
of this material with my staff because I need help in analyzing it. I

want to abide l^y confidentiality, but do I gather that nothing in this

book is to be read by anyone except me? And if that is so, that means
everything in the book is subject to confidentiality, or that I can read
and discuss certain matters and I can read everything but not discuss
certain other matters?
The Chairman. I believe that that is the case.

Mr. Waldie. Well, if that is the case
The Chairman. I believe that there are matters that you can discuss

with members of your staff, but
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Mr. Waldie. Well, we ou^ht to

The Chairman. But the index is confidential. The matters that have
come from the grand jury are confidential. And there are other items
and, of course, I cannot with any specificity just tell you just what
are

Mr. Waldie. Well
The Chairman, [continuing]. What are confidential.

Mr. Waldie. But how do we know then as to what we are bound by,

Mr. Chairman ? Should there not be some
Mr. McClory. If the gentleman will yield, I will say if we have any

question about it, we just assume that it is confidential. I am taking
the logs and things like that
Mr. Waldie. I have not yielded, Mr. McClory, I have not yielded

and I am not ready to follow that suggestion of yours. I want to know
in it where I am bound. If I am not bound, I have got matters that I

want to discuss with people on this evidence.

The Chairiman. Well, let me read rule 2 of the Rules of Procedure
for handling Impeachment Inquiry material

:

At the commencement of any presentation at which testimony will be heard
or papers and things considered, each committee member will be furnished with
a list of all papers and things that have been obtained by the committee by
subpena or otherwise. No member shall make the list or any part thereof public
unless authorized by a majority vote of the committee, a quorum being present.

Now, that specifically relates to the list. We do know that there
are materials, such as those that came from the grand jury report, that
are confidential, and I would suggest that the member certainly recog-

nizes that there are areas which do relate to other matters and would
consider those as being confidential. Otherwise, I do not know of any
way to describe it.

Mr. Waldie. I will not take any more of the Chair's time. I have
listened carefully and I have found nothing degrading or defaming
in

The Chairman. Well, that is the gentleman's conclusion.

Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman, while some of the matters in the mate-

rial we received are public source information, I think the manner of
presentation and the manner in which they are excised from that
major document should be considered confidential, because if a news-
man had the excised portions that are flagged for us, in no imagination
at all, he would be able to tell the thrust of the evidence, the thrust

of the case. So, I would suggest that the material, all of the material

in here, be kept confidential, rather than just say only the material

that has not previously been made public, because the very fact that

some of it is flagged does, in effect, give it a different status than in a

volume of Watergate hearings.

The Chairman. Well, the Chair can only state that I think each
individual member can, will have to respect the rules of confidentiality.

I know that so far as I am concerned, that while I have stated in

my opening statement that I will briefly summarize procedures and
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what we have touched upon, it is not my intention to discuss anything
that relates to any of the material actually that has been presented
to the members of the committee.
Mr. McClort. Mr. Chairman, may I ask a question ?

Mr. Chairman, I would like to leave my material here. However,
I am going out of town and I will be back Sunday night and I would
like to have access to them on Monday. Would I be able to get into

this room ?

The Chairman. I am sure that can be arranged.
Mr. Smith. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. I have the same question, except I am going out of

town and will be back here on Saturday, and will this room
The Chairman. The inquiry staff works all aix)und the clock.

Mr. Doar. Congressman Smith, we will pick up the material from
your desk and not leave it here. We will take it over to the offices.

Whenever any member of the committee would call for it we would
deliver it promptly. We have the messenger ser\dce who would bring
it over and deliver it to you whenever you say, Saturday, Sunday, or
during the week.

JNIr. Smith. The staff will be working then Saturday ?

Mr. DoAR. That is right.

The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. I have a question of counsel.

I\Ir. Doar, the tabs contain a statement of information followed by
an annotation of evidence bearing upon that statement. Is it correct

that the annotated reference to evidence is the totality of the evidence
which beare upon the statement ?

Mr. DoAR. No, that is not.

Mr. Wiggins. Or are there other materials ?

Mr. DoAR. That is not correct. There may be cumulative evidence
that we have not included. That is where we think the matter is not
in dispute and we have not included it all. But, we have tried to be
fair and objective about it. We certainly have not kept anything back
knowingly, anything that we thought was pertinent for your infor-

mation.
Mr. Wiggins. I am satisfied with your answer. Thank you, Mr.

Chairman.
The Chairman. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman, when you talked about confidential ma-

terial, you referred only to the grand jury information. And Mr. Doar
referred to some of the political matters. We also have testimony
taken in executive session of the Senate select committee.
The Chaik&ian. That is correct.

jMs. Jordan. Is that not also under the aegis of confidential material I

The Chairman. Yes, it is.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Mezvinskt. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. In that connection, in the request of the gentle-

man from California, Mr. Waldie, I am wondering whether it might
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be useful, and I say this in light of what the gentleman from Mary-
land, Mr. Hogan, raised, if not only were the items, supporting evi-

dence, like 1.1, 1.3, or 4 or 5, or whatever, noted as they are, but also

whether it might be helpful if they had an asterisk in back of it or some
other identification noting that that is particularly under the rule of

confidentiality ?

JNIr. DoAR. Well, Mr. Congressman, we can do that. We will do that

in subsequent books. I would think, however, that the committee might
want to consider, considering the rule of confidentiality, with respect

to this material, keeping the whole book confidential until it considers
it or a number of books, keeping it confidential and then decide
whether or not it is in the public interest to make the whole book
available. I think Mr. Hogan, Congi-essman Hogan, does have a point,

that if you comment on part, that it is not, j'ou do not get a fair and
accurate picture of what has been presented.
The Chairman. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezm^nsky. Mr. Chairman, it was my understanding, so I un-

derstand it properly, that, in fact, as far as when we leave this room,
the specific substantive content of those books, whether it is the grand
jury material, or what was mentioned by the executiv^e sessions of
Watergate, that, in fact, the whole book, as Mr. Doar pointed out, is,

in fact, in substance, confidential for purposes of discussion with others,

including the press. Now, that is my understanding. Is that the proper
understanding ? So that when we leave, we all at least are on notice of
that correct interpretation.

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Thank you.

Mr. Fish. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Mr. Chairman, at the counsel's desk it seems to me that both

the majority counsel and both of the minority counsel have a copy of

book I in front of them, but I noticed during the presentation this

afternoon, that Mr. St. Clair and his associate, who is also bound by
the rules, had to share a book. And I wondered if it would not be pos-

sible to make available two copies of book I for Mr. St. Clair and his

associate, who I presume is going to be with us throughout these ?

Mr. DoAR. Congressman Fish, could I explain ?

The collating machines are such that they only collate 50 copies.

And we just felt that it was prudent to hold back four or five copies

in the event that one of them got somewhere, or some way or other was
not located, and so we limited the number of books that your staff can

have and, in that way, we have also limited the number that Mr. St.

Clair could have.

NoAv, if we had more books, we would be glad to make it available.

If this presents a problem, I am sure that we could take care of that.

But, that was the reason for it.

The Chairman. I would also like to point out, too, Mr. Fish, that

both majority and minority staffs of the Judiciary Committee have not

been able to receive individually a book because of the difficulty in hav-

ing to reproduce more than 50 at this time. But, that is the only reason

why.
Mr. Fish. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. As I read rule 4 of our procedures for handling
impeachment inquiry material, while they make it quite certain that
no member shall make any testimony, or papers or things public, unless

authorized by a majority vote of the committee, that this would not
prevent a member from discussing or showing such papers to a member
of his own staff, unless there is some other rule somewhere that says
that the making public includes showing it to any other individual. And
I wonder if we could get something clarified on that because I still

think there is a little confusion.

The Chairman. Well, I think that when we considered the rules of
confidentiality that it was expressly undei*stood that members of the
staff of the individual members would not be privy to material which
is considered confidential. And I think that that understanding is

implicit in these rules of confidentiality.

Mr. Seiberling. Well, that is not what the word "making public"
would ordinarily mean, and I just wonder if everyone agrees with
that, that that is what we are making reference to ?

The Chairman. I think when that matter was considered, that
everyone understood it and agreed at that time. There was discussion

and debate as to it, and the minutes will reflect.

Mr. Seiberling. Well, without quarreling with that, I will accept
that, if that is what the Chair rules, but I think we all should then
understand that that is what we mean. I do not so recall.

The Chairman. The Chair hopes that everyone understands the
rules and we all participated in that vote when we adopted these rules

of confidentiality.

There being no further business, we will recess this hearing until

Tuesday, May 14, 1974, at 9 :30 a.m.

[Whereupon, at 4:34 p.m., the committee was recessed, to reconvene
on Tuesday, May 14, 1974, at 9 :30 a.m.]
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Tlie committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9 :43 a.m. in room 2141,

Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr.

(chairman) presiding.

Present: Kepresentatives Rodino (presiding), Donohue, Brooks,

Kastenmeier, Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, Waldie, Flowers,

Mann, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Rangel, Jordan,

Thornton, Holtzman, Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, McClory,
Smith, Sandman, Railsback, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, Mayne, Hogan,
Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froehlich, Moorhead, Maraziti, and Latta.

Impeachment inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;

Albeit E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority ; Samuel Gar-

rison, III, deputy minority counsel; Robert A. Shelton, associate

special counsel; Evan A. Davis, counsel; Richard H. Gill, counsel;

Robert P. Murphy, counsel ; and Robert Halverson, consultant.

Committee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general counsel ; Gar-

ner J. Cline, associate general counsel ; and FranMin G. Polk, associate

counsel.

Also present: James D. St. Clair, special counsel to the President;

John A. McCahill, assistant special counsel.

The Chairman. The committee will come to order. And this morn-
ing's session is merely a resumption of last Thursday when the com-
mittee recessed until this morning to continue the initial presentation

of the detailed information.
It is the intention of the Chair to go until 11 o'clock and then to

recess for 10 minutes, just to be able to afford counsel a break from
this presentation, and then to go until about 12 or 12 :15, and then to

recess again until later on this afternoon, possibly at 2 or 2:30 this

afternoon.
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I could make a parlia-

mentary inquiry.

Is this considered to be a new session or this merely a continuation!
The Chairman. This is a continuation. We are in recess; we have

been in recess since last Thursday.
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman 1

Mr. Seiberling. All right. I thank the Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.

(585)
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Mr. Waldie, I have a parliamentary inquiry I just want to make
for the record. I never ^ot it clarified last time. The maker of the

motion, Mr. Donohue, made it on the basis that the material that we
were about to hear was defamatory and degrading, and it is seemingly
strange to me since under our rules of confidentiality he could not
have ever had access to the material. The Chair was not willing to

represent whether the material was defaming or degrading, and it

does seem to me that that presents an almost insurmountable opposi-
tion to our having entertained the motion without debate and closing

the sessions. I simply want to place my objection, parliamentarily, to

that procedure in the record.

Mr. CoxYERs. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. Mr. Chairman, I want to go on record in support of

the remark? made by the gentleman from California in a parliamen-
tary sense. I also checked the rule that was cited, and I must confess,

unless I misread it, there was nothing that spoke as to whether the
motion for executive session was nondebatable.
The Chairman. Well, without prolonging my response to the par-

liamentary inquiry, may I just state that once again that the rule does
not provide tliat there be a finding, in fact, that the material defame
or degrade, but merely that is may tend to defame or degrade. It was
on that basis that the Chair ruled that there would be no purpose
served by such a rule if that rule or if that motion were to be debated,
since then it would suggest that there would have to be first a finding,

and that is not, that is not the reading of the rule in accordance with
the Chair's interpretation of the rule. So, I would hope that we could
get on to tlie business.

Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman, parliamentary inquiry.

The Chairman. I would just like to state, and I will entertain this

other parliamentary inquiry, but if we are going to go on with these

proceedings we have much work to do, I would merely like to suggest

to the meml^ei-s who are going to inquire in this fashion that it is only
going to take more time, and more deliberation, and we are just going
to be unable to meet any date or any time frame that we have set for

ourselves.

Mr. Danielson. I would like to know whether the Chair would con-

sider transferring these hearings to the caucus room when they become
public hearing?. That is the extent of my inquiry.

The Chairman. Well, that is a matter that the Chair will have to

take under consideration. And for the present the Chair does feel

disposed, in liglit of the fact that I think there are many, many prob-

lems that attach to such a move, but nonetheless, the Chair is consid-

ering that. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. ]Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, before begin-

ning this morning I would like to introduce some additional members
of the inquiry staff that are here. Sitting back at the table with the

machinery, recording equipment, is Robert Shelton who is the senior

associate counsel in cliarge of administration for the inquiry staff. And
Mr. Halverson, who is our consultant on audio, our audio consultant

who has worked with us on a regular basis since it became clear that

we were going to have to prepare to play the recorded conversations to

the committee.



587

Also at the second counsel table here behind me is Richard Gill,

who has been in charge of the domestic intelligence task force. He is

from Montgomery, Ala. And the lawyer on my far left here, is

liobert Murphy who came to us from the GAO on loan, and has been
with the inquiry staff since I think about the first of last December.

It was suggested to me, and I concur, that the staff has gotten, in

assembling these books, have gotten them a little bit too full to make
them easy to use. And we will from now on make an endeavor not
to put quite so much material in each volume so that it is easier to use.

As a suggestion for today, if you would remove the statement of infor-

mation out of the front part of the book, you would find that it would
be easier for you to turn the pages, the remaining pages, and it would
just eliminate about 55 pages from the book and make it somewhat
easier to handle. That sets forth the entire statement of information
for the entire book II which consists of 57 paragraphs.
Mr. Jenner pointed out that as we did before, each one of the sheets

is in front of the tab number, a corresponding tab. We will follow
the same procedure that we followed at the end of the last hearing
with ]Mr. Davis reading the paragraph to the committee, and behind
eacli tab, and then myself, and if Mr. Jenner has any matters that he
wishes to call to the committee's attention, directing the committee's
attention to the evidence, explaining the evidence, the supporting
materials behind the tab.

We will begin with 1.1.

One last thing is that organizing these books we have tried to follow

a chronological pattern principally, but in organizing the period be-

tween June 20 and June 21, or June 20 and sometime in February, I

Ijelieve, we looked first, examined first the investigation that was con-

ducted by the authorized agencies of Government. And then we looked

with respect to activities of defendants or persons that were what
the FBI calls the subjects, or possible subjects, or witnesses to this

investigation, and so that books II and HI to some extent overlap

chronologically. That is to the only extent that we have overlapped
chronologically.

Finally I would like to say one more thing, and that is that at the

end of the last meeting Congressman Wiggins asked me if this was
all of the proof that we had with respect to a particular statement of

information, or all of the materials and I said yes, except to the extent

that we might have had more cumulative infonnation, it does. I would
like to elaborate on that. As you go over these books new matters come
to your attention, you see new things, and it could very well be that

there was additional material that we didn't appreciate the significance

of, or that we though should be brought to the committee's attention,

and that we brought it up, we will bring it up at a later time.

Xow we will begin, Mr. Chairman, with tab No. 1.

Mr. Davis. Tab 1, on Jmie 17, 1972, shortly after 2 a.m. five persons,

including James McCord, a security consultant for the Committee for

the Reelection of the President, were arrested in the Watergate head-

quarters of the Democratic National Committee.
Immediately after the arrest, Howard Hunt and Gordon Liddy left

the Watergate Hotel. Hunt took with him a briefcase belonging to

McCord that contained electronic equipment and went to the White
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House. Hunt went to liis office in the Executive Office Building and

withdrew from his safe $10,000 previously provided to him by Liddy

for use in case there was a mishap. Hunt placed McCord's brief-

case in the safe. In the early morning hours he delivered the money

to an attorney on behalf of the five persons arrested at the DNC
Headquarters.
Mr. DoAR. Tab 1.1 is the testimony of one of the law enforcement

officials who was at the scene. At page 105 of that testimony he des-

cribes the actual arrest in the office of the Democratic National Com-
mittee, the materials, equipment that was seized at that time, and the

arrest. On 1.6 the location of the arrest with respect to the location of

the office of the chairman in the Democratic Party, Mr. Lawrence

O'Brian.
It also indicates that the men gave names that were proved later to

be false.

Tab 1.2 is the testimony of James McCord. At page 126 he indicates

that he was a full-time employee of the Committee to Reelect the

President commencing in January 1972.

Tab 1.3 is Howard Hunt's testimony, which I would like to direct

your attention to at page 3688, 3688 near the bottom of the page where

Mr. Hunt says that he closed up Mr. McCord's briefcase. Mr. Hunt
is at room 214 of the Watergate Hotel, which is in another building,

the briefcase which contained the electronic equipment, and with Mr.

Liddy.

We left the premises. I drove to the White House where I inserted the briefcase

belonging to Mr. McCord into my two-drawer safe. I went—I believe I called

Mr. Douglas Caddy's apartment, he being an attorney.

Mr. Hunt there is speaking of the Executive Office Building, not

the "White House. And he testifies to that.

And on the next page, 3689, he relates how he took out the $10,000

from the safe, which money had been given to him, provided to him by

Liddy. Tab No. 2.

Mr. Jenner. Excuse me, John, We have employed in paragraph 1

the words used by Mr. Liddy with respect to the $10,000 and which
he testified that that money had been held in the safe "for use in case

of a mishap." As you will notice, the money was employed immediately

by Mr. Hunt when he became aware of the happening that evening

to retain Mr. Caddy as counsel, and in the event necessary to use the

funds for bail.

Mr. Davis. Tab 2.

At the time of the arrest, at the Watergate headquarters of the DNC,
electronic surveillance and photographic equipment, and approxi-

mately $1,500 in cash were found in the possession of the persons

arrested. A subsequent search of the rooms in the Watergate Hotel

that had been rented under alias names used by certain other persons

arrested produced a directory containing a telephone number for a

White House telephone for Mr. Howard Hunt, a check drawn by
E. Howard Hunt, and 32 sequentially numbered $100 bills.

These bills had been received from a Florida bank into which Barker
had deposited five checks contributed to the President's reelection cam-
paign. Four of these checks totaling $89,000 had been drawn on a

Mexican bank payable to Manuel Ogarrio, a Mexican lawyer. The fifth
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check, totaling $25,000, had been drawn by Kenneth Dahlberg. These
checks had been delivered to Gordon Liddy by FCRP treasurer, Hugh
Sloan, to be converted into cash.

]Mr. DoAR. Among the things that were seized at that time by the
police were certain notebooks that the arrested individuals had in their
possession. I mention that because at a later time we will call that to

your attention.

The testimony is, $89,000 came from campaign contributions from
certain individuals in the State of Texas who put up the money, wanted
to put the money through the bank in Mexico so that their identity
be not disclosed.

Paragraph 2.1 at page 107 of 2.1, this is Sergeant Leeper describing
what he did after he got on the scene, getting the possession of the
material, the equipment, the money, the notebooks. And if you will

look down at the middle of the page, there is a description of Sergeant
Leeper and it says, "A small notebook, as you describe it, with the
names that you have brought out on it. The name, E. Howard Hunt,
is that the name ?"

"I believe it is. It said E. Hunt, White House on it, yes, Sir." Or
W. H., excuse me, or "E. Hunt, W. H. on it."

Tabs 2.2 through 2.4 is material that we provide to indicate the true
names or the aliases that the people used who were arrested. Tab 2.2

is a document from the Central Intelligence Agency to the Federal
Bureau of Investigation dated July 7.

And in paragraph 2 there is a discussion of the fact that during
July and August of the preceding year, two sets of alias documents in

the name of George F. Leonard and Edward Warren were furnished
by the CIA to these two individuals. George Leonard is Gordon Liddy's
alias, and Edward Warren is Howard Hunt's alias. Those documents
with respect to that fact are shown in paragraphs 2.3 and 2.4.

The next matter I wanted to call to your attention was paragraph
2.6, which is the testimony of Patrick Gray, who was the acting di-

rector of the Federal Bureau of Investigation. He is talking about an
interview that he had on the 22d of June, and he is describing the two
checks. One, how the checks had gone into the bank account of Bernard
Barker in Miami, and one was the check from Kenneth Dahlberg and
the other was a check, four checks drawn on a Mexican bank payable
to Manuel Ogarrio.
Mr. Jenner. Ladies and gentlemen of the committee, I call your

attention to tab 2.6 in which you will find the report of the Metro-
politan Police, District Metropolitan Police, of the materials found
in the Democratic National Headquarters. Tab 2.5 is it? I'm sorry,

2.5, and that is the listing of that which the police on that occasion

seized pursuant to a search warrant.

Mr. DoAR. The last item that I wish to call your attention to with
respect to this paragraph is 2.7, which is the testimony of John Dean.
On page 942 of the Senate select committee public hearings, Mr. Dean
described how these checks got into, apparently they got into Mr.
Barker's bank account.

The checks had come to the Committee to Reelect the President,

and Gordon Liddy was the finance director of it, or the treasurer and
general counsel, excuse me, of the Finance Committee to Reelect the

41-018—75—pt. 1 38
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President. And he was given the checks with the assignment of con-
verting the cliecks into cash. Some time prior to that time he had gone
to Miami and had used Barker to convert this money to cash, and
some of it then was used in connection with the payment of the services

of the people that broke into the Democratic National Committee.
Mr. Dean, on page 943, testifies that with respect to these checks,

these contributions, that he related on the 22d or theretofore the facts

about the checks to Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlichman. As we go on,

there will be more material about those checks, and the money, and
discussions about them in later paragraphs. Tab No. 8.

Mr. Davis. Tab. 3. At approximately 8 a.m. on the morning of the

nrrests, Henry Petersen, the Assistant Attorney General in charge of
the Criminal Division of the Justice Department, telephoned Attorney
General Richard Kleindienst at home to tell him of the arrest at the

DNC Headquarters.
Mr. DoAR. I have nothing to call to the committee's attention about

tab No. 3.

Mr. Davis. Tab 4. On the morning of June 17, 1972, Gordon Liddy
telephoned Jeb Magruder, chief of staff to John Mitchell at CRP at

the Beverly Hills Plotel in California. Magruder returned Liddy's

call from a pay telephone. Liddy advised Magruder of the arrests at

the DNC Headquarters.
Shortly thereafter, IVIagruder met with John ISIitchell, the cam-

paign director of CRP and Fred LaRue, Mitchell's special assistant

at CRP at the hotel. There was discussion regarding somebody's
contacting Acting Attorney General Richard Kleindienst concerning

the arrests at the DNC Headquarters. Later that day, Liddy and
Powell Moore, an official at CRP, met with Attorney General Klein-

dienst at the Burning Tree Club near Washington, D.C. Liddy told

Kleindienst that Mitchell had asked him to give him a report on the

break-in at the DNC Headquarters, and that some of the persons

arrested might be employed by either the Wliite House or CRP.
Kleindienst called Henry Petersen and instructed him not to give

special treatment to those arrested at the Watergate. Kleindienst told

Liddy to leave the premises.

Mr. DoAR. Now, Members of the committee, there is a conflict, or

various versions as to who gave the directions to call Mr. Liddy. what
directions were cfiven to Mr. Liddy about Mr. Kleindienst. And it does

seem clear that Mr. Liddy did call Mr. Magruder, Mr. Liddy did sug-

gest that Mr. Magruder go to a secure phone and Magruder did go to a

secure phone and called back and got the information as to what hap-

pened on that morning. I think that Mr. Magruder testifies to that

at 4.1.

But, I would like to turn to 4.2, which is the testimony of Fred
LaRue, and go over that testimony with you.

Mr. Jenister. In this connection, as in all areas where there appears

to be a difference in testimony, pro and con nuances, the staff has been

careful to afford you all of that which we have bearing upon that par-

ticular possible difference of nuances and thrust of testimony, and the

exhibits so that you will make your decision with respect to the sub-

ject matter. We do not claim we have everythins", but we have reported

to you and do include everything that is available to us at the moment.
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Mr. DoAR. On page 2284 Mr. LaRiie relates liow he and INIr. Ma-
gruder, Mr. Mardian and Mr. Porter were haidng breakfast at the
Beverly Hills Hotel, and he says at the bottom of 2284

:

Magruder was paged and went to the telephone. He came back and he said
he had a rather unusual, strange call from Gordon Liddy who wanted him to go
to some, as I recall, some NASA installation or NASA base in Los Angeles where
tliere was a secure phone, to use the phone to call back to Mr. Liddy in

Washington.

]Mr. Dash asked

:

Did Mr. Magruder say anything about what the problem was?

Mr. LaRue said

:

Mr. Liddy indicated that there was a problem that he wanted to discuss
and Mr. Magruder, in an aside to mo, said, "You know, I think maybe last night
was the night they were going into the Democratic National Committee."

And Mr. Dash said

:

Did that mean anything to you when he said that?

And Mr. LaRue said

:

Well, no, specifically no, but it—in view of the fact that I was aware this plan
had been discussed in Key Biscayne, it certainly aroused a great curiosity on my
part.

And then Mr. Dash said

:

What happened next? Mr. Magruder then went ahead and spoke to Mr. Liddy.
LaRue said I told Mr. Magruder that why didn't he just use a pay phone, and Mr.
r>aRue then said Magruder called Liddy and then came back and told him that
Liddy had told him that a break-in, five people had been caught and one of the
persons was Mr. McCord.

And then Mr. Dash said

:

Was this information relayed to Mr. Mitchell ?

Mr. LaRue said

:

Yes. I personally relayed that to Mr. Mitchell.

Mr. Dash asked

:

And what was Mr. Mitchell's reaction?

And Mr. LaRue describes Mr. Mitchell's being very surprised and
saying that this is incredible, and he asked did Mr. Mitchell give any
instructions, and he said, "Not at that time." He said Mr. Mitchell
went back to his meeting and he said

:

Later, I think, Mr. Magruder and I, and Mr. Mitchell met, and Mr. Mitchell
asked that someone call Mr. Liddy and have him contact Mr. Kleindienst, the
Attorney General, and have Mr. Kleindienst get in touch with Chief Wilson and
see what details we could find out about the situation.

And then at tab 4.3, IMr. LaRue again expands on that at page 2330,
and there was a discussion about who was to call Mr. Liddy, and Mr.
LaRue said

:

Well, someone was to call Mr. Liddy, to call Mr. Kleindienst, to call Mr. Wilson
to find out what happened.

At tab 4.4, we have a testimony of Richard Kleindienst in which
he describes at 3561 IMr. Liddy coming to the Burning Tree Country
Club with Mr. Powell Moore. Powell Moore is identified as a former
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Deputy Public Information Officer of the Department of Justice, who
went Avith Mr. Mitchell when he resigned over to the Committee for
the Reelection of the President.
And if you look at page 3561, or excuse me, 3562, at the end of the

first not full paragraph but at the end of the first paragraph that had
begun on the previous page, and Mr. Kleindienst tells how Mr. Liddy
said that he had been asked to come out and give him a report about
the Watergate break-in. And he said that some people that were ar-

rested might be employed by either the White House or the Commit-
tee for the Eeelection of the President. And Mr. Kleindienst describes
how he told Mr. Liddy to leave the premises, and as far as he was con-
cerned the people were to receive no different treatment than anyone
else with respect to the way the authorities were to handle the investi-

gation.

Paragraph 4.5 is Mr. Mitchell's testimony, and at page 1662 Mr.
Mitchell does not have a clear recollection of the phone call, but there

was some conversation that someone might call Mr. Kleindienst and
find out generally what happened.
And then Mr. Mardian testifies at 4.6 with respect to his conversa-

tions with Mr. Liddy in which he gives details about what had hap-
pened and relates what had happened out at the Burning Tree Country
Club after INIr. Kleindienst told them to get out of there. In other

words, Mr. Liddy had reported back to someone in California as to

what had happened out at the Burning Tree Country Club.

Paragraph 5

Mr. Jenner. Excuse me, John. Members of the committee, there is

a slight error in the statement of information on No. 4, and Attorney
General Richard Kleindienst is there stated to be Acting Attorney
General. He was, in fact, the Attorney General at that time, so you
may amend that by striking the word "Acting" in line 8.

And if you will permit me a personal observation. Attorney General
Kleindienst acted as you would expect a dedicated and honorable At-
torney General of the United States to act when he was approached

by these gentlemen at the golf course.

Thanks, John.
Mr. DoAR. Tab No. 5.

Mr. Davis. Tab 5. In the late afternoon of June 17, 1972, Secret Serv-

ice Agent Boggs telephoned John Ehrliclmian, assistant to the Presi-

dent, and told him that one of the persons arrested at the DNC
Headquarters had in his possession a document referring to Howard
Hunt, who apparently was a White House employee. Later that day,

Ehrlichman phoned Ronald Ziegler, the President's Press Secretary

who was with the Presidential party in Florida. Ehrlichman told

Ziegler the substance of his telephone conversation with Agent Boggs.

Ehrlichman also telephoned Charles Colson, special counsel to the

President, and discussed Hunt's White House employment status.

Mr. DoAR. In tliis paragraph, Mr. Ehrlichman testifies at 5.1 and he

makes clear that he inquired of Mr. Ziegler or called Mr. Ziegler to

give him information because he thought he might be getting some
inquiries. And then he called Mr. Colson, special counsel to the Presi-

dent, to find out whether Howard Hunt was still employed.

Tab 5.2 is Charles Colson's deposition. It merely corroborates the

call from Mr. Ehrlichman. Mr. Colson was not a witness before the
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Senate select committee, but he did give liis deposition and later on we
find that he presented, in his own behalf, he and his attorney, a state-

ment to the Senate select committee. And we have inserted in the
several paragraphs or subparagraphs parts of that statement that we
think are pertinent to tlie statement of information. Tab No. 6.

Mr. Davis. Tab 6, during the evening of June 17, 1972, Assistant
Attorney General Petersen telephoned Attorney General Kleindienst
and told him that documentation relating to a White House consult-

ant had been found at the scene of the break-in at the DNC Head-
quarters.

Mr. DoAR. Assistant Attorney General Petersen is the Assistant At-
torney General in charge of the Criminal Division. As most of the
members of the committee know, Mr. Petersen is a long time employee
of the Department of Justice in the Criminal Division, moved up
through the ranks, head, I believe, of the General Crime Section,

worked in Organized Crime, served as acting assistant attorney gen-
eral on a number, I believe, several occasions with former administra-
tions. And at this particular time he was the assistant attorney general
in charge of the Criminal Division. The Criminal Division is a vei-y

large division of the Department of Justice. I think at about that time
it employed about 400 attorneys.

Mr. Davis. Tab 7, on June iS, 1972, H. K. Haldeman, chief of staff

to President Nixon, who was at Key Biscayne, Fla., with the Presiden-
tial party, spoke by telephone with Jeb Magrjcler, who was in Cali-

fornia. Haldeman dii'ected IMagruder to return to Washington, D.C.,
to meet with counsel to the President, John Dean, Haldeman's special

assistant, Gordon Strachan, and FCEP treasurer, Hugh Sloan, to

learn what had happened, and determine the source of the money
found in the possession of the persons arrested at the DNC headquar-
ters. By the following day, Magruder had returned to Washington.
Mr. DoAR. Mr. Haldeman testified that he had no recollection of

this particular call. Mr. Magruder said that Mr. Haldeman asked what
happened and directed Mr. Magruder to find out what happened and
whose money was used. And he told him to talk to John Dean, who was
counsel to the President, talk to Gordon Strachan, who was his special

assistant on the "White House staff, and talk to Mr. Sloan, who was
then Treasurer of the Finance Committee To Re-Elect the President,

but theretofore had worked under Mr. Haldeman, and Mr. Chapin in

the "Wliite House before he transferred over to the Finance Committee.
Mr. Haldeman's only recollection of the conversation was that he was
concerned about w^hat kind of a release, I assume this is a press release,

the Committee To Re-Elect the President was going to issue. And he
wanted to be informed, and to participate in that release. Tab No. 8.

Mr. Davis. Tab No. 8, on June 18, 1972, John Ehrlichman spoke
by telephone with H. R. Haldeman. They discussed the break-in at

the DNC Headquarters, the involvement of James McCord and the
fact of Mr. Hunt's name being involved.

Mr. DoAR. Mr. Ehrlichman's testimony with respect to this indi-

cates that he too was concerned about what tact the committee would
take with respect to explaining this, and he wanted to have someone
talk to Hunt and get the details of Hunt's being involved. Tab No. 9.

Mr. Davis. Tab 9, at noon on June 18, 1972, Gordon Strachan tele-

phoned Haldeman's principal staff assistant, Lawrence Higby. Higby
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told Strachan that Haldeman liad spoke Avith Jeb Magriider about
the break-in and that John Ehrlichman was handling; the entire matter.
Mr. DoAR. I would like to call the committee's attention to para-

graph 9.1, which is Gordon Strachan's testimony. It is at page 2457
where Mr. Dash, and this is before the Senate Select Conmiittee,
asked him, "Did you later learn from Magruder anything about this
event?"
Mr. Strachan said

:

Well, I called him that afternoon and then tried to call him again that
evening and did not reach him. Placed a third call on Sunday about noon.
Washington time, and asked him if he knew anything about this, since I had
rather expected a phone call from Mr. Haldeman. And he said, "Don't worry
about it, I have been on the phone this morning with Bob, and you needn't know
anything about it."

Mr. Dash said

:

All right. What did you do after that?

Mr. Strachan said

:

I called Mr. Higby, because I didn't really believe that Magruder had talked
to Mr. Haldeman. Mr. Haldeman was down in Key Biscayne. Mr. Higby told
me yes, in fact Magruder had talked with Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlichman
was handling the entire matter.

Mr. Higby, as you will recall, also was a special assistant to ^Mr.

Haldeman, and sat right outside of his office on the first floor of the
White House. Tab No. 10.

Mr. Davis. Tab 10, at 7 :32 a.m. on June 19, 1972, Attorney Gen-
eral Kleindienst telephoned the Acting Director of the FBI, L. Patrick
Gray, in Palm Springs, Calif., and stated that Kleindienst wished to

be briefed on the investigation of the break-in at the DNC Headquar-
ters. Kleindienst told Gray that the President wanted to talk to Klein-
dienst about it that day or possibly the next day.
Mr. DoAR. This paragraph of material, of information, comes from

material that the staff acquired after it interviewed Patrick Gray in

March of this year, or I believe it was on April 30 of this year. At
that time Mr. Gray furnished to the inquiry staff handwritten notes
that he had made on June 19. And if you look, because the hand-
written notes are difficult to read, we retyped them for you. But. I
think the committee might want to look at Mr. Gray's notes on para-
graph 10.1, the handwriting, the handwritten notes, and they consist

of three pages.
Mr. Jenner. They follow the typed material.

Mr. DoAR. And the pertinent material or one part of the pertinent

material is on the first page there, INIonday, June 19, 1972, and if we
then go back, turn back to the typed material, which ig an exact type-
written copy of the notes

Mr. Jenner. That's the first page.
Mr. DoAR. Back on 10.1, you will notice that at 7:32 a.m. ]Mr. Gray

out on the West Coast, Palm Springs, got a telephone call from tlie

Attorney General, Richard Kleindienst. And the note said that,

"Sometime today or possibly tomorrow RN is going to want to talk

to me. Is there anyone there who can come brief me today this p.m. ?""

And the answer was, "Yes." And that's Mr. Felt.

Mr. Davis. That's correct.
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Mr. DoAR. Special Agent Felt of the FBI who was in overall charge
of the Watergate investigation.

There are other materials in Mr. Gray's notes that may be pertinent

to the committee. At 8 o'clock, if yon run down the page, he gets a

telephone call, Mr. Gray gets a telephone call from ]NIr. Felt. And if

you see the second note there that Mr. Gray wrote : "I have a memo
to HRH and to AG." This is with respect to Mr. Gray. The commit-
tee may want to hear from Mr. Gray witli respect to an explanation

of these notes, but it seems to be apparent that this relates to the break-
in, and so also Mr. Gray wonders, asks why in his notes relating to the
fact that the memo goes to HRH and to the Attoiney General.
Mr. Railsback. What does TCF mean ?

Mr. Davis. Telephone call from.
]\Ir. DoAR. Then if you go down to the second page, you see the in-

formation that Mr. Gray was getting with respect to Howard Hunt,,

because there was material found at the scene that connected Mr.
Plunt. And you know that he writes. "He may have been a consultant'

at the White House'' on the lefthand side, large letters, and then the

fourth line from the bottom, "We conducted an investigation for the

WH in 1971 for a sensitive post some 9 months ago," and that Caddy,
and that's the lawyer who Liddy gave the money to, advised the FBI
that he received a call at 3 a.m. from a person he refused to identify.

At the bottom of the first page
Mr. Jenner. Bottom of the first page and the typed page, 10.1,

L. Patrick Gray notes.

Mr. DoAR. Then on the top of the second page you will see notes of
a discussion between the Director of the FBI and the man that is spe-

cial agent that's in charge of the particular investigation, and you see

to the left he's got the note, "Are we in it solidly?", and the answer,

"Yes." And there is a note on the right, "Do not send." And there

again is a cryptic note, but it would appear that this was an instruction

to follow the policy of the FBI not to circulate outside the Bureau
information wath respect to an investigation until the FBI was pre-

pared to make its report.

Since I worked in the Department of Justice for TI/2 years, I can
tell the committee that it is standard practice in the Department of
Justice for the Bureau to make periodic reports on investigations

that it was conducting, and to send them over to the Assistant At-
torney General in whose division the particular violation or alleged

violation had occurred. These reports would come in a standard pack-

age with a summary on the top, or really a summary status of the

investigation, and then the interviews behind. And these would always
have been reviewed by a high Washington official of the FBI. There
was a standard form on the top. It would indicate the nature of the

investigation, w^hether it was a preliminary investigation or full inves-

tigation, and generally the report, the form would indicate that the

investigation was continuing. As I say, the material never came over

in bits and pieces. It came after it had been analyzed and summarized,
and came periodically when the Bureau felt that it was important to

report to the Justice Department or to the attorneys in the particular

division.

I know of no occasion when we were able at Justice to get inter-

views, 302 interviews on a piecemeal basis. That was not the case
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out in the field. If you were in the field working with agents in the
field, and preparing information for a grand jury, or preparing for
trial, and the agents were conducting interviews, they would give you
302's, work closely with you, that is, the witness interviews, before
they went to Washington unless they had specific directions to the
contrary.

Mr. Jenner. "^Vlien I was with the Warren Commission there were,
and these are exceptions to that practice, but occasionally we would
have need for an immediate FBI interview and check and report. The
practice of the FBI was to do its best to refer that to the field agent in
the particular city or town as to which there were areas in which we
wished information, and we would receive a spot report, depending on
the nature of the emergency and pressure. But Mr. Doar has described
for you the normal procedure followed by the FBI, not only with re-

spect to the Department of Justice, but when it is conducting investi-

gations for others as well, other Government agencies.
• iNIr. DoAR. Tab 11.

Mr. Davis. Tab 11, in the morning or early afternoon of June 19,

1972, Ehrlichman told John Dean to look into the question of White
House involvement in the break-in at the DNC and to determine
Howard Hunt's Wliite House employment status. Dean has testified

that he then spoke to Charles Colson regarding Colson's knowledge of
the break-in and Hunt's status, and that Colson denied knowledge of
the event, but expressed concern over the contents of Hunt's safe.

Dean has also testified that he spoke to Gordon Liddy, who advised
of his and Magruder's involvement in the planning and execution of
the break-in. Thereafter Ehrlichman received a report from Dean
that Dean had spoken to Liddy and to law enforcement officials, that

law enforcement officials were aware that the matter went beyond the
five persons who were apprehended, that Liddy was involved, and
that there was a further direct involvement of the CRP.
Mr. DoAR. Paragraph 11.1 is testimony of John Dean before the

Senate select committee. And in the middle of the page or at the top
of page 933, Dean testifies how there was concern at the White House
among the people there, Mr. Colson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Ehrlichman, with
respect to Hunt's payroll status, and with respect to the contents of

Hunt's safe. And then at the middle of the page Dean relates how he

contacted Mr. Liddy and they went out. Mr. Liddy suggested they

take a walk. He puts it about noon, and Mr. Liddy reported to him
that the men who had been arrested were his men. And he expressed

concern about them.

I asked him why he had been in the DNC, and Liddy told me that Magruder
had pushed him into doing it. He told me that he had not wanted to do it, but

Magruder had complained about the fact that they were not getting good in-

formation from a bug they had placed in the DNC some time earlier. He then

explained something about the steel structure of the Watergate oflSce building

that was inhibiting transmission of the bug, and that they had gone into the

building to correct this problem. He said that he had reported to Magruder tliat

during the earlier entry of the DNC offices, they had seen documents, which I

believe he told me were either government documents or classified documents

and Magruder had told him to make copies of these documents.

And then Liddy goes on to tell them that Dean asked why one of the

men had a check from Hunt, and Liddy said they were friends of

Hunt, and Hunt had put him in touch with him.
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And then if you turn to page 11.3, and 11.2, 11.2 is the testimony

of John Dean on November 19, 1973, before the grand jury of the

District of Columbia. And the pertinent information is elicited on
pages 48, 49, and 50 of Mr. Dean's testimony.

I want to remind the members of the committee again that with

respect to the grand jury testimony, this is how we received it from

the grand jury. We did not receive all of Mr. Dean's testimony. With
respect to grand jury material, there has been no editing of pages

whatsoever. The way we have the material in the book is exactly as the

grand jury gave it to us.

The committee may wonder about on the first page of 11.2, which

relates to John Dean's testimony, you will see at the top of the page,

you will see a stamp "DV.'* That is a stamp that we put on the material

because it is a classification of restricted material, and we had in our

own inquiry staff the closest security of that material on a need-to-

know basis, and that was the highest classification that we used. This
particular material was retained b}^ me in my office in a a safe, which I

did not have the combination. Mr. Shelton had the combination ; Mr.
Marshall, our security officer, had the combination; and Maureen
Barden, who is the head of our research staff, our control had the

combination.
We maintained a log at all times when any person withdrew the ma-

terial from the safe, and they were permitted to read the material in

the suite of offices which I occupied. Mr. Coppock had a small office in

tliat suite, and when some person Avanted to read the material he either

sat in the space between my office and my secretary's office, or around
the corner in Mr. Coppock's office. That is where Chairman Kodino
and the Ranking Minority Member, Mr. Hutchinson, read the ma-
terial. And only those members of our staff examined the material that

had a need to know in connection with the preparation of these matters
for the committee.
The figure 47.6 on the top there means that this is the first page,

moans that this is the sixth point under the 47th paragraph of the
grand jury report to us. And you will see that repeated. I meant to

explain that to you yesterday. You will see that repeated on each
one of the grand jury material. And the grand jury material, as it

came to us, look, has statements not unlike the statements we have pre-

pared for you with annotations at the bottom. And then behind it in

folders, the file folders, are these various subparagraphs. It is not an
index.
Now, the tapes that we received from the judge were also kept in

that safe and they were released, of course, they went out of my office

and down to the tape room, which was on the floor that we occupy.
And they were played and listened to by people that had written
authorization by me, and approved by Mr. Jenner to listen to the tapes.
Wlien we got the material from Judge Sirica, Mr. Jenner and I met

with Judge Sirica and Avent over the grand jury material page by
page. I think it took us about 3 hours. This was to be certain that
every piece of material, every piece of paper that the grand jury had
submitted, that we received, and that we receipted for that infonna-
tion. And if there was an error in it, some kind of an error or some-
thing, we would make a note of it. There were no errors but there may
have been a few places where Mr. Jenner wrote explanations on the
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index to make it clear just exactly wliat material the committee was
receiving. There was also—Mr. Jenner calls my attention to the fact

—

that there was also a court reporter and the entire proceedings were
recorded and then placed under seal in the records of the court. Also,
there were transcripts of tape recorded conversations in the grand jury
material and pages of the transcripts were referred to in the grand
jury index. These transcripts were used by us in comparing the tran-

scripts that the "\¥liite House had given to us and the transcripts which
we made and which we will furnish to you as we get into listening to

the recorded conversations.
Now, if you look at page 48—also, ]\lr. Jenner calls my attention to

the fact that the l^rackets are brackets that we placed on the material
for the committee's use. They weren't there when we received the

material.

And if you look at the question at the top of the page it is

:

And what did you tell Mr. Ehrlichman?

Answer

:

Well, I reported to Mr. Ehrlichman everything that Liddy had told me and I
recall recounting back to him, trying to put all of the pieces I had available at
that point together by telling him about the meetings which had occurred in the
Attorney General's Office in January and February of 1972.

Question

:

Those were the meetings at which Liddy presented his intelligence programs?

Answer

:

That is correct.

And if you go to the bottom of the page now, the question is:

Xow, during these first few conversations with Mr. Ehrlichman, after the
Watergate break-in, did he instruct you to conduct an investigation and deter-
mine whether anyone in the White House was responsible or had knowledge of
the Watergate break-in? Give you a specific instruction to conduct a Watergate
investigation?

Answer

:

I wouldn't say it was an instruction to conduct an investigation. He just told
me to keep my eyes and ears open and learn what I could.

Mr. Jenner said to call the committee's attention to the fact that the
reference to the Attorney General in February was Mr. Mitchell, not
Mr. Kleindienst.

And then on page 49, question

:

Did Mr. Ehrlichman or anyone else in the White House ever give you a spe-
cific instruction to conduct an investigation into this matter, telling you that it

was your responsibility to make a determination of the facts and determine
whether anyone in the White House was involved or responsible?

And Mr. Dean's answer

:

Well. I wouldn't say that it was really until late August when it was reported
that I had conducted such an investigation that there ever became any semblance
of such an investigation. And, after that, when it had been put on the public
record that I had conducted an investigation, I began to pretend like I had con-
ducted an investigation.
But I am unaware of being instructed to do an investigation because I would

have proceeded much differently if I was investigating. I was merely sort of
catch-as-catch-can.
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Question

:

Was this—did it naturally fall to you, as counsel to the President, as a person

who had formal liaison with the Justice Department and the informal contacts

there, to be the person at the White House most aware of what was going on in

the Watergate?
Well, with things like what would generally happen is that after Mr. Halde-

man or Ehrlichman would either lose interest or get concerned in something else,

it would fall to me to be the man to follow up and continue the liaison and keep

them abreast of what I was learning.

Tabs 11.3 and 11.4 are testimony by Mr. Ehrlichman at different

times at the Senate select committee. They are slightly equivocal, but

it seems at tab 11.4 that ]Mr. Ehrlichman does confirm the fact that

Mr. Dean did report to him about his talk with Mr. Liddy, and that

the fact that Mr. Liddy was involved in the Watergate break-in, and
that there was further direct involvement of the CRP in this. That is

paofe 2583 of tab 11.4. Tab Xo. 12.

Mr. Davis. Tab 12, on June 19, 1972, the President telephoned

•Charles Colson from Florida and spoke with him for approximately
1 hour, ending shortly before noon. The break-in at the DNC Head-
quarters was discussed.

Mr, DoAR. This is the first direct information that we have had that

the President was informed of the Watergate break-in. This came to

IIS initially by virtue of the fact that the special prosecutor requested,

and you can see this from 12.1, meetings and telephone conversations

between the President and Charles Colson for the period June 16, 1972,

through April 30, 1973. And this is an abstract of a log. I do not know
whether this was an abstract from Mr. Colson's log or an abstract

from the President's log. But, at any rate, it summarizes day-by-day
the contacts between the President and Mr. Colson. The special prose-

cutor received similar abstracts from Mr. Haldeman, Mr. Ehrlichman,
TVIr, Dean and a number of other officials in the White House during
the course of his investigation in the summer of 1973.

Tab 12.2 is the tab that I referred to, is the material, the statement
by Charles Colson. This is a statement that he delivered to the com-
mittee which he intended to make but the committee concluded that
they would not call him. But, he delivered this and then the com-
mittee furnished it to us. And at page 6 of that statement—we have
the entire statement, of course, at our offices and I believe it is some
50 pages in length—at No. 5, paragraph 5, Mr. Colson confirms that
the President called him and that the President was angered and
incredulous that anyone involved in the Presidential campaign appa-
ratus could have engaged in such conduct. And Colson explained that
he had no idea what happened; and now Colson says that, relates
about the conversations he had with the President the following week,
in which the President expressed great annoyance in the way in which
the committee was being managed. And the "President said he had not
been able, according to Colson, the President said he had not been
able to devote time to campaig-n matters and that he complained that
the staff was overstaffed and overpaid and that the committee had too
much money to spend. Watergate was an example of misguided enter-
prise. And he said that he had ordered Mr. Haldeman to have the staff
of the committee reduced. And he said that he had done this on more
than one occasion, reflecting the direction that came from the Presi-
dent, through Mr. Haldeman to the committee. Tab 13.
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Mr. Davis. Tab 13, on June 19, 1972, Howard Hunt went to the Ex-
ecutive Office Building and reviewed the contents of his safe. He de-

termined that the contents included cables Hunt had fabricated indi-

cating a relationship between the Kennedy administration and the

assassination of Vietnamese President Diem, materials relating to

Gemstone, James McCord's electronic equipment and other material.

Hunt thereupon informed Charles Colson's secretary, Joan Hall, that
Hunt's safe contained sensitive materials.

Mr. DoAR. Members of the committee, this is a reference to How-
ard Hunt and his conversation with Charles Colson's secretary, and it

is impossible for us to determine as yet whether this occurred before
the phone call between Mr. Colson and the President or whether it

happened after the phone call. We have placed it after the phone call

with the President, but as I say, on the basis of our present informa-
tion we can't establish that.

There are, as Mr. Jenner says, instances where various witnesses
place instances at different times during the day, and to the extent
we are able to reconcile those differences we do. Where there is a dif-
ference, we try to bring it to the committee's attention.
The matter I wish to call to the committee's attention here, because

as we go on in these next few paragraphs, there are a number of
items of information about the fact that the safe was drilled open by
specialists and it is pertinent, I think, for the committee to look at
page 3689, which is 13.1. This is Howard Hunt's testimony. And also
look at the conversation at the bottom of the page, which begins maybe
10 lines up. Mr. D.ash says

:

Now, did you inform anyone on that day of the contents of your safe?
Answer. "I did."
Question. "Who was that?"
Answer. "Mr. Colson's secretary."
Question. "What is her name?"
Answer, "Her name was Mrs. Joan Hall."
Question. "Did you characterize or say anything about the contents?"
Answer. "Yes, sir, I did."

Question. "What did you say?"
Answer. "Before I left the White House for the last time I stopped by

Colson's office, not to see him, but simply to inform Mrs. Hall, whom I knew
held the combination to my safe, that it contained sensitive material. I simply
said to her : 'I just want you to know that that safe is loaded.'

"

j\Ir. Chairman, this next paragraph is a long one.

The Chairman. Yes. We will recess for 10 minutes.
[Short recess taken.]

The Chairman. Mr. Doar ?

Mr. DoAR. Mr. Chairman, during the recess my attention was called

to the fact that the record, someone reading the record might con-

clude that I was suggesting, or that the inference could be drawn,
that President Nixon directed Mr. Colson to have Mr. Hunt's safe

cleaned out, because of my reference to the fact we didn't know
whether or not the phone call came before or after the time that Hunt
reviewed the contents of his safe. I certainly meant to suggest no
such inference, and we have no evidence whatsoever that would sup-

port that. And I say to you unequivocally in the state of the record

there isn't anything that supports that. And I did not mean to sug-

gest by just making the explanatory remark about the phone calls,

to in any way suggest that.
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Congressman McClory also asked a question about the log. That
is at 12.1. And what the symbols meant on the log. And just to go
back to 12.1, at the top of the page there is this stamp quote "WH,"
and at the bottom "WH." Those are our stamps that our research
staff placed on all materials that were furnished us by the White
House. This material came to us in response to our letter of February
25 for the material which the Wliite House had furnished to Mr.
Jaworski. The date, March 9, is the date that we received the material
from the White House. As I say, this material had theretofore been
submitted by Mr. Buzhardt to Mr. Cox following requests by Mr.
Cox to Mr. Buzhardt in the early part of June 1973.

Now, we will go to paragraph 14.

Mr. Davis. Tab 14, during the afternoon of June 19, 1972, John
Ehrlichman, Charles Colson, John Dean, Bruce A. Kehrli, staff

assistant to H. R. Haldeman, and Ken Clawson, White House Deputy
Director of Communications, met in Mr. Ehrlichman's office and dis-

cussed Howard Hunt's Wliite House employment status. Colson stated
that Hunt should have been terminated as a "Wliite House consultant
as of March 31, 1972. Kehrli was asked to and did bring Hunt's
employment record to Ehrlichman's office. These records did not
indicate that Hunt's consultant status had been terminated. By memo-
randum dated June 19, 1972, Colson, transmitted to Dean documents
relating to Hunt's status.

By memorandum dated IMarch 27, 1972, to Charles Colson had re-

quested assistance in changing the annuity benefit option he had
selected upon retirement from the CIA.
By memorandum, dated March 30, 1972, to Kehrli, Richard

Howard, staff assistant to Charles Colson, had inquired respecting
Hunt's situation. At the top of the original of the Howard memo-
randum, there is a handwritten note

:

Noble—please let me know of this w/o giving out any info on the name of
the fellow we are trying to help. B.

At the bottom of that memorandum there is a handwritten note:

Okay—drop as of April 1, 1972 NAK.

On May 5, 1972, Hunt had written a letter on White House sta-

tionery to CIA General Counsel, Lawrence Houston, renewing his
request respecting his benefit option and station that he had discussed
the matter with Wliite House legal staff.

Mr. DoAR. Bruce Kehrli ran the Staff Secretariat Office in the White
House, or the Staff Secretariat Office that Mr. Haldeman had installed
at the direction of President Nixon. That meant that all papers, all

records, reading material which went to President Nixon each day
went through Bruce Kehrli. He was one of Mr. Haldeman's special
assistants along with Higby and Strachan.
This paragraph is complicated in that the information is—there

are some things that are unresolved and it may be that the committee
will feel that they want to have Mr, Kehrli "testify as a witness as
to when he wrote on the bottom of the memorandum that is referred
to in the statment of information

:

OK—drop as of April 1, 1972,

Mr. Jenner. John, before you go into that
Mr. DoAR. Yes.
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Mr. Jenner. Ladies and orentlemen of the committee, there was
an understandable concern in the White House as to whether Mr.
Hunt was a White House employee in the first day or two following

the break-in. And there was an immediate resort and inquiry into

what was his status, in fact, having in mind that his check had been

discovered in the DNC Headquarters the night of the break-in by
the Metropolitan Police, and because of that clelicateness with regard

to that, there was an understandable inquiry into the area.

And we have elected to present to you all that we can find with
respect to that particular matter. There was also concern understand-

ably that Mr. Hunt had then, we think, reasonably described as having
an office in the White House and, of course, the safe to which your
attention has already been called, and the materials presented to you
under the tabs now to be explained by Mr. Doar, are all directed to

that. Whatever the information is. pro and con, is presented for

your ultimate resolution on credibility and other considerations in

reaching your ultimate judgment.
Mr. i)oAR. Tab 14.1 is John Ehrlichman's log for Monday, June 19,

and it reflects the fact that he had a meeting at 12 o'clock that day
with John Dean, and then the 4 o'clock meeting with Colson, Dean,
Kehrli, and Clawson. Clawson is one of the public information officers

at the White House.
Tab 14.2 is John Dean's testimony, and as you see at the bottom

of page 934, that Mr. Dean's assistant. Fielding, had checked into

it and Hunt had not drawn a check from his White House consultant-

ship since late March, but Dean said as far as he knew, Hunt was still

a White House consultant and he was a consultant to Colson. And
Dean also testifies that Colson said that it was imperative that some-
one get the contents of Hunt's safe.

And 14.3—at any rate, the information—before going into 14.3,

I turn you back to page 935 of 14.2, where Dean explains that they
called Bruce Kehrli, who as I say is the staff secretariat, to bring
up the records to see whether Hunt was still employed by the White
House. And according to Dean, when Kehrli arrived, Ehrlichman
and Colson quizzed him and Colson was arguing that Hunt should
have been removed from the White House as of March 31, and accord-

ing to Dean, Kehrli's records did not so indicate.

After the meeting, Colson submitted to Dean three memorandums.
These are found on 14.4, and you will see the first one is a letter memo
from Colson to Dean with respect to Hunt. And he said

Mr. Butler. Do you mean 14.5 ?

Mr. DoAR. Tab 14.3. Excuse me, 14.3.

Mr. Jenner. The series of typed memorandums there.

Mr. DoAR. At any rate, Colson apparently, or this is sent to Dean
after the meeting, a memorandum saying that "the attached is his

chron file." It clearly says that Hunt's: "Services here terminated on
March 31, 1972," and he also attached a report of the conversations
which his secretary, Joan Hall, had 6 or 8 weeks ago. The attachment
where he attached was a memorandum to Bruce Kehrli which is dated
March 30, 1972. You will note that at the bottom there arc words "a
true copy" typed there.

We got this material from the Senate select committee, and it would
appear that, or we think that this is their copy, and it wasn't a copy
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produced by Colson. But Richard Howard, who is Colson's assistant,

writes to Kehrli on the 30th, and he said

:

We would like to accommodate Hunt on the attached and would like to do it

rig'ht away, and then totally drop him as a consultant, so that 1701 can pick
him up and use him. Howard has been very effective for us but his most logical

place now is consulting 1701, the attached to be a major program, and we would
like to do everything we can to accomplish this and help him in this way. Please
let me know.

The second memo Mr. Colson attached as a memo from Joan Hall,

his secretary, where she reported that 6 or 8 weeks before she asked
him why—Howard Hunt—why he had not turned in his timesheets,

and he said "Well, they have been taken care of elsewhere."' Previously,

she indicated that she had had to initial his timesheets.

And 14.5 the attachment to this memo from Bruce Kclirli, was
not attached to the material that was sent to John Dean. But 14.0,

which follows Mr. Ehrlichman's and Mr. Colson's description in the

meeting, and his description of the termination, his characterization

on 14.5 of the termination memo of ]March 30, 14.6 is a memo from
PToward Hunt to Charles Colson on March 27 in which he asks about
having a change in his annuity so that he could provide for post-

mortem benefits for his survivors.

Hunt was unaware that the choice was irrevocable aft«r he left

the CIA. And he is asking Mr. Colson whether the White House could
give him assistance in restoring the opportunity to provide for his

family beyond the limits of private insurance. And this memorandum
was in among the papers that we secured, and I believe we got this

from the Senate select committee.
And 14.7 just indicates Mr. Colson's staff and indicates that Mr.

Howard was his special assistant to the President, staff assistant to
Mr. Colson.

Tab 14.8 is the copy of the memorandum which we asked the Water-
gate Special Prosecutor's Office to furnish us. This is the copy of that
memorandum. And you will notice the second page of 14.8 there is

Mr. Buzhardt's letter of transmittal in Avhich he indicates that this

document was a Presidential paper. This response from Mr. Buzhardt
came after a request by Mr. Cox on August 27,

Mr. DoAR. Tab 14.9 is the original memo that went from Mr. How-
ard to Mr. Kehrli. This is a memo dated, as I say, March 30. It has
some underlining on it. The underlining I wish to call your atten-

tion to. If you look at the density of the marks on the page there, the
circled line seems to be of different intensity or degree of marking
than the underlined part. As you see, "Howard Hunt" is underlined
in the first paragraph. "Totally drop him as a consultant so that" on
the third line, and "1701 can pick him up and use him."
In the second paragraph, "very effective for us" and "most logical

place now is consulting 1701."

At the top, "B" for Bruce writes: "Noble, please let me know on
this without giving out on the name of the fellow we are trying to
help."

Then on the bottom, you see the words "OK—drop as of April 1,

1972," Bruce Kehrli. Then a line going back up to a circle of the
words "Totally drop him as a consultant so that 1701 can pick him
up and use him." This suggests that the ink markings were made at

different times.
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If you ^o over on the ri^ht hand side of the page above the "so

that" on the third line and start with the beginning of that line and
follow them on, you will see that it comes over to "totally" and then

drops down and comes back so that it picks up with "so that". It

was made differently from the line immediately above "1701 can pick

him up and use him."
May 5.

Mr. Jenner said I should give you an indication of what this means.

I think it suggests an inquiry as to whether the "OK, drop as of

April 1, 1972" was written by Bruce Kehrli at the same time ihe note

at the top of the page was written and the only way to decide that

is to interview Bruce Kehrli or get his testimony, which was not

secured.

The next page, 14.10, is a letter that Mr. Hunt wrote in which he
writes about his annuity benefit and says that he has been in touch

with the legal staff to see whether or not the Director of the CIA
could recall him to duty and then permit him to revert to retired

status.

This document was furnished to us along with a number of other

documents from the CIA. You will note that the date of the docu-

ment is May 5, 1972, and Howard Hunt purports to identify him-
self as a consultant to the President.

I do not want to suggest that that is establishing anything except

what Howard Himt might suggest, for I think that Howard Himt
would be capable of suggesting that without any authority whatso-
ever.

Mr. Jenner. I share that view of Mr. Doar and as I said at the

outset, there was a natural concern, understandably so, with respect

to Mr. Hunt and any comiection of liis with the "Wliite House on the

occasion of the break-in. There is presented to you then all that we
hav6, the elements bearing upon ultimate resolution on your part. That
is why we went into the efforts of Mr. Himt to obtain these heightened
pension benefits during this period of time and preceding the March 31

date.

Mr. Smith. Mr. Doar, on that Howard Hunt letter near his signa-

ture, 100380, is that one of your staff numbers ?

Mr. Doar. Yes, it is. Tab 15. ^

Mr. Davis. Tab 15. At the meeting specified in the preceding para-
graph, John Ehrlichman instructed that Howard Hunt's EOB safe

should be opened in the presence of John Dean, Bruce Kehrli, and
a Secret Service agent, and that Dean should take possession of the
contents. Charles Colson said that this should be done immediately.
On the evening of June 19, 1972, at Kehrli's request. Hunt's safe was
forceably opened in the presence of a Secret Service agent and a
GSA representative. Kehrli and Fred Fielding, Dean's assistant, ar-

rived shortly thereafter.

Mr. Doar. The material behind this tab is all straight-forward testi-

mony. There is not any conflict about the fact that these men did
go to Howard Hunt's' of&ce and I think one of them removed the safe
from the office and put it in the small office in the Executive Office

Building. Secret Service men then were called and a GSA representa-
tive, and they drilled the safe open. Then Kehrli and Fred Fielding,
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Dean's assistant, arrived shortly thereafter to take possession of that
which was in the safe.

Mr. Jenner. Excuse me, John.
You will notice when you read some of the testimony, an effort, per-

haps purely accidental—I hope that way—of describing the place
where the safe was located as an office ; then the response each time that
it was not an office at all, it was a storeroom. I call your attention to

that in order that you will be alert to the fact that it was not truly a

Hunt office, it was the safe taken from his office and placed in what
is sometimes described and referred to as a storeroom and likely, that
is a better description than the use of the word "office."

Mr. DoAR. That storeroom was wliere the safe was opened. It was
not where the safe was prior to the time that it was decided it would
be opened.
Mr. Jenner. That is correct, John.
Mr. DoAR. Tab 16.

Mr. DA^^s. Immediately before the meeting specified in paragraph
14, John Dean asked Gordon Liddy to advise Howard Hunt that he
should leave the country. Liddy contacted Hunt and told him that
"tliey"' wanted Hunt to get out of town. Dean states that he took this

action on instructions from Ehrlichman, and that Dean retracted his

instruction shortly after he gave it. Ehrlichman has denied that he
gave such instructions.

Mr. DoAR. Generally, in presenting this information to the commit-
tee, we tried to present information that we think is not contradicted or
strongly corroborated. In instances where there is a conflict between
the testimony of two witnesses, we either will include it and explain
that to the committee, or not include it at this time. In this instance,

there is a straight conflict between John Dean and Jolm Ehrlichman as

to who told Howard Hunt to leave the country. There is no conflict

about the fact that Liddy did contact Hunt and told him that "they"
wanted Hunt to get out of town and that this instruction was later

withdrawn.
Tab 16.8, the deposition of Eobert Bennett, corroborates this. John

Ehrlichman called the SSCs attention to transcripts of two tape re-

corded conversations that he had with Ken Clawson and Charles Col-
son. The one with Ken Clawson in March or April of 1973, and with
Colson on April IT, 1973.

The information that will come to you later in the presentation, that
the President had asked .Mr. Ehrlichman in the latter days of INIarch

1973 to make an investigation, and these two conversations were pre-

sented to the committee when Mr. Ehi'lichman testified.

Tab 16. These are not Presidential conversations, these are conversa-
tions with, between Mr. Ehrlichman and other members of the "White

House staff.

Tab 16.5 is the conversation with Mr. Clawson. He is asking Claw-
son if he remembers what took place at this meeting. Clawson gives

his answers. Tab. 16.6 is the interview with Mr. Colson.

Mr. Jenner. Refer to page number 3010.

Mr. DoAR. I think the committee is entitled to know that both INIr.

Clawson and Mr. Colson seemed to be willing witnesses, what we
might call willing witnesses, in that if you look at 16.5 at the middle

41-018—75—pt. 1 39
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of the page, Mr. Clawson says to Mr. Elirlichman, right almost in the
middle of the page, after Ehrlichman says "I agree", Mr. Clawson
says "If you want me to be forthright and straightforw^ard with you,
I will recollect anything you want me to."

Mr. Colson. in 16.7 indicates, below the bracket on 3010, his feeling
about John Dean, where he says "Let's get it clearly understood that
son-of-a-bitch does not get immunity. I want to nail him." That is

about the fifth line from the boottom of 3010.
Mr. Jexner. It is the last sheet under tab 16.6.

Mr. DoAR. Just to go over it again, these are tape-recorded converea-
tions that Mr. Ehrlichman conducted in March and April of 1973,
about this meeting that took place on the 19th of June 1972.
Mr. Jets'nek. We warit to draw to your attention that these tape re-

cordings were not Presidential system tape recordings, but provided
by Mr. Ehrlichman.

' Mr. DoAR. Tab 17.

Mr. Davis. Tab 17, on the evening of June 19, 1972, John Mitchell
met at his apartment in Washington, D.C., with John Dean, pjeb Ma-
gruder, Robert IMardian, and Fred LaRue and discussed the break-in
at the DNC headquarters.
Mr. DoAR. Here there is no conflict about the fact that these men

met and discussed the break-in. There is a conflict about whether or
not there was any talk about destruction of documents. Magruder
testifies there was discussion about destruction of documents. Alitcliell

denies that there was any talk about destruction of documents. LaRue
says that he has a very hazy recollection of the meeting. He said,

"In fact, were it not for a thing that sticks in my mind"—this is at

17.4, page 2304, he says, "Were it not for a thing that sticks in my
mind"—in the middle of the page, just above the bracket, 17.4, page
2304. Mr. LaRue says, "]Mr. Thompson, I have a very hazy recollection

of that meeting. In fact, were it not for tlie thing that sticks in my
mind, the statement about 'j-ou might have a good fire,' if it were not
for that, I do not think I could recall any details of that meeting at

all."

Mr. Davis calls my attention to the fact that Magruder in his testi-

mony says that it was concluded that the files should be immediately
destroyed. As I say, Mr. Mitchell has denied that.

Mr. Jenner. Excuse me, John. The materials under tab 16, if I may
draw your attention and urge something upon you, need to be care-

fully read because of that direct conflict on a matter that is fairly

serious, in directing a witness or a putative defendant to leave the

country or to go to California, which he actually did. What Mr. Doar
and I are doing is drawing your attention to these, and we do not want
to highlight any particular thing other than to draw your attention,

but they need fairly careful study. That is true also of tab 17.

Mr. Davis. Tab 18, on June 19, 1972, Ronald Ziegler, the President's

press secretary, described the break-in at the DNC headquarters as

"a third-rate burglary attempt."

Mr. DoAR. In addition to that, apparently in the same conference,

Mr. Ziegler indicated that certain elements may stretch this beyond
what it is. We were not able to secure the official documents with
respect to this statement by Mr. Zeigler. This is the best information
that we have available. Tab 19.
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Mr. Davts. Tab 19, on June 20, 1972, at 9 a.m., H. R. Plaldeman,
John Ehrlicliman, and John Mitchell met to discuss the break-in at

the DNC headquarters. John Dean joined the meeting at 9:45 a.m.;

Attorney General Kleindienst joined the meeting at 9:55 a.m. Later
tliat day. Plaldeman met vrith the President for 1 hour and 19 min-
utes—li:26 a.m. to 12:45 p.m.—and the subjects discussed included
"Watergate. Haldeman's notes of the meeting reflect that that portion

of their discussion dealt which checking an EOB office for bugs, a
"counterattack,'' "PR offensive to top this," and the need to ''be on
the attack—for diversion."

When a tape recording of the coiiversation was produced on Xo-
veml^er 26, 1973, in response to a subpena by the Watergate Special
Prosecutor, the recording contained an ISi^-minute buzzing sound
that obliterated the portion of the conversation reflected in the fore-

going segment of Haldeman's notes.

Mr. DoAR. With respect to the information with respect to the ISiA-

miiiute buzzing sound, we do not intend to plaj^ that tape and that

buzzing sound today, nor are we prepared to give to the committee all

of the information that it might wish to have with respect to the hear-

ings that took place before Judge Sirica.

I undei-stand that Judge Sirica filed with or there was filed in

Judge Sirica's court yesterday a final report by the tape experts with
respect to this particular ISi^-minute buzzing sound and we are
making efforts to secure that material, that report, and at a later

date will present that to the committee for its consideration. I feel

certain that we will be able to secure that material for Judge Sirica.

Perhaps we could take a minute now for Mr. Jenner to outline the

procedure that we have follov>ed with respect to getting materials

from the court that was under seal with respect to matters that were
pertinent to our inquiry.

Mr. Jenner. What we have done the last 2 weeks, we address first,

or the chairman addresses a letter to each judge on the U.S. District

Court here and also to the chief judge of the Court of Appeals of this

circuit, a letter from him calling attention to our understanding of

matters, materials, under seal, in other words impounded by the court

and respectfully requesting access by members of the staff who have
top security clearance to examine those materials.

Mr. Rodino, the chairman, has been careful, and we with him, that

the committee is not placed in a position of submitting to the jurisdic-

tion of any of the judges or the court. This, then, has been followed

out by a visit by me and one of the members of the staff, Mr. Woods,
or Mr. Gill, who was introduced to you this morning, and a chamber's

conference with the particular judge—all eight of them, as a matter

of fact—naturally with the judge's secretary and law clerk present,

in which we expand upon the chairman's letter to the judge.

The judge then indicates to us his initial reaction. Xormally, the

judge desires that we either contact counsel in the case, including the

Special Prosecutor, the Department of Justice where that is called for,

or that he thinks it is better that his law clerk undertake to contact

counsel. In some instances, it has been felt that an in camera hearing,

either in the courtroom or a chamber's conference, be held with counsel

for the various parties present.
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An explanation is made by me of the need for examination of the
materials, and in some instances, there has been an argumentive hear-
ing in \\'hich I have presented the views and attitude of this committee
as to its need for examination of those materials.

I am pleased to say to you that all the hearings, all the chambers'
conferences, and all the other meetings we have had have resulted in
our obtaining access to various materials that are of importance to
you, and some are being presented to you during the course of this
presentation.

Initially we had the limitation which still obtains to some extent,
understandably, that the Special Prosecutor, Mr. Jaworski, advised
the court's judges by letter that while he had no objection from the
standpoint of the propriety of our looking at the materials, he did
have some reservation to our looking at those materials; not that he
o]3Jected, but he wished to know that which we were requesting. That
j)laced us in the second stage, wliich we have pursued without any
great difficulty, of specifying the documents we desire to have and his
indicating that he had no objection.

As to the Department of Justice in connection with logs and with
authorizations for taps, 17 wiretaps, we have consulted, I have con-
sulted at some length with Mr. Wilderotter, Assistant Attorney Gen-
eral in the Department of Justice, with regard to those matters. I

Avould say they have been reasonably cooperative. Perhaps I should
strike the word "reasonably." They have been cooperative. At the

moment, w^e are having just a slight problem with respect to one
authorization and logs with respect to a bug rather than a tap. But on
the whole, the matters have proceeded this way and from our stand-

point, satisfactoiily, and I wish to assure you that we think satisfac-

torily also from your viewpoint.

]\Ir. DoAR. June 20 has a lot of pertinent material on that day and I

would like just to go through the logs and the various things.

The first log is Mr. Haldeman's calendar for that day. He indicates

that he first met with John Elirlichman. Then he met with the Presi-

dent in the executive office building office between 11:15 and 12:45

ap])roximately.

John Ehrlichman's log on the 20th, 19.2, shows that he met with Mr.
Haldeinan at 8 o'clock. Then he went into the Roosevelt room. From
8 :15 to 9 o'clock, he met with Mr. IVIitchell and Mr. Haldeman. He
was joined by John Dean at 8:45 and at 9:55, he was joined by Mr.
Kleindienst.

Mr. Mitchell's log at 19.3 shows that he went to the White House
at 8:15, he returned at 10:30. Immediately after he returned, you will

see a 10 :32 on 19.3. He had about a 45-minute conversation with Jeb
]Magruder, Fred LaRue, and Bob Mardian. Then you see the rest of

his meetings during the day.

At 6 o'clock—this is on page 2—he again saw Fred LaRue and
Bob Mardian and then at (5:08, he had a conversation with President

Nixon. That conversation is reported to you in item A25 of the infor-

mation and it is the first recorded—it is not a recorded conversation,

but we have a dictabelt of President Nixon's recollection of that con-

versation, which Pi-esident Nixon made at the

Mr. Smith. Where are you now ?
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Mr. DoAR. I am just reporting. I do not have the dictabelt. I am
referring to the second page of Mr. Mitchell's log.

Mr. HoGAN. There is no indication of meeting the President.

Mr. DoAR. That is right. I will bring that out in the next log. You
will pick up in the next log. We will come to that.

Then if you go to 19.6; wliich is the President's log for that day,

tliis is President Nixon's daily diary. The exhibit number at the top

that is faintly stamped as exhibit number I believe, Xo. 130, wliich was
produced and offered in evidence at the tape hearing involving the

181^-minute buzzing sound. It is my information that this type of log

was regularly prepared by the White House staff of jSIr. Nixon, Presi-

dent Nixon's day from beginning to end. This is not a contemporane-
ous recorded document, but it is a summary of information that comes
from various people such as Mr. Butterfield, Mr. Bull, Secret Service

people that were over in the residence, the secretary of the office in tlie

Executive Office Building where the President worked, and other peo-

ple that kept track of the President's movements during the dnj. At
the end of each day, these forms were sent over to a central office,

where they were reproduced or collected, put together, and assembled
into one document. This is an example of 1 day of such a document.
You will sec that from 9 :01 to 9 :04, the President met with Alexan-

der Butterfield. Then at 10 :20. he goes over to his office in the execu-

tive office building. Then at 11 :26 to 12:45, he talks to Mr. Haldeman.
Then if you turn to the next page, 3'ou see that 6 :08 to 6 :11, the

President talked with John ISIitchell, Campaign Director for the Com-
mittee for the Reelection of the President.

That is what I was referring to when I said if you go back to ]Mr.

Mitchell's log, you can see what his day was like at around that same
time.

Mr. Jexxer. Or at least know what he knew at 6 :08 that evening.

Mr. DoAR. In the afternoon of that day, from 2:20 to 3:30, the

President met with Mr. Colson, and I think from 4—I cannot make
out the time, but it is sometime after 4 :14—to 5 :25, he met with Mr.
Haldeman. Then in the evening, from 7:52 to 7:59, the President

talked with Mr. Haldeman; from 8:04 to 8:21, the President talked

with Mr. Colson. From 8:42 to 8:50, the President talked with Mr.
Haldeman : from 11 :33 to 12 :05, the President talked with Mr, Colson.

Those are conversations which we wrote to Mr. St. Clair about and
requested that he furnish us the tape recordings of those convei^sations

if they were i-ecorded. These conversations on June 20 were am.ong

the conversations that INIr. St. Clair advised me that President Nixon
had declined to furnish to the committee. We will request the commit-
tee to consider tomorrow the issuance of a subpena for that material.

Mr. St. Clair has delivered to me a memorandum which he has
asked me to file before that meeting with members of the committee

stating why he, as the attorney for the President, believes the sub-

pena should not be issued. I mention that just so that it is clear what
the status of that is right now.
The Chairman. Mr, Doar, I would suggest that the members of

the committee have, together with your justification or your

recommendation for the subpena, the argument that Mr, St. Clair

has made.
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Mr. DoAR. Yes, I thought I would distribute that at the end of the
•da}', al] the material together, as soon as we get our

The Chairman. That will be fine.

Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, we have
fomid on the whole that the Presidential logs are reasonably precise
as to time specification. However, in requesting Mr. St. Clair for taped
conversations, if any, we relied as to the time period on the Presi-
dential logs. We have had no opportunity, of course, to know whether,
for example, the first bracJ^eted item on the first page under tab 19.6,
whether that conversation in fact began precisely at 11:26 and
precisely ended at 12 :45.

Mr. DoAR. Tab 19.7 is Mr. Haldeman's log. That indicates also that
when the President met with Mr. Haldeman that day, when he talked
to him on the phone that day.
Tab 19.8 is the notes which Mr. Haldeman produced of his meeting

with the President. They have been copied because they are illegible

and the pertinent part is on page 2.

This is 19.8 and if you look at the second document there. If you turn
over the court file cover page, then you turn over the second page, re-

ferred to as exhibit 61, you will see a typed page. Then you go to two
handwritten pages. These are ]Mr. Haldeman's notes of the meeting
witli the President between 11 :25 and 12 :45. The testimony is tliat 18
minutes of that were devoted to the Waterga.te break-in.

If you go back then to the typewritten notes, you will see Mr.
Haldeman's notes, which are in brackets, which begin "Be sure EOB
office is thoroughly checked re bugs at all tim.es—etc."

Then a paragraph, "What is our counter-attack. PR offensive to

top this.

"Hit the opposition with their activities.

"Point out libertarians have created public" then there is an unread-
able, "do they justify this less than stealing Pentagon Papers,
Anderson file, and so forth ?

"We should be on the attack for diversion."

Then 18 is the testimony with respect to this gap in the tape, and
19.10 is a report from the advisory panel about tJie 18^/^ minute
buzzing sound. I think this material—as I say, this is not the final

rei>ort, but it is a preliminary report that was furnished to the court,

and which we include it here preliminarily in connection Avith the
material that we had today.
Tab 19.11 is a statement produced by Fred Buzhardt, counsel to the

President; on which he notes on the second page that

:

A file search has disclosed handwritten notes of H. E. Haldeman, which from
the identifying markings and the content indicate the notes were made by H. R.
Haldeman during the meeting with the President on June 20, 1972, between 11 :26

a.m. and 12 :-15 p.m.

Tlie Chairman. IMr. Hoar, I think this is a good point to recess. We
will resume at 2 :30 this afternoon.

I think it would be well to leave the books here. The room is going

to be secured.

[Whereupon, at 12:15 p.m., the committee recessed to reconvene at

2 :30 p.m., this same day.]
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AFTERNOON SESSION

The Chairman. The committee will come to order. Mr. Doar will

resume.
Mr. Doar. Did you want to mention this inquiry by the
The Chairman. Yes; I would just like to call the committee's

attention to an inquiry that has been made by the press regarding cer-

tain press reports that the committee is conducting an investigation
of the inquest into the death of Mary Jo Kopechne. I know that mem-
bers will be questioned by the press and I have asked the staff

regarding this to report to me. This is the statement that I intend to

make to the press : That in late IMarch of this year, the legal research

section of the impeacluiient inquiry staff was studying procedures
possibly applicable to the forthcoming committee hearings and par-
ticularly the question of participation in those hearings by the Presi-

dent's counsel. Several possible analogous procedures were studied.

Among these were grand jury proceedings, various administrative

agency liearings, and coroners' inquests. Preliminary legal research

revealed that the opinion of the Suj^reme Judicial Court of Massa-
chusetts in the Kopechne inquest matter was perhaps the leading
appellate case on the question of the right to counsel at inquest pro-
ceedings. It was for this reason that in late March, an attorney on the
staff, through regular channels for supplying the public with copies

of legal papers, secured copies of the legal brie.fs and arguments on
appeal in the case.

Shoi'tly thereafter, the attorney concluded tliat the procedural

analogy to inquest procedures was not useful in formulating proce-

dures for the impeachment inquiry and no use was made of the legal

documents that had been requested.

I would hope that the committee members, if questioned regarding
this, would understand that this was an investigation that was just

normal and was merely with regard in trying to ascertain what the
procedures are and were, and this case of the Supreme Judicial Court
of Massachusetts, was one of the leading appellate cases. Therefore, I
am going to state the there is certainly no foundation to any of the

suggestions that the committee is conducting an investigation of the

inquest into the death of Mary Jo Kopechne. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. Mr. Jenner wishes to call attention to one paragraph.
Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, would

you turn to tab 14.8 ? That is the memorandum for Mr. Kehrli to which
Mr. Doar drew your attention. We will reproduce this for insertion

into your books tomorrow.
There was testimony of Mr. Magruder before the Senate commit-

tee—I am sorry, it is 14.8—in which the following occurred. There are

other pertinent points on the page, but I will call your attention only

to this particular portion.

Mr. Dash. By the way, did you know at that time that Mr. Hunt was working
for Mr. Liddy?

Mr. Magkudeb. At that time, I think by that time, I had been encourajred by
certain staff

Tab 14.9 is the memorandum of Pdchard Howard to Mr. Kehrli.

Mr. Conyers. "VVliat are you reading from ?
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Mr. Jenner. When I am reading the quote, I am reading a quote
from the Senate hearings which has not yet been supplied to you, which
you will receive tomorrow. I am doing that this afternoon in order to
call your attention to further testimony before the Senate select com-
rnittee that is pertinent and should be considered by you into the ques-
tion of when Mr. Hunt was no longer employed by the White House
and the circumstances under which his White House connection was
terminated. In that regard, I am now reading from page 792 of book II
of phase I of the Senate committee hearings, which will be reproduced
for you tomorrow. AH I am reading it for is to alert you to the fact
that this is pertinent.

Mr. Dash—
This is Mr. Magruder testifying.

Mr. Dash. By the way, did you know at tliat time that Mr. Hunt was working
withMr. Liddy?

Mr. Magruder. At that time, I think by that time, I had been encouraged liy

certain staff members at the White House to be sure that Mr. Hunt was not
employed by us directly but employed by Mr. Liddy. So I think I was aware of it
at that time that he was.

Thank you. John.
Mr. DoAR. Tab No. 20.

Mr. Davis. Tab 20, on June 20, 1972, Gordon Strachan met with
H. E. Haldeman and showed him a copy of a political matters memo-
randum Strachan had sent to Haldeman prior to April 4, 1972, con-
cerning approval of a "sophisticated intelligence system with a budget
of $3,000." Haldeman aclmowledged to Strachan that he had read the
political intelligence item in the memorandum. Strachan also showed
Haldeman political intelligence reports referring to "Sedan Chair II"
which had been attached to the memorandum. Haldeman said he had
not previously read the attachm.ent, and proceeded to read it. Accord-
ing to Strachan, Haldeman directed him to destroy all of the docu-
ments. Haldeman has testified that he could not recall giving Strachan
any such instruction.

Mr. DoAR. Some of the testimony before the Senate select committee
pertinent to this particular statement of information is already repro-
duced for you in book I, and the summary in essence describes
Strachan's testimony of talking to Mr. Haldeman, showing him these
particular documents, and at the end of Mr. Haldeman's examination
of the documents, saying to him, "Make sure that our files are clean."

That is on page 2458 of 20.1, close to the bottom of the page.
Mr. Strachan also testified that he was on Air Force One with Mr.

Haldeman, and he reported that to him on July 1, on a trip, when they
were going, I think out to the West Coast. Mr. Haldeman did not
recall receiving a report from Mr. Strachan.
That completes, members of the committee, volume I of book II.

You have volume II before you. We will turn to tab 21.

Mr. Jenner. On page 2458 to which ]\Ir. Doar drew your attention,

you will notice a paragraph that Mr. Dash asked the question, "Were
you fired, or did he berate you ?"

Then in the answer, six lines down, the last word appears as the word
"check." That should, keep in mind that means checkmark, not a per-

sonal check.
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The political matters memorandum is memorandum No. 18, as indi-

cated near the bottom of that page, the one that was destroyed.
Mr. DoAR. Tab 21.

Mr. Davis. Tab 21, following his meeting with H. K. Haldeman,
Gordon Strachan shredded the political matters memorandum regard-
ing a sophisticated intelligence-gathering system that he had shown
Haldeman. Strachan also shredded other related documents, including
a memorandum regarding Gordon Liddy, an April 4, 1972, talking
paper prepared by Strachan for a meeting between Haldeman and
John Mitchell, a memorandum from Jeb Magruder to Mitchell regard-
ing Donald Segretti, and Segretti's telephone number.

After Strachan destroyed these documents, he told John Dean what
documents he had destroyed. On July 1, 1972, Strachan, Haldeman,
and Laurence Higby were part of a Presidential party aboard Air
Force One. Strachan had testified that during the flight, he reported to

Haldeman that the job had been accomplished, and Haldeman told him
to reduce the number of copies made of future political matters mem-
orandums from three to two. Haldeman has testified that he does not
recall receiving such a report.

Mr. DoAR. Mr. Strachan was asked in his testimony to whom did the
two copies of the political matters memorandum go, and he said one
was for Mr. Haldeman, and the other one was "for my file." So there
was no distribution of that political matters memorandum except to

Mr. Haldeman. The paragraphs behind 21 outline in descriptive de-

tail the documents that Mr. Strachan testified he destroyed, and also

the fact that Mr. Strachan reported this to INIr. Doan. Tab. 22.

]Mr. Davis. Tab 22, on June 20 or 21, 1972, Robert Mardian and Fred
LaRue met in LaRue's apartment with Gordon Liddy. Liddy told

LaRue and Mardian that he and Howard Hunt had developed the

plans for entries into the DNC and the McGovern presidential cam-
paign offices; that he, Hunt, and others involved in the Watergate
break-in had been previously involved in operations of the White
House, specifically an entry into the offices of Daniel Ellsberg's psy-
chiatrist; that Hunt had acted to make ITT lobbyist Dita Beard un-
available as a witness at the Senate Judiciary Committee hearings on
the nomination of Richard Kleindienst to be Attornej^ General ; and
that he had shredded all new, serialized $100 bills in his possession and
other evidence relating to the Watergate break-in. Later that day, Mar-
dian and LaRue met with John Mitchell and apprised him of their

meeting with Liddy. Mitchell was told of Liddy's and Hunt's prior
surreptitious entry into the office of Daniel Ellsberg's psychiatrist and
of Hunt's earlier activities involving Dita Beard.

]Mr. DoAR. The testimony of Fred LaRue at 22.1 describes in detail

the conversation that he had with Mr. Liddy at his apartment. It

was there that Mr. Liddy described how he had organized the break-in
to the Democratic National Committee, and at the top of page 2288

—

this is ^Ir. Liddy's testimony—according to Mr. LaRue, Mr. Liddy
mentioned that he had on other occasions been involved in incidents or
operations for the White House. He specifically mentioned the at-

tempted burglary of the office of the psychiatrist of Mr. EUsberg.
Later on on this page, Mr. Liddy indicated that he was prepared to

be assassinated if that was the wish of the people in the room, with
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respect to being sure that he did not give out any information about
this operation. That is in the middle of the page.

On 2309, Mr. LaEue testified that Mr. Liddy had told him that he
had gone in and shredded a number of documents from the files of the
Committee To Re-Elect the President, and he described Mr. Mardian's
reaction as being shocked. That is on page 2309.

Mr. Mardian's testimony is—there is only one thing I want to call

to your attention about that. That is that Mr. Liddy said that he pulled
ofl'—I believe Mr. Mardian testifies at page 2359, at the middle of the
page—that is 2359, in 22.2. The paragraph starts : "He discounted this

possibility." Then at the end of the paragraph, it says

:

He discounted this completely by saying that this group had been operating
together for some considerable period of time, that they were all real pros, that
they had engaged in numerous jobs. And when I asked him what kind of jobs,

he said, we pulled two right under your nose.

IVIr. Mardian was in the Department of Justice at that time and had
some supervisory responsibility with respect to the Ellsherg case and
also with respect to the matter that was presented before the Senate
with respect to ITT. He explains that what he meant by that was, in the
next sentence, that he meant the break-in of the psychiatrist's office and
the operation that got Dita Beard out of town.
At the second to last paragraph, you see Mr. Liddy claiming that he

was acting on the express authority of the President and with the as-

sistance of the Central Intelligence Agency.
Mitchell's testimony o]i printed page 1643, in 22.3—excuse me, I

made a mistake on that. It was at page 1628, Congressman Butler. I

apologize.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Doar, it would be helpful to me if when you get

ready to give a direct quote, you give us the tab number, then the page
number, then the place on the page.
Mr. DoAR. All right. I am talking about tab 22, No. 22.3, page 1628.

About a third of the way down the page, where there is a direct ques-

tion by Mr. Dash

:

Well, now, Mr. Mitchell, you did become aware, as you have indicated, some-
where around June 21 or 22, when you were briefed or debriefed by Mr. LaRue
and Mr. Mardian about the so-called—as you described it, the White House hor-
rors of the Liddy operation and the break-in. Did you, yourself, as the Presi-

dent's adviser and counselor, tell the President what you knew or what you
learned?

Mr. Mitchell. No, sir, I did not.

]Mr. Jenner. Excuse me, John. Directing your attention back to the

statement of Information, paragraph 22. in the sixth line there occurs

the phrase, "in operations of the White House." Those are largely bor-

rowed from the testimony of the witnesses and not the conclusions of

j^our stafi". That is really the Plumbers and I thought I had better call

that to your attention in the event anyone of you might think that the

staff is seeking to characterize them as a "^Miite House operation in a

broad sense.

Mr. Dennis. I would like to ask a broad question. Did Mitchell talk

to Mr. Liddy on
The Chairman. I am afraid we had better not go into questioning

counsel at this point until we have concluded. I would suggest that
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the members reseiye tlieir questions, note them, and then we will be
able to dii-ect questions to counsel,

Mr. Dennis. Be sure to remind me,
Mr. Davis, Tab 23. Shortly after Hunt's involvement in the Water-

gate matter became known, without apparent reason, a White House
telephone list bejiring- Howard Hunt's name and phone extension was
recalled and the list was reissued, deleting Hunt.
Mr. DoAR. This material came to us in a large group of material

that was furnished to us by the CIA, It is classified secret by tlie CIA,
as you will see at tab 23, No. 23.1. The cover page there indicates
volume 1 and there are a number of volumes which we received.
At the CIA's request, we were asked to eliminate the names of all

employees of the CIA from the documents, although those names are
available to any member of the committer who wishes to see tliem. If
in the judgment of Mr. Jenner and myself, the name of the person is

not highlv pertinent to the inquiry, well, following the general instruc-
tions of tlie chairman and Mr. Hutchinson, we black out those names
before we xerox them.
The CIA's explanation is that sometimes, these clerical workers

and relatively middle grade Civil Service workers in the CIA get
transferi-ed from one post to another and get sent overseas and they
like to keep the names of all of the CIA employees confidential.

This particular employee was an employee who was in the Executive
Office Building. The CIA has a liaison office in the Executive Office

Building and mans that on a regular basis.

The relevant portion is on tab 23.1. It is a statement—in the third
paragraph which begins

:

Shortly after my assignment at the Executive Of35ce Building, a new telephone
list was issued by the White House and it cont^ained Hunt's name. The Watergate
news broke and Hunt was involved. The White House recalled the phone listings

without reason and re-issued them—we noted that Hunt's name had been
deleted.

Tab No. 24-

Mr. Jenner. Excuse me, John. If you will remain a moment with
that short paragraph on 23, you will note in the second line, the phrase
"without apparent reason." That is more an observation of the staff

and perhaps we should not have included that in there. The bare fact

is that the facts are stated apart from that phrase. We do not intend
to suggest anv, that intent in that respect.

Mr. DAvis-^Tab 24. On June 20, 1972, John Mitchell, the campaign
director of CKP, issued a prepared press statement. The statp'^ient

denied any legal, moral, or ethical accountability on the part of CRP
for the break-in at the DNC headquarters.

Mr. DoAR. Y7e were not able to secure the original press release in

the course of our inquiry and tlierefore, reproduced the newspaper
article in the V\"ashington Post. Tab 25.

Mr. Da\^s. Tab 25. On June 20, 1972, at 6 :08 p.m., the President

spoke by tele]5hone with Joh.n Mitchell. The President and Mitchell

discussed the break-in at the DNC headquarters. According to a dicta-

belt recording made by the President on June 20, 1972, recollecting

the events of that day, Mitchell expressed to the President his regret

that he had not kept'better control over the people at CRP.
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Mr. DoAR. Now, Mr. Chairman, we are ready to play the first
recorded conversation. Before doing so, I would 'like to make a few
observations.

At the time that we get to a paragraph covering a recorded con-
^^ersation, we will distribute to each member a transcript of that con-
versation. These transcripts were prepared by our staff. We went
through—Mr. Shelton, Mr. Nussbaum, David Hanes and our con-
sultants were generally in charge of preparing the tapes and the
transcripts.

AYith some of these tapes, we went through five generations, literally,
of tapes before we got one that we considered of best quality. The
tape that you are going to listen to this morning is the poorest quality
of tlie tapes that we received. I want to stress tliat and stress that,
-emphasize it very emphatically, because I do not want vou to feel that
the quality of tliis recording or this dictabelt reflects in any way the
quality of subsequent recorded conversations.

Mr. Nussbaum calls my attention to the fact that it is not the
June 20, it is the June 30, and the quality of this dictabelt is all right.
You will remember the subpena that we served with respect to cer-

tain conversations between, in March—February, March, and April,
1973. Included in that conversation, we asked for all dictabelts or
subsequent dictabelts that the President had made of recorded con-
versations. This one is an example of that kind of a recorded, of a
recollection of a nonrecorded conversation. There was no recorded
conversation of this particular conversation, because the phone con-
versation occurred on a phone that was not part of the taping system.
The testimony before Judge Sirica was that tliis conversation oc-

curred in a hallway in a residence of the White House and that the
only phone that was part of the system in the Wiite House was in the
Lincoln Room.
Ms. HoLTZMAN. "Wliat is that date you referred to ?

3Ir. DoAR. June 30 is the second tape we will play this afternoon,

part of a conversation.

Now if you will—Mr. Shelton, are you ready to explain how to op-
erate this equipment ? Will you turn on that microphone ?

Mr. Jenner. Excuse me, John. Before you do that, Mr. Chairman, in

reporting to you this morning of the sessions I had with the various

judges of the district court and the court of appeals, I overlooked
mentioning to you something, I think, is quite apropos now, that Judge
Sirica afforded ns the opportunity of making tapes from the original

tapes that he has, and included among those tapes is the March 21,

1973. tape and our tape drawn from the original and then run through
our sophisticated listening devices is a very excellent tape. Some people
in the staff say it is, different between that and other tapes of that
same conversation is as hi-fi against the old crystal set radio.

Mr. DoAR. Mr. Shelton, are you prepared to explain to the members
how they should work the equipment ?

]Mr. Shelton. The earphones are all sAvitched to "on" or should be.

They are individually adjustable. There are two knobs on the listening

device and they are all supposed to be turned to what should be the
right volume. Each one is adjusted by turning the knob clockwise close

to you. If anybody does not hear anything, we have an extra
microphone.
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The switch should be to the right.

Mr. DoAR. We are ready to play the tape, Mr. Chairman.
[Tape is played.]

ilr. DoAR. Some members may wonder about the note about the 42
second silence. That is an unexplained silence on the dictabelt. Then
at the very end, you hear the President beginning to dictate about
another subject. We move then to tab 26.

Mr. Davis. Tab 26.

Mr. DoAR. I will say to the members that tomorrow and Thursday,
and the next convei'sation on June 30 is very short, too. but thereafter,

the conversations run from between 30 minutes and, one particular
conversation is about 1 hour and 40 minutes.

Mr. Waldie. jVIr. Chairman, did we get the date when the dictabelt

was dictated ? Is June 20 the date of the dictabelt ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, June 20 was the date, the evening—the President
has stated that it was his habit to dictate his recollections at the end
of most days or many days.

If you look, Congressman Waldie, at paragraph 25.2, it is twice in

the page, the second page of that Presidential document and it is

bracketed. The President said

:

I have a practice of keeping a personal diary, I can assure you not every day.
Sometimes you were too tired at tlie end of every day to eitlier make notes or
dictate it into a dictabelt. On that particular day, I happened to have dictated
a dictabelt, and on the dictabelt for June 20, w^hich I found, I found that I had
referred to tlie conversation with John Mitchell.

Tab 26.

Mr. Davis. Tab 26, on June 21, 1972, shortly after 9:35 a.m., John
Ehrlichman told Acting FBI Director Gray John Dean would be
handling an inquiry into Watergate for the White House and that
Gray should call Dean and work closely with him. Gray told Erlich-
man that the FBI was han.dling the case as a "major special witli all

of our normal procedures in eft'ect." At 10 a.m.. Gray telephoned Dean
and arranged to meet Dean at 11 :30 a.m. in Gray's office. At the meet-
ing they discussed the sensitivity of the investigation, and Dean told
Gray that Dean would sit in on FBI interviews of White House staff

members in his official capacity as counsel to the President.
Mr. DoAR. This paragraph refers to a term that the FBI uses, "a

major special." This is the term for a major case investigation con-
ducted by the Federal Bureau of Investigation. The committee may
wish to have a witness from the FBI describe just exactly all the nor-
mal procedures. My experience is that a particular agent is placed in

charge, generally at the level of an inspector and he supervises and
controls and coordinates the entire investigation until it has been
completed.
On 26.1 is Pat Gray's log for June 21. It is almost illegible. At 11 :30

on the next page, you see Mr. Dean came over and saw Mr. Gray.
Mr. Gray testified that, in 26.2, the fact that this was a major special,

Mr. Mitchell's concern about the leaks, and Mr. Dean advising Mr.
Gray that he would be there in his official capacity sitting in on inter-

views of the White House staff personnel as counsel to the President:
Erlichman informing him that John Dean would be handling the in-

quiry into Watergate. That he should deal with Dean, et cetera.
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Mr. Dean's testimony at page 26.3 indicates that Mr. Mark Felt,

one of the senior officials in the Bureau, would be handling the inves-

tigation in Mr. Gray's absence.

Tab 27. There is no material under tab 27, so you turn to tab 28.

The reason why not is, there was a conflict in the testimony that we
thought was, we could not resolve it and we did not think it was per-

tinent to the inquiry, so we felt it was not appropriate to include it.

In the final clearing out of, reviewing of the material by Mr. Jenner
and myself, we decided to eliminate that particular item of proof.

I would be happy to indicate what it is if the committee would want
jne to.

Mr. CoNYERS. I think we should.

The Chairman. You might. The public would like to know.
IMr. DoAR. It involves a conversation on the issue between Mr. Dean

and Mr. Ehrlichman as to whether or not Mr. Ehrlichman told Mr.
Dean to deep six some of the materials that came out of the Hunt safe.

Mr. Dean said that Mr. Elirliclmian told him to do that, Mr. Ehrlich-
man said he did not. We concluded that we could not resolve that and
it was not pertinent to the inquiry, so we kept it out, withdrew it

—

tab 28.

Mr. Davis. Tab 28.

Mr. CoNYERS. Mr. Chairman, a point of inquiry to the chairman.
Is that going to be a matter of procedure from this point, that when-
ever the investigating stalf cannot resolve a factual contradiction, we
do not get it at all ?

The Chairman. No ; that material is available to the members at any
time once it has been referred to.

Mr. Conyers. Well we would not have known about it, Mr. Chair-
man, if there had not been a tab here. Otherwise, we would have had
the obligation of going through I do not know how much material.

The Chairman. Well, I suppose we have to have some confidence

in the ability of our staff to determine what is relevant and what is not
relevant. Then if members are not satisfied, they can inquire, as they
have done. I think this will be the procedure from now on.

Mr. DoAR. I would say to the Congressman that it is not the practice

that we would not, if we could not resolve anything, we would not do
this in the ordinary case. There have been a number of times where we
have included the material. This is the only time that I recall that the

material was not included.

Mr. Chairman. Well, I would suggest to counsel, though, if there

are any other instances where this might occur, counsel might make an
explanation as to why it does occur.

Mr. DoAR. I certainly will.

JSIr. Jenner. We just did not regard it as pertinent.

:Mr. Davis. Tab 28, on June 22, 1972, FBI agents interviewed

Charles Colson in the EOB. John Dean was present. When the agents

inquired about Howard Hunt's office in the EOB, Dean told them

eitJier that he would have to check out whether Hunt had an EOB
offxe or that the request to see Hunt's office would have to be checked

out.

:\Ir. Doar. We have stated that in the alternative; the fii^t alterna-

tive is Mr. Gray's version of what Dean told him and the second ver-



619

sion is Mr. Dean's version of what he told Mr. Gray—or told FBI
agents, excuse me. This matter came up later at FBI Acting Director
Gray's confirmation hearing on March 22, 1973, and when Mr. Gray
testified that Mr. Dean probably lied with respect to this information
that he furnished.

I think the members of the committee would have to read all of this
testimon}^—we have reproduced all pertinent testimony under this

paragraph.
Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, may I

observe and draw your attention to the fact that an official investigation

is underway. As ISIr. Doar pointed out in drawing your attention to

tab 27, the FBI was undertaking a special investigation. So that even
earlier than this, you have problems of whether there is an interference

with, along these lines, an official investigation, which is a crime under
Federal law; obstruction of justice; and possible violations of title 18,

section 1001, which is making false statements—not perjurious, be-

cause they are not under oath, but making false statements to a Federal
agent undertaking an investigation.

^Mr. DoAR. Tab 29.

]Mr. Davis. Tab 29, on or about June 22, 1972, Acting FBI Director

L. Patrick Gray met with John Dean. Gray told Dean the FBI had
discovered that a $25,000 check drawn by Kenneth Dahlberg and four

checks totaling $89,000 drawn on a bank in Mexico City payable to

ISIanuel Ogarrio had been deposited in a ISliami, Fla. bank account of

Bernard Barker, one of the persons arrested on June 17, 1972, at the

DNC headquarters in the Watergate. GrPij and Dean discussed the

FBI's alternative theories of the Watergate case, including the theory

that the break-in was a covert operation of the CIA. The following

day. Dean reported to H. R. Haldeman on his meeting with Gray.

Mr. DoAR, The next 11 paragraphs deal with, primarily with the

investigation of the FBI and the relation to it by the CIA. This niatter

was investigated by the subcommittee of the Senate Appropriations

Committee in executive session and as you will see from 29.6, Mr.

Haldeman testified in executive session before that_ committee. This

paragraph discusses information as to the alternative FBI theories

of the Watergate case and it includes the logs in 29.1 of the meeting

between Dean and Gray.
Tab 29.2 is Mr. Gray's testimony about the early theory, and within

the bracketed marks on 3451 is a discussion of that alternative theory

as well as the matter of the two checks, one for $25,000 and four for

$9,000.

Tab 29.3 is Mr. Dean's testimony as to how he came over to see Mr.

Gray at page 943 of 29.3 at al>out the 10th line down from the top. :Mr.

Dean testified that "at the request of Mr. Ehrlichman and Haldeman,

I went to see Mr. Gray at his office to discuss the Dahlberg and

INIexican checks."
And then on the next page ^Mr. Dean testifies, and this is the third

full paragraph on the same page, from June 23 : "I reported my con-

versation with Gray of the preceding evening to Mr. Ehrlichman and
Haldeman."
Tab 29.4 is a memorandum, internal FBI memorandum. You see

the typed copy here. It is from Bates who is one of the supervisors

on this investigation of the Watergate break-in. And he writes on the
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second page within the bracketed materials, bracketed paragrapli, he

describes the cashing of the two checks and the cashing of one check,

the Dahlberg check down at the Boca Raton Bank and the Republic

National Bank of Miami, and the check drawn on the Boca Raton
Bank. On page 1 of that memorandum, that document, you will note

in the second paragraph, or the first paragraph there is a mention that

the FBI's reputation was at stake in this case and that the investigation

should he, completely impartial, thorough, and complete.

I noticed in reviewing this today, the next sentence, I tried to in-

quire what was meant by the identity of the Secret Service official. I

haven't been able to find that out yet. I just report that to the

committee.
The next paragraph indicates Mr. Gray instructed to hold up any

dissemination of information to the defendant or the White House, to

hold any interviews of White House personnel. And the last para-
graph on that page, there is again a notation against dissemination
of material and no briefing.

Tab 29.5 if an internal Bureau memorandum from the Field Office

in ISIiami to the Central Office in Washington reporting on the in-

formation developed with respect to the checks.

Tab 29.6, I wish to call the committee's attention to. This is re-

typed testimony in executive session which is marked "Secret"' by the
subcommittee of the Committee on Appropriations. This is the testi-

mony of Mr. Haldeman on May 31, 1973, slightly less than 1 year
ago. And if you look at page 361 or 360 at the bottom, Mr. Haldeman
says, or, well, first. Chairman McClellan says:

We do not want to restrict or limit you in any way. You give us the true story
beginning when you first knew that the President was interested in and wanted
this meeting set up, the reasons why he wanted such a meeting and what was
to be the hoped-for result, what was the objective of the meeting, what purpose
was it to serve.

]Mr. Haldeman answered : "Right".

Either that morning, the 23d. or the preceding afternoon, and I am not sure
which, afternoon or evening. John Dean, as I best recall this, and again it is

trying to recall events of a year ago, John Dean told me that the FBI was
concerned about the question of whether there might be CIA involvements in
some aspects of the Watergate affair, either directly or indirectly.

Mr. Haldeman goes on

:

In raising this concern of the FBI, I felt that something needed to be done
at that point in time to guide the FBI as to whether there was involvement, and,
if so, what and what problems there might be in that respect.

And then he said

:

I transmitted this report in essence to the President, I believe, on the morning
of the 23d.

Paragraph or tab No. 30.

:\rr. Davis. Tab 30, on June 22, 1972, the President held a press
conference. He was asked whether he had made an investigation to
determine whether there was a direct link between the people wlio
bugged the DNC Headquarters and the White House, The President
said:

Mr. Ziegler and also Mr. Mitchell, speaking for the Campaign Committee,
have responded to questions on this in great detail. They have stated my position
and have also stated the facts accurately.
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This kind of activity, as Mr. Ziegler lias indicated, has no place whatever
in our Electoral Process or in our governmental process. And, as Mr. Ziegler

has stated, the White House has had no involvement whatever in this particular

incident.

As far as the matter now is concerned, it is under investigation, as it should

be. by the proper legal authorities, by the District of Columbia Police and by
the FBI. I will not comment on those matters, particularly since pos.sible

criminal charges are involved.

Mr. DoAR. Tab No. 31.

Mr. Davis. Tab 31, on June 23, 1972, H. K. Haldeman met with the

President and informed the President of the communication John
Dean had received from Acting: FBI Dii'ector Gray. The President
directed Hahleman to meet with CIA Director Richard Ilehns,

Deputy CIA Director Vernon WaUers, and John Ehrlichman. Halde-
man has testified that the President told him to ascertain whether
there had been any CIA involvement in the Watergate affair and
whether the relationship between some of the Watergate participants

and the Bay of Pigs incident was a matter of concern to the CIA. The
President directed Haldeman to discuss White House concern regard-
ing possible disclosure of covert CIA operations and operations of the
White House Special Investigations Unit—the Plumbers—not related

to Watergate, that had been undertaken previously by some of the
Watergate principals.

The President directed Haldeman to ask Walters to meet with Gray
to express these concerns and to coordinate with the FBI, so that the
FBI investigation would not be expanded into unrelated matters that
could lead to disclosure of the earlier activities of the Watergate
principals.

Mr, DoAR. Members of the committee, although we didn't set forth
the logs of that day, we don't have a Presidential log, the logs that we
do have from Mr. Haldeman's meeting with the President indicates
that there were three meetings that day, one between 10 :04 and 10:39,
which was a meeting between the President and Mr. Haldeman with
Mr. Ziegler being present from 10:33 to 10:39. Another meeting at
1 :04 to 1 :13, which was a meeting between the President and Mr.
Haldeman. And the third meeting at 2 :20 to 2 :45, a meeting between
the President and Mr. Haldeman, with Mr. Ziegler being present from
2 :40 to 2 :43.

We have asked Mr. St. Clair if the President would produce those
recorded conversations. Mr. St. Clair has advised us on the President's
behalf, that the President declines to make those recorded conversa-
tions available. We will be asking the committee tomorrow at its meet-
ing that it consider the issuance of a subpena for those three recorded
conversations.

Tab 31.1 is Mr. Haldeman's

^
Mr. Waldie. I am sorry, I did not follow counsel. "Wliat conversa-

tions are now being requested ?

The Chairman. Would you kindly repeat that, Mr. Doar?
Mr. DoAR. The three conversations between the President and Mr.

Haldeman, one at 10 :04 to 10 :39 a.m., one at 1 :04 to 1 :13 p.m., and one
at 2 :20 to 2 :45 p.m., on June 23, 1972.
The Chairman. Mr. Doar, is it not also your intention to supply the

Members with the justification for these requests? Will they not have
them available to them ?

41 OlS—75—pt. 1 40
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ISIr. DoAR. Yes. At the end of the day we will distribute to the Mem-
bers the justification for the materials that we desire the committee to
authorize the issuance of a subpena for tomorrow, as well as Mr. St.

Clair's memorandum. That will be at the end of today.
The Chairman Thank you.
Mr. DoAK. I notice in my book that 31.1 and 31.2 have been reversed

:

31.1 is President Nixon's statement on May 22, 1973, his statement on
the second page of 31.1, where the President said

:

I wanted justice done with regard to Watergate, but in the scale of national
priorities with which I had to deal and not at that time having any idea of the
extent of the political abuse which Watergate reflected. I also had to be deeply
concerned with insuring that neither the covert operations of the CIA nor the
operations of the Special Investigations Unit should be compromised. Therefore,
I instructed Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlichman to insure that the investigation
of the break-in not expose either an unrelated covert operation of the CIA
or the activities of the White House Investigation Unit, and to see that this was
personally coordinated between General Walters, the Deputy Director of the
CIA and Mr. Gray of the FBI. It was certainly not my wish, not my intention
nor my wish, that the investigation of the Watergate break-in or related acts be
impeded in any way.

jSIr. Haldeman's testimony at 32.2 again is testimony that he gave
in secret executive session.

Mr. BuTLEK. 31.2^

Mr. DoAR. 31.2. Execuse me. I would like to read page 353, the top of
354, with respect to ISIr. Ehrliclmian's and Mr. Haldeman's meeting
with the President. I am reading from the bracketed part on page 353.

In that regard, on June 23, 1972, John Ehrlichman and I were requested by
the President to meet with Director Richard Helms and Deputy Director Vernon
Walters of the CIA.
To the best of my recollection the purpose of this meeting was five-fold.

1. To ascertain whether there had been any CIA involvement in the Water-
gate affair;

2. To ascertain whether the relationship between some of the Watergate
participants and the Bay of Pigs was a matter of concern to the CIA

;

3. To inform the CIA of an FBI request for guidance regarding some aspects
of the Watergate investigation because of the possibility of CIA involvement,
directly or indirectly.

I could interject there that this request had been made known by John Dean,
counsel to the President and had been transmitted by me to the President im-
mediately upon being told of it by John Dean.
The President, as a result of that, told me to meet with Director Helms and

General Walters and John Ehrlichman to get into this matter, as I am laying it

out here.

4. To discuss White House concern regarding the possible disclosure of non-
Watergate related covert CIA operations or other national security activities not
related to Watergate that had been undertaken previously by some of the Water-
gate principals.

5. To request that General Walters meet with Acting Director Gray of the FBI,
to express these concerns and to coordinate with the FBI so that the FBI's areas
of investigation of the suspects, the Watergate suspects, not be expanded into un-
related matters which could lead to disclosure of their earlier national security
and CIA activities.

Mr. Haldeman testified about the meeting with the President }3efore

the Senate select committee and that is contained in 31.3 and 31.4.

Tab 32.

Mr. Davis. Tab 32, in the early afternoon of June 23, 1972, John
Mitchell, Campaign Director of CRP. met with Maurice Stans, Chair-
man of FCRP in Mitchell's office. They discussed the Dahlberg and
Mexican checks, Stans knew at that time that these cliecks were cam-
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paign contributions that Hugh Sloan, Treasurer of FCRP had given
to Gordon Liddy to be converted to cash.

Mr. DoAR. Members of the commitee will recall that April 7, 1972,
was the cut-off date on the new law with respect to the reporting of
campaign contributions. The Dahlberg check was dated April 10,

but there was testimony by jMr. Stans tliat the check had actually been
delivered or the contribution had been made prior to April 7 and, there-

fore, a way was devised to handle this check when it got to the
finance committee to give it to Mr. Liddy for cashing and convert-
ing it into cash. And he did this and, ultimately, the cash was returned
to Mr. Sloan and some of the money fI'om that cash was found on the
persons that broke into the Democratic National Committee.

Paragraph 33.6 is Mr. Sloan's log or Mr. Stan's log, excuse me, and
if you run through his day that day, you see he met early in the morn-
ing with Mr. Laliue and another gentleman, and then at 10 o'clock
he met with Mr. Sloan and Mr. Liddy. At noon he had lunch with Mr.
Mitchell. Mr. Mitchell says on his calendar that that meeting was at
1 :30, and at 3 o'clock he met with Mr. Dahlberg, who is the man from
[Minnesota who received the contributions from Mr. Andreas, and
at 5 o'clock Mr. Stans met with Messrs. Mardian, LaRue, and
Dahlberg.
Mr. Butler. And if I understand reading the log, he also met with

Dahlberg at 3 o'clock ; is that what you told us '?

]Slr. DoAR. That is what the log shows.
Mr. Butler. Now
Mr. DoAR. Also at 5 o'clock.

Mr. Butler. And again with Dahlberg on the same day?
Mr. DoAR. Yes, at 5 o'clock.

Mr. Butler. Thank you.
Mr. Owens. And does he not have a meeting with Mr. Liddy in

the meantime ?

Ml'. DoAR. I am sorry, I didn't get the question.

I\Ir. Owens. He has a meeting with JMr. Liddy in the meantime.
Mr. DoAR. Yes, that is right. It shows a meeting in the afternoon

at 4 o'clock with Mr. Liddy.
Mr. Hutchinson. Who was Mr. Pappas ?

The Cil^irman. A contributor.

Mr. DoAR. Mr. Pappas is Tom Pappas, cochairman of FCEP. He
is from. Boston. I think in order to follow the facts or the informa-
tion oi- the information with respect to the checks, that the committee
members will have to read the testimony of Mr. Stans explaiiiing how
these checks originally being unrelated to the Watergate break-in,

came into Mr. Liddy "s hands for cashing following April 7.

Mr. Sloan's testimony and this is at 32.5 at page 576, shows that he
took the check to Mr. Liddy in response to a conversation with JSIr.

Stans, and Mr. Liddy recommended that they be converted to cash.

And he offered to handle it. And that it was not until mid-May that

Sloan got the money back less $2,500 expenditures.

Mr. Jenner. May I say also, Mr. Chairman and members, as to

Mr. Pappas, as 3'ou will learn subsequently, he was already a sub-

stantial contributor. And also vrhen we reached the March period,

that his name is meiitioned in connection with raising funds involv-

ing that series of incidents.
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The Chairman. Are you finished with tab 32 ?

Mr. DoAR. No. I just have one more thing at 32.8 which is the tele-
phone calls of Mr. Stans indicating that he called Mr. Dahlberg in
Minnesota, Lake Minnetonka, early that morning. Tab 33.

Mr. Davis. Tab 33, at approximately 1 :30 p.m., on June 23, 1972,
pursuant to the President's prior directions, H. R. Haldeman, John
Ehrlichman, CIA Director Helms, and Deputy CIA Director Walters
met in Ehrlichman's office.

Helms assured Haldeman and Ehrlichman that there was no CIA
involvement in the Watergate, and tliat he had no concern from
the CIA's viewpoint regarding any possible connection of Watergate
personnel with the Bay of Pigs operation. Helms told Haldeman and
Ehrlichman that he had given this assurance directly to the Acting
FBI Director Gray. Haldeman stated that the Watergate affair was
creating a lot of noise, that the investigation could lead to important
people, and that this could get worse. Haldeman expressed concern
that an FBI investigation in Mexico might uncover CIA activities or
assets. Haldeman stated that it was the President's wish that Walters
call on Gray and suggest to him tliat it was not advantageous to push
the inquiry, especially into Mexico. According to Ehrlichman, the
Mexican money or the Florida bank account was discussed as a spe-
cific example of the kind of thing the President was evidently con-
cerned about. Following this meeting, Ehrlichman advised Walters
that John Dean was following the Watergate matter on behalf of
the White Plouse.

Mr. DoAR. There are a number of materials in this tab that I wish
to call the committee members attention to.

Tab 31.1 is John Ehrlichman's log of the meeting; 31.2 is •

Ms. HoLTZMAN. You mean 33.2 ?
,

Mr. DoAR. Yes, 33.2, excuse me, is Mr. Walters' testimony with
respect to tlie meeting. And if you will look at the bottom of 34.4

The Chairman. You mean page 34 ?

Mr. Doar. Tab 34.4, excuse me.
The Chairman. Tab 34.4.

Mr. Doar. General Walters said, reading about the eighth line from
the bottom

:

I believe Mr. Haldeman was doing nearly all of the talking. I do not recall

Mr. Ehrlichman actually participating actively in the conversation.

I think that is the gist of the testimony of all of the gentlemen from
the CIA who were at that meeting.

Tab 33.3 is a memorandum of General Walters' recollection of that

meeting. And at the second paragraph. General Walters writes on
June 28 that: "Haldeman said," and this is the second paragraph:

That the bugging affair at the Democratic National Committee Headquarters
at the Watergate Apartment had made a lot of noise and the Democrats were
trying to maximize it. The FBI had been called in and was investigating the

matter. The investigation was leading to a lot of important people and this

could get worse. He asked what the connection with the Agency was and the

Director repeated that there was none. Haldeman said that the whole affair was
getting embarrassing, and it was the President's wish that Walters call on
Acting FBI Director, Patrick Gi-ay, and suggest to him that since the five

suspects had been arrested that this should be sufficient and that it was not
advantageous to have the inquiry pushed, especially in Mexico.
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And if you skip the next paragraph, General Walters writes

:

Haldeman then stated that I could tell Gray that I had talked to the White
House and suggest that the investigation not be pushed further.

I am reading from the fourth paragraph on page 33.3. General
"Walters' memorandum of June 28. That is the fourth full paragraph

:

Haldeman then stated that I could tell Gray that I had talked to the White
House and suggest that the investigation not be pushed further. Gray would
be receptive as he was looking for guidance in the matter.

Tab 33.4 is Mr. Helms' recollexjtion of that meeting in Mr. Ehrlich-

man's office, and I am looking at page 3238 of the Senate select com-
mittee. And as you look down to get the sense of the conversation, Mr.
Helms, about a third of the way down the page, describes the meeting
as being held in Mr. Ehrlichman's office on the second floor of the

West Wing of the White House. And then he says

:

We arrived first, General Walters and I had waited a few minutes. Then I

recall Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlichman came into the room. Mr. Haldeman
did most of the talking.

And then if you drop down the page, where Helms corroborates

what General Walters has said about his memorandum of the 28th and
then if you go down to the second paragraph from the bottom, Mr.
Helms says that

:

At some juncture in this conversation Mr. Haldeman says something to the
effect that it had been decided that General Walters will go and talk to Acting
Director Gray of the FBI and indicate to him that these investigations of the
FBI might run into CIA operations in Mexico and that it was desirable that
this not happen and that the investigation, therefore, should be either tapered
off or reduced or something. But, there was no language saying stop, as far as
I recall.

Then Mr. Helms testified that he was perplexed because he says

at this point the

:

Reference to Mexico was quite unclear to me. I had to recognize that if the
White House, the President, Mr. Haldeman, somebody in high authority had
information about something in Mexico which I did not have information about,
which is quite possible—the White House constantly has information which
others do not have—that it would be the prudent thing for me to find out if

there was any possibility that some CIA operation was being—was going to be
affected and, therefore, I wanted the necessary time to do this.

At the end of that paragraph, Mr. Ehrlichman, according to Mr.
Helms, made his sole contribution to the conversation which was, that
he. that was General Walters, "should get clown and see Gray just as

fast as he could."
Tab 33.5 is Mr. Halderaan's testimony before the executive session of

the Senate Armed Services Committee. I direct your attention to page
355, the second to the last paragraph. No, it is the first full paragraph
on the page where we have Mr. Haldeman's explanation for his actions

with respect to the CIA.
We did this in the full belief that we were acting in the national interest and

with no intent or desire to impede or cover-up any aspects of the Watergate
Investigation itself.

That is the first full paragraph on page 355 of 33.5.

Then you see, if you skip the next paragraph, and read the one that
begins, I would like to call your attention to the paragraph that begins,
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"it must be understood," Mr. Haldeman says: "It must be understood
that"—this is his testimony, members of the committee, on May 31^
1973, almost a year later.

It must be understood that at the time of our meeting with the CIA, we had
only very sketchy knowledge of what and wlio were involved in the Watergate
affair. We had no reason to believe that anyone in the White House was involved
and no reason, therefore, to seek any cover-up of the Watergate investigation
from the White House.
On the contrary, everyone in the White House was instructed to cooperate fully

with the Watergate investigation and, so far as I knew at that time, was doing so.

An then at pa^re 401, Chairman McClellan is talkinjr to Mr. Halde-
man about IMr. Walters' memorandum and a third of the way down the
page he says

:

Then he says and that "he" there is General Walters "says that the FBI had
been called into it and was investigating the matter. And he said you said the
investigation was leading to a lot of important people and this could get worse.
Do you wish to comment on that?"

Mr. Haldeman said to Senator McClellan : "No, sir."

Chairman McClbxlan. "Do you want to say it is true or just remain silent

about it?"

Mr. Haldeman. "I would have no comment to make on it. That is his char-

acterization of the conversation."
Chairman McClellan. "Is this characterization of the conversation wrong or

correct."
Mr. Haldeman. "I have no material conflict with it."

Then on page 33.7 John Ehrlichman is testifying and he testifies

unequivocally at page 345 of 33.7 that Helms and Walters were told

that John Dean was following tlie Watergate matter closely for the

President and any future White House contact should be with hini.

Tab No. 34.

Mr. Davis. Tab 34.

The Chairman. Excuse me. I think we ought to take a break for 10

minutes at this time.

[Short recess was taken.]

The Chairman. Mr. Doar, can you give us an estimate as to how
much longer we will be in ?

Mr. Doar. I would think, Mr. Chairman, it would be a half hour to

40 minutes, including the distribution of materials for the subpena.

We would like to go through this book through paragraph 40 today,

and that is all.

The Chairman. All right. Will you please proceed ?

Mr. Doar. Tab 34.

Mr. Davis. Tab 34, on June 23, 1972, at 1 :35 p.m.. Dean telephoned

Gray find said that Walters would be visiting Gray that afternoon.

At 2:34 p.m., on the same day, Walters met with Gray and discussed

the FBI investigation of the Jjreak-in at the DNC lieadquarters.

Walters stated that if the FBI investigation were pursued into Mexico

it might uncover some covert CIA activity and that the matter should

be tapered off with the five men under arrest. Gray agreed to hold in

abeyance the FBI interview of Manuel Ogarrio. Gray has testified that

the FBI continued its efforts to locate Kenneth Dahlberg.

Gray reported to Dean the substance of his conversations with

Walters.
Mr. Doar. At 34.2 at page 3453 you will see that Acting FBI Di-

rector Gray in the third full paragraph down the page said that "Mr.

Dahlbers: was evading us as we tried to interview him."
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Mr. Walters testified that he told Mr. Gray that he had come from

the White House. Mr. Gray testified that the White House was not

mentioned when Mr. Walters and he had the discussion. Tab No. 35.

Mr. Davis. Tab 35, on June 23, 1972, at 3 p.m., ISIaurice Stans met

at the CRP offices with Kenneth Dahlbero:, who. at the request of Stans

and Fred LaEue, had flown to Washinoton that day for the meeting.

LaRue and Stans discussed the check drawn by Dahlberg, the money
from which had reached the bank account of Bernard Barker. At 5 p.m.

on the same day, Dahlberg met with Stans, LaRue, and Robert
Mardian.
Mr. Waldie. I'm sorry, may I interrupt, Mr. Chairman ? May I ask

a question? I didn't follow on 34 where the FBI was trying to find

Kenneth Dahlberg. Wliat number is that ? 34 ?

The Chairman. Identify the tab.

Mr. Waldie. It's 34 point what ?

Mr. DoAR. Tab 34.2 at page 3453, the last sentence of the fourth

paragraph. The last sentence of the third paragraph, excuse me.
Tab 35 is a resume of material that we also mentioned earlier. It

has INIr. Stans' calendar for that day, and then the conversation

between Mr. Stans and some of his associates about determining the
source and tracing of the Dahlberg check. Tab 36.

Mr. Davis. Tab 36, on or before June 26, 1972, Walters determined
that there were no CIA sources or activities in Mexico that might be
jeopardized by FBI investigations of the Ogarrio check in Mexico.
On June 26, 1972, Walters met with John Dean and advised him that
there was nothing in any of the FBI investigations that could jeop-

ardize or compromise in any way CIA activities or sources in INIexico.

Mr. DoAR. At 36.1, page 3407, about a third of the way down the
page, General Walters is testifying about his 2 :30 meeting with Mr.
Gray. And he said

:

I said to Mr. Gray that I had just come from the White House where I had
talked to some senior staff members, and I was to teU him that the pursuit of
the FBI investigation in Mexico, a continuation of the FBI investigation in.

Mexico, might uncover some covert activities of the Central Intelligence Agency.
I then repeated to him what Mr. Helms had told me about the agreement between
the FBI and CIA, and he said he was quite aware of this and he intended to
observe it scrupulously.

The agreement that he speaks about is, as I understand it, an agree-
ment between the two agencies that if one investigation by the agency
should tend to lead to some covert activity of the other agency, the
agency will, one agency will advise the other one; that is, the FBI
would advise the CIA of its investigation or vice versa.
At 3408, General Walters testhnony about his meeting with Mr.

Dean on the following day. This is 36.1. And he relates how Mr. Dean
pressed him about the CIA involvement, and he inquires, if you look
at the last paragraph on 3408, he said

:

He kept pressing this. There must have been. These people all used to work
for the CIA in ail of this thing. I said maybe they used to, but they were not
when they did it, and he pressed and pressed on, on this, and asked if there
was not some way I could help him, and it seemed to me he was exploring per-
haps the option of seeing whether he could put some of the blame on us. There-
was not any specific thing he said, but the general tenor was in this way. And
I said to him—I did not have an opportunity to consult with anybody—but I
simply said, "Mr. Dean, any attempt to involve the Agency in a stifling of this-
affair would be a disaster. It would destroy the credibility of the Agency witb
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the Congress and the Nation. It would be a grave disservice to the President.
I will not be a party to it. I am quite prepared to resign before I do anything to
implicate the Agency in this matter."

Then he goes on, "That seemed to shake him," that's Mr. Dean,
"somewhat, and I said anything that would involve anything like the
Government agencies like the CIA and the FBI in anything improper
in this way would be a disaster for the Nation. Somewhat reluctantly
he seemed to accept this line of argument and I left."

Tab No. 37.

Mr. Davis. Tab 37, on or about June 27, 1972, John Dean and Fred
Fielding, his assistant, delivered to FBI agents a portion of the ma-
terials from Howard Hunt's safe. The materials given to the FBI
agents included top secret diplomatic dispatches relating to Vietnam.
The portion withheld from the FBI agents included fabricated diplo-
matic cables purporting to show the involvement of the Kennedy
administration in the fall of the DM regime in Vietnam, memorandum
concerning the plumbers unit, a file relating to an investigation Hunt
had conducted for Ciiarles CoLson at Chappaquiddick, and two note-
books and a popup address book.
Mr. DoAR. Paragraph 37.1 at the bottom of 937 is Mr. Dean's sum-

mary of the materials that were in the safe. In paragraph 37.3 is the
FBI inventory of the materials that were in the safe. Tliat's at 329.

Tab 37.3, is an inventoiy of the material which John Dean, legal

counsel to President Richard M. Nixon, provided Special Agents
Mahan and ISIichael King and the date of the memo was July 3. Tliis

was delivered, however, on June 27. Not all of the material was deliv-

ered to the FBI agents. Some of the material was deliA'ered to ^Iv.

Gray and two notebooks were kept and retained by Mr. Dean. ]\Ir.

Dean testified to this fact in the case of United States v. Hunt before
Judge Sirica in Novem.ber 1973. INIr. Dean had not testified to the fact

that he had retained these two notebooks when he testified before the
Senate select committee.

If you will look at page 37.4 and if you will look at the bottom of
page 3 of that testimony, you will see Mr. Ben-Veniste, who is one
of the special prosecutor's staff saying to Judge Sirica

:

Your Honor, this is in connection with the motion made by the defendant,
Hunt, and it relates to evidence which has recently come into our possession
from .John Dean. As you know, Tour Honor, Mr. Dean pleaded guilty on Octo-
ber 19 before this Court, and following that time we had occasion to interview
him from time to time, but the developments over the last few weeks inhibited

us to some extent from doing that as thoroughly as we would like. However,
last Friday, while we were in court, members of our staff interviewed Mr. Dean
and questioned him with respect to the content of Mr. Hunt's safe. This was the
first occasion on which members of the Special Prosecution Force had the oppor-
tunity to question him about this matter. Mr. Dean related that at some time
in late January, 1973, he discovered a file folder in his ofiice containing the

President's estate plan, two cloth bound notebooks with cardboard covers and
lined pages containing some handwriting. Dean at that time recalled that these

had cfvme from Howard Hunt's safe. Dean did not look at the contents and
cannot recall what might have been in them. He assumed it related to the
Ellsberg break-in.
At the same time he discovered a pop-up address book containing some names

with each page xed out in ink. Dean threw this pop-up notebook into the

wastebasket at the time. These are facts, of course, which defense counsel should
know about, and we are apprising the court of them.

Now, so that the material that is pertinent is the material that came
out of the safe, and some was delivered to the FBI agents, some was
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delivered, as you will see later on, to Mr. Gray. It doesn't appear in
this book, but tomorrow we will ijet to tliat. And these two notebooks
were retained by Mr. Gray, Mr. Dean, and later destroyed. Parae'raph
38.

Mr. Dav^s. Tab 38, on June 26 or 27, 1972, Dean met with Walters
and asked if there was any way the CIA could provide the bail money
or pdj the salaries of the persons arrested in connection with the
break-in at the DNC Headquarters. Walters said the CIA would do
so only on a direct order from the. President. Accordint^ to Dean, his
proposal to the CIA had previously been approved by John Ehrlich-
man. Dean also has testified that he reported to Ehrlichman regarding'
Walters' negative position on the proposal, and that he was asked
by Ehrlichman to pusli Walters a little harder. Ehrlichman has denied
receiving these reports from Dean. On June 28, 1972, at 10:45 a.m.
Dean met with Elirlicliman. At 11:30 a.m. Dean telephoned Walters
and asked Walters to see him in his EOB office. At this meeting,
Walters and Dean discussed the Dahlberg check and the Mexican
checks, and Dean again asked whether tlie CIA could do anything to

stop the FBI investigation of these checks. Walters said there was
nothing his agency could do.

Mr. DoAR. Tab 38.1 is John Ehrlichman's log reflecting that he had
the meeting with John Dean at 10 :45.

Tab 38.2, John Dean's testimony where at page 946 he outlines

at the top of the page that Mr. Mitchell sugge^^ted that he explore
with Mr. Ehrlichman and Haldeman having the Wliite House contact

the CIA for assistance, and that on the 26th of June in tlie morning
he spoke with Mr. Ehrlichman legardino; this suggestion. "And he
thought it was a good idea and he told me to call the CIA and
explore it."

And then ]Mr Dean testifies on the next page, next two pages, about

his discussion with General Waltf^rs and General Walters declining

to provide funds for the purpose. This also is the testimony of General
Waltere on 38.3 at page 3410.

Mr. Ehrlichman denied this, and his denial is found at 38.4, at page
2835. about the meeting with Mr. Walters and Mr. Dean on the 26th.

Tab 39.

Mr. Davis. Tab 39. On the morning of June 27, 1972, Gray met with

INIark Felt and Charles Bates of the FBI to receive a briefing on the

latest Watergate break-in developments. During that briefing. Doan
telephoned Gray. Gray has testified that in the ensuing convernation

ho told Dean that if Dahlberg continued to evade the FBI, Dahlberg
would be called before a grand jury. Gray also has testified that he

asserted to Dean the importance of an aggressive FBI investigation

to determine the motive and identity of all persons involved.

On June 27, 1972, CIA Director,' Helms, received a memorandum
from the Chief of the Western Hemisphere Division of the CIA stat-

ing that there were no CIA traces on Manuel Ogarrio and that the

CIA's last contact with a person named Kenneth Dahlberg occurred

in 1961 and concerned the manufacturing of a hearing aid for a high-

level Peruvian. Later that day. Helms told Gray that the CIA had no

interest in Ogarrio. Helms confirmed with Gray their plan to meet the

following day.
Mr. Doar. Tab 39.1 is the memorandum from Mr. Shackley, the

Chief of the Western Hoi^-ti sphere Division. It is a memorandum to
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the Director of General Intellifrence with respect to these two gentle-

men, Dahlberg and Ogarrio. You will see that they report that there

is no CIA traces on Ogarrio and tliat the last contact reported with
Dahlberg was in May 1961.

Tab 38.2 is Patrick Gray's logs which he indicates that he saw there

or spoke to Mr. Dean in the morning, and then spoke to Mr. Helms
in the late morning, and then in the afternoon again spoke to Mr.
Helms at 3 :40.

Tab 30.3 is Mr. Gray's testimony in which he tells Mr. Helms that

his position was that they were going to conduct an aggressive uivesti-

gation. Tab No. 40.

Mr. Davis. Tab 40. On June 28, 1972, at 10 :25 a.m. Dean telephoned
Xi. Patrick Gray about rumors of leaks from the FBI, the material from
Hunt's safe, a slowdown in the investigation and the tracing of the
Mexican money. According to Gray, he may have told Dean during
this conversation of the meeting lie had scheduled with Helm.s for 2 :30

p.m. that day. At 10 :45 a.m.. Dean n:iet with John Ehrlichman. At
10:55 a.m. Ehrlichjnan telephoned Gray. Gray has testified that when
he returned the call at 11 :17 a.m., Ehrlichman said, "Cancel your meet-
ing with Helms and Walters today ; it is not necessary." At 11 :23 a.m.
Gray called Helms to cancel their meeting. Helms asked Gray to call

oil interviews which the FBI had scheduled Avith two CIA employees.
In July 1971 pursuant to a request from Ehrlichman to Deputy CIA

Director Robert Cusliman, the two CIA employees had provided
Howard Hunt with disguises, hidden cameras and other material for
use in domestic clandestine operations. In requesting CIA assistance
for Hunt, Ehrlichman had told Cushm.an that Hunt "has been asked
by the President to do some special consulting work on security
problems."

iMr. DoAR. Tab 40.1 is the log of that day showing the conversation
of 10:25 with Mr. Dean and then 10:55 on the second page of that
log, it is the Gray log, ISIr. Jenner points out, Mr. Ehrlichman's call,

and then at 11 :17, Mr. Gray then spoke to Mr. Ehrlichman. At 11 :25

Mr. Ehrlichman called Mr. Helms, and you see at tab 40.2 at page 3455
at the first full paragraph

:

At 10 :.55 a.m. on this same day Mr. Ehrlichman called me. I was not available
but I returned his call at 11 :17 a.m. His first words issued abruptly were, "Cancel
your meeting with Helms and Walters today ; it is not necessary." I asked him
for his reasons, and he simply said that such a meeting is not necessary. Then I
asked him point blank who was going to make the decisions as to who is to be
interviewed. He responded, "You do."

Tab 40.3 is John Ehrlichman's log showing a meeting with John
Dean.
Tab 40.4 is Mr. Ehrlichman's testimony about that.

Tab 40.5 is Mr. FCelms testimony with respect to the fact that there
were not traces of these two men in the CIA.
Tab 40.6 is Mr. Helms' memorandum dated June 28 in which Gray

called to Mr. Helms and said, "Cancel our meeting scheduled for 2 :30

this afternoon."
And then I read the second paragraph of that where Mr. Helms

writes

:

I informed [deleted] and [deleted] this morning in preparation for the sched-
uled meeting this afternoon that the agency is attempting to distance itself from
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this investigation, aud I wanted them along as "reference files" to participate in

tlie conversation we requested, I told them that I wanted no free wheeling exposi-

tion of hypotheses or any effort made to conjecture about responsibility or likely

objectives of the Watergate Investigation.

In short, at such a meeting it is up to the FBI to lay some cards on the table.

Otherwise we are unable to be of help. In addition, we still adhere to the request

that they coutine themselves to the personnel already arrested or directly under
suspicion, and that they desist from expanding their investigation into other areas

which might eventually run afoul of our operations."

Tab 40,7 is an affidavit with the name withheld in which there was a

call by Mr. Ehrlichman to Mr. Ciishman.
Tab 40,7 is an affidavit by a CIA employee in which he describes the

assistance that was given to i^Ir. Hunt by the CIA in July and August
of 1971 when Mr. Hunt was a member of the Wliite House Investigat-

ing Unit, Special Investigating Unit, and it goes into detail about the

disguises and the other equipment that the CIA furnished to Mr, Hunt,
Mr. DoAR. Tab 40.8 is a memorandum describing the location of the

conversation, a recorded conversation, a partial transcript of a con-

versation between John Ehrlichman and General Cushman on July 7,

1071, This conversation was not located until some time later, the exact

date being—I do not recall the exact date. But at any rate, tliis affidavit

explains hov\- they found this teleplione conversation later, I think it

was February 4, 1074, If you look at the top of the second page, it says

"During the morning,"
Take 40.8, second page of the affidavit, paragraph 4,

During the morning of February 4, 1974, I went through the papers in my
safe in order to determine if any misplaced transcripts of conversations were
hx'ated there. At the bottom of the second drawer were two folders of material
that contained information used for General V»'alters orientation briefings after
ho was appointed Deputy Director of Central Intelligence in March 1972. Under
these briefings files I found a brown folder containing ten stenographic notes
summarizLiig General Cushman's telephone conversations with members of the
White House staff in 1969, 1970, and 1971. In this folder was a summary of Gen-
eral Cushman's 7 July 1971 conversation with Mr. .John Ehrlichman.

Five. These stenographic notes in this folder included summaries of General
Cushman's conversations with Dr. Kissinger on leaks of intelligence report in

the press, and his request for an analytical paper on Cambodia.

This is most of that conversation. It is a telephone call to General
Cushman from John Ehrlichman dated July 7, 1971,

Mr. Ehrlichman : I want to alert you that an old acquaintance, Howard Hunt,
has been asked by the President to do some special consultant work on security
problems. He may be contacting you sometime in the future for some assistance.
I wanted you to know that he was in fact doing somethings for the President.
He is a longtime acquaintance with the people here. He may want some help
on computer runs and other things. You should consider he has pretty much
carte blanche.

Mr. Chairman, that completes book II of volume 2. 1 would like now
to distribute the materials that we will ask the committee to take up
tomorrow morning at the meeting at o'clock.

The Chairman. You will be distributing also the statements which
have been filed by jMr. St. Clair regarding the subpenas?
Mr. DoAR, Yes, Each folder has a member's name on it, and the

justification for the subpena and Mr. St. Clair's document is contained
therein. Shall we go aliead and do that now, Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. I would suggest that you merely distribute the ma-

terial, and we do not expect to hear any arguments one way or the
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other. The statements will suffice, and the members of the committee-
will make judgment based on the information they have.
Mr. SEnsERLiNG. Mr. Chairman, may I make a parliamentary

inquiry ?

The Chairman. ]Mr. Seiberling.
Mr. Seiberling. I believe there is a Democratic Caucus tomorrow

at 8 :30.

The Chairman. No, the Democratic Caucus is at 10 o'clock, and the
business meeting is scheduled for 9 o'clock. The Chair intends to recess
this phase of the hearing until 10 o'clock tomorrow.

Mr. Seiberling. Are we meeting tomorrow morning; throusrhout the
morning f

The Chairman. We are meeting tomorrow morning in a special busi-
ness meeting at 9 o'clock.

]Mr. Seiberling. But we are going to recess at 10 o'clock for the
Democratic
The Chairman. We are going to recess now until 10 o'clock tomor-

row. I understand that we will be alerted when there is a vote on the
matter that is going to be debated so that members may be able to go,

those that have a question in the caucus.
Mr. Seiberling. Do the rules permit us to hold a hearing when a

caucus is in progress ?

Tlie Chairman. The rules of the House permit us to meet. The rules

of the caucus are otherwise. I think there is an admonition on the pait
of the caucus. But this is a matter that I think the Chair considers of
importance, and I know tliat if the members v/ant to rrct on to tlie

floor to cast their vote, they will have every opportunity to do so.

Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman, point of clarification. The meeting at

9 o'clock is on the subpena matter.

The Chairman. We have a business meeting scheduled for 9 o'clock.

?-Tr. PTungatf. And at 10 o'clock, we resume?
The (Chairman. We resume this hearing at 10 o'clock.

Mr. Waldie. Is the business meeting open ?

The Chairman. Yes, the business meeting is open.

Mr. Waldie. May I ask a question involving Mr. St. Clair's partici-

]:)ation ? This is the first definition today of a new extent of participa-

tion, the right of Mr. St. Clair to present a written argument against a

recommendation of the staff. I have no particular objection at this

moment to that, but I want to clarify procedures in the future.

Will such requests on the part of Mr. St. Clair be submitted to the

committee for approval or rejection in the future?

The Chairman. I think that as the Chair reads the rules on proce-

dure, Mr. St. Clair is being accorded an opportunity to participate

during the course of the hearing. The question as to whether or not

Mr. St. Clair would be accorded an opportunity to either file a state-

ment or not for consideration by the commiittee is something that has

not been debated or considered by the committee. It would seem to me,

however, that since tlie Ch.air is alrendy aware and all the membors
are aware of the position that has been expressed with regard to this,

it is a matter of public knowledge with regard to subpenas that would
be requested—or requests that would be made, that it would certainly

be in accordance with our desire to accord every opportunity, and yet
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nt the same time, I think extend a courtesy and nothing more to Mr.
St. Clair.

Mr. Waldie. I do not want my remarks misconstrued. If the question
had been presented on this issue, I would have voted for it. But I just

caution the Chair that this is a privilege that we are extending and
it ought not to be a precedent act today so that in the future, if similar
requests are made, they may be entertained but not granted by right.

The Chairman. I think that is a matter that is understood. I think
that all of us are aware of the fact that requests have been made and
responses have come back from Mr. St. Clair on the instructions of the

President.

Mr. Waldie. Then, Mr. Chairman, may I just make one further re-

quest that as a matter of procedure, the Chair submit the request for

a unanimous consent action on the part of the committee to protect the

Chair as well as to afford each member of the committee any oppor-
tunity they might wish
The Chairman. The Chair would be delighted to do that.

Mr. CoNYERS. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. Mr. Chairman, in connection with the caucus com-

ing up in the morning. I suppose the Chair is advised of the importance
of the matter and that he communicates with the chairman of the

caucus so that if there is any way that these important meetings can
be coordinated so that INIembers do not have to decide between these

historic proceedings and urgent legislative decisions that are made in

the Congress, it would greatly facilitate the important decisions we
have to make. I understand there is a very important matter under dis-

cussion tomorrow.
The Chairman. T was advised of this meeting only recently and we

had already scheduled these hearings. I tried to arrange that Members
would be alerted to any votes that might be coming up. I had hoped
that the gentleman who called the meeting for tomorrow on the issue

that we know is of importance would have been aware that this meet-
ing, too. on our part, is important. But there was no way, either, of de-

laying this meeting, and I thought this was the best accommodation
we could make.
Mr. Conyers. T thank the chairman.
Mr. Wiggins. ]\Tr. Chairman, I am somewhat puzzled by an observa-

tion of the chairman in response to a question by Mr. Waldie. It is my
understanding that the chairman believes that the privilege of the
President's counsel to submit written arguments on a given proposi-
tion requires the unanimous consent of the body and that any one mem-
ber can object to such participation by him ?

The Chairman. No, I think that the gentleman merely stated that
he would suggest that the Chair submit it for unanimous consent re-

quest, nothing more.
Mr. Waldie. If that is not rendered, then I would suggest that a vote

will be required.

Mr. Wiggins. As long as it is not subject to one person's veto, I have
no problem with that.

The Chairman. Well, I suppose if there were an objection, the com-
mittee would have to take that up.
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Mr. Butler. My. Chairman ?

Mr. HuNGAiTi;. Mr. Chairman?
The CiiAiRMAx, Mr. Hungate.
Mr. HuNGATE. I do not know how I understand it, but I wonld be

quite content that the Chair rule on these matters and that of course,

such nilinofs be subject to appeaL
The CiiAiRMAX. This is the ordinary way in which such procedures

are handled. That has not specifically been covered, however, in our
rules of procedure and the gentleman was correct in raising the

question.

Mr. Setberlixg. ]Mr. Chairman, I would like to miake the suggestion

and if necessary the motion that when we recess this hearing, we re-

cess it until 10 :30 instead of until 10 o'clock tomorrow morning so tliat

those of us who wish to do so may have the opportunity to attend for

purposes of establishing a quorum at the Democratic Caucus. I would
think that woidd not be
The Chairman. It is the prerogative of the Chair, if the members-

feel that tliey will not be able to have sufficient time to go on to the

floor and vote during the caucus, I thought that at 10 o'clock, we would
have resumed our hearings and then we would be alerted and I am sure

the members would have an opportunity to go and vote and come on
back.

]\Ir. Seibereing. Well, I think that is

The Chairman. That would give us an opportunity to be able to go-

on with the morning hearings.

Mr. Seibereing. But do we not also have to establish our presence at

the caucus at the start of the caucus so that we may be there for pur-

poses of a quorum ?

The Chairman. I must inform the gentleman that that is not a com-
mittee matter, that is a matter for the members of the Democratic Cau-
cus. I am afraid that while we should be discussing this as Democrats,
this is a matter that is taking the time of the committee and is not

reallj' in order.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. Mr. Chaii-man?
The Chairman. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. I have a question for Mr. Doar respecting the

dictabelt conversation.

The dictabelt conversation on the 20th, is there some testimony in

the court proceeding that that dictabelt conversation, the silence being
engendered by tampering with that belt ?

Mr. DoAR. No ; there is not. My understanding is that the experts

have made no i-eport with respect to that -lo-second silence.

Ms. Holtzman. But they are making a report, they have been asked
to make a report with respect to that?

Mr. DoAR. I think they have been asked to make an investigation

with respect to all of the recordings that have been furnished to the

court, the tape recordings, with respect to any seconds of silence. To-
date they have only submitted the report on the 18iA-minute silence

on the 20th of June.
Ms. Holtzman. I just think it would be helpful if you would indicate

to us that these matters are under investigation, that there will be-

reports made so that we will know that the silence, for example, has.-.
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no been conclusively establisliecl one way or the other. It would be
helpful to me.
Mr. DoAR. I cannot go that far, Ms. Holtzman. The matter is, as

I understand it, under consideration. What the experts will come up
with one way or the other. I cannot tell you.

Ms. Holtzman. Thank you.

Mr. Froehlich. Mr. Cliairman ?

The CiiAirvMAN. Mr. Froehlich ?

Mr. Froehlich. Inasmuch as we have discussed tab 27 and there

have been some questions on it, can we have that information made
available, the information that would have been in tab 27, for the

members of the committee tomorrow morning ?

The Chairman. Yes; counsel has already stated that they will have
it.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. I would like to call counsel's attention to some-

thing that Mr. Smith discovered which may be very relevant. I had
made a cfuestion here, is not it important to establish when Hunt went
on the CRP payroll; also, what was he doing there? I do not know if

we tried to get those records.

Then Mr. Smith pointed out to me that in paragraph 37.2, item 5,.

there Is a reference to INIr. Hunt's time records and payroll records,

respecting his—kind of in support of—charges to the White Plouse.

I would think that might be very relevant material.

The Chairman. Mr. Edwards ?

Mr. Edwards. Mr. Chairman, I think we can presume that the
documents delivered to us are not subject to the rules of confiden-
tiality, is that correct, both Mr. St. Clair's memorandum and your
memorandum ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct. The materials that are set forth in those
justifications do not include materials that are within the rules of
confidentiality.

Furthermore, they were submitted to the committee in a public
meeting the night that we had the subpena, so they have been available

to the public already.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. In the various justifications which we have received

previously, many of the citations are simply stated as material in

possession of the committee. Will that be explained or furnished to us.

tomorrow before we decide on our vote ?

Mr. Doar. Yes.
Mr. Dennis. Thank you.
Mr. McClort. Mr. Chairman, could I ask •

The CiiAiitMAN. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. I will withdraw that.

The Chairman. The Chair would like to merely suggest that in

order to preclude the press and other outsiders from entering the room
while the books and earphones are on the desks, may I suggest that we
leave the full committee room by the side entrances from the rostrum
rather than by the doors at the back of the room? This will greatly

aid our security.
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Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman, may I make an observation?
With respect to Mr. Doar's saying this is confidential, I have just

briefly skimmed
The Chairman. No, no, Mr. Doar stated it is not confidential.
Mr. HoGAN. That is my statement, but Mr. St. Clair's memorandum

refers to the evidentiary presentation. We certainly would want to
know what the evidentiary presentation is that is in ]Mr. St. Clair's

memorandum.
iMr. Doar. I have not had a chance to read Mr. St. Clair's memo-

randum so

IMr. rioGAN. It might be well to look at it before we make it public
information, because he has specifically referred to the evidence we
have heard.

The Chairman. If there is any reference to the evidence that we
have heard which is confidential, since there has been a great deal of
the testimony which has been produced before us, which comes from
executive sessions of the various committees of the Congress, then it

would seem to me that the matter that has been called to our attention

by the gentleman from Maryland. Mr. St. Clair's memorandum, on
this would be considered confidential along with the others.

Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman, you are going to get yourself into an
awful bind here. We have a public meeting tomorrow. It is a business

meeting. Mr. St. Clair's document is part of that open meeting. Now,
you cannot have it both ways, I do not think, ]VIr. Chairman, or we are

all going to get into some real trouble on this issue.

Mr. St. Clair, if he has introduced into his memorandum con-

fidential materials to avoid us having a subpena issued, is going to pre-

clude us from presenting his arguments to the public and if we
accept his arguments, the public will never understand why we have

not issued the subpena. We cannot permit that to happen, I do not

think, jSIr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Well, I think that the Chair cannot conclude that

the material is other than evidentiary material that has been referred

to in the confidential matters that we have had presented to us. I do
not know how I am going to conclude otherwise, other than to state

that we forego the rules of confidentiality as a committee and I do not

know if this is a matter that I can act on alone.

Mr. HoGAN. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. St. Clair, according to my understanding, will in no way par-

ticipate in our meeting tomorrow morning.
The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. HoGAN. So this material in his memorandum, there is no reason

for it to be made a part of the public record.

Mr. Waldie. There is every reason for it to be part of the public

record.

Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman, may I inquire ? Would it be in order
or would it help to inquire if Mr. St. Clair or Mr. Doar or either one
of them has any objection to the documents being made public?

The Chairman. May I inquire, Mr. St. Clair, has this document
been released in any way whatsoever other than to members of the

committee at this time ?

Mr. St. Clair. No, it has not and will not be released unless the

Chair or the committee indicate that they will be released.
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Mr. Drinan. I move that they be released.

The Chairman". We cannot take any action here. This is not a busi-
ness meeting.

IVIr. DoAR. Mr. Chairman, the difficulty with this memorandum is

that it does go into the evidence that we presented at the last two
executive sessions, at the last executive session. It makes allegations
with respect to what was suggested at the meeting and it really seems
to me, frankly, on examination of this memorandum, that the com-
mittee really ought not to consider it. It ought to just return it. It is

going to make it impossible for the committee to control its rules of
confidentiality if this sort of brief is permitted to be received.

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, would it be in order to open in the
morning in an executive meeting and make a decision on this matter?
Then if we see fit to go public, we can vote on that, I suppose ?

The Chairman. Well, the committee can always move to close the
meeting. That is a matter that we can take up in the morning.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Yes.

Mr. McClort. I suggest that we take our counsel's advice and return
the memorandum that Mr. St. Clair delivered

Mr. Hutchinson. No sir.

Mr. HoGAN. No. Mr. Chairman, I think we solve the problem if we
just all agree to include the memorandum under the rules of con-
fidentiality. That is all

Mr. Waldie. Object, Mr. Chairman. I would object to that strongly.

It is going to be in an open session and that will force a vote on it.

The Chairman. The Chair would like to state that since we are not
now in a business meeting, we cannot make a decision of that sort
which would become a valid and official decision of this committee,
and I would have to defer it until tomorrow, until we have our busi-

ness meeting, and then take up the question as to whether or not
Mr. Mezvinskt. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. MEz\aNSKY. I am concerned that unless we resolve this today,

this memo is going to be leaked out and we will have all kinds of
problems about the confidentiality. We have made very clear that Mr.
St. Clair has to abide by the same rules of confidentiality that every
member of this committee does. I think that his memo does, in a sense,
raise serious points as to the presentation by Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner
and I think that we really have to resolve it now, because if we do not
resolve it, I am very fearful that in fact, this memo will be released
to the press.

So I think we have to make it clear that it is either in or out.

_
And my God, they are just lined up out there. There were 100 of them

lined up at noon ; there are probably 150 by the time we get out of here
tonight.

The Chairman. The Chair would like to advise that all we have
to do in order to have a business meeting is to suspend the rules en-
tirely and to have a business meeting on this particular item.
Mr. Waldie. Then we have to open the doors and let the press in.

Mr. Hungate. Mr. Chairman, I would urge the Chair to rule, what-
ever power the Chair has to rule, as to whether or not this document
is to be received at this time, with no idea that it cannot be received
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later ; and second, if it is received, whether or not it is under the doc-

trine of confidentiality.

The Chairman. The Chair will have to state that until this time,

the Chair had had no opportunity to study the document and had no
idea that it would contain materials which were confidential, which
could not be discussed at an open meeting, and therefore, the Chair
will have to defer judgment on that at this time, until we have a

business meeting.

Mr. Thornton. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. Mr. Chairman, what would be wrong witli the proce-

dure of returning the documents to Mr. St. Clair this evening and mak-
ing it a point of decision to be made in the morning at the regular meet-

ing, either in executive session or public session, as the Chair might
assume? I would think it might need to be taken into account at an
executive session in the morning.
The Chairman. If there is no objection, this is not a business meet-

ing, but the Chair at this time will state again that it has had no op-

portunity to review this and that I think if Mr. St. Clair will please

listen to my remarks, I am going to state that at this time, the Chair is

not going to accept this document for the committee and Mr. St. Clair

may, at tomorrow morning's meeting, then decide whether or not he
wants to offer this at that time.

Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman, I do not know whether this matter ought
to be brought up, but is the stenographer who typed this stencil in-

cluded in the access to the evidence ? It was my understanding that Mr.
St. Clair and his assistant were included, but I did not know that per-

sonnel at the White House wlio must have typed this were also included

or given access to it.

The Chairman. I have no idea whether they were or were not

included.
Mr. Hogan. I assume Mr. St. Clair or his assistant did not type this.

The Chairman. I have no knowledge as to who typed it.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, are we prepared to get to the motion
to recess until tomorrow ? Because at that time, I would like to make a

specific motion that we recess until 10 :30 instead of 10 o'clock.

The Chairman. The Chair will advise the gentleman that there

is no need to make a motion to recess. The Chair can recess at any
time and the Chair will now recess until 10 o'clock tomorrow morning.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman, are we going to return these ?

The Chairman. I have stated that this will be turned back.

[Whereupon, at 5:20 p.m., the committee recessed to reconvene at

10 a.m., Wednesday, May 15, 1974.]
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The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9 :20 a.m., in room 2141,
Rayburn House Office Building, Plon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr. (chair-

man) presiding.

Present: Representatives Rodino (presiding), Donohue, Brooks,
Kastenmeier, Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, Waldie, Flowers,
Mann, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Rangel, Jordan,
Thornton, Ploltzman, Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, McClory,
Smith, Sandman, Railsback, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, Mayne, Hogan,
Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froehlich, Moorhead, Maraziti, and Latta.

Impeachment inquiry staff present: John Doar, special counsel;
Albert E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority ; Samuel Garri-
son III, deputy minority counsel; Evan A. Davis, counsel; William
Weld, counsel.

Committee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general counsel ; Gar-
ner J. Cline, associate general counsel; and Franklin G. Polk, asso-

ciate counsel.

The Chairman. The committe will come to order. The Chair would
like to make several announcements.

Informational data whicli the staff has prepared for this morning's
meeting is being distributed now, with copies of the subpenas which
will be considered for issuance by the committee as well as other in-

formational data which has just come to our attention.

The Chair also expects to call a recess at sometime after it is notified

by the Democratic Caucus that there may be a vote on a very impor-
tant issue in the Democratic Caucus this morning and the Chair in-

tends to recess as soon as that notification is received. Otherwise, this

morning's meeting is a meeting which has been scheduled to consider

whether to authorize the issuance of two subpenas calling for specific

documents in the possession and under the control of the President

of the United States.

(639)
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As has been noted in the press, yesterday, during our executive ses-

sion, Mr. St. Clair, counsel for the President, presented to Mr. Doar
a document entitled "Response on Behalf of the President to Request
of Special Staff that a Subpena Issue for a Tape of Presidential Con-
versation of April 4, 1972, 4 :13 to 4 :50 p.m."

I directed that this material be included with the special counsel's

justification for subpena and be distributed to the members prior to
the meeting. I did not then realize that the response was in fact a
lawyer's brief on the evidentiary material which the committee had
received under its rules of confidentiality in executive session, as well
as other information, including quotes from Presidential conversa-
tions that had been recorded. After initially examining the document
and discussing the matter with other committee members, I realized

that its distribution would affect the committee's rules of confidential-

ity and that it was in fact an argument as to relevance. I then directed
that the document be returned to Mr. St. Clair and this was done.
Our procedures do not provide for argument by President's counsel

with respect to issuance of a subpena. H. Res. 803, under which
this committee is now proceeding, authorized the committee to require
by subpena the production of such things as it deems necessary to such
investigation, and this was without qualification and only with rela-

tion to matters that are relevant and necessary to the conduct of this

inquiry under our constitutional mandate to do so.

As the committee has said before, it is not for the President nor his

counsel nor anyone else to make a determination for us as to what is

necessary or relevant for our inquiry. Under the constitution, it is not
within the power of the President to determine which evidence and
what portion of that evidence is necessary or relevant to such an in-

quiry. This is a matter which, under the constitution, only the House
has the sole power to determine and the House has delegated this

authority to this Committee On the Judiciary. Our procedures do not

provide for arguments with respect to the issuance of subpena for

specific docmnents before a subpena is issued. The committee, of course,

will consider carefully whether the staff has justified and will justify

the issuance of any subpena, but it will do so only under that proce-

dure or procedures which will preserve the integrity of the process in

which we are engaged and the Chair is going to guard very carefully

these procedures and insure that we not be diverted in our inquiry.

Those procedures do not and should not provide for argument by Pres-

ident's counsel based on a contention that the President's position is

that he has submitted to the committee all of the evidence that is rel-

evant to his activities in the Watergate and the Watergate coverup or

other matters that this committee is considering. I am sure that this

committee will not go beyond the scope of its authority. However, it

wants to preserve to itself the right, as is our right under the resolu-

tion under which we are acting, to proceed in this deliberate manner
and to make a determination as to what material is necessary and to

seek and search out that material. For that purpose, we are now pro-

ceeding with this meeting to justify the issuance of a subpena for

materials which we consider relevant, and those are conversations

which are specifically referred to.

I might also point out that Mr. St. Clair only a while ago presented

to Mr. Doar, our counsel, a letter and other informational data, and
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before proceeding any further, I will ask Mr. Doar to read the letter

which Mr. St. Clair just presented to him.
Mr. Doar. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, this morning

at about a few minutes after 9, I was handed this letter from Mr.
St. Clair which reads as follows

:

"Dear Mr. Doar." It is dated May 15.

Dear Mr. Doar:
I have rewritten my memorandum submitted through you to the committee

yesterday so as to eliminate all references to matters not contained in the public
record in order to obviate the necessity of disclosing confidential materials. I

request that you submit this redrafted memorandum to the committee.
I also include a memorandum in opposition to the special staff request that

a subpena issue for tapes of recorded conversations between the President and
Haldeman on June 23, 1972. I have excluded all references to materials not con-

tained in the public record here as well.

Sincerely, James D. St. Clair, Special Counsel to the President.

The Chairman. I would like to advise the committee since this ma-
terial which Mr. St. Clair has now submitted may serve as informa-
tional data, I have instructed Mr. Doar to distribute that material,

and the members of the committee may utilize it for their delibera-

tions. But nonetheless, we will proceed in tliis orderly fashion and
I am sure that there was no intent on the part of Mr. St. Clair—we
discussed this quite at length with him yesterday-—there was no at-

tempt on his part to try to violate rules of confidentiality, and thia

matter, I think, is best resolved in this w^ay.

Mr. Doar, will you please proceed with your statement regarding
the justification for the issuance of these subpenas ?

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I have a parliamentary inquiry.

IHIr. DANif:LSoN. I have an inquiry, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. There is a gentleman in a tan colored suit sitting

at counsel table. I do not know who he is. I would like to know who he
is, please.

Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen, that is William
Weld, who is a member of the Constitution and Law Task Force of

the staff.

Mr. Danielson. Fine, thank you.

The Chairman. Mi-. Dennis ?

Mr. Dennis. I would agree with you, Mr. Chairman, that this com-
mittee of course has the right to determine whether or not we will

issue subpenas, but if the chairman is announcing as a rule and a pro-

gram for the future that we are going to have the practice of issuing

subpenas without hearing argument as to why they should not be

issued before we act, I, as one member of this committee, respectfully

dissent from that procedure. I think in some cases it might be exceed-

ingly necessary and only fair to hear the reasons to the contrary and,

personally, before I cast a vote on such a matter, I would like to have

that opportunity.
The Chairman. The gentleman will be protected in his right to

make whatever argument he wants in opposition to the subpena, but

there will be no argument offered at this meeting or any other meeting

by counsel for the President or anyone else, since this is a matter that

is going to be a determination solely by the members of this committee.
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Mr. Dennis. If the chairman will yield, the chairman misappre-
hends my statement, I think. I have no doubt I will be entitled to be
heard and I am not at all sure that I am going to oppose this subpena.
It seems to me, prima facie, that a fairly good showing has been made
here by the staff. What I am objecting to is the unilateral statement of
the Chair that in no case will we hear argument on behalf of the coun-
sel for the President. I do not parricularly cai'e even on this occasion,
but I do not think we have adopted such a rule by the committee. We
may want to heai' it at some time. If we do, I want to hear it. I do not
particularly care for taking the position that the committee is never
going to take argument.
The Chairman. The committee's rules of procedure only provide for

the participation of counsel for the President during the course of
our inquiry liearings. He is not to be a participant during our delibera-

tions at any meeting where these matters are considered by the com-
mittee solely. The committee is acting under the authority of the
resolution of the House which was voted by a vote of 410 to 4 giving
us absolute authority to inquire and to make our inquiry based on
material that is relevant. We alone make that determination.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Plungate.

Mr. IlrNOATE. Mr. Chairman, we have been concerned all along that
we have fairplay here. Is the President's counsel here or someone on
his behalf today ? I see no one at the table.

The Chairman. No; President's counsel is not here.

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, this is a public meeting and they
would be entitled to be here?
The (^Hairman. Yes.-

Mr. IIuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, I have not read a copy of th.e original

brief Mr. St. Clair submitted to us. I do not have a press card. But I

have read it in the paper and I am interested in its statement; if it is

correctly stated—that is why I was interested to see if counsel for the
President should be here. "Furthermore, tliis analysis supports the

contention of the President that he has indeed submitted to the com-
mittee all of the evidence that is relevant to his activities in the Water-
gate matter." Because I take it he would see no need to call any wit-

nesses, then, on the Watergate part of this inquiry.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. May I make this further inquiry, following through

on Mr. Dennis' remarks? That is this: While I am not going to argue
with the chairman as far as the procedure this morning is concerned,

I do feel that if we do get to the point of calling witnesses, witnesses

that the committee may want to call or witnesses that Mr. St. Clair

may want to suggest, they should be called by this committee and we
will be making that decision. It seems to me that under those circum-

stances, Mr. St. Clair will be participating with regard to the question

as to whether or not we issue subpenas for the calling of witnesses.

That is why I wonder if we do not need to have the same rule with
regard to the issuance of subpenas duces tecum as we would with

respect to the issuance of subpenas to command the presence of

witnesses before our committee.
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Would you care to answer that question, Mr. Chairman ? Or could
counsel assist us on that ?

Do you see any distinction between counsel participating in the ques-
tion as to what witnesses may or may not be called by the committee,
either at the request of the committee or at the request of Mr. St. Clair ?

The Chairman. I might respond to that for the gentleman and ad-
vise the gentleman that we are proceeding under the impeachment
inquiry procedures. If the gentleman will revert to rule A (4), the
gentleman will read that the President and his counsel shall be invited
to attend and observe the presentation, and following the presentation,
the committee shall determine whether it desires additional evidence.
Then it goes on to say that President's counsel shall be invited to
respond to the presentation, orally or in writing. It shall be determined
by the committee. He may also make written requests concerning
witnesses. That, I think, sets specifically the role of the President's
counsel in these proceedings.
Mr. Dennis. Will the gentleman from Illinois yield ?

Mr. McClort. Yes, I yield to the gentleman.
Mr. Dennis. I thank the gentleman, and I would simply like to

observe that there is not a court in the land where counsel for the very
lowliest citizen in the land would not be heard on the subject of issuing

a subpena. This committee considering the case of the President of the
United States is unique.

Mr. McClory. May I conclude, Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. The gentleman will just for a moment
Mr. McClory. I would like to conclude with one statement, Mr.

Chairman.
I think it is inherent in our proceedings and the desire of the com-

mittee to be completely fair with the President to permit the represen-

tative of the President to participate with regard to the issuance of

subpenas for witnesses or with regard to the issuance of subpenas
duces tecum.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman, you made it very clear, I think, that

if Mr. St. Clair wants to submit any information, which he has done,

he can do that. I think he has the opportunity to submit his point of

view. He is not closed out, but he is just not going to participate in

our proceedings. I think that point is very clear and I hope we can get

on with the business at hand.
Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman, I never practiced law in Indiana, but

apropos of the statement of the gentleman from Indiana, Mr. Dennis,

I have never heard of a situation in which counsel for an opposing

party had any voice whatsoever in the issuance of a subpena by the

opposite party. To me, that would be the height of absurdity in a

court of law, let alone in a grand inquiry such as we have before us

here today.

Likewise, I would like to point out that the debate we are having

this morning is a natural, direct, and necessary result of the ridiculous

rule we adopted last week, to give President's counsel an unrealistic
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voice in these proceedings. I suggest we are going to want to change
that rule before long.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling.
Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, I have quickly read these two

memorandums that Mr. St. Clair submitted to us and if this is any
example of the kind of argument that he expects to present to this
committee, then I would suggest that we are quite proper on the merits
in refusing to entertain that kind of lack of substance in terms of
presentations to the committee. It is the most incredible mishmash of
irrelevancies that I have seen and it is not worth the paper
it is written on.

Mr. Railsback. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. As a member of the subcommittee that helped to draw

up the rules, I would think that we have complied with the rules and
Mr. St. Clair has been given all of the procedural rights to which he
is entitled.

Presuming that we have now completed a section of the presentation,

we are therefore following B 1, 2, and 3. Following that presentation,
the committee shall determine whether it wants additional evidence.

Consequently, under 3, the President's counsel has done what he is

entitled to do ; namely, he has given additional evidence in that he has
submitted written requests. I think therefore we have given him
everything that the rules entitled him to.

The Chairman. Mr. Railsback, then we will go on with our proceed-
ings ; otherwise, we will never get to the question Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I just respectfully submit that Mr.
Seiberling's comments were a little bit, I thought, unfortunate. As I

understand it, Mr. St. Clair has made it pretty clear that he felt con-

strained not to include any of the references that he had in his other

memorandum, which T think gave a certain strength to his other
memorandum because of the possible violations of our rules on
confidentiality. So T am likely going to support the subpena, Mr.
Chainnan, but at the same time, I would like to ask the chairman if

our staff had been directed to determine what actions we might take
to enforce our subpenas. In other words, I have felt all along, as the
chaii-man knows, that at some point, we are going to have to really bite

the bullet and determine whether we are going to try to enforce our
subpenas; if we have to, to go to court.

Mr. Coisri-ERS. Would the gentleman yield to me on that?
Mr. Railsback. Yes.
Mr. CoNYERs. I had a motion on th nt the ver\^ first day we issued a

subpena and I wish you would reconsider it at this time.
Mr. Seiberling. Will the gentleman yield?
The Chairman. Mt. Doar.
Mr. Doar. Members of the committee, you have at your places this

morning forms, two copies of forms for two subpenas. The first

subpena

:

To Benjamin Marshall or his duly authorized representative : You are hereby
commanded to summon Richard M. Nixon, President of the United States of
America, or any subordinate officer, official or employee with custody or control
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of the things described in the attached schedule, to be and appear before the Com-
mittee on the Judiciary of the House of Representatives of the United States,

of which the Honorable Peter W. Rodino, Jr., is chairman, and to bring with him
the things specified in the schedule attached hereto and made a part hereof, in

their chamber in the City of Washington, on or before May 22, 1974, at the hour
of 10 a.m., then and thereto produce and deliver said things to said committee,
or their duly authorized representative, in connection with the committee's
investigation, authorized and directed by House Res. 803, adopted February 6,

1974.

Attached to this proposed subpena is a schedule of things required
to be produced pursuant to subpena of the committee on the Judi-
ciary. It reads

:

All tapes, dictabelts, or other electronic, and/or mechanical recordings, tran-

scripts, memoranda, notes or other writings or things relating to the following
conversations

:

1. Meetings among the President, Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Mitchell on April 4,

1972 from 4 :13 to 4 :50 p.m. and between the President and Mr. Haldeman from
G:03 to 6:18 p.m.

Mr. EiLBERG. Mr. Chairman. I wonder if we can dispense with
further reading of the subpena. T ask unanimous consent that we do
that, Mr. Chairman.

[No response.] •

The Chairmaist. Without objection.

ISIr. DoAR. Members of the committee, this subpena requests or com-
mands, would command the President of the United States to deliver
to the committee on or before May 22, 1974, at the hour of 10 o'clock any
recordings of 11 conversations on 3 days—April 4, June 20, and June
23, together with any notes, memorandums, dictabelts, or other
writings that relate to those conversations that are in the possession or
under the control of the President. The meetings on April 4 were be-

tween the President and Mr. Haldeman and Mr. ISIitchell and between
the President and Mr. Haldeman.
The conversations on June 20, 1972, were between Mr. Colson and

the President, three conversations between Mr. Colson and the
President and three conversations between Mr. Haldeman and the
President.

The conversations on June 23 were three conversations between Mr.
Haldeman and the IVesident.
The justification for those, for this application is before the com-

mittee members. It was submitted to the committee some time ago and
we initially requested this material from Mr. St. Clair on April 19,

1974, along with a number of other recorded conversations sub-
sequent thereto, Mr. St. Clair advised us that the President of the
United States had decided that no further material would be
furnished to the committee witli respect to the Watergate break-in or
its aftennath.
Now, the meeting on April 4 followed a meeting in Key Biscayne

between Mr. Magruder, Mr. LaEue, and Mr. ISIitchell with respect to
the Liddy plan, wliich was a plan for electronic surveillance of the
President's political opponents. ^Ir. Magruder has testified that this
plan was approved at that ineeting and it provided for, among other
things, entry into the Democratic National Committee headquarters.

Following that meeting, ^Ir. Strachan has testified that, it is a
matter of public record, that he sent a memorandum to Mr. Haldeman
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that advised him that a sophisticated intelligence gathering system
had been approved with a budget of $300,000.
The public testimony indicates that Mr. Mitchell was reluctant

about the approval of that meeting, of that plan. Mr. Strachan also

testified that lie prepared a talking paper for a meeting between Mr.
Haldeman and Mr. Mitchell which took place at 3 o'clock in Mr,
Haldeman's office on the first floor of the White House, the West Wing
of the White House, and that this talking paper referred to included a
reference to the sophisticated intelligence gathering system.
Mr. Haldeman has testified that the 3 o'clock meeting with Mr.

Mitchell was in conjunction with a 4 :15 meeting between the President
and Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Haldeman, in which matters relating to the
campaign and ITT were discussed.
Mr. Haldeman has also testified that his notes do not include a dis-

cussion of intelligence.

Following that meeting at 4 :50, Mr. Haldeman and the President
met alone for 15 minutes between 6 :03 and 6 :18.

il is the position of the inquiry staff that these conversations are
necessary for the committee to have for the purpose of determining
whether or not either of these conversations in any way bear upon the
President's knowledge or lack of knowledge with respect to the so-

called Liddy plan and that committee is entitled, has the responsibil-
ity, to seek out the best evidence with respect to that question and that
the committee knows that there was this recording system in the White
House and there is no reason to believe that this system w- as not opera-
tive on that date. For that reason, I feel that there is justification,

ample justification, for the issuance of the subpena.
With respect to the June 20 conversation, as I say, there are three

between the President and Mv. Colson and the President and Mr.
Haldeman. The committee will recall that this was 3 days following
the break-in at the Watergate Hotel, the Democratic National Head-
quarters. This was the first day that President Nixon had returned to

AVashington, and it w^as a day upon which there were a number of
meetings between members of the staff and the Committee To Re-
Elect the President. It is a matter of j^ublic record that the President
and JMr. Haldeman discussed for 18 minutes, 18 minutes on the morn-
ing of that day, the Watergate break-in; and that that particular
tape, the conversation on it was obliterated, and that all that remains
for anyone to hear is a buzzing noise.

During that same day, there were meetings, as I say, among Mr.
Ehrlichman, Mr. Mitchell, ]\Ir. Haldeman, Mr. Dean, Mr. Kleindienst,

in connection with the Watergate incident and the official Government
investigation. Mr. Strachan has testified that at Mr. Haldeman's direc-

tion, he shredded the political matters memorandum containing the

reference to the Liddy plan.

On that evening, the President spoke by telephone with Mr. Mitch-
ell. The recording of this conversation was subpenaed by the Special

Prosecutor but was not produced because it was not recorded. The
President's recorded recollection of that conversation was recorded.

Mr. Mitchell has testified about the President's recollection, or his

recollection of that conversation. After the conversation with Mr.
Mitchell, the President then had four telephone conversations with
Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Colson.
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Again, the question, one of the questions that the committee is in-

terested in is whether or not any of these conversations in any way bear
upon the knowledge or hick of knowledge or action or inaction by the
President witli respect to the official investigation of the Watergate
break-in. This would be the best evidence of conversations, discussions,

and decisions, if such discussions occurred. We therefore feel that this

request has been amply justified.

ilr. McClort. Mr. Cliairman, may I ask a question at this point?
The CiTMRiMAN. Mr. JSIcClory.

]Mr. McCi.oRT. Mr. Chairman, I note that Mr. St. Clair has presented
us with two memos, one with respect to opposition to the subpena re-

lating to the April 4 date and another relating to the June 23 date.

Do we have a memo of any objection with respect to the tapes and other
materials relating to the June 20 rec[uest that we have made ?

Mr. Jenner. No.
Mr. DoAR. No. We do not.

Mr. McClory. He did not say whether he was objecting or not
objecting?

Mr. DoAR. There was no indication one way or the other. I do not
have any information what the reason Avas for that.

Mr. Cohen. Mr. Chaii-man?
The Chairman. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Doar, I would like to direct a question to the technical wording

of tlie subpena. You Avill recall that at our meeting last week, there

was consid(^rable debate and division over your presentation of a

chart as far as the accuracy of your representations on the chart, in

that you seem to have drafted the previous subpena in the alternative

without clarifying or specifying as to whether you wanted tapes, mem-
orandums, dictabelts, and so forth. I would like to ask counsel, either

?v[r. Jenner or ^iv. Doar. whether in your opinion the drafting of this

subpena specifically includes everything in the alternative and the con-

junctix'c so that there will be no mistake that we are asking not only
for tiipes. bat in addition to that, any dictabelts and all dictabelts

and all memorandums, so that if just transcripts are turned over, we
will be satisfied that we have requested everything.

Mr. Doar. Congressman, we did review that, consider that, and it

Avas our judgment that we were asking for the memorandums, dicta-

belts. as well as tapes.

Mr. Cohen. You do not know of your own knowledge what is avail-

able, but you are saying that whatever is available, in existence, you
want.
Mr. Doar. We do not have any information as to what is available,

although we do know that on June 20, there was a recording system
operating.

Tlie Chairman. I am going to ask committee members to defer any
questions until Mr. Doar has finished his justification presentation on
the conversations relating to June 23.

Mr. Doar. The conversations on Jime 23 relating to three conversa-
tions between the President and Mr. Haldeman, both occurring before
and after a meeting that Mr. Helms and Mr. Ehrlichman—no, Mr.
Haldeman and INIr. Ehrlicliman had with Mr. Helms and Mr. Walters
of the CIA to determine the CIA's involvement and interest in the
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Watergate break-in and to request Mr. Walters to meet witli Acting
Director of the FBI, Mr. Gray, to insure that the FBI's investigation

not be expanded into mirelated matters which could lead to disclosure

of non-Watergate-related, covert CIA operations or other related na-

tional security activities that have been undertaken previously by
some of the Watergate participants. This was Mr. Haldeman's testi-

mony before the Senate select committee.
Tfie President has stated in a public statement of May 22, 1973, that

he instructed Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlichman to insure that the

FBI investigation of the Watergate break-in did not exposed either

unrelated covert operations of the CIA or the activities of the White
House Special Investigations Unit. It would seem that these coversa-

tions with Mr. Haldeman, both before and after the meeting with
Mr. Helms and General Walters, would be the best evidence of whether
any of these conversations in any way bore upon the subject of the

President's instructions and directions with respect to what approach
he wanted the CIA and the FBI to take to this investigation.

Finally, there is additional testimony that following that meeting,

General Walters, following the meeting with Mr. Haldeman and Mr.
Ehrlichman, General Walters met with Mr. Gray and stated to the

FBI that its Watergate investigation should not be pursued into Mex-
ico and should be tapered off with the five people arrested on June 17.

Mr. Gray, in response to that, agreed to postpone two interviews in-

volving funds in the bank account of Bernard Barker, one of the men
arrested in the Democratic National Committee headquarters.
That is the justification for this material that we requested on the

23d. Mr. Jenner.
Mr. Jenner. Thank you. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee.
As minority counsel, I am particularly concerned to see that there

is presented to the committee, and all of you, I am sure, share that
with me, all of that which is honorable and favorable on these im-
portant issues to the President. These are conversations that occurred
at a time, as you are now fully aware, when there might be a likeli-

hood of a discussion. There very likely was, but we do not know. And
if those recorded conversations do relate materials that indicate a
lack on the part, of the President or indicate, when you consider them,
if they are afforded to you, a misunderstanding between Presidential
aides and the President himself or eventually, an excess of zeal on
the part of Presidential aides, that would be very material and
necessary and desirable to your ultimate consideration of these mat-
ters. I have shared for some time, knowing somewhat in advance of
you the thrust of all the proof which you now have, substantially,

so far as these subpenas are concerned, that I would like to find, and
I frankly am franJdy pushed to state openly in front of all of you,
exonerative material. It appears to me that here is something direct, at
least that occurred as contemporaneously and in the course of a series

of events, that this House committee, carrying and discharging this

highest privilege granted in the Constitution, and acting highly re-

sponsibly as you havej that it hardly behooves us not to seek this.

Now, from a pure litigation standpoint, somewhere down the line,

if the tapes are not, if the President responds negatively to the sub-
pena, you, as lawyers, know that one of the things that may be under-
taken by you to consider is the inferences to be drawn, if any, from
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th« failure of a respondent to a subpena to produce that which he or

she is in control of or has actual possess on of and is able to respond

to the Xena. Technically, from a litigation standpoint, and you
to tne suDPena

^.g^Jest must be carried out to the point that

^l^ . .pm?Pst Ts made o? suggested to be made to inferences to be

X a'^frorfailurrto ^^
the respondent has been afforded

e^rTopp^rtmlity to exercise his privilege or her privilege to pro-

^
Mr^SrSlC^ m" Chairman, on that question, may I question Mr.

Jenner? ,, o j
The Chairman. Mr. bandman.

^iffimltv last
Mr Sandman. This is the area where we had o",^ dithculty last

time Mr Jenner We had previously requested some 42 tapes and the
time, ivir. demiei. yr 1

existed. Now, so tar

"'^rrnt'^dSoSot M^^^^^^ yourself to say that in each

ll'i^^JlZtyou^^^^ nofcertain as to whether or not thfs information

'"^Mr'lENNE? Welf, we are not certain, sir, we just cannot be certain,

w" a pr'fYsslonal, let me say, judgment that some of the tapes

"^Mr'tANDMAN. You said may or may not exist, and I understood

M^Doarto^ay almost the sam'e thing, if that is so We have no abso-

lute Droof that these things do exist today, is that so ?
.

M^ Tenner We do not. Not absolute proof, no hard evidence

Mr SandmIn That is right. Now, bearing on what you ]ust said,

thP irifeiencrthat can be drawn on the inability to produce is that al-

together fak if we do not know at this point whether or not the mfor-

""lir toN^fWe know, Mr. Congressman, this: We know that there

was a recordfng system. We know^from the logs and other materials

Ts presented to^yoii that conversations did take place m places m the

mite House in which the recording system was operative. We Imow

Sfm resXses bTMr. St. Clair frSm consideration of matters that

hav^ occurred in the U.S. District Court, that the premise upon which

refusal to produce so far in response to our letters and responses to

^Inenas issS by the Special Prosecutor was not that the tapes did

notS but as to this committee, that in the judgment of the Presi-

dl and hi' counsel, all that they regard - -levant lia^^^ been pro-

duced There is no contention at any time that I know o± and pres

entlv can recall that these conversations requested now or submitted

to vou for a request basis were not recorded except as we have been

advised and in turn advised you yesterday and last week that certain

conversatkms were not recorded, either, A, because the tape ran out

Xb, that a conversation took place in a room or m the presence of

a recorder which was then not operative. ^
, . ,

»

Mr. Sandman. That could be the case, though, m a good many of

these things, too, could it not ?

Mr. Jenner. I am sorry, sir, I could not hear you.

Mr. Sandman. I say it could be the case on a good many of the items

requested here. That could be the point?
^ , 1,1 .^ huf to have

Mr. Jenner. Mr. Congressman, that is absolutely so, but to have

this committee have the response and information that it does not

exist, it is very important to you as well.



650

Mr. Sandmax. Do not get me wrong, Mr. Jenner. I intend to sup-

port the subpena, but I do want it in the record at this point prior to

the subpena being approved by the committee that we do not know
whether or not any or all of this information actually exists today. Is

that a fair statement ?

Mr. Jenner. That is a fair statement.

Mr. Sandman. Thank you.

The Chairman. I recognize the gentleman from Massachusetts, Mr.
Donohue.
Mr. DoNOiiuE. Mr. Chairman, I move that this Committee on the

Judiciary authorize and direct the issuance and service upon Richard

M. Nixon, President of the United States, of a subpena to be signed

by you, our chairman, the text of which is at your desk and copies of

which are now before the members of the committee.

Mr. Brooks. Second the motion, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman. Discussion on the motion ? Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I think in response to the points Mr. Sandman was listing, the rec-

ord ought to reflect that in the briefs submitted to us by Mr. St. Clair,

there is absolutely no mention that these tapes do not exist and it

would seem to me that in fairness to the committee and in fairness

to tlie proceedings, if those tapes do not exist, he should have advised

us of them. I think the failure to advise us of them gives us very good
basis for assuming that they in fact to exist.

I have a technical question to ask counsel. I am glad Mr. Cohen
raised the question about the use of alternative language. I am con-

cerned about specifying the times of the conversations as we do.

Do you take it that if a conversation started a minute before the

time we specified and ended a minute after or before the time we
specified, that the entire tape would be covered by this subpena, or

would it be better, in fact, to use the language "on or about 2 :20," for

example, using the language in item 2 ? Would you comment on that,

please, because I am concerned that the subpena in fact reach the ma-
terials that we are seeking, which are conversations starting on or

about these times.

Mr. DoAR. Ms. Holtzman, I believe that the subpena could be fairly

read to mean on or about those times. Those times are obtained from
the logs of the 20th of June, for example, from the official diary of

the President. If there were a few minutes off the time and we got a

recording that started where it appeared that the participants were
in the conversation, I think that we would be entitled to go back and
request further conversations. But that has not occurred with respect

to recording that have been furnished to date.

Ms. Holtzman. Mr. Jenner?
Mr. Jenner. Thank you, ]Ms. Holtzman. You will recall that yes-

terday, I pointed out on the logs the preciseness, but that we were
not certain that those log days and times were always precise. There
is this factor for the committee and you to consider, if you please, that
if a taped conversation is produced ?nd wo listen, we do have the help
in that we can tell reasonably that the conversation started off in, let

us say, the sort of normal chitchat tliat you would expect. If we look
at the end of the taped conversation supplied, we see the normal leave
taking. If we do not see the normal commencement of a conversation
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and the normal leave taking, we will be alerted that we need more of
the tape or we will then consult with Mr. St. Clair and determine
what
Ms. HoLTZMAN. Do jou not think we can obviate that problem by

using such language at this time that would enhance the effectiveness

of the subpena to include language before the time and after the time,
"on or about" ?

Mr. Jenner. Ms. Holtzman, I must say it would be a somewhat
better way of doing it.

The Chairman. Before we go any further, I am going to for the
record ask the clerk to read the subpena referred to in this motion.
If anyone would want to make a unanimous consent request to not
read, to dispense with the reading, he may in order to save time.

Mr. Seiberling. I make such a motion, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Will you identify the subpenas?
The Clerk [reading] :

By authority of the House of Representatives of the Congress of the United
States of America, to Benjamin Marshall or his duly authorized representatives

:

You are hereby commanded to summon Richard M. Nixon, President of the
United States of America, or any subordinate officer, official, or employee

The Chairman. Excuse me. This refers to the conversations of
April 4 and June 20 and June 23.

Is that correct ?

The Clerk. Yes sir.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, I ask unanimous consent to dispense

with further reading of the subpena.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, an inquiry to make things clear. We are

talking only about the subpena now which deals with the conversations

of April 4, June 20, and June 23 ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. Dennis. And the other subpena dealing with the daily diaries

will be separately considered in a separate motion ; is that correct ?

The Chairman. That is correct.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Seiberling. I renew my unanimous consent request.

The Chairman. Without objection, it is so ordered and reading,

further reading is dispensed with.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr, Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. I should like to ask a question o,f counsel.

Counsel, this is in the nature of a hypothetical question. Hypo-
thetically, let us suppose that the tapes requested in fact exist. And
hypothetically, let us suppose further that all or a portion of the tape

contains material totally and absolutely unrelated to an impeachable
offense. I ask you to assume that. Wliat is the proper response of the

President to the subpena with respect to that matter ?

Mr. DoAR. Under the subpena, the President would be required to

produce the recorded conversation.

Mr. Wiggins. In its entirety ?

Mv. DoAR. In its entirety, but could call to your attention at the

time of compliance with the subpena that the material was totally
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irrelevant and ask the committee to adopt a procedure whereby it

would not consider that material.

Mr. Wiggins. For my information, by what authority does the

House of Representatives command the President to produce
irrelevant material to an impeachable offense ?

Mr. DoAR. The resolution that the House of Representatives passed

provided that it authorized this committee to produce all necessary

material and that it is in the judtjment of the House of Representatives,

exercising its constitutional authority power, to make that request.

Mr. Wiggins. I will not argue that point, but I do not believe the

resolution is quite that broad.
One further thing. I will only take a moment.
The Chairman. Go ahead, Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Counsel, why do we not resolve this question of what

the President possesses and what he does not possess by written

interrogatories to him ? Wliy do we continue to guess on this matter ?

Mr. HuNGATE. Will the gentleman yield?

Mr. Wiggins. Of course I will yield.

Mr. HuNGATE. On that point, there is some very interesting tran-

scripts and statements written for the public. In statements you can

handle interrogatories, but you cannot handle examination.

Mr. Wiggins. I will repeat the question. Why do not we find out

what he possesses and what he does not possess ?

Mr. DoAR. I think we are reasonably satisfied that these recordings

do exist. In the tape hearing, down before Judge Sirica, there was
material produced that indicated that the recording system was
operating during that particular period. I do not think it is necessary,

in view of the desire of the committee to move expeditiously, to serve

interrogatories to find out whether or not documents exist before you
request them or ask for a subpena duces tecum. We have had conver-

sations about these materials since the 18th of April and if they do not

exist, it is a simple matter ,for the person who has them to advise us.

Mr. Wiggins. If this committee should elect to proceed by way of

contempt, then I think you will find that we do need that kind of hard
information independent of all sorts of inferences drawn from com-
munications from counsel. I think we are going to proceed-;

Mr. DoAR. I think at the time when the matter of compliance is de-

termined, I think is a matter that should be determined.

The Chairman. Mr. Lott.

Mr. LoTT. Mr. Chairman, I have three brief questions.

First of all I would like for counsel to confirm for me that the ma-
terial included in this subpena that we are now discussing, all this

material was included in the letter that was sent on April 19 requesting
various other material, but specifically these tapes, and all that is in-

cluded in the subpena, this absolutely was all included in the letter of
April 19, is that correct?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

Mr. Lott. From the best you can determine, how many tapes are
we talking about ? Eleven, or do you have any way of knowing that ?

Mr. DoAR. The tapes run for 6 hours, so that I would think that there
might be three or four tapes since there's 3 days here, and the conversa-
tion of the twentieth runs from, the ones we request run from the after-
noon until late at night.
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Mr. LoTT. OK, sir. And finallyj the crucial question from me, has

this request been specifically or tacitly rejected by counsel for the Pres-

ident ? I think that's important. It's been requested. Has there been a

response ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes ; there has been a response. I wrote Mr. St. Clair the

week before our hearings began and asked him if he could reply to our
letter of April 19 by the following Tuesday. Mr. St. Clair and Mr.
Buzhardt, Mr. St. Clair called me and said he would like to see me
Tuesday afternoon, and he came up and met with Mr. Jenner and I at

3 o'clock in our office. And he said that the President of the United
States determined that no further information with respect to Water-
gate would be furnished. It was a specific refusal to furnish this

information.
Mr. LoTT. Thank you.
The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. A question to counsel if I may, Mr. Chairman. Of
course I think that we do not know whether this exists or not, but
there is certainly a reasonable inference if the transcripts exist that

the tapes exist. My question to you is, what would be your reaction

to the suggestion that the word "transcript" be deleted from the sub-

pena so that we direct our subpena directly to the question of the

presentation of tapes ? That, it seems to me, it was what we want, what
we ought to be asking for, and I would hate to run into the question

that we ran into before that a presentation of the transcripts was the

compliance when, in fact, it was in all probability not. I would like,

if counsel does not resist it strongly, to offer an amendment that would
strike the word "transcript" at the appropriate time.

Mr. DoAR. I think, Congi-essman Butler, I woulii think that if the

President has already made a transcript of that conversation, I think

that that should be included in the subpena. I do not think that the

subpena is indefinite or uncertain about the fact that we are requesting

the tapes just merely because we have the transcript, and so that I

would recommend not striking the word "transcript."

Mr, Butler. Mr. Jenner, do you have a comment on that?

Mr. Jenner. Yes, Congressman Butler.

One other thing I am thinking about is the possibility that a trans-

cript may exist, and perhaps the tape presently is defective, or in

some fashion rather a transcript came into existence and the tape is

no longer in existence.

It also occurs to me to be helpful to the members of the committee

to see what interpretation of a tape was made by Presidential staff

in preparing a transcript.

Second, in that connection, it would be very helpful to you and your

staff to have a transcript, at least in the early stages of listening with

our sophisticated devices to the tape originally.

We also have the word "transcript" in there in the broader sense,

as well as a transcript of a tape. You will notice the word "transcript"

is by itself, and that is somewhat a word of legal art. And a transcript

may be something of a conversation in the White House not recorded,

but a transcript made by a stenographer or something of that

character.

41-018—75—pt. 1 42
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Mr. Butler. Counsel, would not a transcript, the type of which
you refer to, come under the category of memorandums, or notes, or
other writings ?

Mr. Jenner. Well, we would hope so. But, if I may associate myself
with you, when you are drafting, as a law-yer, I mean, in drafting a
subpena or any kind of request including interrogatories, as you Imow
we lawyers try to make it or use enough words with legal art and
otherwise to assure that we have actually covered everything.
Mr. Butler. Well, Mr. Chairman, if I may be permitted the ob-

servation, I am not satisfied with the response of counsel to my
question. I think we have got ourselves in trouble here by putting too
many words into this, into this description, and putting the disjunc-
tive there when the conjunctive would have been more effective. And
at the appropriate time, Mr. Chairman, I would like to move that the
subpena be amended to strike the word "transcript." If that's in order
at this time, I so move.
Mr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. The Chair is going to declare at this time a recess
since there is a Democratic caucus and it is imperative that the Demo-
cratic members get to the caucus. But, we will recess for 15 minutes.

[Short recess.]

The Chairman. The committee will come to order.
I recognize the gentleman from California, Mr. Waldie, for ques-

tion.

i\Ir. Waldie. Mr. Chairman, in a continuing effort to attempt to
find out precisely what are the limitations of Mr. St. Clair's partici-

pation, it struck me in this discussion as to whether or not the tapes
are even in existence, that Mr. Sandman initiated and others carried
on, that there really is one person in the room here that might very
well know that, and that would be the counsel for the President, who
has made certain representations already to the committee in writing
as to this particular matter. And I am wondering if it would be in

order and proper for the Chair to address to Mr. St. Clair or propound
a question as to whether he knows whether the tapes, in fact, are in

existence or they are not ?

The Chairman. No. That question is not in order and the Chair
will not direct such a question to Mr. St. Clair.

Mr. Waldie. Would any member of the committee be permitted
to address a question to Mr. St. Clair?

The Chairman. No. Mr. St. Clair is not a part of these proceedings

this morning. Mr. St. Clair is sitting as a spectator as any other mem-
ber of the public.

Mr. Mezvinskt. Will the gentleman yield? Will the gentleman
yield?

Mr. Waldie. Yes, I yield.

Mr. MEZAnrNSKY. Mr. Chairman, can we at least find out whether
in any conversation with our counsel, Mr. Doar and Mr. Jenner,

whether or not Mr. St. Clair has indicated that the tapes do not exist ?

Mr. DoAR. The answer is no, he has not so indicated.

IMr. ]^TEz^^:NSKT. So there is no information that we have in our

possession that they do not exist? And I am especially concerned since

our last subpena we found that two tapes supposedly were lost. But,

we have no information whatsoever as far as any communirations
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from Mr. St. Clair or anyone from the White House that, in fact, the
taped conversations do not exist ? Is that correct ?

Mr. DoAR. That's correct. I think, Congressman, tliat you misunder-
stood the response by Mr. St. Clair. It was not that the tapes were lost.

It was that there was no evidence on the tapes that that convei-sation

that we requested was there, and there was no indication the tapes
were lost.

Mr. JMezvtnsky. Well, maybe I should—of the 11 conversations that

we did not receive there were 2, 3'Ou are saying that of those 2 they
were not lost, but they could not find them? Were thei-e not two
conversations that they indicated that they could not find? Wasn't
that on that little appendix that we have ?

Mr. DoAR. That is right. But, there is a difference between finding
a conversation and finding a tape. On these I presume, and I assume
Mr. St. Clair, I know, in fact, Mr. St. Clair made an effort to listen

to the tapes on those particular days. As you know, they are located in

a safe, and they have been filed by date, and he listened on 2 or 3 days
before and after the date we specified, and he could not locate the con-
versation. But, there was no suggestion that there was no—that they
were not able to locate the tape.

Mr. Mezvinsky. Do you know, in fact, Mr. St. Clair has listened to

every one of these conversations or taped conversations that we are
requesting?

Mr. DoAR. No. We don't know that.

The Chairman. I recognize Mr. Butler for the purpose of ofi'ering an
amendment.
Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, prior to when we had to go to our

caucus, I had indicated that I wanted to strike the word "transcript"
from the subpena. I have offered a ditferent amendment which I think
will accomplish my same objective, and I would like to ask the clerk to

read the amendment.
The Chairman. The clerk will read it.

The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment by Mr. Butler.

On the attachment to subpena No. 1, strike "all tapes, dictabelts or other elec-

tronic and/or mechanical recordings" and insert in lieu thereof, "all tapes,
dictabelts, other electronic and mechanical recordings and".

The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

ISIr. BuTi.ER. Mr. Chairman, the purpose of this amendment is to

make certain that our use of the words tapes and transcripts are in the
conjunctive and not in the disjunctive so what we have done is rewrite
the first line of the schedule to take out the word "or"' and "and/or"
and put at the end of the sentence the word "and," so that now we are
talking in effect and we say all tapes and transcripts. I felt that this
question was raised by Mr. Cohen and was raised in our earlier dis-

cussions of the earlier subpena, and I felt while we had the oppor-
tunity we ought to make perfectly clear that this is what we want. So,
I move the amendment.
The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. We would have no objection to that.
Tlie Chairman. No objection to the acceptance to this amendment?
Mr. Doar. No objection.
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The Chairman. Does this suggest, Mr. Butler, that transcripts would

be included and not exclusive of transcripts ?

Mr. Butler. Yes, sir. It does not strike the word "transcripts" as I

had earlier intended.

Mr. Wiggins. Parliamentary inquiry, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The gentleman will state it.

Mr. Wiggins. I would ask that the clerk read the subpena in the

amended form, please.

The Chairman. The clerk will read.

The Clerk [reading] :

All tapes, dictabelts, other electronic and mechanical recordings and tran-

scripts, memoranda, notes or other writings or things relating to the following

conversations.

The Chairman. The question is on the amendment offered by the

gentleman from Virginia, Mr. Butler.

All those in favor of the amendment say aye,

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed, no.

[No response.]

The Chairman. And the amendment is agreed to.

The question now occurs on
Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Another amendment if I may, sir.

The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

The Clerk [reading] :

Amendment by Mr. Butler.

On the attachment to subpena No. 1 strike "as follows" wherever it occurs
and insert in lieu thereof "referred to in logs as occurring at the following

times."

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. This is in response to the question raised by Mr.—by
the gentlelady from Brooklyn in her colloquy with the coimsel in

which she raised some question as to whether we did not have the exact

times for the conversations which we are subpenaing. We arrive at

these times, as I understand it, because the logs describe them by this

time. And so, rather than refer to them as these exact times, my pur-
pose would be at the end of the first sentence of paragraph No. 2, at

the end of the first sentence of paragraph No. 3, to strike the word
"as follows" and insert "referred to in the logs as occurring at the
following times." Here again, my purpose is clarification.

]Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Butler. And I yield.

The Chairman. I would like to address a question on that amend-
ment to counsel. Does this in effect more specifically state the times for
these conversations ?

Mr. Jenner. I think it is a combination of having the specific as
picked up from the Presidential logs, and also is an improvement in
that it affords, it identifies the conversation as it would appear to us
to have occurred at a particular time. But, it may have occurred a few
months ahead and it may have run on a few months later, and this
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accommodates Congresswoman Holtzman's concern, and I think it is

an improvement.
The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. I agree with that.

Mr. Seiberling. Will the gentleman yield ?

Ms. Jordan. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Mr. Butler's amendment simply says referred to in lo^s.

Now, we have seen many, many logs, and if he means referred to in

Presidential logs as follows, I think that word Presidential ought to

be added.
JNIr. Doar. I think
The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. I think that does make it more specific. The exact words

would be "President Richard Nixon's daily diary."

Mr. McClory. If the gentlelady would yield. I ask this question of
counsel ? Or the gentleman from Virginia. Isn't it a fact that some of
this information is taken from Mr, Haldeman's logs?

Mr. Doar. No, Congressman. It is my belief that the summary of
the meetings between Mr. Haldeman and the President were prob-
ably taken, abstracted off President Nixon's daily diary. But, it was
an abstract from the complete diary of Nixon's day. Mr. Haldeman
did have a log. He did have it, but
Mr. McClort. Well, what is the source of our information for

specifying these times ? Is it not Mr. Haldeman's log ?

Mr. Doar. Well—on April 4 it is Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Mitchell's

log. On June 23 it is ]\Ir. Haldeman's log. On June 20 it is President
Nixon's daily diary, because we do not have a daily diary for the 23d
or for April 4.

Mr. McClort. So, we could not say the Presidential logs because
we do not have information as to that. It is more accurate to just say
logs, is it not ?

Mr. Doar. Well, I think the fact that we do not have the day, I do
not think would forbid the committee from specifying that the con-
versations as set forth in the daily diary, but it is true that we do
not have them for those 2 days.

Mr. McClort. Well then, it would be better to say in the President's
daily dairies, or logs, logs or Presidential diary ?

Mr. Doar. Well, or logs or Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Colson.
Mr. McClort. Would the gentleman from Virginia permit an

amendment to his proposed amendment to include the reference to
or Presidential diaries?

Mr. Butler. I say in response to that, my purpose here is to
strengthen this subpena by being specific as to identifying what we
are after. And if counsel is satisfied that this is responsive to the
objection raised by Ms. Holtzman, then, of course, that is what I
want to do. And if we can further strengthen it by the suggestion
from the gentleman from Illinois, then that is what I want^ to do
also. So, if that is the opinion of counsel, I would certainly accept
the amendment,
Mr, Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

The Chairman. The gentleman still has the floor.

Mr. Butler. I yield to the gentleman from Ohio.
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Mr. Seiberling. Well, if we are going to do this, to be consistent,

should we not make a corresponding change in paragraph 1 of the
schedule ?

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, would the gentleman yield to me
briefly?

Mr. Butler. In response to that, I will be glad to.

Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, many of us have offered helpful
suggestions. I think a story might outline our problem at this point.

A couple went to get married, and at the place where the judge
Mr. Butler. I take back the rest of my time. We can't have any

dirt}^ stories here, Mr. Chairman. We have enough of that already.
Mr. HuNGATE. Mr. Chairman, I intend to speak to the very point

that the gentleman raised.

Mr. Butler. Of course, I yield.

The Chairman. I recognize the gentleman.
Mr. Hungate. This couple still went to get married, and at the

place where the judge could marry them they handed up the license,

and the judge looked at it, and he said that the date is on the wrong
line, you will have to get that straightened out, go to see the clerk.

So they went to see the clerk and he fixed it, and then the judge
looked and there is this little kid there about 4 or 5 years old standing
there, and he says, "Is that child with you?" "Why," he said, "yes,

judge, that's my son." The judge says, "You realize he's a technical

bastard?" And he says, "That's funny, that's what the clerk said

about you."
Mr. Chairman, we must not be too technical with this amendment

and get right on with it.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, would the gentleman from Missouri
please explain why that is relevant to this discussion ?

Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ? Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Hungate. I believe it is self-explanatory. I would like to see

us vote on this amendment.
The Chairman. All this committee has to do is determine it is

necessary.

]Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Father Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Mr. Chairman, I want to raise with counsel some

fundamental questions that bother me. There are 172 other tapes that

we are not subpenaing today, and in all candor, I cannot justify the

subpenaing of 11 and allowing the President not to be required by
subpena to give the others, and I wonder, and I am troubled as to

whether we are consciously or otherwise allowing our priorities to

be established, and how can I answer tlie contention that is made to me
by more than one that I personally and others are acquiescing in a

delay. It was on February 25 when we asked the President for what
we needed. It was on April 19 that we stipulated more, and now on
May 15 we have finally subpenaed 11 tapes.

Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. Drinan. No, not yet.

How many more times are we going to go through this? The 'V\niite

House counsel says this morning in his brief that we are either seeking

to "satisfy curiosity" or we are seeking to "seek the confirmation of
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undisputed facts/' Are we going to go through this every fortnight
for liow many weeks or how many months ? What could happen if we
subpenaed everything that w^e need? The worst that could happen is

that thej^ vrould comply with another set of transcripts, maybe more
than 1,300 pages. And it seems to me that the result would be better

than the delay which I am afraid I am acquiescing in by allowing
counsel and the committee to subpena 11 rather than 150 or 172.

I wonder if Mr. Doar could reply to that ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, Congressman, I will.

A meeting has been scheduled for tomorrow morning where we will

ask the committee to authorize the issuance of the materials requested
with respect to the dairy matter and with respect to ITT. That takes
care of about 40 conversations in dairy and I think 22 in ITT. We
did subpena 79 or requested 79 conversations with respect to the Water-
gate matter. It seemed to counsel that an appropriate way to justify

these requests clearly and unequivocably for the committee was to

present, as we have been doing, chronologically the information deal-

ing with the Watergate break-in and the coverup, the alleged coverup,
and so that as we go forward in that period, from time to time we
would ask the committee to issue subpenas in the Watergate and the
information that the committee received in executive session would
have a bearing on the justification for that request. Now, we won't do
this every day. And the next time there would be quite a number
of additional requests. There might be three times that we would do
this rather than once.

I do not think it is a delay at all, Congressman.
Mr. Drinan. You would say, therefore, that we will in due course,

rather promptly, subpena virtually all of those 172 that are

outstanding ?

Mr. DoAR. We will in due course, very promptly request the com-
mittee to authorize the issuance, yes.

The Chairman. And the Chair would like to state that this matter
will be under consideration, and we will proceed in an orderly manner.
And I am sure that the gentleman from Massachusetts will be

satisfied.

Mr. Drinan. If I still have the time, Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Seiberling. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Drinan. If I still have time, I would like to ask counsel one

further question. Will the White House be asked to submit a brief or

a statement on the subpenas that we will request tomorrow? I am
very interested to know that they have started apparently the reha-

bilitation of John Dean. Apparently in the statement we received

today they say that "Dean concluded that that was the end of the

Liddy plan," and that we are, therefore, supposed to believe Mr.
Dean. Will the White House be asked to submit a brief tomorrow?
The Chairman. I think I have to respond to the gentleman from

Massachusetts that that is not a proper question for the counsel to

reply to, since the counsel was not making up the mind of the com-
mittee. If the committee seeks to request this kind of information

from the White House
Mr. Cohen. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Eailsback. Mr. Chairman?
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The Chairman. The question is on the amendment of the gentleman
from
Mr. Cohen. Mr. Chairman, may I inquire? I have a question to

ask.

The Chairman. On the amendment ?

Mr. Cohen. On this motion.
The Chairman. Yes.
Mr. Cohen. Mr. Chairman, in view of the questions raised by the

other members of the committee as to whether or not this refers to

Presidential logs, since I understand Mr. Doar's response is that it

refers, that some refer to the President's logs and others to Mitchell's

or to Haldeman's, it seems to me if we leave it just as logs, you are

going to create even more confusion, and for the sake of simplicity and
the absence of technicality, it would be better to state "on or about"
as originally suggested from the gentlelady from Brooklyn. And I
would like your response. I think we are creating more problems than
we are solving with it.

Mr. Doar. Well, I think the "on or about" language would be satis-

factory. But, I also think that referring to the logs and the Presiden-

tial diary would
Mr. Cohen. But what about those conversations which come from

Mr. Haldeman's logs or Mr. Mitchell's logs or Mr. Ehrlichman's ?

Mr. DoAR. Well, you could say Presidential diary or other logs under
the control of the President.

Mr. Cohen. All right. Well
The Chairman. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. Mr. Chairman, I have been subjected to a lot of abuse

here, and my purpose was most well motivated. And I do not want to

create any problems for anybody. And certainly I do not want to re-

flect on the title of any person here, including myself. So, in the interest

of proceeding with this hearing this morning, I would respectfully ask

unanimous consent to withdraw the amendment which I have just

offered.

The Chairman. Without objection, it is so ordered.

Ms. Jordan. Question.
The Chairman. The question is on the motion.

All those in favor please say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. The motion is the motion of the gentleman from
Massachusetts. All those in

Mr. Flowers. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. This is the first subpena.
Mr. Froehlich. Mr. Chairman, I request a rollcall.

The Chairman. The question is on the motion and a rollcall is de-

manded. All those in favor of taking the vote by rollcall will please

say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. Opposed?
[No response.]

The Chairman. And the ayes have it, and a rollcall is demanded.
The clerk will call the roll.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
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Mr. DoNOHUE. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk, Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.

jSIr. Eilberg, Aye.
The Clerk, Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr, Flowers.
Mr. Flowers, Aye,
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. IVIann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes, Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr, IVIezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk, Mr, Hutchinson.
Mr, Hutchinson, No.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr, Smith.
Mr, Smith, Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye,
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Eailsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.



tJ62

Mr. Dennis. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
;Mr. ISIayne. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.
Mr. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lett.

Mr. LoTT. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlicli.

Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.
Mr. Latta. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. Aye. The clerk will report the vote.

The Clerk. Mr. Chairman, 37 members have voted aye, one member
has voted no.

The Chahiman. And the motion is agreed to.

I recognize the gentleman from Massachusetts, Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohtje. Now, Mr. Chairman, I move that this Committee on

the Judiciary authorize and direct the issuance and service upon
Richard M. Nixon, President of the United States, a subpena to be
signed by the chairman, the text of which is at your desk, and copies

of which are now before the members of the committee.
The Chair]man. The clerk will read the text of the subpena.
The Clerk [reading] :

By authority of the House of Representatives of the Congress of the United
States of America, to Benjamin Marshall, or his duly authorized representative:
You are hereby commanded to summon Richard M. Nixon, President of the
United States of America, or—

—

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, ]\Ir. Chairman? I ask unanimous
consent that we dispense with further reading of the subpena.
The CiiAiRiviAN. Without objection

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I object.

The Chairman. Objection is heard. The clerk will continue to read
it.

The Clerk [continues reading] :

Or any subordinate officer, official or employee with custody or control of the
things described in the attached schedule, to be and appear before the Com-
mittee on the Judiciary of the House of Representatives of the United States, of

which the Honorable Peter W. Rodino. Jr., is Chairman, and to bring with him
the things specified in the schedule attached hereto and made a part thereof,

in their chamber in the city of Washington, on or before May 22, 1974, at the
hour of 10 a.m., then and there to produce and deliver said things to said commit-
tee, or their duly authorized representative, in connection with the committe's
investigation authorized and directed by House Res. 803, adopted February 6,

1974.
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Herein fail not, and make return of this summons. Witness my hand and the

seal of the House of Representatives of the United States at the city of Wash-
ington, this 15th day of May, 1974, Peter W. Rodino, Jr., Chairman.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, could we have a justification for this

request, or could we have an explanation from counsel as to the

justification?

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. Mr. Chairman, the clerk did not read the schedule.

The Clerk, [reading] :

Schedule of things required to be produced pursuant to subpena of the Com-
mittee on the Judiciary. The President's daily diaries (as reflected on U.S. Gov-
ernment Printing Oflice form "1972 0-472-086" or any predecessor or successor

forms) for the period April through July 1972, February through April 1973,

July 12 through July 31, 1973 and October 1973.

Mr. Chairsian. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. Mr. Chairman, I have here a copy of Government's ex-

hibit 130 in the hearing before Judge Sirica which is an example of

President Nixon's daily diary for June 20, and I would like to ask that

that be distributed to the members.
The Chairman. The clerk will distribute those.

Mr. McClory. May I ask this question, Mr. Chairman, is this in

the public domain ?

Mr. Doar. Yes; it is. In the course of our investigation we learned
that the President kept, maintained a daily diary, and the Archivist
for the Wliite House had this responsibility located in the Executive
Office Building and a very detailed dairy of the President's daily
schedule was maintained and prepared the following day with respect

to the President's previous day's schedule.

We have among the committee records the dairy for June *20, July 6,

Jaimary 4, April 10 through 20, Jime 4, September 29, October 1

through 7, and November 15, 16, and 17, those diaries. These diaries

were produced in response to requests by the Special Prosecutor or in

response to a subpena in connection with hearings on the question of
the 181/^-minute gap in the June 20 tape.

Your staff feels that these diaries are tools which we can use to more
precisely identify persons with whom the President conferred with
respect, or might have conferred with respect to matters relating to

the matters that are the subject to our inquiry. We have not asked
for the diaries for complete periods. That is, we have not asked for
the diaiy annually, but the period April through July 1972, is a
critical period with respect to the Watergate break-in and the Water-
gate investigation.

The period February through April 1973, is a critical period with
respect to the President's action or inaction with respect to the Water-
gate investigation. The transcripts that the President's counsel fur-
nished to us covered transcripts of conversations in March and April
1973. And there were 36—no. wait a minute. There were more than
that. There were about 51 conversations furnished during the period
of March and April. The period July 12 through July 31^1973, is the
period just before and after the time that it was first disclosed that
there was a recording system operating in the White House, in thf Oval
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Office, and in the President's office in the Executive Office Building.

In October 1973, is the month in which the President instiiicted the

Attorney General to discharge Mr. Cox, the Special Prosecutor.

All of those periods are important to the committee's inquiry, and
these documents are documents that could lead to information that

.would be pertinent to the committee's inquiry. For that reason we feel

that tlie committee should authorize the issuance of the subpena.
The Chairman". Mr. Doar, might I inquire if these daily diaries

specified in the subpena, and as indicated in the schedule, were these
requested along with the other requests that were made specifically as

they are requested now ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes, they were.
The Chaikman. And was there any compliance at all with regard to

those requests, or was there a refusal, a denial ?

Mr. DoAR. No. Since these diaries relate to the Watergate matter,

there was a refusal to produce them.
Mr. McClort. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Was this called specifically as well to the attention
of Mr. St. Clair at the time that discussions took place with regard to

the requests that were made ?

Mr, DoAR. Yes, they were.
The Chalrman. And was the same answer, that the President had

instructed Mr. St. Clair that he could not comply ?

Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, Mr. St. Clair stated to us, as Mr. Doar
has stated to the committee, that there would be no Watergate material,

whether documentary or taped, delivered to tlie committee. Mr. St.

Clair did say as to other phases of the investigation, and this I say only
as examples, ITT, dairy, tapes and things of that character, that he
would undertake to assemble those documents, first discover whether
they existed and assemble them, and would take the latter up with the
President and advise us in the premises as to whether he could or they
would be produced. And we have had no response from ISIr. St. Clair.

Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, as I interpret the justification, it

would call for a great deal of general information covering a broad
period of time. And my only concern is that it might, it might reveal

a great deal of information that would be completely irrelevant to our
inquiry. Do I understand, that if received, these diaries of which we
have an example here, would be held under our rules of confidentiality,

and only released to the public if they became part of our, a necessary

part of our report ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman, thank you. Counsel, would a photo-

graphic reproduction of a daily diary be an adequate response to the

subpena ?

Mr. Doar. Yes.
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis.
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Mr. Dennis. Mr. Doar, these diaries, of course, show everj^one who
visited the President during the time required, do they not?

Mr. Doar. Yes they do. They purport to be complete and accurate,

and I believe they are.

Mr. Dennis. Many of whom who would have nothing to do with our

inquiry whatsoever ?

Mr. Doar. I agree with that.

Mr. Dennis. Now, you have made no effort in this subpena to

specify the times Haldeman called or Ehrlichman called, or Colson

called, or any individual called, is that correct ?

Mr. Doar. That is correct.

Mr. Dennis. Now, you have asked for several rather lengthy periods

of time, I think for 4 months in 1972 and a total of about 4 months
and 19 days in 1973. In your justification a moment ago you did make
some specification as to certain periods, directing your attention to the

period July 12 through July 31, 1973. My understanding of what you
said there was that this was a period before and after it was first

discovered that there was a recording system. Was that your
statement ?

Mr. Doar. That's correct, disclosed, first disclosed.

Mr. Dennis. Yes. And would you explain to the committee why
the fact that that represents a period before and after the existence

of a recording system first being discovered or disclosed, why that

makes that period relevant for this purpose ?

Mr. Doar. Well, I think that these diaries are necessary. I cannot
represent that they are relevant. I think that information with respect

to the recording system, an examination of tapes during that period
might very well be relevant to this inquiry. But, I cannot tell you the
reason for that.

Mr. Dennis. Wliy is the reference to the time when the existence

of this system was first disclosed, why does that have any indication

or any bearing on the relevance of conversations in that particular

period ? "V^^iat is the connection between disclosure and relevancy ?

Mr. Doar. Congressman, this was a period when the fact of the re-

cording system was first disclosed to the country. Counsel have op-
erated on the theoiy that it is in the best interest of everyone if there
be a full and complete disclosure in a straightforward way of all

relevant material in connection with this inquiry. I mean, by asking
for this, we mean to suggest that it may turn up with nothing, but I
"just feel that it might turn up some indications and that it might not
have some discussions with respect to the tape recording system that
might bear on the matters that are before the committee with respect
to the recording system.

_
Mr. Dennis. Well, let me shift a moment to October 1973, since our

time is limited. Your statement and justification there was that was
the month iii which Mr. Cox was discharged. Now, that happened
over one weekend, as I recall. On what basis do you conclude from
the fact that that occurred in October, that every entry for the month
of October is relevant to our purposes ?

Mr. Doar. I don't conclude that every entry is relevant. I conclude
that seme entries might be relevant. It did not occur just over a week-
end. The discussion with respect to the special prosecutor occurred
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during the entire week of October 20, and we just believe that it is

necessary to examine those diaries to just see with whom the President

conferred that might be relevant to this inquiry.

Mr, Dennis. Now, in the period February through April 1973, that

is a 4-month period, and you are asking for everything during that

period on the basis of the general statement that that was a period in

which there was considerable activity on the Watergate investigation,

if I understand you ?

Mr. DoAR. That is correct.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, I have a motion I wish to make under
rule 16, section 6, section 791, of the rules. I move that this subpena
be voted on separately as to the different periods put forth in the

subpena.
Mr. Flowers. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Dennis. I make that motion. I think under the rule we are en-

titled to separate this.

The Chairman. The gentleman is making a demand to divide the

question ?

Mr. Dennis. That is right.

The Chairman. The gentleman is correct in his demand. How does
the gentleman propose to divide the question ?

Mr. Dennis. I propose that we divide them as the schedule divides
them in one, two, three, and four separate parts.

The Chairman. The Chair would like to put a question to the
counsel. In light of the fact that the gentleman makes a demand under
the rules of the House, under rule 16, section 6, where a member
may demand before the question is put that the question should be
divided, if it includes propositions so distinct in substance that one
being taken away, the substantive proposition shall remain. The Chair
would like to put the question to counsel, in the event that there is

this division, would this subpena, in effect, provide for dividing it so

that a substantive proposition would still remain ? In other words, if

this were divided in such a way as to take in those portions of April,
and then go on through July, and then to October, the three portions
as I see them—there are three areas or four areas.

Mr. Dennis. Four, yes.

Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, if I may respond, the striking, if that
should eventuate, one segment, that is, for example, the period April
through July 1972, that would not affect subsequently the remainder.
The Chairman. Well, the next question is, would this in effect

prejudice the intent and purpose of this subpena in its entirety?

Mr. DoAR. The answer to that would be it would not. It would not
affect the subpena.
However, I should say that all of the periods were selected because

they relate to the matter of the Watergate break-in and the after-

math, in our opinion, and that we feel that all of the periods are
necessary.

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, would the gentleman yield? Mr.
Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. I would ask Mr. Dennis if it is your intention to have

a separate demand for a separation of this subpena on each of these
four?
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Mr. Dennis. That is my intention, yes. I want a vote on each period

separately, because I think myself that some of them are relevant and

proper, and sustainable, and others are not.

Mr. Brooks. All right, Mr. Chairman. I would ask that we con-

sider the four, consider the amendment, his motion. He has a right to

demand that under the rules. Obviously, you can divide these four.

Our counsel agrees, and it is an obvious fact. Let's just vote four times

on them and get it done, and not quibble about his right to do it, which

is clearly delineated in the rules.

The Chairman. The gentleman has that right.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. I wish to make a comment with respect to the motion.

I am going to oppose the motion
Mr. Dennis. I have a request. It is a right.

Mr. Wiggins. I am going to oppose the suggestion by the gentleman

from Indiana. I recognize he has a right to divide this issue. But, look-

ing at this entire matter, this is in the nature of casual discovery, and I

can understand the desirability of the committee having in its posses-

sion the Presidential logs for the purpose of making perhaps a more
precise subpena of conversations in the future. But, I do not want my
vote in support of this subpena to be understood that I am going to

support at all any subpena of a conversation at some future time with-

out a great deal of justification, which has not yet been presented to

this committee, and I think we all ought to look at this more or less

as a casual act of discovery, which is normal. But, when we get down
to the precise question of whether a given conversation with an indi-

vidual, within this time frame, is relevant to our inquiry, that our staff

is going to have to come up with a great deal of justification which is

not even purportedly offered at this time.

Mr. Flowers. Will my friend yield ?

The Chairman. The gentleman has put a demand to the Chair. The
Chair will have to recognize the demand of the member and put the

question into the divisible parts and, therefore, the Chair will put the

question to the members and will have to divide the portion for the

period April through July 1972. And the question is as to whether or

not the committee will approve the demand of the gentleman from
Indiana.

All those in favor of the gentleman's demand
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. McClort. Mr. Chairman ?

Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, parliamentary inquiry. Is not our posi-

tion that a demand is one which he is eligible to make, upon which we
would not vote, because it is a rule of the House, and that the question
would be the adoption of the subpena to cover the period April through
July 1972 ? As demanded, under the rules he has a right to it, and we
can only put the question. And if we want the subpena for that period,
we will vote twice, and if we do not, we do not.
The Chairman. The Chair thought that that was what he had con-

veyed, and the Chair was misunderstood.
The question is on the issuance of the subpena for the period April

through July 1972.

Mr. Mayne. Mr. Chairman ?
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The Chairman. All in favor
Mr. Matne. Mr. Chairman ? I have not had an opportunity to speak

on this newly raised issue.

The Chairman. I will defer until the gentleman makes his point.

Mr. Matne. Yes. It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, that in this revised

procedure, under which we are now voting, this is not just a casual

discovery, but it is now seeking to obtain information from these logs

over a period of 4 months as distinguished from the 9 months in the
original subpena, and to obtain logs, whether they have anything to do
with an impeachable offense or not. In other words, we are seeking to

pry into every meeting, every appointment of any kind, foreign or do-

mestic, that the President of the United States held during that period.

Now, one of our members, as I recall, sought some reassurance that

if this were done the committee's rules of confidentiality would protect

those items which are irrelevant from the impeachment issue. But,
there has been a very regrettable and substantial erosion of our com-
mittee rules of confidentiality, as witnessed by the fact that although
we all very clearly agreed that Mr. St. Clair's brief or submission was
not to be released by us, it appeared verbatin in the "Washington Post
of this morning. And confidentiality also went down the tube last week,
so I find no comfort or protection at all.

Mr. McClory. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Matne. That these matters which have nothing to do with im-
peachment over a period of 4 months are not going to be spread and
speculated about throughout the press of the United States. And I
have no objection at all to logs which refer to relevant matters con-
cerning impeachment. But, it is a fishing expedition, and an invitation
to go out and ransack the Presidential files of every subject whatsoever
and to ask for these logs on every conceivable subject.

Mr. Railsback. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. JMatne. Whether they have anything to do with impeachment
or not.

Mr. Railsback. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Matne. I yield to the gentleman from Illinois.

Mr. Railsback. I thank the gentleman for yielding.
I would like to ask the counsel that if it is not true that we subpena

those logs they will be subject to the same initial screening process that
we have set up for our rules of confidentiality ?

Mr. Jenner. Congressman Railsback, you are absolutely correct.
The logs, if received, will be received by Mr. Doar and me, and dis-
closable to the chairman and Mr. Hutchinson as the ranking member
under the rules of confidentiality that apply to the staff.

Mr. Railsback. Am I correct that that screening process is to assure
that we will only be presented the relevant and necessary items ?

Mr. Jenner. That is true.

The Chairman. The time of the gentleman has expired.
And the question is on the issuance of the subpena for the period

April through July 1972.
All those in favor please say aye.
[Chorus of "ayes."]
The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. The ayes have it.
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Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman, let us have a roUcall.
The Chairman. A rollcall is demanded, and mider the rules there

is a requirement that at least one-fifth of the members of the committee
would be necessary to demand a rollcall.

All those in favor of taking this vote by rollcall, recorded vote,
please raise your hands.
[Show of hands.]
The Chairman. A sufficient number. The call of the roll is

demanded.
]Mr. HuNGATE. Parliamentary inquiry. Are we going to be voting on

four subpenas or four times on one subpena ?

The Chairman. No, it is four times on one subpena.
Mr. HuNGATE. Thank you, sir.

The Chairman. And the clerk will call the roll. All those in favor
please say aye, and all those opposed, no.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. DoNOHTJE. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. CoNTERS. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr.'^Eilberg.

Mr. Eilberg. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
INIr. Waldie. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flo^vers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
;Mr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk, Mr. Sarbanes.

Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

INIr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson,

Mr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mrl Rangel.
jSIr. Rangel. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
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The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk. INIr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kailsback.
jMr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. On this one, aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis votes aye. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.
INIr. Butler. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. Cohen. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.
Mr. Lott. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead,
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.
Mr. Latta. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. Aye.
The clerk will report the vote.
The Clerk. ISIr. Chairman, 36 members have voted aye, 2 members

have voted no.

The Chairman. And the motion is agreed to.
The question now occurs on the period February through April

1973. And all those in favor of issuing a subpena for that period say
aye.

[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairman. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of "noes."]

The Chairman. The ayes appear to have it.

Mr. Froehlich. Mr. Chairman, I request a roUcall.
The Chairman. Call of the roll is demanded. The clerk will call

the roll.
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The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Ivastenmeier.
Mr. Ivastexmeier. Aye.
The Clerk. j\Ir. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. Ave.
The Clerk. Mn Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mv. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. A3 e.

The Clerk. Mr. Eangel.
Mr. Rangel. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. O^VENS. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. IVlezvinsky.

Mr. JMEZ^^NSKY. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClory. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. JNIr. Railsback.

Mr. Railsbagk. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
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]\Ir. Dennis. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.
IMr. Butler, No.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
]Mr. Cohen. Ave.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. Lott. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. INIOORHEAD. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.
iMr. Latta. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Chairman, 32 members have voted aye, 6 have

voted no.

The Chairman. And the motion is agreed to.

And the question now occurs on the issuance of a subpena for the
period July 12 through July 31. All those
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman? Mr. Chairman, I would like to be

heard on that one briefly.

The Chairman. The gentleman has been heard.
Mr. Dennis. No; I haven't, Mr. Chairman. I was never heard ex-

cept when I made my demand, and this is on a motion, which I have
not been heard on. I would like to be heard briefly on the motion.
The Chairman. The gentleman will be recognized briefly.

Mr. Dennis. I thank the Chair. And I would simply point out to my
colleagues on the committee that this one is clearly irrelevant because
the only suggestion which has even been made is that there is some-
thing relevant about it because it occurs both before and after a time
when the existence of this system was disclosed. Now, if anyone can
tell me what makes conversation in this particular period relevant

because it is before or after, and unspecified with not the date that

anything happened, but the date that the existence of the system was
disclosed, if somebody will explain that to my satisfaction then I

will vote for the subpena. But, I just think that this one is completely
out of the ball park.

I thank the Chair.
IVIs. Jordan. Question.
Mr. Dennis. Could I ask for a rollcall ?

The Chairman. The question is on the issuance of a subpena, and
the gentleman demands a rollcall, a recorded vote. All those in favor
of the issuance of a subpena for the period July 12 through eTuly 31

will please say aye.
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[Chorus of "ayes."]

The Chairinan. All those opposed ?

[Chorus of ''noes.'']

Mr. Dennis. RoUcall, Mr. Chairman.

The Chmrman. A call of the roll is demanded and the clerk will

call the roll.

The Clerk. Mr. Donohue.
Mr. Donohue. Aye.
The Clerk. :Mr. Brooks.

Mr. Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.

Mr. Kastenmeier. Aye.
The Cleriv. Mr. Edwards.
jNIr. Edwards. Aye.
The Clerk. :Mr. Hungate.
Mr. Hungate. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.

Mr. CoNTERS. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Eilberg.

Mr. Eilberg. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr! Waldie.
Mv. Waldie. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.

Mr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
]Mr. ]Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.

Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.

Mr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Eangel. Aye.
The Clerk. ISIs. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Ave.
The Clerk. ]Mr. Thornton.
]Mr. Thornton. No.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzjian. Aye,
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. Owens. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hiitchinson.

Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. ]\IcClory. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. No.
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The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.
Mr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. Wiggins. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Dennis.
Mr, Dennis. No.
The Clerk. ISIr. Fish.

Mr. Fish. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne.
Mr. Mayne. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. Hogan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

Mr. Butler. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Cohen.
Mr. CoiiEN. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Lott.

Mr. LoTT. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Froehlich.
Mr. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Maraziti.
Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Latta.
Mr. Latta. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. The clerk will report.

The Clerk. Twenty-nine members have voted aye, nine members
have voted no.

The Chairman. And the motion is agreed to.

And now the question occurs on the issuance of a subpena for the
period of October 1973.

All those in favor
Mr. Dennis. Mr. Chairman ? Mr. Chairman ? May I be heard briefly

on this ?

The Chairman. Mr. Dennis is recognized.

Mr. Dennis. If this subpena were directed to the weekend, which
has been suggested as the only justification for it, or even that period

of time, or even to those individuals involved, I would be happy to

vote for it. But here on the basis of certain events which happened
on the 10th of October, to last for the whole month of October, every-

body who appeared at the White House during that period of time,

I suggest it is a faulty subpena.
The Chairman, The question is on the merits of the subpena.

All those in favor say aye.

[Chorus of "ayes,"]

The Chairman. A rollcall is demanded. The clerk will call the roll.

The Clerk, Mr. Donohue.
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Mr. DoxoHUE. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Brooks.
Mr, Brooks. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Kastenmeier.
Mr. Kastenmeier. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Edwards.
Mr. Edwards, Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hungate.
Mr. PIuNGATE. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Conyers.
Mr. Conyers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr, Eilberg.
Mr. Eilberg. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Flowers.
Mr. Flowers. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mann.
Mr. Mann. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Sarbanes.
Mr. Sarbanes. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Seiberling.

Mr. Seiberling. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Aye.
The Clekk. Mr. Drinan.
Mr. Drinan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Rangel.
Mr. Rangel. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Jordan.
Ms. Jordan. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Thornton.
Mr. Thornton. Aye.
The Clerk. Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Holtzman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Owens.
Mr. O^VENS. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mezvinsky.
Mr. Mezvinsky. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Hutchinson.
Mr. Hutchinson. No.
The Clerk. Mr. McClory.
Mr. McClort. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Sandman.
Mr. Sandman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Railsback. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Wiggins.
Mr. WiGCTNS. Aye.
The Clerk, Mr. Dennis.

Mr. Dennis. No.
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Tlie Clerk. Mr. Fish.
Mr. Fisii. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Mayne,
Mr. Mayxe. Aye.
Tlie Clerk. Mr. Hogan.
Mr. HoGAN. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Butler.

]\Ir. Butler. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Colion.

Mr. CoiiEx. Aye.
The Clerk, Mr. Lott.

]Ml'. IvOTT. No.
The Clerk. Mv. Froehlich.

Mv. Froehlich. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Moorhead.
Mr. Moorhead. Aye.
The (^LERK. Mr. Maraziti.

Mr. Maraziti. Aye.
The Clerk. Mv. Latta.

Mv. Latta. No.
The Clerk. Mr. Rodino.
The Chairman. Aye.
The Clerk. Mr. Chairman, 32 members have voted aye, 6 members

have voted no.

The Chairman. The motion is agreed to.

There is no further vote required in accordance with the rules and
the subpena will issue according to the motion of the gentleman from
IMassachusetts.

There being no further business before the committee, the commit-
tee will adjourn and the hearing which was supposed to take place

sometimes after this meeting will resume at 2 o'clock this afternoon.

[Whereupon, at 11 :50 a.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 2:30 p.m., in room 2141,

Ivayburn House Office Building, Hon. Peter W. Eodino, Jr. (chair-

man), presiding.

Present: Eepresentatives Rodino (presiding), Donohuo. P)rooks,

Kastenmeier, Edwards, Hungate, Conyers, Eilberg, Waldie. Flowers,
Mann, Sarbanes, Seiberling, Danielson, Drinan, Rangel, Jordan,
Thornton, Holtzman, Owens, Mezvinsky, Hutchinson, McClory,
Smith, Sandman, Railsback, Wiggins, Dennis, Fish, Mayne, Hogan,
Butler, Cohen, Lott, Froehlich, Moorhead, Maraziti, and Latta.

Impeachment inquiry staff present: Jolm Doar, special counsel;

Albert E. Jenner, Jr., special counsel to the minority; Samuel Garri-

son III, deputy minority counsel ; Evan A. Davis, counsel.

Committee staff present : Jerome M. Zeifman, general c<)unsel ; Gar-
ner J. Cline, associate general counsel; and Franklin G. Polk, asso-

ciate counsel.

Also present: James D. St. Clair, special counsel to the President;
John A. McCahill, assistant special comisel.

The Chairman. The committee Avill come to order, and we will re-

sume with the presentation by Mr. Doar. I am advised that there is

n bill on the floor, a conference I'eport, and it may be necessary for us,

should two bells ring, to report to the floor to vote, but we will declare

a I'ecess at tliat time and return in order that we may resume so that

we may conclude at least w^ith this portion of the presentation in

volume 3.

Before Mr. Doar proceeds, I Avould like to announce that tomor-
row morning's meeting, which had been scheduled for the considera-

tio2i of subpenas in particular instances is being canceled, the reason
for that being that I have discussed this matter with Mr. Doar and
I lind that we do not have a denial on the part of Mr. St. Clair from
the White House with relation to the requests that have been made
concerning some of the matters that have been requested in letters

that Mr. Doar sent to Mr. St. Clair after approval by myself and
]Mr. Hutchinson, specifying certain documents and certain conver-

sations tliat we were looking for with regard to ITT and the dairy
industry. I feel it appropriate at this time that Mr. Doar and Mr.
Jenner be instructed after this hearing today to discuss this matter

(677)
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with Mr, St. Clair so that we might get an indication—not only an
indication, but we might get a response as to whether or not there
will be compliance by the White House in those areas, and which areas,
if they will so designate. We will resume with our hearing when we
adjourn this afternoon to recess until tomorrow at 10 o'clock.

Mr. LatTxV. Mr. Chairman, I would like to raise a question as to

our procedure here. I believe it was yesterday or the day before that
we raised the same question about asking questions of Mr. Doar and
Mr. Jenner as we proceed. The Chair indicated that the only time we
could ask a question is at conclusion of the day. I notice a young lady
over there taking this all down, which means that when this matter,
if it does, comes on for hearing on the floor, we will be furnishing
documents to the House. I think we are going to leave the wrong im-
pression if we go througli all of this and no questions are raised that

no members of the committee had any questions. Now, yesterday, I

noticed that several members of the commitee had questions to ask.

They waited until the end of the day and the questions were not asked.

I think if we are going to have a good inquiry here, and I am sure

everybody wants that, I think questions should be raised and answered
timely—not at the end of the day, but when the question appears.

I would like to have the Chair reconsider his ruling that you cannot
ask a question.

Nobody wants any dilatory tactics. We want to get this thing over

Mitli and I, probably more than anybody else on this committee, be-

cause we have floorwork and work on other committees.

The Chairman. The Chair will state that the rules of procedure
under which we are proceeding specifically state that the presentation

will be made and following the presentation, then members may be

permitted to ask questions. I think that this would disrupt the orderly

procedure that we contemplated in order that we be as expeditious as

we can and yet reserve to members the right to ask questions of counsel

which will be asked at a time and every right will be accorded them

—

as we have stated, the rights that are theirs under the rules of the

House and under the rules of this impeachment inquiry procedure.

Mr. Latta. Mr. Chairman, I Avould like the recorcl to show that I

dissent. I do not think this is a proper procedure to follow for a matter

of this importance.
The Chairman. The dissent will be noted. I would also like to note

for the gentleman that if he will read the impeachment inquiry proce-

dures and read rule B, it says following the presentation of evidence

by the staff, opportunity for the following has been provided and any
committee member may bring additional evidence to the committee's

attention, and then their questions may ])e addressed.

jNIr. Latta. We are not asking, jNIr." Chairman, to bring additional

evidence. We are merely asking the right tliat we ask our counsel tliat

we hired as members of this committee and meml^ers of the House a

proper question at the proper time. I do not think any rules adopted

by this committee are so inflexible that they cannot be changed, and

I" think now is the time to consider changing those rules, because sev-

eral members, not only this member, had questions yesterday that were

not asked and not answered because we broke up in the fashion that

we did.

The Chairman. The gentleman's dissent will be noted on the record.
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Mr. HoGAN. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Mr. Hogan ?

Mr. Hogan. There are questions in m}^ mind for clarification. It is

just unclear as to where we are and so forth. Is it possible that a mem-
ber might, when such a question occurs, write it down and durin^v the

recess give it to counsel and when we come back in, have him clarify it ?

The Chairman. I think that would be perfectly appropriate and
certainl}' help the proceedings.
Mr. PIoGAN. Thank you.
Mr, Latta. Would the gentleman yield for a further inquiry?
Are we going to have one recess during the afternoon so we can do

this, or are we going to have frequent recesses when we can do it?

The Chairman. The Chair has not decided whether or not recesses

are going to be called or not, but the Chair contemplates that there

will be recesses, since I think first of all, the presentation is going to

take a period of time and we are going to be listening to tapes this

afternoon, so it would be in order at that time.

Mr. DoAR.
Mr. DoAR. Mr. Chairman, yesterday, during the presentation of

l30ok II, volume 1, Mr. Jenner advised the committee that we would
furnish to the commitee additional material with respect to paragraph
14. A member asked if we would also furnish the material that we had
prepared for tab 27. In the envelopes at your places are those two sets

of material. If we could go back and summarize briefly those mate-
rials, if Mr. Jenner would summarize the material that he wishes
added in paragraph 14.

Mr. Jenner. JNlr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen, you will recall

that yesterday, I called attention to the fact that bearing upon Mr.
Kehrli's memorandum to which INIr. Doar called your attention, there

was a preceding—there was additional matter in the Senate select com-
mittee testimony that bore upon whether or not Mr. Hunt was a mem-
ber of the White House staff as of the 1st of April or the 31st of March,
since I thought there was some material that might be helpful to

indicate that at least it was contemplated that his position wdth the

White House was being temiinated about that time, and that is what
this addition is. It consists, under 14.11, which will be new in your
book—you will insert that material at the end of tab 14. It consists

of three pages. Page 791, which is Mr. Magruder's testimony—the
reason we mark near the bottom of the page the reference to "In
approximately mid-March, I had requested certain things from Mr,
Liddy" is to give you a time-fix as to the testimony starting on page
792. Because you will notice that Mr. Magruder says in response to
Mr. Dash's question at the bottom of page 792, "At that time.'' So
what appears on the preceding page fixes the time, mid-March.
Then the apropos portion—well, it is all apropos, but particularly

so at the top of page 793, Mr. Magruder says that : "He indicated that
Mr. Hunt had completed his assignments at the White House and since
we Avere now engaged in intelligence activities, he thought I would find
Mr. Hunt very valuable. I only met Mr. Hunt once," and so forth.
So if you will just insert those materials under your tab 14.

The information sheet for tab 14 now supplied you is identical witli

the one already in your book, except on the second page in the annota-
tions, the annotation 14.11 is included. In order to be more convenient
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for you, we are duplicating the information in that paragrapli and
you may remove and destroy tab 14 and substitute the two information

sheets which you have there. Then at the very end of that tab, insert

the 14.11 material as an addition.

Mr. DoAR. Tab No. 27 ?

Mr. Davis. Tab 27. This is matei-ial in the broAvn envelope.

Mr. DoAR. This is the material in the brown envelope that one of the

members asked yesterday to be furnished to the committee.

Mr. Davis. On or about June 22, 1972. Jolm Ehrlichman met witli

John Dean and discussed the contents of Howard Hunt's safe and
what to do with certain politically sensitive documents.
The Chairmax. That is a record vote.

Mr. DoAR. The material behind tab 27 deals with a conflict in the

testimony between John Dean and John Ehrlichman with respect to

whether or not at this conversation on June 27, INIr. Ehrlichman told

John Dean to deep-six the brief case and contents thereof that was
taken from Howard Hunt's safe. There is no dispute about tlio fact

that the two men met and discussed the contents. There is a clear dis-

pute with respect to wliat was said.

On the one hand, Mr. Dean, in 27.1, describes how Mr. Ehrlicliman
suggested that he deep-six the material. Mr. Ehrlichman denies this

before the Senate select committee.

On 27.2 and 27.8, we have also included a portion of John Dean's
notes which he made at Camp David at the time he was ordered to go
to Camp David to prepare a report after March 21. The material would
really have to be read in full by the committee to evaluate this conflict.

jNIr. Dennis. ]\Ir. Chainnan, unless I am in error, the statement of

fact has been omitted. I have all the supporting documents here, but

I do not see the statement.
Mr. DoAR. Perhaps it was omitted from yours.

Mr. Dennis. That is what I mean. I cannot find it.

Mr. DoAR. We will get you another one, Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. It is supposed to be here, but I cannot put a handle on it.

Mr. DoAR. Tab 41. We are now turning to book III.

The Chairman. The committee will be in recess until sucli time as

the committee members have had a chance to vote on this record vote.

[Recess.]

The Chairman. The committee will come to order.

Mr. Doar, will you proceed ?

Mr. Davis. Tab 41.

On June 28, 1 972, Helms wrote a memorandum to Walters stating the
substance of Helms' conversation with Gray. Helms stated the CIA
still adhered to its request that the FBI confine its investigation to

persons already arrested or directly under suspicion and that the FBI
not expand its investigation into other areas which might well event-

ually run afoul of CIA operations.

My. Doar. Tab 41.1 is this memorandum. Inquiry has been made
about the cover sheet of that memorandum which says or reads "basic
data, St. George's allegations."

St. George is a writer who wrote an article about the CIA in Har-
per's magazine, and this resulted in an armed services investigation or

armed services hearing and the CIA prepared some documents to
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furnish to the Senate Armed Services Committee in connection with

that hearing-. The document behind 41.1 is the letter and pertinent

language is in paragraph 2 in the last sentence of the paragraph to the

effect

:

We still adhere to a request that they confine themselves to the personalities

already arrested or directly under suspicion and that they desist from expanding
this investigation into other areas which may well eventually run afoul of our
operations.

Tab 42.

Mr. Davis. Tab 42. On June 28, 1972, Gray directed that the FBI
interview Manuel Ogarrio and continue its elforts to locate and inter-

view Kenneth Dahlberg. On that evening, John Dean telephoned Gray
at home and urged that, for national security reasons, or because of

CIA interest, Ogarrio and Dahlberg be held up. They thereafter can-

celed the interviews.

Dr. DoAR. Tab 42.1 is the testimony of Patrick Gray substantiating

that. You will notice that page 3455 at the bracket in the first para-

graph that INIr. Gray discusses with iSIr. Felt and Mr. Bates whether
this position of the CIA could be brought about because of security

reasons or what is known as compartmentalization at the CIA, whereby
one man in the agency does not know all that is going on nor does

another operational man know all that is going on. And this apparently

is a system that is followed in intelligence operations so that the infor-

mation with respect to a particular case is known by as few people as

possible.

Later on in connection with the Fielding break-in, we will bring
information to you which will indicate that some officials in the CIA
knew some parts of the investigation of Daniel Ellsberg and other

officials knew other parts of the investigations of Daniel Ellsberg, but

neither official knew what the other official was doing and these were
relatively high officials within the CIA.

In this testimony, Gray emphasizes that he was concerned about the

FBI's reputation, and that he would not hold back the investigation at

anyone's request including the President of the United States in the

absence of overriding and valid considerations.

And then he relates how in the afternoon of that day, John Dean
called him and asked him to hold up the interview of Miss Kathleen
Chenow for alleged reasons of national security. And he temporarily
discontinued that interview. And then late that night on his way to

San Diego and Phoenix for a field trip he got a call from John Dean
at home. He was urged by John Dean to hold up these interviews that

he had directed to be proceeded with, for national security reasons,

or because of CIA interest. And he called and gave directions reversing

his earlier instructions canceling the interviews. Mr. Jenner.

Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen. As you see from
these first two paragraphs, and those that follow, they are the resolu-

tion of this matter that you will ultimately be called up to determine
which is whether the advancement of the national security reason was
in good faith for that actual purpose or rather was for the purpose of

preventing or inducing the FBI not to investigate the Dahlberg con-

tribution and interview Ogarrio and others with respect to the cashing
of those checks in Mexico City.
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I voice no opinion on the subject. I merely call your attention to it

so you, in reading these paragraphs, you will have that in mind.
It is interesting at page 3455, read by Mr. Doar, that perhaps at this

point Mr. Gray was having some thoughts himself because you will
notice in the fifth from the bottom line he said "Mr. Dean asked me
to hold up the interview of Miss Kathleen Chenow for alleged reasons
of national security.''

Now, the word "alleged'' is a word used by Mr. Gray during the
course of his testimony, subsequent to the course of events that had
transpired.

Mr. Dennis, Mr. Chairman, who and what is Kathleen Chenow ?

Mr. DoAR. We will come to that in a minute, Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Jenner. Almost immediately, Mr. Dennis.
Mr. Dennis. All right.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
Mr. Doar. Tab 43.

Mr. Davis. Tab 43, on June 28, 1972, FBI agents met with Gordon
Liddy in the presence of SCRP attorney Kenneth Parkinson to ques-

tion Liddy regarding the break-in at the DNC headquarters. When
Liddy declined to answer the agent's questions, he was discharged by
FCRP Chairman, Maurice Stans.

Mr. Doar. Tab 43.1 is Mr. Liddy's deposition in the civil case of
O'Brien v. McCoi^d which is the only testimony we have from Gordon
Liddy.
Yesterday a question was asked whether or not we attempted to

interview Gordon Liddy. We did. lie declined to give us any
information.
The testimony of Gordon Liddy taken at this deposition shows that

when he Avas interviewed by the FBI he told the FBI that before talk-

ing to them that he wanted to get a lawyer. And if you see on the

bottom of page 39, 43.1, as he says, and this is the third paragraph
from the bottom, he said

:

So I said to the agent that before he went any further, prior to any interview,

I would like to obtain the services of an attorney, consult with him on what I

believed was the possible legal problems involved and did desire not to have any
further conversation with him or with his companion agent until I had the benefit

of counsel.

And later on, as he relates, ]\Ir. LaRue advised him that the policy

of the committee was that all representatives or that any member of

the committee cooperate completely with any representative of an

official investigative body.
Mr. Liddy explained to him that he wanted to sec his counsel, and

that he said

:

I came to understand that this was not acceptable, and that if I were to persist

In this position that I had taken it might well lead to my dismissal.

And then later he indicates that it was his best recollection that Mr.

Stans fired him. And that was done I think on that day. Mr. Jenner.

Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen, if you will turn

back to the statement of information you will notice that the second

sentence reads "When Liddy declined to answer the agent's questions

he was discharged."

You might make at least a mental note there that he declined to

answer the questions absent his being permitted to consult counsel,
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and though that was the basis uiDon which he put his refusal, he was

discharged anyhow.
Mr. DoAR. Tab 44.

Mr. Davis. Tab 44, on or about June 28, 1972, John Dean was

informed that the FBI was attempting to interview Kathleen Chenow,

the secretary of David Young and Egil Krogh in the White House

Special Investigations Unit, the Plumbers. The number of the tele-

phone billed to Chenow at her home address, but located in the EOB,
was contained in a pei-sonal notebook of telephone numbers of Eugenio

Martinez and in an address book of Bernard Barker, found in the

Watergate Hotel room that had been occupied by certain of the men
arrested in tlie DNC headquarters. Dean has testiiied that he informed

John Ehrlichman of problems connected with Chenow's interview and

that Ehrlichman agreed that before her FBI interview, Chenow should

be briefed not to disclose the activities of Howard Hunt and Gordon
Liddy while at the Wliite House. On June 28, 1972, Dean telephoned

Acting FBI Director Gray and requested that Chenow's interview

be temporarily held up for reasons of national security. Gray agreed

to the request.

Mr. DoAR. Behind tab 44 we have included certain documents from

Martinez and Barker's address books and also Kathleen Chenow's
home telephone number. The purpose of that was, as I will explain to

you, is to show that this was the number that had been given at some
time to Barker and Martinez to call and it was the number that

Martinez could reach George, which was Gordon Liddy 's alias. We
have no proof that the telephone was in operation at June 19 or June
17 and as a matter of fact the only records that we do have of Kathleen
Chenow run through April 1972. I will explain that in detail as we
go through the proof behind tab 44.

Tab 44.1 is John Dean's testimony identifying David Young and
the fact that Miss Chenow had worked for l>avid Young and Bud
Krogh, the two people that were in charge of the Plumber's opera-

tion. This young lady, who is a secretary there, had been asked to take

out a phone listing in her own name of a phone that was located in

the Executive Office Building of the White House. And John Dean
was concerned, as he testified, that Miss Chenow, if she testified alx)ut

the Watergate, could cause the White House problems about inad-

vertently answering questions about the Plumbers. And David Young
was concerned about jVIiss Chenow being caught off guard by an FBI
agent.

So John Dean discussed the problem with Mr. Ehrlichman, and
there was an arrangement made that Fielding, who was Dean's assist-

ant, to go to I^ndon and bring back this young lady and brief hei- so

that she would not get into Hunt and Liddy's activities at the White
House. This was done prior to the time that she Avas interviewed by
the FBI.
Tab 44.2 is Howard Hunt's testimony, and he is just identifying

Kathleen Chenow as the secretary to the group specifically working
for Mr. Young.
Tab 44.3 is Mr. Gray's testimony when John Dean asked him to

hold up the interview of Kathleen Chenow.
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Tab 44.4 is the description of the material that was taken from the

])eople that were arrested at the time of the Watergate break-in, and

behind that is the cover sheet of Mr. Barker's notebook. And if you

turn to 44.7 for just a second, you will notice—this is 44.7—you will

notice that this is the phone records of Kathleen Chenow, 501 Slaters

Lane, Apartment 519, Alexandria, Va. That is at 44.7. And at the top

riglit-hand corner of the first page you will see that her phone number
is 347-0355. That is at the top right-hand corner of the page, 347-0355.

And then if you go back, turn back in your book to 44.4, and go to

JNIr. Barker's plione book, phone address book, and you look in there

and you look at the right-hand column, tliere is a Miss Hastings, and
then" there is a phone, 642-5996, and then the next line, with two lines

scratched through it, 347-0355.

And then if you turn over the next page it is a brown and yellow

list finding, Donnie Martinez.

And if you turn to his phone logs, which is the last document under

44.4, consisting of three pages of this flip file and you look at tlie

right-hand one of these, and you go down to the first telephone num-
ber, you will see the word "George" and the number 202-347-0355.

Also under the first name there it is Howard Hunt on that list, and
then the third or the first number is this telephone number.
We also note that there is a "George" in the middle folder, but I

don't know the significance of that.

The next, 44.5, is Mr. Dash's, Samuel Dash's review of Kathleen
Chenow's FBI interview, and relates her history of working at the

Plumber's suite in the Executive Office Building and the fact that she
was approached by David Young in October 1971 and requested to

have a private telephone installed in the suite located in room 16 for

the use of Howard Hunt. He said that the bills were paid by John
Campbell, staff secretary to President Nixon. I think the words "staff

secretars^" there is a descriptive term of one of a great number of
secretaries in the White House. And this phone, according to Miss
Chenow, was in the suite for approximately 5 months and taken out in

the middle of March 1972. And she said she saw Hunt the last of March
1972 and Liddy in February 1972. Tab 44.6

jNIr. Jenxer. Excuse me, John. In connection with the issue of wlien
Mr. Hunt left the White House, the items to which ]\Ir. Doar has just

called your attention are pertinent. That is, she testified she last saw
him in "the White House in March 1972, and the telephone taken out in
her name and originally installed in Mr. Hunt's office, was removed in
the middle of March 1972.

Mr. Doar, Tab 44.6 is just a summary of his telephone calls, search
of the telephone records by Patrick Gray. Tab 45.

]\Ir. Davis. Tab 45 on June 28, 1972, Gray met with John Ehrlichman
and John Dean. At this meeting Gray was given two folders contain-
ing docuuients which he was told had been rctricAed from Howard
Hunt's safe and had not been delivered to the FBI agents when the
remainder of the contents of the safe was delivered on June 27, 1972.
Gray was told that these documents were politically sensitive, were
unrelated to Watergate, and should never be made public. Dean did
not deliver to Gray the two notebooks and popup address books that
had been found in Hunt's safe. Dean has related that he discovered
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these items in a file folder in his office in late January 1973 at whicli

time he shredded the notebook and discarded the address book.

j\Ir, DoAR, Tab 45.1 is John Ehrlichman's log of the meeting- between

Gray and Dean.
Tab 45.2 is Mr. Gray's description of the conversation and that

meeting. He said, "After the usual greeting-s were exchanged, Mr.

Ehrlichman said something very close to 'John has something he

wants to turn over to you'." And then he said

:

I noted that Mr. Dean had in his hand two white manila legal sized folders,

and he then said Mr. Dean told me these files contained copies of sensitive and
classified papers of a political nature that Howard Hunt had been working on.

He said they had national security implications or overtones, had absolutely

nothing to do with the Watergate and had no bearing on the Watergate investiga-

tion whatsoever. Then he said that either Mr. Dean or Mr. Ehrlichman said that

these files should not be allowed to confuse or muddy the issues in the Water-
gate case.

Mr. WiGGixs. Mr. Chairman, I want to make a marginal note and I

do not liave the facts. They relate to a prior book. This material is a

product of that safe I take it. What was the date that the safe was
opened ?

Mr. Davis. It was opened on the 19th.

Mr. Wiggins. On the 19th. Thank you.
Mr. DoAR. Tab 45.3 is Mr. Ehrlichman's testimony about that meet-

ing. He testified that he did not know what was in the packet except

that Mr. Mr. Dean had told him that there w^ere sensitive materials,

politically sensitive materials.

Tab 45.4 is Mr. Ehrlichman's testimony that he was concerned about
leaks and that it could be very embarrassing for a lot of people, and
that John Dean suggested that the way to handle this was to divide
the material into two parcels and give one to the FBI agents and the
other to Mr. Gray. That he concurred in that suggestion as a way of
making sure that the documents did not leak.

And he describes again that the discussion was there were politically

sensitive documents.
Tab 45.6 I have already read to the committee. This is Mr. Ben-Yen-

iste's statement to the court with respect to John Dean's shredding of
the two notebooks that he did not turn over to the FBI. Tab 46.
Mr. Davis. Tab 46, on June 30, 1972, the President met with H. R.

Haldeman and John Mitchell. A portion of their discussion related to
the Watergate break-in.
Mr. Doar. Now, members of the committee, this is a very short, this

is a very short recording, tape recording. We will come to about a
40-minute tape recording at tab 53. I would like to explain before you
put on your earphones that the way this procedure worked before
Judge Sirica was that we, after the court of appeals decision, the Pres-
ident decided to turn over certain recorded conversations to the court.
The procedure was for Judge Sirica to listen to the conversation in
camera and to exclude parts of the conversation that were not related
to the Watergate investigation. And the part that you have here is that
part of that conversation that Judge Sirica felt was relevant to the
V\ atergate break-m and the investigation and the alleged coverup. We
have two tape recordings of that conversation, and we would like to
play them both for you. Neither of them are of the best quality.
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This tape is by far the worst quality of tape.

The reason for that is that when we went down and made a recording

of the conversation at Judge Sirica's chamber, because we found there

we could get the best copies, and a slight portion of the recording was

not recorded. Now, that was inadvertence as to the setting of the re-

cording equipment. As I understand it, you are going to play whicli

tape first? The one recorded in the district court will be played first.

The first tape that you hear will start with Mr. Haldeman on the first

page and run down'to the speaking, where the President is speaking at

the bottom of the first page, and then we will go on and it starts with

Mr. ]Mitchell on the second page and runs down to the bottom of page

2. And then we will play the other tape where you will have the entire

conversation on it including the President's statement at the bottom

of page 1, the top of page 2, and the material on page 3.

[A tape recording, previously described, was played.]

]\Ir. DoAR. Turn to page 2. Now we will play the entire tape again,

which we have obtained from either the White House or from the Spe-
cial Prosecutor's Office, that has the entire conversation. Again T re-

mind you that this quality is the poorest tape by far that you will listen

to. The tape that you will hear later on this afternoon will be much
more satisfactory to listen to. You will not have the strain that you
have in listening to this particular conversation.

But this will be a worse tape, a worse recording, than you have

just lieard.

[The second tape recording, previously described, was plaved.]

]\rr. DoAR. Tab 47.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, I wonder if Mr. Jenner and Mr.
Doar have anything in this conversation that they think ought to be

highlighted before we leave it.

Mr. D(^AR. Well, we have folloAved the practice with respect to all

thcvSc conversations throughout all of them of not highlighting any-

thing in the conversations for the members until they have finished

them all on the ground that it was our understanding that that was
the way that the committee intended to have us present them.

Mr. WiOGTxs. Mr. Chairman?
The CuAiRMAX. I would like to remind the member that all that

counsel can present to us is the raw tape as it is without being high-

lighted in any way whatsoever. Otherwise I do not think they would
bo conveying to us what we have to judge on our own.
Mr. WiGOixs. Right. But, Mr. Chairman,
a\Ir. Seiberling. I just wondered if we are going to follow this

throughout ?

The CiiAiRMAX. Well, I would think it would be perfectly inappro-

priate for counsel to do anything of that sort.

Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman. Mr. Wiggins.
]\Ir. Wiggins. Can counsel tell me also for the purpose of a marginal

note the date on which Mr. Mitchell left the committee ?

jNIr. DoAR. He left on this date. This was the day he left.

Mr. Wiggins. Ji\\ right.

Mr. Fish. Mr. Chairman, do I understand from what counsel has

just said that we will be going over this material at another time?
The Chairman. There will be another tape which is a longer tape.
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Mr. Fisii. Xo. this same tape, we will be going over it at another
time?
The CiiAiRMAX. Yes. That's correct.

^Ir. Danielson.
]\Ir. Daxielsox. ]My question does not have to do with substance or

background here but I listened and I don't understand why we got this

twice and there are different versions? Are the tapes from different

sources ? 1 do not understand why tliere are two tapes here.

Mr. DoAR. I can explain that. In trying to get the best quality of

tape for you, we went through in some instances five generations of

making rerecordings. We would get a tape from the AMiite House, and
wc would play it and it v/ould be very diiiicult to hear anything. And
v\-e proposed to Mr. St. Clair, and he agreed, that we go down to the

^Viiitc House and make our own rerecording.

Now, you can make a better recording of a recorded conversation
if you speed up the rerecording to twice or four times the speed and
you can also do it if you set the needle of the rerecording in a way
which is as close to the way the needle was set when it was recording
the conversations, as I understand it, and our electronic consultant

went down to the "White House and he made, off of a copy of a tape,

as we understand it, not the original because the originals Avere, we
bolieve, were in Judge Sirica's chambers and we rn.ade a copy of that
tape. We found that we got a much, much better recording of that
tape. Then we decided to go down and ask Judge Sirica if we could
do the same thing with the tapes that he had. And in the meantime
we had gotten jVIr. Jawoa-ski's tape and then we found that was
not as good as the tape that we had made, and so we went down to

Judge Sirica and we made a rerecording of that tape, all of the tapes
(here. Xow, just as an oversight, when we made the rerecording of the

tape that was in Judge Sirica's chamber and because he had edited
out portions of the conversation, he only gave to the Special Prosecu-
tor a very small part of this convei'sation, and the technician who set

the needle at the time with Judge Sirica set it and cut it off before the
President's conversation here on the bottom of page 1 and the top of
page 2, and cut the recording off before the last 2 lines that we have
gotten on the other tape. And as a result that is why there was less

on the better recording than on the second recording.

Mr. Daxielsox. Thank you.
]Mr. Chairman, I do not think I am inquiring into the merits here,

but I did not understand why we would have two different tapes ancl

in effect, two different versions. Am I correct now in my present un-
derstanding which is that we are not dealing with the original tapes at

all ? We have been dealing with copies of tapes or copies of copies of
tapes, as the case may be ?

Mr. DoAR. That is right, although I think that some of the tapes in

Judge Sirica's chambers were the original or believed to be the origi-

nals. The six that we copied in Judge Sirica's office were the originals.

]Mr. Daxielsox. And the reason why there may be a difference in the
intelligibility or the clarity of some of the tapes is just due to the efforts

of technicians to record at different speeds and in different manners
in order to enhance the audibility ? Is that the idea ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. The techniques, but
Mr. Daxielsox\ But it does not change the substance of what is on

the tapes ?
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Mr. DoAR. No, sir. It does not. It does not.

Mr. Danielsox. All right. Thank you.

Mr. DoAR. Tab number 47.

Mr, Jexner. JNIr. Chairman. John, excuse me. Ladies and gentlemen,

not highlighting this, you will notice that this is the first occasion

that the President, at least to our discovery, has made any remai'ks

with respect to Watergate. And whether you call it highlighting or

not, that is one of the major purposes here.

Now, as to the thrust you will give to this language, there are a

number of sentences that your counsel prefer not to discuss, but we
will be discussing—we would have to discuss it in terms of interpre-

tation of the language, and perhaps down the road somewhere you

may Avish us to observe that. At the present moment, as the chairman

has stated, we wish only to give you the bare conversations, and tell

you to study it so that you will be able to raise questions yourself.

Mr. Seiberling. Mr. 'Chairman, may I ask one question?

The Chairman. Is it with relation to a clarification of the presenta-

tion that is being made ?

Mr. Seiberling. Well, it relates to the nature of the tapes, which
is that—is this all the tape that there is that we know of with respect

to this subject on this particulate date? Because it seems to start in

the middle of the conversation with respect to Wategate. If not, has

consideratiion been given to subpenaing a tape for this-

The Chairman. I believe, Mr. Seiberling, that question has already

been addressed. There is a reason for the two different transcripts

—

the one transcript, I think Mr. Doar has already explained.

Mr. DoAR. As I understand it. Judge Sirica, under the order of

the court of appeals, listened to the conversation between the Presi-

dent and Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Mitchell on June 30, 1972. He deter-

mined that it was this portion of the conversation that was relevant.

Therefore, he permitted copying only of that portion. I agree with

the Congressman; this observation that you made has puzzled me,

too. It does appear that there should be more of the conversation,

but the material which the grand jury received from the White House,

which the grand jury received pursuant to subpena, was that which
Judge Sirica permitted them to receive. That is the material we
received from the l^Hiite House and from the grand jury. The entire

conversation is still on that tape.

Mr. Seiberling. My question is, are any of your requests for taped

conversations, do they cover this particular conversation in an effort

to determine whether there was anything more in that conversation

that related to Watergate than what is presented in this particular

transcript ?

INIr. Doar. We have not yet made such a request. We have delayed

doing that until the committee heard this tape and heard the next

tape.

I will sriy that on the next tape, on the tape you will hear in 10.

or 15, or 20 minutes, when we went down to the Wliite House and
made the rerecording, inadvertently, the Secret Service people set

the needle 15 minutes before the time that Judge Sirica had, the

conversation between the President and John Dean on September 15.

There is in the last 4 minutes of that 15 minutes pertinent conversa-

tion with respect to this inquiry. We will ask the committee to permit
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us to play that to you today as a basis for a further request for an

additional part of that recorded conversation.
. , ^ ,

As soon as we learned of that fact, that this incident had occurred,

Mr. Jenner and I advised Mr. St. Clair of it, after havincr advised

the chairman and the ranking minority member. At their direction,

we advised them that we did have an additional 15 minutes of con-

versation on September 15 beyond that which was intended to be

eiven to us.
. i ^ •

i i
"^

Mr. Seiberling. I am simply suggesting that we consider also

requesting this particular entire conversation.
. , .

The Chairman. Mr. Seiberling, I think that the questions that

ouoht to be addressed ought to be questions that merely are seeking

clarification of the presentation that is being made. What we will be

then deciding to do I think we can defer until after the presentation

or durino- the recess if there are any questions; then I think the

membere'inav make those sus^gestions as to what additional evidence

or what may be the question in their mind that would suggest they

need some further information to clarify.

:Mr Seiberlixg. Mr. Chairman, if I may simply respond to that,

we have at various points in the presentation so far had occasions

when Mr. St. Clair—excuse me, when Mr. Doar pointed out that

there was an appropriate point for requesting or subpenamg addi-

tional material and I thought perhaps this was an appropriate time

to discuss it. But I agree that under our rules, we can do it later on.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar.

Mr. Doar. Tab 47. ^ _ ,^. ,,. ,^ ., ^

Mr. Davis. Tab 47—on July 2, 1972, Fred Fielding, staff assistant

to John Dean, flew to England where Kathleen Chenow was vacation-

ino- to brino- Chenow back to Washington. On or about July 3, 1972,

Chenow diSiussed her forthcoming FBI interview with Fielding and

Plumbers unit member David Young. Dean and Fielding were present

when the FBI interviewed Chenow.

Mr. Doar. Tab 48. ^ _^ ^ . __,_.

Mr Davis. Tab 48—on July 5, 1972, at o :o4 p.m.. Acting FBI
Director Gray phoned Deputv CIA Director Walters and stated that,

unless the CIA provided by the following monimg a written rather

than the verbal request to refrain from interviewing iSIanuel Ogarrio

and Kenneth Dahlberg, the FBI would go forward with those inter-

views. At 10:05 a.m. on July 6, 1972, Walters met with Gray^and

furnished Gray a memorandum indicating that the CIA haci no

interest in O^^aTiio or Dalilberg. Grav then ordered that Ogarrio and

Dahlberg be mterviewed. At 10 :51 a.m.. Gray called Clark MacGregor,

campaig?! director of CRP, who was with the President at San

Clemente, Calif. Gray has testified that he asked MacGregor to tell

the President that Gray and Walters were uneasy and concerned

about the confusion during the past 2 weeks in determining whether

the CIA had any interest in people who the FBI wished to interview

in connection with the Watergate investigation.

Gray also has testified that he asked MacGregor to tell the President

that (jray felt that people on the AVliite House staff were careless and

indifferent in their use of the CIA and FBI, that this activity was

injurious to the CIA and the FBI, and that these "Wliite House staff

people were wounding the President. MacGregor has denied both

41-018—75—pt. 1——45
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receiving this call and the substance of it as related by Gray, but has

testilied to recei\'ing a call I'rom Gray on another subject the previous

evening or possibly that morning. By letter of July 25, 1973, to

Archibald Cox, J. Fred Buzhardt stated that the President's logs do

not show any conversations or meetings between the President and
Clark MacGregor on July 6, 1072 ; tlie President's lo^ for that date

shows meetings between the President and MacGregor from 10 :40 a.m.

to 12:12 p.m. Pacific time.

At 11 :28 a.m., the President telephoned Gray. Gray told the

President that he and Walteis felt that peope on the President's staff

were trying to mortally wound the President by using the CIA and
the FBI. The President responded by instructing Gray to continue to

press ahead with the investigation.

I\Ir. DoAR. Tab IS really deals with two subjects: one, the con-

versation between Gray and Walters on July 5, and the other the con-

versation between Gray and the President on July 6.

Referring first to the conversation on July 5, you will see that 48.1

is Mr. Gray's log, 48.2 is Mr. Gray's testimony. At page 3457, you will

see that Mr. Gray had prepared a memorandum in writing requesting

in writing that the FBI refrain from interviewing Ogarrio or

Dahlberg because of CIA interest, and that Mr. Gray tells, testifies

in the second-to-last paragraph on that page that he expressed the

thought

—

That the leads to Ogarrio and Dahlberg were clear and that their interviews
were a necessity which only the clearest expression of national security interest

should prevent, and that the FBI, for the sake of its own integrity, would refrain

from conducting the interviews only if we received such a written request from
the CIA.

Mr. Gray goes on to tell that JSIr. Walters had indicated to him that

he would resign if he had been asked or directed by his superior to

give the FBI such a writing. He recalls the general—he says at page
3458, in the fourth paragraph, he recalls that "General Walters indi-

cated a feeling of irritation and resentment at the extent to which the
^ATiite House aides had involved themselves in the question of CIA
interest."

He said that he expressed his own concern and he mentioned the
abiiipt cancellation by Mr. Ehrlichman of a meeting he had scheduled
with Director Helms and General Walters on June 28. He said ''I

undoubtedly so expressed myself to General Walters." Mr. Gray says
"General Walters and T engaged in a general discussion of the credi-

bility and position of our respective institutions in our society and of
the need to insure that this was maintained."

General Walters said he Avas old enough now and he was not con-
cerned about his pension and he Avas not going to let "these kids" kick
him around anymore.
Tab 48.4 is General Walters' testimony before the Senate select

committee and 48.5 is General Walters' memorandum. I think it is

important that I call the committee's attention to page 2913 of 48.5. It

is a memorandum for record, dated July 6, 1972, General Walters said
he had given Mr. Gray the memorandum and he said

:

In all honesty I could not tell him to cease future investigations on the ground
that it would compromise the security of the United States. Even less so could
I write him a letter to this effect. He said that he fully understood this. He him-
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.self had told Ehrlichinan and Haldeman that he could not possibly suppress the

investigation of this matter. Even within the FBI there were leaks. He had called

in the components of his Field Office in Washington and "chewed them out" on
this case because information had leaked into the press concerning the Watergate
case which only they had.

Mr, Walters then contiinied :

I said that the only basis on which he and I could deal was absolute frank-
ness and I wished to recount my involvement in this case. I said that I had been
called to the White House with Director Helms and had seen two senior staff

assistants.

He puts in parentheses, ("I specifically did not name Haldeman and
Ehrlichman.")

Then he continues:

I said that we had been told that if this case were investigated further, it

would lead to some awkward places, and I had been directed

—

The implication being that the President liad directed this although
it was not specifically stated.

To go to Acting Director Gray and tell him that if this investigation were
pursued further, it could uncover some ongoing covert operations of the agency.

Then if you look on the next page, you will see that Mr. Gray states

he had explained all this to Dean as well as to Haldeman and Erlich-
man. Walters says

:

He said he was anxious not to talk to Mitchell because he was afraid that
at his confirmation hearings, he would be asked whether he had talked to Mitch-
ell about the Watergate case and he wished to be in a position to reply negatively.

Earlier in the memo you pee that Gray told Walters he did not see

"why he or I should jeopardize the integrity of our organizations to
protect some middle level White House figure who had acted im-
prudently. He was prepared to let this go to Erlichman, to Haldeman,
or to Mitchell for that matter."
Tab 48.6 is a memo from General Walters.
Tab -18.7. I have not gone into any particular things yet because I

would like to explain it for a minute, if I might. It is a memorandum
from Walters on July 6, 1972.

There are five different versions of what happened with respect to
this. They are all not mutually inconsistent, but they are inconsistent
in parts. The principals involved are Acting Director of the FBI,
Patrick Gray ; Clark MacGregor, who was then Director of the Cam-
paign to Reelect the President; John Erlichman, Mr. Buzhardt, and
President Nixon.
Turning first to Mr. Buzhardt, because he was not there but he

furnished some information to the Special Prosecutor at 48.8, on July
10, Mr. Cox wrote Mr. Buzhardt and asked him for—this is at 48.8
on the second page, paragraph 1.

Copies of or excerpts from logs, diaries, or similar records of telephone con-
versations and meetings between the President and Clark MacGregor on July 5
and 6, 1972.

On July 25 Mr. Cox was replied to by Mr. Buzhardt, in which he
says on July 25, ''Dear Mr. Cox." Looking at the second paragraph
of that letter "We have searched the logs and they do not show any
conversations or meetings on those dates." I am at 48.8, the letter to
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Mr. Cox. It is a letter in response to the request letter, I am looking

at the second paragraph. It says at the top, 48.8. Fred Buzhardt letter.

"The ^Vliite House, Washington, 25 July, 1973."

Then 48.9 is the President's daily diary at San Clements for July G.

You will see at the top of the page a brax?ket there at 8 :28 to 8 :33,

where the President talked long distance with Acting Director of the

FBI Gray.
You will see at 10 :40 to 12 :06 that the President had a meeting with

Clark MacGregor, Campaign Director.

And again at 12:06 to 12:08, there was a meeting—really from
12 :12 with Clark MacGregor.
Mr. Jenner. May I, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee,

IVIr. Garrison reminded me of the discussion this morning respecting

Presidential logs and particularly here is an example of the usefulness

of obtaining a Presidential log so as to fix the time of convei-sations

and of conferences, because 3'ou will see that the testimony, when ]Mr.

Doar proceeds, is conflicting.

Ms. HoLTZMAN. On that log, on 48.9, below the item, on the item

marked 48.9, whether anything has been deleted under the sentence

"The President talked long distance with Acting Director of the FBI."
On my copy, it seems as though there may have been something there

and it was deleted.

There has been something deleted ?

Mr. Doar. No ; that is not a deletion.

Mr. Jenner. It is a defect in the Xerox drum so that—it is an over-

print and it is nothing but a smudge.
Mr. Doar. Now if we can turn back to 48.3, you will see that at

11 :25, Mr. Gray's log indicates that he spoke with President Nixon.
This ties into President Nixon's diary with the 3-hour time difference

between Washington and California. Tab 48.4 deals with the meeting
with General Walters which I have already covered; 48.5 does the

same.
Then we come to 48.7, which is Clark INIacGregor's testimony. His

testimony is that he believes that shortly before 11 p.m., California
time, when he was staying at the Newport Beach—the Newporter Inn
at Newport Beach, Calif., that Mr. Gray called him and congratu-
lated him with respect to his appointment as Campaign Director for
the Committee to Re-Elect the President. This Avould be at 2 a.m.

Washington time. He did say that Mr, Gray indicated to him that he
Avas concerned about his impact on tlie campaign, of the Watergate
matter. But he did say that he did not have any recollection—this is

on the next page, 4915—that Mr. Gray talked in any sense about the
"wound". And he said

:

He did not, to my recollection, mention the CIA to me. He did not mention
the FBI. He did not mention General Walters, Dick Helms, John Ehrlichman.
or Bob Haldeman. He did indicate great concern. There was agitation in his

voice. He repeated himself.

He did not think there was anything unusual about the call. He said

he may have had some complaints about White House aides, but a
lot of people had those complaints. He said he did not request me to

call the President "and I did not call the President; I did not speak
to the President,"
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Then Senator "Weicker, on 4916, calls Mr. MacGregor's attention to

John Ehrlicliman's testimony before the House Armed Services Com-
mittee on October 23 last year, in which
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Chairman, did our staff ever ascertain whether or

not there were recording devices and a recording setup at San Cle-

mente or possibly at Key Biscayne ?

The Chairman. I might address the question to counsel.

]Mr. DoAR. My understanding is that there Avere no such recording
devices, but we have not, I could not state that we have made a full

investigation of that. Congressman Brook. "We will attempt to ascer-

tain that for 3'ou. We do not know that.

Mr. Brooks. I will assure you that they have a pretty extensive

communications setup out there.

Mr. Wiggins. I will take your word for it.

The Chairman. Mr. Doar?
Mr. Doar. Then on 4017 of Clark MacGregor's testimony, he recalls

that during a reception following a Presidential conference on export
trade, he was in a receivino; line and he went to the President and
the President said to him, "Clark, you did not mention the Pat Gray
matter to me on July 6." Tliis is 4917.

Senator Weicker inquired of Clark ]MacGregor, "Was there any
further conversation?"
And he said, there were just some general remarks, but he did say,

"I did not talk to you on July 6 about Pat Gray." That is President
Xixon conferring with Clark MacGregor 3 weeks before he testified.

Then we come to 48.9, which is the President's log. Then we have
48.10, John Ehrlichman's testimony. This is at 2784.

Scnatxjr Weicker says to Mr. Ehrlichman at the top "Why did the

Director call the President ?" Ehrlichman says, "Because he received

—

I assume because he had this memorandum."
Senator Weicker savs, "Oh no, oh no, Avhv did the Director call the

President?"

Mr. Ehrlichman. In point of fact. I think the President called the Director.

Senator Weicker. That is correct. The Director had called Mr. MacGregor.
Mr. Ehrlichman. That is true.

Senator Weicker. And he had expressed to Mr. MacGregor doubts as to this

situation. He felt that this was the best way to go ahead and get in touch with
the President, and the President called him back shortly thereafter.

Mr. Ehrmchman. I was not at the meeting between Mr. Gray and Mr. Mac-
Gregor so I don't know what they said but, I do know what the President told me.

Senator Weicker. But you do know
Mr. Ehrlichman. That Mr. MacGregor told him when he came and called on

the President on July 6 that he had been talking to Pat Gray and Pat Gray
felt it was important that he talk to the President right away and the President
picked up the phone immediately and called him.

Then on 4811, the President, in a statement on May 27, 1973, on
the second page, said

:

On July 6, 1972. I telephoned the Acting Director of the FBI, L. Patrick Gray,
to congratulate him on his successful handling of the hijacking of a Pacific

Southwest Airlines plane the previous day. During the conversation, Mr. Gray
discussed with me the progress of the Watergate investigation, and I asked
him whether he had talked with General Walters. Mr. Gray said that he had,

and that General Walters had assured him that tlie CIA was not involved. In

the discussion. Mr. Gray suggested that the matter of Watergate might lead

higher. I told him to press ahead with his investigation.
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Tab 48.12 is Mr. Gray's testimony before the grand jury. Beginning
on page 101, Mr. Gray says in the second answer there in connection
with the Watergate investigation

—

That both General Walters and myself felt that this was due to an indifference
and a carelessness on the part of White House staff people and a failure to
appreciate the position of these agencies in our society, and that we both felt
that this could be injurious to our agencies and could be wounding to the
President.
Now, these are certainly not my exact words, but they are certainly close to

them and they are certainly close to the thought that I intended to convey. And
I said to him. "Clarli, would you please pass this to the President."
And he said either. "I will handle if or, "I will take care of it." And that

was the substance of that conversation.

And tlie question "Now, your logs reflect that that call took place
at 10 :15 a.m. Washington time, Thursda}', July 6.-'

The 10:51 would be 7:51 California time.

Your logs reflect that at 10:28 a.m. Thursday—I am sorry, 11 :28 a.m., Thurs-
day, July 6, 1972, you received a call from President Nixon. Is that correct?
That is correct, sir.

Do you recollect speaking to President Nixon some 30 to 35 minutes after you
spoke to Mr. MacGregor?

I do indeed, yes sir.

He relates that the President started off by congratulating him on
the successful termination of the hijacking which had occurred in

San Francisco the day before.

Then he says

:

Before we get to that, just tell us all the conversation. You said you ap-
preciated it and you had passed it on?

Right. And then I said, Mr. President, there is something I want to speak
to you about. And really, I just blurted it out. That was my reaction at the
time.

I said, and I have written this down, and I have written it down becau-ie

I think it is very important, and this is my best recollection. I know that pre-
cision is impossible to obtain, but this is my best recollection, after having given
it much thought and consideration—to this call.

And I said, Dick Walters and I feel that people on your staff are trying
to mortally wound you by using the CIA and FBI and by confusing the ques-
tion of CIA interest in or not in people the FBI wishes to interview.
Then I said I have just talked to Clark MacGregor and asked him to speak

to you about this.

There was a perceptible pause, a notable pause, and the President said to

me, Pat. you just continue to conduct your aggressive and thorough investiga-

tion. And that was the end of the telephone call.

Tab 48, this is a matter that is—we feel is still mirpsolved—we are

continuing our investigation, the staff is inquiring further with re-

spect to his unresolved part of 48. Tab 49.

Mr. Dennis. Did the part you sav is unresolved refer to Tab 4S or

49?
^fr. DoAR. 48.

Tlie CiiAiRMAx. I think before we go on, this Avould be a good time
to take a break for 10 minutes.

[Recess.]

The Ch.mrmax. Como to order.

Mr. Doar. vou are on tab 49 i'

:Mr. Doar. Right.
Mr. Davis. Tab 49, in July 1972, Dean obtained from Gray various

interview and investigative reports of the FBI investigation of the



695

break-in at the DNC head(jiiarters. Dean has testified tliat he showed

these reports to the attorneys for CRP and to CRP officials. Previously,

Dean had asked Attorney General Kleindienst for access to FBI in-

terview reports and Attorney General Kleindienst had refused his

request.

Mr. DoAR. The material behind this tab is the material that details

the information. It shows that on two occasions in July, Gray made
nvailnble to Dean I think S2 of the 18(')—302 forms. It also shows that

Mr. Dean made these available to Mardian, O'Brien, and Parkinson

of the Committee to Re-elect the President.

Mardian told the Committee to Re-elect the President that he

thought Gray had gone hog wild, was too vigorous in his investiga-

tion, and was critical of the entire matter. This is in the testimony of

John Dean and also in 49.2 and 49.3.

Tab 49.4 is Attorney General Kleindienst's testimony that he was

not aware that Mr. Gray was furnishing to INIr. Dean 302 forms, in-

terview sheets, and that when Mr. Dean raised the question^this is

at 3": 64, tab 49.4, when Mr. Dean raised the question, that he had

told him that Mr. Gray would not give him them.

He goes on to say that only under the most restrictive circumstances

should raw FBI data be given to anybody, that if there was a par-

ticular file that the President of the United States personally wanted
to see, I would be willing to take that file personally up to tlie Presi-

dent, sit down and let him look at it, and then bring it back.

That seems to me to have been the practice that was followed dur-

ing the 7I/2 years that I was in the Justice Department. He said :

I am sure that if the President of the United States wanted to look at an
FBI file, that there was an arrangement made whereby the FBI would furnish

that file to the President. I know for a fact that in former Administrations,

there was a liaison as:ent assigned to the White House. But it was not my ex-

perience nor was it the experience in the Justice Department that other senior

officials in the White House could make claims not only on just raw FBI re-

ports—not raw FBI files but FBI reports that came to us in the Justice

Department.

Mr. Rangel,. Do we have the 302's?

]\f r. DoAR. "We do not have the 302*s. AYe can obtain them.
Mr. Rangel. It seems to me that this would be the initial investiga-

tion conducted by the FBI, that it might be helpful to find out what
the responses were to the agent's questions.

Mr. DoAR. Tab 50.

Mr. Davis. Tab 50. On or about Friday, July 28. 1972, a grand jury
subpena was served on Maurice Stans, Chairman of FCRP to testify in

connection with the investigation of the break-in at the DNC head-
quaiters about his knowledge of the purpose for which campaign funds
were spent. The President requested that John Ehrlichman determine
if Stans could testify by deposition instead of being subjected to a
])ersonal appearance before the grand jury. John Dean called Henry
Petersen, Assistant Attorney Geiieral in charge of the Criminal Divi-
sion, and requested that Stans testimony be taken at the offices of the
Department of Justice rather than before the grand jury. Petersen
had previously agreed to this arrangement in the case of testimony
by members of the White House staff.

Petersen told Dean that this procedure could not be used for Stans,
and Dean reported that response to Ehrlichman.
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On Saturday, July 29, 1972, Ehrlichman called Petersen and re-

quested that Stans not be compelled to appear before the grand jury.

Ehrlichman accused the prosecutors of harassing Stans.

On Sunday, July 30, 1972, Ehrlichman called Attorney General
Kleindienst. Ehrlichman reported that Petersen had refused to follow

his instructions.

The next day, Kleindienst, Petersen, and Assistant U.S. Attorney
Earl Silbert met in Petersen's office. They agreed that Stans would be
questioned under oath at the Department of Justice and not before the

grand jury.

On August 2, 1972, Stans was questioned in Petersen's conference
room. According to Stans, in August, the President called Stans and
told him that he appreciated the sacrifice that Stans was making in

not answering questions for the press and hoped that he could continue

to take it.

Mr. DoAR. Tab 50.4 is the testimony of Henry Petersen with respect

to the call from Mr. Ehrlichnian, This is at page 3618. At the middle of

the page, Mr. Petersen testifies that he received a call at 11 :45 at his

home. He was sitting at the kitchen table and it was Mr. Ehrlichman.
He charged Earl Silbert with harassing former Secretary Stans

—

And I told Mr. Ehrlichman that it was not harassment, that Mr. Silbert was
not resi>onsible that I had approved of that, and that it was not harassment,
that it was true he had been interviewed at least twice by the FBI but we
simply—I am hesitating because I want to be fair to Mr. Stans—basically, his

testimony, his interviews were the same as he gave the committee. Let me
put it that way.
As I recall his appearance up here, there was some question about whether the

committee believed his statement that he did not know what happened to the

money, that all he did was collect it. We had some difficulty, the same difficulty,

and we felt that if that was his story, that we ought to have it under oath. So
to that extent, we called him basically the third time, and it was right

Mr. Dash. A^Tiat did Mr. Ehrlichman want?
Mr. Petersen. What did he want? I asked him that question twice and he

never spelled it out, except to stop harassing Mr. Stans and I said we were not

harassing him and he charged that Earl Silbert was acting like a local prose-

cutor. Well, Mr. Silbert is a local prosecutor.

In tab 50.5, Mr. Kleindienst recounts on 6534 that he got a call from
Mr. Ehrlichman. Mr. Ehrlichman was very upset with Mr. Petersen.

INlr. Kleindienst defended jSIr. Petersen and told INIr. Ehrlichman
that he should stop, in essence, trying to push Mr. Petersen around
and if he did not stop it, he would find that there would be some
resignations in the Department of Justice,

Then the Attorney General called Mr. Petersen and they had a

meeting about this and they resolved the matter by arranging to have
Mr. Stans come to a conference room in tlie Criminal Division in the

Department of Justice and there be examined under oath without his

lawyer being present, without his counsel being present, but not before

the grand jury.

Mv. Petersen indicated that when you are dealing with persons of

high position, persons of great prestige or notoriety, it was not uncom-
mon "depending upon the circumstances, instead of having them ap-

pear before the grand jury directly, to have them interrogated by
an Assistant U.S. Attorney" in their conference room, they would not

have a lawyer with them, their attorney could be in the next room.
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Mr. Kleindienst said I told Mr. Ehrlicliman if he did not stop what
he was doing, he would be involved in an obstruction of justice com-
plaint. Tab 51.

Mr. Daatts. John Ehrlichman has testified that on July 31, 1972,

Ehrlicliman, John Dean, and Attorney General Kleindienst met and
discussed whether Jeb Magruder was involved in the break-in at the

DNC and that shortly thereafter. Ehrlichman discussed the meeting
with the President. Kleindienst has testified that he does not recall

the meeting.
In August 1072, after INIagruder's testimony before the grand jury

investigating the break-in at the DNC headquarters, Dean called As-
sistant Attorney General Henry Petersen to find out how Magruder
had done when testifying. Petersen called Assistant U.S. Attorney
Silbert and discussed Magruder's testimony. Petersen has testified

that he told Dean that while Magruder was a very articulate young
man, nobody believed ]\Iagruder's story that he did not know the pur-
poses for which campaign funds had been spent.

Mr. DoAR. Tab 51.1 indicates Mr. Ehrlichman's testimony that he
talked to the President, the comments of the Attorney General with
]\Ir. Dean arising out of the meeting; ISIr. Kleindienst indicates that
he did not have any recollection of that meeting. He saj's on 51.4, page
952, in the bracketed paragraph

—

Following that Magnider's appearance before the grand jury I received a call
from Higby requesting information for Haldeman as to how Magruder had done
before the grand jury. I subsequently called Mr. Petersen, who said he would
find out and call me back. Petersen called back and said he had made it through
by the skin of his teeth. I called Haldeman and subsequently informed Mitchell
and Magruder. I recall that Haldeman was very pleased, because this, of course,
meant that the investigation would not go beyond Liddy.

]\Ir. Petersen verifies this call with Mr. Dean in which he said, and
this is page 3617, tab 51.5, where INIr. Silbert said that Mr. Magruder
had made a good witness but nobody believed the story abo^it the
money.
Then you have Mr. Silbert's testimony before the Committee of the

Judiciary w^ith respect to Magruder's testimony. Tab 52.

INIr. Daat[S. Tab 52, at the end of August 1972, John Ehrlichman met
with the President and discussed what public statement the President
should make about the White House and CEP involvement in the
June 17 break-in. The President cited that he would state that there
was no involvement of present "\^^iit« House employees. On August 29,

1972, in a press conference, the President stated that John Dean, under
the President's direction, had conducted a complete investigation of
all leads that might involve any present members of the White House
staff or anybody in the Government.
The President said "I can say categorically that liis investigation

indicates that no one in the White House staff, no one in this adminis-
tration, presently employed, was involved in this very bizarre inci-

dent." John Dean has denied conducting that investigation. The
President also stated that the FBI and the Department of Justice
has had the total cooperation of the White House and that CRP was
continuing its investigation.
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Mr. DoAR. John Ehrlichman's discussion with the President is in

52.1 at page 2726. There he said

:

After our convention, when the President went to California, it seemed to me
still very legitimate for us to make very clear the fact that the White House
was not involved, even if we could not take the other leg of the argument and
say that the Committee to Reelect had had a similar investigation itself. Ho I

discussed this with the President. He agreed that this would be a very good
thing. He questioned me closely on how certain he could be of the soundness of
that assertion and I told him what I knew dating from July 31 through any
subsequent events, and I vouched to him that everything that had been reported
to me corroborated that what he was about to say if he were asked at this press
conference, and so on August 29 he went out and spoke as to the White House
only with regard to this.

Tab 52.2 is tlie President's news conference on August 29, 1972, and
52.3 John Dean's testimony before the grand jury which lias ah-eady
been called to your attention heretofore in connection with another
paragraph of the statement of information, in which Dean said that he
did not realize that until the President said that Dean had conducted an
investigation, ''I began to pretend that I had conducted an investiga-

tion." This is at the middle of Page 49 of Dean's grand jury testimony.

Mr. Jenner?
Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, would you

please note in the white space on information paragraph 52 the follow-

ing references to which you may give attention later. They are all

references to the issue of the assignment, investigation assignment to

Mr. Dean. The first is, return to information paragraph 11 when you
have the time and you will notice that the first sentence of that is that
on the morning of June 19, Mr. Ehrlichman told John Dean to look
into the question of White House involvement in the break-in at the

DXC and to determine current AVhite House employees status. That
is the first that we have of Mr. Dean beginning to conduct an
investigation.

The next tab is tab No. 49.2 at page 621 of the printed material.

There is testimony of Mr. Gray with respect to Mr. Dean having told

him that he had received this assignment.
Then Tab No. 26.2

Mr. Kailsback. Was that last one 49 ?

Mr. Jenner. Tab 49.2, there is a printed page in there numbered
621 in tab No. 2. 1 am sorry I gave you the wrong tab number. It is 49.1,

page 621. Mr. Gray responds about 10 lines down "He told me that he
was conducting an inquiry but he and I did not discuss the substance
of his inquiry or the substance of the FBI inquiry."

Mr. Railsback. I am glad you pointed that out to us because in your
paragraph here, it appeared to me when you got that statement in tliere

"John Dean lias denied conducting that investigation." Wlien you read
his grand jury transcript, he is kind of wiggling, but it looks like at

one place, he said "He just told me to keep my eyes and ears open and
learn what I could."

Then there is another reference, "I was merely sort of catch as catch
can" and then you read, go back and read where he did actually believe

he was conducting an investigation. I believe our paragraph is kind of
misrepresenting the fact there. It should point out this otlier fact.

The Chairmax. I think that is what the member has to conclude on
his own. I do not think counsel can point that out.
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Mr. Railsback. Mr. Chairman, I would agree with you were it not

—

T think there is another reference in an earlier paragraph, but he says

here on page 40 "I would not say it was an instruction to conduct an
investigation. He just told me to keep my eyes and ears open and learn

what I could.-

-

You know, that is—then taking what he did, it almost sounds like

it is arguable that he was given
Mr. Jenner. Mr. Chairman, I have two more references. The first

reference is tab 11. It is the information sheet at tab 11. The second
one was tab 49.1, page 621, which has just been commented.
The next is tab 26.2, the testimony of Mr. Gray again.

The Chairmax. What is that tab you are referring to, Mr. Jenner?
:Mr. Jenner. Tab 26.2.

The Chairman. That is not before us now.
Mr. Jenner. You would have to go back to an earlier book ; that is

Avliy I do not seek to delay you.
Then two tabs under 33 : 33.7. tlie second page.
Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman, Mr, Danielson.
Mr. Danielson. Mr. Chairman, may I respectfully suggest that

counsel give us these cross-references on a sheet of paper? They can
be distributed? I want to have them available to me and I think they
would be helpful to everyone.
The Chairman. I think counsel can do that.

Mr. Jenner. I think that is a good suggestion and we will do that.

The Chairman. Will you complete your reference now, Mr. Jenner ?

Mr. Jenner. The last two are 33.7, the second page. It is not a num-
bered page. And 33.8, printed or numbered page 3408. We will supply
these to you by way of a memorandum tomorrow.
The Chairman. Thank you.
Mr. Doar. Mr. Chairman, this is not pertinent to the inquiry, but I

am reminded of an incident that happened to me in the Department
of Justice when I was working in Mississippi. One day. one of Mr.
Hoover's key aides came down and said, there are some people down
in Mississippi that are misrepresenting the FBI. And he said, I would
like to see the credentials that you have of the Civil Rights Division
lawyers to see what they are.

So I pulled out my pass and showed it to him and he said, well, that

is nothing like the FBI badges. So it is not you and your staff that are
down there misrepresenting the FBI.
But he said. Mr. Hoover takes the position that only the FBI con-

ducts the investigation for the Department of Justice and only the FBI
conducts that investigation. It is going to do it all or it is not going to

do any of it.

I said to this fellow, who was Al Rosen's assistant, Jim Malley—

I

said, Jim, what are you talking about? I have been here in the Depart-
ment of Justice for 4i/4 years and I have been investigating down
South for those last 4 years. He said, John, j-ou don't investigate,

people just talk to you.
Well, we will turn to 53, which is the recorded conversation and we

will distribute the long, 33-minute conversation. We will read the tab
first.
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Mr. Davis. Tab 53, on September 15, 1972, the President met with
H. R. Haldeman and John Dean. Certain subjects were discussed in

the course of the September 15, 1972, meeting

:

Filing of indictment against seven Watergate defendants, transcript
pages 4 to 6 ; manner in which Dean has handled Watergate matter,
transcript page 17.

Human frailties and bitterness between Finance Committee and Po-
litical Committee, transcript pages 20 and 21

;
governmental power and

political opponents, transcript pages 21 to 25, 35 and 36,

Wliite House and Watergate matter, transcript pages 32 and 33.

Mr. DoAR. Members of the committee, this is the September 15
transcript and I will wait until you get the transcript, because I would
like to explain it to you.
Mr. Butler. That footnote, should that be September 15, 1972 ?

Mr. DoAR. Yes. That is a typo.
Mr. Butler. I apologize for pointing it out.

Mr. Rangel. I would like to point out that this conversation was re-

ported in the public transcript that was issued by the President.
jNIr. Seiberling. Mr. Chairman, before we go any further, in think-

ing about the previous tab and the cross-references that Mr. Jenner
gave us, it crossed m}^ mind that there are a lot of other cross-references
that bear on this same point. I wonder if the staff, in preparing them,
will give us the complete list of cross-references ?

]\Ir. Jenner. We will do that, sir.

Mr. Doar. I think it is really important for the committee also to not
just look at what the people say, but consider what Mr. Dean did and
consider what you do if you conduct an investigation. Any investiga-

tion I have ever conducted, I interviewed witnesses, I took statements,
I tried to get signed statements, I made a file, I went through, ex-

amined documents. I set up a procedure whereby I would make an in-

vestigation. The words here about whether he was conducting an
investigation or not I think have to be weighed against what Mr. Dean
actually did. I do not see any reference in the record that there were
interviews taken by Mr. Dean and that the kind of, if you use the word
"investigation" as I use it as a law^-er, that he did conduct any kind of
an investigation. Now, that is a judgment for the committee to make,
but I think that is a relevant consideration.

With respect to the transcript now. the first 3 pages of the tran-

script are, pages 1, 2, and 3 are the last 4 minutes of a conversation be-

tween the President and INIr. Haldeman which were given when we
made a copy of the tape recording at the White House. The Secret

Service man under the direction of Mr. Buzhardt sat at the table, put
a mark on the recording and it started to record. "Wlien we played tlie

tape, we found that instead of 83 minutes, it was about 45 minutes.
This is the last 4 minutes of that first 11 or 12 minutes before Mr. Dean
enters the room.

If you look at page 4, at the top, you will see that Dean enters the
room there. The conversation before Mr. Dean entered the room is a

discussion, as you will see, between the President and Mr. Haldeman
discussing John Dean. We will play that on the tape that we got the

copy of from the White House and then we will stop the tape and
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switch to a different tape for better listening, better audibility, and
play the 33-minute conversation.

Mr, DoAR. Perhaps I should explain to the members of the commit-
tee that that characterization was eliminated by the chairman and the
ranking minority member. It is on the tape, but their instruction was
we eliminate it. That has been done in a number of cases through the
tapes. Of course, it is available to any member who cares to listen to the

entire tape over at our office. This is at page 24 of the transcript of the

tape.

IMr. Rangel. Mr. Doar, in order to avoid us listening to the whole
tape, could you put out what the characterization are so that we can
follow it on the transcript, you know, if we request it individually? I

do not see why we should listen to the whole tape.

INIr. DoAR. If any member wanted to find out, we could tell them, yes.

JNIr. Rangel. Thank you.
[At this point a tape was played.]

Mr. DoAR. I wonder whether, Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. Mr. Doar.
]Mr. Doar. I wonder whether the Chair might consider recessing at

this time because the last four things go into a different subject here
and it would take some time to explain. This may be an appropriate
time.

The Chairman. Well, we can resume tomorrow morning.
INIr. Doar. Yes.
The Chairman. We will resume.
jNIr. Waldie. Mr. Chairman ?

The Chairman. Mr. Waldie.
Mr. Waldie. INIay I just make a suggestion, if it could be done and

I do not knoAv if it could be done. It seemed to me, and I know in this

tape there was an awful lot that was not in the released transcript that
Ave had. Would it be at all possible for staff, when they provide us a
transcript of the tape we are listening to, to indicate on that tran-
sci'ipt that which was not in the edited transcripts we received from
tlie White House. Is that

The Chairman. I am sure that is possible. It will just take some
more time.

Mr. Waldie. Well, could the staff do it? It would be of enormous
assistance to us.

INIr. Doar. Would the committee like that on the transcripts they are

following or Avould they like a separate one so that they have two tran-
scripts, two documents ?

The Chair3ian. Well, that would be something that I guess the com-
mittee members would have to determine, whether or not we would fol-

low the tandem rule, whether you would have the original and then
the way we have transcribed it.

Mr. Waldie, That would be easier.

The Chairman. That would probably be the best way.
Mr. McClory. Mr. Chairman, this is a very small matter I think but

if the counsel would turn to tab 42 I think that the statement of infor-

mation there is not accurately stated.

The Chairman. Which one is that ?
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Mr. McClory. Tab 42. It sa3-s "on that evening," the second sentence,

"on that evening. Dean telephoned Gray at home and urged that, for

national security reasons, or because of CIA interest, Ogarrio and
Dahlberg be held up."

I think what it means is that you should insert the word further

investigations in front of the word Ogarrio, further investigations of

Ogarrio, and Dahlberg be held up. That is the way I interpret the

transcript.

The Chairmax. I think that is correct and I think that is probably

the best way rather than being held up the way we understand it.

Why don't we include the word interviews instead in there on tab

42, for national security reasons or because of CIA interests interviews

concerning Ogarrio and Dahlberg be held up.

Xow, the committee will resume at 10 o'clock in the morning. We
will recess until then.

Oh, yes. I must announce that the committee has been requested to

sit for photographs for the AP, for UPI and other interested publica-

tions, and if the committee members would be here at 9 :30 tomorrow

morning I think we could dispose of that item, without earphones.

[Whereupon, at 5 :44 p.m., the committee was recessed to reconvene

at 10 a.m. on Thursday, May 16, 1974.]
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